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LORRAINE ANr.LIN, Claimant 
Evohl Malaqon, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SA IF Corp Leg a 1 , Defense Attorne_y 
Own Motion ·Order 

Own Motion 8I-0061M 
May .4, 1981 

·.i:-ne claimant, by ana through ner att'::irney, has requ 1:· •• c.ea t:1e 
0oard to exE:.:cise. its own motion jurisdictio11 pur:suant tu .)RS 
656.27d anci reopen hei claim for a wors~ne~ condi~ion rc~uced to 
her industr.i.:11 injury of June 11, 1972. Claimant's aggr<'J·✓ :.1tio1,. 

rights have expired. 

'i':-1e Sl,lF Corporation, ·on April 3, 1981, issi...c:d a dt":-:-.• ,:11 o:: 
the treatme:11:. being recommended, the installation of a P._,,-:;es c:2-
v1ce :,timu1,~r.or. · Claimant has appealed from that Jenial ~ :-. ~-JCo 
Cas~ No .. BJ-08689 which is pres~ntly Set for hearing befo:0 Ref­
'-" r e e W i 11 i .:i;h Peterson on May 7 , 19 8 l. 

By this order the Referee is instructed to hold his :,,~o.r i:>J 
on tr .. :: issL.:,., of medical care and treatment: and, .ac. tne c_;_, ;e o:: 

• J 

::he hearin9, to submit to the Board a copy of his Opinic,·. ,ncl : :--
.Jer. · Upon :2ceipt of the Referee'.;:; Opinion and O:::.:ier thf.: .. )oa:::-__, 
will n . ..:.ke a -Jecision on claima.nt 1 s request £or th~ Boar~ _.i exr_··­
,.ise :'::sown ;notion jurisuiction. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

PA UL ETTE /l. YO-lfl L LI AMS , CLAIMANT 
J. David Kryger ~ Claimant' s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defins~ Attorney 
Own Motion Order · 

Own Motion 81-0102M 
May 4, 1981 . 

Claimant sustiiined a compensaole injury to her back )., No-.-~m­
oer 2~. 1974 whil~ employed at Fa~rview Hospital and Training Cen­
ter. The claim was initially clo3ed in Jaauary 197S ano r,~r e1·_;­
~ravation ri~hts have expired. ·c1aimant.has bee~ grante~ lW~ras 
totaliing Y6° for 30% unscnedulea low back disability a~~ L5i loss 
Jf the left leg~- · · · 

By a doard 1 s vwn Motion Order- dat:ect December 1.6, l':L:1.,.cluim-:-
ant's claim was reopened effective October 3, lY&U. Surgc~y was 
~)er formed on Octoper 17, 1980. On i~larcn J, 1981, Dr. Bu.-::a. inci .. ca­
ted claimant had a bilateral foot ~rap, ankle we~~nesi i~~ absent 
ankle .ceflexes, fincting the rigi1t side weaker than the le::::.~ 2 · 

round a minimal limitation in _cla.:.rnant 's range of motior. ... i: the 
lumbar spine. She was· deterirtined 'to be meaically statio;~,:...-y aL 
the time. 

-1--

9 LORRAINE ANOLIN, Claimant
Evohl Malaqon, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0061M
May .4, 1981

i‘ne claimant, by ana through ner attorney, has requ^r-.cea the
hoard to exercise.its own motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS
656.278 and reopen her claim for a worsened condition re..-aeed co
her industrial injury of June 11, 1972. Claimant's aggravatioii
rights have expired.

The Corporat ion, ’ on April 3, 1981, issued a de.-.^.vSl or
che tceatmenr. being recommended, the installation of a R^..,ces de­
vice St imui.-. cor. ' Claimant has appealed from that denial vJCo
Case Lio.. 80-08689 which is presently set for hearing before Ref-
^'lee Wiliia.i'i Peterson on May 7, ly&l.

iiy this order the Referee is instructed to hola his :,eari:oj
on tn<,- issue of meuical care and treatmenc and, ^ac tne ci-. se of
the hearing, to submit to the Board a copy of his Opinion ind
aer. Upon receipt of the Referee's Opinion and Oraer the.ooar^
will lujike a decision on claimant's request for the Board ..j extr-
.-ise : ts ov;n motion jurisdiction.

9
IT IS SO ORDERED.

9

PAULETTE A O WILLIAMS, CLAIMANT
J. David Kryqer, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0102M
May 4, 1981 '

Claimant sustained a compensaole injury to her back j.i Nov^-m-
oer 27, 1974 while employed at Fairview Hospital and Training Cen­
ter. The claim.was initially closed in January 1975 ano her a\';-
•^ravation' rights have expired. Claimant has been granted iwaras
totalling 96*^ for 30% unsenedulea low back disability anu ^5% loss
if the left leg.

By a Hoard's Own Motion Order dated December 16, 19 c i.claim­
ant's claim was reopened, effective October 3, 198U, Surgery was
performed on October 17 , 1980. On Marcn 3, 1981, Or. Buza indica­
ted claimant had a bilateral foot drop, ankle weakness a:e:. absent
ankle reflexes, finding the rignt side weaker than the ie;:a. e
found a minimal limitation in .claimant's range of motion the
lumbar spine. She was deterifiined to be medically statioi.^uiy at
the time. .'
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consideration of the ev1aence before ic., the Lv .. dua1... ... on 
Oivision of the Workers' Compensation Depa~tment recomme~cied 
claimant be granted additional temporary total disability ~nd ~~ 
award equal to 10% loss of the riync foot due to the wea~~~ss of 
this foot. It felt claimant's award of 30% unscheduled lc0 ba2~ 
disability was adequate. 

The Board concurs. 

ORDER 

Claimant is hereby granted compensation for tempora:y total 
disability from October 3, 1980 through March 3, 1981, less any 
time worked. 

Claimant is also. granted an-award equal to lOi loss o~ the. 
right foot as ·a result -of the 1974 industrial injury~ This is ~n 
addition to· all previou~ awards claimant has been ~rante~ for this 
injury. 

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney 1 s fee 
a sum equ·al to 25% .of the increased compensation granted by this 
order, payable out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed 
$148.75, per the agreement between claimant and his attor~ey. 

" ~ " . ~~--- ''"'•,•-~-

DIANE B. LIKENS, CLAIMANT 
Welch, Bruun & Green., Claimant I s Attornevs 
SAIF Coro Lerial, Defense Attorney 
Reciuest for .Review 

\.JCB 80-02647 
May 4, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee 1 s order which 
affirmed the SAIF Corporation 1 s denial of March 19, 1980. The 
Referee concluded that because of his· affirmance of the ,...E::nial, · 
penalties and attorney fees could no~ be awarded. Claimant con­
tends ner claim is c~mpensable and tnat she is entitled to interim 
compensation'for the SAIF's late denial. 

We affirm th~ conclusion reached by t~e Referee t~~~ claimant 
failed to catry her burden of pr6ving she·sustained an occJpa­
tional disease. 'l'he Board further concurs that claimant 1:; not o2n­
titled to penalties and attorney fees but the Referee 1 s ceasoni~J 
is contrary to law. -Under the Court's holding in Jones ,; .. Eman;.;el 
Hospital, 230 Or. 147 (1977), interim compensation may Le due 
whetner or not the claim is ultimacely found to b0 comper,s-:1bl2. 
However, in this ca~e, no interim compensation is due~ Clairnarc 
ceased her employment on February 13, 1979 for conditions ~nre­
lated to hei lbw ba~~ condition. Sne filed ~n 801 for occupa­
tional diseas~ on January 7, 1980 anJ saw no physician for her ~1-
leged low back condition until January 1980. There is no ~roof 
claimant was off work due to her back condition and also no med­
ical evidence presented authorizing time loss. Therefore claimant 
has failed. to prove her entitlement: to interim com2ensation for 
SAIF 1 s late denial. · -2-

-· 
After corisidercition of the evidence before ic, the hvalua

division of the Workers' Compensation Department recommenoed
.on

claimant be granted additional
award equal to 10% loss of the
this foot. It felt claimant's
disability was adequate.

The Board concurs.

temporary total disabilit;;/ and
rignc foot due to the weakness of
award of 30% unscheduled low back m

ORDER

Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary, total
disability from October 3, 1980 through March 3, 1981, less any
time worked.

Claimant is also- granted an-award equal to 10% loss of the-
right foot as a result of the 1974 industrial injury. This is in
addition to ail previous awards claimant has been granted for this
injury.

Claimant's attorney is granto'd as a reasonable attorney’s fee
a sum, equal to 25% of the increased compensation granted by this
order, payable out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed
$148.75, per. the agreement between claimant and his attor.iey.

DIANE B. LIKENS, CLAIMANT
Welch, Bruun & Green,, Claimant's Attornevs
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorne.y
Reduest for Review

WCB 80 02647
May 4, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the SAIF Corporation's denial of March 19, 1980. The
Referee concluded that because of his affirmance of the ^enial,'
penalties and attorney fees could not be awarded. Claimant con­
tends ner claim is compensable and tnat she is entitled to interim
compensation'for the SAIF's late denial.

We affirm the conclusion reached by the Referee thar claimant
failed to carry her burden of proving she'sustained an occupa­
tional disease. The Board further concurs that claimant is not en­
titled to penalties and attorney fees but the Referee's reasonin-g
is contrary to law. Under the Court's holding in Jones vEmanuel
Hospital, 280 Or. 147 (1977) , interim compensation may be due
whetner or not the claim is ultimately found to be compensable.
However, in this case, no interim compensation is due. Claimant
ceased her employment on February 13, 1979 for conditions unre­
lated to her low back condition. Sne filed an 801 for occupa­
tional disease on January 7, 1980 and saw no physician for her al­
leged low back condition until January 1980. There is no proof
claimant was off work due to her back condition and also no med­
ical evidence presented authorizing time loss. Therefore claimant
has failed to prove her entitlement to interim compensation for
SAIF's late denial. ........ .........~ -2- “
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J. MONTANO, CLAIMANT_ 
SAIF Coro Leaal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0113M 
May 4, 1981. 

Tne Boaca issued its Own Motion Order 1n tne above e~citleci 
1aatter on August 26, 1980 and reopened clai~ant's claim tor a wor­
sened condition·related to his March 24, 1967 induscrial 1nJury. 

The claim has ~ow been submitted for closure, and it is the 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' ~ompen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from July 22, 1980 througn Auyust 6, 19d0 
and to no additional award of permanent partial d{sability. The 
Board concurs with this recommendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

ELFIE PUMPEILY, CIAIMAJ-.TI' 
Fmuons, Kyle, et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Lecral, Defense Attornev' 
Order on REmand 

,~ 78-06010 
Mav 4, 1981 

The Board, on July 11, 1980, modified the Referee's J~J.itlij.: 
and Order of January j1, 1980. The Referee had affirme~ the de­
nial of aggravation dated July 19, 1978 but fou.nci claimar1t ·en­
titled to medical services pursuant to ORS 656.245(1) ~ The Board 
concurred with the Referee's affirillance of the denial of 3ggrava­
tion but reversed ~he Referee on claimant 1 s entitlement co ORS 
656.245 medical services. · 

In an opinion filed February 'J, 1981, the Court of ,\£>peals 
reversed and remanded with instructions that the SAIB Cor?oration 
was to accept claimant's aggravation claim. The Board received 
the.Judgment and Mandate on A~ril 10, 1981. 

?he SAIF Corporation's denia~ dated July 19, 1078 1s reversed 
and clairnant 1 s claim for aggravation is· r~mandeci :-J tlle ::i:"·.[F C,·:­
poration for acceptance and payment of benefits as requir~J by law 
Jntil closuie is authorized pursuant to OKS 656.2~8. 

-3-

9
EUGENE J. MONTANO, CLAIMANT,
SAIF Corp Leaal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0113M
May 4, 1981'

Tne Board issued its Own Motion Order in tne above er.citled
iiiatter on August 26 , 1980 and reopened ciairriant's claim lor a wor­
sened condition•related to his March 24, 1967 industrial injury.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be,granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from July 22, 1980 througn August 6, 1980
and to no additional award-of permanent partial disability. The
Board concurs with this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m ELPIE PU PELLY, CLAI ANT
Bimons, Kyle, et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Itefense Attorney'
Order on Ranand

ra 78-06010
Mav 4, 1981

The Board, on July 11, 1980, modified the Referee's op.inion
and Order of January 31, 1980. The Referee had affirmed the de-
nial of aggravation dated July 19, 1978 but found claimant en­
titled to medical services pursuant to ORS 656.243(1)1 The Board
concurred with the Referee's affirmance of the denial of aggrava­
tion but reversed the Referee on claimant's entitlement to ORS
656.245 medical services. . •

In an opinion filed February 9,, 1981, the Court of Api^eals
reversed, and remanded with instructions that the SAIF Corporation
was to accept claimant's aggravation claim. The Boara received
the.Judgment and Mandate on April 10, 1981.

ORDER

The SAIF Corporation's denial dated July 19, 1978 is reversed
and claimant's claim for aggravation is-remanded :o the Se.[F Ch'S-
poration for acceptance and payment of benefits as required by law
until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.268.

m
-3-
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BABCOCK, CLAIMANT 
A.J. Morris, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leqal, ·oefense Attorney 
Request for Review qy Claimant 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 79-06537 
May 5, 1981 

The claimant ·seeks Board review of the Referee's order which 
affirmed the Determination Ordei o~ July 24, 1979. Claimant con­
tends he is entitl~d to an award of perrnan~nt ~artial disabilit9. 

Claimant's injury of October 27, 1978 subseqJently led to his 
undergoing a craniotomy which severed some cranial nerves, a con­
sequence of which was claimant's losing his sense of taste and 
3mell. Claimant contends that this loss of taste and smell con­
stitutes loss of wage earning capacity. 

The evidence indicates that claimant's employer at t~e tiffie 
of the injury and to whom he retur~ed when found medically sta­
tionary ~ade concessions for claimant. For excimple, because oi 
;1is lack of se·nse of smell, claimant could not c.ell when L1e wir­
ing in his• truck was smoking until tne cab filled with smoke; his 
employer provided claimant's truck with a smoke alarm system. 
Claimant also testified to his fear of working around toxic che.r.­
icals because ·he could not smell them and would not know when G2 
~as over-exposed . 

. The Board finds that claimant has lost some wage earn1ng ca­
pacity and feels.that some ernploy~rs, in a very small segment 6f 
the labor market, wo~ld be leary of hiring claimant in situations 
where a sense of smell could be important to avoid injury to 
claimant or o~hers.· · 

The Board concludes that claimant should be awarded ;,nn1rnc.,;,. 
permanent partial disability to compe~sate him for hi~ preclusion 
from these limited employment situations. 

The order of the Referee dated September l.2, 1980 is 1aodif ieci. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 16° for 5% unscheduled 
disability. 

Claimant's attorney is granted, as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee, a sum ·equal to 25% of the compensation granted by this 
order. 

-4-

·-KENT BABCOCK, CLAIMANT
A.J. Morn's, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-06537
May 5, 1981

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the Determination Order of July 24, 1979. Claimant con­
tends he is entitled to an award of permanent partial disaoility.

Claimant's•injury of October 27, 1978 subsequently led to his
undergoing a craniotomy which severed some cranial nerves, a con­
sequence of which was claimant's losing his sense' of taste and
smell. Claimant contends that this loss of taste and smell con­
stitutes loss of wage earning capacity.

The evidence indicates that claimant's employer at t^e time
of the injury and to whom he returned when found medically sta-
cionary made concessions for claimant. For example, because ol
his lack of sense of. smell, claimant could not cell when the wir­
ing in his' truck was smoking until the cab filled with smoke; his
employer provided claimant's truck with a smoke alarm system.
Claimant also testified to his fear of working around toxic chem­
icals because 'he could not smell them and would not know when ne
was over-exposed.

The Board finds that claimant has lost some wage earning ca­
pacity and feels' that some employers, in a very small segment of
the labor market, would be leary of hiring claimant in situations
where a sense of smell could be important to avoid injury to
claimant or others.'

The Board concludes that claimant should be awarded rainima^
permanent partial disability to compensate'him for his preclusion
from these limited employment situations.

ORi'.CR
The order of the Referee dated September 12 , 1980 is laodified,

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 16° for 5% unscheduled
disability.

Claimant's attorney is granted, as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee, a sum equal to 25% .of the compensation' granted by this
order.

m
-4-



  
     
     
    

 
  

      

        
           
 

          
            
        
          

           
          

      

          
  

         
          
          
           
           

         

          
         

         
          
            
          

             
         
          
           
    

        
         
          

        

        
          
            
         
          
 

BENAVIDEZ, CLAIMANT 
Olson, Hittle et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys 
Reauest for Review by Claimant 

WCB 79-10201 
May 5, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 

Claimant seeks Board review·of the Referee's order which 
awarded 15% unscheduled disability to the low back on the claimant's 
aggravation claim. 

Although not stated in the Referee's Opinion and ·order, the 
primary issue at the July 15, 1980 hearing was the extent of per­
manent partial disability on claimant's compensable clais for 
aggravation. An issue of penalties and fees for the insurer's 
failure to pay compensation as ordered by the November 2i, 1979 
Determination Order was settled by the parties after the hearing 
and before issuance of the Referee's order. 

The issue raised on appeal is the extent of claimant's pe~­
manent partial disability. 

Compensably injured on July 2, 1974 while assenblins pumps 
for DWS, Inc., in Portland where claimant had worked for approxi­
mately 4-1/2. years, claimant hurt his low back while reaching 
across a 0orkbench for a part: Dr~ Herbert Freeman ~irst treated 
claimant the day after the injury, and on July 15, 1974 author­
ized time loss due to the severity of the injuries. 

Later, on August 24, 1974, Dr. J. R. Becker 'diagnosed 
claimant's injuries as acute lumbosacral sprain with no evidence 
of a herniated intervertebral disc but with probable early de­
generative disc di~ease at the L3-4 level~ Dr. Becker released 
claimant to return to his· former work on September 26, 197 4. In 

October, Dr. Becker reported that claimant was working £0ur days 
a week with intermittent pain in his low back and up in his neck. 
On December 30, 1974, Dr. Robert Post declared claimant's condi­
tion to be stationary with no permanent impairment. Dr. Becker's 
chart notes of January 6, 1975 indicate that clai~ant's pain i1ad 
subsided to a low-grade ache. 

In .March of 1975, when claimant's pain became wors12, 
Dr. Post suspected a previously ruptured disc. ·rris diagnosis 
in August of 1975 was a chronic thoracolumbar strain with 
radiating pain and _some hypethesia in the right leg. 

In ·March 1976, Dr. Virgil Peters examined claimant be-
.cause of chronic-back problems and again on .March 17, 1976. 
rn· July 1976 Dr. Peters reported that he had not seen the 
claim~nt since March. He noted that claimant had a long­
standing back problem and that claimant was· training for a 
different job. 

·-----------~---------- ---------- --------·-··-···-·--·. 

:._5_ 

GUILLERMO BENAVIDEZ, CLAIMANT
Olson, Hittle et al, Claimant's Attorneys
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-10201
May 5, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

Claimant seeks Board review‘of the Referee's order which
awarded 15% unscheduled disability to the low back on the claimant's
aggravation claim.

Although not stated in the Referee's Opinion and 'Order, the
primary issue at the July 15, 1980 hearing was the extent of per­
manent partial disability on claimant's compensable claim for
aggravation. An issue of penalties and fees for the insurer's
failure to pay compensation as ordered by the November 21, 1979
Determination Order was settled by the parties after the hearing
and before issuance of the Referee's order.

The issue raised on appeal is the extent of claimant's per­
manent partial disability.

Compensably injured on July 2, 1974 while assembling pumps
for DV7S, Inc., in Portland where claimant had worked for approxi­
mately 4-1/2. years, claimant hurt his low back while reaching
across a workbench for a part.' Dr. Herbert Freeman f-irst treated
claimant the day after the injury, and on July 15, 1974 author­
ized time loss due to the severity of the injuries.

Later, on August 24, 1974, Dr. J. R. Becker diagnosed
claimant's injuries as acute lumbosacral sprain with no evidence
of a herniated intervertebral disc but with probable early de­
generative disc disease at the L3-4 level. Dr. Becker released
claimant to return to his' former work on September 26, 1974. In
October, Dr. Becker reported that claimant was working four days
a week with intermittent pain in his low back and up in his neck.
On December 30, 1974, Dr. Robert Post declared claimant's condi­
tion to be stationary with no permanent impairment. Dr. Becker's
chart notes of January 6, 1975 indicate that claimant's pain nad
subsided to a low-grade ache.

In March of 1975, when claimant's pain became worse.
Dr. Post suspected a previously ruptured disc. Ilis diagnosis
in August of 1975 was a chronic thoracolumbar strain with
radiating pain and some hypethesia in the right leg.

In March 1976, Dr. Virgil Peters examined claimant be­
cause of chronic back problems and again on March 17, 1976.
In July 1976 Dr. Peters reported that he had not seen the
claimant since March. He noted that claimant had a long­
standing back problem and that claimant was’ training for a
different job.

-5-
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record shows that in July 1976 claimant indicated 

to a vocational rehabilitation case worker that he did not 

think he had a WCB claim because he had waited too long to 
tell about it. 

Born in Texas in 1935, claiuant worked in the fields 

picking cotton, corn and other farm products until 1966 when 

he moyed to Oregon. Although 0is .formal education went to 

the 7th grade, .he is functionally illiterate, having neither 

the ability to read nor write, with some difficul'ty speaking 

the English language. Upon moving to Oregon, he worked on a 

chicken farm in Woodburn.for 4-1/2 years.before gain~ to 

work for Dws,· Inc. in Portland which manufactures kidney 
machines for hospitals. 

Claimarit was ieferred for vocation~l rehabilitation 

services in July 1976 by the Manpower Consortium. It i~ 

interesting to note that although the vocational rehabilitation 

notes indicate that claimant's wife did not work, claimant 

testified at the hearing-+aJbeit four years later--that she 
had worked a~l along. 

The Board takes this, and claimant's earlier belief 

that he did not have a claim, as an indication that claimant's 

difficulties with the English language deprived him.of a 

clear understanding.of what was being asked of him or what 

is involy~d in the processing of a claim. 

Claimant's efforts at rehabilitation and the educational· 

program provided through a CETA program.included an attempt 

at securing a GED at Chemeketa Community College in Salem 

where . he secured· a p~rt-time job as a j ani t.or. The vocational 

rehabilitation specialists estimated that it would take' 

about three y~ars to bring his reading level up to an 

acceptable level during which time claimant had finan­
cial.worries about how_he would support 

his f.amilv. · The November 1976 r,~habilitation program narra­

tive stat~d that the claimant "has enough•pride· in his own 
appearance that physically he will follow through consistently 

to find work which will be sufficient to, support himself and 

his family." The evaluation summary incluq.ed the following com-. 
ment: 

"This man has a bad.back and finds it limiting 
to him in that going back to the work that he 
has done in·.the·past. It has been determined 
t~at he·should limit his vocational activities 
to light~work. Also it has been determined 
that this man is. functionally illiterate which 
is a great d:i;awback to him." 

-6.:. 

-The record shows that in July 1976 claimant indicated
to a vocational rehabilitation case worker that he did not
think he had a WCB claim because he had waited too long to
tell about it.

Born in Texas in 1935, claimant worked in the fields
picking cotton, corn and other farm products until 1966 when
he moved to Oregon. Although his -formal education went to
the 7th grade, -he is functionally illiterate, having neither
the ability to read nor write, with some difficulty speaking
the English language. Upon moving to Oregon, he worked on a
chicken farm in Woodburn.for 4-1/2 years.before going to
work for DWS, Inc. in Portland which manufactures Kidney
machines for hospitals. • ■

Claimant was referred for vocational rehabilitation
services in July 1976 by the Manpower Consortium. It is
interesting to note that although the vocational rehabilitation
notes indicate that claimant's wife did not work, claimant
testified at the hearing-talbeit four years later--that she
had worked all along.

The Board takes this, and claimant's earlier belief
that he did not have a claim, as an indication that claimant's
difficulties with the English language deprived him of a
clear understanding of what was being asked of him or what
is involved in the processing of a claim.

Claimant's efforts at rehabilitation and the educational-
program provided through a CETA program.included an attempt
at securing a GED at Chemeketa Community College in Salem
where .he secured' a part-time job as a janitor. The vocational
rehabilitation specialists estimated that it would take
about three years to bring his reading level up to an
acceptable level during which time claimant had finan­
cial, worries about how he would support

his family. The November 1976 rehabilitation program narra­
tive stated that the claimant "has enough-pride in his own
appearance that physically he will follow through consistently
to find work v;hich will be sufficient to- support himself and
his family." The evaluation summary included the following com­
ment :

m

"This man has a bad,back and finds it limiting
to him in that going back to the work that he
has done inthe-past. It has been determined
that he' should limit his vocational activities
to light, work. Also it has been determined'
that this man is,functionally illiterate which
is a great, drawback to him."

-6-
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The evaluation noted that claimant's attitude toward school 
and training was good and commended h4.s willingness to go to . 
adult education at _Chemeket_a even though it would take him three 
years to get his GED. , . 

Although the Referee beJ_ieved the claimant didn't like the 
long commute to Portland after moving to Salem, the record re­
veals that as far b~ck as 1974,'on the date of the injury, the 
claimant lived in Silverton. It may be presumed, therefore,, t:hat 
claimant had commuted between Silverton and Portland for years, 
until hi's back problems became such that he coul'd no longer con­
tinue the long commute.· 

'The November 2, 1976 vocation~l rehabilitation report dis­
cussed clai~ant's rea~on~ for giving up. his Portland job: 

"This man is married ... there are five children 
in the home.' He has been drawing CETA funds 

·for several weeks now. This man had a good job 
in Portland working where they made machines·· 
for kidney failure patients: but instead of mov­
ing t~e 'family to Portland to keep the job he. 
preferred to let that go. however, he states the 
doctor encouraged. him to quit the job because 
the driving b~ck and forth was aggtivating (sic) 

.his back so bad ••• " . 

It ·should be noted that at the time claimant explained his rea­
s6ns for leaving his-.Portland job, he also'indicated his belief 
that he h~d no workers' compensation claim rights. 

The claim was closed by Determination·order dated January 
26, 1977 which stated that the i:1fol'.111ation in t:he file was not 
adequate to support any determination on the issues of compen~ 
sation for either temporary total or for permanent partial dis­
abili-f;:y. 

There follows a two year hiatus in the record for which· 
time no medical or vocational evidence is offered: 

In January of 1979, clai~ant was seen by Dr. John D. White 
for low back and right leg pai~. Dr. White's medical impres­
sion was that of a chronic. disc herniation, L5-Sl on the right. 
He observed continued pain plus objective sign's of nerve root · 
damage and recommended myelogr~phy and·p~obable surgery. Dr. 
White noted that the cla~mant seerned·quite interested in being 
able to. restore his health so he could continue working and be 
more productive. · · 

-- . . . . . . . .. - ·-
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The evaluation noted that claimant's attitude toward school
and training was good and commended his willingness to go to
adult education at Chemeketa even though it would take him three
years to get his GED.

Although the Referee believed the claimant didn't like the
long commute to Portland after moving to Salem, the record re­
veals that as far back as 1974 ,'on the date of the injury, the
claimant lived in Silverton. It may be presumed, therefore,: that
claimant had commuted between Silverton and Portland for years,
until hi's back problems became such that he could no longer con­
tinue the long commute.'

'The November 2, 1976 vocational rehabilitation report dis­
cussed claimant's reasons for giving up. his Portland job:

"This man is married...there are five children
in the home.' He has been drawing CETA funds
for several weeks now. This man had a good job
in Portland working where they made machines
for kidney failure patients? but instead of mov­
ing the family to Portland to keep the job he.
preferred to let that go-however, he states the
doctor encouraged, him to quit the job because
the driving back and forth was aggrivating (sic)
.his back so bad..."

It should be noted that at the time claimant explained his rea­
sons for leaving his Portland job, he also'indicated his belief
that he had no workers’ compensation claim rights.

m

The claim was closed by Determination Order dated January
26, 1977 which stated that the information in the file was not
adequate to support any determination on the issues of compen­
sation for either temporary total or for permanent partial dis­
ability. • ' ■

There follows a two year hiatus in the record for which -
time no medical or vocational evidence is offered.

In January of 1979, claimant was seen by Dr. John D. White
for low back and right leg pain'. Dr. White's medical impres­
sion was that of a chronic, disc herniation, L5-S1 on the right.
He observed continued pain plus objective signs of nerve root •
damage and recommended myelography and-probable surgery. Dr.
White noted that the claimant seemed quite interested in being
able to.restore his health so he could continue working and be
more productive.

-7-
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a letter ·to INA dated February 2, 1979, Dr. White indi'­
cated that claimant needed· additional medical care, including 
a myelogram and· po_ssible lumbar surgery, and recommended that the 
claim ·be reopened. The February 21, +979 myelogram indicated no 
lumbar myelographic disturbance, a doubt that tapering of the 
caudal sac at the lumbosacral junction was sufficient to seri­
ou·s1y impa·ir the· reliability. of myelography at L5-Sl, and re­
vealed a degenerative disc disease-with amputation of the right 
and left sided nerve root sleeves and ventral margin indentation 
a·t C5-C6 interval. 

Dr. White concluded, on February 27, 1979, that-claimant . 
had a probable her~iated disc at L5-Sl on the right. On that 
date, he performed an exploratory ·1aminectomy in which no disc 
protrusion was found; Dr. White did, however, perform foramino~· 
tomies at LS-Sl levels to enlarge the opening through which the 
nerve root leaves the neural canal. Following that ·surgery, Dr. 
White reported: 

"I do not hc!,Ve a good explanation for his 
continued sciatica on the right side but I 
suspect that he did have a disc herniation 
in the past which healed with some residual 
root compromise." 

In his closing evaluation of April 30, 1979, Dr. White 
determined claimant's condition as stable and stated that the ~-
cla·im should be closed. He doubte·d that claimant would be able 
to do continuous work requiring heavy use of his back. From 
the testimony of the. claimant, it may reasonably be conclude~ 
that this would preclude claimant from performing the janitorial 
duties he had performed at Chemeketa Community College and other 
places prior to surgery. · 

By Stipulation and Order dated October 4, 1979, the 
parties stipulated .that claimant had requested a hearing 

. on his entitlement to a reopening of his-claim, pursuant to 
an aggravati6n claim· under ORS 656.273., further stipulating, 
that the .aggrava~ion claim for a worsened condition was com­
pensable, .and that the claim should be reopened as of January 
8, 1978 with time loss benefits payable fro~. that date. 

Extent.of Claimant's Permanent Partial Disability on the 
Compensable Aggravation Claim 

Factors appropriately considered in detemining th~ loss 
of a claimant's earning capacity include not only those author­
ized by ORS 656.214(5)·, such as age, education, training, skills 
and work experience, but also include consideration of vocational 
rehabilitation reports regarding job opportunities and the fit­
ness of a claimant ·to perform certain jobs, as directed by ORS 
656. 287 (1). 

-8-
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In a letter to INA dated February 2, 1979, Dr. White indi­
cated that claimant needed' additional medical care, including
a myelogram and'possible lumbar surgery, and recommended that the
claim be reopened. The February 21, 1979 myelogram indicated no
lumbar myelographic disturbance, a doubt that tapering of the
caudal sac at the lumbosacral junction was sufficient to seri­
ously impair the'reliability- of myelography at L5-S1, and re­
vealed a degenerative disc disease- with amputation of the right
and left sided nerve root sleeves and ventral margin indentation
at C5-C6 interval.

Dr. White concluded, on February 27, 1979, that•claimant
had a probable herniated disc at L5-S1 on the right. On that
date, he performed an exploratory laminectomy in which no disc
protrusion was found; Dr. White did, however, perform foramino-'
tomies at L5-S1 levels to enlarge the opening through which the
nerve root leaves the neural canal. Following that 'surgery. Dr.
White reported:

"I do not have a good explanation for his
continued sciatica on the right side but I
suspect that he did have a disc herniation
in the past which healed with some residual
root compromise."

In his closing evaluation of April 30, 1979, Dr. White
determined claimant's condition as stable and stated that the
claim should be closed. He doubted that claimant would be able
to do continuous work requiring heavy use of his back. From
the testimony of the. claimant, it may reasonably be concluded
that this would preclude claimant from performing the janitorial
duties he had performed at Chemeketa Community College and other
places prior to surgery.

By Stipulation and Order dated October 4, 1979, the
parties stipulated that claimant had requested a hearing
on his entitlement to a reopening of his claim, pursuant to
an aggravation claim' under ORS 656.273., further stipulating
that the aggravation claim for a worsened condition was com­
pensable, and that the claim should be reopened as of January
8, 1978 with time loss benefits payable from that date.

Extent-of Claimant's Permanent Partial Disability on the
Compensable Aggravation Claim

Factors appropriately considered in determining the loss
of a claimant's earning capacity include not only those author­
ized by ORS 656.214(5)-, such as age, education, training, skills
and work experience, but also include consideration of vocational
rehabilitation reports regarding job opportunities and the fit­
ness of a claimant to perform certain jobs, as directed by ORS
656,287 (1) .
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vocational rehabilitation reports contained in the 
record clearly indicate a severely limited claimant. who is 
function~lly illiterate and who~-although highly motivated--has 
practicaily no job skills or work experience other than ooderately 
heavy physical labor. Although the vocational evaluations in the 
re.cord were conducted prior to claimant 1 s 197 9 surgery, their 
probative value to an assessment ot the claimant's overall em­
ployability remains unchanged. The claimant's subsequent testi­
mony shows that his efforts to learn to read-.-in the hope of 
securing a GED--were unsuccessful and that his continued pain 
precludes him from anything but light work.··. Excluding consider­
ation of claimant's intervening difficulties with his knee, it 
becomes evident that a 10% physical impairment of the low back-­
when linked with. his severe educational limitations--would justify 
an award of hot less than 30% unscheduled disability. 

ORDER 

·The order of the Referee dated August 20,. 1980 is hereby 
modified to award 30% unscheduled permanent partial disability 
to claimant's low back, in lieu of but not in addition to the 
award of the Referee . 

. Clai~ant's attorney is granted.25% of the award for perman­
ent partial disability as and for a reasonable att6rney's fee for 
his services through the hearin~ process, and another $350 as and 
for a reasonable attorney's fee for representation of the claimant 
in this appeal to the Board. 

....... -, . 

-9-

The vocational rehabilitation reports contained in the
record clearly indicate a severely limited claimant who is
functionally illiterate and who--although highly motivated—has
practically no job skills or work experience other than moderately
heavy physical labor. Although the vocational evaluations in the-
record were conducted prior to claimant's 1979 surgery, their
probative value- to an assessment of the claimant's overall em­
ployability remains unchanged. The claimant's subsequent testi­
mony shows that his efforts to learn to read-.-in the hope of
securing a GED--were unsuccessful and that his continued pain
precludes him from anything but light workExcluding consider­
ation of claimant's intervening difficulties with his knee, it
becomes evident that a 10% physical impairment of the low back—
when linked with.his severe educational limitations—would justify
an award of not less than 30% unscheduled disability.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated August 20,- 1980 is hereby
modified to award 30% unscheduled permanent partial disability
to claimant's low back, in lieu of but not in addition to the
award of the Referee.

#
Claimant's attorney is granted.25% of the award for perman­

ent partial disability as and for a reasonable attorney's fee for
his services through the hearing process,, and another $350 as and
for a reasonable attorney's fee for representation of the claimant
in this appeal to the Board.

m
-9-



  
   
     
    

  
  

     

          
           
        
           
           

    

 
   
   

 
   

 
  

 
  
  
 

         
           
         
        
        
      
        
         
          
          
  

      

           
          
      
        

            
          
       
         
   

    
    

     

         
           
             
             
             

               
             
             
           

CLAKK, CLA!MANI 
Gerald Doblie, Cl~ima~t's Attorney 
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Employer 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

Wl,~ l':1-U':1t.':J/ 

May 5, 1981 

The employer seeks Board review of tnat portion of t.1e Ref­
eree1s order which awarded 60% of the maximum allowable by statute 
for unsci:leduleci permanent partial disability, or 192°, for clai'm­
ant 's injur·ies, in lieu of the award of comp~nsation made by D2-
termination Order of October 23, 1979 which gran·ted 40% l_oss of 
the left Leg, or 60°. 

The threshold issue 1s wh~ther claimant's i~jury was to ~is 
leg, as found by the Determination Order, or to his hip, as found 
oy the Referee's order. 'l'r1e medical evidence is ..3parse. The best 
available information is Dr. Spady 1s report of SLlrgery performed 
on May l, 1975. That report states that the pre-operatto., an,·; 
post-operation diagnoses. were the same: "Avascular necrosis or 
the left femoral head. II The gross surgical findings wer0 "frag­
m~nta~ion and softening and flattening in ~he superior po:tioG of 
the femoral head." The surgical procedure was to remove cne fem­
oral head and repluce it with a prosthesis, which was "e.:isily re­
duced into tn·e acetanulum." 

~he Reteree 1 s analysis of this evidence was: 

'"l'he surgical site was in the area of che hip• Juint. 
Hip is defined as 1 the area of the body lateral to and 
including the hip joint; called also coxa.' 0,Hi.and'::; 
Illustrated Medical Dictionary, p. 715, 25th E0., l~J4. 
The h i p j o i n t i s a b a 11 and soc k e t j o i n t . 'r he '. , ea d ,) f 
the femur is tne ball and the ac etabulu1i1, deef)E.::1ed by 
the traverse acetabulier ligament and the acet~culiar 
labrum, forms the socket. Grants Method of Andtomy, J. 
4 3 2 , 7 th Ed • , 19 6 5 • " 

Based on this anal1sis, the Referee concluded tnat claiD12,·,t 1s .in­
jury was to his hi~. 

The Goard disagrees with thc::i Referee: 's analysis an,: , .. onclu­
sion. We oegin with the elementary observation that trL· iemur 1s 
part of the leg -- ·the bone extenjing frorr the knee to l:,t, pel­
vis. An injury to the femur would be an 1nJ ury to the le,.3. 
Claimant's injury was to the femoral head, that is, the top of his 
leg none· where ·it joins the pelvis. But i:he top ot a oo-;,L' of c..he 
leg is not something other than a bone of the leg. Thus, for ex­
ample, a fracture of th·e femur at or near the femoral hec:10 · would 
still be a fract~re of the femur and thus a leg injury. 

-10-
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 HtbItK  LAKK, ILAiMAINl
Gerald Doblie, Claimant's Attorney
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer

WLB /y-uy^y/
May 5, 1981

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The employer seeks Board review of tnat portion of tne Ref­
eree's order which awarded 60% of tne maximum aiiowable cy statute
for unscneduied permanent partial disability, or 19 2°, for-claim­
ant's injuries, in lieu of the award of compensation made by De­
termination Order of October 23, 1979 which granted 40% loss of
the left leg, or 60°.

• The
leg, as f
oy the Re
available
on May 1,
post-oper
tne left
mentation
the femor
oral head
duced int

threshold issue is whether claimant's i^ijury was to ms
ound by the Determination Order, or to his hip, as found
feree's order. The medical evidence is sparse. The best
information is Dr. Spady's report of surgery performed.
1975. That report states that the pre-operation anc;
atipn diagnoses.were the same: "Avascular necrosis or
femoral head." The gross surgical findings were "frag-
and softening and flattening in the superior portion of
ai head." The surgical procedure was to remove cne fem-
and replace it with a prosthesis, which was "easily re-
o the acetabulum."

The Referee's analysis of this evidence was:

"The surgical site was in the area of me hip' j
dip is defined as 'the area of the body lateral

nt.
.0 and

including the hip joint; called also coxa riana
Illustrated Medical Dictionary, p. 715, 25th Ec., 1974
The hip joint is a ball and socket joint. The nead of
the femur is the ball and tne acetabuluia, deepened by
the traverse acetabulier ligament and the acetuOuliar
labrum, forms the socket. Grants Method of Anatomy, o
432, 7th Ed., 1965."

Based on this analysis,
jury was to his hip.

the Referee concluded that claimai'.t's in-

The Boara disagrees with the Referee's analysis an;; ...onclu-
sion. We oegin with the elementary observation that th-e lemur is
part of the leg -- the bone extending from the knee to L.ne pel­
vis. An injury to the femur would be an injury to the leg.
Claimant's injury was to the femoral head,' that is, the too of his
leg bone where it joins the pelvis. But one top of a bO'..c of che
leg is not something other than a bone of the leg. Thus, for ex­
ample, a fracture of the femur at or near the fejaoral he^u would
still be a fracture of the femur and thus a leg injury.

m
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acetabulum is a cavity in the os coxae wi1ich l.'::i .,art uI 
the pelvis and in ·,.,rhich the head of the femur articulat--:s. Tne 
acetabulum is thus part of tne hip, not part ot tl1e leg. An 1:·.­
jury that involved the_ acetabulum would be a hip in.Jury. 

While the junction of the femur and _tne pelvis at L.11e acet.ao­
ulum 1s, as the Referee noted, referred. to as the hip joint, this 
terminology does not convert tn~ entire junction into an ~rea ·0r: 
the hip. A junction is, by definition, the plade of_unio~ between 
two or more bones or, for present purposes, between two 0~ more 
body parts. Specifically, the hip joint is the junction 0£ the 
leg, including the femoral head, and th~ hip, including t~e ace­
taouli..1m. 

Applying this hip versus ley distin_ction to the_ fac_:s estau­
lished by the medical evidence in this case ·produces the ~onclu­
sion that claimant's injury was to his leg. His surgery ~nvolved 
replacement of the femoral head with a prosthesis, whict was then 
"easily reduced into tne acetabulum." Nothing was done surgic0:;__1y 
to thi2 acetabulum, :as can happen with more involved forms of "hip 
replacement" surgery. 

The conclusion that claimant 1 s inJury was to his leg gener­
ally disposes of the extent-cit-disability issue. Claiman~ pre­
sents no medical evidence that his loss of function ~as gceater 
than the 40% disability awarded by the Determination Order. Ho~­
ever, claimant's testimony raisei the possibility that his leg in­
jury is producing hip oi back disability. Woodm3n v. Georgi~ 
Pacific, 38~ Or. 551 (1980), re,cognizes the possibility that an 
injury to one part of the body can produce compensable conse­
quences in anotner part of the body. Claimant never raised a 
Woodman issue because his case was presented under the erroneous 
view tnat his inJury was to his hip. The Board concludes chat 

'fairness requires that this case be remanded to offer the claimant 
the opportunity to develop a Woodman line of argument, s hoc1 ld L1e 

so choose. 

The order of the Referee dated July- 29, 1980 i::;; r,::_•JL:rsed c.1m1 
this case is remanaed for further proceeJings consistent witn thLs 
opinion. 

-11-
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The acetabulum is a cavity in the os coxae which is -vurt

the pelvis, and in which the head ol the femur acticulatus. Tne
acetabulum is- thus part of the hip, not part of the leg. An in-,
jury that involved the, acetabulum would be a hip injury. ■

While the junction of the femur and ,tne pelvis at tne acetao-
ulum IS, as the Referee noted, referred, to as the hip joint, this
terminology does not convert the entire junction into an area of
the hip. ’A junction is, by definition, the place of_union' between
two or more bones or, for present purposes, between two or -more
body parts. Specifically, the hip joint is the junction cf the
leg, including the femoral head, and the hip, including tne ace-
taoulum.

Applying this hip versus leg distinction to the. fac.ts estao-
lished by the medical evidence in this case 'produces the conclu­
sion that claimant's injury was to his leg. His surgery involved
replacement of the femoral head with a prosthesis, which was then
"easily reduced into the acetabulum." Nothing was done surgically
to the acetabulum, as can happen with more involved forms of "hip
replacement" surgery.

m

The conclusion that claimant's injury was to his
ally disposes of the extent-of-disability issue. Cla
sents no medical evidence that his loss of function w
than the 40% disability awarded by the Determination
ever, claimant's testimony raises the possibility tha

Woodman v.jury is producing hip or back disability. _________
Pacif ic, 38y Or. 551 (1980), recognizes the possibili
injury to one part of the body-can produce compensabl
qiiences in anotner part of the body. Claimant never
Woodman issue because his case was presented under th
view that his injury was to his hip. The Board concl
fairness requires that this case be remanded to offer
the opportunity to develop a Woodman line of argument
so choose. ' ’

leg gener-
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m

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated July- 29 , 1980 is rc-v^ursed and
this case is remanoed for further proceedings consistent witn this
opinion.

-11-
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J. DEVOE, CLAIMANT 
Evohl _Mal~qon, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF. Cor6 Leoal~ Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Determination · 

OWN MOTION 81-0116M 
May 5, 1981 

The Board issued it's Own Motion Ord er in the above-1:.· r~t it led 
matter on January·6, 1981 and reopened claimant's claim fer q wor­
sened condition related to hi2. July 20, 1973 industrial injury. 
The Board's order granted claimant compensation for temporary to­
tal disability from May 31, 1979 tl1rough November 19, 19b.O and re­
ferred the ·claim to the ~valuatio~ Division for ics recommendation 
on·permanerit partial disability. 

1.i'ne Evaluation Division of the 1-Jor ke rs' Compensation iJepa rt,.. 
ment submitted its Advisory Opinion on April 24, 1981 and recom­
mended that claimant's award of per~anent partial disability b~ 
unbhariged or he be granted 8° for 2:5% increase. The Board con­
cludes that claimant has been adequately compensated by the award 
of 52.5% previously granted, and finas·no change is warran~ed. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

ROLANDE. GERLITZ, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney 

.Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0114M 
May 5, 1981 

The claimant requests the Board to exercise 1ts own ~otion 
juri~diction, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.278, a~d re­
open his craim for a worsened condition related to his in0Jstrial 
injury of March 18, 1969. Claimant's aggravation rights have ex-
2ired. 

The medical evidence in support of.claimant's requ~st is tram 
Dr. Baldwin indicating a hospitalization on March 23 and surgery 
on March -24, 1981. By letter dated April 22, 1981 the SAH' Cor­
poration indicited it was not opposed to reopening claimant 1 s 
claim. 

The Board finds claimant is eniitled to have his clJim re­
opened and to the payment of compensation for tempbrary total dis­
ability commencing March 23, 1981 and until closure is ~~tnor1zed 
pursuant to.ORS 656.278. 

IT IS S.) ORDERED. 
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JOHN J. DEVOE, CLAIMANT
Evohl Malaqon, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Coro LeoaV, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

MOTION 81-0116M
May 5, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above-t.T-.titled
matter on January-6, 1981 and reopened claimant's claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his July 20, 1973 industrial injury.
The Board's order granted claimant compensation for temporary to­
tal disability from May 31, 1979 through November 19, 198,0 ana re­
ferred the claim to the Evaluation Division for its recommendation
on'permanent partial disability.

Tne Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compensation Depart­
ment submitted its Advisory Opinion on April 24, 1981 and recom­
mended that claimant's award of permanent partial disability be
unchanged or he be granted 8° for 2.5% increase. The Board con­
cludes that claimant has been adequately compensated by the award
of 52.5% previously granted, and finds no change is warranted.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ROLAND E. OERLITZ, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corn Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0114M
May 5, 1981

The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.278, ahd re­
open his claim for a worsened condition related to his inoustrial
injury of March 18, 1969. Claimant's aggravation rights have ex­
pired.

Tne medical evidence in support of claimant's request is iirom
Dr. Baldwin indicating a hospitalization on March 23 and surgery
on March -24, 1981. By letter dated April 22, 1981 the SAIF Cor­
poration indicated it was not opposed to reopening claimant's
claim.

The Board finds clairaant is entitled to have his claim re­
opened and to the payment of compensation for temporary total dis­
ability commencing March 23, 1981 and until closure is qutaorized
pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-12-
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J. GOODMAN, CLAI~ANT 
Don Atchison, Claimant's Attorney 
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Emoloyer 

WCB 80-04258 
May 5, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and :.:.,ewis. 

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee 1 s order 
which granted claimant compensation equal to 15° for 10% loss 
of us~ of the right forearm anq 15° for 10% loss of use of the 
left forearm. The employer contends claimant is not· entitled· 
to any award of compensation for this condition and the Deterr:i.ina­
tion Order of March 31, 1980 should be affirmed. 

Claimant underwent carpal tunnel release surgery on both 
wrists in the fall of 1979. This was accepted as an occupational 
disease by his ~mployer. The claim was closed on March 31, 1980 
with an award of compensation for temporary total disaoitity 
only. Claimant testified that he has lost 20-25% of hi~ normal 
grip strength. He also indicated that occasionally his hands will 
go numb or tingle. He has apparently had no difficulty performing 
his regulir work which made extensive use of tiis hands and wrists. 

The only medical r.eport in the record that addresses the 
issue of extent of disability is Dr. Matteri's February 2, 1980 
report. He indicated that claimant advised him of claimant 1 s 
lack of total grip strength, but after his examination, the doctor 
felt the strength was normal. Dr. Matteri found norm~l range of 
motion, no tenderness about the scars and noted good clinical and 
functional result of the surgeries. He found ''no residual dis­
ability. 11 

Based upon the medical evidence and considering all the 
evidence relevant to a determination of scheduled disability, the 
Board feels that claimant has failed to prove that he has sus­
tained any permanent disability with respect to his hands anct 
wrists. We conclude that the Determination Order should be 
affirmed. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated November 20, 1980 is re­
versed. 

The Determination Order dated March 31, 1980 is affirmed. 

----· -----"~-----·-·- ·-·-··--~·· . " 
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THOMAS J. GOODMAN, CLAIMANT
Don Atchison, Claimant's Attorney
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney
Request for Review.by Emoloyer

WCB 80-04258
May 5, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which granted claimant compensation equal to 15° for 10% loss
of use of the right forearln and. 15° for 10% loss of use of the
left forearm. The employer contends claimant is not' entitled
to any award of compensation for this condition and the Determina­
tion Order of March 31, 1980 should be affirmed.

Claimant underwent carpal tunnel release surgery on both
wrists in the fall of 1979. This was accepted as an occupational
disease by his employer. The claim was closed on March 31, 1980
with an award of compensation for temporary total disability
only. Claimant testified that he has lost 20-25% of his normal
grip strength. He also indicated that occasionally 'his hands will
go numb or tingle. He has apparently had no difficulty performing
his regular work which made extensive use of his hands and wrists.

The only medical report in the record that addresses the
issue of extent of disability is Dr. Matteri’s February 2, 1980
report. He indicated that claimant advised him of claimant's
lack of total grip strength, but after his examination, the doctor
felt the strength was normal. Dr. Matter! found normal range of
motion, no tenderness about the scars and noted good clinical and
functional result of the surgeries. He found "no residual dis­
ability."

Based upon the medical evidence and considering all the
evidence relevant to a determination of scheduled disability, the
Board feels that claimant has failed to prove that he has sus­
tained any peirmanent disability with respect to his hands and
wrists. We conclude that the Determination Order should be
affirmed.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated November 20, 1980 is re­
versed.

The Determination Order dated March 31, 1980 is affirmed.

9
-13-



    
     
  

   
  

           
           
        

            
        

        
           
             
         

         
             
         
            
            
        

            
     

   

   
    

     
    

  
  

      

         
         

          
        
          

         
  

         
            
         
         
             

          
          
         
          

         
     
 

K. HAt,LUND, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Determination . . ,• . 

Claim HC 346551 
May 5, 1981 

'l'ne Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above E:ntitleJ 
matter on September 5, 1980 and r~opened claimant's claim for a 
worsened cbndition related to her January 6, 1972 industrial in­
Jury. 

'rhe c.1.a1m has now been submitted for closure, and ::.tis toe 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation [o{ tem­
porary total disability from December- 5, 1979 through F~~,i-Jary ll, 
1981 and to an additional award of permanent partial disu.J~li~y 
equal to· 5° unschedi~led disability. The Board does not c:. :;cee. 

The record indicates this claimant ha.s been unemploy·e,J for 
·mariy years an_d, in fact, is 70 years of age. Therefore, ~:Laii'.'. ,.1t 
is not entitled to compensation for temporary total dis0.;.; .. ~ity 
since for this p~riod she lost no time fiom work. Claimant is 
also not entitled to an increase in her award of permanent paiL1ai 
disability. Claimant is entitled to the benefits provided pur­
suant to ORS 656.245 for all medical care and services related ~o 
conditions derived from her indus~rial injury. 

IT IS SO O.RDERED. 

VJRGINIA HAMILTON, CLAIMANT 
Lawrence Paulson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp ~e~al, Defense Attorney 
.Request for Review by Claimant 

. . 

WCB 78-06820 
May 5, 1981 

Rev:i.ewed by Board members 0cCallister and Lewis. 

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order ·which 
denied penalties and attorney's fees for the insurer's refusal 
to pay medical services under ORS 656.245, and which affirmed 
SAIF's denial of responsibility for specific medical treatm~rii 
provided to claimant, on the ground that claimant failed to sus­
tain her burden of proving entitlement thereto as related to her 
1970 compensable injury. 

Claimant sustained a compensable injury on August 1, 1970 
when the elevator in which she was riding fell from the first 
floor to the basement, injuring claimant 1 s low back. A Detennina­
tion Order issued September 14, 1971 awarded 20% unscheduled dis­
ability to the low back; the claim was denied by SAIF on September 
3, 1971 .. Af.ter claimant appealed both the Determination Order and 
the denial, a stipulation was approved •awarding 15% more in un­
·scheduled disability. That stipulation recited that it was a 

-

settlement of a disputed claim for a heart condition and consti- ,a 
tuted final settlement of all claims for injuries except aggrava- ..., 
tion of the iow back injury. 
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LISETT K. HARLUND, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Claim HC 346551
May 5, 1981

Tne Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on September 5, 1980 and reopened claimant's claim for a
worsened condition related.to her January 6, 1972 industrial in­
jury.

The claim has now been submitted for closure/ and ir is tne
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from December' 5 , 1979 through Fermuary 11,
1981 and to an additional award of permanent partial di Sa.'-i ii ty
equal to' 5® unscheduled disability. The Board does not a;;.-:ee.

The record indicates this claimant has been unemployed for
'many years and, in fact, is 70 years of age. Therefore, rfaim ;,it
is not entitled to compensation for temporary total disao.iity
since for this period she lost no time from work. Claimant is
also not entitled to an increase in her award of permanent parLiai
•disability. Claimant is entitled to the benefits provided pur­
suant to ORS 656.245 for all medical care and services related ro
conditions derived from her industrial injury.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

#

VIRGINIA HAMILTON, CLAIMANT
Lawrence Paulson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 78 06820
May 5, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
denied penalties and attorney's fees for the insurer's refusal
to pay medical services under ORS 656.245, and which affirmed
SAIF's denial of responsibility for specific medical treatment
provided to claimant, on the ground that claimant failed to sus­
tain her burden of proving entitlement as related to her
1970 compensable injury.

Claimant sustained a compensable injury on August 1, 1970
when the elevator in which she was riding fell from the first
floor to the basement, injuring claimant's low back. A Determina­
tion Order issued September 14, 1971 awarded 20% unscheduled dis­
ability to the low back; the claim was denied by SAIF on September
3, 1971. After claimant appealed both the Determination Order and
the denial, a stipulation was approved awarding 15% more in un­
scheduled disability. That stipulation recited that it was a
settlement of a disputed claim for a heart condition and consti­
tuted final settlement of all claims for injuries except aggrava­
tion of the low back injury.

........... . -14-
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A subsequent claim for aggravation was denied on March 26, 
1975. By stipulation, the claim was reopened on· October 13, 
1975, anq again ·closed after claimant declined adiiission to a 
pain center. Follo~ing an October 2, 1975 hearing on the denial, 
an Opinion and Order dated !•~arch 16, 1976 approved the denial, 
finding that c_laimant I s symptoms could not be medically confirmed 
and contained a strong element of psychopathology of non-industria~ 
origin. The Referee found that claimant had many unrelated phy- · 
sical problems. The Opinion and Order was affirmed by the Board. 

~--. . on·· -dcnovo·--r-evie,;:., I th~ Bo~rr:i ;dopts the findings of the 
Referee as enunciated in her Opinion and Order date·d June 10, 
1980 and Amended Opinion and Order dated July 31, 1980 with 
certain exceptions.and modifications. 

The issues before the Board on review are claimant's entitle­
ment to specific medical services under ORS 656.245, and attorney's 
fees and penalties for the insurer's refusal to provide the medi-. 
cal services claimed. 

Medical services rendered in connection with ·claimant's low 
back problems since October 2, 1975, the date of her hearing on 
~he last aggravation claim, must be provided by the insurer. 

It would appear that not all the claimant's medical expense 
statements are contained in the record. The Board will address 
only those which are included: Dr. Walter C. Reynolds' statement 
from July 1978 through December 1979, presented in no particular 
chronology, are included in Exhibit 62; the state~ent of Emanual 
Hospital dated November 29, 1977, for claimant's September 1978 
hospitalization, in the sum of $2,627.67 is marked Exhibit 4B. 

A statement from Dr. Howard H. Mintz, indicating dates of 
treatnent from 1972 through 1975 ~ould not properly be the sub­
·ject of the present hearing, since all the treatment dates preceded 
the October 1975 hearing and the March 16, 1976 Opinion and Order 
which followed • 

. The Referee concluded that clainant's treatment for her low 
back problems has been so intermingled with treatment for non­
compens~ble conditions that it is impossible to segregate the 
charges, based upon the record before her~ As a result, the Referee 
concluded th-at the claimant had failed to sustain the burden of 
proving her entitlement fo rnedibal services in relation to her low 
ba~k injuries. The Board.disagrees. 

Dr. Reynolds' statements for medical services cleariy tndicate 
which of five or six various illnesses or injuries was involved in 
each billing, including a numerical coding of "7259" for each diag­
nosis which involved the low back. It is safe to assume the follow­
ing definitions for the abbreviations used in those billings: 
"725.9 LOW BACK SYN" means "Low Back Syndrome;" "LS STR CHRONIC, 11 

"LS.ST" and "LS STR" mean "Lumbosacral Strain Chronic," 11 Lumbo­
sacral Strain" and "Lumbosacral Strain 11 respectively. Charges for 
vitamins would not be-compensable since there was no showing of a 
relationship to the low back problems. 

-15-

A subsequent claim for aggravation was denied on March 26,
1975. By stipulation, the claim was reopened on October 13,
1975, and again closed after claimant declined admission to a
pain center. Following an October 2, 1975 hearing on the denial,
an Opinion and Order dated March 16, 1976 approved the denial,
finding that claimant's symptoms could not be medically confirmed
and contained a strong element of psychopathology of non-industrial
origin. The Referee found that claimant had many unrelated phy^
sical problems. The Opinion and Order was affirmed by the Board.

On de novo review, the Board adopts the findings of the
Referee as enunciated in her Opinion and Order dated June 10,
1980 and Amended Opinion and Order dated July 31, 1980 with
certain exceptions.and modifications.

The issues before the Board on review are claimant's entitle­
ment to specific medical services under ORS 656.245, and attorney's
fees and penalties for the insurer's refusal to provide the medi-.
cal services claimed.

Medical services rendered in connection with claimant's low
back problems since October 2, 1975, the date of her hearing on
the last aggravation claim, must be provided by the insurer.

It would appear that not all the claimant's medical expense
statements are contained in the record. The Board will address
only those which are included: Dr. Walter C. Reynolds' statement
from July 1978 through December 1979, presented in no particular
chronology, are included in Exhibit 62; the statement of Emanual
Hospital dated November 29, 1977, for claimant's September 1978
hospitalization, in the sum of $2,627.67 is marked Exhibit 4B.

A statement from Dr. Howard H. Mintz, indicating dates of
treatment from 1972 through 1975 would not properly be the sub­
ject of the present hearing, since all the treatment dates preceded
the October 1975 hearing and the March 16, 1976 Opinion and Order
which followed.

The Referee concluded that claimant's treatment for her low
back problems has been so intermingled with treatment for non-
compensable conditions that it is impossible to segregate the
charges, based upon the record before her. As a result, the Referee
concluded that the claimant had failed to sustain the burden of
proving her entitlement to medical services in relation to her lov;
back injuries. The Board disagrees.

Dr. Reynolds' statements for medical services clearly indicate
which of five or six various illnesses or injuries was involved in
each billing, including a numerical coding of "7259" for each diag­
nosis which involved the low back. It is safe to assume the follov?-
ing definitions for the abbreviations used in those billings:
"725.9 LOW BACK S N" means "Low Back Syndrome;" "LS STR CHRONIC,"
"LS ST" and "LS STR" mean "Lumbosacral Strain Chronic," "Lumbo­
sacral Strain" and "Lumbosacral Strain" respectively. Charges for
vitamins would not be^ compensable since there was no showing of a
relationship to the low back problems.

-15-



          
            
            

           
           
              

 

         
          

          
 

        
         
        

        
           
           

         
            
    

           
            
           

        
  

           
        

           
         
         

          
        

        
         
     

          
        
         
          
   

            
          
           
          
          
  

two or more diagnoses are included in one statement, 
one of which includes the low back problem, a pro-rata share is 
payabl~ by SAIF pursuant to- ORS 656.245 and is not excluded by 
the May 25, 1972 stipulation between the parties. In other worq..s, 
where five injuries are listed--only one of which relates to the 
low back--only 20% of the total bill should be paid by SAIF as a 
compensable expense. 

The statement from Emanual Hospital should be pro-rated with 
one-third ~pplicable to the low back since there·was no indica­
tion of psychological treatment for.the fourth diagnosis, one of 
reactive depression.· 

The clerical work required to segregate the charges men­
tioned above, albeit a tedious process, is_ far from impossible. 
Arguably, the claimant's attorney attended the hearing poorly 
prepared.t9.present claimant's case and should have submitted a 
concise statement of the medical payments claimed for the low ?ack 
condition. His failure to do so does not, however, detract from 
the obvious: Those medical statements which include a clear diag­
nosis of · l_ow-back problems, in part or in whole, should be paid 
in part or in whole. 

In view of the clarity of Dr. Reynolds' statments and his 
latter to SAIF dated April 10, 1978 which explained the basis for 
his billings and the "7259" diagnoses, the Board finds that SAIF 
unreasonably resisted payment of medical services for claimant's 
low back injuries. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated June 10, l980 as amended by order 
dated July 3i, 1980 ii hereby modifed as follows: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the denial by SAIF of all respon­
sibility for specific treatment rendered to claimant is reversed; 
claimant is awarded medical expenses for those services provided 
by Emanual Hospital and Dr. Reynolds, in the proportionate shares 
discussed above, as they rel~te to the low back. injury; 

SAIF's denial of future responsibility for claimant's low 
back condition, including claimant's future rights under ORS 656.245 
and 656.273 is reversed and vacated. 

Claimant is hereby granted Q 15% penalty of the su~s pay­
able hereunder for medical services, for its unreasonabl~ re­
fusal to pay medical services pursuant.to ORS 656.245; claima~t•s 
request for attorney fees in connection with the issue of penal-
ties is hereby denied; · 

· Claimant's attorney shall be paid the sum of $350 as attorney 
fees in connection with the hearing and representation of claimant 
in this appeal. No additional attorney fees are granted in view 
of the failure of claimant's attorney to provide any meaningf~l 
list of the medical expenses claimed in connection with claimant's 
low back injury. 

-16-

Where two or more diagnoses are included in one statement,
one of which includes the low back problem, a pro-rata share is
payable by SAIF pursuant to- ORS 656.245 and is not excluded by
the May 25, 1972 stipulation between the parties. In other words,
where five injuries are listed—^^only one of which relates to the
low back--only 20% of the total bill should be paid by SAIF as a
compensable expense.

The statement from Emanual Hospital should be pro-rated with
one-third applicable to the low back since there was no indica­
tion of psychological treatment for the fourth diagnosis, one of
reactive depression.

The clerical work required to segregate the charges men­
tioned above, albeit a tedious process, is.far from impossible.
Arguably, the claimant's attorney attended the hearing poorly
prepared.to.present claimant's case and should have submitted a
concise statement of the medical payments claimed for the low back
condition- His failure to do so does not, however, detract from
the obvious: Those medical statements which include a clear diag­
nosis of low-back problems, in part or in whole, should be paid
in part or in v/hole.

In view of the clarity of Dr. Reynolds' statments and his
letter to SAIF dated April 10, 1978 which explained the basis for
his billings and the "7259" diagnoses, the Board finds that SAIF
unreasonably resisted payment of medical services for claimant's
low back injuries.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated June 10, 1'980 as amended by order
dated July 3-1, 1980 is hereby modifed as follows:

IT IS HEREB ORDERED that the denial by SAIF of all respon­
sibility for specific treatment rendered to claimant is reversed;
claimant is awarded medical expenses for those services provided
by Emanual Hospital and Dr. Reynolds, in the proportionate shares
discussed above, as they relate to the low back.injury;

SAIF's denial of future responsibility for claimant's low
back condition, including claimant's future rights under ORS 656.245
and 656.273 is reversed and vacated.

Claimant is hereby granted o 15% penalty of the sums pay­
able hereunder for medical services, for its unreasonable re­
fusal to pay medical services pursuant.to ORS 656.245; claimant's
request for attorney fees in connection with the issue of penal­
ties is hereby denied;

■ Claimant's attorney shall be paid the sum of $350 as attorney
fees in connection with the hearing and representation of claimant
in this appeal. No additional attorney fees are granted in view
of the failure of claimant's attorney to provide any meaningful
list of the medical expenses claimed in connection with claimant's
low back injury.

#
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WARNER ,JQW·:SO~·-l, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Le9a~. De~ense Attorney 
Own Motion Detemination 

Own Motion 81-0ll?M 
May 5, 1981 

The jjc,ard is:;ued its· O·N"n iv1ot:.ion Ort.ic:r in t;,c; a.bo·✓.: :nt1'- ',:::0° 
matter on- December 27, 1979 and reopened claimant:. 1 s cL, .. , foL 'J. 
worsened ,condition related to his ind~strial in~ury of ~~vernb~, 4, 
1960 upoG nis nospitalization for the recommended surg~:y. · 

The c1aim nas now Deen submitted for closure, and 1t is ::.fie 
recommenaar.:.ion of tne. Evaluation Division of t11e ',Jorkers' Compen­
satiun Department that claimant be granted compen~ation ior tem­
porary total disaoility from Janu<lry l'-l, 19()0 through J~i.y 2J, 
1980 and ~o no further award of permanent p~rtial disabLiity be­
yond the 75% loss of the left arm previously awarded~ The Bo~rci 
concurs with this recommendation. 

['l' IS SO ORDERED . 
... ·~----·------~---·---------·-·--·-----····---- -- ----. ~~~----~~--

-~---·•. 

JOHN C. MARTIN, CLAIMANT 
Robert W. Muir, Claimant's Attorney 
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Claimant 
Cross Request by Employer 

- WCB 78.:.065.87 
May 5, 1981 

Reviewed by Boa.rd members Barnes and i\-lcCallister. 

The claimant appeals and the employer cross appeals request­
ing the Boara to review the order of the Referee which granted 
claimant 40% unscheduled disability. Claimant contends that his 
low back disability and his psychological disability are related 
to his industrial·injury and contends that the award granted by 
~he Referee for his shoulder disability is inadequate. The em­
ployer contends that the award granted by the ijef~ree is exces­
sive. We modify trie R~f eree 's order. 

On the issue of the psychological disability, the board. con­
curs with the Referee that the opinions of Dr. Kuttner ar,o or. 
Quan, both psychiatrists, are more persuasive than the opi~1on of 
Dr. Ackerman, ·a psychologist. 

The Board also concurs with u,e Referee 1 s conclusion, based. 
on an a~ least implicit credibility finding, that claima~t has 
fiiled to prove that his low back ~ondition is related to the in­
dustrial injury to ~is right shoul~er. 
---'----------··----·----·-- ····--· •-·,--------• .. 
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m
LO AL WARNER JOHNSON, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0117M
May 5, 1981

The hoard isoaed its'Own Motion Oruer in too
matter on' Oecember 21 , 1979 and reopened claimanc
worsened condition related to his industrial in^u

aoov : :;nt
's cl^ f
ry of Wove
surge y

ea •
'a

4 /

The claim nas now been submirted tor closure, and it is the
recommenoauion of tne-Evaluation Division of tne Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from January 14, 1980 through-July 23,
1980 and so no further award of permanent partial disab.i.iity oe-
yond the 75% loss of the left arm previously awardee. The Board
concurs with this recommendation.

£T IB SO ORDERED.

m

m

JOHN C. MARTIN, CLAIMANT
Robert W. Muir, Claimant's Attorney
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Claimant
Cross Request by Employer

WCB 78 06587
May 5, 1981

Re viewed by Board members Barnes and McCallister.

The claimant appeals and the employer cross appeals request­
ing tne Boara to review the order of the Referee which granted
claimant 40% unscheduled disability. Claimant contends that his
low back disability and his psychological disability are related
to his i ndustr ialinj ury and contends that the award granted by
uhe Referee for his shoulder disability is inadequate. The em­
ployer contends that the award granted by the Referee is exces­
sive. We mooify' the Referee's order.

On the issue of the psychological disability, the Board, con­
curs with the Referee that the opinions of Dr. Kuttnec ana Dr.
Quan, both psychiatrists, are more persuasive than the opinion of
Dr. Ackerman, 'a psychologist.

The Board also concurs with tne Referee's conclusion, base
on an af- least implicit credibility finding, that claimant has
■failed to prove that his low back condition is related to the
dustrial injury to his right shoulder.

a

i n-
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disagree with the Referee's award of 40% for claimant's 
r1ght shoulder disability. Dr. Pasquesi rated clJimant 1 s impair-
ment -:tth2 3%, ar:ctdDr. ~ecbke rk c oncdur redH- . . Claiman1 td ids Jf- 9 y eahr s ohf -
age, wi a var,1.e worK ac groun . e 1s prec u e __ rom ·t e eavy 
labor market but, according to'the medical reports,· is not pre­
cluded from the·job he performed at the ~ime of his injury. Voca­
tional rehabili~ation personnel placed claimant in school, and he 
quite that program due mainly to his low back condition.· ne tes-
tified: -

11 I hand led it for about a few wee ks, you know, g 1ve or 
take a,couple of days, and the books we had to carry, I 
believe they were about 20 pounds, with a shoulder, you 
know, backpack type thing, and climbing up and down the 
stairs, and leaning over the desk, I started missing 
school, my back started freezing up on me." 

Claimant's testimony at the heariri•J indicates he is capable of 
rather strenuous activity. He overhauled his car's engine, cuts 
wood and loads an'd unloads it himself at times, goes fisning and 
also ·buys and sells fresh crab which requires him to tiavel to the 
coast. 

The Board finds that, based on the residuals to clairnant 1 s 
right shoulder, he is entitled to ~n award of 30% u~scheduled dis­
ability for loss of wage earning capacity. 

ORDER 

The order of th~ Referee dated August. 19, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 30% unscheduled right 
shoulder disablity. ~his award is in lieu of all prior awards. 

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed in its en­
tirety. 

GEORGE PLANE, CLAIMANT 
Malagon, Velure et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order on Motion for Reconsideration or Remand 

WCB 77-07336 
May 5, 1981 

Having duly considered claimant 1 s Motion to Reconsider and 
the alternative motion for an order renanding the case to the 
Hearings Division, dated April 16, 1981 and the insurer's Re­
sponse dated April 28, 1978, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that claimant's motions be and the 
same hereby are denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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We disagree with the Referee's award of 40% for claimant's
right shoulder disability. Dr. Pasquesi rated claimant's impair­
ment at 23%, and Dr. Becker concurred. Claimant is 39 years of
age- with a varied work background. He is precluded
labor market but, according to'the medical reports,
eluded from the-job he performed at the time of his
tional rehabilitation personnel placed claimant in school, and he
quite that program due mainly to his low back condition.' He tes­
tified:

from "the heavy
is. not pre­
injury. Voca-

“I handled it for about a few weeks, you know, give or
take a .couple of days, and the books we had to carry, I
believe they were about 20 pounds, with a shoulder, you
know, backpack type thing, and climbing up and down the
stairs, and leaning over the desk, I started missing •
school, my back started freezing up on me."

Claimant's testimony at the hearing indicates he is capable of
rather strenuous activity. He overhauled his car's engine, cuts
wood and loads and unloads it himself at times, goes fisning and
also buys and sells fresh crab which requires him to travel to the
coast.

The Board finds that, based on the residuals to claimant's
right shoulder, he is entitled to an award of 30% unscheduled dis­
ability for loss of wage earning capacity.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated August. 19, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby, granted an award of 30% unscheduled right
shoulder disablity. This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed in its en­
tirety.

GEORGE PLANE, CLAIMANT
Malagon, Velure et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF'Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order on Motion for Reconsideration or Remand

WCB 77 07336
May 5, 1981

Having duly considered claimant's Motion to Reconsider and
the alternative motion for an order remanding the case to the
Hearings Division, dated April 16, 1981 and the insurer's Re­
sponse dated April 28, 1978,

IT IS HEREB ORDERED that claimant's motions be and the
same hereby are denied.

mIT IS SO ORDERED.

-18-
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PYLE, CLAIMANT 
Robert H. Grant, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

WCB 79-07762 
May 5, 1981 

Reviewed by Board'members McCallister and Lewis. 

The SAH' Corporation· (SA.IF) re·quests Board ·r-2view or 'tne 
B.eferee's order which held it responsible for certain medical 
treatment, transp6rtation expehse and assessed a penalty of 10%-of 
the disputed medical and transPortation expens~·together with an 
award of a $750 fee to claimant 1 s attorney. SAIF seeks reversal 
of the Referee's order. 

On appeal, SAIF raises the following 1ssues: 

(1) The SAIF's responsibility for payment tif Prednisone; 

(2) The SAIF's responsibility for treatment of esophayeal 
reflex spasm; and 

(3) The· SAIF 1 s responsibility f6r payment of claimant's 
transportation expense. 

'l'he cl'aimant sustained a compensable ·injury to her l-2f t h.:.i.nd 
on November ·9, 1970. Since the time; of injury there has been a·­
long .cours~ of treatment including 14 surgical pr6ce6ures. The 
claim was closed by a Referee's Opinion and Order dated O..:;tobe;: 
29, 1974, and claimant's aggravation rights subsequently expired. 
On .June 22, 1977 the Board ordered· the clai°m reopened under its 
own motion authority. SAIF provided claima~t with additional 
meaical services and time loss co~pensation. The- claim was again 
closed by the Board 1 s Own Motion Determination dated May 18, 1979. 

SAIF continued to provide medical services to the claimant 
pursua·nt to OH.S 6 5~. 245 and/or the Board 1 s Own Motion Order. Tne 
medical treatment has Seen provided by physicians in Medford. 

The claimant was hospitalize1 .. in January 1978 for esophageal 
problems. Dr.-Wi.ilker trecited .. or. v./alker reporte(i AugusL 21, 
1978 that diagnostic testing has revealed a non-specific rnotilicy 
oisorder. Dr .. Walker found "no reason to associate her esophayus 
problems with any· .iden tif ia ble ·factor. " or·. Walker • s opinion is 
persuasive., We find the esophagus condition is not compensable, 
thris SAIF is not responsible £or paiment of any bill~ connected 
with the esophagus pr6blern. 

-----·------ - .. . . .- .. --~ 
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9
JUNE P LE, CLAIMANT
Robert H. Grant, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-07762
May 5, 1981

9

Reviewed by Board’members McCaliister and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation • (SAIF) requests Board 'review or 'tne
Referee's order which held it responsible for certain medical
treatment, transportation expense and assessed a,penalty of 10%'Of
the disputed medical and transportation expense-together with an
award of a $750 fee to claimant's attorney. SAIF seeks reversal
of the Referee's order.

On appeal, SAIF raises the following issues:

(1) The SAIF's responsibility for payment of Prednisone;

(2) The SAIF's responsibility for treatment of esophageal
reflex spasm; and

(3) The' SAIF's responsibility for payment of claimant's
transportation expense.

The claimant sustained a compensable injury to her left hand
on November-9, 1970. Since the time,-of injury there has been a-
long .course of treatment including-14 surgical procedures. The
claim was closed by a Referee's Opinion and Order dated October
29, 1974, and claimant's aggravation rights subsequently expired.-
On .June 22, 1977 the Board ordered' the claim reopened under its
own motion authority, SAIF provided claimant with additional
medical,services and time loss compensation. The-claim was again
closed by the Board's Own Motion Determination dated May 18, 1979.

SAIF continued to provide medical services to the claimant
pursuant to ORS 656.245 and/or the Board's Own Motion Order, Tne
medical treatment has been provided oy physicians in Medford.

The claimant was hospitalizei.. in January 1978 for esopnageal
problems. Dr.-Walker treated. .Dr. Walker reported Augusr 21,
1978 that diagnostic testing has revealed a non-specific motility
aisorder. Dr. Walker found "no reason to associate her esophagus
problems with any■identifiable factor." Dr. Walker's opinion is
persuasive. _ We f.ind the esophagus condition is not compensable,
thus SAIF is not responsible for payment of any bills connected
with the esophagus problem.

-19-
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Mc~ook, a psychiatrist, testified at hearing th~t 
claimant has an auto immune problem which pre-existed the 
industrial inJury. He testified he had prescribed the steroid 

Prednisone. Prednisone is commonly prescribed to treat collagen 

vascular di~orders. He said the collagen disorder was 0£ unknown 

etiology. The steriod medication acted to increase peripheral 

circulation and that one of the results would be a decrease in the 

claimant's pain. He indicated that if the claimant did not have 

the collagen disorder, the steroid would not be prescribed, at 

least not to treat the depression. We find the SAIF is not 

responsible for p~yment of the Prednisone; this drug h~s been 

prescribed by Dr. McCook to treat a pre-existing condition which 
is not compensable . 

. We further find that the SAIF is not responsible for the 
claimant 1 s transportation expense from Yakima to Medford. 

Claimant, for personal reasons, in February 1979 moved from 

Medford to Yakima. She continued to treat with three physicians 

in Medford, claiming her special rapport with these physicians to 

be necessary to the process of her recovery. Parenthetically, we 
note uiat claimant claims reimbursement for overnight loaging when 

she stayed with friends. In any event, the Board concludes that 

tne claimant's ,travel· from Yakima to Medford for treatment of tne 

compensably related condition is unreasonable. We find t.ne SAIF 
is noc responsible for this expense. Our finding is based on a 
failure·of the claimant to show tnat the travel was and is· 

reasonably necessai~ to cure and relieve her from the disaoling 

effects of the compensable injury. · There is ~o showing in this 

record that ih~ medical services reasonably required for treatment 

of·the compensable injury cannot be obtained in Yakima or ai some 

place nearer Yakima than Medford. There is no evidence that the 

treatment being provided by the Medford physicians is 

professionally unique or that claimant could not develop a special 

rapport with physicians in Yakima, albeit with some special effort 
and attitude adjustment on her part. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated April 7, 1980 is reversed 1n 
its entirety. 

-20-

Dr. McCook, a psychiatrist, testified at hearing that
claimant has an auto immune problem which pre-existed the
industrial injury. He testified he had prescribed the steroid
Prednisone. Prednisone is commonly prescribed to treat collogen
vascular disorders. He said the collogen disorder was of unknown
etiology. The steriod medication acted to increase peripheral
circulation and that' one of the results would be a decrease in the
claimant's pain. He indicated that if the claimant did not have
the collogen disorder, the steroid would not be prescribed, at
least not to treat the depression. We find the SAIF is not
responsible for payment of the Prednisone; this drug has been
prescribed by Dr. McCook to treat a pre-existing condition which
is not compensable.

We further find that the SAIF is not responsible for the
claimant's transportation expense from  akima to 'Medford.
Claimant, for personal reasons, in February 1979 moved from
Medford to  akima. She continued to treat with' three physicians
in Medford, claiming her special .rapport with these physicians to
be necessary to the process of her recovery. Parenthetically, we
note tnat claimant claims reimbursement for overnight longing wnen
she stayed with friends. In any event, the Board concludes that
the claimant's .travel- from  akima to Medford for treatment of tne
compensably related condition is unreasonable. We find tne SAIF
is not responsible for this expense. Our finding is based on a
failure'of the claimant to show tnat the travel was and is'
reasonably necessary to.cure and relieve her from the disabling
effects of the compensable injury. -There is no showing in this
record that the medical services reasonably required for treatment
of ■ the compensable injury cannot be obtained in  akima or at' some
place nearer  akima than Medford. There is no evidence that the
treatment being provided by the Medford physicians is
professionally unique or that claimant could not develop a special
rapport with physicians in  akima, albeit with some special effort
and attitude adjustment on her part.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated April 7,
its entirety.

1980 is reversed in

-20-
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ELSIE RIOS, CLAIMANT 
James Francesconi, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal,·0efense Attorney 
Request- for Review by Claimant 

WCB 80-05174 
May. 5, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee 1 s ·order wn1ch <lf­
f irmea the June 3, 1980 denial of compe_nsabili ty. The Board re­
verses. 

In November 1977 claimant was employed with the Community Ac­
tion Team, Inc. , a CETA-sponsor ed job~ and she worked in the base·­
rnent of the.Rainier City Hall. Claimant and a witness testified 
to the basement having no windows, a concrete floor and. the build­
ing h_ad pr '2V iously flooded making the environment cold and damp. 
In December 1977 claim~nt developed 1p~ihful feet and hands witn 
swelling. · 

Aroun~ Aprill, 1978 claimant quit tr,is employer ano got a 
job througn L~gal Aid. in the secretarial field. This job required 

-a lot of typing which caused cl~ima~t's hand~ to oe stiff and 
1ainful. Claimarit q0it work June 17, 1980. 

Dr. Rosenbaum, ·a rheumatologist, testified at the heai:-ing 
that he.first saw claimant April 7,.1980. He diagnosed rheuma.:..-Jid 
arthritis and defined it as a chronic progressive inflamrnacory. 

_disease.of muscles, joints, tendons, ligaments and possicly otLer 
organ sJstems. This disease was characterized by painful swolien 
Joints and stiffness. The disease was of unknown etiology. Dr. 
Rosenbaum felt' that probably the disease started in Dece1;,u~r 1977. 
He felt claimant at that_ time eit~er had the disease or it·wa~ be­
g:i.nning, anti if she was.subjected to 11 unusual-environmental 
stress 11 it would be, in hi.s opinion, an aggravating factor in her 
disease and would require time loss and.medical services. The 
doctor testified it wo~ld worsen her underlying disease. 

When asked to compare the ef1:e9t of enviornmental s:.<,~ss, 
dampness ~nd cold on the rheumatoid arthritis with physical move~ 
ment such as typing, which would be the most aggravating, ur. 
Rosenbaum replied 11 environrnental factors." He felt environmental 
factors lessen her resistance to the disease. 

The doctor further te'stified: · 

"What I 'rn really trying to say in essence is that if 
this woman was· subjected to unusual environmental 
stresses, tempe.rature changes, wetness, dampness, 
drafts, it ~o~id be reasbnable to assume that it was an 
aggravating factor in her, disease." 

When fne doctor was to assume that ,the· dampness lasted tnr2e 

O ____ m_o __ n_t_h~s_,_~~-~-e-~=-ied, 1.: ~-,-~~-~-~~ _5._~Y _ t_hat 's _____ ~u~~ too long." 
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ELSIE RIOS, CLAIMANT
James Francesconi, Claimant's Attorney

WCB 80-05174
Mav.5, 1981

O

SAIF Corp LegalDefense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant ,

• Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's -order wnich af-
firmea the June 3,- 1980 denial of compensability. The Board re­
verses.

In'November 1977 claimant was employed with the Community Ac­
tion Team, Inc., a CETA-sponsored job, and she worked in the base­
ment of the Rainier City Hall. Claimant and a witness testified
to the basement having no windows, a concrete floor and. the build­
ing, had previously flooded making tne environment cold and damp.
In December 1977 claimant developed‘painful feet and hands witn
swelling.

Arouna April 1, 1978 claimant quit tnis employer ana got a
job througn Legal Aid.in the secretarial field. This job required
a lot of typing which caused claimant's hands to oe stiff and
)ainful. Claimant quit work June l7, 1980.

Dr. Rosenbaum, a rheumatologist, testified at the hearing
that he,first saw claimant April 7,.1980. He diagnosed rheuraauoid
arthritis and defined it as a chronic progressive inflammacory
.disease'of muscles, joints, tendons, ligaments and possioly otner
organ systems. This disease was characterized by painful swollen
joints and stiffness. The disease was of unknown etiology. Dr.
Rosenoaum felt' that probably the disease started in Deceiiioer 1977.
He felt claimant at that,time either had the disease or it'was be­
ginning, ana if she was,subjected to "unusual•environmental
stress" it would be, in hi.s opinion, an aggravating factor in- her
disease and would require time loss and'medical•services. The
doctor testified it would worsen her underlying disease.

When asked to compare the effect of enviornmental stress,
dampness and. cold on the rheumatoia arthritis witn physical move­
ment such as typing, which would be the most aggravating, Dr.
Rosenbaum replied "environmental factors." He felt environmental
factors lessen her resistance to the disease.

The doctor further testified: ’

"What I'm really trying to say in essence is that if
this woman was subjected to unusual environmental
stresses, temperature changes,, wetness, dampness,
drafts, it would be reasonable to assume that it was an
aggravating factor in her^ disease." •

When the doctor was to assume that .the dampness lasted tnree
months, he replied, "I would say that's much too long."

-21-
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Board finds that the last injurious exposure rule does· 
not apply in ihis case for two reasons: (1) The medic~l evidence 
indicates the rheumatoid arthritis was aggravated by environmental 
factors, not physical factors, and (2) Dr. Rosenbaum fel.t that the 
physical movement of typing would be only a negligible or minimal 
contributing factor ~nd might even be good thera~y and particu­
larly, 11 ••• if it is normal repetitive movem~nt," it is not injur­
ious.· 

The Board concludes that claimant's employment with Community 
Action Team exposed.her to unusual environmental stress wnich ag-­
gravated her rheumatoid arthritis. Dr. Rosenbaum indjcati2d claim­
ant should be authorized ti~e off from work commencing April 7, 
1980. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated August 5, 1980 is reversed. 

The claim is remanded to the SAIF Corporation for acceptance 
and the payment of benefits as required by law until closure is 
authoiizecl pursuant to ORS 656.268. 

Claimant 1 s attorney i·s hereby granted as and for a reasonable 
attorney fee for his representation at the hearing level and his 
prevailing upon Board review the sum of $1,500, payable by the 
SAIF Corporation. 

RALPH BENCOACH, CLAIMANT 
Own Moti_on Dete_rmination 

... . , 

Own Motion 81-0093M 
May 6, 1981 . 

The claimant suffered a compensable industrial inJury on 
December 4, 1973 to his Yciw back. His claim was accepted as ~on­
disabling. Claimant's injury residuals became disabling on 
October 22, 1980 and.his aggravatipn rights expired in December 
1978. 

on·october 22, 1980, Dr. Bert took claimant off work. Bi 
a report of March 6, ·1981 Dr. Bert perf0rmed a -closing examina­
tion and indicated claimant was fit for only very light work. The 
Medical reports in evidence indicate that claimant has, and had 
before this injury, degenerative changes which were continuing to 
deteriorate·. 

The claim was submitted for closure, and it is the recommen­
dation of the-Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compensation 
Department that claimant be granted compensation for temporary 
total disabllity from October 22, 1980.through March 6, 1981 and 
no award.to permanent partial disability. The Board concurs with 
this recommendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-22-

The Board finds that the last injurious exposure rule does’
not apply in this case for two reasons: (1) The medical evidence
indicates the rheumatoid arthritis was aggravated by environmental
factors, not physical factors, and (2) Dr. Rosenbaum fel.t that the
physical movement of typing would be only a negligible or minimal
contributing factor and might even be good therapy and particu­
larly, "...if it is normal repetitive movement," it is not injur­
ious . ■

The Board concludes that claimant's employment with Community
Action Team exposea .her to unusual- environmental stress wnich ag­
gravated her rheumatoid arthritis. Dr. Rosenbaum indicated claim­
ant should be authorized time off from work commencing April 7,
1980.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated August 5, 1980 is reversed.

The claim is remanded to the SAIF Corporation for acceptance
and the payment of benefits as required by law until closure is
authorized pursuant to ORS 656.268.

Claimant's attorney i’S hereby granted as and for a reasonable
attorney fee for his representation at the hearing level and his
prevailing upon Board review the sum of $1,500, payable by the
SAIF Corporation.

RALPH BENCOACH, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0093M
May 6, 1981

The claimant suffered a compensable industrial injury on
December 4 , 1973'.to his low back. His claim was accepted as non­
disabling. Claimant's .injury residuals became disabling on
October 22, 1980 and his aggravation rights expired in December
1978 .

On October 22, 1980, Dr. Bert took claimant off work. By
a report of March 6, 1981 Dr. Bert performed a closing examina­
tion and indicated claimant was fit for only very light v/ork. The
medical reports in evidence indicate that claimant has, and had
before this injury, degenerative changes which were continuing to
deteriorate.

The claim was submitted for closure, and it is the recomirien-
dation of the'Evaluation Division of the Workers’ Compensation
Department that claimant be granted compensation for temporary
total disability from October 22, 1980'through March 6, 1981 and
no award to permanent partial disability. The Board concurs with
this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
-22-
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JAM~S .0. BURDETT, CLAIMANT 
Emmons, Kyle et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defens_e Attorney · 
Request for Revi~w b_v Claimant •· -· 

WCB 79-11015 
May ~. 1981 

Reviewed by Board members HcCa_llister and Lewis-. 

The claimant seeks review by t:he _ Board of the Referee I s order 
which granted him 64°.for 20% unscheduled disability .. Claimant 
contends that·the award,grarited i's inadequate~ We modify the 
Referee I s order • · 

Host of claimant's -work experience has been as a laborer in . 
the b~il~ing trades. He i~·presently 53 y~ars of age with only 
a seventh .grade educatiorr. The medical evidence indicates that 
both Ors. X-lcGee and Ladd· felt claimant should not return to the 
heavy construction field .and reconutlended vocational r~habilitation 
to.lighter· employment. Dr. McGee placed restrictions upon claim­
ant's-physical capacities of no litting over 25 pounds and to 
ayoid bending, twisting, stooP,ing, ··etc. 

At the time ·o~ ~earing, claimant had been· employed since 
~une 1980 ~s ~ field agent fot the ,union, a·job which was to.end 
in September 1980. · Regardless of ti.his job, claimant neyertheless 
is precluded_ from engaging in any heavy labor activities, the 
field he has worke·d in most of his !adult life. Therefore, the 
Board ;finds· that the Referee's awaJ;d of 20.% unscheduled disability 
was inadequ~te and.concludes t~at qlairnan~,is entitled to an award 
of 30% unscheduled disability. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dateq. September 23, 1980 is modified. 

Claima'.!'lt is hereby granted anraward of 96° for 30% unscheduled 
~isability; This a~ard is in lieu of all prior awards. 

· Claimant 1 s attorney is granted as a reas6nable attornei.fee 
the sum ·of _25% of the increased coxp.pensatibn granted by this order. 

- . .. . . . --

HENRY BUSTAMANTE, CLAIMANT 
Harold Adams, Claimant 1 s Attorney 

.. Dennis Reese, Oefen~.e Attorney 
Reauest for Rev·iew by Employer 

WCB 80-00839 
Ma_v 6, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and Lewis. 

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order which 
remanded claimant's aggravation claim to it for acceptance and pay­
:r.i.ent of compensation from February 10, 1980 to March 17, 1980. The 
employer contends that cl~imarit ha•s failed to prove his condition 
resulting from his industrial· injury has. worsened. 

--,-- . -23.:. - . -

m

m

JAMES ,0. BURDETT, CLAIMANT
Emmons, Kyle et al. Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-11015
May 6, 1981

Reviewed by Board members IlcCallister and Lewis-.

The claimant seeks review by the,Board of the Referee's order
which granted him 64®.for 20% unscheduled disability. Claimant
contends that'the award ,granted is inadequate. We modify the
Referee's order.

Host of claimant's work experience has been as a laborer in -
the building trades. He is-presently 53 years of age with only
a seventh -grade education. The med.ical evidence indicates that
both Drs. McGee and Ladd' felt claimant should not return to the
heavy construction field ..and recommended vocational rehabilitation
to'lighter employment. Dr. McGee placed restrictions upon claim­
ant's physical capacities of no lifting over 25 pounds and to
avoid bending, twisting, stooping, etc.

At the time 'of hearing, claimant had been' employed since
June 1980 ,as a field agent for the 'union, a job which was to.end
in September 1980. ' Regardless of this job, claimant nevertheless
is precluded, from engaging in any heavy labor activities, the
field he has worked in most of his ladult life. Therefore, the
Board finds'that the Referee's award of 20.% unscheduled disability
was inadequate and, concludes that claimant is entitled to an award
of 30% unscheduled disability.

I
ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 23, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted anCaward of 96° for 30% unscheduled
disability. This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

■ Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney',fee
the sum of 25% of the increased compensation granted by this order.

HENR BUSTAMANTE, CLAIMANT
Harold Adams, Claimant's Attorney
Dennis Reese, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 80 00839
May 6, 1981

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and Lewis.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
remanded claimant's aggravation claim to it for acceptance and pay­
ment of compensation from February 10, 1980 to March 17, 1980. The
employer contends that claimant has failed to prove his condition
resulting from his industrial injury has worsened.

-23-
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sustained a compensable injury to.his back on Hay 
10, 1977. He has been granted a total award equal to 48° for 15% 41) 
unscheduled disability for injury to his back. The last arrange-
ment of compensation was by.a stipulation dated January 8, 1979. 

Dr. Chester, claimant's treating physician, saw claimant on 
November 26, 1979 with continued back complaints. He requested 
the carrier reopen ·claimant's claim with time loss cornr:1encing that 
day .. In January of 1980, bi. Chester reported that claimant's 
condition was not stationary, and it appeared that claimant's con­
dition had worsened since claim closure. Dr. Chester did not 
report any o.bjective findings. He recommended no medical treat:­
ment. He asked .that·claimant be paid time loss benefits but -did 

· not indicate that claimant could not work. In fa·qt, in Dr. Ander­
son's later report, he stated that claimant had continued working 

-~ntil January 1, 1980. Dr. Chester's reports are, as the Referee 
charitably put it, "succinct," with no supporting reasons for his 
request that claimant's claim be reopened. 

On February 7, 1980, Dr. Anderson, who had also examined 
claimant in·August of 1978, indicated that the objective· find­
lngs did not substantiate claimant's subjective complaints. He 
found increasing evidence of functional disturbance. He felt 
claimant's condition was statioriary, and there was no evidence of 
a worsening. He recommended· the claim· remain closed and that 
claimant could continue to work if he so desired. He found claim-
ant's total loss of function in the back and neck to be zero. · In 41) 
August of 1978 he had felt claimant'.s loss of function in the 
same areas was minimal. 

The Board finds that Dr. Anderson's report is not really 
inconsistent with the findings of Dr. Chester. Dr. Anderson 
apparently perfoimed a much more detailed examination of ciaim­
ant and found no objective evidence of a worsened condition. 
Dr. Chester stated claimant was worse but failed to support that 
statemen~ with any exploration of ~he need for furthei compen~ · 
sation. If, in fact, Dr. Chester did provide ~laimant with _ 
some medical treatment, claimant is entitled to have his.medical 
expenses paid for under the provisions of ORS 656.245. Claiflant 
has failed to .establish by a preponderance of the medical evi­
denc~ that his condition is worsened and requires further compen­
sation. The carrier's denial should be affirmed. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated August 27, 1980 and the Order on 
Reconsideration dated September 24, 1980 are reversed. 

The denial dated February 18, 1980 is affirmed. 
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Claimant sustained a compensable injury to his back on May
10, 1977. He has been granted a total award equal to 48° for 15%
unscheduled disability for injury to his back. The last arrange­
ment of compensation was by a stipulation dated January 8, 1979.

Dr. Chester, claimant's treating physician, saw claimant on
November 26, 1979 with continued back complaints. He requested
the carrier reopen claimant's claim with time loss comiriencing that
day. -In January of 1980, Dr. Chester reported that claimant's
condition was not stationary, and it appeared that claimant’s con­
dition had worsened since claim closure. Dr. Chester did not
report any o.bjective findings. He recommended no medical treat­
ment. He asked that'claimant be paid time loss benefits but did
not indicate that claimant could not work-. In fact, in Dr. Ander­
son's later report, he stated that claimant had continued working
until January 1, 1980. Dr. Chester's reports are, as the Referee
charitably put it, "succinct," with no supporting reasons for his
request that claimant's claim be reopened.

On February 7, 1980,- Dr. Anderson, who had also examined
claimant in-August of 1978, indicated that the objective' find­
ings did not substantiate claimant's subjective complaints. Fie
found increasing evidence of functional disturbance. He felt
claimant's condition was stationary, and there was no evidence of
a worsening. He recommended the claim remain closed and that
claimant could continue to work if he so desired. He found claim­
ant's total loss of function in the back and neck to be zero. ' In
August of 1978 he had felt claimant'.s loss of function in the
same areas was minimal.

#
The Board finds that Dr. Anderson's report is not really

inconsistent with the findings of Dr. Chester. Dr. Anderson
apparently performed a much more detailed examination of claim­
ant and found no objective evidence of a worsened condition.
Dr. Chester stated claimant v/as worse but failed to support that
statement with any exploration of the need for further compen­
sation. If, in fact. Dr. Chester did provide claimant with
some medical treatment, claimant is entitled to have his medical
expenses paid for under the provisions of ORS 656.245. Claimant
has failed to .establish by a preponderance of the medical evi­
dence that his condition is worsened and requires further compen­
sation. The carrier's denial should be affirmed.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated August 27, 1980 and the Order on
Reconsideration dated September 24, 1980 are reversed.

The denial dated February 18, 1980 is affirmed.
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RICHARQ L. SCH0ENNOEHL, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's At.tp_rneys 
Spears, Lubersky et.al, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Employer 

Reviewed by -the Board en bane .. 

WCB 79-09622 and 80-03469 
May 6, 1981 

The employer/carrier seeks Board review of the Referee's 
order which found claimant's curren:t skin condition compensable 
in· WCB Case No. 80-03469. (WCB Case No. 79-09622 involved 
clai~ant's extent of disability on a shoulder injury; no 
party has appealed from that portion of the Referee's or:der.) 

Claimant has had three ~kin conditions: (1) Contact 
dermatisis; (2) dry skin; and· (3) neurodermatitis. The 
first, contact dermatis~s, arose in 1975 based on an allergic 
reaction to dust ~hich claimant was exposed to in his job. -
The employer ultimately accepted r~sponsibility fo~ claimant's 
contact dermatisis claim. That condition was and remains 
compensable. . , . 

Claimant was treated for his 1:975 episode of dermatisis· 
by Dr. Hahn. · In narch of 1976 Dr •. Hahn reported that claimar.t 
had completely·recovered from that ;condition. Claimant 
returned to work tn 1976 and continued to work until he 
injured his shoulder in December of 1978. The record is 
sketchy on what, · if any, skin problems claimant· had during 
.this interval. In any eventj it s~ems clear that he did not 
_miss _any work because of skin problems. 

Claimant has not worked since.his December 1978 shoulder 
injury except for a few weeks. Months later, in August or 
Septembei 1979, claimant again sought medical treatment for 
skin problems. There was·then no suggestion of contact 
derrnatisis because claimant was no:longer working or industrially 
exposed to d~st •. Rather, claimant's 1979 skin problems were 
dry skin an~ ne~r0dermatitis. 

The question is whether claimant has proven his claim 
for 1979 skin problems, which the employer denied, are 
causally related to ~is 1~75 skin problem, which the employer 
accepted. Dr. Miller thinks not. Dr. Anderson thinks so. 

The Referee found Dr. Anderson's opinion more persuasive 
because he was the treating physician. "Treating physici,an" 
is not a talismatic phrase that is a substitute for weighing 
the evidence. Claims have been found compensable despite 
the adverse opinion of the claimant's "treating physician." 
Claims have been found not compensable despite the favorable 
opinion of the claimant's "treating physician." The ultimate 
question in all cases is one of weighing the· evidence, with 
some deference to the "t:reating physician" just being one of 

- many yardsticks to guide the factfir,der in that weighing 
. . - ,--- - -. -- ~race ss_. - ------·--· -----~--- .. ----- ··- ---· --- ... ---,e•-. -- ._ ·--- -·-. - - __ ,, ____ ·--- - --·-· 
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Reviewed by the Board en banc.-

The employer/carrier seeks Board review of the Referee's
order which found claimant's current skin condition compensable
in' V7CB Case No. 80-03469. {WCB Case No. 79-09622 involved
claimant's extent of disability on a shoulder injury; no
party has appealed from that portion of the Referee's order.)

Claimant has had three skin conditions: (1) Contact
dermatisis; (2) dry skin; and' (3) neurodermatitis. The
first, contact dermatisis, arose in 1975 based on an allergic
reaction to dust which claimant was exposed to in his job.
The employer ultimately accepted responsibility for claimant's
contact dermatisis claim. That condition was and remains
compensable.

Claimant was treated for his 1975 episode of dermatisis
by Dr. Hahn. ' In March of 1976 Dr. ;Hahn reported that claimant
had completely •-recovered from that ^condition. Claimant
returned to work in 1976 and continued to work until he
injured his shoulder in December of 1978. The record is
sketchy on what, if any, skin problems claimant had during

• this interval. In any event-, it seems clear that he did not
miss any work because of skin problems.

Claimant has not worked since his December 1978 shoulder
injury except for a few v;eeks. Months later, in August or
September 1979, claimant again sought medical treatment for
skin problems. There was then no suggestion of contact
dermatisis because claimant was no'longer working or industrially
exposed to dust.. Rather, claimant's 1979 skin problems were
dry. skin and neurodermatitis.

The question is whether clajmant has proven his claim
for 1979 skin problems, which the employer denied, are
causally related to his 1975 skin problem, which the employer
accepted. Dr. Miller 'thinks not. Dr. Anderson thinks so.

The Referee found Dr. Anderson's opinion more persuasive
because he was the treating physician. "Treating physician"
is not a talismatic phrase that is a substitute for weighing
the evidence. Claims have been found compensable despite
the adverse opinion of -the claimant's "treating physician."
Claims have been found not compensable despite the favorable
opinion of the claimant's "treating physician." The ultimate
question in all cases is one of weighing the' evidence, with
some deference to the "treating physician" just being one of
many yardsticks.to guide the factfinder in that weighing
process.

RICHARD L. SCHOENNOEHL, CLAIMANT WCB 79-09622 and 80-03469
Po22i, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys May 6, 1981
Soears, Lubersky et.al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer
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Board is not persuaded, in its weighing of the 
evidence, by Dr. Anderson's opinion for several reasons: 

(1) Dr. Hahn, who was once claimant's "treating physician," 
if labels are 'important, reported in 1976 that claimant had 
completely recovered from his dermatitis but-was subject to 
recurrent neurodermatitis if he continued to scratch himself. 

(2) Following recovery from his dermatitis, claimant. 
returned to work for more than two years without significant 
skin problems. Claimant only ceased working because of his 
shoulder injµry~ · · · · 

(3)· Dr. Miller reported in 1980 that claim~nt 1 s basic 
.problem is chronic dry skin which is a product of the aging 
process and ~hich claimant scratches, producing neurodermatitis. 
Dr. Miller found there was no connection between these · 
problems and claimant's 1975 {industrially related) dermatisis. 

{4) In a report dated February 8, 1980, Dr. Anderson 
concurred with Dr. Miller's conclusions. Dr. Anderson's · 
subsequently expressed opinion that claimant's 1979 neurodermatitis 
was causally rel_ated to his 1975 dermatisis is thus impeached 
by a prior in_consistent opinion. 

For the$e reasons, the Board concludes that claimant 
has- not sustained the burden ot·proying that his current 
skin problems are compensable. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated June 2, 1980 as corrected 
June 4, 1980 is affirmed so far as it relates to WCB Case 
No. 79-09622 irivolving the extent of disability from claimant's 
shoulder injury. Stated differently, claimant· is awarded 
20% unscheduled disability (64°)' for his shoulder injury and 
claimant's attorney is allowed 25% of that amount as and for 
a reasonable attorney fee, payable frcim claimant's compensation. 

The Referee!s order dated June 2, 1980. as corrected 
June 4, 1980.is reversed in its entirety.so far as it relates 
to WCB Case No. 80-03469 involving the employee's denial of 
responsibility forJ6lairnant's current skin condition. 

-26-
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The Board is not persuaded, in its weighing of the
evidence, by Dr. Anderson's opinion for several reasons:

(1) Dr. Hahn, who was once claimant's "treating physician,"
if labels are important, reported in 1976 that claimant had
completely recovered from his dermatitis but-was subject to
recurrent neurodermatitis if he continued to scratch himself.

(2) Following recovery from his dermatitis, claimant,
returned to work for more than two years without significant
skin problems. Claimant only ceased working because of his
shoulder injury.

(3)' Dr. Miller reported in 1980 that claimant's basic
problem is chronic dry skin which is a product of the aging
process and which claimant scratches, producing neurodermatitis.
Dr. Miller found there was no connection between these
problems and claimant's 1975 (industrially related) dematisis.

(4) In a report dated February 8, 1980, Dr. Anderson
concurred with Dr. Miller's conclusions. Dr. Anderson's
subsequently expressed opinion that claimant's 1979 neurodermatitis
was causally related to his 1975 dermatisis is thus impeached
by a prior inconsistent opinion.

For these reasons, the Board concludes that claimant
has- not sustained the burden of proving that his current
skin problems are compensable.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated June 2, 1980 as corrected
June 4, 1980 is affirmed so far as it relates to WCB Case
No. 79-09622 involving the extent of disability from claimant's
shoulder injury. Stated differently, claimant’ is awarded
20% unscheduled disability (64°)' for his shoulder injury and
claimant's attorney is allowed 25% of that amount as and for
a reasonable attorney fee, payable from claimant's compensation.

The Referee's order dated June 2, 1980- as corrected
June 4, 1980 is reversed in its entirety so far as it relates
to WCB Case No. 80-03469 involving the employee's denial of
responsibility for --claimant' s current skin condition.
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C. WHITE, CLAIMANT 1 

Willner~ Bennett et al, Claimant's ~ttorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney . ,.,.. , . 
Reouest for Review by Claimant 

WCB 79-10545 
May 6, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 

The-claimant seeks review by the Board of the Referee's or~er. 
which affirmed the Determination Order of Decer:iber 3, 1979 wi.ich 
granted 48° for 15% unscheduled dis~bility. Claimant contends 
he is permanently and totally disahled, or in the alternative, he 
is entitled to a greater award. The Board modifies the Referee's 
order. ' 

Claimant is now 61 years of age with a ninth grade education, 
and most of his employment has been: in heavy or moderate lab6r 
work. He has had. a multitude, some1 27, industrial injuries.· At 
the time of this industrial injury ,of April 16 1 1979 claimant was 
employed by Atlas Iron. His regular job was that of a burner, 
but at the time of the injury, he ~as performing another job an a 
rotational.basis. Dr. Wells was tlle treating physician and initi­
ally diagnosed lumbo·sacral contusion and ·sprain. 

Claimant was enrolled at the Callahan Center on August 8, 
1979. Dr. Van Osdel re~orted that ~laimant's vocational impair­
ment was rated as mild and claimant was capable of performing 
medium work. R~strictions placed dn claimant were no litting ave~ 
50 pounds, repetitively not over 25 pounds, no repetitive bending, 
squatting, crawling, twisting, wal~ing over rough terrain or 
reaching overhead. He was totally 1precluded from working at heights. 
It was felt that he needed a job change, and vocational rehabilita-
tion was recommended. · 

Claimant testified at the hearing of his attempts to seek em­
ployment, so far to _no avail. He testified he felt he could per­
form medium welding. · 

The Board finds, based upon the evidence that claimant can-· 
not return to his regular job but could return to the field of 
we~ding which claimant seems quite interested in. We find·his 
loss of wage earning cap~city to be.greater than that awarded. 

Claimant is forever precluded from heavy _industrial labor occu­
pations and, because of his age, lack of education and few 
transferable skills, he is entitled' to an award of 25%. The 
Board agrees with the· Referee that claimant is not, and has 
not proven, that he is- permanently and totally disabled. 

ORDER 

-The order of the Referee dated, August 15, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 80° for 25% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in lieu.of piior awards. 

Claimant's attorney is entitled to a reasonable attorney 
fee of 25% of the increased compensation granted by this order. 
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m
Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

RA MOND C. WHITE, CLAIMANT WCB 79-10545
Willner, Bennett et al, Claimant's Attorneys May 6, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

m

m

The claimant seeks review by the Board of the Referee's order
which affirmed the Determination Order of December 3, 1979 which
granted 48° for 15% unscheduled disability. Claimant contends
he is permanently and 'totally disabled, or in the alternative, he
is entitled to a greater award. The Board modifies the Referee's
order.

Claimant is now 61 years of age with a ninth grade education,
and most of his employment has been; in heavy or moderate labor
work. He has had a multitude, some; 27, industrial injuries.' At
the time of this industrial injury of April 16, 1979 claimant was
employed by Atlas Iron. His regular job was that of a burner,
but at the. time of the injury, he was performing another job on a
rotational basis. Dr. Wells was the treating physician and initi­
ally diagnosed lumbosacral contusion and'sprain.

Claimant was enrolled at the Callahan Center on August 8,
1979. Dr. 'Van Osdel reported that .Claimant' s vocational impair­
ment was rated as mild and claimant was capable of performing
medium work. Restrictions placed o'n claimant were no lifting over,
50 pounds, repetitively not over 25. pounds, no repetitive bending,
squatting, crawling, twisting, v/alking over rough terrain or
reaching overhead. He was totally 'precluded from working at heights
It was felt that he needed a job change, and vocational rehabilita­
tion was recommended.

Claimant testified at the hearing of his attempts to seek em­
ployment, so far to no avail. He testified he felt he could per­
form medium welding.

The Board finds, based upon the evidence that claimant can-'
not return to his'regular job but could return to the field of
welding which claimant seems quite interested in. We find- his
loss of wage earning capacity to be greater than that awarded.
Claimant is forever precluded from heavy industrial labor occu­
pations and, because of his age, lack of education and few
transferable skills, he is entitled to an award of 25%- The
Board agrees with the’ Referee that claimant is not, and has
not proven, that he is- permanently and totally disabled.

■ ■ ORDER- '

The order of the Referee dated'August 15 ,. 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 80° for 25% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in lieu of prior awards.

Claimant's attorney is entitled to a reasonable attorney
fee of 25% of the increased compensation granted by this order.
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A. WHITMAN, CLAI~ANT 
Richardson,' Murnhv et·a1, Claimant's Attorneys 
Lang, Klei ri et a f, Def ens~ Attorneys 
Reauest fo_r Review by Employer 

Revie~ed by the Board eri bane. 

WCB 80-03300 
May 6, 1981 

The employer/carrier seeks Board review of the Referee 1 s 
order which granted claimant an additional award of 35% for a 
totai award t~ date of 60% unscheduled disability. The employer/ 
carrier contends that'the award is excessive. We modify the 
Referee's order~ 

The Board finds~ based on the entire record presented, that 
claimant would be adequately compensatec;l for his los·s of wage 
earnlng capacity and be 'in line with other like cases by an·award 
of 35i unicheduled disability. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated October 13, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 112° for 35% unsched­
uled disabiiity. This award ts in lieu of all prior awards. 

-: . 

Claimant's attorney is granted as a fee 25% of th8 award 
granted by this order, in lieu of the Referee's attorney fee. 

LEWIS CLAIR, CLAIMANT 
Welch, Bruun et al, Claimant 1 s Attorneys 
Ray Heysell, Defense Attqrney 
Request for Review by Employer 

RE:vi_ewed by the Boa rd en bane. 

WCB 80-2717-E 
May 7, 1981 

'rhe employer and Industrial Indemnity seek Board review of 
the Ref er ee·' s order which aff inned a Determination Order dated 
April 17, 1979· awarding claimant permanent total disabiliiy. 

Nominally, the issue on review is extent of disabilitv. 
Actually, the issue is burden of proof. If, as is the more typ­
ical situation, claimant were appealing from a Determination Order 
that awarded partial disability contending he is permanent~y and 
totally disabled, we would easily reject that contention. Here, 
~owever, the Determination Order awarded permanent total aisabil-
1ty. The burden of proof is, -thus, on the employer/carrier. The 
rloa_rd concludes the employer/carrier did not susta:...n that ourden 
oi proof. · 
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Reviewed by the Board eh banc.

The employer/carrier seeks Board review of the Referee's
order which granted claimant an additional award of 35% for a
total award to date of 60% unscheduled disability. The employer/
carrier contends that'the award is excessive. VJe modify the
Referee's order.

The Board finds, based on the entire record presented, that
claimant would be adequately compensated for his loss of wage
earning capacity and be in line with other like cases by an award
of 35% unscheduled disability.

RA A. WHITMAN, CLAIMANT _ WCB 80 03300
Richardson, Murphy et'al, Claimant's Attorneys May 6, 1981
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 13, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 112° for 35% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a fee 25% of the award
granted by this order, in lieu of the Referee's attorney fee.

LEWIS CLAIR, CLAIMANT
Welch, Bruun et al, Claimant's Attorneys
Ray Heysell, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 80 2717 E
May 7, 1981

• Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The employer and Industrial Indemnity seek Board review of
the Referee^’s order which affirmed a Determination Order dated
April 17 , 197 9' awarding claimant permanent total disability.

Nominally, the issue on review is extent of disability.
Actually, the issue is burden of proof. If, as is the more typ­
ical situation, claimant were appealing from a Determination Order
that awarded partial disability contending he is permanently and
totally disabled, we would easily reject that contention. Here,
however, the Determination Order awarded permanent total aisabil-
ity. The burden of proof, is, 'thus, on the employer/carrier. The
Board concludes the employer/carrier did not sustain that ourden
of proof.
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Claimant, then 63 years ·old, su:ffered a com?er:isaole .injury on 
ilecember 7, 1973 when he fell off a batwalk in which he suffered 
acute contusion of the lett lower lumbar area. The claim-was 
first closed by Determination Order dated April 14, 1975. which 
awarded no permanent disability but ~hich granted temporar:1 total 
disability ·benefits from the date of' the accident to Decemoer 2"1, 
19 7 3. 

I . 

On July 1, 1976, Dr. William J.; Strieby reported his opinion 
that the claim should be reopene·d du:e to continued right sacro­
iliac and right sciatib pain~. Dr. ~trieby·referred claimant to 
Dr. Ben Balme. Dr. Balme 1s July 2, :1976 report to Dr. Strieby 
stat,ed: 

·, . ,, . 
11 Complaints of severe low :back and right _lower extremity 
pain of undetermined etiology with severe physical find­
ings consistent.with stro~g functional overlay and/or 
malingering. X,..ray findings con13istent with degenera­
tive disc disease and osteoarthritis of the ... (unread­
ab],e, as to whether ,ilef t•i or "right") L4-5 interval; 
rule out old b~rnt out diic ~pace infection, doubtful." 

. • . I 

I 
Disturbed that the claimant did not !elicit a ri~hc Achilles re-
flex, Dr. Balme could nevertheless find nothing on examination 
that would lead him to recommend any further type of evaluation, 
such as myelography or surgery. Hii concluding observation was: 
11 It certainly is unfortunate if he does not h~ve a job to return 
to and this of course could have some influence on his present. 
condition. 11 · 

Upon a finding of a considerab],e change in claimant's condi-_ 
tion for the worse i~ August of 1976 by Dr. T. E. Klume, the sur­
geon who ~vent~ally perform~d two 1dminectornies on qlaimant's 
back, the qlaim was reopened. Effo~ts to vocationally iehabili­
tate the claimant during the spring,and ·~ummer of 1978 were 

-thwarted by the claimant's hostility. Because:his physical diffi­
culties increased during the vocational evaluation period', it was 
concluded that claimant was unable to become actively involved in 
a rehabilitation program. 

'In March of l:l77,.the claimant told Dr. Klump that rie was 
going to apply for his Social Security retirement benefits. In 
June of 1977 Dr. Klump believed it would be about six months be­
fore he could· determine the degre~ qf improvement to b~ expected 
in claimant's phys ica1 condition. He ventured the op inion, in a 
letter dated June 15, l:l77 that if claimant's. evaluation at his 
next exam appeared much the same, he would consider claimant med­
ically stationary "with some permanent disability." Upon re­
examination on June 29, 1977, Dr. Krurnp viewed-claimant's condi-

-tion as medically statioriary, "but with permanent disability 
related to the weakness in the legs, the weak right arm, and the 
stiffness and arthritis in his neck." At tha·t time, claimant was 
advised to return on an "as needed" :basis. Complications devel­
oped, however, and a second laminectorny was performed in September 
of 1977. · 
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Claimant, then 63 years 'old, su'ffered a compensaole .injury on
December, 7, 1973 when he fell off a catwalk in which he sufferea
acute contusion of the left lower lumbar area. The claimwas
first closed by Determination Order dated April 14 , 1975. which
awarded no permanent disability but which granted temporary total
disability benefits from the date of: the accident to Decemoer 27,
1973.

On July 1 , 1976 , Dr. William J.! Strieby reported his opinion
that the claim should be reopened due to continued right sacro­
iliac and right sciatic pains. Dr. 'Str ieby • ref erred claimant to
Dr. Ben Balme. Dr. Balme's July 2, :1976 report to Dr. Strieby
stated:

"Complaints of severe low|back and right lower extremity
pain of undetermined etiology with severe physical find­
ings consistent with strong functional overlay and/or
malingering. X-ray findings consistent with degenera­
tive disc disease and osteoarthritis of the...(unread­
able, as to whether "left*' or "right") L4-5 interval;
rule out old burnt out disc space infection, doubtful."

Disturbed that the claimant did not 'elicit a righc Achilles re­
flex, pr. Balme could nevertheless find nothing on examination
that would lead him to recommend any further type of evaluation,
such as myelography or surgery. His concluding observation was:
"It certainly is unfortunate if he does not have a job to return
to and this of course could have some influence on his present
condition."

Upon a finding of
tion for the worse in
geon who eventually pe
back, the claim was re
tate the claimant duri
thwarted by the.claima
culties increased duri
concluded that claiman
a rehabilitation progr

a' considerable change in claimant's condi-.
August of 1976 by Dr. T. E. Klump, the sur-
rformed two laminectomies on claimant's
opened. Efforts to vocationally rehabili-
ng the spring and summer of 1978 were
nt's hostility. Because .his physical diffi
ng the vocational evaluation period', it was
t was unable to become actively involved in
am.

'In March of 19 77 , the claimant told Dr. Klump that htr was
going to apply for his Social Security retirement benefits. In
June of 1977 Dr. Klump believed it would be about six months be­
fore he could determine the degree of improvement to be expected
in claimant's physical condition. He ventured the opinion, in a
letter dated June 15, 1977 that if claimant's. evaluation at his
next exam appeared much the same, he would consider claimant med­
ically stationary "with some permanent disability." Upon re­
examination on June 29, 1977, Dr. Klump viewed■claimant's condi­
tion as medically stationary, "but with permanent disability
related to the weakness in the legs, the weak right arm, and the
stiffness and arthritis in his neck." At that time, claimant was
advised to return on an "as needed" basis. Complications devel­
oped, however, and a second laminectomy was performed in September
of 1977.
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March 15., 1978, · claimant had, in Dr. Klurnp 1 s· opinion, 
"ac~ieved a plateau" but remain~d ·"p~rmanently disabled by some 
r 7s1duals of the myelopathy and the arthritic changes in his cer-
vical and.lu~b~r spine.~ · 

Not until after claimant's irii.tial evaluatio:: by tr,t~ voca­
tional rehabilitation center.on.April 17, 19,78 did claima:it's 
physical condition s6 markedly d~teriorate tha~ he could not par­
ticipa~e in vocational r~h~bilita~ion ~ctivities. The rehabilita­
tion specialists ~ere forced to. evaluate claimant without the 
benefit of his medical re~ords which were never received prior to 
the final ~regress report o~ July 21, i978 in which it was con­
cluded that claim@nt was not a ·vi~ble candidate for vocational 
reh~bilitation. That conclusion was based.on a telephone confer-· 
ence with pr. Klu~p. · 

Dr. Klump's belief tha·t claimant could not participate in 
vocational rehabilitation ~ctivities was verified in his June· 27, 
1978 report· in which he stated: 

"I rnoit recently saw Mr. Lewis Clair on June 20, 1978. 
At that time he came or. because the prior two weeks he 
had been having considerable more difficulty with sub-
occipital _pain and frontal headache, getting so severe 
th~t he ~ould hardly do anything all day bµt lid in bed. 
In addition he said that his right arm was getting numb 
and drawing up again. His low back was doing well. 

* * ~ 

"Up until this most recent development. I would nave 
thought that Mr. Clair could participate in some rehab-
ilitation -effort. He really appeared to be in such dis­
tre~s at·the tim~ that I saw him that, at least based on 
that interview, I could not say h~ could fully coop-
erate ••. " (emphasis added) . 

Thus, based u~on what cl~imant told him, Dr. Klump told the voca­
tional rehabilitation people that claimant could'not participate. 

In August of 1~78, ·nr. Klump again discussed his own surprise 
at the claimant 1 s ~nexplainable turn 'for the worse: 

"Except fat this .flare-up of his neck pain~ I would have 
considered Mr. Clair ·.in a medically stdtionary condi~ 
tion •. Mr. Clair, I believe, ·will be limited as to his 
physical capabilitil::!s, particularly in regard to bend­
ing~ sustained standing, sitting or walking, and lift-
• II . 1ng ••• 

On ·september 18, 197 8, Dr. Klump reported that the claimant's con­
dition was medically stationary, noting: 
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By March 15 , 1978, claimant had, in Dr. Klump's opinion,
achieved a plateau" but remained "permanently disabled by some
residuals of the myelopathy and the arthritic changes in his cer­
vical and lumbar spine."

Not until after claimant’s iriitial evaluation; by the voca­
tional rehabilitation center . on .Apr il 17 , 19 78 did claima-it’s
physical condition so markedly deteriorate that he could not par­
ticipate in vocational rehabilitation activities. The rehabilita­
tion specialists were forced to- evaluate claimant without the
benefit of his medical records which were never received prior to
the final progress report of July 21, 1978 in which it was con­
cluded that claimant was not a viable candidate for vocational
rehabilitation. That conclusion was based on a telephone confer­
ence with Dr. Klump.

Dr. Klump's belief that claimant could not participate in
vocational rehabilitation activities was verified in his June- 27,
1978 report’in which he stated:

"I most recently saw Mr. Lewis Clair on June 20, 1978.
At that time he came on because the prior two weeks he
had been having considerable more difficulty witn sub-
occipital pain and frontal headache, getting so severe
that he could hardly do anything ail day but lie in bed,
In addition he said that his right arm was getting numb
and drawing up again.' His low back was doing well.

"Up until this most recent development•I would nave
thought that Mr. Clair could participate in some rehab­
ilitation -effort. He really appeared to be in such dis­
tress at the time that I saw him that, at least based on
that interview, I could not say he could fully coop­
erate..." (emphasis added)

Thus, based upon what claimant told him, Dr. Klump told the voca­
tional rehabilitation people that claimant could not participate.

In August of 19.78, Dr. Klump again discussed his own surprise
at the claimant's unexplainable turn for the worse:

"Except for this .flare-up of his neck pain,. I would have
considered Mr. Clair in a medically stationary condir
tion. .Mr. Clair, I believe, will be limited as to his
physical capabilities, particularly in regard to bend­
ing, sustained standing, sitting or walking, and lift­
ing. . . "

On September 18, 1978, Dr. Klump reported tnat the claimanr's con­
dition was medically stationary, noting:
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"I still consider Mr .·,Clair disa·bled and certainly un­
able to worK. ~ig~i hours a day five dayi a week .. -.Fur­
ther treatment i~ not coniemplat~d at this time. His 
major disa~ility stems fr6m t~e rather severe arthritic 
involvement of the cervic~l and lumbar spine. This has 
resulted, in my opinion, in a mild degree of myelopathy 
as we~l as radiculopathy:~." 

I , 
The final medical report,· as c6ntained in the record, and the 

report relied upon by the Evaluatiori Division in its issuance of a 
Determination Order awarding permanent total disabili.ty, is Dr. 
Klump's January 24, 1979 letter, which-stated: · , . I 

' 

"I feel that Mr. Clair is 1 totally and permanently dis­
abled~ I feel this way f~r several reasons: #1. He 
has severe arthritis in his spine that has been demon­
strated on several x-rays:and ·has led to rnyelopathy as 
well as cervical ~nd lumb~r radiculopathy. Furthermore, 

·he is 61 ·years of age. r!aon't feel that from an intel­
lectual standpoint that it would be worthwhile rehabili­
tating Mr. Clair and eveniif such efforts.were success­
ful it i~ unlikely that h~ could work eight hours a day, 
five days a week even- 1.n a sedentary position." (empha­
sis added) 

Dr. Klump's conclusion of disability clearly relied upon factors 
whidh are legal factors to be weigh~d by the trier-of-fact; other 
facto(s were speculative. ' 

It must be-noted.that claimant's credibility has been ser­
iously uridermined in this 6ase through t~e introduction of moving 
~icture films which contradict the blaiman~•s testimony concerning 
his c1:ai.med pliys ic al lirn i ta tions. Where a claimant 's credibility 
is so questionable, ·and where the sble medical opinion of the ex­
tent of disability relies on the subjective complaints of the 
clairnant--which complain.ts cannot be medically explained by the 
physician--the case becomes orie where· the Referee -could well have 
invoked the autnority of OAR 438-83L400(7) ~o secure an indepen­
dent medical examination of the claimant. 

OAR 438-83-400(7) -provides: 

11 The referee may appoint a physician or vocational ex­
pert to examine the claimant and to file a report with 
the referee. The parties may also agree in advance to 
be bound by such expert's: findings. The cost ·of exam­
ination and reports under this rule shall be paid by the 
DRE/SAI F. 11 
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# "I still consider Mr.-Glair disabled and certainly un­
able to worK eight hours a day five days a week...Fur­
ther treatment is not contemplated at this time. His
major disability stems from the rather severe arthritic
involvement of the cervical and lumbar spine. This has
resulted, in my opinion, in a mild degree of myelopathy
as well as radiculopathy.J."

I • .
The final medical report,' as contained in the record, and the

report relied upon by the Evaluation Division in its issuance of a
Determination Order awarding permanent total disability, is Dr.
Klump's January 24, 1979 letter, which•stated:

"I feel that Mr. Clair is'totally and permanently dis­
abled. I feel this way for several reasons: #1. He
has severe arthritis in his spine that has been demon­
strated on several x-rays:and has led to myelopathy as
well as cervical and lumbar radiculopathy. Furthermore,
he is 61 years of age. Ijdon't feel that from an intel-
lectual standpoint that it would be worthwhile rehabili-
tatinq Mr. Clair and even!if such1 efforts were success-
ful it is unlikely that he could work eight hours a day.
five days a week even’ in a sedentary position.'* (empha­
sis added)

Dr. Klump's conclusion of disability clearly relied upon factors
which are legal factors to be weighed by the trier-of-fact? other
factors were speculative.

m

It must be•noted'that claimant's credibility has been ser­
iously undermined in this case through the introduction of moving
picture films which contradict the claimant's testimony concerning
his claimed physical limitations. Where a claimant's credibility
is so questionable,■and where the sole medical opinion of the ex­
tent of disability relies on the subjective complaints of the
claimant--which complaints cannot be medically explained by the
physician--the case becomes one where- the Referee -could well have
invoked the,authority of OAR 438-83-400(7) to,secure an indepen­
dent medical examination of the claimant.

OAR 438-83-400(7) provides:

"The referee may appoint a physician or vocational ex­
pert to examine the claimant and to file a report with
the referee. The parties may also agree in advance to
be bound by such expert's; findings. The cost of exam­
ination and reports under this rule shall be paid by the
DRE/SAIF."
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Klump ventured outside the realm of medical causation .and 
extent· of physical impairment to reach a quasi-legal conclusion of 
total disability, based upon his consideration of factors which 
are properly considered only by the trier-of-fact. In view of the 
doctor's inability to explain the cause of the· subjective com­
plaints which preclu~ed the claimant from vocational rehabilita­
tion activitie~ and any gainful employment, the·Board concludes 
that the Referee would have been well advised to appoint another 
physician to conduct and report on an independent medical examin­
ation for the Referee. 

The fact remains, however,· that the employer/carrier failed 
to introduce any evidence th~t contradicted Dr. Klump 1 s opinion. 
If the burden of proof were claimant's, we might be free to find 
his evidence unpers~asive, even though uncontradicted. But our 

. skepticism· about claimant 1 s evidence. cannot be the basis for find­
ing that the employer/carrier sustained the burden of proof in 
th is ·case. · · · 

ORDER 

The oider of the Referee dated September 25, 1980 is affirmed . 

. Claima~t•s attorney is hereby granted the sum of $500 for his 
services at this Board review, payable by the employer/carrier . 

. _., .... ~.•-- .. ·····~·- ••,-·•-· . ., ' 

PETER V. GATTO, CLAIMANT 
Galton, Popick & Scott, Attorneys for Claimant 
SAIF Corp L_egal, Defense. Attorney 
Own Motion Determination 

Own Motion 81-0040M 
Ma_v 7, 1981 

On February .10, 1981, claimant, by a~d through his attorn~y, 
requested the Board exercise its own motion jurisdiction and grant 
him compens~tion for permanent total disability for conditions re­
sulting from his July 23, 1968 industrial injury. 

Claimant injured his back in July 1968 resulting in several 
periods of hospitalization and several.surgeries. He has been 
granted a total awarrl for his bac~ condition equal to 320° for 
100% unsched~led disability. Under the provisions of ORS 656.278, 
which allow the Board to" ... modify, change or terminate former 

-

ftndings, orders or awards ..• ," claimant asks that he be found to a 
be permanently and totally disabled. '91' 

-32-

Dr> Klump ventured outside the realm of medical causation and
extent of physical impairment to reach a quasi-legal conclusion of
total disability, based upon his consideration of factors which
are properly considered only by the trier-of-fact. In view of the
doctor's inability to explain the cause of the subjective com­
plaints which precluded the claimant from vocational rehabilita­
tion activities and any gainful employment, the'Board concludes
that the Referee would have been well advised to appoint another
physician to conduct and report on an independent medical examin­
ation for the Referee.

The fact remains, however, that the employer/carrier failed
to introduce any evidence that contradicted Dr. Klump's opinion.
If the burden of proof were claimant's, we might be free to find
his evidence unpersuasive, even though uncontradicted. But our
skepticism' about claimant's evidence, cannot be the basis for find­
ing that the employer/carrier sustained the burden of proof in
this 'Case.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 25, 1980 is affirmed

Claimant's attorney is hereby grantea the sum of $500 for his
services at this Board review, payable by the employer/carrier.

#

PETER V. GATTO, CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott, Attorneys for Claimant
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0040M
May 7, 1981

On February ,10, 1981, claimant, by and through his attorney,
requested the Board exercise its own motion jurisdiction and grant
him compensation for permanent total disability for conditions re­
sulting from his July 23, 1968 industrial injury.

Claimant injured his back in July 1968 resulting in several
periods of hospitalization and several.surgeries. He has been
granted a total award for his back condition equal to 320“^ for
100% unscheduled disability. Under the provisions of ORS 656.278,
which allow the Board to "...modify, change or terminate former
findings, .orders or awards.,.," claimant asks that he be found to
be permanently and totally disabled.

m
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iS obviously a severel~ disabled individual. The 
problem in this case is separatiny his numerous nonindustrial phy­
sical conditions from the residuals bf his industrial back injury. 
As far back a~ 19 76, Dr. Cohen- fnd icated tna t claimant would prob­
ably have total permanent disability: due to his back condition. 
In Maich 1~17, he indicated clairnanti could not return to any form 
of work because of his back ccinditioh w~ich would not allow him to 

. . I . 
bend, lift 6r stand on his feet for any length of time. 

In March 1979, claimant was hos~italized because of increas­
ing pain and radiating pain in both ~egs. A rnyelogram reveale6 a 
defect-at L3-4 which pr.obably represented a ruptured disc at that 
level. Thii condition was found to ~e related to his 1968 indus~ 
trial injury and the claim was reopehed by our prior own motion 
order of September 21, 1979. 

' On April _7, 1980, the Orthopaedic Consultants found .claim-
ant's condition stationary. They f~lt his.resiaual impairment due 
to the 1968 injury was moderate. They felt h~ probably could tol­
erate sed~nt~ry work if his back co~dition c6uld be isolated, but 
he was definitely precluded from gainfui employment due to his 
other multiple m~dical problems. Di. McNeill, on February 4, 
1981, indicated claimant's back sym?toms still persisted after the 
surgery done in 1979. Claimant is in pain consta~tly and is un­
able to ~ven iit for more than one-Aalf hour before he must lay 
down. He can hardly walk from his bed to the living room. He is 
constantly on medication. Dr. McNeill could offer no further · 
treatment for clalmant's back. A r~port ~ram the Orthopaedic Con­
sultants, dated April 15, i981, indicates that claimant's condi~ 
tion was stationary with no worsening of his back symptoms since 
their last examination. They feel he is totally disabled "due to 
a general medical 
dustrial_injury. 
moderate. 

I 

impairment II which I is not the result of his in-
They find his imp~irment due to his injury is 

I 

Claimant is presently 63 years:old with -a ninth grade educa­
tion. He worked in the produce business for approximately 43 
years, ·a job from whi6h he is def{nitely precluded. A total pic­
ture of this man's situation reveals a permanently and totally 
disabled person~ He was granted 100% disability [or his back con­
dition in 1974. We feel that consi~ering his· ~ge, education, lack 
of skills and definite physical limttations due to his back con­
dition, he has carried his burden of proving his entitlement to a 
2ermanent total disability award. The Board concludes that claim­
ant is brecluded from ever being ga{nfully employed. 

While the matter is. not completely free .from doubt, the Board 
further toncludes that claimant has:sattsfactorily proven that his 
permanent total disability is· due t? his work related back condi.­
tion, rather than-his other physical conditions which are not work 
related. Stated d if f e·rently, we co0clude fr om the evidence . that 
claimant's work related back condition is.now so severe that he 
would be permanently and totally di~abled from just his b~ck con­
dition even if he did not also suff~r tram a variety of other phy-
sical probiems that are n~.!:._~_c::>r __ ~ __ r~~!3-t_e_9-~------- ___ ----···-- _ ---·-·-.. ------·- ... 

--- -~-. ~~' -.. -~ . . . . . ' ' , .. -
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Claimant is obviously a severely disabled individual. The

problem in this case is separating his numerous noninduscrial phy­
sical conditions from the residuals of his' industrial back injury.
As far back as 1976 , Dr.' Cohen■ i'ndicated tnat claimant would prob­
ably have total permanent disability'due to his back condition.
In March 19-77, he indicated claimanti could not return to any form
of work because of his back condition which would not allow him to
bend, lift or stand on his feet for any length of time.

In March 1979, claimant was hospitalized because of increas­
ing pain and radiating pain in both legs. A myelogram revealed a
defect-at L3-4 which probably represented a ruptured' disc at that
level. This condition was found to be related, to his 1968 indus­
trial injury and the claim was reopened by our prior own motion
order of September 21, 1979.
„ ^ ..................................... .

On April .7/ 1980, the Orthopaedic Consultants, found .claim­
ant's condition stationary. They- felt his residual impairment due
to the 1968 injury was moderate. They felt he probably could tol­
erate sedentary work if his back condition could be isolated, but
he was definitely precluded from gainful employment due to his
other multiple medical problems. Df. McNeill, on February 4,
1981, indicated claimant's back symptoms still'persisted after the
surgery done in 1979. Claimant is in pain constantly and is un­
able to even sit for more than one-half hour before he must lay

his bed to the living room. He is
McNeill could offer no further '
A report from the Orthopaedic Con-
indicates that claimant's condi-.

down. He can hardly walk from
constantly on medication. Dr.
treatment for claimant's back,
sultants, dated April 15, 1981,
tion was stationary with no worsening of his back symptoms since
their last examination. They feel he is totally disabled "due to
a general medical impairment" which|is not the result of his in­
dustrial . injury. They find his • impairment due to his injury is
moderate.

%

Claimant is presently 63 years;old with-a ninth grade educa­
tion. He worked in the produce business for approximately 43
years,a job from which he is definitely precluded. A total pic­
ture of this man's situation reveals a permanently and totally
disabled person. He was granted 100% disability for his back con­
dition in 1974, We feel that considering his age, education, lack
of skills and definite physical limitations due • to his back con­
dition, he has carried his burden of proving his entitlement to a
permanent total disability award. The Board concludes that claim­
ant is precluded.from ever being gainfully employed.

While the matter is, not completely free .from doubt, the Board
further concludes that claimant has;satfsfactorily proven that his
permanent total disability is' due tp his work related back condi­
tion, rather than-his other physical conditions which are not work
related. Stated differently, we conclude from the evidence . that
claimant's work related back condition is.now so severe that he
would be permanently and totally disabled from just his back con­
dition even if he did not also suffer .from a variety of other phy­
sical problems that are not work related.___________________ ___ _____
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The cl'airnant is hereby grante_d compensation for permanent to­
tal disability commencing April 8, 1980, the date he was found to 

be medically stationary after his last surgery. This award is in 
lieu of ini prior awards cl~imant has been granted for this in­

jury. _The SAIF Corporation is allowed to offset this award ag­
ainst any permanent partial disability it has paid since that date 
as a result df earlier closures. 

" " " 

Claimant 1 s attorney is· hereb:/ granted as a reasonable attor­
ney's f~e for his services on claimant's behalf_ a sum equal to 25% 

of the increased compensation granted by this order, payable out 

of said 9ompensation as paid, not to exceed $1,000. 

KENT L. HALEY~ CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leaal, Defense Attorney 
Order Denying'Reauest for Review 

WCB 80-06669 
May 7, 1981 

·l'he SAIF Corporation has filed a Request for Board Keview 0f 
an .order of the. Presiding Referee, dated March 20, 1981, denying 

SAIP's motion to dismiss. Denial of a motion to dismiss is not a 
final order and, therefore, not.an appealable order. SAIF 1 s re­
quest for review is dismissed. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DOUGLAS DOOLEY, CLAIMANT 
Mal aqon, Vel ure & Yates; Claimant's Attorneys -
SA IF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order of Abatement · 

~JCB 79-08349 
May 8, 1981 

A Request for Reconsideration of the Board's Order on :Review, 
dated April 21, 1981, has been received from SAIF Corporation in 
che above-entitled matter. 

In order to give the Board time to fully consider tnis re­
. quest, that Order on Review should be abated. Claimant is· hereby 
granted 20 days to file a response. 

" . 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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The claimant is hereby granted compensation for permanent to­
tal disability commencing April 8, 198.0, the date he was found to
be medically stationary after his last surgery. Tnis award is in
lieu of any prior awards claimant has been granted for this in­
jury. The SAIF Corporation is allowed to offset this award ag­
ainst any permanent partial disability it has paid since that date
as a result of earlier closures.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as a reasonable attor­
ney's fee for his services on claimant's behalf a sum equal to 25i
of the increased compensation granted by this order, payable out
of said compensation as paid, not to exceed $1,000.

ORDER

#

KENT L. HALE , CLAIMANT
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Request for Review

WCB 80 06669
May 7, 1981

The SAIF Corporation has filed a Request for Board Keview of
an order of the Presiding Referee, dated March 20, 1981, denying
SAIF s motion to dismiss. Denial of a motion to dismiss is not a
final order and, therefore, not .an appealable order. SAIF's re­
quest for review is dismissed.

#

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DOUOLAS DOOLE , CLAIMANT
Malaqon, Velure &  ates , Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order of Abatement

WCB 79 08349
May 8, 1981

A Request for Reconsideration of tne Board's Order on Review,
dated April 21, 1981, has been received from SAIF Corporation in
the above-entitled matter.

In order to give the Board time to fully consider tnis re­
quest, that Order on Review should be abated. Claimant i.s'hereby
granted 20 days to file a response.

IT IS SO ORDERED. ’
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H. PATTON, CLAIMANT· 
Will jam J. -Blitz, Attorney· 
SAi F · Corp Leqal. Defense Attorney 
Order DenyinqRemand 

i 
I -
r 

I 
I 

WCB 80-05357 
May 8, 1981 

Claimant has submitted a .,m9tion to 'reopen!' tne hear 1ng 
record which we treat as a motion to remand to the Hearings 
Division for· further proceedings. 

1
. _ · 

I 
Claimant's affidavit in suppor~ of his motion states: 

I 

" •• ~sinte my injury of onior about November 1, 1979, I 
h~ve been unable to recall the events and the people who· 
were on the- work site. A; component of my ihjury·is 
memory loss ••• [At the tim~ of the hearing] I could not 
recall who Mr. [BobJ Hawkins·was nor w.hat his part was 
ip ;elat~oi_to my i~dustrial accident •.• 

"Since the return of my mkmory to its present state, I 
do feel I would be able t~ ·formulate questions of Mr. 
Hawkins and of Julian Karstrorn,· an apprentice wno worked 
~ith-~e at Todd Construct~on. 

I 

I 

' 
"Both Mr. ·Hawkins and Mr.: Karstrorn would be able to 
ve_r ify ·tqat I did attemptJ to_ unplug a cement vibrator 
and· ~eceived an electr ica~ .shocK. 11 

i 
I 

Claimant 1 s sworn testimony at :the time· of .. the hearing is not· 
consistent with his SV!'Orn affidavit·. At the hearing claimant tes­
tified •in detail about his alieged ~ccident: he did not express 
any diffic_ulty inrernernpering the d~etails of t!1e accident. He did 
not claim any loss of memory. Claimant referred several times to 
his co-workers who were present at ~he time of the alleged acci­
dent. ~he co~rt reporter, possibly 1 miiunderstanding or.relying on 
phoenetics, reproduced the names of' the co-workers cla-imant 
identified as "Bob Hopkins" and Jul'ian Carstone." Claiman~ does 
not now contend that these co-wo:r ke:rs · he previously testified 
about being witnesses to his ~lleged accident are other than the 
co-workers he· 6laims in ·his affidaiit to have remembered since his 
hearing. 

The Board thus concludes, from the Jvailable information, 
tnat the evidence claimant wants td produce on remand, thilt is, 
the ·testimony of his co-workers at :the time of the alleged acci­
dent, was obtainable by claimant's :attorney in the exercise of due 
dilligence at the time of the hearing. The motion to remand 1s, 
therefore, deriiect. · 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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m

JOHN H. PATTON, CLAIMANT 1 WCB 80 05357
William J. Blitz, Attorney May 8, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney ' ’
Order Denying Remand ■ .

Claimant has submitted a “motion to reopen-' tne hearing
record which we treat as a motion to remand to the Hearings
Division for further proceedings. j.

■ Claimant's affidavit in support of his motion states:

“...since my injury of oni or about November 1, 1979, I
have been unable to recall the events and the people who
were on the-work site. Ai component of my injury is
memory loss... [At the time of the hearing] I could not
recall who Mr. [Bob] Hawkins'was nor what his part was
in relation,to my industrial accident...

“Since the return of my memory to its present state, I
■ do feel I would be able to ‘formulate questions of Mr.
Hawkins and of Julian Karstrom/ an apprentice wno worked
with'me at Todd Construction.

,
“Both Mr. Hawkins and Mr.| Karstrom would be able to
verify that I did attempt} to unplug a cement vibrator
and ■ received an electrical shdcK."

' ’ 'Claimant's sworn testimony at the time of.the hearing is not'
consistent with his sworn affidavit'. At the hearing claimant tes­
tified in detail about his alleged accident; he did not express
any difficulty in remembering the djetails of the accident. He did
not claim any loss of memory. Claimant referred several times to
his co-workers who were present at the time of the alleged acci­
dent. The court reporter, possibly' misunderstanding or relying on
phoenetics, reproduced the names of' the co-workers claimant
identified as "Bob Hopkins" and Julian Carstone." Claimant does
not now contend that these co-workers he previously testified
about being witnesses to his alleged accident are other than the
co-workers he claims in his affidavit to have remembered since his
hearing.

The Board thus concludes, from the available information,
tnat the evidence claimant wants to produce on remand, that is,
the testimony of his co-workers at !the time of the alleged acci­
dent, was obtainable by claimant's lattorney in the exercise of due
dilligence at the time of the hearing. The motion to remand is,
therefore, denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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ST. JOHN, CLAIMANT 
fiary Galton, Claimant 1 s·Attorney 
SA IF Corp Legal, Defense .Attorney 
Own Motion Referred for Hearinq 

Claim D 51570 
May 8, 1981 

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requested the Board to 
exercise its own motioh jurisdiction pursuant to ORS 656.278 and 
reopen his _claim for a worsened condition related to his indus· 
trial injury of.-October 4, 1974. Claimant!s aggravation rights 
have expired. 

The evidence of record indicates that claimant suffered an 
incident on August 14~ 1979 which was i~itially denied by the SAIF 
Corporation. After a hearing and by Opinion and Order of January 
14~ 1980 the claim was remanded to SAIF for acceptanc~ as an ag­
gravation. A third Determination Order was issued on July 8, 
1980. ·This Determination Order is presently before the Hearings 
Division on appeal. In the interest of the parties the Board 
feels that the own m~tion request should be referred to a Re~eree . 

. This own motion matter is hereby referred to a Referee to be 
set on a consolidated bas~s with' WCB Case No. 8Q-7950 pr~.sently 
set for May 21, 19. 81. The P.ef er ee is to take evidence on the ex­
tent of disabil_ity issue already before him and issue an appeaJ­
able order and also take evidence' on whether or not claimant's 
present condition has worsened and is related to his industrial 
injury of i974. At the close of the heiring, the Referee is to 
have prepared·a transcript of .the proceeding and, together with 
t\is recommendation on the. own motion mat~er, ~rnbmit such to the 
Board for the final decision. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DAVE R. HIEBERT, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal·, Defe~si Attorney 
Own Motion. Determination 

Own Motion 81-0115M 
·May H, 1981 

The Bo.ard issued its O#ri Motion Order in the above entitled 
matter on December 17, 1979, reo~ening claimant's claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of June 20, 1955. 

' 
The claim has now been submitted £or closure, and it is the 

recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that.claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from January 22~ 1980 through February 18, 
1981 and an additional award of S% loss of the right leg. 

The evidence of record indicates that claimant is 78 years of 
age and has not been employed for a number of years. Therefore, 
we disagree with that portion of Evaluation's recommendation on 
temporary total disability. We find claimant is not entitled to 
compensation for teinpora ry total d isa bi li ty. The Board does agree 
that claimant is entitled to an additional award of 5% loss of the 
right leg. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. -36-

-
JAMES ST. JOHN, CLAIMANT
Gary Galton, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Referred for Hearing

Claim D 51570
May 8, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requested the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS 656.278 and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of'October 4, 1974. Claimant’s aggravation rights
have expired.

The evidence of record indicates that claimant suffered an
incident on August 14, 1979 which was initially denied by the SAIF
Corporation. After a hearing and by Opinion and Order of January
14, 1980 the claim was remanded to SAIF for acceptance as an ag­
gravation. A tnird Determination Order was Issued on July 8,
1980. This Determination Order is presently before the Hearings
Division on appeal. In the interest of the parties the Board
feels that the own motion.request should be referred to a Referee.

This own motioa matter is hereby feferre
set on a consolidated basis with WCB Case No.
set for May 21, 1981. The Referee is to take
tent of disability issue already before him a
able order and also take evidence' on whether
present condition has worsened and is related
injury of 1974. At tne close of the hearing,
have prepared'a transcript of .the proceeding
his recommendation on the own motion matter.
Board for the final decision.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

d to a Referee to be
80-7950 presently
evidence on the ex-
nd issue an appeal-
or not claimant's
to his industrial
the Referee is to
and, together with
submit such to the

m

DAVE R. HIEBERT, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion. Determination

Own Motion 81 0115M
May 11, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on December 17, 1979, reopening claimant's claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of June 20, 1955.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that’claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from. January 22', 1980 through February 18,
1981 and an additional award of 5% loss of the right leg.•

• The evidence of record indicates that claimant is 78 years of
age and has not been employed for a number of years. Therefore,
we disagree with that portion of Evaluation's recommendation on
temporary total disability. We find claimant is not entitled to
compensation for temporary total disability. The Board does'agree
that claimant is entitled to an additional award of 5% loss of the
right leg.

IT IS SO ORDERED. -36-
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RONALD CARTER, CLAIMANT 
Evohl Malagon, Claimant's Attorney. 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Reouest for Review by-Cl airnant 

I 
I 

WCB 80-01183 
May· 12, 1981 

Heviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 
I 

The claiiant seeks Board 
affirmed the carrier's.denial 
occurring on Ja~uary 7,. 1980. 

; 

review I of the Referee's order which 
of_ his claim for an alleged injury 

I . 

I 
- I 
The issue before us is compensability. 

. I 

Clairnant_alleges that on Januart 7, 1980 he sustained an in­
jury to his neck and ankle when he fell from a veneer cart to the 
catwalk. At the time of the injury,lcilaima~~ was engaged in _ 
horseplay with Torn Price, a fellow e~plo~ee. Claimant finished 
his shift without reporting the inci~~nt to anyo~e. The following. 
morning he saw Dr. Mason with complaints of pain and stiffness in 
the neck. Dr. Mason found limitatioh of neck movement and muscle 
spasm·. He r ecornme nded physical therapy, muse le relaxants and a 
cervical collar. Dr. Ma son found claimant Is cond it iori -was work 
rela~ed based on claimant's history~ I -

The outcdm~ of.this case basica~ly hinges on claimant's erect-· 
ibility. The Referee, in his order ii stated: 

. • I . 
I . 

"Taken as a whole, however 1, the contradictions in tne 
testi~ony and other inconsistenci~s in the record do 
raise a question as ~o theiclaimant's credibility. He 
begins, of course, as do a!l.l witnesses, with a presurnp-

. tion of truthfulness. I fbund nothing in his demeanor 
I • 

and.manner of testifying tb make me doubt his honesty, 
but.that wai al~o true of bther witnesses.~ · 

I 

We find that although the Referee a~p~~entiy found claimant not 
credible, he fails to do so unequivdcally. Gener~lly, ~nder 
Hannan v. ·Good Samaritan Hospitai,·.4; Or. App. i78, we should give 
weight to the findings of the Referee who saw and heard the wit­
n~·sses. The Referee, in this case, [actually felt claimant was do­
ing his be st to give honest answers., But because there were so m­
any inconsistencies in the record, ~e found against claimant on 
credibility. We find that there is 1a logical and reasonab_le ex­
planation for most of the inconsist~ncies ~nd that claimant's tes-
tim6ny was credible. 

----------------~--~ 
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RONALD CARTER, CLAIMANT
Evohl Malagon, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by'Claimant

WCB 80-01183
May'12, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCaliister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review
affirmed the car r ier ' s denial of. his
occurring on January 1, 1980.

of the Referee’s order which
claim for an alleged injury

The issue before us is compensability.

Claimant_alleges that on January 7, 1980 he sustained an in­
jury to his neck and ankle when he fell from a veneer cart to the
catwalk. At the time of the injury,|claimant was engaged in
horseplay with Tom Price, a fellow employee. Claimant finished
his shift without reporting the incident to anyone. The following
morning he saw Dr. Mason with complaints of pain and stiffness in
the neck. Dr. Mason found limitation of neck movement and muscle
spasm. He recommended physical therapy, muscle relaxants and a
cervical collar. Dr, Mason found claimant's condition was work
related based on claimant's history.

The outcome of.this case basically hinges on claimant's cred'
ibility. The Referee, in his order,| stated:

I ■
"Taken as a whole, however', the contradictions in the
testimony and other inconsistencies in the record do
raise a question as to the| claimant's credibility. He
begins, of course, as do all witnesses, with a presump­
tion of truthfulness. I found nothing in his demeanor
and,manner of testifying to make me doubt his honesty,
but that was also true of other witnesses."

m

We find that although the Referee apparen
credible, he fails to do so unequivodally
Hannan v. Good Samaritan Hospital, .4; Or.
weight to the findings of the Referee who
nesses. The Referee, in this case, jactua
ing his best to give honest answers.j But
any inconsistencies in the record, he fou
credibility. We find that there is a log
planation for most of the inconsistencies
timony was credible.

tly found claimant not
. Generally, under
App. 178, we should give
saw and heard the wit-
lly felt claimant was dO'
because there were so m
nd against claimant on
ical and reasonable ex-
and that claimant's tes

-37-
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the most significant-inconsistency in the record 
involves the history of claimaht's accident. No co-worker actu­
ally :saw claimant fall; although they d~d witness the horseplay 
with Tom Price. Even Torn turned away from claimant for about a 
minute at the time claimant fell. Claimant felt he probably was 
sitting down for about 30 seconds. -w~ find the testimony of both 
men to be believable on this point and consistent with each other. 
Claimant•s·Form 801, signed on January 14, 1980, indicated he 
11 ••• jumped up on the veneer cart and fell back onto the catwalk." 
His taped testimony, given to an investigator for the carrier on 
January 21, 1980, indicated he jumped on the cart and twisted his 
ankle on the catwalk when he came·down. He stated-he landed with 
his-buttocks on the cart. It is this testimony wnich the carrier 
and the Referee find so incriminating. All other accounts of the 
accident, including those given by claimant at the hearing and to 
Dr. Mason, are in total agreement with the statemen_t on the Form 
801. The Referee felt the accident was most fresh in claimant's 
mind when he gave his state~ent on January 21 ~s opposed to what 
he remembered at the' hearing. The Referee chose to believe the 
account -0f the inj~ry given on the tape and felt the doctor 1 s con­
clusion might.have been different had he know claimant landed on 
the cart. We find the history of claimant's injury has been to­
tally consistent throughout with the possible exception of the ta­
ped interview. Even that seems to be just an elaboration of the 
more brief version given on other occasions. Claimant ~tated he 
twisted his ankle on the catwalk and fell to the cart on his but­
tocks. We don't find this inconsistent with the statement 
" ••• fell back onto' the catwalk." 

Much time was spent at the hearing on the testimony that 
claimant was seen driving a load of cedar bolts on two occasions 
(January 12 and 20). On the taped interview cl~imant indicated he 
transported a load of cedar bolts only on January 20. The man who 
gave claimant -the cedar bolts, Steven Carnes, testified he loaded 
them onto claimant's truck. Claimant also stated this is what 
happened on the tape. _Claimant indicated his father-in-law un­
loaded the bolts at the_ end of his trip. Claimant admitted to 
driving a load of cedar sawdust on January 12. The employer's 
witnesses testified that they saw claimant driving loads of cedar 
bolts on the~e two occasions. No one saw him ·1oad 6r unload the 
bolts, nor was there any testimony to _tha~ effect. Tne· Referee is 
concerned that when claimant was asked what activities he did 
while he was off work for two weeks after the injury, he indicated 
he wai generally inactive except for cutting some firewood, doing 
some dishes and running a few errands. We do not find driving a 
truck twice in two weeks to be particularly active. Workers who· 
are permanently ~nd totally disabled can drive trucks. We don't 
find it inconsistent that _claimant failed to.mention this when 
asked about his activities. On rebuttal, he did indicate he 
hauled cedar bolts on January 20. Actually, the whole discussion 
is immaterial to the issue of whether an injury occurred on Janu­
ary, 7, 1980, expect as it relates to claimant's credibility. 
Claimant's activities after his injury are important in a discus­
sion of the extent of his disability, not for the issue of compen-

-~-~~i-~ i ty_. . ......... . -38-

Probably the most significant■inconsistency in the record
involves the history of claimant's accident. No co-worker actu­
ally saw claimant fall, although they did witness the horseplay
with Tom Price. Even Tom turned away from claimant for about a
minute at the time claimant fell. Claimant felt he probably was
sitting down for about 30 seconds. We find the testimony of both
men to be believable on this point and consistent with each other.
Claimant's Form 801, signed on January 14, 1980, indicated he
"...jumped up on the veneer cart and fell back onto the catwalk."
His taped testimony, given to an investigator for the carrier on
January 21, 1980, indicated he jumped on the cart and twisted his
ankle on the catwalk when he came down. He stated he landed with
his-buttocks on the cart. It is this testimony wnich the carrier
and the Referee find so incriminating. All other accounts of the
accident, including those given by claimant at the hearing and to
Dr. Mason, are in total agreement with the statement on the Form
801. The Referee felt the accident was most fresh in claimant's
mind when he gave his statement on January 21 as opposed to what
he remembered at the' hearing. The Referee chose to believe the
account of the injury given on the tape and felt the doctor's con­
clusion might.have been different had he know claimant landed on
the cart. We find the history of claimant's injury has been to­
tally consistent throughout with the possible exception of the ta­
ped interview. Even that seems to be just an elaboration of the
more brief version given on other occasions. Claimant stated he
twisted his ankle on the catwalk and fell to the cart on his but­
tocks. We don't find this inconsistent with the statement
"...fell back onto the catwalk."

Much time was spent at the hearing on the testimony that
claimant was seen driving a load of cedar bolts on two occasions
(January 12 and 20). On the taped interview claimant indicated he
transported a load of cedar bolts only on January 20. The man who
gave claimant the cedar bolts, Steven Carnes, testified he loaded
them onto claimant's truck. Claimant also stated this is what
happened on the tape. Claimant indicated his father-in-law un­
loaded the bolts at the end of his trip. Claimant admitted to
driving a load of cedar sawdust on January 12. The employer's
witnesses testified that they saw claimant driving loads of cedar
bolts on these two occasions. No one saw him load or unload the
bolts, nor was there any testimony to that effect. Tne Referee is
concerned that when claimant was asked what activities he did
while he was off work for two weeks after the injury, he indicated
he was generally inactive except for cutting some firewood, doing
some dishes and running a few errands. We do not find driving a
truck twice in two weeks to be particularly active. Workers who
are permanently and totally disabled can drive trucks. We don't
find it inconsistent that claimant failed to.mention this when
asked about his activities. On rebuttal, he did indicate he
hauled cedar bolts on January 20. Actually, the whole discussion
is immaterial to the issue of whether an injury occurred on Janu­
ary,?, 1980, expect as it relates to claimant's credibility.
Claimant's activities after his injury are important in a discus­
sion of the extent of his disability, not for the issue of compen­
sability.
---------- . - _3g_ ..............
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Tne Referee, in his order, indicated there were facts whicn, 
when view~d alone, ~ould support'=~iaima~t's claim. We agree, but 
would go one step further •. We find these facts, together with. · 
claimant's credible testimony, will ·support claimant's claim. 
Clijimant s~st4ined .~ neck ·sprain at ~6rk on januaty 7, 1980 which 
didn't really bother him unt{l he woke up stiff the ~ext morning. 
He immediately saw Dr. Mason and wasiput on- physical therapy, 
muscle relaxants and a cervical collar. The empioyer apparently 
knew of claimant's f~ll o~_January Yl~t the latest. The history 
is consistent, and Dr. Mason relates! the disability to claimant's 
work. Colvin v. SIAC, 197 ,Or. 401 (1953), states there is." •.. a 
firmly establ'ished rule that workmen f's cor~pensation acts are to be 
liberally. construed in favor of the workman." We find claimant 
has pro.ven by .a preponderance of thei evidence that he sustained, a 

. . • • I ' . 

compensaql~ injury on January 7, 198f· 

I 
ORDER 

I 

~ 
The ·order of the Refere~ dated October 10, 1980 is reversed. 

! 

Claimant's claim for an injury ~ustained on J~nuary 7, 1980 
is remanded to the SAIF Corporation ~for acceptance and payment of 
compensation· to which claimant is en1titled. · 

. . : : . f 

··Claimant's attorney ·is hereby irahted as a reasonable attor­
ney Is "fee. f·or .his services both at the hearing level and on Board 
re.view a sum· equal yo $800, payable \by th~· SAIF Corporation. 

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES: This or(der is final unless; within 
39~d~y~·after th~ date of mailin~ oi coiies of this brder to the 
pa,rties,· o_ne of the parties appeals ~to the Court of Appeals for 
judicial review-as ~rrivided by ORS ~56.298. 

----······ ... ; ..... -·-·· .... - . . . . . . 

·, 

. I 

l 

r. 
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Tne Referee, in his order, indicated there were
when viewed alone, would support^'claimaht's claim,
would go one step further.. We find these facts, tog
claimant's credible testimony, will support claimant
Claimant sustained a neck sprain at work on January
didn't really bother him until he woke up stiff the
He immediately saw Dr. Mason and waslput on physical
muscle relaxants and a cervical collar. The employe
knew of claimant's fall on January 91 at the latest,
is consistent, and Dr, Mason relates! the disability
work. Colvin v. SIAC, 197 Or. 401 (1953) , states th
firmly established rule that workmen|'s compensation
liberally construed in favor of the workman." We fi
has proven by a preponderance of the| evidence that h
compensable injury on January 7, 1980.

facts whicn,
We agree, but
ether with,
's claim.
7, 1980 which
next morning.
therapy,
r apparently
The history
to claimant's
ere is,"... a
acts are to be
nd claimant
e sustained- a

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 10, 1980 is reversed.

Claimant's claim for an injury sustained on January 1, 1980
is remanded to the SAIF Corporation for acceptance and payment of
compensation to which claimant is entitled.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as a reasonable attor­
ney's 'fee for his services both at the hearing level and on Board
review a sum equal to $800, payable jby the SAIF Corporation.

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES: This or|der is final unless^ within
30-days after the date of mailing of copies of this order to the
parties, one of the parties appeals |to the Court of Appeals for
judicial review as provided by ORS 656.298.

-39-



    
        
     
    
   

           
            
         

       

        
           
            

           
            
          
         

         
 

         
            
           
           
 

         
          

     

   

   
    
    
    
    
   

  
  

             
          
          
   

           
         
       

CLARK, CLAIMANT 
'Mal~gon, Velure & Yates, Claimant's Attorneys 
Wis~all & Svoboda, Defense Attorneys 
SAIF CORP Legal, Defense Attorneys 
Order on Reconsidefatinn 

WCB 78-07194 
May 12,1981 

The Board" issued its Order on Review in the above enc i tled 
.matter on April 15, 1981. By cover letter dated April 21, l9til 
the Board received from.claimant's attorney a 'Motion· for ·ttecon­
sideration crintending that claimant's aggravation claim is.compen­
sable. 

After giving due consideration to this motion the Board con­
cludes that its original decision in its Order on Review was· 
proper. Dr. Streitz, the treating physician, ·if all he had to yo· 
on was claimant's history to him~ could have based his opinion 
upofi that history •. His not doing so_carries some weight. If the 
doctor who treats claimant cannot state a direct relationship then 
claimant's lay testimony must fail. Because the initial injury 
was classified as non-disabling, medical proof· of a relationship 
is vital. · 

In claimant's Motion to Reconsider he states that cla1manc 
meets her burd~n of proof in an aggravation claim when the evi­
dence 11 as a whole"· shows -a worsening of the claimant 1 s condition. 
The evidence "as a whole" does not sustain claimant's bur<.:1en in 
this case. · 

. ·c1aimant•s request that her aggravation claim be accsptea is 
hereby denied.. The Board's Order on Review dated Apri-1 15, · 1981 
is reaffirmed in its entirety~ 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

r,ERALI) C. FREEMAN, CLAIMANT 
Gal ton, Popick· & Scott, tlaimant's Attorneys 
SAif Corp Legali Defense Attorn~vs 
Lang, Klein et al,' Attorneys 
Rankin, McMurray et al, Attorneys 
Amended Own Motion Order 

~JCS 78:..07527 
May 12, 1981 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 25, 1981 in 
th~ ab~ve entitled matter. In that order the Board inadvertantly 
omitted an attorney fee to claimant 1 s .attorney. Our Own Motion 
Order i~ amended accordingly. 

ORDER 

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a sum of 25% of the 
increased compensation granted by our order for temporary total 
disability not to exceed the sum of $750. 

-40-
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JUANITA CLARK. CLAIMANT WCB 78 07194
Malaqon, Velure &  ates, Claimant's Attorneys May 12,1981
Wiswall & Svoboda, Defense Attorneys
SAIF CORP Leqal, Defense Attorneys
Order on Reconsideration ■

The Board' issued its Order on Review in the above encitled
matter on April 15, 1981. By cover letter dated April 21, 1981
tne Board received from claimant's attorney a ^Motion for -Recon­
sideration contending that claimant's aggravation claim is compen­
sable.

After giving,due consideration to this motion the Board con­
cludes that its original decision in its Order on Review was
proper. Dr. Streitz, the treating physician, 'if all he had to go
on was claimant's history to him, could have based his opinion
upon that history. His not doing so carries some weight. If the
doctor who treats claimant cannot state a direct relationship then
claimant's lay. testimony must fail. because the initial injury
was classified as non-disabling, medical proof pf a relationship
is vital.

In claimant's Motion to Reconsider he states that claimant:
meets her burden , of proof in an aggravation claim when the evi­
dence "as a whole"' shows a worsening of the claimant's condition.
The evidence "as a whole" does not sustain claimant's burden in
this case.

Claimant's request that her aggravation claim be acceptea is
hereby denied. The Board's Order on Review dated April 15, 1981
is reaffirmed in its entirety.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

r^ERALD C. FREEMAN, CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al, Attorneys
Rankin, McMurray et al, Attorneys
Amended Own Motion Order

WCB 78 07527
May 12, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 25 , 1981 in
the above entitled matter. In that order the Board inadvertantly
omitted an attorney fee to claimant’s .attorney. Our Own Motion
Order is amended accordingly.

ORDER

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a sum of 25% of the
increased compensation granted by our order for temporary total
disability not to exceed the sum of $750.

-40-
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I.. LOWRY, CLAIMANT . 
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal·, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review_ by Carrier · 
Cross Reauest·by·c1aimant 

. ' , ·. . . . 'I 

WCB 79-06008 
May 12, 1981 

- . Reviewe"d by. ·Board members· McCa.illister and Lewis. 
. . I . 

. The SAIF Corporat.ion _(SAIF) see'k~ review and the claimant re­
quests review of the Referee's orde~ ~hich granted claimant 288° 
for 90% unscheduled disabi_lity. Th~ SAIF contends that the award 
i~· .excessive. Cl~imant contends he fis permanently and totally 
d1·sabled. We modify the Referee's order. 

The evidenc~ in this case indidates that claimant is 59 years 
of age with a si~th grade education land most.of ~is past working 
experience has been in heavy work. !At the time of this injury, 
October 9, 1978, claimant was operating a small sawmill. He fell 
int~ a con~eyoi and in~ured his mid ~~ck.· 

The original diagnosis was sprain of mid and low .back. On 
October 26 1 "1978, Dr. Bert diagnose~ compression. fracture thoracic 
spine, cont~ijion elbqws, hips and lumbar· spine.. . · . I . 

On May 30, 1979 Dr. Bert found 1cl~imant 1 s condition medically 
stationary and in9icated that claimant was precluded from his reg-
ular occupation. 11 

0 J 1 3 19 7 9 . . -_ 0 d . d 1 . 
n u y , .a De~erm1nat1on r er grante c a1mant an 

award of 64° 'for 26% unscheduled di~ability. 
I I . 

On.January 9, 1980 Dr. Bert reported that claimant was cap-
able of per~orming light to light mdderate·work with no heavy 
lifting or lifting over 20 pounds r~petit"ively, no prolonged:. 
standing or sitti"ng, .and he should be able to change positions as 
ne'eded .. .The doctor found claimant had "some residual pain and 
limitat:ion of motion around.the dam~ged joint in l?is spine." 

For this injury claimant no loriger requires active medical 
treatment but does take medication.: He has had no hospitalization 
and no surgery. i 

--·----· ... ·····---,.-~ase'a-·on·--·1::}1~e- abo've""e'v":i.'2i'ence th~ Boa rd concludes 'that Claimant 
ha·s ·failed to prove permanent total icttsability. · "v!e f~r~her. 
conclude the Referee's award of ·90%runscheduled d1sab1llty 1s ex­
cessive. Claimant has declined any i job placement assistance from 
vocational rehabilit~iion personnell Although he appears motiva­
ted to return ·to some occupation; hd testified he will not wori 
for.anyone else and wants to run his own business. We conclude 
claimant·would be adequately compen~ated for his loss of wage 
earning 'capacity 'from this i ndus tr i-~l injury by an award of 60 % 
unschedu'led·disability. ! 

I 

I 

ORDER 
I 

' 
Th~ aider 6£ the Referee datediSeptember 15, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 192° for 60% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in·lieu of all prior awards. 

· · ------------•- ---------- --- ---- ----;:--··- ----;;--- - --- . - . ----------· :::·41-=.--:----··· ------·--· - -- - --- --..... ------ ·--c------- -- •-·-- -
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PAUL L. LOWR , CLAIMANT
Rolf, Olson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review, by Carrier
Cross Request by Claimant

Reviewed by Board members

WCB 79-06008
May 12, 1981

McCalliister and Lewis.

.The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks review and the claimant re­
quests review of the Referee's order| which granted claimant 288°
for 90% unscheduled disability. The SAIF contends that the award
is excessive. Claimant contends he |is permanently and totally
disabled. We modify the Referee's order.

The evidence in this case indicates that claimant is 59 years
of age with a sixth grade education |and most of his past working
experience has been in heavy work. |At the time of this injury,
October 9, 1978, claimant was operating a small sawmill. He fell
into a conveyor and injured his mid back.

The original diagnosis was sprain of mid and low.back. On
October 26, 1978, Dr. Bert diagnosed compression fracture thoracic
spine, contusion elbows, hips and lumbar spine. , ‘ .

On May 30, 1979 Dr. Bert found [claimant's condition medically
stationary and indicated that claimant was precluded from his reg­
ular occupation.

On July
award of 64°

On

3, 1979,a Determination Order granted claimant
for 20% unscheduled disability. .

an

--. January 9, 1980 Dr. Bert reported that claimant was cap­
able of performing light to light moderate work with no heavy
lifting or lifting over 20 pounds repetitively, no prolonged
standing or sitting, .and he should be able to change positions as
needed.. .The doctor found claimant had "some residual pain and
limitation of motion around the damalged joint in his pain

spine

For this injury claimant no longer requires active medical
treatment but does take medication. He has had no hospitalization
and no surgery.

.Based on the above evidence the Board concludes that claimant
has failed to prove permanent total[disability. We further
conclude the Referee's award of 90%[unscheduled disability is ex­
cessive, Claimant has declined any[job placement assistance from
vocational rehabilitation personnel; Although he appears motiva­
ted to return to some occupation, he testified he will not work
for anyone else and wants to run his own business. We conclude
claimant would be adequately compensated for his loss of wage
earning'capacity from this indus tr i-al inj ury by an award of 60%
unscheduled disability. !

. '
' ■ ORDER

I ' .
The order of the Referee datediSeptember 15 , ,1980 is modified

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 192° for 60% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in lieu of all prior av^rds,

I 
I 

I 

. ' . 



     
  

        
         

          
        

     

        
         

          
        

    

          
       
          
         

         
              
         
           
 

  
    
  

   
  

        
        
        
           
          

  

         
         
          

           
            
         
            
         
 

~J. MAYNARD, CLAIMANT 
Order 

WCB 75-01093 
Maj 12, 1981 

Claimant sustained a compensaole injury in 1969. His aggra­
vation righ·ts have expired; his continued entitlement to workers' 
compensation benefits would either be pursuant to the Board's own 
motion· jurisdictio~, ORS 656.278, or pursuant to the voluntary 
payment o,f the employer/ccl;rrier, ORS 656.018 (4) .. 

The -Tra~elers Insurance Companies submitted a disputed claim 
settlernerit eiecuted by i~s repres~ntative and claimant to the 
Board for approvai. Board approval is appropriate because of the 
expirati'on of claimant's aggravation rights. Joseph Dav.is, own 
Motion Order, March 13, 1981. 

The Board had questions about whether to ·approve the disputed 
claim settlement and thus called the Travelers re.presentative. · 
Our concerns bec~rne moot upon being told that Travelers had al­
::eady paid the amount provided in the disputed claim sett ~,::ment. 

ORDER 

The disputed claim settlement executed by the parties on 
April 14, 1981, a copy of which is attached to tnis Order, is not 
approved by the Board. Travelers payment to claimant is recog-

-

nized by the Board as a volunt~ry payment pursuant to QRS A 
.656.018(4). W 

BARBARA PANr,LE, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney · 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0024M 
May 12, 1981 

'i'"he claimant sustained a' compe.nsable left arm _{nfu'r·;, ·oc'tober 
12, 1973; her aggravation rights have expired. Claimant's contin­
ued entitlement to workers' compensation benefits would be pursu­
a n t to the Bo a rd ' s . own mot i o n j u r i s d i c t i o o. , ORS 6 5 6 . 2 7 8 , t n. e med -
ical ser~ices statute, ORS 656.245, or ~oluntary payment ot tne 
employer/carrier, ORS 656.018{4). · 

The claimant has requested own motion relief, claiming that 
ner injury related condition has worsened since the lait arrange­
ment of compensation and subsequent to the Gxpiration of statutory 
aggravation rights .. In support of her t~~uest a medical repor~ 
date;?d March :25, 1981 has been submitted by lbchard K. Olney, M.D. 
Dr. Olney found "no absolutely objective abnormalities" by which 
he could document residual injury to the left elbow or lefc· ulnar· 
nerve. The claimant continues to receive conservative care by 
medication only. 

-42-

JAMES W. MA NARD, CLAIMANT
Order

WCB 75-01093
May 12, 1981

Claimant sustained a compensaoie injury in 1969. His aggra­
vation rights have expired; his continued entitlement to workers'
compensation benefits would either be pursuant to the Board's own
motion'jurisdiction, ORS 656.278, or pursuant to the voluntary
payment of the employer/carrier, ORS 656.018(4).,

The Travelers Insurance Companies submitted a disputed claim
settlement executed by its representative and claimant to the
Board for approval. Board approval is appropriate because of the
expiration of claimant's aggravation rights. Joseph Davis, Own
Motion Order, March 13, 1981,

The Board had questions about whether to approve the disputed
claim settlement and thus called the Travelers representative.
Our concerns became moot upon being told that Travelers had al­
ready paid the amount provided in the disputed claim settlement.

ORDER

The disputed claim settlement executed by the parties on
April 14, 1981, a copy of which is attached to tnis Order, is not.
approved by the Board. Travelers payment to claimant is recog­
nized by the Board as a voluntary payment pursuant to ORS
,656.018 (4).

#

BARBARA RANKLE, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0024M
May 12, 1981

The claimant sustained a compensable left arm.injury October
12, 1973; her aggravation rights have expired. Claimant's contin­
ued entitlement to workers' compensation benefits would be pursu­
ant to the Board's .own motion jurisdiction, ORS 656.278 , tne med­
ical services statute, ORS 656.245, or voluntary payment of tne
employer/carrier, ORS 656,018(4).

The claimant has requested own motion relief, claiming that
her injury related condition has worsened since the last arrange­
ment of compensation and subsequent to the expiration of statutory
aggravation rights. , In support of her request a medical report:
dated March 25,' 1981 has been submitted by Richard K. Olney, M.D.
Dr. Olney found "no absolutely objective abnormalities" by which
he could document residual injury to the left elbow or lefc' ulnar
nerve. The claimant continues to receive conservative care by
medication only.

-42-

-



           
         

           
            
          
         

           
         

      

         
          

   
    
     
    

   
  

            
        
          
            
      

          
        
           
           
         

       

          
         

              
       

            
         
           
           
            

          
         

      

       

carrier. by l·et ter dated Apr i)i 17, 1981 advised ti:1e Boa.rd, 
A "Continued medical treatment for the 'condition resulting from the 
9 injury for which this claim-was estadlished will b~ continued co 

be paid' under ·provisions of 656. 245. •ii The cair ier' opi;)Osed· an own 
mot ion .reopening because II it does not appear that the condition 
nas materially worsened since the la~t arrangement of compe~~a-
t'ion. 11 · I· · 

The Board finds the medical re·pjrt of Dr. Olney does not es­
tablish a material• worsening of the·c1aimant 1 s condition. We.are 
not per~uaded the claim· s_houTd be re6penect. 

. . . : ORDEJ . 

C~airnant's request for reope~inJ of her claim under the 
Board's own motion jurisdiction·i·s denied. . .. --- ... -•-··-

··~-- ----_----- -_------·---:--·----.... ______ ... ~--- .. --· · ... ~-·.·-c·:--·· ·- --,-~--- ··• .•. _ ...... -.-->-----·· --·- ---·- •. - .l.:. .. _ . -- .... -·-·---- .. --

ROBERT CLOSE, CLAIMANT 

I, 
• I 

Own Motion 81-0080M 
May 13, 1981 Evohl Malagon, C1aimant's Attorney 

SA IF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order on Reconsideration 

I . 
·rhe Board issued its Own Motion-Order on.April· 6, 1981 and 

denied claimant's r~ques~ f~r own md~ion relief. The Board's·de­
cision was bas~a- ori ihe report of t~e Oithopaedic Cons~ltants 
which fo~nd the torn· cartilage of the right knee-was not celated 
t~. claimant's August 19 7 2 left f_oot j burn·. . · 

The parties have the responsibi.l.ity to submit to tnis Bqard 
all relevant medical arid other evid~nce~ - Neither the SAIF.Corpor­
ation nor claimant's attorney in this case provided t~e Board with 
the Refere~•s µpinion and Order of January 21, 1980. ·rhe Board 
was·t~tally unaware that that orderl~ound claimant's-right leg 
condition compensable- and granted an award for same. . . I . 

On April 16, 1981, claimant's ~ttorney submitted a Motion for 
Reconsideration which informed the Board of the Ref er_.ee I s Op in1.on 
and Order but did not supply the ·so~rd.with a copy. A copy of 
that Opinion and Order was secured 1from SAIF •. 

. . . . . . . I . 
Now that our file is complete,1 the Board still· finds oased on 

the medical evidence ·submitted thatl the e·vidence 'is insufficient 
_to grant own motion reiief~ Dr~ W~lson di~gnosed a torn·medi~l . 
meniscus of the right knee, and his only- mention of causal · 
relattonship is b~sed o~ the histo~y given to- him by claimant. In 
the face. of contrary opinions of Dr1. Norton., SAIF I s consultant, 
and the Orthopaedic Consultants, w~ still find the evidence 
insufficient and deny claimant's r~que~t for relief. 

'.. ' . ·1. 
~ ~---·· _ -~---,--c--I.T_I.S_,s_Q ___ QRDEaRD., .. : ___________ . ·· , f· :·· ·· --- ... 

,, 

' 

I 
-43L 
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The carrier by letter dated Aprifl 17, 1981 advised tne Board,
"Continued medical treatment for the condition resulting from the
injury for which this claim was established will be continued to
be paid under provisions of 656.245. "i The carrier opposed an own
motion reopening because "it does not appear that the condition
nas materially worsened since the last arrangement of compenS;a-
t'ion."

The Board finds the medical report of Dr. Olney does not es­
tablish a material' worsening of the claimant's condition. We.are
not persuaded the claim should be reopened.

or eJ

Claimant's request for reopening of her claim under tne
Board's own motion jurisdiction’is denied. _ _ _ _ _

m

m

ROBERT CLOSE, CLAIMANT
Evohl Malaqon, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order on Reconsideration

Own Motion 81 0080M
May 13, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 6, 1981 and
denied claimant's request for own motion relief. The Board's'de­
cision was based on the report of the Orthopaedic Consultants
which found the torn cartilage of the right knee was not related
to claimant’s August 1972 left foot burn.

The parties have the responsibility to submit to tnis Board
all relevant medical and other evidence. Neither the SAIF.Corpor­
ation nor claimant's attorney in this case provided the Board with
the Referee's Opinion and Order of January 21, 1980. The Board
was totally unaware that that ocderjfound claimant ’s*righc leg
condition compensable and granted an award for same.

On April 16, 1981, claimant's attorney submitted a Motion for
Reconsideration whicn informed the Board of the Referee's Opinion
and Order but did not supply the Board with a copy. A copy of
that Opinion and Order was secured from SAIF.

Now that our file is complete,] the Board still finds cased bn
the medical evidence submitted thaO the evidence is insufficient
to grant own motion relief. Dr. Wijlson diagnosed a torn medial
meniscus of the right knee, and his only mention of causal
relationship is based on the histor|y given to him oy claimant. In
the face of contrary opinions of Dr. Norton, SAIF's consultant,
and the Orthopaedic Consultants, we still find the evidence
insufficient and deny claimant's request for relief.

______TT TS SO QRDF.RRn_______ .. .L-- ....... ................ . ...
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G. DOUGHTY, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion:·Qrd~r · · · 

Own Motion 81-0118.M 
May 13, ~981 

Documentatio~ s~bmitted by the SAIF Corporation indicates 
claimant requests the Board· to exercise its own ~otion jurisdic­
tion, pursu_ant to ORS 656. 278 and reopen his claim. for a worsened 
condition related to his indus~rial injury of April 5, 1974 .• 

In support of· claimant's request was a medical report .·~nd 
opinion f.r:om Dr. Tongue. This report indicates c.laimant- was to be 
hospitalized ·for tne recommended surgery on April 29, ·1981. ... 

~he Board concl~des th~t claimant's claim should be reopened 
from the date of hospitalization and until closure.is indicated 
pur~uant to ORS 656.278. · 

IT IS SU ORDE~ED. 

JOHN W. JOHNSON, CLAIMANT 
Mark Schiveley, ..Claimant I s Attorney 

·. SAIF Corp Leg·a 1 , Defense Attorney 
Order Denying Dismissal 

WCB 79-03695 
May 13, 1981 

' The SAH~ Corporation requested review of the Referee •s or-
der in the above entitled matter. On April ·2s, 1981 the Board re­
ceived from claimant's· attorney a Motion· t.:.i Dismiss the SAIF's ap­

-~eaf •. By lettet dated April 29, ~981 tne·sAiF responded that it 
was opposed to ciaimant's motion. 

After giving due consideration to this matter the Board de­
nies claimant's .Motion to Dismiss· and does not find tl')e issues be­
fore the Board on appeal to be-moot. we.will proceed to review 
the record. 

·. Claimant's request for dismissal of the SAIF's appeal is 
denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-44-

.. 

EUGENE G. DOUGHT , CLAIMANT
SAIF Corn Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion: Order

Own Motion 81 0118M
May 13, 1981 m

Documentation submitted by the SAIF Corporation indicates
claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion jurisdic­
tion, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim, for a worsened
condition related to his industrial injury of April 5, 1974..

In support of claimant’s request was a medical report and
opinion from Dr. Tongue. This report indicates claimant was to be
hospitalized for tne recommended surgery on April 29, 1981.

The Board concludes that claimant's claim,should be reopened
from the date of hospitalization and until closure,is indicated
pursuant to ORS 656.278,

IT IS SO ORDERED.

JOHN W. JOHNSON, CLAIMANT
Mark Schiveley,.,Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Dismissal

WCB 79 03695
May 13, 1981

The SAIF Corporation requested review of the Referee's or­
der in the above entitled matter. On April 28, 1981 the Board re­
ceived from claimant's attorney a Motion to Dismiss the SAIF's ap­
peal. By letter dated April 29, 1981 the SAIF responded that it
was opposed to claimant's motion.

After giving due consideration to this matter the Board de­
nies claimant's Motion to Dismiss and does not find the issues be­
fore the Board on appeal to be moot. We.will proceed to review
the record.

. Claimant's
denied.

request for dismissal of the SAIF's appeal is

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-44-
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RONALD MOORE," CLAIMANT 
Malagon, Velure & Yate~, Claimant's 

. Keith ·o. Skelton, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Employer 

. : 

AttoJneys 
t 

I 

WCB 80-00659 
May 13, 1981 

I 
Reviewed by Board members Mccallister and Lewis. 

i 
The employer seeks 'Board review:of that portion of the· Ref­

eree •s order which 6rdered it to paylclaimant for mileage ·expenses 
incurred in connection with his trips to see Dr. Sharell Tracey. 
The Board concurs. with the conclusioA reached by the Referee. 

• • • I • 

, I 
The Board, however,· notes that the Referee, in granting 

claimant's attorney a fee out of theicompensation for temporary 
total disability, also granted him·an award of 25% out of any sub­
sequent award fo~ permanent partial disability granted by the Ev­
aluation Division. That portion of ~he attorney fe~ relacing.to 
future awards of perman~nt partial disability is· disallowed and 
reversed. · . I · 

I 
ORDER 

' I 
The order of the Referee dated pctober 24, 1980 is modified. 

I 
That portion of the Referee's order granting claimant's at­

torney 25% of any subsequent award o~ ~ermanent partial disability 
by Evaluation Diviiion i• rever~ed. j 

. . The remainder of the Referee's brder is affirmed in its en-,. 
t ir.el,y ~ 

.. Claimant 1 s ~ttor.ney is granted las and for a reasonable at­
torney fee• for his representation atl this Boartd- r·eview the sum of 
$250, payable by the employer/car r ie:r. · · 

-----.---•. --·---·---·--.-. ··----·~--- -·• •. ···•. --·--•· ·--·· ,' --1 . .' --·-··.····" 

• 

JAMES NEWBERRY, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

' 

Own Motion 81-0ll0M 
May 13, 1981 

_\ 

Claimant requests the Board to iexercise its ow·n motion jur is-
diction, pursuant to'ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related· to ·his. indu~tr ial injury of October 26, 
l~ 51. ! 

I 

The medical evidence submitted_; in support of claimant's re­
quest indicates Dr. Golden hospitalized him on January 28, 1981. 
The. Board concludes that claimant's r claim .should oe re·opened as of 
the date of this ·hospitalization and until closure is authorized 

• • I 

pursuant to ORS 656.278. : 

r·r IS so ORDERED. 
,-- ---··----- ----.-- . ~ - : . - -. . -·-
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RONALD MOORE, CLAIMANT
Mai agon, Velure &  ates, Claimant's Attorneys
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Attorney t
Request for Review by Employer I

WCB 80-00659
May 13, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

The employer seeks 'Board review,of that portion of the Ref­
eree's order which ordered it to payiclaimant for mileage expenses
incurred in connection with his trips to see Dr. Sharell Tracey.
The Board concurs, with the conclusion reached by the Referee.

The Board, however, notes that the Referee, in granting
claimant's attorney a fee out of theicompensation for temporary
total disability, also granted him an award of 25% out of any sub­
sequent award for permanent partial disability granted by the Ev­
aluation Division. That portion of the attorney fee relating,to
future awards of permanent partial disability is disallowed and
reversed.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 24, 1980 is modified.

That portion of the Referee's order granting claimant's at­
torney 25% of any subsequent award of permanent partial disability
by Evaluation Division is reversed. |

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed in its en­
tirety.

Claimant's attorney is granted as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee for his representation at[ this Boartd review the sum of
$250, payable by the employer/carrief.

JAMES NEWBERR , CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 OllOM
May 13, 1981

Claimant requests the Board tcjexercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of October 26,
1951.

j
The medical evidence submitted,in support of claimant's re­

quest indicates Dr. Golden hospitalized him on January 28, 1981.
The Board concludes that claimant's|claim should be reopened as of
the date of this hospitalization and until closure is authorized
pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-45-
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OLSON, CLAIMANT 
Coons & Hall, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Car~ Leqal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Referrin~ for Hearin~ 

Own Motion 81-0048M 
May 13, 1981 

The claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board 
to exercise ·its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, 
and reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his in­
dustrial injury of February 25, 1955. Claimant's aggravation 
rights have expired. 

After reviewing the record before us, the Board feels that in 
the int~rests of all parties concerned, this case should be c-efer­
red to a Referee and a hearing held. 

The Referee is to hold a hearing to determine whether or not 
claimant 1 s condition related to his February 1~55 industrial tn­
jury has worsened and whether or not he is entitled to compensa­
tion for temporary total disability, or in the alternative, what 
is the extent of claimant's permanent disability. At the close of 
the hearing the Referee shall cause a transcript of the proceed­
ings to be ~ade and, together with his recommendation, submit such 
to the Board for its final decision. 

IT IS SO"ORDERED. 

TERRY RIDDLE, CLAIMANT 
Malaqon, Velure & Yates, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order on Reconsideration 

WCB 79-08182 
May 13, 1981 

The Board issued its Order on Review on April 28, 1981 in tne 
above entitled matter. On May 5, 1981 claimant's attorney reques­
ted reconsideration of that order. 

The Board, after recon~idering this case, affirms its orig­
inal order. The medical evidence indicates that upon examination 
there was fUll range of motion of claim~nt's left knee, no- effu­
sion, no instability, x-rays of th~ knee were normal and the only 
finding was subjective.complaints of pain'which was· not dis­
abling. The Board finds that there is no proof of any loss of use 
or function greater than the 10% awarded by the Determination Or­
der~ 

Claimant's request for an increased award is denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-46-

RICHARD OLSON, CLAIMANT
Coons & Hall, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Referrinq for Hearinq

Own Motion 81-0048M
May 13. 1981

The claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board
to exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278,
and reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his in­
dustrial injury of February 25, 1955. Claimant's aggravation
rights have expired.

After reviewing the record before us, %he Board feels that in
the interests of all parties concerned, this case should be refer­
red to a Referee and a hearing held.

. The Referee is to hold a hearing to determine whether or not
claimant's condition related to his February 1955 industrial in­
jury has worsened and whether or not he is entitled to compensa­
tion for temporary total disability, or in the alternative, what
is the extent of claimant's permanent disability. At the close of
the hearing- the Referee shall cause a transcript of the proceed­
ings to be made and, together with his recommendation, submit such
to the Board for its final decision.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

TERR RIDDLE, CLAIMANT
Malaqon, Velure &  ates, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order on Reconsideration

WCB 79 08182
May 13, 1981

The Board issued its Order on Review on April 28, 1981 in tne
above entitled matter. On May 5, 1981 claimant's attorney reques­
ted reconsideration of that order.

The Board, after reconsidering this case, affirms its orig­
inal order. The medical evidence indicates that upon examination
there was full range of motion of claimant's left knee, no effu­
sion, no instability, x-rays of the knee were normal and the only
finding was subjective complaints of pain'which was not dis­
abling. The Board finds that there is no proof of any loss of use
or function greater than the 10% awarded by the Determination Or­
der .

Claimant's request for an increased award is denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-46-
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SIMMONS, CLAIMANT 
Coons & Hall, Attorneys for Claimant 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

_I 

I 

Own Motion 81-0lOOM 
May 13, 1981 

Claimanc, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction,' pursuant to ORS 656. 278, and 
t:eopen his claim for a worsened condi!tion related to his indus­
trial injury of August 4, 1971. Claimant's aggravation rights 
have expired. l 

The Board finds the medical repdrt subrnitte9 in support of 
claimant's position to reopen is insJfficient. ·Dr. Cassell recom­
mends only conserya tive care. an9 the to~ thopaedi'c Consul tan:.s re~ . 
port of March 12, 1981 finds no wors~n1ng. By letter dated Apr1.l 
17, 19til the SAIF Corporation indicated that it opposed an·y re­
opening. or additional benefits because claimant's condition was 
unchanged. ./ 

' 
The Board concludes the evidenc~ is insufficient to support a 

claim ieopening and, therefore, clai~ant 1 s request for own motion 
relief is denied. · ! 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
--- ---·----------------- - .. 

KENNETH L. -ELL IOTT, CLAIMANT i 
Emmons, Kyle et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
Lang, Klein et·a1, Defense Attorneys · 
Rohn F. Roberts, Defense Attorney 1 

Reau est for Review· by Emp 1 ayer -i 
I 

WCB 79-08090 and 79-04846 
May 14, 1981 

The employer, Stayton Auto Supply, seeks Board review of th~ 
Referee's or_der which ·found that_ claimant's condition represented 
an aggravation of his 1974 industri~l injury and remanded the 
claim· to it for acceptahce and paym~nt of benefit~ as provided -by 
law and ordered it to reimburse Farn'iers·Insurance Group for monies 
expended pursuant to the. 307 order. j We· reverse the Referee I s or-
der. , 

I 
Claimant was employed as a general laborer at Stayton Auto 

Supply and suffered a compensable low back injury on November 25, 
19 74. In March 19 75 claimant underwent surgery. His claim was 
closed by a Determination Order of April 13, 1979 which awarded 
him compensation for temporary totai disability only. Claimant 
appealed that ·oetermination Order and, ·after a hearing, by an 
Opinion and Order, a Referee grantea him 30.% unscheduled dis-
ability. . 

Claimant·returned to the same employment, but the ownership 
of the business changed and was nowl called Clayton Automotive. 
Claimant worked eight months before; the second industrial injury 
and worked 12 to 14 hour days. He missed no time from work due to 
his back arid was not under active medical care. 

···---·~-~--···~--~~- .---•-··- . ------·--· '---~,,-,-----~-·.---·-·-·--------~;- ... ----·-,•··· .. _. ___ .. ··-- .. -·---~-------
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CL DE SIMMONS, CLAIMANT
Coons & Hall, Attorneys for Claimant
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-OlOOM
May 13, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and
C0open his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of August 4, 1971. Claimant's aggravation rights
have expired. . !

The Board finds the medical report submitted in support of
claimant’s position to reopen is insufficient. Dr. Cassell recom­
mends only conservative care and the*Orthopaedic Consultants re­
port of March 12, 1981 finds no worsening. By letter dated April
17, 19yl the SAIF Corporation indicated that it opposed any re­
opening or
unchanged.

additional benefits because claimant's condition was

• .The Board concludes the evidence is insufficient to support a
claim reopening and, therefore, claimant's request for own motion
relief is denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

WCB 79 08090 and 79 04846
May 14, 1981

KENNETH L. ELLIOTT, CLAIMANT |
Emmons, Kyle et al, Claimant's Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Rohn F, Roberts, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

___ __ __
Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The employer, Stayton Auto Supply, seeks Board review of the
Referee's order which found that claimant's condition represented
an aggravation of his 1974 industrial injury and remanded the
claim to it for acceptance and payment of benefits as provided-by
law and ordered it to reimburse Farmers Insurance Group for monies
expended pursuant to
der .

the 307 order.1 We reverse the Referee's or-

Claimant was employed as a general laborer at Stayton Auto
Supply and suffered a compensable low back injury on November 25,
1974. In March 1975 claimant underwent surgery. His claim was
closed by a Determination Order of April 13, 1979 which awarded
him compensation for temporary total disability only. Claimant
appealed that Determination Order and, after a hearing, by an
Opinion and Order, a Referee granted him 30% unscheduled dis­
ability. .

Claimant returned to the same employment, but the ownership
of the business changed and was now! called Clayton Automotive.
Claimant worked eight months before! the second industrial injury
and worked 12 to 14 hour days. He missed no time from work due to
his back and was not under active medical care.

-47-
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second injury occurred on March 1, 1979 when claimant 
tripped and fell. Shortly thereafter he was hospitalized and has 
not returned to work. · 

The medical evidence indicates that Dr. Buza felt that the .fj 
Novemb~r .1974 injury was "aggravated" by the March 1979 injury 
which was not a "new injury." This was also the conclusion of the 
Orthqpaedic Consult~nts. On March 6, 1979 Dr. Goughn reiated 
claimant's diagnosed condition of chronic and acute lumbar strain 
~<?. ~-t!~. Ma~ ch 19 ~ 9. ~ nj ur:i.~ . . · 

The standard in Oregon for distinguishing aggravation and new 
injuries is set forth in Calder v. Hughes and Ladd, 23 Or. App. 
66, 541 P2d 152 (1975). This rule was affirmed in Smit·n.v. Ed's 
Pancake House, 27 Or. App. 361, 566. P2d 158 (1976), in which the 
court held that the.second injury supercedes.the first· if: 

11 ••• the second incident contributes independently to the 
injury, ••• even if the injury would have been much less 
severe in the absence of th_e prior condition, and even 
if the prior injury ,contributed the major part to the 
f i n al co nd i t ion • " 

The Court went on to say: 

11 If the second injury takes the form merely of a recur­
rence of the first, and if the second incident does not 
contribute even slighcly to the causation of the dis­
abling condition ••• 11 

then the first injury remains responsible. We find that tne sec­
ond injury did contribute more than slightly to claimant's dis­
abling condition. • Prior to the second injury he worked and worked 
overtime, missed no time from work and was not in need of. medical 
care. After the March 1, 1979 incident he required hospitaliza­
tion and has remained temporarily and totally disabled. · 

The Board concludes that claimant suffered a new industrial 
injury on March 1, 1979 while employed by Clayton Automotive. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated September 30, 1980 is reversed. 

Claimant's claim for -a new injury occurring on March l, l'::l7Y 
is remanded to Clayton Automotive and its carrier, Farmers Insur­
ance Group, for acceptance and payment of benefits as required by 
law until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.268. 

Scott Wetzel,· on behalf of Stayton Auto Supply, is to be reim­
bursed for all benefits paid pu-~suant to the Referee's order. 

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee 
the sum of $850 payable by Farmers Insurance Group for his repre­
sentation at the hearing. 

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee 
for his services at Board review the sum of $100, payable by Farm-
ers Insurance Group. ~48~ 

-•'~-

The second injury occurred on March 1, 1979 wnen claimant
tripped and fell. Shortly thereafter he was hospitalized and has
not returned to work.

The medical evidence indicates that Dr. Buza felt that the
November , 1974 injury was "aggravated" by the March 1979 injury
which was not a "new injury." This was also the conclusion of the
Orthopaedic Consultants. On March 6, 1979 Dr. Goughn related
claimant's diagnosed condition of chronic and acute lumbar strain
to the March 1979 injury.

The standard in Oregon for distinguishing aggravation and new
injuries is set forth in Calder v. Hughes and Ladd, 23 Or. App.
66 , 541 P2d 152 (1975). This rule was affirmed in Smith v. Ed *s

___ 27 Or. App. 361, 566 P2d 158 (1976) , in which the
that the.second injury supercedes . the first if;

Pancake House,
court held

"...the second incident contributes independently to the
injury, ...even if the injury would have been much less
severe in the absence of the prior condition, and even
if the prior inj ury ,contr ibuted the major part to the
final condition."

The Court went on to say;

"If the second injury takes the form merely of a recur­
rence of the first, and if the second incident does not
contribute even slight'ly to the causation of the dis­
abling condition..."

then the first injury remains respohsible. We find that the sec­
ond injury did contribute more than slightly to claimant's dis­
abling condition. • Prior to the second injury he worked and worked
overtime, missed no time from work and was not in need of. medical
care. After the March 1, 1979 incident he required hospitaliza­
tion and has remained temporarily and totally disabled.

The Board concludes that claimant suffered a new industrial
injury on March 1, 1979 while employed by Clayton Automotive.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 30, 1980 is reversed

Claimant's claim for -a new injury occurring on March 1, 1979
is remanded to Clayton Automotive and its carrier, Farmers Insur­
ance Group, for acceptance and payment of benefits as required by
law until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.268.

Scott Wetzel, on behalf of Stayton Auto Supply, is to be reim­
bursed for all benefits paid pursuant to the Referee's order.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee
the sum of $850 payable by Farmers Insurance Group fpr his repre­
sentation at the hearing.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a
for his services at Board review the sum
ers Insurance Group. ' - -48-

reasonable attorney fee
of $100, payable by Farm-
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CHRISTIAN P. HALO, CLAIMANT 
Donald M. Pinnock, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leqal, ·oefense Attorney· 
Reaue~ t for Review by SAI F 

• I 

I 

i 
I 

I 

I 

WCB 79-07480 
May 14, 1981 

Reviewed by Board m·embers McCall:ister and Lewis. 
! 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der whi6h granted claimant 224° for 1� % unscheduled neck and upper 
back disability. The SAIF contends that the award is excessive. 
We modify the· Referee I s order. i. 

The claimant in tnis case is a physician in family practice 
with pre-existing degenerative arthritis of the cervical spine who 
underwent a fusion in 1974. I 

.1 

On December 5, .1975, claimant, Jhile moving boxes, reared up 
and struck his neck and shoulder on filing racks. Subsequently 
claimant underwent· a cervical fusion: in November 19 76 and in Aug­
ust 1978 a laminectomy and forarninotorny at C4-5, CS-6, C6-7 and 
C 7-Tl levels·. 

Dr. Luce, who first treated claimant in 1974, testitied at 
the hearing that claimant's injury caused the nerve roots and 
spinal cord to be dragged down across that prior fixed area witn 
the fifth nerve root most rapidly in~olved. He further testified 
that. claimant had pre-existing and rkther advanced condition of 
bony deposit in the neck area and that was the reason for the 
first surgery in 1974. That condi~i8n would have progressed over 
a period of time, but the rate of prbgression after the December 
19 75 injury was far greater t_han onel would expect. It was Dr. 
L~ce's opinion that this kind of change would be unusual without 
trauma.· Claimant also had further l~ft arm atrophy after this in­
jury. 

In March 1979, Dr. Dunn rated Voss of us~ of the left upper 
extremity at 70%. · I 

I 

Dr. Schostal, who did not exam~ne claimant, reviewed _the med­
ical evidence and opined by a report of Marcp 28, 1980 that claim­
ant suffered no disability from the/December 1975 industrial in­
jury. He further elaborated by a r~port of July 28, 1980 that Dr. 
Luce claims c].aimant stretched the CS -nerve root and he strongly 
disagreed. Dr. Schostal felt-~hat ihe cause of clafmant's· dis­
ability was the progressive degenerative arthr'itic condition and 
·the. 19 74 fusion which accele_rated t~at degenera.ti~ __ e ___ ~_~_:>~.:.~~-.:.. __ ---·---•-·-

. . . . . . I 
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CHRISTIAN P. HALO, CLAIMANT
Donald M. Pinnock, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-07480
May 14, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which granted claimant 224° f'or 70% unscheduled neck and upper
back disability. The SAIF contends that the award is excessive.
We modify the Referee's order. j.

The claimant in tnis case is a physician in family practice
with pre-existing degenerative arthritis of the cervical spine who
underwent a fusion in 1974.

On December 5 , 19 75, claimant, v/hile moving
and struck his neck and shoulder on filing racks
claimant underwent a cervical fusioniin November
ust 1978 a laminectomy and foraminotomy at C4-5,
C7-T1 levels.

boxes, reared up
Subsequently

19 76 and in Aug-
C5-6, C6-7 and

Dr. Luce, who first treated claimant in 1974, testified at
the hearing that claimant's injury caused the nerve roots and
spinal cord to be dragged down across that prior fixed area witn
the fifth nerve root most rapidly involved. He further testified
that, claimant had pre-existing and rather advanced condition of
bony deposit in the neck area and that was the reason for the
first surgery in 1974. That condition would have progressed over
a period of time, but the rate of progression after the December
1975 injury was far greater than one| would expect. It was Dr.
Luce's opinion that this kind of change would be unusual without
trauma. Claimant also had further l|eft arm atrophy after this in­
jury.

In March 1979,
extremity at 70%.

Dr. Dunn rated ibss of use of the left upper

Dr. Schostal, who did not exami^ne claimant, reviewed .the med­
ical evidence and opined by a report of March 28 , 1980 that claim­
ant suffered no disability from the(December 1975 industrial in­
jury. He further elaborated by a report of July 28, 1980 that Dr
Luce claims claimant stretched the C5 nerve root and he strongly
disagreed. Dr. Schostal felt'that the cause of. claimant * s^ dis­
ability was the progressive degenerative arthritic condition and
the. 19 74 fusion which accelerated tl^at degenerative process.
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Board finds, based on ·the record, that there are two dis­
tinct versjons of causal relationship in evidence. With a clear 
overview, probably both are correct to a degree. This is the evi­
dence we must deal with. Claimant returned to his practice, al­
beit on a limited basis and with much less practicing of s~rgery 
and delivering·of ~abie~. ·claimant testified for this reason his 
practice has suffered in the loss of patients. Claimant is 59 
years of age. 

The Board concludes that the total awards granted by the De­
termination -Orders of 50% unscheduled disability adequately com-· 
pensate claimant· 'for his loss of wage earning capacity. However, 
the Board finds that the evidence also indicates some of the loss 
of use of the left upper extremity is caus~lly related by Dr. Luce 
to the surgeries performed after the December 1975 industrial in­
jury and· that portion of .such loss is compensable and entitles 
claimant to an award. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated October 14, 1980 is modified. 

The De~ermination Order of June 20, 1979 is affirmed. 

Claimant is granted.an award of 38.4° for 20% loss of the 
left arm. 

Claimant's attorney is granted as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee the sum of 25% of the compensation granted for loss of 
the scheduled member, not to exceed $400. 

NOEL D. JONES, CLAIMANT 
Bryan Peterson, Claimant's Attorney 
A. Thomas Cavanaugh; Defense Attorney 
Reouest for Review by Claimant 

WCB 79-08907 
May 14, 1981 

Reviewed by ~oard members Barnes and 'Lewis. 

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee 1 s order which 
"dismissed" his ca~e. Claimant conten~s he is permanentiy and to­
tally disabled, or in the alternative, is entitled to a greater 
award. We modify the Referee's order. 

First tne Board notes that the Referee "dismissed" claimant's 
case. This was improper. The Referee concluded claimant was not 
entitled to aDY greater award than that gr~nted by the Determina­
tion Order. The Determination Order should have been affirmed and 
the Re fer ee I s order· should have so stated. 

-50-
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The Board finds, based on the record, that there are two dis­
tinct versions of causal relationship in evidence. With a clear
overview, probably both are correct to a degree. This is the evi­
dence we must deal with. Claimant returned to his practice, al­
beit on a limited basis and with much less practicing of surgery
and delivering■of babies. Claimant testified for this reason his
practice has suffered in the loss of patients. Claimant is 59
years of age.

The Board concludes that the total awards granted by the De­
termination Orders of 50% unscheduled disability adequately com­
pensate claimant for his loss of wage earning capacity. However,
the Board finds that the evidence also indicates some of the loss
of use of the left upper extremity is causally related by Dr. Luce
to the surgeries performed after the December 1975 industrial in­
jury and that portion of such loss is compensable and entitles
claimant to an award.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 14, 1980 is modified.

The Determination Order of June 20, 1979 is affirmed.

Claimant is granted an award of 38.4° for 20% loss of the
left arm.

Claimant's attorney is granted as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee the sum of 25% of the compensation granted for loss of
the scheduled member, not to exceed $400.

NOEL D. JONES, CLAIMANT
Bryan Peterson, Claimant's Attorney
A. Thomas Cavanaugh; Defense Attorney
Reauest for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-08907
May 14, 1981

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and 'Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
"dismissed" his case. Claimant contends he is permanently and to­
tally disabled, or in the alternative, is entitled to a greater
award. We modify the Referee's order.

First the Board notes that the Referee "dismissed" claimant's
case. This was improper. The Referee concluded claimant was not
entitled to any greater award than that granted by the Determina­
tion Order. The Determination Order should have been affirmed and
the Referee's order should have so stated.

-50-
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Claimant has been employed ~ost bf his adult working life in 
the automotive field~ On February 11,, 1976 he bent over while 
working at Harrington Motor Company dnd something slipped in his 
back. The jnitial diagnosis was lumbosacral strain. Subsequently 
in December. 1976 Dr. Mason performed ja laminectomy. Claimant I s 
claim was closed by a Determination Order of January 7, 1977 which 
grahted him compensation for tempora~y total disability only. 

I 

, . d . \ . . 
Claimant move to Arizona and took an automotive teacn1ng Job 

which only last approximately six we~ks because he quit because 
there was too.much standirig •. 

The medical evidence indicates that claimant is precluded 
from ~l~ heavy labor occupations. Claimant is 63 years of age 
with ari eighth grade education. ·Thejevi6ence further indicatei 
that claimant has little or no motivation to return to worK and 
has, in essence, voluntarily retired.land .has b~en on iocial secur­
ity dis~bjlity, according to his testlirnony, since his industrial 
injury. · I 

After iss~ance of the DeterminaJion Order, the claim was re­
opened for treatment that claimant rJce·ived i·n Arizona- and Arkan­
sa·s. A second Deter mi nation Order was issued on July 12, 19 7 9 
which granteq claimant a~ award of 32° for 10% unscheduled disa­
bility. 

Based on a preponderance of evidence, the Board co_ncludes . 
that the award granted by the second! Determination Order inade-. 
q~ately compensates cl~imant for hisi .loss of wag_e _ea~ning capa­
city. However, the evidence does nbt support a f1nd1ng that 
6laimant is permanently and totally 8isabled. We find claimant is 

• . . I 

entitled to an award of 30%. · . i 
ORDER 

' 
I 

The order of the Referee dated joctob~r 3, 1980_is modifi~d. 

Claimant- is hereby granted an award of 96° for Joi unsched­
uled disabi'lity. This ·award is in llieu of all prior awards gran­
·ted .. 

I 

ctaimant's attorney is granted ias and for a reasonable at­
torney fee the sum of 25% of the increased compensation granted by 
th is o·rder, not to exceed $1,000. 

_,., ... ,.-----• •-•-i--• •---L••---------------;---••-•--· --------•• 0 - H--•-~---•• •••••• O. O •+ 
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Claimant has been employed most of his adult working life in
the automotive field. On February 11, 1976 he bent over while
working at Harrington Motor Company and something slipped in his
back. The initial diagnosis was lumbosacral strain. Subsequently
in December 1976 Dr. Mason performed |a laminectomy. Claimant's
claim was closed by a Determination Order of January 7, 1977 which
granted him compensation for temporary total disability only.

Claimant moved to Arizona and took an automotive teaching job
which only last approximately six weeks because he quit because
there was too much standing.. |

The medical evidence indicates that claimant is precluded
from all heavy labor occupations. Claimant is 63 years of age
with.an eighth grade education. Thejevidence further indicates
that claimant has little or no motivation to return to worK and
has, in essence, voluntarily retired land has been on social secur­
ity disability, according to his testimony, since his industrial
injury. ^

After issuance of the Determinalion Order, the claim was re­

opened for treatment that claimant received in Arizona-and Arkan­
sas. A second Determination Order was issued on July 12, 1979
which granted claimant an award of 32° for 10% unscheduled disa­
bility. . * ,

Based on a preponderance of evidence, the Board concludes
that the award granted by the secondl Determination Order inade­
quately compensates claimant for hisj loss of wage earning capa­
city. However, the evidence does not support a finding that
claimant is permanently and totally disabled. We find claimant is
entitled to an award of 30%.

t
ORDER

The order of the Referee dated jOctober 3, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 96° for 30% unsched­
uled disability. This award is in iieu of all prior awards gran­
ted,

Claimant's attorney is granted |as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee the sum of 25% of the increased compensation granted by
this order, not to exceed $1,000. I , .
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BRITZIUS, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order · 

Own Motion 81-0098M 
May 18, 1981 

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant ·to ORS 656. 278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his ind ustr ia l injury of N.ovember 2 0, 
197 2. 

The medical evidence indicates that claimant's condition has 
worsened, and he required medical care from Dr. Srnitn~ On Febru­
ary 23, 1981 he underwent a lumbar myeloyra;n which showe..:i u de­
fect. Dr. Smith felt that claimant's condition reµesented an ag.-
9 r av a ti on of tn e No v ember l ':l 7 L i n j u r y . 

The Boar-d concludes that claimant is entitled to have his 
claim reopened as ot February 23, 1981 and until closure is auth­
orized pur-suant to ORS 656.278. 

I'r IS SO ORD BRED. 

MICHAEL ELSE, CLAIMANT 
Roger Wallingford, Claimant's Attorney 
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorney 

-� wn Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0085M 
May 18. 1981 

Claimant, by and th rough his attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and 
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of February 12, 1973. Claimant's aggravation rights 
have expired. · 

Tne medical report from Dr. Carter indicates that claimant 
felt his cbndition was worsened and the worsening was in the form 
of increased pain. Dr. Caiter indicated that objectively there 
had been no significant change in claimant's back in terms of 
range of motiontor neurological examination. 

' Based on the report from It. Carter the Board concludes that 
the evidence·pr~sented in support of claimant's request is insuf­
ficient to sustain the contention that claimant's condition has 

-worsened related t6 his industrial injury. Claimant's request for· 
own motion relief. is -d~nie~. 

IT rs so ORDERED. 

-52-
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DAR L BRITZIUS. CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0098M
May 18, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656. 278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of November 20,
197 2,

The medical evidence indicates that claimant's condition has
worsened, and he required medical care from Dr, Smitn, On Febru­
ary 23, 1981 he underwent a lumbar myeloyrain which showea a de­
fect. Dr. Smith felt that claimant’s conaition represented an ay
gravation of the November 19 7 2 injury.

The Board concludes that claimant is entitled to have his
claim reopened as of February 23, 1981 and until closure is auth­
orized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

MICHAEL ELSE, CLAIMANT
Roger Wallingford, Claimant's Attorney
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0085M
May 18, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of February 12, 1973. Claimant’s aggravation rights
have expired.

The medical report from Dr. Carter indicates that claimant
felt his condition was worsened and the worsening was in the form
of increased pain. Dr. Carter indicated that objectively there
had been no significant change in claimant's back in terms of
range of motion/'or neurological examination.

>Based on the report from . Carter the Board concludes that
the evidence presented in support of claimant’s request is insuf­
ficient to sustain the contention that claimant's condition has
worsened related to his industrial
own motion relief.is denied.

injury. Claimant’s request for

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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WAYMON D. GAROUTTE, CLAIMANT ! 
Willner; Bennett, et al, C-laimant 1 s Attorneys 

· Lary9, Klein et ·al, Defense Attorneys ; 
Reauest for Review by Claimant I 

I 
. . I 

WCB 79-11021 
May 18, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis. 
I 
! 

_ The claimant ~eeks Board revi~w jo~· ~he Re.~e~ee 's order wn~ch 
a~arded 80% unscheduled low back disability arising out of claim­
ant's 1978 injury· sustained while wo~kirig as a "dryer tender" for 
Multnomah Plywood Corporati"on. The Referee's .award was in lieu of 
an award of 25% unscneduled low back !disability grantetj b~ Deter-. 
mination Order dated December 20, 1979. 

I· 

Claimant seeKs an award of perm~nent total disaoiliiy. 
Claimant coritends that "two prior deierminaiion orders" awaided 
15 % anr..l 5 % r_espect ively f o·r unscheduted low back di sa bi 11 ty. The 
"two prior determination orders" referreJ to in claimant's brief, 
however, weie in fact only one, issu~d on March 6, 1976, whicn 
awarded 5% unscheduled low back disability in connection witn 
claimant'~ ~ay 3~ i975 back injury. I By stipulation, that award 
was increased by an additional 10% in June of 1976., Thereafter, 
claimant re-injured his back on Sept~mber 30, 1976 wnile pullin~ 
green chain. A "307 Order" was issu~d, designatirig BBI as the"re­
sponsible carrier; that issue went t~ h~aring, whe~eupon the SAIF 
·Corporation was designated the res pohs i ble carrier for the Sep tern -
ber "1976 {njury. •rhe· Heferee's conc'.lusion that the 1976 injury 
was an aggravation of the 1975 injur~ dated November 16, 1977, was 
affirmed by the Boc1re1's Order on. Rev1iew dated August 22, l'::178. No 
fu~ther disposition of that claim i~ contained in the record now 
befbre the Board. 

None of the above relates, howJver, to claima~t•s thirJ back 
injury occuiring in the summer of 1~78, whi2h is the subject of 
the p~esent case. ·The DeterminatioJ brder of De~ember 20, 197Y, 
awarding .25% unscheduled low back· d:i:sability, referred only to 
claimant's t978 ~~jury, and was the/subject. of the September 30, 
1980. hearing. The Referee's order, !dated October 31, 1980, 
awarded 80% unscheduled low back di~ability iri lieu of the 25% 
previously awarded; claimant now ,seeks re~iew of that award. 

I 

On de novo review, the Board ~ffirms and adopts the findings 
and conclusions of the Referee. i 

In Smith v. SAIF, Or. Appl , P2d · , WCB No. 
79-31'::ll (1981), the Cou~held, under circumstances·quite similar 
to this case, that the claimant's failure to seek employment pre-

' I I + • eluded an award of permanent totall disability. Here, as tnere, 
claimant did not comply with ORS 656~206(3) by making a reasonable 

. I . 

effort to obtain employment. Audas v. SAIF,. 43 Or. App. 813, 816, 
6 0 4 P 2 d 4 2 8 { 19 7 9) ; Potter f v . SA I 1F , 4 1 Or":' App . 7 5 5 , 7 5 7 , 7 61 , 
598-P2d 1290 (1979). . ~~ . 

• ·-· -- -- .. ----c·-~ . . • J 
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WA MON D. GAROUTTE. CLAIMANT |
WilTner, Bennett, et al. Claimant's Attoifneys
Lana, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Reauest for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-11021
May 18, 1981

Reviewed by Board members McCallister and Lewis.

IThe claimant seeks Board review jof the Referee’s order wnich
awarded 80% unscheduled low back disability arising out of claim­
ant's 1978 injury sustained while working as a "dryer tender" for
Multnomah Plywood Corporation. The Referee's -award was in lieu of
an award of 25% unscneduled low back Idisability granted by Deter-.
mination Order dated December 20, 1979.

I'
Claimant seeks an award of permanent total disability.

Claimant contends that "two prior determination orders" awarded
15% and 5% respectively for unscheduled low back disability. The
"two prior determination orders" referred to in claimant's brief,
however, were in fact only one, issued on March b, 1976, which
awarded 5% unscheduled low back disability in connection witn
claimant’s May 3, 1975 back injury. ^By stipulation, that award
was increased by an additional 10% in June of 1976 .■ Thereafter,
claimant re-injured his back on September 30, 1976 wnile pulling
green chain. A "307 Order" was issued, designating EBI as the're-
sponsible carfier; that issue went to hearing, whereupon the SAIF
Corporation was designated the responsible carrier for the Septem­
ber ‘1976 injury. The Referee's conclusion that the 1976 injury
was an aggravation of the 1975 injury dated November 16, 1977, was
affirmed by the Board’s Order on Review dated August 22, 1978. No
further disposition of that claim is; contained in the record now
before the Board.

None of the above relates, however, to claimant's third back
injury occurring in the summer of 1978, which is the subject of
the present case. The Determination Order of December 20, 1979,
awarding .25% unscheduled low back' disability, referred only to
claimant's 19 78 injury, and was the jsubj ec t. of the September 30,
1980. hearing. The Referee's order, idated October 31 , 1980 ,
awarded 80% unscheduled low back disability in lieu of the 25%
previously awarded; claimant now seeks review of that award.

and
On de ngvo review, the Board affirms and adopts the findings
conclusions of the Referee.

In Smith v. SAIF, ____ Or.
79-3191 (1981), the Court held, under circumstances-quite similar
to this case, that the claimant's failure to seek employment pre­
cluded an award of permanent total! disability. Here, as there,
claimant did not comply with ORS 656.206(3) by making a reasonable
effort to obtain employment. Audas v. SAIF,. 43 Or. App. 813, 816,
604
598

App,. P2d WCB No

P2d
P2d

428
1290

1979) ;
(1979)

Potterf V. SAIF, 41 Or. App. 755, 757, 761
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has failed to prove by a preponderance of the evi-
d~n~e that his physical impairment, although substantial, is suf- -
f1.c1ent t~ precl~de him from~ regular gainful employment. Ab-
sent proof _that 1t would be futile to seek employment, claimant is 
precluded from an award of permanent total disability. Butcher v. 
SAIF, 45 Or. App. 313, 318, 608 P2d 575 (1980); Morris v. Denny's 
Restaurant, __ Or. App. , P2J , WC8 Case i'-Jo. 78-6247 
(1981). 

'rhe Board concludes, therefore, that the Reteree's award of. 
80% unscheduled low back di~ability should be affirmed. 

OHDEH 

The order of the Referee dated October 31, 1980 1s affirmed. 

ROBERT L. GREEN, CLAIMANT 
Rober.t L. Burns, Claimant's Attorney 
Schwabe, Willi ams on et al, .Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review· by Emnloyer 

co O O T 

WCB 79-07414 
May 18, 1981 

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and Mccallister. 

'rhe employer seeks Board review of the i-l.eferee's order which 
r e n:i anded c la i ma n t ' s c 1 a i m f or an i n j u r y o f Na r ch 2 6 , 19 7 7 to i t 
for acceptance anli the payment of benefits. We reVecse tne Ref­
eree's ocder. 

On tile issue of untimely notice, the Board agrees wi.t11 tne 
Referee that the employer did, in fact, have knowledge of the, 
claim. 'ri1erefore, the .Referee's denial of tne employer's motion 
to dismiss was proper. · 

Claimant suffered a compensa':)le low ,Dack injury on huqust 23, 
1976 while employed by Portland Willamette Coinpany as operator of 
a soldering machine. A claim wa~ filed ilnJ acccµteci. Claimant 
mi s s e d a ppr o x i ma t e l y two week s o f w or K , an J tempo r a r y to ta l d i s -
ability compensation was pa id. Ile returned ( irs t. to l l':Jh t work 
and then to his regular employment. The 1976 claim was closed by 
a Determination Order of Novemper 18, 1976 with time Loss only. 

While still employed by this employer and still operating the 
soldering machine, claimant testified that on March 26, 1977 he 
felt severe low back µain. Claimant left wori<. in June. He saw 
Dr. Brown who referred him to Dr. Goodwin. Claim.:rnt was hospital- 4i> 
ized, and on Ju~e 29, 1977 Dr. Goodwin performed a fusi6n. 

-54-

Claimant has failed to prove by a preponderance of the evi­
dence that his physical impairment, although substantial, is suf­
ficient to preclude him from any regular gainful employment. Ab­
sent proof that it would be futile to seek employment, claimant is
precluded from an award of perjnanent total disability.
SA^, 45 Or. ;^p. 313, 318, 608 P2d 575 (1980); Morris
Restaurant, Or. App. , P2b
(1981). ------— — WCB Case No

Butcher v.
V . Denny ' s

. 78-6247

ona concludes, therefore, that the Referee's award of
80% unscheduled low back disability should be affirmed.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 31, 1980 is affirmed

ROBERT L. GREEN, CLAIMANT
Robert L. Burns, Claimant's Attorney
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 79 07414
May 18, 1981

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and McCallister.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
remanded claimant's claim for an injury of March 26, 1977 to it
for acceptance and the payment of benefits. We reverse tne Ref­
eree 's order .

-On tne issue of untimely notice, the Board agrees with tne
Referee that the employer did, in fact, liave knowledge of the
claim. Therefore, the Referee's denial of tne employer's motion
to dismiss was proper.

Claimant suffered a compensable low -oack injury on Au<just 23,
1976 while employed by Portland Willamette Company as operator of
a soldering machine. A claim was filed and accepted. Claimant
missed approximately two weeks of work, and temporary total dis­
ability compensation was paid. {le returned first, to light work
and then to his regular employment. The 1976 claim was closed by
a Determination Order of November 18, 1976 with time Loss only.

While still employed by this employer and still operating the
soldering machine, claimant testified tnat on March 26, 1977 he
felt severe low back pain. Claimant left work in June. Me saw
Dr. Brown who referred him to Dr. Goodwin. Claimant was hospital­
ized, and on June 29, 1977 Dr. Goodwin performed a fusion.

-54- ^
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' Upon hospital admission, claima~t gave no hi~tory of tlle 1976 
injury nor the alleged March 26, 1Y7i injury. Claimant 1s condi­
tion was 6iagn~sed by Dr. Goodwin as~spondylolisthesis, a conyeni­
tal anomaly. A fusion was performed ;for this condition .. 'fhe_re is 
no indicc3..tion of Dr. Goodwin's opinion of wi1ether or not claim­
ant's ;e~d·for sur~ery was related td the alleged 1977 injury 
and/or ciaimant's. wor\( activities. i 

On Augu_st 16, 1979. the 
aggravation or new injury. 

·' 
I 

employer ls 

I 
carrier issued a denial of 

More than two "years after the f:1usion,. in 1979, Dr. Lirown sub­
rri i t t e d th is re po r t : 

. I 
"My diagnosis for Rol>ert G_reen 1s spondylolisthesis 
which I feel was aggravate'd by work." 

I 

Dr. Brown ·provides no explanation fdr his opinion. Dr. Brown's 
ceferenc_e to "work" is ambiguous since claimant had worked else­
where since leaving ~ni~ employer i~ 1977. . I 

~he O~thopaedic· Consultants reJorted on Milr~h 12, 1~80 that. 
they found no caµsal r~lationship bJtween claim~nt's work activity 
11during th·e pa_st 12 months" and his.!condition~ This ceport fails 
to scate an opinion regarding claimJnt's a~leged inJuiy in Mar-ch 
19 7 7 • I 

I 
· Dr. Cannard, a cniropractor., r~pocted on March 10, 19~0 two 

years ~nd nine months after the·sur~ery, that claimant's low back 
condition which he treated was the iesult ot the 1Y76 inJustrial 
injury. · I 

The passage of time between thk �-ri9inal 1976 injury and the 
alleged 1977 aggravation or new injury·couplcd with claimant 1 s 
ccingenital defect requires expert m~dical evidence on tn~ causal 
relationship between claimant's work and the.necessity for sur­
gery in order for this clatm to be to1npensable. Ur is v.- Compens<l­
_tion Department, 247 Or. 420 (1967);_ The i.1oard conclu<les that:. the 
expert medical evidence presented ik insul:ticic~nt foe us to find 
that claimant's spondylolisthesis c~ndition was aggravateJ by his 
work. -I 

I 
ORDEH. 

I 
The order of the Referee datedj July 11, 1980 as amended by 

Order of Reconsideration dated July! 29, 1980 is reversed. Tne 
employer-1 s Jenial dated Au~ust 16, i1~79 is affirmed. 

NOTICE TO ALL PAHTIES: This 6rcier is final unless, within 
30 days after the date of mailiny o1f copies of this order to the· 
parties, one of tne patties appeali to the Court of Ap~eals for 
judicial review as provided by OHS 1656.298. 

. I 
---< • .--~--0••••• -n--,--~ •• •• ·----••·• ~• • ---------------
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upon hospital admission, claimant gavo no history of the 1976
injury nor the alleged March 26, 1977 injury. Claimant's condi­
tion was diagnosed by Dr. Goodwin as•spondylolisthesis, a congeni­
tal anomaly. A fusion was performed for this condition. There is
no indication of Dr. Goodwin's opinion of wiiether or not claim­
ant's need for surgery was related to the alleged 1977 injury
and/or ciaiinant's. work activities.

On August 16 , 1979. the employ er Js' ca rr i er issued a denial of
aggravation or new injury.

More than two years after
mitted this report:

the f:usion,. in 1979 , Dr. drown ,sub-

"My diagnosis for Robert Green is spondylolisthesis
which I feel was aggravated by work."

Dr. Brown provides no explanation for his opinion- Dr. Brown's
reference to "work" is ambiguous since claimant had worked else­
where since leaying tnis employer in 1977.

The Orthopaedic Consultants reported on March 12, 1980 thnt_
they found no causal relationship between claimant's work activity
"during the past 12 months" and his ''condition. This report fails
to state an opinion regarding claimant's alleged injury in March
19 77. ■ j .

Dr. Cannard, a chiropractor, reported on March 10, 1980 two
years and nine months after the surgery, that claimant's low back
condition which he treated was the result of the 1970 industrial
injury. I

The passage of time between the original 1976 injury and the
alleged 1977 aggravation or new in jury coupled with claimant's
congenital defect requires expert medical evidence on tne causal
relationship between claimant's work and the necessity for sur­
gery in order for this claim to be compensable. Ur is v. • Compensa-
,tion Department, 247 Or. 420 (1967) L The Board concludes that the
expert medical evidence presented is insufficient for us to find
that claimant's spondylolisthesis condition was aggravated by his
work. . ! .

ORDER

The
Or der
employ

order of the Referee datedj July 11,
of Reconsideration dated Julyj 29 , 198U is r
er's denial dated August 16 , 1979 is affirm

1980 as amended by
eversed. Tne
med.

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES: This oTder is final unless, within
30 days after the date of mailing of copies of this order to the'
parties, one of the parties appeals' to the Court of Appeals for
judicial review as provided by ORS '656.298 .
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ANN HALL, CLAIMANT 
Edward Olson, -Claimant's Attorney 
Roger Warren, Defense Attorney 
Reriuest for Review by Employer 

· WCB 78-05713 
May 18, 1981 

Reviewed '?Y Board members Barnes and McCallister. 

The employer/carrier seeks doard review of the Referee's or­
der.which required provision a_f _medical servic~s and awarded at-. 
torney's fees. 

As is often ti1e case, a significant tnresnold problem is 
identifying the issues. By way of background,. the claimant sus7 
tained a compensable injury in 19 73 wnen her hair was caught 
in a drill press which pulled out a portion of her scalp.· Her 
present claim; reducetj to ·its essential and non-legalistic terms, 
is for skin graft surgery to repair the bald spot on her scalp. 

• 

The first issue is variousli described in the record as a 
claim for medical services, ORS 656,245, and a claim tor aggrava­
tion, ORS 656.273. ·rhat ambiguity in the record is explained in 
part by .an ambiguity•in the statutes. ORS 656. 245 provides that 
injured worKers shall receive "medical services for conditions re­
sulting from.the injury for such period as tt")e natur·e of the ·in­
jury or the process of the recovery requires." Stdnding alone, 
ORS 656,245 provides for on-going medic al care. The aggravation 
_statute, ORS 6~6.27J, al·so :i::efers to medical care: "An injureCJ 4i 
worker is entitled to additional compensation, including medical 
services·, fc:S-r wor_sened.conditions result,ing from the original in-
jury." 

Interpreting tnese two statutes toyetl1er, a clai1n for ORS 
656.245.-medical services is processed,. procedurally, as an aggra...: 
vation claim during the five year aggravation period. It does not. 
follow, however, that ·a claim for ORS 656.24? medical services re­
sults in ,an agg~avation reopening of a claim. Aygravation reopen­
ing re.sults in payment of temporary tota.l disability until claim 
closure and the possibility ot an increased award of permanent 
di~ability at that time. By contrast, in this case, tnere is no 
suggestion that claimant is-entitled to payment of temporary total 
disab-ility because there is no suggestion ~he 

is unable to work bee au se of the bal<;l spot on her scalp, at least 
until she is hospitalized for surgery. L'ilor is there any conceiv­
able basis for an increased award _of permanent disability because 
of tnat bald spot. Hather, this case illustrates a situar.ion 
that, although processed as an aggravation claim, cannot result in 
aggravation reopening, but only an order to provide requested m~a­
ic al services. · 
... ---- -·-- .". ·-··----~ 
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MAR ANN HALL, CLAIMANT
Edward Olson, Claimant's Attorney
Roger Warren, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by Employer

WCB 78-05713
May 18, 1981

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and McCallister .

The employer/car r ier seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which required provision of medical services and awarded at­
torney’s fees.

As is often the case, a significant tiiresnoid problem is
identifying the issues. By way of background, the claimant sus­
tained a compensable injury in 19 73 wnen her hair was caught
in a drill press which pulled out a portion of her scalp. Her
present claim, reduced to its essential and non-legalistic terms,
is for skin graft surgery to repair the bald spot bn her scalp.

The first issue is variously described in the record as a
claim for medical services, ORS 656.245, and a claim for aggrava­
tion, ORS 656.273. That ambiguity in the record is explained in
part by an ambiguity in the statutes. ORS 656. 245 provides that
injured workers shall receive "medical services for conditions re­
sulting from-the injury for such period as the nature of the in­
jury or the process of the recovery requires." Standing alone,
ORS 656.245 provides for on-going medical care. The aggravation
.statute, ORS 656.273, also refers to medical care: "An injured
worker is entitled to additional compensation, including medical
services, fo'r worsened conditions resulting from the original in­
jury."

Interpreting tnese two statutes together, a claim for URS
656. 245 medical services is processed,, procedurally, as an aggra­
vation claim during the five year aggravation period. It does not
follow, however, that a claim for ORS 656.245 medical services re­
sults in an aggravation reopening of a claim. Aggravation reopen­
ing results in payment of temporary total disability until claim
closure and the possibility of an increased award of permanent
disability at that time. By contrast, in this case, tnere is no
suggestion that claimant is entitled to payment of temporary total
disability because there is no suggestion she

is unable to work because of the bald spot on her scalp, at least
until she is hospitalized for surgery. Nor is there any conceiv­
able basis for an increased award of permanent disability because
of that bald spot. Ratiier, this case illustrates a situation
that, although processed as an aggravation claim, cannot result in
aggravation reopening, but only an order to provide requested mea-
ical services.

-56-

m

m



           
          
              
         

           
         

           
            
          
       

     

            
            
             

           
           

         
       
 

   
  

        
          

         
            

            
           
          
      
        

       
      
    

  
   
  

        

        
             
         

' 
I 

The Referee dia just that, i.e.,; ordered the employer/carrier 
to provide claimant with the requestejd ski·n graft operation. On 
appeal, it is apparently the positioli of the employer/carrier 'that 
"medical services for condit.ions resu1lting from ·the injury" within 
the meaning _ot ORS 656.245 does not include what the employer/ 
car'rier calls "cosmetic surgery." Th1e Board disagrees. A worker 
is entitled to· such medical treatmend as is necessary to return 
h~m or her as nearly as possible to the ·pre-injury state. That 
obviously includes in th is case .repair of an industrially related 
physical disfigurement. The· Ref er.e~ ~ orr ecti.y 9rd er ed pc ovision 
of ORS 656.245 medical se~vices. · ! · . 

'£he -other issue involves attorne\;' .fees. 'l'he employer/carrier 
argue$: 11 tb request was ever made fcir attorney's fees ei tner by a 
request ·for· ·11ear ing or at the time of tn e hearing, anLl tn er efor e · 
no attorney's fees should have b~en ~warde.d by the Referee. 11 '£hat 
argument· is inconsistent with.the rationale of Mavis v. !:iAIF, 4:> 
Or. App. 105.9 (198 0) , in which the cdur t held, "A claimant -must 
articulate·ciaimed entitlement to a pe~alty or that issue is 
waived II bee au se 

I 

"W~ ongful denial ~f a claiJ does not automatically 
trigger entitlement to a pe'nalty; under ORS 656. 262{8) 

I ' • the unreasonableness of the denial must be pr oven before 
a penalty can be imposed.'.' I 45. Or App at 1062-6 3. 

. I 

The· s·ame cannot be said about attorney's fees in denied-claims 
cases. Under ORS 656 •. 38611), when t.tie claimant prevails on a 
.denied clairn, "the Referee or !:Soard dhall ailow a reasonable at-
torney fee." { Eropha sis Supplied. ) The Board, therefore , 
co!lcludes that tnere would be no point in requiriQg articulation 
of claimed-.ent it lement to attorney 's if ees in· denied -clai,ms cases 
because that entitlement is autrnnatic and statutory if the 
claimant -prevails.: 1 

i 
ORDER! 

I 
The Referee's order., dated September 12, 1980, is aff irrned. 

- I • . 

Claimant's attorney is awarded $350 for leg.Ji services ren-
dered.in con~ection with thi:s· Board r:'eview., to be paid by the car­
rier in addition to and not out of compensation benetits. 

- I 

............. 
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The Referee dia just that, i.e.,, ordered the empl oyer/car rier
to provide claimant with the requested skin graft operation. On
appeal, it is apparently the position of tne empl oyer/car r ier ' that
"medical services for conditions resulting from the injury" within
the meaning of ORS 656.245 does not include what the employer/
carrier calls "cosmetic surgery." Th'e Board disagrees. A worker
is entitled to such medical treatment! as is necessary to return
him dr her as nearly as possible to the pre-injury state. That
obviously includes in this case .repair of an industrially related
physical disfigurement. The Referee correctly ordered provision
of ORS 656.245 medical services.

The other issue involves attorney fees. The empl oy er/car r ier
argues: "No request was ever made for attorney's fees eitner by a
request for^ nearing or at the time of tne hearing, ana trier efore
no attorney's fees should have been awarded oy the Referee." That
argument is inconsistent with the rationale of Mavis v. SAIF, 45
Or. App. 1059 (198 0), in which the Court held,
articulate claimed entitlement to a penalty or
waived" because

"A claimant must
that issue is

"Wrongful denial of a claim does not automatically
trigger entitlement to a penalty; under ORS 656. 262( 8)
the unreasonableness of the denial must be proven before
a penalty can be imposed." j 45 . Or App at 1062-6 3.

The same cannot be said about attorney's fees in denied-c 1 aims
cases. Under ORS 656.38 6(1), when the claimant prevails on a
denied claim, "the Referee or board shall allow a reasonable at­
torney fee." (Emphasis Supplied.) The Board, therefore.
concludes that tnere would be no point in
of claimed entit lement to attorney's |fees
because that entitlement is automatic and
claimant pr evai Is .

requiring articulation
in denied-claims cases
statutory if tne

ORDERi

The Referee's order, dated September 12, 1980, is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is awarded $350 for legal services ren­
dered in connection with this Board review., to bo paid by the car
rier in addition to and not out of compensation benefits.
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H. HOFFMAN, CLAIMANT 
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant 1 s Attorneys 
Noreen .K. Saltvei.t, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order Referrin9 for In-Tandem Hearing 

WCB 81-03506 a~d 81-0108M · 
May 18, 1981 

On April 13, 1981, 'claimant, by and through his attorney, re­
quested the .Board exercise its own motion jurisdiction and reopen 
his claim for an injury sustained on March 1, 1973 to his back, 
hip and leg. Clai!llant 1s aggravation rights have• 2xpired. Claim­
ant has also requested a hearing on an appeal of a [)?termination 
Order, dated September 17, 1980·. Alternatively, he requests that 
the Board remand his _own motion request to the H·ear ings Division 
to be heard in tandem with the Request for Hearing already pending. 

The &:lard .teels it ~ould be in the best interest of the par-· 
ties involved if this matter ·were referred to th~ Hearinys- Divi­
sion to be heard in tandem w1th WC13 Case No. 81-UJS06. 'l'he Ret­
eree is instructed to take evidence in the own motion matter -re­
garding claimant 1s e~titlement to have his claim reopened for pay~ 
ment of temporary total disability commencing January 8, 1981 an.a·'. 
all accrued and accruing causally-related medical expenses. At 
the conclusion of the hearing, the Referee is to forward a copy of 
the transcript of the hearing to the Board with his recommendation 
as to the disposition of the own motion claim. He shall also en­
ter an appealable order with respect to the issue of extent ot 
disability in_WCB Case N::>. 81-03506. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DAN. R. PIERCE, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant 1 s Attorneys 
Tooze, Kerr et a 1 , .Defense Attorneys 
Own Motion Order 

·Own Motion 81-0112M 
May 18, 1981 

Claimant, by and th.rough his attorney, requests the B?ard to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to O~S 656.278, and 
reopen his claim for a worsened condi~ioi:i rel~ted_ to his_ indu~- . 
trial inju_ry of Sep.tember. 17, 1974. claimant s aggravation rights 
nave expired. . 

In support of his contention, claimant su~nitteJ a report 
from Dr. Clevenger. In that report Dr. Clevenger indic~tcd it was 
his impression that claimant had no physical evid~nc~ ot frogres­
sion of his_ symptoms and no. evidence of any neurological involve-
ment. 

Based on this report the Board concludes tnat claimant is not 
entitled to~ claim reopening and his request for own motion re-
lief is denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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DALE H. HOFFMAN, CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott. Claimant's Attorneys
Noreen.K. Saltveit, Defense Attorney
Owri Motion Order Referrina for In-Tandem Hearing

WCB 81-03506 and 81-0108M
May 18, 1981

On il 13, 19 81, claimant, by and through his attorney, re­
quested the -Board exercise its own motion jurisdiction and reopen
his claim for an injury sustained on March 1 , 19 73 to his back,
hip and leg. Claimant's aggravation rights have’expired. Claim­
ant has also requested a hearing on an appeal of a Determination
Order, dated September 17 , 1980-. Alternatively, he requests that
the Board remand his own motion request to the Hearings Division
to be heard in tandem with the Request for Hearing already pending

The Board feels it would be in the best
ties involved if this matter were referred to
sipn to be heard in tandem with WCB Case No.
eree is instructed to take evidence in the ow
garding claimant's entitlement to have his cl
ment of temporary total disability commencing
ail accrued and accruing causaily-related med
the conclusion of the hearing, the Referee is
the transcript of the hearing to the Board wi
as to the disposition of the own motion claim
ter an appealable order with respect to the i
disability in WCB Case No. 81-03506.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

interest of the par-
the Hearings Uivi-
81-03506 . The Re f-
n motion matter-re-
aim reopened for pay-
January 8, 1981 and'
ical expenses. At
to forward a copy of
th his recojnmendation
. He shall also en-
ssue of extent of

#

m

DAN R. PIERCE, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et al. Claimant's Attorneys
Tooze, Kerr et al, Defense Attorneys
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0112M
May 18, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to OHS 656.278, and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of Sep-tember 17 , 1974. Claimant's aggravation rights
have expired.

In support of his contention, claimant submitted a report
from Dr. Clevenger. In that report Dr. Clevenger indicated it was
his impression that claimant had no physical evidence of progres­
sion of his symptoms and no. evidence of any neurological involve­
ment.

Based on this report the Board concludes tnat claimant is not
entitled to a claim reopening and his request for own motion re­
lief is denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-58-

m

-



     
    

   
  

          
           

         
     

           
           

          
  

          
        

            

   

   
     

      
       
      

   
  

    
     
  

     

         
          

        
      

          
         
          

   

F~ PYLE, JR., CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense ·Attorney 

Own Motion 81-O123M 
May 18, 1981 

The cl~imant requests the Board ~o exercise its own motion 
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a 
worsened condition related to his Se~tember 18, 1~74 industrial 
injury. Claimant's aggravatibn righJs have expired. 

. . ; 
The evidence indicates that in ~974 claimant injured his left 

shoulder. In February 1981 claimant !came under the care of Dr. 
Beals and subsequently, on April 13, 11981, claimant underwent left 
shoulder surgery. I · 

' 

The Board finds that claimant is entitled to compensation for 
temporary total disability commencin~ the date of his hospitaliza­
tion for the April 13, 1~81 surgery -~nd until closure under ORS 
656.278. · I 

r ·r IS so O®ERED. ' I 
. I 

---- ----,,----__.,-----'-~---~---·----·~--- I 

·-
RICHARD SATTLER, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 

~-'- - •-• - ·- - -- -- . -

Own Motion 81-O124M 
May lB, 1981 

.- ----~- -- -- ~-~---~- -
Claimant requests the Board to ~xercise its own motion jurii­

diciion, putsuant to ORS 656.278, an~ reopen his claim (or a wor­
sened condition relat~d to his Sept~mber 16, 1975 industrial in­
jury. Claimant's aggravation rights! have expired . 

. The medical evidence submitted lfrom Dr. Singer indicates that 
claimant's right shoulder condition .had worsened, and on March 4, 
1981, claimant underwent surgery for: division ot coracoae;romial 
liga~ent and ~xcision· of the distal flavicle. 

The Board finds·, based on this·levidence, that ·claimant's 
claim should be reopened commencing !the d·ate of his hospitaliza­

. t ion for the March 4 ,- 19 81 · surgery P,er for med by Dr. Singer. 
I 

IT IS SO ORDERED.· i 
' I ..., - ··•···--· - • ___ .,. ___ •· •--•- - •• ••• • ---- • -·- .... --·-· ·1·-·--·-·---·. ---···- ·- .. 
i 
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WILLIAM F. P LE. JR., CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney

Own Motion 81 0123M
May 18, 1981

The claimant requests the Board |to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a
worsened condition related to his Sepjtember 18, 1974 industrial
injury. Claimant’s aggravation rights have expired.

i
The evidence indicates that in 1^9 74 claimant injured his left

shoulder. In February 1981 claimant 'came under the care of Dr.
Beals and subsequently, on April 13, il981, claimant underwent left
shoulder surgery.

The Board finds that claimant is entitled to compensation for
temporary total disability commencing the date of his hospitaliza­
tion for the April 13, 1981 surgery -and until closure under ORS
656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

RICHARD SATTLER. CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney

Claimant requests the Board to exercise
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen
sened condition related to his September 16,

Own Motion 81 0124M
May 18, 1981

its own motion juris-
his claim for a wor-
1975 industrial in­

jury. Claimant's aggravation rights' have expired.

The medical evidence submitted jfrom Dr. Singer indicates that
claimant's right shoulder condition 'had worsened, and on March 4,
1981, claimant underwent surgery for division of coracoacromial
ligament and excision' of the distal jclavicle.

The Board finds, based on th is levidence, that claimant's
claim should be reopened commencing |the date of his hospitaliza­
tion for the March 4,' 1981 surgery performed by Dr. Singer.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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SCOTT, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp ie~al, Defense Attorney 

Own Motion 81-0125M 
May 18, 1981 

Claim~nt requests the .Board to exercise its own motion juris­
?iction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related· to his industrial injury of August 10, 

. 197 4. 

'rhe medical reports submitted from Dr. Sulkosky do not caus­
ally relate claimant's current conditi6n to his- industrial in­
jury. The report submitted from the Orthopaedi'c Cons.ultants inc.li­
catej that claimant's cuir~nt· condition is related to the natural 
progres~ion of his unde~lying degenera~ive osteoarthritis • 

. Based on this evidence, claimaQt's request for own motion 
relief is denied •. 

I'£ IS. SO ORDERED. 

·DENNIS SHARP, CLAIMANT 
SAJF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 

Own Motion 81-O126M 
May 18, 1981 

Claimant ·requests the Board to ~xercise its own IBotion·juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened cond"itipn related to his February 18, 1974 industrial in­
jury. Claimant•~ aggravation rign~s have expired. 

The evidence submitted indicates that i'n February 197--l cldim­
ant suffered a penetrating injury to his· left eye. On April 14, 
1981 Dr. Klein performed surgery for rep~ir of the retinal detach­
ment of the left eye and removal of an intraocular foreign body. 

The Board concludes that claimant's claim snould be reopened 
as of the hsopitatization for his April 14, 1981 sur~ery perfprmed 
by-Dr. Klein, until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.L78. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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JOHN SeOTT, CLAIMANT
SAIF Coro Leqal, Defense Attorney

Own Motion 81-0125M
May 1 8, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of August 10,
1974.

The medical reports submitted from Dr. Sulkosky do not caus­
ally relate claimant's current condition to his- Industrial in­
jury, The report submitted from the Orthopaedic Consultants indi­
cates that claimant's current- condition is related to the natural
progression of his underlying degenerative osteoarthritis.

-Based on this evidence, claimant's request for own motion
relief is denied..

IT IS SO ORDERED.

#
DENNIS SHARP. CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney

Own Motion 81 0126M
May 18, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his February 18, 1974 industrial in­
jury. Claimant's aggravation rignts have expired.

The evidence submitted indicates that in February 1974 claim­
ant suffered a penetrating injury to his left eye. On April 14,
1981 Dr. Klein performed surgery for repa'ir of tne retinal detach­
ment of the left eye and removal of an intraocular foreign body.

The Boara concludes that claimant's claim should be reopened
as of the hsopitalization for his April 14, 1981 surgery performed
by Dr. Klein, until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
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CHARLES c; TACKETT WCB, 79-08040 
May 18, 1981 Peter Hansen, Claimant's Attorney 

SAIF Coro Leoal, Defense ~ttorney 
Request·for Review by SAIF 
Cross Reauest by Claimant 

Reviewed by tne Board en bane.'. 

Th e s A I F Co r po r at i o n see k s Bo a f d r e v i e w o f th a t po r t ion o f . 
the P-eferee's.order·which orders payment of permanent pdrtial dis-· 
ability benefits awarded in an earlier Referee's order, dated De­
cember 13, _1979, in WCB Case No. 73.:.06975 _together wttn a penalty 
of 25% of all sums accrued from the]date of that earlier order. 
Claimant seeks cross-review of that portion of the Referee's order 

·which denied claimant's request for· special maintenance oenetits 
wnil~ he was en~olled in an authorized program of vocational 
training at l{oyue River Community College. 

'Nie issues are: (1) When, sub'leq~ent to a H.eferee 's urder, a 
worker enters a vocational rehabilitation progr~m, may tne insurer 
suspend payment of permanent:: disabiiity benefits awarded oy tnat 

-order, paying i~stead ~emporary tot~l disability benefits, until 
the conclusion of tne vucational rehabilitation program; (2) has 
claiman~ proven entitleme~t to special rnaintenince benefits for 
the time spen~ in his vocational rehabilitatio~ program. 

I 

( 1) Suspension of Benefits. 

There is ~ittle dispute about the facts. Claimant was 
awarded 35% permanent partial unsch~duled Jisaoility by a Ref­
eree's order dated December 13, 197~ in WCB C~se No. 78-06975. 
Claimant entered an authorized progfam -of vocational rehabilita­
tion.at Rogue River Community College the followiny month, that is 
in=·J~nuary of 1980. SAIF then ceas~d paying the permanent dis­
abil'ity award of the Referee's ordei and instead began paying tem­
porary .total uisapility. Uy the request for hearin~ in this case, 
claimant assert~ that -he should hav~ been paid both his permanent 
disability award and temporary total disability _while he was re-
ceiving vocationaltra_ining. · l · · 

· · Whether SAIF was authorized toldb what it did is a question 
of statutory construction·. ORS 656.268(5J pr.ovides: 

"If, after the determination made pursuant to subsection 
(.3) of this section,·thejdir_ector authorizes a program 
of vocational rehabilitation for an injured worker, any 

; t • • 

permanent disability payments·due under tne determina-
tion· shall be suspended,; and the worker shall receive 
temporary disabi~ity compensatioh while he is enrolled 
in an authorized vocational rehabilitation program. 
When the worker' ceases tb be enrolled and actively en­
gaged in an authorized vocational rehabilitation pro­
gram, the Evaluation Division shall redetermine the 
claim pursuant to subsection (3) of this section unless 
the worker's condition is .not medically stationary." 

--~------------.-,-··-~·- ,, _ _I__ __ .. _,.·_---···-.-.. ~-- --- --- ------···-------------,-----,-- -61- · 
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CHARLES C. TACKETT
Peter Hansen, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF
Cross Request by Claimant

Reviewed by tne Board en banc.

WCB. 79 08040
May 18, 1981

The SAIF Corporation seeks: Board review of that portion of.
the Referee's order which orders payment of permanent partial dis­
ability benefits awarded in an earlier Referee's order, dated De­
cember 13, 1979, in WCB Case No. 781Q6975 together witn a penalty

date of that earlier order,
portion of the Referee's order

of 25% of all sums accrued from the
Claimant seeks cross-review of that,^
which denied claimant's request for special maintenance oenefits
wnile he was enrolled in an authorized program of vocational
training at Rogue River Community College.

The issues are: (1) When, subsequent to a Referee's order, a
worker enters a vocational rehabilitation program, may tne insurer
suspend payment of permanent disability benefits awarded oy tnat
order, paying instead temporary total disability benefits, until
the conclusion of tne vocational rei\abi litation program; (2) has
claimant' proven entitlement to special maintenance benefits for
the time spenc in his vocational rehabilitation program.

(1) Suspension of Benefits.

There is little dispute about the facts. Claimant was
awarded 35% permanent partial unscheduled disaoility by a Ref­
eree's order dated December 13 , 19 79 in WCi3 Case No. 78-06975.
Claimant entered an authorized program of vocational rehabilita­
tion.at Rogue River Community College the following month, that is
in-January of 1980, SAIF then ceased paying the permanent dis­
ability award of the Referee's order and instead began paying tem­
porary total disability. By the request for hearing in this case,
claimant asserts that he should have been paid both his permanent
disability award and temporary total disability while he was re­
ceiving vocational training.

Whether SAIF was authorized to do what it did is a question
of statutory construction. OKS 656.268 (5^) provides;

"If, after the determination made pursuant to subsection
(3) of this section, the'i d it ector authorizes a program
of vocational rehabilitation for an injured worker, any
permanent disability payments due under tne determina­
tion shall be suspended,,and the worker shall receive

- tempor ar y .d isability compensation while he is enrolled
in an authorized vocational r ehabi litation program.
When the worker ceases tp be enrolled and actively en­
gaged in an authorized vocational rehabilitation pro­
gram, the Evaluation Division shall redetermine the
claim pursuant to subsection (3) of this section unless
the worker's condition is .not medically stationary."
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tefe~s·only to an awartj qf permanent di~ability made 
by a D? t~r.mination Order. It would appear, however, to ~ equally 
applicable to an award made by a Referee 1 s ordei:: following an 
appeal fror\l a r.etermination Order. Th~ apparent intent ot' ORS 
656. 268(-5) is to preclude 'the simultaneous payment of perma_nent 
disability benefits ana temporary disability benefits while a 
worker is ·receiving the latter because he is enrolled in an auth­
orized program or vocational rehabilitation. See Daniel uush, WCB 
t.:ase lb. 7·9-·08635 .(Q::tober· 14, 1980). t-..o rational reason is ap­
parent why that intent would be limited to situations where there 
is only a .Determination Order and should not apply to situations 
where tner-e is a Referee's order • 

. . 
Th-is analysis creates a pos8ible statuto;y conflict. ORS 

656.289{3) provides in part 

ttThe {Referee's) ·order is final unless, within 30 days 
a~t~r the date on which a copy of th~ order is mailed to 
ti1e parties, one of ·the parties requests a review by the 
Board under ORS 656. 29S." 

The requi~ement of ORS 656.268(5) tnat permanent disabilit.y pay-· 
men ts "shall be suspended" would thus appear to conflict with the 
finality ruJ,e of ORS 656.289(3). See also 01{S 656.313(1) {"'l'he 
filing by an employer· or the State Accident Insurance Fund Cor por..; 
ation of a· request for review or court· appeal shali not stay pay­
ment of com_pensatio11: to a claimant."). 

If conflict th is be,· however, it is not exac er bated by inter­
pretin~ ORS 656. 268( 5) as equally applicable· to a uatermination 

.· Order and a Referee's order. Although not stated with the same 
bluntness with respect to a Determination Order, such an order is 
just as capable as a Referee's order of becoming final oy opera­
tion ·of law~ ORS 656~319(2)" provides "a hearing on 

-·:--:-···-·-·· --·-·sucti'obiect~ons \to a Determination Order) shall not be granted 
unless a request for hear"ing is filed within one year after tne 
copies of. the determination .were mailed to the parties. 11 1'here­
fore, when the legislature adopted ORS 65ti"-.269(5) ,· {t must have 
inte.nded that that section.be an exception to the finality of a 
~termination Order as-provided ·in ORS 656.319(2). Moreover, when 
ORS 656.268(5) is interpreted as including a lEferee's order, the 
legislature likely also intended that that section be an exception 
to the finality of a Referee Is order as· provided in ORS . 
656.289(3) So viewed, there is no conflict in hie statutory 
scheme. 

There are.further indications of legislative intent. 
656. 268 tl) pr_ovides i_n part: 

OrtS 

11 0ne purpose of this chapter is to restore the injured 
worker as soon as possible and as near as possible to a 

· condition of .self support and maintenance as an able­
bodied worker. Claimant shall not be closed nor tem­
porary disability compensation terminated if ••. tne 
worker· is enrolled and actively e~gag~d in an.authorized 
pr ogr·am of vocational rehabil'itation ••• 11 • 

, 

·, 

·! 
.:\ .. , 

I 

.I ., 
·: I 

This,statute refers only to an award of permanent disability made
by a Determination Order, It would appear, however, to be equally
applicable to an award inade by a Keferee's order following an
appeal from a Determination Order. The apparent intent of ORS
656. 268(5) is to preclude the simultaneous payment of permanent
disability benefits ana temporary disability benefits while a
worker is receiving the latter because he is enrolled in an auth­
orized program of vocational rehabilitation. See Daniel bush, WCB
Case Ito. 7 9-08635 (October 14 , 198 0) . No rational reason is ap­
parent why that intent would be limited to situations where there
is only a Determination Order and should not apply bo situations
where tnere is a Referee's order.

This analysis creates a possible statutory conflict. ORS
656.289 ( 3) provides in part

"The (Referee's) order is final unless, within 30 days
after the date on which a copy of the order is mailed to
tile parties, one of the parties requests a review by the
Board under OHS 656. 295."

The requirement of ORS 656,268( 5) tnat permanent disability pay­
ments "shall be suspended" would thus appear to conflict with the
finality rule of ORS 656.289( 3). See also OHS 656.313 (I) {"The
filing by an employer or the State Accident Insurance Fund Corpor­
ation of a request for review or court appeal shall not stay pay­
ment of compensation to a claimant.").

if conflict this be, however, it is not exacerbated by inter­
preting ORS 656.268( 5) as equally applicable to a Determination
Order and a Referee's order. Altiiough not stated with the same
bluntness with respect to a Determination Order, such an order is
just as capable as a Referee's order of becoming final oy opera­
tion of law. ORS 656.3 19(2) provides "a hearing on

suchi objections {to a Determination Order) shall not be granted
unless a request for hearing is filed within one year after tne
copies of the determination were mailed to the parties." There­
fore, when the legislature adopted ORS 656'. 269(5) , it must have
intended that that section.be an exception to the finality of a
Determination Order as provided in ORS 656.319 ( 2) . Moreover, when
ORS 656.268( 5) is interpreted as including a I^feree's order, the
legislature likely also intended that that section be an exception
to the finality of a Referee's order as provided in ORS
656.289
scheme.

3) So viewed, tnere is no conflict in the statutory

There are further indications of legislative intent.
656.26 8 0.) provides in part:

ORS

"One purpose of this chapter is to restore the injured
worker as soon as possible and as near as possible to a
condition of.self support and maintenance as an able-
bodied worker. Claimant shall not be closed nor tem­
porary disability compensation terminated if...tne
worker is enrolled and actively engaged in an authorized
program of vocational rehabilitation..."
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' ' 
This indicates a legislative prefere~ce tor vocational rehabilita­
tion. 1'his ·also indicates a -legislative judgment that temporary 
total disabil_ity _payments be used tol subsidize ·workers in voca­
tional rehabilitation. And when interpreted t0:retner witr1 ORS 
656.268(5)_ {"W11en the worker ceases-to be enr6lleu and actively 
engagea in an ·authorized vocational rehabilitation program, tr1e 
Ev~lriation Division shall redetermin~ the claim ..• "), this indi­
cates a legislative expectation tr1 at' voca ti anal rehabi 1 i ta ti o r:t 
might often d~crease a worker's perrn:anent disability. It would be. 
passing strange for the legislature It<? encourage vocational rehab­
ilitation to reduce permanent disabijlity, and require that voca­
tional rehabilitation be subsidized by car r ie·r paymen·t of tempor­
~ry total disability and at the sam~ time intend tha~ permanent 
disability awards be simultaneousJ,y paid while the worker is in 
vocational rehabilitation. · . ·,:!-

· The amount of money involved should be notecJ. Claimunt tes­
tified tha~ his temporary total disibility payments w~ile he was 
in rehabilitation were $483. 40 every tw_o weeks, or about $f_,_00_QO a 
month. If.the award of permanent dilsability made to claimant in 
waf Case •N:>. 78-06975 were pa.id monthly pursuant to OHS• 
656.216 tl), Lt would also be at the Irate of about $1,0000 a 
month. So claimant's argument thatihe should receive qoth tem­
porary 6isability and per~anent dis~bility payments while in re­
habilitatio·n, boil_s ctown to an uryurrie~t for about $2,000 E,)Cr month. 

···------··-··· . -·. I ..•. -:- • 

. Which.brings us to the questiori of equal treatment. If a 
claimant went into a vocational reh.:kbilitation.proyram beiore a 
Determination Order -was issued, ORSl656.268(1} makes it clear that 
h1;f .would receive only temporary to.thl ·disability payments while in 
the rshabilitation Program. If a ciaimant w~nt in~o a· vocatidnal 
rehabilitation program after a Determination Order rated his· ,p'er·­
manent disability, ORS 656.268(5) m1kes it clear he would receive 
only temporary total disability payments while· in the rehabi 1i ta­
t ion program. The Board .cannot believe that the legislature in­
tended that a claimant who begins vocational rehabilitation after 

·a Referee·•s order should, solely by: reason of that fortuitous 
timing, receive .the unequal treatmeilt of twice as much compensa­
tion as would workers who enter rehabilitation earlier in the 
course of the i,)roces·s~ng of their 9:laims. 

. I 
For all of these·reasons, 

authorized t-0 suspend payments 
in WCB Case No·. 7 8-06975 while 

the Board concludes that SAIF was 
of the permanent disability awarded 
clai~ant was enrolled and actively 

participating in an authorized prog~am of vocational rehabilita­
tion, paying instead temporary tota~ disability. 

.. 1-- --- - - ---. --

1 

I 
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This indicates a legislative preference for vocational rehabilita­
tion. This also indicates a legislative jaugment that cemporary
total disability payments be used tp| subsidize'workers in voca­
tional renabiiication. And when interpreted togetner with OKS
656.26 8(5). ("When the worker ceases to be enrolleo and actively
engagea in an authorized vocational rehabilitation program, the
Evaluation Division shall redetermine the claim..,"), this indi­
cates a legislative expectation that' vocational rehabilitation
might often decrease a worker 's permanent disability. It would be
passing strange for the legislature
ilitation to reduce permanent disabi
tional rehabilitation be subsidized
ary total disability and at the same time intend that permanent
aisability awards be simultaneously paid while the worker is in
vocational rehabilitation. i

to encourage vocational rehab-
iity, and require that voca-
by carrier payment of tempor-

The amount of money involved should be notea. Claimant tes­
tified that his temporary total aisa'bility payments while he was
in rehabilitation were $483.40 every two weeks, or about $1,0000 a
month. If , the award of permanent diisability made to claimarit in
WCB Case IJo. 78- 06975 were paid montlhly pursuant to OHS
656.216 (1 ), i-t would also be at the Irate of about $1 ,0000 a
month. So claimant's argument thatihe should receive both tem­
porary disability and permanent disability payments wnile in re­
habilitation, boils down to an argument for about $2,000 per montii

Which,brings us to the question of equal treatment. If a
claimant went into a vocational rehabilitation.program before a
Determination Order was issued, OKS I 656.268 (1) makes it clear that
he .would receive only temporary to.tal disabi li ty payments while in
the rehabilitation program. If a claimant went into a vocational
rehabilitation program after a Determination Order rated his pef-
manent disability, ORS 656.268(5) makes it clear he would receive
only temporary total disability payments while in tne rehabilita­
tion program. The Board cannot believe that the legislature in­
tended that a claimant who begins vocational rehabilitation after
a Referee's order should, solely by; reason of that fortuitous
timing, receive the unequal treatment of twice as much compensa­
tion as would workers who enter rehabilitation earlier in the
course of the processing of their claims.

For all of these reasons,
authorized to suspend payments

the Board concludes that SATF was
of the permanent disability awarded

in WCB Case No. 7 8-06975 while claimant was enrolled and actively
participating in an authorized program of vocational rehabilita­
tion, paying instead temporary total disability.
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2) Sp~cial Maintenance. 

.Claimant seeks additional compensation, over and above tern~ 
porary total disability payments, for the period he has been in 
rehabilitation. l'he f)arties arsue at lenyth over whicn rules are 
applicable ~nd whether they were properly adopted under the AJmin~ 
istrative Procedures Act. 

The Board finds •it unnecessary to adctress those legal argu­
ments. The standard that would be most generous to claimant ~as 
adopted by tne Board, effective Aprill, 1976, before the 1977 
separation of· the· Board and the Workers' Compensation Department. 
It provides: "Special maintenance assistance may be granted a · 
Board sponsored vocational.rehabili~ation ~lient in a~ amount 
reasonable and necessary to en~ble him to comµletc his vocational 
training program and become rehabilitated." 

Assuming the applicability ot the Board's 1976 special main­
tenance po 1 icy., c la ima n t · confronts what the Ref er ee cal led "a 
hiatus. in pr-ooL II As previously noted, claimant testified that 
his temporary total disability payment· while in rehabilitation was 
$483. 40 every _two weeks, or about $1,000 per month. Claimant also 
testified that he was paid $4.40 ·per day for mileage and meals 
while attending hi~ reh~bilitacion program at Rogue River Com­
munity C_ollege· .. Claimant did not testify about how many days per 
month he went· to the community college; if it were 20 days a 
'month, his mileage/meals allowance was $88.00 a month. Finally, 
claimant testified that his two teenage ~hildren earned about $50 
a month doirig odd jobs. It thus appears that claimant's family 
had available something over $1,100 a montn. 

On the expense side, claimant testified that the family's 
rent was $14·5 a month and the food bi 11 was about $80 a week. 
Without any additional expenses being specifically identified, 
claimant's w~fe testified: 

"Q: What are your average monthly expenses? 

"A: It runs between $1,025 and $1,100 a month." 

Both claimant and his wife testit{ed to their serious financial 
hardship. The figures in the record showing expenses in the 
neighborhood of $1,100 a month and incom~ in the neighborhood of 
$1,100 a month simply do not document that position. 

The Bodrd agrees with the Referee that claimant failed to 
prove entitlement to any add-itional special rnain'tenance. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated July 16, 1980 is aftirmect in 
part and reversed in part. The portion denying special mainten­
ance relief ·is affirmed. ~he portions ordering payment of perm­
anent disability while claimant is in a vocational renaoilitation 
program, penalties and attorney fees are reversed.· 
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(2) Special Maintenance.

.Claimant seeks additional compensation, over and above tem­
porary total disability payments, for the period he has been in
rehabilitation. i'ne parties ar^jue at len-^th over v;hicn rules- are
applicable and whether they were properly adopted under the Admin­
istrative Procedures Act.

The Board finds it unnecessary to address those legal argu­
ments. The standard that would be most generous to claimant was
adopted by tne Board, effective April 1, 1976, before the 1977
separation of the Board and the Workers' Compensation Department.
It provides:. "Special maintenance assistance may be granted a
Board sponsored vocational rehabilitation client in an amount
reasonable and necessary to enable him to complete his vocational
training program and become rehabilitated."

Assuming the applicability of the Board's 1976 special main­
tenance policy, claimant confronts what the Referee called "a
hiatus’in proof." As previously noted, claimant testified that
his temporary total disability payment’ while in rehabilitation was
$483.40 every two weeks, or about $1,000 per month. Claimant also
testified that he was paid $4.40 per day for mileage and meals
while attending his rehabilitation program at Rogue River Com­
munity College. Claimant did not testify about how many days per
month he went to the community college; if it were 20 days a
month, his mileage/meals allowance was $88.00 a month. Finally,
claimant testified that his two teenage children earned about $50
a month doing odd jobs. It thus appears that claimant's family
had available something over $1,100 a montn.

On the expense side, claimant testified that the family's
rent was $14-5 a month and the food bill was about $80 a -week.
Without any additional expenses being specifically identified,
claimant's wife testified: '

"Q: What are your average monthly expenses?

"A: It runs between $1,025 and $1,100 a month."

Both claimant and his wife testified to their serious financial
hardship. The figures in the record showing expenses in the
neighborhood of $1,100 a month and income- in the neighborhood of
$1,100 a month simply do not document that position.

The Board agrees with the Referee that claimant failed to
prove entitlement to any additional special maintenance.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated July 16 , 1980 is affirmed in
part and reversed in part. The portion denying special mainten­
ance relief is affirmed. The portions ordering payment of perm­
anent disability while claimant is in a vocational renaoiiitat ion
program, penalties and attorney fees are reversed.

m
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H. TALL, CLAIMANT 
o.s~ Denning, Jr., Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Reau~st for Review by Claimant . 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 80-00568 
May 18, 1981 

The claimant seeks Soard review of tne Referee's order which 
denied claimant's request for payrnerit of certain medical expenses 
incurred in.connection with surgicaljprocedures involving a. decom­
pressive laminectomy together with a_ttorney 's fees and penalties. 

Claimant ·contends.tha_t the R~f~Jee's order is arbitrary, cap-
• • , • I 

ricious and unfounded, in that the August 29, 1979 surgery per-
formed by Dr. Johnson was reasonable land [~roper medical treatment;· 
that the doctor complied with nis dut,y to notify the insurer of 
his intent to £)er form surge.ry·; that the insurer waited until the 

day befor:e surgery to secure an independent consulting opinion; 
and that tne insurer cannot· be relieved of its rl::!sfX)n.sibi ll:ty to 
provide medical care for a compensabJ!e condition merely because 
the tr eating ftlysic ian failed to secJre a second j.ndependent con­
sultation upon tne• verbal-advice of ~ conflicting medical opinion, 
absent any .request by the insurer th~t he do so., 

SAIF ass er ts that the t~ eating iy s .icia n and surgeon fa i 1 ed 
to comply with a duty imposed by OAH.1436-69-130 in tnat he failed 

A to ref er th·e claimant to a secon9 independent qualified consultant 
'9 prior· to proceeding with the schedu1Ja surgery. SAIF further ar­

gues that the surgeon and ·the claimatit agreed that the bill would 
be paid by claimant's pr iv ate insurarice and that claimant should 

·-

be bound by that decision.•. I 
Having worked £or JO years for the same employer, Harris Pine 

Mills, the claimant was seriously inj'ured on November 18, 1970 
when he fell 22 feet to a co~crete fjoor, sustaining fractures of 
the pelvis and left shoulder. His c]aim was ·initially closed on 
November 2d, 1973,-following two surJeries. The ~laim was _re­
opened in March of 1975 for a third surgery and had remained 
opened ever since, until a Determinatiion Order dated August 9, 

197'9 again closed the claim. That odtermination Order was with­
drawn on August 30~ · 1979, the day aftier cl,aimant's seventh surgery 
since the date .of his 1970 accident.· 

The August 29, 1979 surgical procedure, performed oy Dr. How­
ard. "E. Johnson in Boise, Idaho, has been· treated by- the l:{e fer ee as 
an "elective surgery" ·as defined by OAR 436-69-004 tll), as follows: 

with 

" ... that surgery whicn need not be· perforined as an emer­
gency but is required iri the ·process of recovery from 
th e in J ur y • " I · 

. I . 
Ch de nova review, the Board adopts the Referee 1s findings 
the following exceptions and comments: 

--- --- ----- --65~-)·- . -.. --• -
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DONALD H. tall, CLAIMANT WCB 80 00568
D.S. Denning, Jr., Claimant's Attorney May 18, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The Claimant seeks Board review of tne Referee's order which
denied claimant's request for payment of certain medical expenses
incurred in .connection with sur gical |pr ocedur es involving a decom­
pressive laminectomy together with attorney's fees and penalties.

Claimant contends that the Referee's
ricious and unfounded, in that the August
formed by Dr. Johnson was reasonable|and
that the doctor complied with his duty to
his intent to perform surgery'; that ihe i
day before surgery to secure an independe
and that tiie insurer cannot be relieved o
provide medical care for a compensable co
the treating physician failed to secure a
saltation upon the verbal'adv ice of a con
absent any .request by the insurer that he

order is arbitrary, cap-
29, 1979 surgery per-
proper medical treatinent;
notify the insurer of
usurer waited until the
nt consulting opinion;
f its responsibility to
ndition merely because
second j.ndependent con­
flicting medical opinion,
do so. .

SAIF asserts that the treating physician and surgeon failed
to comply with a duty imposed by OAR |436- 69- 13 0 in tnat he failed
to refer the claimant to a second independent qualified consultant
prior to pr.oceeding with the scheduled surgery. SAIF further ar­
gues that the surgeon and the claimant agreed.that the bill would
be paid by claimant's private insurance and that claimant should
be bound by that decision.-

Having worked for 30 years for Lhe same employer, Harris Pine
Mills, the claimant was seriously injured on November 18, 1970
when he fell 22 feet to a concrete fljoor , sustaining fractures of
the pelvis and left shoulder. His cliaim was initially closed on
November 28, 1973, following two surgeries. The claim was re­
opened in March of 1975 for a third surgery and had remained
opened ever since, until a De ter minat ion Or der dated August 9,
1979 again closed the claim. That Determination Order was wi th-
drawn on August 30 , 19 79 , the day afdet cl.aimant's seventh surgery
since the date of his 1970 accident.

The August 29 , 1979 surgical procedure, performed oy Dr. How-
ard 'E. Johnson in Boise, Idaho, has
an "elective surgery" as defined by

been'treated by-the Referee as
OAR 436-6 9-004(11 ), as follows

On

"...that surgery whicn need not be perforined as an emer­
gency but is required in the process of recovery from
the in3ury. " I

de novo review, the Board adopts the Referee's findings
with the following exceptions and comments:

65- -

-



          
          

              
           
            
  

          
          
             
         
        

          
         
           
          

           
            
           

       
      

       
        

 

    
 

   
   

           
          
          
         
         

          
             
            
           

           
         
             

         
     

      
     
      
      
       
       
      
      
        
    

     
   

      
       
     
    
    
    
    

the Referee 1s· opinion £ails to note that that while 
claimant 1 s testimony may have appeared to be· less than credible, 
it was established as far back as 1973 that claimant has a full 
scale IQ of 89 with a memory quotient of 80. Psychological test -
ing in 1973 indicated that claimant functions at a low average to 
dull normal .1 eve 1 •. 

There is no contention here that the medic~l services were 
not compensable, nor that they proved to be unreasonable. There 
is only a contention that the insurer is not liable for payment of 
the medical charges because there was a consulting fhysician 1 s op­
inion that surgery was not, in his opinion, recommended. 

Concluding that claimant was bqund by a verbal atjreement with 
his doctor to proceed with surgery despite a last-iniriute with­
drawal of SAIF 1 s authorization, ti1e Referee seems to rely upon an 
assumption that claimant was fully informed of the consequences of 
his decision. The exis~ence of any verbal agreement, if in fact 
one did exist, is based on sheer conjecture and appears to rely 
solely upon Dr. Johnson's O::::tober 15, 1979 letter to SAIF which 
s ta: ted: 

"After consultation by Dr. Gordon Daines, Jr., in the 
hospit~l, your authorization for ·surgery was denied. 
After discuss ion ,with the patient, he wished to go ahead 
with surgery, and this was covered under his private in­
surance ••• 11 

The details of Dr. Johnson 1 s 11discussion with the patient" are not 
in the record. · fur does the doctor 1 s letter indicate that claim­
a n t ' s d ec i s ion re l i e d u po n the ex i s ten c e o f pr iv a t e i n s u r an c e , i f 
in fact private insurance existed. To conclude that claimant 1 s 
decision was "informed, 11 ba.sed upon the meager evidence contained 
iri tne record, is little more than speculation. It is inconceiv­
able that a claimant should .be held to have waived his rights to 
me~ical services ioi a compensable injury on the eve of a s~rgical 
procedure recommended by his own surgeon on the basis of this rec­
ord. 

Se(.;ond, the Referee's Opinibn and Order failed to note that a 
medical examination conducted on behalf of an insurer, although 
authorized in principal by OAR 436-69-130 and OAR 436-69-210, 
11shal l not de lay or interrupt proper treat.men t o-f the work er." 
OAR 436- 69--: 210 (l). 

The Referee concluded that the proven success of the surgery 
was irrelevant. The Board disagrees. Wnether medical treatment 
is proper~ under any ·circumstances, can of~en be determined ·by its 
ultimate results·. The Board finds that the August 29, 197~ lamin­
e~torny performed by ur. Johnson was, in fact, beneficial to claim­
ant's back·condition. ·As a result, the prohibition against delay, 
as contained in OAR 43 6-.69- 210 ( 1) , is ller e applicable and cogent. 
The further requirement that nthe consultant shall submit a. writ­
ten repcrt prior t.o.the surgery," as contained in OAR 436-69-
130(2), should no~ be waived. 
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First the Referee's' opinion fails to note that that while
claimant's testimony may have appeared to be less than credible,
it was established as far back as 19 73 that claimant has a full
scale IQ of 89 with a memory quotient of 80. Psychological test­
ing in 1973 indicated that claimant functions at a low average to
dull normal level..

There is no contention here that the medical services were
not compensable, nor that they proved to be unreasonable. There
is only a contention that the insurer is not liable for payment of
the medical charges because there was a consulting physician's op­
inion that surgery was not, in his opinion, recommended.

Concluding that claimant was bound by a verbal agreement with
his doctor to proceed with surgery despite a iast-inihute with­
drawal of SAIF's authorization, the Referee seems to rely upon an
assumption that claimant was fuiiy informed of the consequences of
his decision. The existence of any verbal agreement, if in fact
one did exist, is based on sheer conjecture and appears to rely
solely upon Dr. Johnson's October 15, 1979 letter to SAIF which
stated:

"After consultation by Dr. Gordon Daines, Jr
hospital, your authorization for surgery was
After discussion with the patient, he wished
with surgery, and this was covered under his
s urance..."

. , in the
denied.
to go ahead
pr ivate i n-

The details of Dr. Johnson's "discussion with the patient" are not
in the record. Nor does the doctor's letter indicate that claim­
ant's decision relied upon the existence of private insurance, if
in fact private insurance existed. To conclude that claimant's
decision was "informed," based upon the meager evidence contained
in tne record, is little more than speculation. Ic is inconceiv­
able that a claimant should ,be held to have waived his rights to
medical services for a compensable injury on the eve of a surgical
procedure recommended by his own surgeon on the basis of this rec­
ord.

Second, the Referee's Opinion and Order failed to note that a
medical examination conducted on behalf of an insurer, although
authorized in principal by OAR 436- 69- 130 anci OAf< 436-69- 210 ,
"shall not belay or interrupt proper treatment ol the worker."
OAR 436- 69- 210 (1) .

The Referee concluded that the pr
was irrelevant. Tne Board disagrees,
is proper, under any circumstances, ca
ultimate results-. The Board finds the
ectomy performed by Dr. Johnson was, i
ant's back condition. As a result, th
as contained in OAR 436-69-210(1), is
The further requirement that "the cons
ten report prior to the surgery," as c
130(2), should not be waived.

oven success of the surgery
Wnether medical treatment

n often be determined oy its
t the August 29 , 197 9 lamin-
n fact, beneficial to claim-
e prohibition against delay,
here applicable and cogent,
ultant shall submit awrit-
ontained in OAik 436- 69-
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insurer's failure to secure la consulting of)inion in• a 1 

timely manner, and its further failu1re to provide a :written report 
of that consulting opinion to the clfaimant's treating physician, 
bars the insurer's later assertion that the treating p1ysician 
failed to refer the claimanl to' a sebond independent con.sultant. 

Dr . Da' I .- d l . d 
. • ines report~ purporte_ly1 dict~te _and typed on August 

28, 1979, the date of his consulting exam1nat1on on the eve of the 
August 29, i979 surgery, was not recbived·by the insurer until 
0::tober. Presumably, then, all comm'.unications concerning a con­
~lict in_medical opinion were verbal!- Even SAIF's withdrawal of 
its earlier consent to the surgery was verbally communicaced to 
Dr. Johnson, presumably by telephone!· · 

At the !'1ay 16, 1978 public hearling on the proposeu amendment 
of OAR 436-69-130, concerning "electlive surgery," testimony was 
submitted contending that the earliet version of the rule, requir­
ing the r ocommending s urg eon to obtain an i ndepe nde n t consul ta,_ 
tion, was too restrictive; The iulel was amended, effective June 
5, 1978 to provide that the insurer may require the recommending 

. surgeon to obtain an independent con:5ultation. Order of Adoption, 
wen Ad.min. Order 7-1978, June s, 1978 • 

. ~Tfiere· Ts--no·-evTctence.-in ihe rec~rd which indicates that tne 
insurer in th is case requested or de~anded a second. independent 
consultation as provided by OAR 436-69-130{2) in effect prior tu 

• I 

the. surgical procedure performed in this case. ·rt1e &Jard con-
cludes that the insurer had·a duty to demand a second independent 
consultation if one was desired. I . 

When an insurer obtains a "midnight exam" on the eve of a 
scheduled surgery, it is not surprising that there would be inade­
quate time to prepare and provide a teport as required by rule. 
Although Dr. Johnson fully complied &ith his duty to notity the 
insurer in writing of his intention to perform surgery--sent 12 

- .. I 

days be.tore surgery was to be performed--the effect of the Ref-
eree 1 s decision was to excuse the insurer from its duties. An 1.n­
surer 1s delay in securing a timely cbnsulting medical opinion 
should not serve to relieve it of it~ duty to provide medical 
services, whether in-state or out--oflstate. 

In view of all the circumstances surrounding the insurer's 
refusal to provide medical services to the worker, inclu~ing pay­
ment of the surgical arid hospital costs of the August 2':I, 1979 
surgery, the Boarc1 finds that the refusal was unreasonable as 
contemplated by ORS 656.262(8). I 

0.KDEK . I 
'fhe order of the Referee dated September 10, 1980 is reversed. 

The SAI·F Corporation is hereby brdered to pay claimant's sur-
9 ical and hospital expe·nses in conne6ti on with his August 2':;l, lY 79 
laminec:tomy togetner with a penalty 9f · 25% of that sum to claimant 
for its unreasonable refusal to provide medical services. . . . . I . .. 

Claimant.'s attorney•is hereby a~arded an attorney fee in tl1e 
sum of $900 for prevailing on the medical expenses issue and ser­
vices rendered i-n the Hearing and on Board,rev·iew, payable by the 

····---··---···--·-------~-~-~ 
SAIF Corporation. ···-··--·-··'·-,,.--········--·-·· ··;-;-----.-··-·-·· ........ ·--·-·····-·---· ·'···· · 
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An insurer's failure to secuce a consulting opinion in' a
timely manner, and its further failure to provide a ^written report
of that consulting opinion to the cl|aimant's treating physician,
bars the insurer's later assertion that the treating physician
failed to refer the claimant to' a sejcond independent consultant.

Dr. Daines ' report, purpor tedlyj d ictated and typed on August
2b, 19 79, the date of his consulting: examination on the eve of the
August 29 , 1979 surgery, was not received'by the insurer until
October. Presumably, then, all communications concerning a con­
flict in medical opinion were verbalj. Even SAIF's withdrawal of
its earlier consent to tne surgery was verbally communicaced to
Dr. Johnson, presumably by telephone.

At the. May 16 , 19 7 8 public hearing on the proposed amendment
of OAR . 43 6 6 9- 130 , concerning "elective surgery," testimony was
submitted contending that the earlier version of the rule, requir­
ing the recommending surgeon to obtain an independent consulta­
tion, was too r estr ictive. The rule] was amended, effective June
5 , 1978 to provide that the insurer may require the recommending
surgeon to obtain an independent consultation. Order of Adoption,
WCD Admin. Order 7-1978, . June 5, 1978 .

’There is no evidence, in the record which indicates that tne
insurer in this case requested or demanded a second independent
consultation as provided by OAR 43 6 6 9-13 0( 2) in effect prior to
the surgical procedure performed in this case. The Eioaru con­
cludes that the insurer had a duty to demand a second independent
consultation if one was desired.

When an insurer obtains a "midnight exam" on the eve of a
scheduled surgery, it is not surprising tnat there would be inade­
quate time to prepare and provide a report as required by rule.
Although Dr. Johnson fully complied with his duty to notify the
insurer in writing of his intention to perform surgery--sent 12
days before surgery was to be per for med--the effect of the Ref­
eree's decision was to excuse the insurer from its duties. An in­
surer's delay in securing a timely consulting medical opinion
should not serve to relieve it of its duty to provide medical
services, whether in-state or out-of-state.

In view of all the circumstances surrounding the insurer's
refusal to provide medical services to tne. worker, including pay­
ment of the surgical and hospital costs of the August 29 , 1979
surgery, the Board finds that the refusal was unreasonable as
contemplated by ORS 656,26 2( 8).

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September lU, 1980 is reversed

The SAIF Corporation is hereby ordered to pay claimant's sur­
gical and hospital expenses in connection with his August 29, 1979
laminectomy togetner with a penalty of 25% of that sum to claimant
for its unreasonable refusal to provide medical services.

Claimant's attorney is hereby awarded an attorney fee in the
sum of $9 00 for prevailing on the medical expenses issue and ser­
vices rendered in the Hearing and on
SAIF Corporation. 67

Bo ar d< r eview , payable by the
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(CHASE) CHOCHREK, CLAIMANT 
Bullivant, Wright et al, Attorneys 
Order Vacating ·order of Dismissal 

WCB 80-05127 
May 19,1981 

Oh April 22, 1981 the Board entered an order d.ismissing 
claimant's.request for Board review on the ground that the request 
had -apparently been abandoned. By letter ~eceived by the Board on 
May 13, 1981, claimant ·advised us of his new-address •Rocky Butte 
Jail), stated that· he wanted to have his case revie~ed by the 
Boar~ and asked whether we could appoint an attorney to represent 
him. 

The Board has no authority-to appoint an attorne~ to repre­
sent himf but can and will delay further action. in this case so 
that claim~nt can obtain legal representati6n if he wishes. 

Under current law and practice, claimant is entitled to Board 
review of his case even if he is not represented by an attorney 
and even if no brief "is filed on his behalf. 

·Our April 22, 1981 order of dismissal is ·vacated: claimant's 
case is reins~ated before the Bbard: claimant is aJlowed to June 
29,-1981 to retain an attorney if he chooses: if claimant's attoc-· 
ney contacts the Board befo~e that dati, a new briefing schedule 
will be establishedi unless the Board establishes a new briefing 
schedule on or before June 29, 1981, the employer may have until 
July£, 1981. ~o submit a brief ori Board review: and this case will 
be ··docketed for Board. review on July 6 ,. 1981. · ii 

IT IS SO ORDEREQ. 

-68-

STEPHEN (CHASE) CHOCHREK, CLAIMANT
BulTivant, Wright et al, Attorneys
Order Vacatina Order of Dismissal

WCB 80-05127
May 19,1981 m

Oh April 22, 1981 the Board entered an order dismissing
claimant's.request for Board review on the ground that the request
had apparently been abandoned. By letter received by the Board on
May 13, 1981, claimant advised us of his new address <Rocky Butte
Jail), stated that he wanted to have his case reviewed by the
Board and asked whether we could appoint an attorney to represent
him.

The Board has no authority to appoint an attorney to repre­
sent him, but can and will delay further action.in this case so
that claimant can obtain legal representation if he wishes.

Under current law and practice, claimant is entitled to Board
review, of his case even if he is not represented by an attorney
and even if no brief is filed on his behalf.

Our April 22, 1981 order of dismissal is vacated; claimant's
case is reinstated before the Board; claimant is allowed to June
29, 1981 to retain an attorney if he chooses; if claimant's attor­
ney contacts the Board before that date, a new briefing schedule
will be established; unless the Board establishes a new brie.fing
schedule on or before June 29, 1981, the employer may have until
July .6, 1981 to submit a brief on Board review; and this case will
be docketed for Board review on July 6,. 1981. m

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
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STANTON LOVELL, CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order Denying Attorney Fees 

I 

WCB 80#11084 
May, 20, 1981 

By O~n Motion Order date~ Febru~ry 23, 1981, the .Board or­
dered: "Clai~ant is entitled to hav~ her claim reopened upon the 
hospitalization for the recommended ~yelogram." By letter dated 
March 18, 1981 claimant's ac.~orney has requested that we award .:.,n 
attorney fee for his services in connection with the own motion 
reopening. 

The relevant rule is OAR 438-47~070(2), which provides: 
·1 

"If a proceeding is initiated on the Board's own motion 
because of a request from t claimant and an increase in 
compensation is awarded, the Board shall approve for 
claimant's attorney a reasonable fee payable out of any 
increase awarded by the Bo~rd." 

I 
I 

There are two distinct steps in/ the Board's processing of re­
quests for own motion relief. The Board first decides whether a 
claim will be reopened or not by "Owh Motion Order." If the claim 
is reopened by such an order, it is ~ubsequently closed by the 
-Board by "Own· Motion Determination. "I· The questions are whether 
attorney fees should be awarded at both steps or only one step, 
and.if at only one step, which of th~ two.· 

• I 

I 
The rule refers to "an increas~ in compensation" being 

awarded as the basis of an award of attorney fees. Despite prior 
custom to the contrary, the Board no:w conc-ludes that compensation 
is awarded for present purposes at ~he time of an Own ~otion De­
termination. Therefore, that is th~ appropriate point .at which to 
consider a claimant's attorney's entitlement to an award of fees. 

I 
tlaimant's attorney's request for fees in this case is denied 

at this time as premature. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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HAZEL STANTON LOVELL, CLAIMANT
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Attorney Fees

WCB 80-11084
May. 20, 1981

By Own Motion Order date<3 February 23, 1981, the Board or­
dered: "Claimant is entitled to have her claim reopened upon the
hospitalization for the recommended myelogram." By letter dated
March 18, 1981 claimant's a<-corney has requested that we award aii
attorney fee for his services in connection with the own motion
reopening.

The relevant rule is OAR 438 47 070(2), which provides:

"If a proceeding is initiated on the Board's own motion
because of a request from a claimant and an increase in
compensation is awarded, the Board shall approve for
claimant's attorney a reasonable fee payable out of any
increase awarded by the Board,"^ I

There are two distinct steps in| the Board's processing of re­
quests for own motion relief. The Board first decides whether a
claim will be reopened or not by "Own Motion Order." If the claim
is reopened by such an order, it is subsequently closed by the
eoard by "Own' Motion Determination."! The questions are whether
attorney fees should be awarded at both steps or only one step,
and if at only one step, which of the two. '

The rule refers to "an increasel in compensation" being
awarded as the basis of an award of attorney fees. Despite prior
custom to the contrary, the Board no|w concludes that compensation
is awarded for present purposes at the time of an Own Motion De­
termination. Therefore, that is the appropriate point at which to
consider a claimant's attorney's entitlement to an award of fees.

Claimant's attorney's request for fees
at this time as premature.

in this case is denied

IT IS SO ORDERED.

<9
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R. ANDERSON, CLAIMANT 
Allan H. Coons, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for-.Review by SAIF 

WCB 80-03165 
May 21, 1981 

Reviewed by f:3oard Members Barnes and McCallister. 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the H.eferee's 
order which found claimant':: occupational disease claim, which 
SAIF had denied, to be compensable. 

· The medical evidence e sta blis hes that claimant I s chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease could have been caused by particu~ 
lants and fumes to which he was exfX)sed while working as a crane 
operator at a smelting company, or could have been caused by his 
smoking of cigarettes, or could have been caused by a combination 
of those factors. The Board finds no persuasive basis in the 
record for concluding one cause more likely than the other. 

Th~s case is, tnerefore, indistinguishable from Thompson v. 
SAIF, 51 Or App 395 (1981), decided by 'the court subsequently to 
tne Referee's decision. For tne reasons stated in '.rhomeson, 
claimant's occupational disease claim is not compensable. · 

The Referee ordered payment of additional temporary total 
disability benefits and a 9250 attorney fee for SAIF's failure to. 
timely pay those benefiis and for SAIF's failure to deny the claim 
within 60 days. On appeal, SAU' does not question those portions 
of the Referee's order. 1rhey will be affirmed. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated October 24, 1980 is affirmed 
in part and reversed in part. That portion finding claimant's 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease compensable is reversed, and 
SAIF's denial of April 3, 1980 is affirmed. 'rnat portion of the 
Referee 1 s order ordering payment of additional temporary total 
disability benefits and a $250 attorney fee by SAIF is affirmed. 
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DONALD R. ANDERSON, CLAIMANT
Allah H. Coons, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for.Review by SAIF

WCB 80-03165
May 21, 1981 m

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCailister

The.SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's
order which found claimant's occupational disease claim, which
SAIF had denied, to be compensable.

The medical evidence establishes that claimant's chronic ..
obstructive pulmonary disease could have been caused by particu-
lants and fumes to which he was exposed while working as a crane
operator at a smelting company, or could have been caused by his
smoking of cigarettes, or could have .been caused by a combination
of those factors. The Board finds no persuasive basis in the
record for concluding one cause more likely than the other.

This case is, therefore, indistinguishable from Thompson v.
SAIF, 51 Or App 395 (1981), decided by the court subsequently to

decision.tile Referee's decision. For tne reasons stated in Thompson,
claimant's occupational disease claim is not compensable.

The Referee ordered payment of additional temporary total
disability benefits and a 3250 attorney fee for SAIF's failure to.
timely pay those benefits and for SAIF's failure to deny the claim
within 60 days. On appeal, SAIF does not question those portions
of the Referee's order. They will be affirmed.

m

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 24 , 1980 is affirmed
in part and reversed in part. That portion finding claimant's
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease compensable is reversed, and
SAIF's denial of April 3 , 19 80 is affirmed. Tnat portion of the
Referee's order ordering payment of additional
disability benefits and a $250 attorney fee by

temporary total
SAIF is affirmed.

m
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. GUILLERMO BENAVIDEZ, CLAIMANT . \ 
Olsqn,·Hittle et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
Schwabe; . Wil 1 i ams on et a 1. Defense Attorneys 
Order of Abatement 

I 

WCB 79-10201 
May 21. 1981 

A request for reconiideration o~ the Board's Order on Review, 
dated April- 21, 1981, has been recei~ed from the employer in the 
above-entitled matter. 

In order to permit time to recorlsider the attorney fee 
portion of its Order on Review, that brder is hereby abated. 

l 

Counsel for .the.claimant 
date hereof to respond to the 
reco_ns idera t ion. 

is herJby grant~d ~5 
May 11,J 19 81 request 

days from the 
for 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

. ELMER C. GOODMAN, CLAIMANT 
· SAIF Corp Lega1, D~fense Attorney 

Own Motion Order 

! 
' I . 

I 

Own Motion 81-0132M 
May 21, 1981 

Claimant.requests the .Board to e~ercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and\ reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industiial injury of April 4, 1973. 

. . , . I . . 
In support of claimant's contention the Board has been provi­

ded with medical reports from Dr. Eilkrs. A report of February · 
10, 1981 indicates that claimant's cu~rent condition is related to 
his industrial injury of 1973. Dr. E~iers hospitalized claimant 
on April 9, and on April 10, 1981 claimant underw~nt surgery. 

The Board finds that claimant's 
of the April 9, 1981 hospitalization 
ized pursuant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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l 
claim ~hould be reopened as 
and until closure is author-
' 

i 

#
GUILLERMO BENAVIDEZ. CLAIMANT
Olson,'Hittle et al, Claimant's Attorney's
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys
Order of Abatement

WCB 79-10201
May 21, 1981

A request for reconsideration of the Board's Order on Review,
dated April 21, 1981, has been received from the employer in the
above-entitled matter. j

In order to permit time to reconsider the attorney fee
portion of its Order on Review, that 'Order is hereby abated.

Counsel for the claimant is hereby granted 15 days from the
date hereof to respond to the May 11, 1981 request for
reconsideration.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

ELMER C. GOODMAN, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0132M
May 21, 1981

Claimant , requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656,278, and{ reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of April 4, 1973.

In support of claimant's contention the Board has been provi­
ded with medical reports from Dr. Eilers. A report of February
10, 1981 indicates that claimant's current condition is related to
his industrial injury of 1973. Dr. Eiiers hospitalized claimant
on April 9, and on April 10, 1981 claimant underwent surgery.

1
The Board finds that claimant's claim ^should be reopened as

of the April 9, 1981 hospitalization and until closure is author­
ized pursuant to ORS 656.278. |

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
-71-

--

i 

-



  
  

   
  

          
           

         
     

       
          
          

 
    

           
          
         

  

          
         
       

        

   

   
    

   
  

          
          
           

         

         
         
        
          

     

          
          
            

       

   

CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0046M 
May 21, ~981 

The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion 
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a 
worsened condition related to his August 14, 1972 industrial in­
jury. Claimant's aggrava~is:1 rights have expired. 

The medical evidence indicates that claimant's original in­
jury was diagnosed as cervical strain. The current problem being 
treated is cervical disc disease. In his report of January 30, 
1981, Dr. Lindberg states: "By history from the patient Mr. Ham­
rick's present problems could be considered a continuation of the 
old problem arising out of a 1972 injury." 1iEmphasis Added.·} The 
Board finds this evidence is insuff{cient to relate his current 
condition of degenerative disc disease to his cervical strain in-
jury of 1972. · 

Claimant's request for own motion relief is denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED • 

. NANCY POPPENHAGEN, CLAIMANT 
~ary Galton, Claimant's Attorrey 

Own Motion 81-0107M 
May 21, 1981 

Claimant, by and through her attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant ·to ORS 656.278 and 
reopen her claim for a worsened condition related to her February· 
5, 1973 industrial injury. '=laimant 1 s aggravation ~ights have eY­
pired. 

The medical report from Dr. Sirounian indicates that claimant 
has "degenerative joint disease of the lumbosacral spine secondary 
to previous herniated disc. 11 For claimant-1 s· condition, Dr. Sir­
ounian recommended the use of Motrin and Flexoril. This appears 
to be the only treatment provided. 

Based on the above, the Board finds :that ·claimant's condition 
does not tequiie claim 0 reopeni~g,·but she is entitled to medical 
services which the carrier can and says it will provide under ORS 
656.245. 

Claimant's request for own motion relief is denied. 

IT IS so· ORDERED. 
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DAVID.HAMRICK, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0046M
May 21, 1981

The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a
worsened condition related to his August 14, 1972 industrial in­
jury, Claimant's aggravaticn rights have expired.

The medical evidence indicates that claimant's original in­
jury was diagnosed as cervical strain. The current problem being
treated is cervical disc disease. In his report of January 30,

Mr. Ham-
_________ .on of the

old problem arising out of a 1972 injury." ^Emphasis Added.) The
Board finds this evidence is insufficient to relate his current
condition of degenerative disc disease to his cervical strain in­
jury of 1972.

treated is cervical disc disease. In his report of Janu.
1981, Dr. Lindberg states: "By history from the patient
rick's present problems could be considered a continuati*

Claimant's request for own motion relief is denied,

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

NANC P0PPENHA6EN, CLAIMANT
Gary Gal ton. Claimant's Attorney

Own Motion 81 0107M
May 21, 1981

Claimant, by and through her attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS 656.278 and
reopen her claim for a worsened condition related to her February
5, 1973 industrial injury. ‘ Claimant's aggravation rights have ex­
pired.

The medical report from Dr. Sirounian indicates that claimant
has "degenerative joint disease of the lumbosacral spine secondary
to previous herniated disc." For claimant^'s condition, Dr. Sir­
ounian recommended the use of Motrin and Flexoril. This appears
to be the only treatment provided.

Based on the above, the Board finds that claimant's condition
does not require claim*reopening, but she is entitled to medical
services which the carrier can and says it will provide under ORS
656.245.

Claimant's request for own motion relief is denied.

IT IS SO' ORDERED.
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I 
. DELLA RODGERS, cL:ArMANT · I 
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant'.s Attorneys 
SAIF .Corp Legal, Defense Attorney I 
Lang, Klein et a 1 , Def ens·e Attorneys, _ 
Request-for Rev·iew by SAIF I 

wcs.·so-02s11 and so-02512 
May 21, 1981 

Rev~e~ed _by Board Members McCaliister and Lewis. 
I 

. SAIF Corporation seeks.Board re~iew of that portion 0£ t~e 
Referee's order which founa-··claimant ,, s January 2, 1980 injury-­
allegedlj sustained whil~ working fo~ Mountain Park Health Care 
Facility as a food service worker-~tb be compensable. The issue 
is compehsab~lity. · 

I 

I 
SAIF 1 s letters of January 27, 1~81 and ·March 4, 1981 ·were 

presumably iritended·as appellant's briefs. Each contains one 
paragraph in support of-its position: which is apparently limited 
to "questioning" wheth~r -it is possibl~ to find. the claimant cred­
ible. Relying on it~ contention tha~·the record is replete with 
claimant's tintruths, SAIF argues th~t-if claimant.could not be.be-
1-ieved in one-. particular, she should· not be believed in any.. SAIF 
fails, how~ver, to point to any portion of the record to support · 
its contentiory that claimant's testimony·was less ~han credible. 

Claimant appropriately cites a variety of cases to supp9rt 
the position Ehat the Referee's finding that testimony was cred­
jble should be given gieat weight. ~annan v. Good Samaritan Hos­
pital, ·4 Or App .178;.Widener v. Loui-iana-Pacific Corp., 40 Or App 
3; Satterfield v~ State Compensation· Departmen~ 1 Or App 524; 
Moore v. u. s. Plywood Corp., 1 Or APP 343; and Lisoki v. The 
Embers, 2 Or _App 60. 

Absent any evidence ·impeaching claimant's testimony as to the 
occurrence of the Jan~ary· 2, 1980 _injury, and i~ light of the Ref­
eree's findings of credibility, the Board concludes that the Ref-. 
eree's findi~g 6f a compensable injdry·should be affirmed.· 

ORDER 
I 
j 

The order of the Referee dated pctobfr 7, 1980 is affirmed. 
I 

Claimant's attorney is hereby awarded attorney's fees in the 
sum of $350 for legal services render'ed in this appeal. 

I . 
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DELLA RODGERS, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80 02511 and 80 02512
May 21, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.
I

SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of that portion o£ the
Referee's order which found'claimant's January 2, 1980 injury--
allegedly sustained while working for Mountain Park Health Care
Facility as a food service worker-.-to be compensable. The issue
is compensability.

i .
SAIF's letters of January 27, 1981 and March 4, 1981 were

presumably intended as appellant's briefs. Each contains one
paragraph in support of its position which is apparently limited
to "questioning" whether-it is possible to find,the claimant cred­
ible. Relying on its contention that the record is replete with
claimant's untruths, SAIF argues that-if claimant.could not be be­
lieved in one.particular, she should not be believed in any. SAIF
fails, however, to point to any portion of the record to support
its contention that claimant's testimony was less than credible.

Claimant appropriately cites a variety of cases to support
the position that the Referee's finding that testimony was cred­
ible should be given great weight. Hannan v. Good Samaritan Hos­
pital, 4 Or App 178; Widener v. Louisiana-Pacific Corp., 40 Or App
3; Satterfield v. State Compensation Department 1 Or App 524;
Moore V. U. S. Plywood Corp., 1 Or App 343; and Lisoki v. The
Embers, 2 Or .App 60.

Absent any evidence impeaching claimant's testimony as to the
occurrence of the January 2, 1980 injury, and in light of the Ref­
eree's findings of credibility, the Board concludes that the Ref­
eree's finding of a compensable injury should be affirmed.

ORDER
Ii

The order of the Referee dated October 7, 1980 is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby awarded attorney's fees in the
sum of $350 for legal services rendered in this appeal.

#
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A. WILSON, CLAIMANT 
SAI-F Corp le~al, Defense Attorney 
Amended Own Mo"tion Order 

Own Motion 81-OO55M 
May 21, 1981 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled 
matter on Mar6h 13, 1981. That order found claimant's hospitali­
zation, surgery and medical benefits were to be paid by SAIF under 
the provisions of ORS 656.2~5. However, the Board granted clai~­
ant no cornp~nsation foi_ temporary total disability as ~ur informa­
tion _regarding claimant's time loss~ if any, was insufficient. 

On Maj 12, 1981 the Board received information from ~he 
claimant which indicates that claimant left his employment on 
January 12, 1981 and was hospitalized as of January 15, 1981. 

THEREFORE, claimant's claim is to be reopened with compensa­
tion for temporary total disability cornmencin~ Januaiy 15, 1981 
until ·closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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DAVID A. WILSON, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney
Amended Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0055M
May 21, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on March 13/ 1981, That order found claimant's hospitali­
zation, surgery and medical benefits were to be paid by SAIF under
the provisions of ORS 656,2^5. However, the Board granted clai"-
ant no compensation for temporary total disability as our informa­
tion regarding claimant's time loss, if any, was insufficient.

On May 12, 1981 the Board received information from the
claimant which indicates that claimant left his employment on
January 12, 1981 and was hospitalized as of January 15, 1981.

THEREFORE, claimant's claim is to be reopened with compensa­
tion for temporary total disability commencing January 15, 1981
until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
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r,. BELCHER, CLAIMANT 
Jeffrey Mutnick, Claimant's Attorney· 
Paul Roess, Defen~e Attorney 
Reque~t for Review by- Employer 

• I 

'• 
I WCB 79-10506 

May~2, 19?1 

. Revie~ed bp Board_mejbers Barnt~ and McCalli~ter. 

The ~rnployer seeks BoaiJ review ~f the Ref~ree's order 
which:· (1) Increased the extent 6f cJaimant~s ~ermanent partial 
unscheduled disability award from the 5% allowed py the November 
27, 1979 Determination .Order to 50%; and (2) Remanded claimant's 
aggravation claim to the employer for acceptance and payment of 
benefits~ The employer contends that claimant is not entitled ·to 
claim reopeni_ng and that the award of permanent disability granted 
'vlas excessive. I 

I 

I 
On March'l2, 1979, claimant susiainecl a lumbosacral strain 

while-woiking as a mot~l h6~~ekeeperJ Claimant was treated by.Dr. 
Freudenberg_ and or; S~hostal. Their l~ltimat~ diagnosis was a mild 
left L-5 r~diculopathy. Claimant was treated conservatively; 
surgery was not then indicated. Dr. 1Freudenberg opined that 
claimant's physical condit{on foreclosed heavy lifting oi· repeated 
bending~ -Based.on ~11 this information, the Evaluation Division 
~f the Worker~• Compen~ation.Department granted claimant an award 
of 5% permanent partial di~~bility irt November of 1979.· . I . 

. ·. Claimant continued to be treated by Dr. Freudenberg. By 
April of .1980 he· ~oncluded that claiiant was goini to need a 
lam1nectomy and· a d isectomy ~ · Dr. Freudenberg ref er.red claimant to 
Dr. Wh~tney. Dr. Whitney's report ~1ncludes: 

' I • 

"My impression is that·thi~ patient has probably come to 
th~ poirit of needing surgery, however, her resistance to 
the surgery and her· social·problems at the present time 
~ould make me very wary 9f 1 proceeding with any surgical 
treatment at the present time. 

. . . ' 

i 
"~ recommended outpatient psychiatric evaluati~n and 
prob~bly anti-depressants. i I would personally· wait 
until_ after her p~rsonal l~fe is resolved to a- shatus. 
before I went a~ead with s~rgerY., as ~er pain is not 
overwhelming at the ptesent time. During this time, she 
can. c6ntinue with the Weig~t Loss Clinic." 

. '· 
The Referee concluded that clai~ant's clai~ should be 

reopened "for surgery and psychiatrit help." There is absolutely 
no indication in the record that claimant's psychiatric condition 
is related to her March 1979 injury qr in any other way 
compensable •. All indications are that claimant's psychiatric 
condition was related solely to personal problems. The Referee 
erred in o~de~ing claim reopening fo~ psych!atric help.. · 

--- -·· - . -- --------·- -- .. ,·-·· 1 ·--, --

1 
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JANET G. BELCHER, CLAIMANT
Jeffrey Mutnick, Claimant's Attorney’
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 79-10506
May22. 1981

Reviewed by- Board members Barnes and McCallister.
The employer seeks Board review ^of the Referee's order

which: (1) Increased the extent of claimant's permanent partial
unscheduled disability award from the 5% allowed by the November
27, 1979 Determination Order to 50%; and (2) Remanded claimant's
aggravation claim to the employer for acceptance and payment of
benefits.. The employer contends that claimant is not entitled to
claim reopening and that the award of permanent disability granted
was excessive.
'

On March 12, 1979, claimant sustained a lumbosacral strain
while working as a motel housekeeper. Claimant was treated by.Dr.
Freudenberg. and Dr. Schostai. Their ultimate diagnosis was a mild
left L“5 radiculopathy. Claimant was treated conservatively;
surgery was not then indicated. Dr. Treudenberg opined that
claimant's physical condition foreclosed heavy lifting or repeated
bending. Based on all this information, the Evaluation Division
of the Workers' Compensation Department granted claimant an award
of 5% permanent partial disability in November of 1979.

Claimant continued to be treated by Dr, Freudenberg. By
April of .1980 he concluded that claimant was going to need a
laminectomy and' a disectomy. Dr. Freudenberg referred claimant to
Dr. Whitney. Dr. Whitney's report concludes:

"My impression is that this patient has probably come to
the point of needing surgery, however, her resistance to
the surgery and her social problems at the present time
would make me very wary of ,proceeding with any surgical
treatment at the present time.

"I recommended outpatient psychiatric evaluation and
probably anti-depressants; j I would personally wait
until after her personal li'fe is resolved to a status
before I went ahead with surgery, as her pain is not
overwhelming at the present time. During this time, she
can continue with the Weight Loss Clinic."

The
reopened
no indication
is related to
compensable.
condition was

Referee concluded that claimant's claim should be
"for surgery and psychiatric help." There is absolutely

in the record that claimant's psychiatric condition
her March 1979 injury or in any other way
All indications are that claimant's psychiatric
related solely to personal problems. The Referee

erred in ordering claim reopening for psychiatric help.
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Boaid concludes that the Referee's order that this claim 
.be· reopened for surgery was 1-'remature. Neither Dr. Freudenberg 
nor Dr. Whitney have scheduled surgery. As the Board interprets 
the record, claimant has no present intention to submit to 
surgery. SAIF's brief before the Boaid correctly concedes: "If 
and.when claim~nt and her doctors decide to go ah~ad with surgery, 
then the claim _should be reopened at that time for the payment of 
all benefits occasioned by .the surgery." 

. The claimant's brief ·ar~ues that even if the Referee's 
reaions for claim reopening--"for surgery and psychiatric 
help 11 --were incorrect, nevertheless the Referee reached the right 
result in ordering claim reopening because claimant's condition. 
had worsened since the last. arrangement of compensation. 
Certainly, the Referee found that at the time of the April 1980 
hearing claimint's condition had worsened since the ~ovember 1979 
Determination. Order because, relying on Dr. Freudenberg's and Dr .. 
Whitney's pos~-Deteimination-Order reports, he increased the 
extent of claimant 1 s permanent disability ten fold. It is clear 
that claimant wants something more, but what claimant wants is not 
clear. As previously noted, SAIF has already conceded clai~ant's 
entitlement to surgery for her low bapk condition. Possibly, · 
claimant seeks payment for temporary total disability, but there 
is no evidence in the record that claim~nt would have been working 
or seeking work but for her allegedly worsened condition. 

In ~ny event, the claim of worsened condition in any sense 
other than the possible need for surgery is not sustained by the 
re~ord. on·April 18, 1980 D~. ~reudenberg reported claimant•~ 
condition was "worse subjectively and objectively." On April 30, 
1980 Dr. Freudenberg reported that claimant'"has improved only 
slightly over the past year." These two statements are flatly 
contradictory. The Board is unable to find any persuasive basis 
in the record for picking one over the other, and therefore 
concludes that claimant has not-proven a worsenirig in any sense 
other than possible need for surgery. 

~ + •• ·• • < M 

We turn to the question of extent of clairnant•s permanent 
disability. The ~lairnant wa~ 37 years of age at the time of her 
1979 injury. She hai limited education. Most of claimant's work 
experienc~ has been physical labor and hospital work, housekeeping 
and waitress employment. Dr. Freudenberg states claimant "is 
probably" foreclosed irom "any heavy lifting or repeated 
bending." In evaluating the claima~t's loss of earning capacity, 
contrasted with other like cases, we find the claimant to have a 
25% Un$cheduled permanent .partial disability. 

ORDER 

Claimant's. aggravation-claim for reopening is denied at this 
time. · · · · 

Claimant is awarded 25~ unscheduled permanent partial 
disability for her March 12, 1979 injury. This award is in lieu 
of all previous awards. 

Claimant's attorney is hereby 9ranted as and for a reasonable 
attorney fee 25% of the compensation for permanent partial 
disability granted by this order, not to exceed $1,000. This is 
in lieu of all previous awards of attorne~'s fees~ 
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The Board concludes that the Referee's order that this claim
be reopened for surgery was premature. Neither Dr. Freudenberg
nor Dr. Whitney have scheduled surgery. As the Board interprets
the record, claimant has no present intention to submit to
surgery. SAIF's brief before the Board correctly concedes: "If
and when claimant and her doctors decide to go ahead with surgery,
then the claim should be reopened at that time for the payment of
all benefits occasioned by the surgery."

The claimant's brief argues that even if the Referee's
reasons for claim reopening--"for surgery and psychiatric
help"--were incorrect, nevertheless the Referee reached the right
result in ordering claim reopening because claimant's condition,
had worsened since the last, arrangement of compensation.
Certainly, the Referee found that at the time of the April 1980
hearing claimant's condition had worsened since the November 1979
Determination. Order because, relying on Dr. Freudenberg's and Dr..
Whitney's post-Determination-Order reports, he increased the
extent of claimant's permanent disability ten fold. It is clear
that claimant wants something more, but what claimant wants is not
clear. As previously noted, SAIF has already conceded claimant's
entitlement to surgery for her low back condition. Possibly,
claimant seeks payment for temporary total disability, but there
is no evidence in the record that claimant would have been working
or seeking work but for her allegedly worsened condition.

In any event, the claim of worsened condition in any sense
other than the possible need for surgery is not sustained by the
record, On'April 18, 1980 Dr. Freudenberg reported claimant's
condition was "worse subjectively and objectively." On April 30,
1980 Dr. Freudenberg reported that claimant "has improved only
slightly over the past year." These two statements are flatly
contradictory. The Board is unable to find any persuasive basis
in the record for picking one over the other, and therefore
concludes that claimant has not-proven a worsening in any sense
other than possible need for surgery.

We turn to the question of extent of claimant's permanent
disability. The claimant was 37 years of age at the time of her
1979 injury. She has limited education. Most of claimant's work
experience has been physical labor and hospital work, housekeeping
and waitress employment. Dr. Freudenberg states claimant "is
probably" foreclosed from "any heavy lifting or repeated
bending." In evaluating the claimant's loss of earning capacity,
contrasted with other like cases, we find the claimant to have a
25% unscheduled permanent .partial disability.

ORDER

time.
Claimant's. aggravation-claim for reopening is denied at this

Claimant is awarded 25'o unscheduled permanent partial
disability for her March 12, 1979 injury. This award is in lieu
of all previous awards.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as and for a reasonable
attorney fee 25% of the compensation for permanent partial
disability granted by this order, not to exceed $1,000. This is
in lieu of all previous awards of attorney's fees.
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BULT, CLAIMANT 
J. David Kryger, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order Awarding Attorney Fees 

SAIF CLAIM r,c 242435 
May 22, 1981 

Our 
award an 
rnitted a 
mitted. 

O~n Motion Determination dared February 23, 1981 
attotney fee bec~use claimant 1 s attorn~y had not 
fe~ ·agreement~ Such an agr~ernent has since been 

- I . -·. - . 
ORDER 

I 

did not 
sub­
sub-

Clajrnant's fee agreement with Jis attor~ey is ap~roved, and 
claima.nt' s attorney is· awarded as an1d for a reasonable attorney_· 
fee for services ren~ered "in connec~ion ~ith this own motion pro­
ceeding 25% of the inc;reased compens;ation awarded by the Board's 
Own Motion Determination of :Februar~ 23, 1981, not tq exceed $7~0, 
payable. from claimant's compensatiori.· • , I 

---,---------:-,---,-----,---,--------,-------- ··-· ···-- .. ··-·· .....•..... ·-----·.. .... .. -·· -· -· --·-··· .. 
·1 ' 

,, ... . ·:. 

ALANE. HANAWALT, CLAIMANT 
Stephen ~awrence, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Reauest for Review by Clai~ant 
Cross Request by ~AIF 

Reviewed ·by.the-Boar~ en bane. 

- WCB 79-07955 
_May 22, 1981 

The claimant seeks Boa~J review of the Referee's order. Ttc 
~laimant cont~nds he is entitled to:I fl) Greater permanent par­
tia~·aisability ·than the 10% awarded by the Referee: f2) greater 
tempor~ry total disability_ than was !awarded by the Determination 
Order and ~ffirrned by Referee~ (3) ~omething ~aving to do with vo­
cational'rehabilitation. 1he SAIF Corporation tSAIF) seeks cross 
-revie~, coniending the- Referee's aw~rd of ~ermanent partial dis-
~bi'lity was excessive. · 

On the first two issues, i.e., exte~t of temporary total aMd 
permanent .partial disab~lity, the B_qard affirms and adopts the. 
relevant por~ions of the Referee's 1Pi~ion and ·Order. 

. I • 

The vocational rehabilitati6n issue is obscure. Following 
his ind.us trial· injury," the claimant'lwas accepted ~rito and partici­
pated in an educational program sponsored by the Vocational Rehab­
ilitation. Division ~VRD) of the DepJrtrnent ·of Human Resources. 
That program resulted in claimant's obtaining a master's degree in 
public administration ~com.Portland State University. VRD paid 
claimant's tuition. · · 

--~-----···- -------~--=-------· ----- -. ·-· --·- : .. -

'-77-

m

m

m

RICHARD BULT, CLAIMANT
J. David Kryger, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Awarding Attorney Fees

SAIF CLAIM GC 242435
May 22, 1981

Our Own Motion Determination darted February 23, 1981 did not
award an attorney fee because claimant’s attorney had not sub­
mitted a fee agreement. Such an agr|eement has since been sub­
mitted.

ORDER
i

Claimant's fee agreement with his attorney is approved, and
claimant's attorney is awarded as and for a reasonable attorney
fee for services rendered in connect'ion with this own motion pro­
ceeding 25% of the increased compensation awarded by the Board's
Own Motion Determination of February 23, 1981, not to exceed $750,
payable from claimant's compensation.

ALAN E. HANAWALT, CLAIMANT WCB 79 07955
Stephen Lawrence, Claimant's Attorney May 22, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant
Cross Request by SAIF

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order. The
claimant contends he is entitled to:| (1) Greater permanent par­
tial disability than the 10% awarded by the Referee; i2) greater
temporary total disability, than was jawarded by the Determination
Order and affirmed by Referee; (3) something having to do with vO'
cational rehabilitation. The SAIF Corporation ISAIF) seeks cross
review, contending the Referee's award of permanent partial dis­
ability was excessive.

1,. eOn the first two issues,
permanent partial disability, the Board affirms and adopts
relevant portions of the Referee's Opinion and Order.

extent of temporary total and
the

The vocational rehabilitation issue is obscure. Following
his industrial injury, the claimant'|was accepted into and partici­
pated in an educational program sponsored by the Vocational Rehab­
ilitation. Division *VRD) of the Department of Human Resources.
That program resulted in claimant's
public administration from Portland
claimant's tuition.
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obtaining a master's degree in
State University, VRD paid
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the outset oi the hearing, there was confusion· about ex­
actly what the vocational rehabilitation issue was: 

"The Referee: Going back to the VRD issue, what you are 
aEter there essentially is reimbursement for tuiti6n 
th~t_claimant paid? 

"(Claimant's Attorney] Well, if reimbursement was 
going t6 be paidJ it would have to be made to VRD. They 
paid for fuition. 

"The Referee: So what you are here then 

"[Clai~ant's Attorney]: 
underwrite that. 

I'm saying that they should 

"The-Referee: Well, I w~s trying to fina out what it is 
you want me to do. Your're saying that FSD [FieJd Ser­
vices Division] should reimburse VRD for the money they 
paid on Mr. Hanawalt's behalf? 

· 11 [Claimant's Attorney]: That's my position." 

That confusion remains. The claimant offers no explanation of why 
he would have any interest in a matter of bookkeeping between two 
governmental agencies, or how he might conceivably have standing 
to aisert fhe interest of VRD against FSD. 

Claimant also argues he should .have been paid temporary total a 
disability .until- he graduated from Portland State Universi"ty. The V 
si~ple answ~r is: ~1) Such payments are only available "if the 
worker is enrolled and actively engaged in an authorized program 
of vocational rehabilitation," ORS 656.268 H); and f2) there is no 
evidence in the present record that claimant's rehahilitatjon pro-. 
gram-was authorized by anybody connected with workers' compensa-
tion. 

Indeed, claimant's ultimate grievance should be that his. ef­
forts to g~t FSD to. authorize his rehabilitation program at Port-· 
land Sta~e University were simply ignored by FSD. However, this 
Board and its Hearings Division lack jurisdiction to review in­
action by FSD or any other division of the Workers' Compensation 
Department. Other- remedies exist for legally inexcusable adminis-
trative inaction. See ORS 183.490. · 

In summary, to the extent that claimant is concerned about 
FSD inaction, he is in the wrong forum; to the extent claimant 

. wants temporary disability for the period he atten~ed Portland 
State, he has not proven entitlement thereto1 and claimant lacks 
standing to assert that FSD should reimburse VRD for his Portland 
State program. 

ORDER 

The·order of the Referee dated Augus·t 12, 1980 ts affirmed. 

-78-
· (Dissent follows) 

-.-$ ·V 
' ' ' 

At the outset of the hearing, there was confusion' about ex­
actly what the vocational rehabilitation issue was:

"The Referee: Going back to the VRD issue, what you are
after there essentially is reimbursement for tuition
that.claimant paid?

"[Claimant's Attorney]: Well, if reimbursement was
going to be paid., it would have to be made to VRD. They
paid for. tuition.

"The Referee: So what you are here then --

"[Claimant's Attorney]
underwrite that.

I'm, saying that they should

"The-Referee: Well, I was trying to find out what it is
,, you want me to do.  our're saying that FSD [Field Ser­
vices Division] should reimburse VRD for the money they
paid on Mr. Hanawalt's behalf?

"[Claimant's Attorney]: That's my position."

That confusion remains. The claimant offers no explanation of why
he would have any interest in a matter of bookkeeping between two
governmental agencies, or how he might conceivably have standing
to assert the interest of VRD against FSD.

Claimant also argues he should .have been paid temporary total
disability until he graduated from Portland State University. The
simple answer is: fcl) Such payments are only available "if the
worker is enrolled and actively engaged in an authorized program
of vocationail rehabilitation," ORS 656.268 11); and 12) there is no
evidence in the present record that claimant’s rehabilitation pro­
gram 'was authorized by anybody connected with workers' compensa­
tion.

Indeed, claimant's ultimate grievance should be that his- ef­
forts to get FSD to authorize his rehabilitation program at Port­
land State University were simply ignored by FSD. However, this
Board and its Hearings Division lack jurisdiction to review in­
action by FSD or any other division of the Workers' Compensation
Department. Other remedies exist for legally inexcusable adminis­
trative inaction. See ORS 183.490.

In summary, to the extent that claimant is concerned about
FSD inaction, he is in the wrong forum; to the extent claimant
wants temporary disability for the period he attended Portland
State, he has not proven entitlement thereto; and claimant lacks
standing to assert that FSD should reimburse VRD for his Portland
State program.

ORDER

(Dissent follows)

The order of the Referee dated August 12, 1980 is affirmed.
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' 1· 

I 
(Hanawal~, cont.) 

. . . . ' I 

Board Member George· Lewis respectfully dissents: 
' 

On the issue of claimant's exteni of disability, I agree with 
the majority. The Referee's award of 10% unscheduled low back 

.disability.is appropriate. Loss of earning capacity must be con­
sidered in. co~nection with a worker'i handicap in obtaining and 
holding gainful employment in the broaa·field of general indus­
trial occupations~ and nbt just i~ relationship to his occupation 
at any given time. Ford v. SAIF, 7 Or App 549, 492 P2d 4-91 tl972). 

Claimant ·will never be able to r,eturn to his usual occupation 
as a welder, and his work activities :are permanently iimitecl by 
his physical impairment. The mere fact that he now has a master's 
degree a-nd was gainfully employed at ·:a temporary job at the time 
of the hearing does not detract from •the fact that he is forever 
limited in the general scope of work ,activities which he may pur-
sue. 1 

.I 
As to the rem~ining issues, I ~~spectfully dissent. 

Claimant seeks ~aaitional- tempoJary.disabil~ty benefits for 
the period of time required f6 co~pl~te a vocational rehahilita-

• . I • 

tion program sponsored by the Department of Human Resources. He 
also seeks an cider authorizing paymen~ of that department's ex­
penses tn providing those·services, ~hich involved an educational 
program approved by its Vocational Rehabilitation Di~ision.· 

. I 
Claimant's request for vocation~l assistance--filed ~ith the 

Field Services Division on October 3¢, 1978 by a vocational. rehab­
ilitation,,.:::ounselor on clairnant 1 s bel;lalf--sought approval of an 
edµcational progra~ already ~pprovediby the Department of Human 
Resourc~s. That request was received by Field Services and refer­
red to a Servi¢e Co6rdinator; the request was marked as a "defer-
red claim." · · 

• i 
Claimant contacted lht ~epartment on two later occasions in 

an effort 'to ·get some response to the request. He was interviewed 
at his home by what he believed to be a Field Services representa­
tive on another occasion. Yet no approval or rejection of the 
request was ever issued. In fact, no Field Services Division file 
could even be located prior to the.·hea r in·g to exp la in why 
claimant's request had never been acted upon. 

Field Services is required by Of,R 436-61-020 (4) (a) to provide 
notice to all interested parties wheh "it makes a final decision 
to provide or not to provide an auth~rized program of vocational 
rehabilitation." It ~ppears, however, that Field Services simply 

I 

never opened a file--or, having opened one, closed it--without 
notice to the parties, as required by law. 

~-·--·----•-·-·-'"·· .. f---~- ···-. ~~--~- ------· __ , __ ··-· . ···--·----- .. _,., . 
'-
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(Hanawalt, cont.)

Board Member George Lewis respectfully dissents

O

a

On the issue of claimant's extent
the majority. The Referee's award of
disability is appropriate.
sidered in connection with
holding gainful employment
trial occupations, and not
at any given time. Ford v

of disability, I agree with
10% unscheduled low back

Loss of earning capacity must be con-
a worker's handicap in obtaining and
in the broad field of general indus-
just in relationship to his occupation
SAIF, 7 Or App 549, 492 P2d 491 11972)

Claimant will never be able to return to his usual occupation
as a welder, and his work activities !are permanently limited by
his physical impairment. The mere fact that he now has a master's
degree and was gainfully employed at e. temporary job at the time
of the hearing does not detract from the fact that he is forever
limited in the general scope of work lactivities which he may pur­
sue.

■ ■

As to the remaining issues, I respectfully dissent.

Claimant seeks additional temporary disability benefits for
the period of time required to complete a vocational rehabilita­
tion program sponsored by the Department of Human Resources. He
also seeks an order authorizing payment of that department's ex­
penses in providing those services, which involved an educational
program approved by its Vocational Rehabilitation Division.

Claimant's request for vocational assistance--filed with the
Field Services Division on October 30, 1978 by a vocational, rehab-
ilitation^^ounselor on claimant's behalf--sought approval of an
educational program already approved'by the Department of Human
Resources. That request was received by Field Services and refer­
red to a Service Coordinator; the request was marked as a "defer­
red claim." •

Claimant contacted the Department on two later occasions in
an effort to get some response to the request. He was interviewed
at his home by what he believed to be a Field Services representa­
tive on another occasion.  et no approval or rejection of the
request was ever issued. In fact, no Field Services Division file
could even be located prior to the hearing to explain why
claimant's request had never been acted upon.

Field Services is required by OAR 436-61-020(4)(a) to provide
notice to all interested parties when "it makes a final decision
to provide or not to provide an authorized program of vocational
rehabilitation." It appears, however, that Field Services simply
never opened a file--or, having opened one, closed it--without
notice to the parties, as required by law.

79- -
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Oretjon Administrative Rules, Chaptei 436, Divisi9n 61, 
reserve to th~ Director the discretionary authority to det~rmine 
what vocational rehabilitation services should be authorized or 
denied an injured worker, it does not authorize denial by in­
action, withou~.n6tice, thereby depriving that worker of due 
process and the.opportunity to have his grievances reviewed. 

The Department's duty to act is statutory: 

"In addition to such other divisions as may be estab­
lished within the department by law or administrative 
rule or order, the Field Services Division is estab~ 
lished within the department. The division has the 
responsibility to contact promptly and to provide 
assistance to those injured workers referred to the 

·division by insurers or other sources, to assist the 
workers to return to the work forte as soon as their 
condition permits~ The directoi, with the assistance of 
the division~ has the responsibility for maintaining 
contact between the department and each worker who has 
incurred a- serious aisabling compensable injury from the 

·time of injury until the worker returns to work ... " ORS 
656. 710; (Emphasis ·Added.) 

While Field Services i~ permitted, by rule, to "defer a final 
decision 11 until the worker's. condition is medically stationary a. 
tOAR 436-61-030t3)), in this cas~ until after February 12, 1979, • 
it may not indefinitely fail to act without incurring the risk of 
administrative review of its inaction~ Its failure to act should 
not serve as ·a bar t6 claimant's assertion that he has been. wrong-
fully deprived of vocational rehabilitation services and related 
temporary disability benefits. 

Where. an ag_ency simply fails or re fuses to take· any act ion at 
all, and withoui notice to the parties, a de facto·a~nial may be 
presumed to exist. That denial is appealable, in this case, 
within 60·days after notice of the denial or not later than 180 
days after notification·when good cause for a delay can be.shown. 
ORS 656.319. In this case, however, there was no notice to claim­
ant·or to any other person 0f the agency's denial. Actual notice 
of the de facto denial may be presumed, therefore, to be on the 
date on which the claimant could reasonably have determined that 
his request had been denied. 

The departmerit closed the claim by Determination Order dated 
August 29, 1979 and affirmed by Determination Order on Reconsider­
ation dated October 5, 1979~ Since claim closure· is prohibited by 
ORS 656.26841) while a worker is enrolled in an "authorized" pro-
gram of v6cational rehabiiitation, the claimant could reasonably 
conclude, upon receipt of that determination order closing his 
claim, that the de~attment had not authorized his request for vo-
cational rehabilitation service~and that his request had been -
denied. 

-80-

While Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter 436, Division 61,
reserve to the Director the discretionary authority to determine
what vocational rehabilitation services should be authorized or
denied an injured worker, it does not authorize denial by in­
action, without,notice, thereby depriving that worker of due
process and the opportunity to have his grievances reviewed.

The Department's duty to act is statutory:

"In addition to such other divisions as may be estab­
lished within the department by law or administratiye
rule or order, the Field Services Division is estab­
lished within the department. The division has the
responsibility to contact promptly and to provide
assistance to those injured workers referred to the
division by insurers or other sources, to assist the
workers to return to the work force as soon as their
condition permits. The director, with the assistance of
the division, has the responsibility for maintaining
contact between the department and each worker who has
incurred a serious disabling compensable injury from the
time of injury until the worker returns to work
656.710.' (Emphasis Added.)

ORS

While Field Services is
decision" until the worker's.
*OAR 436-61-030*3)), in this
it may not indefinitely fail
administrative review of its

permitted, by rule, to "defer a final
condition is medically stationary
case until after February 12, 1979,
to act without incurring the risk of
inaction. Its failure to act should

not serve as a bar to claimant's assertion that he has been, wrong­
fully deprived of vocational rehabilitation services and related
temporary disability benefits.

Where an agency simply fails or ref
all, and without notice to the parties,
presumed to exist. That denial is appea
within 60 days after notice of the denia
days after notification when good cause
ORS 656.319. In this case, however, the
ant or to any other person of the agency
of the de facto denial may be presumed,
date on which the claimant could reasons
his request had been denied.

uses to take' any action at
a de facto denial may be
lable, in this case,
1 or not later than 180
for a delay can be shown,
re was no notice to claim­
’s denial. Actual notice
therefore, to be on the
biy have determined that

The department closed the claim by Determination Order dated
August 29, 1979 and affirmed by Determination Order on Reconsider­
ation dated October 5, 1979. Since claim closure is prohibited by
ORS 656.268(1) while a worker is enrolled in an "authorized" pro­
gram of vocational rehabilitation, the claimant could reasonably
conclude, upon receipt of that determination order closing his
claim, that the department had not authorized his request for vo­
cational rehabilitation services, and that his request had been
denied.
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The claimant's 
tember 13, 1979 wa~ 
including the ·issue 
habilitation.-

.. , l, 

I 

sµbsequent Requeit for Hearing filed on Sep­
timely· as to all· issues raised at the hearing, 
of claimant's elfgibiliti for vocational ·re-

. ,;t 

I 

The Referee concluded that·clai~ant should not be qranted the 
relief requested. It is unclear, ho~ever, whether the ~eferee's 
denial was ·based upon his disclaim~r lof jurisdiction to decide the 
issues or upon his subsequent· recitation· of the merits of the 
case. Having ruled u~on the issue oi claimant's eligibiliiy for 
vocational rehabilitation services by bqth dismissing and denying 
the clai~ant's request foi relief, the Referee then decided the 
issue of entitlement _to temporary total disability on the· basis of 
the medtcal evidence alone. Finding that claimant's condition was 
medically stitionary on Fe~ruary 12, 197~, th~ Referee denied and 
dismissed claim~nt's request for add~tional temporary total.~is­
ability be~efits after that date. T~e majority apparently concurs. 

Jurisdictio~ to decide issues wJich materiaily affect a 
claimant's rights to compensation--i~ this case, entitlement to 
temporary total disability benefits-~is clearly vested in th~ 
Board. ORS 656. 704. Where, as h_ere, 1 the department fails to 
comply with its own rules which have \he absolute effect of law, 
and where its actions--or inactions-~can clearly be characterized 
as an.~nwarrant~d exerciie of··discre~ion, the a~thority to review 
is extended to include placement as well as eligibility. I con­
clude -that the Board has jurisdiction to review all issues before 
it in this case. ORS 656.283. · l 
. - Field Services Divi~ion, as the !authorized agent of the dir­

ector, violated its own rules by failing to give notice that it 
either refused to open a file, closed its file, or refused to e~en 
consider ciaimant's request for vocational assistance. Any one of 
these actions would have the effe~t cif a denial of claimant's re­
~uest and, as such, requireci··notice to the claimant. OAR 
436-61-020(4) requires that Field Se~vices shall notify all 
interested parties -when "it makes a final de6ision to provide or 
not to provide an authorized program1of vocational· rehabilita­
tion." Failure to .acknowledg~ or re~pond to claimant's re~uest 
can reasonably· be charcidterized as· a~ unwarranted exercise .bf dis-
cretion as contemplated by ORS 656.2,3(d). · 

Commencement of vricational reha8ilit~tive services for an 
injured worker usually initiates by a notice to the·qepartment 
from the insurer, as required by ORS '656. 330 (1) la) and ORS 
656.330 64) •a) 9nd ~b)·. The statute requires that the insu_rer 's 
report "shall be made no· later than the 14th day after the em-

-player has notice or knowledge of the claim. 11 ORS 656.33011) fa). . I 
The insurer was we 11 aware that 11the extent of claimant's ·in­

juries required it to give notice to Field Services. There is no 
evidence in the record, however, that a notice was ever sent by 
the insurer to the Disability Prevention Division, now known as 
Field Services, as required by statute. The only request for ~er­
vices was claimant's referral by the ivocational rehabilitation 
coun·selor employed by the Department ;Of Human Resources • 
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-The claimant's
tember 13, 1979 was
including the issue
habilitation.

subsequent Request for Hearing filed on Sep- '
timely as to all issues raised at the hearing,
of claimant's eligibility for vocational re-

The Referee concluded that claimant should not be granted the
relief requested. It is unclear, however, whether the Referee's
denial was based upon his disclaimer |of jurisdiction to decide the
issues or upon his subsequent recitation of the merits of the
case. Having ruled upon the issue of claimant's eligibility for
vocational rehabilitation services by both dismissing and denying
the claimant's request for relief, the Referee then decided the
issue of entitlement to temporary total disability on the basis of
the medical evidence alone. Finding that claimant's condition was
medically stationary on February 12, 1979, the Referee denied and
dismissed claimant's request for additional temporary total dis­
ability benefits after that date. The majority apparently concurs

Jurisdiction to decide iss
claimant's rights to compensati
temporary total disability bene
Board. ORS 656.704. Where, as
comply with its own rules which
and where its actions--or inact
as an, unwarranted exercise of' d
is extended to include placemen
elude that the Board has jurisd
it in this case. ORS 656.283.

ues which materially affect a
on--in this case, entitlement to
fits--is clearly vested in the
here,' the department fails to
have |the absolute effect of law,
ions--can clearly be characterized

iction to

the ail tho r ity to review
as elig ibi 1 ity I con-
review all issues before

orized agen t o f th e dir-
to give' no t ice tha t it
f iie, or r efu sed to eye

ector, violated its own rules by failir
either refused to open a file, closed i
consider claimant's request for vocational assistance. P^ny one of
these actions would have the effect of a denial of claimant's re­
quest and, as such, required - notice to the claimant. OAR
436-61-020(4) requires that Field Services shall notify all
interested parties when "it makes a final decision to provide or
not to provide an authorized program lof vocational rehabilita­
tion." Failure to acknowledge or respond to claimant's request
can reasonably be characterized as an unwarranted exercise of dis­
cretion as contemplated by ORS 656.283(d).

Commencement of vocational rehabilitative services for an
injured worker usually initiates by a notice to the'department
from the insurer, as required by ORS '656.330(1)(a) and ORS
656.330 64) 6a) and 6b)'. The statute requires that the insurer's
report "shall be made no later than the 14th day after the em­
ployer has notice or knowledge of the claim." ORS 656.330Q)(a).

the extent of claimant's in-
Field Services. There is no
a notice was ever sent by

The insurer was well aware that
juries required it to give notice to
evidence in the record, however, that
the insurer to the Disability Prevention Division, now known as
Field Services, as required by statute. The only request for ser­
vices was claimant's referral by the jvocational rehabilitation
counselor employed by the Department of Human Resources.
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excuse is veritured for the failure of Field Services to 
follb~ up on claimant's request for vocational ~ssistance. It is 
conceivable that claimant's request might not have been overlooked 
or ignored h~d the insurer complied with its duty to notify Field 
Services of the need.for vocational rehabilitation services. 

Clearly, claimant·was qualified to receive reentry assistance 
under OAR 436-61-016, as a "vocationally displaced worker'' within 
the meaning of OAR 436-61-005612). However, it is not possible to 
determine whether Field Services~-had it acted at all--would have 
approved the program developed by the Department of Human Re­
sources. 

I conclude, from my r~view of all the evidence, that claimant· 
was wrongfully denied the opportunity to have his needs evaluated 
as- a direct and concurrent result of the failure of Field Services 
to process his request and the .insurer's failure to comply with 
ORS 656.330. 

It is clear that claimant was entitled to vocational rehab­
ilitation services, although ·none were ever provided or apprcived 
or even considered by Field Services. It does not seem equitable 
that an injured worker who has the motivation to pursue vocational 
rehabilitation, wit~ or without the help of the department, should 
be penalized because the program was not approved due to the de­
partment's inaction. 

I conclude, therefore, that claimant should be paid temporary· 
total disability benefits from February 12, 1979 to the December 
1979 · date of graduation fro1n· his vocational rehabilitation pro­
gram. In view of its failure to comply with its statutory duty 
under ORS 656.33011), I further conclude that the insurer should 
fcirfeit reimbursement from the Rehabilitation Reserve under the 
provisions of ORS 656.728. 

-82-

-· 

No. excuse is ventured.for the failure of Field Services to
follow up on claimant's request for vocational assistance. It is
conceivable that claimant's request might not have been overlooked
or ignored had the insurer complied with its duty to notify Field
Services of the need for vocational rehabilitation services.

Clearly, claimant'was qualified to receive reentry assistance
under OAR 436-61-016, as a "vocationally displaced worker" within
the meaning of OAR 436-61-005 112). However, it is not possible to
determine whether Field Services--had it acted at all--would have
approved the program developed by the Department of Human Re­
sources.

I conclude, from my review of all the evidence, that claimant
was wrongfully denied the opportunity to have his needs evaluated
as a direct and concurrent result of the failure of Field Services
to process his request and the insurer's failure to comply with
ORS 656.330.

It is clear that claimant was entitled to vocational rehab­
ilitation services, although none were ever provided or approved
or even considered by Field Services. It does not seem equitable
that an injured worker who has the motivation to pursue vocational
rehabilitation, with or without the help of the department, should
be penalized because the program was not approved due to the de­
partment's inaction.

. I conclude, therefore, that claimant should be paid temporary
total disability benefits from February 12, 1979 to the December
1979 date of-graduation from-his vocational rehabilitation pro-
------- X- failure to comply with its statutory duty

1 further conclude that
from the Rehabilitation

gram. In view of its
under ORS 656.330 tl) ,
forfeit reimbursement

the insurer should
Reserve under the

provisions of ORS 656.728.

m
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H. KIZER, CLAIMANT 
Richard Kropp, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Thomas Cavanaugh, Defense Attorney 
Order 

I 

f 

WCB 78-07566 
May 22, 1981 

The Board issued its Order on R~view on May 23, 1980. The 
case was subsequently appealed to the! Court of Appeals which · 
issued its Judgment and Mandate on April 30, 1981, reversing the 
Board. 

Based on that Judgment and Mandate, the attorney fee granted 
by our Order on Review of $200, payable by Universal Undeiwriters, 
is amended to read: 

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee 
the·sum of $200, payable by the SAIF ~orporation. 

' 
I 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

- ~ -. --------:---:---.-----.,-------- ·----- ---------

MARVIN PETERSON, CLAIMANT-
Malagon, Velure & Yates~ Claimant's Attor'neys 
Lindsay, Hart et al, Defense Attor~eys · I 
Order· Vacating Order of Abatement I · 

I 

WCB 79-05443 
May 22, 1981 

·-····· "' •..• , ,,-~-------~----··-- -·---··--··----·---··- • . • ..,. I 

.The B6ard issued an Order on Re~iew on Mar6h 18, 1981. By 
letters dated March.23 and March 27, 1981, claimant requested re-
consideration. 

April 17, 1981 was the last day iupon which the Board could 
act on the motions for r~considerati~n and the last day upon which 
the parties could·appeal to the Court of Appeals from our March 
18, 1981 O~der on Review. Both even~s happened the same day. The 
Board acted-on the motions for reconsideration by abatinq its Or-

- I - • -. • 

der on Review. _Claimant appealed to 1the Court of Appeals. 
I 

The Board wrote to the parties on April 20, 1981, noted the 
separate events ·of April 17, 1981 and asked the parties to advise 
us of their positions "on this procedural puzzle." The employer's 
attorney responded on April 23, 1981 1basically to the effect that 
anything was agreeable to him. Clai~ant 1 s attorney responded on 
April 30, ·1981 reque~ting that the Btjard rescind its Order of . 
Abatement and allow the appeal to the Court of Appeals from the 
Order on Revi~w "to take its proper dourse." Th~ request of 
claimant's attorn~y will be granted.! 

The Board-'s braer-of Abatement, dated April ·17, 1981, is 
vacate·a. The Board's Order on Review, dated Maren 18, 1981, is 
republished and readopted effective nunc p~o tune April 17, 1981. 

' ---............ ------~-. --·-- . ' 

-83-

MARION H. KIZER, CLAIMANT
Richard Kropp, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Thomas Cavanaugh, Defense Attorney
Order

WCB 78-07566
May 22, 1981

The Board issued its Order on Review on May 23, 1980. The
case was subsequently appealed to thej Court of Appeals which
issued its Judgment and Mandate on April 30, 1981, reversing the
Board.

Based on that Judgment and Mandate, the attorney fee granted
by our Order on Review of $200, payable by Universal Underwriters,
is amended to read:

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee
the sum of $200, payable by the SAIF Corporation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

MARVIN PETERSON, CLAIMANT
Malagon, Velure  ates, Claimant's Attorneys
Lindsay, Hart et al, Defense Attorneys
Order Vacating Order of Abatement

WCB 79 05443
May 22, 1981

•The Board issued an Order on. Review on March 18, 1981. By
letters dated March 23 and March 27, 1981, claimant requested re­
consideration. . '

April 17, 1981 was the last day iupon which the Board could
act on the motions for reconsideration and the last day upon which
the parties could-appeal to the Court of Appeals from our March
18, 1981 Order on Review. Both eyents happened the same day. The
Board acted on the motions for reconsideration by abating its Or­
der on Review. Claimant appealed to ithe Court of Appeals.

Board wrote to the parties on April 20, 1981, noted the
events of April 17, 1981 and asked the parties to advise
eir positions "on this procedural puzzle." The employer's
responded on April 23, 1981 ^basically to the effect that
was agreeable to him. Claimant's attorney responded on
,1981 requesting that the Board rescind its Order of
t and allow the appeal to the Court of Appeals from the
Review "to take its proper course." The request of
's attorney will be granted.

order

The Board's Order of Abatement, dated April 17, 1981, is
vacated. The Board's Order on Review, dated March 18, 1981, is
republished and readopted effective nunc pro tunc April 17, 1981.
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A. STONE, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Claimant_ 

' Reviewed :by the Board . en bane. 

\~CB 79-08878 
May 26, 1981 

The claimant seeks Board review of that portion of the Ref~ 
eree 1 s 6rder which affirmed the SAIF's denial of claimant's occu­
pational disease claim for asbestosis as the claim was untimely 
filed. The Referee's order further granted claimant interim com­
pensation from March 22, 1979, the date. of the first treatment as 
recorded on the 827 which diagnosed the 6ondition and stated it· 
was fr om work exposure, to October 4 ,, 19 7 9 inclusive, the date. of 
the SAIF 1 s denial. 

Claimant was an asbestos worker since approximately 1944. He 
was employed by E. J. Bartells and retired on November 30, 1973. 
Claimant testified it was not until 1979 when he returned from a 
vacation that he realized he was very short of breath and sou~ht 
medical attention. 

The Board agrees. with the Referee that the claim was untimely 
filed and furiher that neither he nor this Board have jurisdiction 
on constitution~l matters •. 

The B6ard disagrees with the granting of interim compensation 
as claimant had been retired for at least eiqht years. ·He retired 
at 62 and at the-time of the hearing was 69 iears of age. The 
payment of compensation for temporary total disabtlity is to bene­
fit the ~orker ·for time lost from work. It cannot be said that 
this worker suffered time loss from work when he had voluntarily 
retired in 1973. · We find claimant is.not entitled to interim com­
pensation nor penalties and attorney fees. H~d we found claimant 
entitled to interi~ compensation~ the dates used ·by the Referee, 
that is March 22, 1979 to October 4, 1979 are improper. The 827 
report from Dr. Reich is undated but shows the date of the first 
treatment was March 22. This 827 report was not received by the 
SAIF until July 26, 1979. If interim compensation were to be 
granted, it would therefore run from July 26, 1~79 to Octobei 4, 
1979, the date of the SAIF 1 s denial. ' 

We conclude that the claimant is retired and there is no 
·compensation for temporary total. disability due or owing. That 
portion of the Referee's order is reversed. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated September 22, 1980 is modified. 

That portion of the Referee's order granting interim compen­
sa.tion, penalties and attorney fees is reversed •. 

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed .. 

-84- {Dissent follo~s) 

• 

SIDNE A. STONE, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et a1, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 79-08878
May 26, 1981

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks Board review of that portion of the Ref­
eree's order which affirmed the SAIF's denial of claimant's occu­
pational disease claim for asbestosis as the claim was untimely
filed. The Referee's order further granted claimant interim com­
pensation from March 22, 1979, the date of the first treatment as
recorded on the 827 which diagnosed the condition and stated it
was from work exposure, to October 4,, 1979 inclusive, the date, of
the SAIF's denial.

Claimant was an asbestos worker since approximately 1944. He
was employed by E. J, Barbells and retired on November 30, 1973.
Claimant testified it was not until 1979 when he returned from a
vacation that he realized he was very short of breath and sought
medical attention.

The Board agrees, with the Referee that the claim was untimely
filed and further that neither he nor this Board have jurisdiction
on constitutional matters..

The Board disagrees.with the granting of interim compensation
as claimant had been retired for at least eight years. He retired
at 62 and at the time of the hearing was 69 years of age. The
payment of compensation for temporary total disability is to bene­
fit the worker for time lost from work. It cannot be said that
this worker suffered time loss from work when he had voluntarily
retired in 1973. We find claimant is hot entitled to interim com­
pensation nor penalties and attorney fees. Had we found claimant
entitled to interim compensation, the dates used by the Referee,
that is March 22, 1979 to October 4, 1979 are improper. The 827
report from Dr. Reich is undated but shows the date of the first
treatment was March 22. This 827 report was not received by the
SAIF until July 26, 1979. If,interim compensation were to be
granted, it would therefore run from.July 26, 1979 to October 4,
1979, the date of the SAIF's denial.

We conclude that the claimant is retired and there is no
compensation for temporary total, disability due or owing. That
portion of the Referee's order is reversed.

ORDER ■

The order of the Referee dated September 22, 1980 is modified

That portion of the Referee's order granting interim compen­
sation, penalties and attorney fees is reversed.'

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed.

-84- (Dissent follows)
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con~.) 

I-

- Chairman Barnes dissen~ing in part: 

It is conventional wisdom that neither this Board nor its 
Re·ferees have authority· to rule on cohstitutional questions. I 
have been unable to learn the source.bf this conventional wisdom. 
· I have been . 4nab le to iearn the bas isl. of it, other than that it 
has been repeated so often as to- take! on 'the unquestionea.·validitr 
of a catechi,sm. I. 

j . 
. l qtiestion the proposition tha~ the Board.and its Ref~rees 

lack authotity_ ~-o -ru·le _on consti~ut~onal questions. It now takes 
almost two years from a party's req~est for hearing to the Board's 
decision on review. -- It takes -additional months before one of our: . 
case·s can be ·s~bmitted to the_ Court lof Appeals for decision- on ap­
peal. So the net effect of declining to rule on- constitutional 
questions i~ that the parties are ·s£uck with a result, possibly a 
blatently un~onsti~~tional result, ior moie than two years .before 
they can pbtain any·reli~f-from a.jJdicial f~rum. · 

, I 

- ORS.656.283(1} ~uthorizes a heJri~g before.this- agenciy "on 
·any question concerning ·a claim. 11 ORS 656 .• 704 (2) elaborates that 
question~ coricerning claims "are ·thd~e matters in whic~-a worker's 
right to receive compensation, or the amount thereof, are directly 
in issue~"- ORS 656.726(2) charges ihe .Board with responsibility 
"fcir reviewing appealed-orders of r~ferees in corttroversies cort­
ceining a claim. 11 -· The fact that thJ ·issue raised in this case is 
constt tutional · does, not change the further fact that it 1,s a ques­
tion or controversy concerning a cl~i~, or most impoitantly, that 
it directly involves a worker's rig6t to rec*ive compensatiqn. 

. i. 
Unable to perceive any basis iA the statutes or folklore for 

a different result, I would hoid that this Board has authority to 
rule· on the· merits-of claimant's -co~stitutional contentions. How­
e~er, since the Board majority did ~o~ reach the merits of those 
.contentioris, I see rio ~oint in disc~ssing them myself. What div-
ides us· ~s simply a.question of thelBoard's authority. I respect­
fully dissent from that por~i6n of ~he Board majority's opinion 
holding that·Boa~d lacks authority to rule on constitutional·ques-
tions._ · · · · 

.• .••~•~mwn . ---

-85- · 

(stone, cont.)

Chairman Barnes dissenting in part;

neither this Board nor itsIt is conventional wisdom that
Referees have authority to rule on constitutional questions. I
have been unable to learn the source 'of this conventional wisdom.
I have been unable to learn the basis^of it, other than that it
has been repeated so often as to take' on the unquestioned validity
of a catechism.

m

1 question the proposition that the Board and its Referees
lack authority to rule on constitutional questions. It now takes
almost two years from a party's request for hearing to the Board's
decision on review. It takes additional months before one of our
cases can be submitted to the Court |of Appeals for decision on ap­
peal. So the net effect of declining to rule on constitutional
questions is that the parties are struck with a result, possibly a
blatently unconstitutional result, for more than two years before
they can obtain any relief from a judicial forum.

ORS.656.283(1) authorizes a hearing before this agency "on
any question concerning a claim." ORS 656-704(2) elaborates that
questions concerning claims "are those matters in whicha worker's
right to receive compensation, or the amount thereof, are directly
in issue." ORS 656.726(2) charges the Board with responsibility
"for reviewing appealed orders of referees in controversies con­
cerning a claim." The fact that the issue raised in this case is
constitutional doeS‘ not change the further fact that it is a ques­
tion or controversy concerning a claim, or most importantly, that
it directly involves a worker's right to receive compensation.

Unable to perceive any basi
a different result, I would hoid
rule on the merits of claimant's
ever, since the Board majority d
contentions, I see no point in d
ides us is simply a.question of
fully dissent from that portion
holding that Board lacks author!
tions..

s in the s
that this
constitut
id not rea
.iscussingthe I Board'
of the Boa
ty to rule
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MCMAHON, CLAIMANT 
Robertson & ,Johnson, Claimant's Attorneys 
Lang·, Ktein et al, Defense Attorneys 
Breathower & G·i 1 man, ·:Defense Attorneys 
Own Moti~n Order Ref~rred for Consolidated Heari nq 

Own Motion 81-0156M and 
WCB 81:..03440 

May 27, 1981 

. Claim~nt, by and through his attorney, requests the 
Board to exercis·e its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant 
to· ORS 656 .278, · and' reopen his claim for a worsened ccmd4"­
tion related to his April 15, 1974 industrial injury. 

The evidence indicates that on December 2, 1980 
claimant suffered industrial injuries to both his right 
and left.krie~s. -Clai~ant filed claims with both his old 
and new employers. Both carriers denied and a hearing 
was requested .. The hea~ing was o~iginally set for May 21, 
1981 but has now been postponed. · 

The Board finds that in the interest of all parties 
the own motion matter s1:"iould be referred to. the• Hearings 
DiVisiori~ ·The R~feiee is to hold a consolidated hearing 
of this. own mot_ion matter with WCB Case No. 81-034·40, the 
request fo:r; hear"ing on the denial. The Referee is to 
take evid~nce on wh~ther claimant's condition is relited 
to his Apri,l 1974 industrial injury,' his December 19.80 
in¢lustri.al injury, ·or neither. On WCB Case No. 31-03440, 
~he Ref_eree is ·t.o · issue an appeal able· order. On the own 
motion ·matter, -the Referee is to submit to the Board his 
recommenda~ion tqgether with a .transcript of the proceed~ 
ings. 

IT IS SO ORDERED~ 

RICHARD BERGMAN, CLAIMANT 
Welch, Bruun & Green, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order of Dismissal 

WCB 80.:03059 
May 29, 1981 

A request for review, having been duly filed with the ·. 
Workers' Compensa~ion Board in the above-ecttitled matter by the 
SAIF Corporation, arid said request for review now having been 
withdrawn, · 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now 
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the 
Referee is final by operatidn of law. 

-86-

DENNIS MCMAHON. CLAIMANT
Robertson & .Johnson, Claimant's Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Brekhower & Gilman, Defense Attorneys
Own Motion Order Referred for Consolidated Hearing

Own Motion 81 0156M and
WCB 81 03440

May 27, 1981

. Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the
Board to exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant
to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a worsened condi­
tion related to his April 15, 1974 industrial injury.

The evidence indicates that on December 2, 1980
claimant suffered industrial injuries to both his right
and left knees. Claimant filed claims with both his old
and new employers. Both carriers denied and a hearing
was requested. The hearing was originally set for May 21,
1981 but has how been postponed.

The Board finds that in the interest of all parties
the own motion matter should be referred to, the Hearings
Division. The Referee is to hold a consolidated hearing
of this own motion matter with WCB Case No. 81-03440, the
request for hearing on the denial. The Referee is to
take evidence on whether claimant's condition is related
to his April 1974 industrial injury, his December 1980
industrial injury, or neither. On WCB Case No. 31-03440,
the Referee is to issue an appealable order. On the own
motion matter, the Referee is to submit to the Board his
recommendation together with a .transcript of the proceed­
ings.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

RICHARD BERGMAN, CLAIMANT
Welch, Bruun & Green, Claimant’s Attorneys
SAIF Coro Legal, Defense Attorney
Order of Dismissal

WCB 80 03059
May 29, 1981

#

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above-entitled matter by the
SAIF Corporation, and said request for review now having been
withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

-86-
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HAROLD BOTHWELL, CLAIMANT 
Don Atchison, Claimant's Attorney 
Paul Roess,-Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

WCB 80-03614 
May 29, 1981 

-Reviewed by Boa-rd Member_s Bar:nes and McCallister .. 
l 

The SAIF _Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or-
der .which remanded claimant's aggravation claim to it·for further 
proriessing. SAIF contends tha~,claimant's condition arising from 
his industrial injury has not worsened and its denial should be 
aff-irmed. 

At the time rif his industrial injury on January~, 1973 
claimant was employed in his life-lohg occupation working in the 
woods in the logging industry. The ~hitial diagnosis from this 
injury was dislocation of the right ~h6ulder and rotator cuff in­
jury. Dr. Matfhews performed partiil a6romionectomy and repair of 
the rotator. cuff in October i973 and surgery for resection arthro­
plasty, right acrornioclavicular joi~t in August 1974. • 

. Claimant's claim was closed by !a Determination Order of March 
12, 1975, and he was granted 40% unscheduled disability. Under a 
subsequent stipulation of the parti~s entered into in December ' 
1977, claimant received additional compensation for permanent par~ 
tial disability for a total award of 65% unscheduled disability . 

. ! -

· Dr. Samtiel, a chiropractor,.reported on February 7, 1980 that 
claimant's condition had deteriorated since December 1977~ On. 
March 13, 1980 Dr. Matthews reported that in his opinion claim­
ant's "situation at the present tirn~ is essentially the same as it 
was sever•l·ye~rs ago. The only r~al worsening of his situation 
arises out of attempts to do more than his shou1der will toler­
ate." Dr. Matthews f.elt claimant'_st impairment to the right shoul­
de~, based on loss.of use, was sevete, but his overall condition 
had not changed·tn years.. l 

I 
I 

Based on the record before it,: the Board is persuaded by· the 
opinion of Dr. Matthewi who treate~ claimant_ since 1973 and finds 
that.claimant's condition, related to his industrial_ injury, has 
n6t woisened •. Claimant has not prdven hi~ aggravation claim. 

I 
I 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee datetj November 19; 1980 is r~versed. 
I 

The denial of aggravation issued by the SAIF Corporation 
dated March 25, 1980 is affirmed .. 1 

---- ·--~ .. ---- - . -----·------- . 

I 
-87, 
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HAROLD BOTHWELL, CLAIMANT
Don Atchison, Claimant’s Attorney
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-03614
May 29, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Bacnes and McCallister.
!

The SAIF .Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which remanded claimant's aggravation claim to it for further
processing. SAIF contends that.claimant's condition arising from
his industrial injury has not worsened and its denial should be
affirmed.

At the time of his industrial injury on January 5, 1973
claimant was employed in his life-long occupation working in the
woods in the logging industry. The [initial diagnosis from this
injury was dislocation of the right shoulder and rotator cuff in­
jury. Dr. Matthews performed partial acromionectomy and repair of
the rotator, cuff in October 1973 and surgery for resection arthro­
plasty, right acromioclavicular joint in August 1974,

Claimant's claim was closed by 'a Determination Order of March
12, 1975, and he was granted 40% unscheduled disability. Under a
subsequent stipulation of the parties entered into in December
1977, claimant received additional compensation for permanent par­
tial disability for a total award of 65% unscheduled disability.

■ . •
Dr. Samuel, a chiropractor,.reported on February 7, 1980 that

claimant's condition had deteriorated since December 1977. On ,
March 13, 1980 Dr. Matthews reported that in his opinion claim­
ant's "situation at the present time is essentially the same as it
was , several years ago. The only real worsening of his situation
arises out of attempts to do more than his shoulder will toler­
ate." Dr. Matthews felt claimant'si impairment to the right shoul­
der, based on loss.of use, was severe, but his overall condition
had not changed in years.,

Based on the record before it,; the Board is persuaded by the
opinion of Dr. Matthews who treated, claimant since 1973 and finds
that claimant's condition, related to his industrial, injury, has
not worsened. Claimant has not proven his aggravation claim.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated November 19, 1980 is reversed,
I

The denial of aggravation issued by the SAIF Corporation
dated March 25, 1980 is affirmed.
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ESPINOZA,· CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order . 

Own Motion 81-0146M 
May 29, i981 . 

. The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion 

jurisdiction, pursuan~ to ORS 656~278, and reopen her claim for a 

worsened c6ndition related to her industrial injury of May 16, 

1972~ Claimant's ~ggravation rights have expired. 

The medical reports submitted indicate that claimant's 

condition is related to her industrial injury and Dr.-Melvin 

recommended surgery which was to be performed on May 11, 1981.· 

The.Board concludes that claimant is entitled to claim 

reopening commencing upon the date of her hospitalization for the 

surgery performed on May 11, ~981 and until closure is authorized 

pursuant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-88-

NINFA ESPINOZA, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0146M
May 29, 1981

The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.-278, and reopen her claim for a
worsened condition related to her industrial injury of May 16,
1972. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired.

The medical reports submitted indicate that claimant's
condition is related to her industrial injury and Dr. Melvin
recommended surgery which was to be performed on May 11, 1981.-

The,Board concludes that claimant is entitled to claim
reopening commencing upon the date of her hospitalization for the
surgery performed on May 11, 1981 and until closure is authorized
pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

#

-88-
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F. HOLUB, CLAIMANT 
J.·oavis Walker, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Le~al. Defense Attorney 
Request ·for Review by Sa if 
Cross Request by Claimant 

. I 
·, 
! 

I 

.1 

.__ -· --- - ·---- - - - .. -·. ---··. - ··- - ~ . 

WCB.79-O4OO3 
May 29, 1981" 

Revi~wed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis. 
I 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or-
der which granted claimant an award of 160° for 50% additional.un­
scheduled ~isability frir a.total to ~ate of 60% unscheduled dis­
ability. SAIF contends that the award granted is excessive. 

Claimant -is now aqe 41 and has been employed· all his adult 
working life as a butcher. Claimant 1 was employed by Haberman's 
Meat Service and sustained.a compensable injury on December 2, 
1977 when:a metal shackle ·fell,_strikin~ claimant on the head. 
Claimant was knocked unconscious andiwas hospitalized with a diag­
nosis of" concussion. 

Dr. Sievers released claimant for his reqular occupation on . I • • 

December 19,_.1977. ~-,claimant returned to work. He subsequently 
developed~ subdural hernatoma and wa~ hospitalized on January 23, 
1978 and had a CT scan which was normal. He was again hospital­
ized _on Febru~ry 10, 1978 for complaints of headaches wiih dizzi­
ness, associated nausea, a sense ·of paresthesia, hypesthesia and 
weakness of the left side of his body. It was noted tha~ he had 
recently had ~n epi~ode oj unc~nsciobsness. · 

• I 

His claim was originally closed on February 21, 1978 with 
compensation· for temporary total dis:~bility on-ly. · · 

On March 9, 1978 claimant was hospitalized· and underwent a 
craniotomy performed by Dr.- Nash on ~arch 28. 

: · Claimant re~urned tri work and Juffered an ~;cupational dis­
ease of the right forearm in Januar~ 1979. This claim is unrela­
ted to the claim before.us, but claimant did receive an award of 
35% loss of the right forearfu. Sub~eqGently claimant developed 
similar problems with his left wrist. 

• . • I 

In April 1978 Dr. Nash reported that his neurological examin-
ation was normal. In May he rated ~laimqnt's impairment as mild 
to moderate. In September 1978 Dr. Nash recommended that claimant 
have an EEG, a~d this te~ting dernon~trated in ~bnormality. 

- . . . 

A second rietermin~tion Or~er w~s issued ~n Novemher 13, 1978 
and granted claimant an award of 10% unscheduled central nervous 
system disability. 

Claimant, because ·of the loss 9f strength in both the right 
and left arm, testifi~d he quit working for this employer_ in July 
1979. On July 3, 1979 Dr. Grimm ha~ rated claimant's head injury 
as producing only minimal residuals and declared him medically 
stationary. Dr. Fray in August 1979 indicated that due to claim­
ant's ·left.wrist condition he. was nbt to return to the work of a 
butcher. ---~~ · -~~--- · ··· ·-----·-•• i.. 

-89-
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RO F. HOLUB, CLAIMANT
J. Davis Walker, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Saif
Cross Request by Claimant

WCB 79-04003
May 29, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which granted claimant an award of 160° for 50% additional,un'
scheduled disability for a .total to date of 60% unscheduled dis­
ability. SAIF contends that the award granted is excessive.

Claimant is now age 41 and has been
working life as a butcher. Claimant'was
Meat Service and sustained a compensable
1977 when a metal shackle fell,.striking
Claimant was, knocked unconscious andfwas
nosis of concussion.

employed all his adult
employed by Haberman's
injury on December 2,
claimant on the head,
hospitalized with a diag'

Dr. Sievers released claimant for his regular occupation on
December 19, 1977. 'Claimant returneti to work. He subsequently
developed a subdural hematoma and was hospitalized on January 23,
1978 and had a CT scan which was normal. He was again hospital­
ized on February, 10, 1978 for complaints of headaches with dizzi­
ness, associated nausea, a sense of paresthesia, hypesthesia and
weakness of the left side of his body. It was noted that he had
recently had an episode of unconsciousness.

His claim was originally closed' on February 21, 1978 with
compensation for temporary total disability only.'

On March 9, 1978 claimant was hospitalized and underwent a
craniotomy performed by Dr. Nash on March 28.

Claimant returned to work and suffered an occupational dis­
ease of the right forearm in January, 1979. This claim is unrela­
ted to the claim before.us, but claimant did receive ah award of
35% loss of the right forearm. Subsequently claimant developed
similar problems with his left wrist.

In April 1978 Dr
ation was normal. In
to moderate,
have an EEC,

Nash reported that his neurological examin-
May he rated claimant's impairment as mild

In September 1978 Dr. Nash recommended that claimant
and this testing demonstrated an abnormality.

A second Determination Order was issued on November 13, 1978
and granted claimant an award of 10% unscheduled central nervous
system disability. i

Claimant, because of the loss of strength in both the right
and left arm, testified he quit working for this employer.in July
1979. On July 3, 1979 Dr. Grimm had rated claimant's head injury
as producing only minimal residuals and declared him medically
stationary. Dr. Fray in August 1979 indicated that due to claim­
ant's left wrist condition he. was not to return to the work of a
butcher. ----------- .......... ......... — —' .................. . ’ ■ ■ ■
-------------------- -89- :
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February 1980 claimant was referred for vocational rehab­
ilitation. In June 1980 claimant was enrolled in an authorized 
program of ~ocational rehabilitition at Portland Community College 
to become an auto mechanic. 

On March 4, 1980 Dr. Grimm reported that in December 1979 an 
EEG showed a change for the worse, representing scarring of the 
brain in the area of the head injury, iesulting in epilepsy. The 
doctor opined that the head injury not only set up epileptic focus 
but has limited the fine coordination of the ieft side of claim­
ant's body. Claimant was not _precluded from sitting, standing, 
walking or·driving. 

Claimant testified that after the injury he has become isrr-i­
table and angry. ·His mind blanks out on him (seizure) every three 
or four weeks. At the time of hearing, claimant hadn't had a sei­
zure for· four weeks. The first seizure occurred in November 1979 
while on a hunting trip. Claimant testified he suff~rs from head­
aches daily and ringing in his ears. 

Based on the-medical evidence, we have impairment ratinos 
from the head injury from Dr. Nash of mild to moderate and from 
Dr. Grimm as mini~al~ Takirig into consideration claimant's age of 
41, his tenth grade education and, based on his testimony, at 
least average intelligence, we find.that the award granted by the 
Referee is excessive. The evidence before the Board and the Ref­
eree does not contain any inf6rrnation about claimant's working re­
strictions or if he can return to his work as a butcher. Basic­
ally the seizures are controlled by medication, but because of the 
potential of having a seizure, claimant•s reg~lar occupation may 
now be precluded to him. Claimant was already precluded, based in 
the medicals, from that occupation due to his riqht forearm and 

left wrist problems. There is no information about restrictions 
on claimant from the head injury, except a coMinent that he can 
walk, stand, sit and drive a car. Claimant is presently in a 
vocational rehabilita~ion program. 

Based on the evidence before us, we find that ~laimant is en­
titled to an·award of 30% unscheduled disability to compensate him 
for his loss of wage earning capacity. 

" ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated September 24, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 96° for 30% ~nsched­
uled disability. · This ~ward· is in lieu of all prior awards. 

· -90-

In February 1980 claimant was referred for vocational rehab­
ilitation. In June 1980 claimant was enrolled in an authorized
program of vocational rehabilitation at Portland Community College
to become an auto mechanic.

On March 4, 1980 Dr. Grimm reported that in December 1979 an
EEG showed a change for the worse, representing scarring of the
brain in the area of the head injury, resulting in epilepsy,
docto
but h,
ant's body. Claimant was not precluded from sitting, standing,
walking or driving.

in the area of the head injury, resulting in epilepsy. The
r opined that the head injury not only set up epileptic focus
as limited the fine coordination of the left side of claim-

m

Claimant testified that after the injury he has become irri­
table and angry. His mind blanks out on him (seizure) every three
or four weeks. At the time of hearing, claimant hadn't had a sei­
zure for four weeks. The first seizure occurred in November 1979
while on a hunting trip. Claimant testified he suffers from head­
aches daily and ringing in his ears.

Based on the medical evidence, we have impairment ratings
from the head injury from Dr. Nash of mild to moderate.and from
Dr. Grimm as minimal. Taking into consideration claimant's age of
41, his tenth grade education and, based on his testimony, at
least average intelligence, we find that the award granted by the
Referee is excessive. The evidence before the Board and the Ref­
eree does not contain any information about claimant's working re­
strictions or if he can return to his work as a.butcher. Basic­
ally the seizures are controlled by medication, but because of the
potential of having a seizure, claimant's regular occupation may
now be precluded to him. Claimant was already precluded, based in
the medicals, from that occupation due to his right forearm and
left wrist problems. There is no information about restrictions
on claimant from the head injury, except a comment that he can
walk, stand, sit and drive a car. Claimant is presently in a
vocational rehabilitation program.

Based on the evidence before us, we find that claimant is en­
titled to an award of 30% unscheduled disability to compensate him
for his loss of wage earning capacity.

0 ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 24, 1980 is modified

Claimant is
uled disability.

hereby granted an award of 96® for 30% unsched-
This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

-90-
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GAROLD HURLEY, CLAIMANT 
Peter Mcswain, Claimant 1 s_Attorney · j 
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorney 

I, 

Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0134M 
May -29; 1981 

Claimant, by and through his -attorney, requests the Board to 
exercis~ its own rno~ion jurisdictio~ purs~ant to.ORS 656.l78 and 
reopen his claim for a worsened cpn~ition related to his September 
26, 1974 ind~strial {njury. Claimadt's aggravation rights have 
expired. 

The medical evidence indicates 1that claimant now suffers from 
I 

a malunion of the left tibia which Dr. Shroeder finds.is directly 
related to his 1974 industrial injury. Dr. Schroeder and Dr. Lar­
son have both recommended surgery. · 

I 
By letter dated May Ll, 1981 t~e carrier, Liberty Mutual, 

through its attorney, was unopposed·~o a ciaim reopening. 
. l· 

The Board concludes claimant is· entitled ·to have his claim 
reopened as of the date he is.hospi~alized for the recommended 
surgery and until closure· is authorized pur~uant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

ALBERTA M. NORTON, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination 

Own Motion 81-0129M 
May 29, 1981 

The Board issued its Own Motidn Order on August 12, 1980 and 
reopeped claimant's rilaim for a wor~ened condition related to her 
June 13, 1967 industrial injury. On. October 1, 1980 Dr. Becker 
performed a fusion of the proximal linterphalangeal joint of the 
right long finger. · 

The claim has now been iubmitted for closure, and it is t~e 
recommendation of the Evaluation o{vision·of the ~orkers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be !granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from Septe~ber 30, 1980 through April 10, 
1981 and to an additional award of!l2.l degrees for 10% loss of 
the use of the right f6rearm. The'Board concurs with this recom-
mendation. i 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

·I 
-91-:-

GAROLD HURLE , CLAIMANT
Peter McSwain, Claimant's Attorney ' |
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0134M
May 29, 1981

Claimant, by and through his-attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction' pursuant to ORS 656.278 and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his September
26, 1974 Industrial injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have
expired...

The medical evidence indicates jthat claimant now suffers from
a malunion of the left tibia which Dr. Shroeder finds is directly
related to his 1974 industrial injury. Dr. Schroeder and Dr. Lar-
son have both recommended surgery.

By letter dated May 11, 1981 the carrier, Liberty Mutual,
through its attorney, was unopposed j.to a claim reopening.

The Board concludes claimant is entitled to have his claim
reopened as of the date he is hospitalized for the recommended
surgery and until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.'

ALBERTA M. NORTON, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0129M
May 29, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on August 12, 1980 and
reopened claimant's claim for a war'sened condition related to her
June 13, 1967 industrial injury. On October 1, 1980 Dr. Becker
performed a fusion of the proximal .interphalangeal joint of the
right long finger. j

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be jgranted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from September 30, 1980 through April 10,
1981 and to an additional award of|l2.1 degrees for 10% loss of
the use of the right forearm. The 'Board concurs with this recom­
mendation. I

IT IS SO ORDERED. I ,

91r
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SUE PECK, ·CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination 

Own Motion 81-0140M 
May 29, 1981 

The employer re-opened -this claim for· claimant's hospi taliza- 8) 
tion on June 3,· 1980 for conservativ~ treatment related to her in­
dustrial irijuiy of April 10, 1967 where she was diaqnosed as hav-
ing a degenerated lumbosacracl disc. Claimant's ag~ravation 
rights have· expired. 

She returned to work on June 16, 1980 but was agairi hospital­
ized for a myel9gram on .December 21, 1980. She again returned to · 
work on or about December 29, 1980, and on January 20, 1981, Or. 
Saez found claimant's condition to be stable and encouraged her to 
iemain at her present job. 

The claim has been sub~itted for closure with the recommenda­
tion by the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compensation De-

_partment that no_a~ditional disability be granted, but additional 
time loss should be granted from June 2, 1980 through June 15, 
1980 ~nd from December 21, 19~0 thr6ugh.December 28, 1980. The 
Board concurs with this recommendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

• 

-92"". 

IDA SUE PECK, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81-0140M
May 29, 1981

The employer re-opened this claim for claimant's hospitaliza­
tion on June 3, 1980 for, conservative treatment related to her in­
dustrial injury of April 10, 1967 where she was diagnosed as hav­
ing a degenerated lumbosacracl disc. Claimant's aggravation
rights have expired.

She returned to work on June 16, 1980 but was again hospital­
ized for a myelogram on December 21, 1980. She again returned to
work on or about December 29, 1980, and on January 20, 1981, Dr.
Saez found claimant's condition to be stable and encouraged her to
remain at her present job.

The claim has been submitted for closure with the recommenda­
tion by the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compensation De­
partment that no.additional disability be granted, but additional
time loss should be granted from June 2, 1980 through June 15,
1980 and from December 21, 1980 through December 28, 1980. The
Board concurs with this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

m

-92- #



    
     
     

   

  

      

        
        

          
     

        
         
        

         
         

            
         

          
       

          
          
         
     

           
          

           
         

         
           

   

           
        
        

        
              
           
            

          
          
         
          
       

                
    
    
    

      
        
       
           

      

         
     

VICTOR W. VASEY, CLAIMANT 
Richard E.· Fowlk~, Claim~nt 1s Attor~ey 
SAIF Corp Lega~, Defense Attorney· 
Reauest.for Review by Claimant 

I 

WCB. 78-09834 
May 29, 1981 

• -· -- -·- ..... ,_ • -•·-• . --- • I • • 

:Reviewed by Board.Members Barnes and Mccallister . . . I 
Claimant· seeks Board review of the· Referee's order which af­

firmed the SiIF Corpoiation's denial lof his aggravation claim~ 

The Board a~firms and adopts thJ Referee's Opinion and Order 
with the·follo~ing elaboration and qualifications. . . I . . 

The Referee's statement of the ~aterial facts is correct. 
The Refere~_•s statemen~ of certain i~material facts is inco~rect; 
these errors do· not, however, change the_ result •. 

. . . 
The evidence offered to· prove a 1compensable worsening was the 

reports of Doctors Chalos, Grimm and,Fry. Any·worsening documen­
ted by Dr. Chalos was ~ot "after the:last award ot arrangement of 
comp~nsation" within the meaning of �RS 656.273(1}, but rather be­
fore t~e last arrangement.which was? stipulation of the parties 
approved by a Referee on February 21, 1978. 

. I . 
Dr. Grimm found no worsening of claimant's low back condition 

,nor any connection with claimant~s 1~75 ·low back irijury. Indeed, 
Dr.· Grimm commented that claimant's iow back condition seemed im-
proved since.his 1975 injury.· 1 

. Dr. F~y too~ a variety of posit~qn~. He said claimant's back 
condition "seemed" worse, but he alsp said he ~ener~lly agreed 
~ith.Dr. Grimm's analysis. Dr. Frj ~~s unable ~o id~ritify aMy ob­
jective findings to·aocument a worsening. It would appear that 
Dr. Fry was ·recommending claim reope~irig solely for vocational re­
hal;>ili tat iqn., which the Board believ.es has nothing to do with an 
ORS 656.273 aggravation claim. · 

' I. 
Weighing the tot~ii~y of the evidence, we agree with the R~f-

eree that ·claimant has 'failed to ·prove his aggravation claim. 
I • • •• • •• - • -• ! ....-,--+•-~••--•+•••~-.~ ......... ,.; ••,• .:-,- ••-• ' '• .-

cra•imant also seeks penal ties and ··attorney fees for SAIF Is 
supposed fiilure ~o pay interim comdensation and tardy deni~l._ 
The ~r6blem is when did the clock siatt ~unning ·on the 14 days to 
start ·paying com~ensation an~ the 6d d~y~ ·to accept or deny. 
Claimant at times seems to say he first made his aggravation claim 
in February 1978--the same month as 'the stipulated settlement on 

· his original 1975 injury. Claimant is bri~f on Board review shifts 
the emphasis, _apparently arguing that Dr •. Fry 1 s September 4, 1979 
letter constitutes the aggravation ¢lai~. Bui this ju$t makes a 
confusing situation unintelligible because tQat letter wa~·written 
_ten months after SAIF·'s November 4, 11978 denial which was ~he 
-basis of this request for h~aring. ;sAIF did pay interim compensa-
tion from June 24, 1978 to .Sept~mbe; 30, 1978, although the iea­
s9ns for tho~~ starting and ending dates are a ~ystery. ~he ·aoard 
coricludes that it cannot·sa~ on thi~ record that SAIF did oth~r 
than substantially comply with its statut9ry duties.-

I . 
ORDER 

I 

' 
_ . _________ T_h_~_2J·der of the _Referee dated_:_ Jun_e _ 24, _ 1980 ~.s .. ~ff_~_rmed • 

.!93-
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VICTOR W. VASE , CLAIMANT
Richard E. Fowlks', Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request.for Review by Claimant

WCB,78-09834
May 29, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

Claimant seeks Board review of the'Referee's order which af­
firmed the SAIF Corporation's denial 'of his aggravation claim.

The Board affirms and adopts the Referee's Opinion and Order
with the following elaboration and qualifications.

The Referee's statement of the material facts is correct.
The Referee's statement of certain immaterial facts is incorrect;
these errors do not, however, change the result. •

The evidence offered to prove a|compensable worsening was the
reports of Doctors Chalos, Grimm and Fry. Any worsening documen­
ted by Dr. Chalos was not "after the:last award or arrangement of
compensation" within the meaning of ORS 656.273(1), but rather be­
fore the last arrangement■which was a stipulation of the parties
approved by a Referee on February 21, 1978.

Dr. Grimm found no worsening of claimant's low back condition
,nor any connection with claimant's 1975 low back injury. Indeed,
Dr. Grimm commented that claimant's low back condition seemed im­
proved since his 1975 injury.

Dr. Fry took a variety of positions. He said claimant's back
condition "seemed" worse, but he also said he generally agreed
with Dr. Grimm's analysis. Dr. Fry was unable to identify any ob­
jective findings to'document a worsening. It would appear that
Dr. Fry was recommending claim reopening solely for vocational re­
habilitation., which the Board believes has nothing to do with an
ORS 656.273 aggravation claim.

eree
Weighing the totality of the evidence, we agree with the Re'f-
that claimant has failed to prove his aggravation claim.
Claimant also seeks penalties and'attorney fees for SAIF's

supposed failure to pay interim compensation and tardy denial.
The problem is when did the clock start running on the 14 days to
start paying compensation and the 60 days to accept or deny.
Claimant at times seems to say he first made his aggravation claim
in February 1978--the same month as the stipulated settlement on
his original 1975 injury. Claimant's brie'f on Board review shifts
the emphasis, apparently arguing that Dr.,Fry's September 4, 1979
letter constitutes the aggravation claim. But this just makes a
confusing situation unintelligible because that letter was/written
ten months after SAIF's November 4^ ''''’’'^ ’ • ’ . - -1978

SAIF
denial which was .'the
did pay interim compensa-
1978, although the tea-
are a mystery. The Board

other

basis of this request for hearing,
tion from June 24, 1978 to September 30,
sons for those starting and ending dates
concludes that it cannot say on this record that SAIF did
than substantially comply with its statutory duties.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated;June 24, 1980 is affirmed.
■' ' i93-“' ' . ....................................
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GARCIA, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, De_fense Attorney 
Own Motion Detenn_ination 

Own Motion 81-0149M 
June 1, 1981· 

The claimant suffered c!O industrial in:jury on June 22, 1974, •·· 
and his claim was subsequently closed by a Determination Order of , 
May 15, 1975 with compensation. for temporary total disability 
only. A stipulation was entered into dated June 30, 1976 wherein 
claimant received 42° for unscheduled disability. Claimant's ag-
gravation rights expired on May 5, 1980. 

Claimant was enrolled in an approved program of vocational 
rehabilit~tion in electronic assembly commencing December 8, 1980 
but interrupted in March 1981 and reinstated April 1981. Claimant 
completed this authorized vocational rehabilitation program·on· May 
8, 1981. 

Claimant is ~ntitled to compensation for temporary tqtal dis­
ability from December 8, 1980 through March 27, 1981 and from 
April 27, 1981 thro~gh May 8, 1981. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

GERALD BAUMAN, CLAIMANT 
Michael Strooband, Claimant's Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0077M 
Jun~ 3, 1981 

ciaimant, b~ ~nd through his attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and 
reopen his dlaim for a ·worsened condJtion relat~d to his November 
13; 1973 industrial ihjury. ~laimant•s· aggravation rights have 
expired. 

By a letter dated April 3, 1981, the carrier, Wausau Insur­
ance Co~, was opposed to a claim reopening. The Board found that 
the e~idence .submitt~d was a~biguous. ·~e approved the carrier's 
request to have claimant examined by Dr. Saez. He examined the 
claimant April 27, 1~81. 

Dr. Saez reported, "December 16, 1980 the patient .saw Dr. 
Soldano, a chiropr~ctor in Sac~amento,. and st~te~ that he has re­
lieved all of his problems and released him tq work on March 6, 
1981." Claim~nt had no compJaint~ and denied to Dr. Saez any low 
back pain, _leg .P•in or numbness and tingling. Cl~imant felt he· 
was.capable of holding a job. Dr. Saez diagnosed lumbar spon­
dylosis, presently asymptomatic. H~ concluded claimant was 
capable of working full time and required no medical care or 
treatment. · · 

Based on· this information the Board concludes that claimant 
1$ not entitled to claim reopening and his requ~st for own motion 
relief is denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
,-94- • 

DANIEL GARCIA, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81-0149M
June 1, 1981-

The claimant suffered an industrial injury on June 22, 1974,
and his claim was subsequently closed by a Determination Order of
May 15, 1975 with compensation, for temporary total disability
only. A stipulation was entered into dated June 30, 1976 wherein
claimant received 42® for unscheduled disability. Claimant's ag­
gravation rights expired on May 5, 1980,

Claimant was enrolled in an approved program of vocational
rehabilitation in electronic assembly commencing December 8, 1980
but interrupted in March 1981 and reinstated April 1981. Claimant
completed this authorized vocational rehabilitation program on May
8, 1981.

Claimant is entitled to compensation for temporary total dis­
ability from December 8, 1980 through March 27, 1981 and from
April 27, 1981 through May 8, 1981.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

GERALD BAUMAN, CLAIMANT
Michael Strooband, Claimant's Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0077M
June 3, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his November
13, 1973 industrial injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have
expired.

By a letter dated April 3, 1981, the carrier, Wausau Insur­
ance Co.., was opposed to a claim reopening. The Board found that
the evidence submitted was ambiguous. We approved the carrier's
request to have claimant examined by Dr. Saez. He examined the
claimant April 27, 1981.

Dr. Saez reported, "December 16, 1980 the patient saw Dr.
Soldano, a chiropractor in Sacramento, and states that he has re­
lieved all of his problems and released him to work on March 6,
1981." Claimant had no complaints and denied to Dr. Saez any low
back pain, leg pain or numbness and tingling. Claimant felt he*
was.capable of holding a job. Dr. Saez diagnosed lumbar spon­
dylosis, presently asymptomatic. He concluded claimant was
capable of working full time and required no medical care or
treatment.

Based on this information the Board concludes that claimant
is not entitled to claim reopening and his request for own motion
relief is denied.

m

IT IS SO ORDERED.
.-94-
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RONALD BRENNEMAN, CLAIMANT Own Motion ~1-0147M 
June 3, 1981 SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 

Own M.otion Order 
Clai~ant requests the Boar~ to ~xercise its qwn motion juris­

diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278~ an~ reopen his claim fo~ a wot­
sened condition related to his indu~trial injury of August 3~ 
1972. Cl~irnant's aggravation rights ;have expired. 

l 
The· meclical evidenc~ submitted. indicates that claimant's cur-

rent condition is related to his 1972 industrial injury, and on 
April 30·, 1981 Dr. Steele recommended 'that claimant subini t to a 
fusion. This recommendation was concurred in by Dr. Van 01st. 

. . • r 
! 

The Board finds claimant is entitled to claim reopening ef­
fective the date of hospilalization tor the May 6, 1981 recom­
mended surgery an~ until closure is ~uthorized_pursuant to ORS 
656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

CLYDE E. CLEMENT, CLAIMANT 
Allan H. Coons·~ Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leg a 1 , . Def en·se Attorney 
Request for Review by Claimant 

WCB 80-04626 
June 3, 1981 

I 
... ._ .. Re.vTewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis. 

I 

The ci~imant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which 
affirmed t_h:e SAI_F Corporation's den~al of his aggravation claim. 

· The Board affirms and adopts those portions of the Referee's 
order concerning ~he aggravation cl~irn. · 

.. ! . 
There i~ another issue which the Referee did not address. 

The aggravation claim was filed and;medically documented on Feb­
ruaiy 20, 198rr. SAIF did not issue iti denial until May 9, 1980, 
a period of 79 days. SAIF did not pay interim compensation. SAIF 
offers absolutely no ~xplanation or1 ~xcuse for its failure to com­
ply with its statutory duties. Penalties and attorney fees will 
be as_sessed. · · ., · · 

·1 

Finally, by motion dated May 11, 1981, claimant moves to re­
mand fhis case to the Hearings Divi~ion ~o be cionsolidatea with 

· another case involving·ciaimarit tha~ is now pending there, WCB 
Case No. 81-0~494. No persuasive r~a~on is pr~sented in support 
of the motion. · I 

ORDER 

. The order of the Referee dated September 16, 1980 is af­
firmed. SAIF shall pay clairn~nt t~mporary total disability bene­
fits from February.20, 1980'to May !9, 1980 and a penalty equal to 
25% of that ·amount. Claimant's motion to remand is.denied.-

1 . 

Claimant-'s attorney is awardetj the sum of $1,00Q 
able attorney fee, payable by the SAIF Corporation. 

. i 

as a reason-

,..--'--- .... ------. .. ·---· ... ____ ,. ____________ . -~- ~--95~-. 
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RONALD BRENNEMAN. CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0147M
June 3, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656,278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of August 3,
1972. Claimant's aggravation rights ihave expired.

The medical evidence submitted, indicates that claimant's cur
rent condition is related to his 1972 industrial injury, and on
April 30-, 1981 Dr. Steele recommended that claimant submit to a
fusion. This recommendation was concurred in by Dr. Van Olst.

The Board finds claimant is entitled to claim reopening ef-
for the May 6, 1981 recom-
authorized pursuant to ORS

WCB 80 04626
June 3, 1981

fective the date of hospitalization
mended surgery and until closure is
656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

CL DE E. CLEMENT, CLAIMANT
Allan H. Coons, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis.
, *

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the SAIF Corporation's denial of his aggravation claim.

The Board affirms and adopts those portions of the Referee's
order concerning the aggravation claim.

There is another issue which the Referee did not address.
The aggravation claim was filed and'medically documented on Feb­
ruary 20, 1980, SAIF did not issue its denial until May 9, 1980,
a period of 79 days. SAIF did not pay interim compensation. SAIF
offers absolutely no explanation or|excuse for its failure to com­
ply with its statutory duties. Penalties and attorney fees will
be assessed.

Finally, by motion dated May 11, 1981, claimant moves to re­
mand this case to the Hearings Division to be consolidated with
another case involving claimant thait is now pending there, WCB
Case No. 81-02494. No persuasive reason is presented in support
of the motion. .

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 16, 1980 is af­
firmed. SAIF shall pay claimant temporary total disability bene­
fits from February 20, 1980'to Mayi9, 1980 and a penalty equal to
25% of that amount. Claimant's motion to remand is denied.

Claimant's attorney is awarded the sum of $1,000 as a reason­
able attorney fee, payable by the SAIF Corporation.

95^
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JEFFREY L. DAWLEY, CLAIMANT 
Galton, Pop-ick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys 
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys 
Own Motion Order 

WCB 80-07562 
June 3, 1981 

Clairnarit; by ana·through his ~ttorney, on September 5, 1980 
requested the Board·_to e,xercise its own motion jurisdiction pursu­
ant to.ORS 656.27S and reopen his claim for a worsened condition 
related to his injury of April-24, 1975. Claimant requested com­
pensation for· temporary total disability, reclas~ifying his cl~im 
as disabling and paymeht of ~edical expenses and an attorney fee. 
Claimant's aggravation rights have expired. 

On the same date claimant filed a request for hearing in W_CB 
Case No. 80-08104 and raised the issue of the denial entered on 
August 19, 1980, attorn~y fe~s, failure to reclassify the claim- as 
disabling, payment of·rnedical expenses, penalties and attorney 
fees .• 

On October 6, 1980 the Board ·issued an Own Motion Order 
Referring for Hearing ·on a consolidated basi~ ·wifh WC~ Case No. 
80-08104. The Referee was to hoia a hearing and take evidence on 
all issues 6efore him, including the o~n motion matter. 

A hearing was held on March 10,_ 1981 before Referee Philip 
Mongrain. On.April 15, 1981 the Referee i~sued an Opinion and 
Order and Own Motion Recommendation. It was the Referee's recom­
mendation on the.own motion cas~-to deny all r~lief the clai~ant 
has regu·es~ed. 

The Board, after de novo review of the transcript of pioceed­
ings and.the evidentiary material, concludes that the Referee 1 s 
recommendation should be adopted. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-96-

JEFFRE L. DAWLE . CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Own Motion Order

WCB 80-07562
June 3, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, on September 5, 1980
requested the Board to e^xercise its own motion jurisdiction pursu­
ant to ORS 656.278* and reopen his claim for a worsened condition
related to his injury of April'24, 1975. Claimant requested com­
pensation for temporary total disability, reclassifying his claim
as disabling and payment of medical expenses and an attorney fee.
Claimant's aggravation rights have expired.

On the same date claimant filed a request for hearing in WCB
Case No. 80-08104 and raised the issue of the denial entered on
August 19, 1980, attorney fees, failure to reclassify the claim as
disabling, payment of medical expenses, penalties and attorney
fees,.

On October 6, 1980 the Board issued an Own Motion Order
Referring for Hearing on a consolidated basis with WCB Case No.
80-08104. The Referee was to hold a hearing and take evidence on
all. issues before him, including the own motion matter.

A hearing was held on March 10, 1981 before Referee Philip
Mongrain. On April 15, 1981 the Referee issued an Opinion and
Order and Own Motion Recommendation. It was the Referee's recom­
mendation on the own motion case-to deny all relief the claimant
has requested.

The Board, after de novo review of the transcript of proceed­
ings and.the evidentiary material, concludes that the Referee's
recommendation should be adopted.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

#

1

#
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ROBERT K. HEDLUND, CLAIMANT 
Peter 0. Hansen, Claimant 1 s Attorney­
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney 
Reauest for Review by SA~F 

' -
_j 

·I 
I 

i 
' 

!·-

WCB 79-09967 
June 3, 1981 

The SAIF Corporation seeks· Boar9 review of the Referee's or­
ders dated July 1, 1980 and August 11, 1980 which awarded 30% un­
scheduled permanerit partial disabili~y and additional temporary 
total disability. -

The-Boaid affir~s and adopts th~t portion. of the Referee 1 s 
order relating to the extent of clai~ant's permanent partial dis­
ability. The Board reverses the.Referee's. award. o~ additional 
temporary total dis~bility. I 

Clai~ant was injured when a ditch in which he was laying pipe 
caved in •. A cb-worker was kill~d. 'c1aimant 1 s m~nimal physical 
problems from the accident were thejbasis of a Determination Order· 
d~ted October 2&, 1978 wtiich awarded only temporary total dis­
ability fr6m June 13, 1978 to August 20, 1978. The claim was 
reopened in Augu~t 1979 when claima~t began receiving psychiatric 
treatment. The medical evidence isiuna~imous that there is a 
causal nexus between c~aimant's psy9hiatric cordition and the 
cave-in accident. It is this psychiatric condition that is the 
basis of t6e permanent partial disability awarded by the Refere~ 
and ·the Board. - · ' 

The claim was closed by a s~cohd Determination Order a~ted 
A~ril 16·,· 1980 which awarded temporary total disability from Aug­
us-t 23 ,. · 1979 to ·March· 1a, 198Q. cr~imant seeks, and the Referee 
awarded, additional temporary total disability ·for part of the 
interim between the two Deterrninat1on Orders, i.e., from February 
1, 1919 to August.22, 197~. 

There are medical reports that state claimant was unable to 
work from February 1, 197~ to Augu~t 22, l979~ But if bur only 
role were to just read and recite ~edipal reports, the budget of 
this agency dould be reduced'consia,r~bly. Our role, act~ally, is 
to weigh all the evidence. As ·far/ as cla.imant's sup·pos·ea 

in~bili ty t"o work between. Februaryj 1 and August -22, the rather 
tellin·g evidence t:o the ~ontrary i's that claimant a id work-. during 
~-of· this period •. Specifically!~ claimant <?Perated a backhoe 
doing backfilling operations on-pipe laying projects during th~ 
first six_months ot 1979. f 

Second, the persua$iveness o~ an expert's opinion depends in 
large part.on the expert's reasons for that opinion. Here the 
only reason for the opinion that claimant was unable to work is 
that his psychological condition prevented a return to his former 
job working- in tTenc~es. · Inability to pe~form one specific job i~ 
not total disab~lity. See ORS 65~.206 (l) (a); ORS 656.210. 

j --~--... ~--- ~-------- ·--·- ., -------,.-----------,_ .---------· --··,:97..:i · --- .. _. ---.--·-··;-.,.--. -. 
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ROBERT K. HEDLUND, CLAIMANT
Peter 0. Hansen, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-09967
June 3, 1981

Reviewed by Board members Barnes and McCallister.
i ■

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee*s or­
ders dated July 1, 1980 and August 11, 1980 which awarded 30% un­
scheduled permanent partial disabili;ty and additional temporary
total disability.

t
The Board affirms and adopts that portion, of the Referee's

order relating to the extent of claimant's permanent partial dis­
ability. The Board reverses the Referee's award of additional
temporary total disability.

t
Claimant was injured when a ditch in which he was laying pipe

caved in. A co-worker was killed. Claimant's minimal physical
problems from the accident were the (basis of a Determination Order
dated October 26, 1978 which awarded only temporary total dis­
ability from June 13, 1978 to August 20, 1978, The claim was
reopened in August 1979 when claimant began receiving psychiatric
treatment. The medical evidence isjunanimous that there is a
causal nexus between claimant’s psychiatric condition and the
cave-in accident. It is this psychiatric condition that is the
basis of the permanent partial disability awarded by the Referee
and the Board.

The claim was closed by a second Determination Order dated
April 16, 1980 which awarded temporary total disability from Aug­
ust 23,. 1979 to March 18, 1980. Claimant seeks, and the Referee
awarded, additional temporary total disability for part of the
interim between the two Determination Orders, i.e., from February
1, 1979 to August.22, 1979,

There are medical reports that state claimant was unable to
work from February 1, 1979 to August 22, 1979. But if our only
role were to just read and recite medical reports, the budget of
this agency could be reduced considerably. Our role, actually^ is
to weigh all the evidence. As farjas claimant's supposed

inability to work between,February; 1 and August 22, the rather
telling evidence t*o the contrary is that claimant did work during
most of this period. Specifically|, claimant operated a backhoe
doing backfilling operations on pipe laying projects during the
first six months of 1979. |

Second, the persuasiveness of an expert's opinion depends in
large part.on the expert's reasons for that opinion. Here the
only reason for the opinion that claimant was unable to work is
that his psychological condition prevented a return to his former
job working in trenches. Inability to perform one specific job is
not total disability. See ORS 656.206(1)(a); ORS 656.210.
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Third, there is no hasis in the record for the selection of 
February 1_ as the start of temporary total dis~bility. The gen­
esis of claimant's traumatic or phobic neurosis was the March 1978 
cave-in._ Either that neurosis prevented claimant from working ~ 
thereafter or .it d_id not. U~less explained, and it is not in this W 
record, picking February 1, 1979 as the beginning of temporary 
total disability seems whim~ical. · · 

For these reasons, the Board concludes claimant has not 
proven ~ntitle~ent to additional temporary -total disabili~y. 

ORDER 

The Board affirms and adopts that portion of the Referee's· 
Opinion and Order of July 1, 1980 as amended by order-_of August 
11, 1980 which awards 96° or 30% unscheduled permanent partial 
disability-to claimant. The Board reverses that portion of the 
Referee's order which awarded "increased temporary total dis­
ability. Because of this modification, the Referee's order is 
further modified td provide that claimant's attorney's fee, ~ay­
able from claimant's -increased compensation, shall not exceed 
$1,250. 

MARVIN LEROY INGRAM, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal; Defense Attorney 
Own· Motion Order . . . 

Own Motion 81-0078M 
June 3. 1981 

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction pursuant to ORS 656.278 and ~eopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his October 18, 1962 industrial injury. 
Claimant•·s aggravation rights have expired. -

The only medical evidence in the record since 1963 is a re­
port from or; Bohling dated April 21, 1981 that indicates claimant 
gave? history of a crush~type inj4ry to LS in the 1950 1 s. 

Based on this report we find the evidence ~oes not relate 
claimant's current problems to his industrial injury of October 
1962. Therefore, -claimant's request for o~n motion relief is 
denied. · 

IT rs so ORDERED. 

-98-

Third, there is no basis in the record for the selection of
February 1 as the start of temporary total disability. The gen­
esis of claimant's traumatic or phobic neurosis was the March 1978
cave-in. Either that neurosis prevented claimant from working
thereafter or it did not. Unless explained, and it is not in this
record, picking February 1, 1979 as the beginning of temporary
total disability seems whimsical.

For these reasons, the Board concludes claimant has not
proven entitlement to additional temporary total disability.

ORDER

The Board affirms and adopts that portion of the Referee's
Opinion and Order of July 1, 1980 as amended by order of August
11, 1980 which awards 96° or 30% unscheduled permanent partial
disability to claimant. The Board reverses that portion of the
Referee's order which awarded increased temporary total dis­
ability, Because of this modification, the Referee's order is
further modified to provide that claimant's attorney's fee, pay­
able from claimant's increased compensation, shall not exceed
$1,250.

MARVIN LERO INGRAM, CLAIMANT
SAIF Cprp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0078M
June 3, 1981

#

Claimant requests the Board to
diction pursuant to ORS 656,278 and
sened condition related to his October 18, 1962
Claimant's aggravation rights have expired.

exercise its own motion juriS'
reopen his claim for a wor

industrial injury

The only medical evidence in the
port from Dr. Bohling dated April 21,
gave a history of a crush-type injury

record since 1963 is a re-
1981 that indicates claimant
to L5 in the 1950's.

Based on this report we find the evidence ^does not relate
claimant's current problems to his industrial injury of October
1962. Therefore, claimant's request for own motion relief is
denied,

IT IS SO ORDERED.

-98-
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.A. CURTIS JOHNSON, CLAI ~ANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

l., Own Motion 81-0143M 
June 3, 1981 

The claimant ·requests the Board :to exercise its own motion 

jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.27~, and reopen his claim for a 

worsened ·co·ndition related to his industrial injury of January 7, 
1969. . ! 

The medical evidence sumitted indicates that claimant was 

hospitalized and· underwent suigery on April 14, 1981. Dr. Button 

makes the necessary ·causal relationship of claimant's current 

condition_ to his industrial injury o~ 1969 by a report dated 
December ·29, 1980. 

The Boar~ finds claimaht is ent~tled to claim reopening 

commencing upon his hospitalization for the surtjery performed on 

April 14, 1981 ~nd until closure is ~~thorized pursuant to ·ORS 
656.278~ 1 

IT .IS SO ORDERED. 

WILLIAM R. LAMB, CLAIMANT 
Bernard Jolles, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF Corp leqal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion· Determination 

I 
I, 

Own Motion 81-0148M 
June ·3, 1981 

Claimant sustained a compensable injury to his left hip on 

February 12, 1970.· The clai~ was orfginally closed in March 1971, 

and:claimant's ·aggravation rights ha~e·expired. Due to swelling 

in 'his leg, Dr. Leavitt told claimant to stay home from July 3, 

1980 through July 17, 1980. T.his was done and claimant was able 

to return to work on July 21. By a Board'5 own Motion Order dated 

September 22, 1980, claimant's claim,was reoperied for this addi­

tional tempoiary total.dis~bility comperisation. 
. I 

The SAIF Corporation has requested a determination of claim­

ant's current dis~bility. The Evalu~tion Division of the Workers' 

Compensation Department recommends t~at claimant:be granted ~om­

pensation for temporary total disability from July 3, 1980 through 

july 17, 1980 only. It finds that claimant has been adPquately 

compensated by the 30% award previously granted. The Board con­

curs in this recommendation. We note that claimant is entitled to 

any ongoing treatment necessitated by his February 1970 injury un­

der the provisions of ORS 656.245. ' 

ORDER 

Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary total 

disability from July 3, 1~80 thr~ugh· ~uly 17, 1980. 

·Jll .. ~-----· ___ ·_ ---------,,.....,...-~.-. .,_, .. ., .... .,_,. _____ , ·- ---·--~----' .. -· ..... ; •-•~--~• •---e,---••-• • •••.,-~•-- c••• • 
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A. CURTIS JOHNSON, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0143M
June 3, 1981

The claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a
worsened condition related to his industrial injury of January 7,1969, ■ ^

The medical evidence sumitted indicates that claimant was
hospitalized and underwent surgery on April 14, 1981. Dr. Button
makes the necessary causal relationship of claimant's current
condition to his industrial injury of 1969 by a report dated
December 29, 1980.

The Board finds claimant is enti'tled to claim reopening
commencing upon his hospitalization for the surgery performed on
April 14, 1981 and until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS
656.278. I

IT IS SO ORDERED.

WILLIAM R. LAMB, CLAIMANT
Bernard Jolles, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion'Determination

Own Motion 81 0148M
June 3, 1981

Claimant sustained a compensable injury to his left hip on
February 12, 1970. The claim was originally closed in March 1971,
and'claimant's aggravation rights have expired. Due to swelling
in his leg, Drv Leavitt told claimant to stay home from July 3,
1980 through July 17, 1980. This was done and claimant was able
to return to work on July 21. By a Board's Own Motion Order dated
September 22, 1980, claimant's claim,was reopened for this addi­
tional temporary total disability compensation.

The SAIF Corporation has requested a determination of claim­
ant's current disability. The Evaluation Division of the Workers'
Compensation Department recommends t^at claimant.be granted com­
pensation for temporary total disability from July 3, 1980 through
July 17, 1980 only. It finds that claimant has been adequately
compensated by the 30% award previously granted. The Board con­
curs in this recommendation. We note that claimant is entitled to
any ongoing treatment necessitated by his February 1970 injury un­
der the provisions of ORS 656.245.

ORDER

Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary total
disability from July 3, 1980 through July 17, 1980,

-99-
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MCIVER, CLAIMANT_ 
Peter 0. Hansen, Claimant's Attorney 
SAI F Corp Legal, Defense Attorney : 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion·s1~0I41M 
June 3, 1981 

The tlaimant, by and thro~gh her attorney, requests th~ Board 

to exercise its own !'JlOtion jur~·sdic'tion pursucln·t to ORS. 6?6.278 

and reopen her claim for a worsened condition related·to her in­

dustrial inju~y of·June 17; 1972. Claimant's aggravation rights 
have expi.r.ed. 

T~e medical eviden~e·subm{tted iridicates that cilaimant was to 

be enrolled at the Ernanual Paii:i Center and that· her. ·cond1ti'on· is 

r~lated to her 1972 industrial injury. Claimant intered the pain 
center on April 6, 1981. · 

The.Board finds th~t claimant is entitled to compensation for 

tempor~ry fcital disability upon her admittanc~ to the Pain Center 

and until the daie of her discharge. · · · 

IT IS SO.ORDERED~ 

-100-

-
DOROTH MCIVER. CLAIMANT
Peter 0. Hansen, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal , Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0141M
June 3, 1981

The claimant, by and through her attorney, requests the Board
to exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS. 656.278
and reopen her claim for a worsened condition related to her in­
dustrial injury of June 17, 1972, Claimant's aggravation rights
have expired.

The medical evidence submitted indicates that claimant was to
be enrolled at the Emanual Pain Center and that her. condition is
related to her 1972 industrial injury. Claimant entered the pain
center on April 6, 1981.

The Board finds that claimant is entitled to compensation for
temporary total disability upon her admittance to the Pain Center
and until the date of her discharge.

IT IS SO.ORDERED.

#

-100-
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JO_E MCKENZIE, CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Attorney.for Claimant 
Daryl l E.· Klein, Defense. Attorney 
Request-for Review by Claimant 

Revi~wed by the Board en bane. 

-i. •• I 

. I 

.wcs 80-03508 
June _3. 1981 

The claimant seeks Board riview-of the Referee's order which 
denied his aggravation claim that hi.i ·current nervous system dis­
order is a conseguence of his March 30, 1978 compensable back and 
.neck injury •. 

There is no d6~bt about the existence or severity of the 
claimant '_s·· neurologica) disorder. His symptoms include dizziness, 
d isegu i 1 ibr i urn, un'stead iness of aa i ti, a tendency to fa 11 over 
backwards, diterioration of me~oiy 1 ~lurred speech,·los~ of mobil­
·ity.and decreased manual dexterity. : Dr. Rafal, a neurologist, has 
diagnosed claimant's condition.as supranucle~r palsy, a degen­
erative d"isorder of the nervous system. All other doctors either 
agree with Dr. Rafal's diagnosis or .are unable to state a diagno~ 
sis. All'doctors agree that claimant is per~anently and totally 
disabled. . • 

Only two neurologists address the-question of causal rela­
tionsh{p betw~en claimant's supranuclear palsy·and his 1978 neck 
and back injury. or·.- Rafal, by report of July 2, 1980, indicated: 

• 1 . 

"It is difficult to substantiate a direct cause and ef:-­
fect relationship. Howev~r, it is well kriown that any 
neurological degenerative disease may be precipitated or 
aggravated by serious tra6m~. There is no question · 
these difficulties began in direct temporal relationship 
to his accident. Moreoveri in my extensive review of 
the literature on this syndrome, the onset of the ill­
ness at age 44 must be cohsidered exceptional. The ear­
liest reported case to my: knbwledge began at _age 48. I 
must therefore consider ii likely that the early onset 
of this man's illness, which occurred in direct temporal 
relationship to his injury was probably precipitated by 
the trauma." 

Dr. Wilson, in his report of September 3, 1980, states: 

"This patient has degenerative· CNS disorder which I feel 
is consistent with progre:ssive ·supI"anuclear palsy. The 
relationship with his present difficulty to his on-the­
j'ob injury, I think,· is :coincidental .and not causally 
related. He may have had a cervical-dorsal strain, but 
I do not feel that his piesent neurologic symptoms are 
related to the cervical-dorsal strain." 

. i 

i 
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JOE MCKENZIE, CLAIMANT ■ WCB 80 03508
Rolf Olson, Attorney for Claimant Oune 3, 1981
Daryll E. Klein, Defense. Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by the Board en banc.
I • ' •

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
denied his aggravation claim that his current nervous system dis­
order is a consequence of his March 30, 1978 compensable back and
neck injury.

There is no doubt about the existe
claimant ',s‘ neurological disorder. His
disequilibrium, unsteadiness of gaiti, a
backwards, deterioration of memory, slu
ity.and decreased manual dexterity. Dr
diagnosed claimant's condition,as supra
erative disorder of the nervous system,
agree with Dr. Ratal's diagnosis or are
sis. All doctors agree that claimant i
disabled.

nee or severity of the
symptoms include dizziness,
tendency to fall over
rred speech,'loss of mobil-
. Ratal, a neurologist, has
nuclear palsy, a degen-
All other doctors either
unable to state a diagno-
s permanently and totally

Only two neurologists address the question of causal rela­
tionship between claimant's supranuclear palsy and his 1978 neck
and back injury. Dr. Rafal, by report of July 2, 1980, indicated:

"It is difficult to substantiate a direct cause and ef­
fect relationship. However, it is well known that any
neurological degenerative disease may be precipitated or
aggravated by serious trauma. There is no question
these difficulties began in direct temporal relationship
to his accident. Moreover, in my extensive review of
the literature on this syndrome, the onset of the ill­
ness at age 44 must be considered exceptional. The ear­
liest reported case to my, knowledge began at age 48. I
must therefore consider it likely that the early onset
of this man's illness, which occurred in direct temporal
relationship to his injury was probably precipitated by
the trauma."

Dr. Wilson, in his report of September 3, 1980, states:

"This patient has degenerative CNS disorder which I feel
is consistent with progressive supranuclear palsy • The
relationship with his present difficulty to his on-the-
job injury, I think, is 'coincidental and not causally
related. He may have had a cervical-dorsal strain, but
I do not feel, that his present neurologic symptoms are
related to the cervical-dorsal strain."
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R~feree relied on Edwards v. SAIF,. 30 Or App 21 (1977), 
for the proposition t~at a tempotal• connection i~ insuffi~ient to 
prove causation. When appellate judicial review is· de novo, there 
is always a problem -in interpreting the appellate court·' s de­
cision: Was it based on an issue of faci or on an issu~ of law? · 
To illus~rate, did the Court of Appeals intend to hold in Edwards 
that evidertce of a'direct t~mporal relationship is never, as a 
matter of· law, sufficient tb pro~e causation or ins~ead did the 
Court. of Appea-1s---only intend--·to · rule ··in····Edwards~--that· .. i·f· found the 
evidence of ·temporal relationship in that_ case to- be insufficient 
as·~ matter of fact? -The Board adopts the latter interpretation 
of Edwards. : 

Mor~over, th~r~ is more-in this case than just ~vid~nce 9f 
temporal relations~ip. Dr. Rafal has documented that claimant's 
neurolo~ical di~ease could h~v~ been preci~itated or aggr~vated by 
setious ·ttauma, and we kn6w claimarit suffered a seribu~ trauma in 
March of 1978 at-the time of-his.ori~in~i c~~pensa6le injury. 
Also, aLthough medical science knows relatively little about 
supranuclear palsy, Dr. Rafal relied on the fact that the d.isease 
developed in claimant at an unusually young age to suggest that 
the cause must have be~n something. othe~ than natural, whatever 
the natural cause might be. · 

Dr. Wilson offers no.reason to support his contrary opiriion. 
The Board is.more pe~suaded by_Dr. Rafal's• opinion.which supports· 
the conclusion that claimant's f978 industrial injury triggered or 
precipitated hi~ neurological disorder. which is progressively de­
teriorating ~nd h~s rend~red claim~nt permanently and totally dis-
abled. . 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated November 19, 1980 is 
The carrier•~ d~nial. dated March 18, 1980 is set aside. 
is awa~de~:compensation for per~a~ent total disability. 
find any persuasive basis in the record.for a differen~ 
award is effective the date of this order. 

reversed~ 
~laimant 
Unable to 

date,.this 

Claiman~•s attorney is awarded as and for a reasonable attor­
ney's f·ee for services· rendered at _the Hearings· and Board levels 
th~ sum of $2;soo, payable· by the carrier, not payable from th~ 
claimant's compensation. · · 
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. --The Referee relied on Edwards v. SAIF,. 30 Or App 21 (1977) ,
for the proposition that a temporal connection is insufficient to
prove causation. When appellate judicial review is de novo, there
is always a problem in interpreting the appellate court's de­
cision: Was it based on an issue of fact or on an issue of law? '
To illustrate, did the Court of Appeals intend to hold in Edwards
that evidence of a direct temporal relationship is never, as a
matter of law, sufficient to prove causation or^ instead did the
Court, of Appeals-only intend to rule -in -Edwards- that it found the
evidence of temporal relationship in that case to^ be insufficient
as a matter of fact? The Board adopts the latter interpretation
of Edwards.

Moreover, there is more in this case than just evidence of
temporal relationship. Dr. Rafal has documented that claimant.'s
neurological disease could have been precipitated or aggravated by
serious trauma, and we know claimant suffered a serious trauma in
March of 1978 at the time of his original compensable injury.
Also, although medical science knows relatively little about
supranuclear palsy, Dr. Rafal relied on the fact that the disease
developed in claimant at an unusually young age to suggest that
the cause must have been something other than natural, whatever
the natural cause might be.

Dr. Wilson offers no reason to support his contrary opinion.
The Board is,more persuaded by Dr. Ratal's opinion which supports
the conclusion that claimant's 1978 industrial injury triggered or
precipitated his neurological disorder which is progressively de­
teriorating and has rendered claimant permanently and totally dis­
abled.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated November 19, 1980 is reversed.
The carrier's denial dated March 18, 1980- ________ _ _______ _____________ ____ is set aside.
is awarded, compensation for permanent total disability,
find any persuasive basis in the record for
award is effective the date of this order.

Claimant
Unable to

a different date, this

Claimant's attorney is awarded as and for a reasonable attor­
ney's fee for services rendered at the Hearings and Board levels
the sum of $2,500, payable by the carrier, not payable from the
claimant's compensation.

m
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G. MILLER, CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
Scott Gilman, Attorney . 
Order Approving S_tipulated .Distribution 

Claim· 04-07171 
June 3, 1981 

of Third Party Claim Settlement 

Claimant was irtjured in an auto~obile accident. His workers' 
compensation claim was accepted by his employer and its workers' 
compensation carrier. Claimant also sued the other driver in­
volved in the accident. 

Claimant's third party claim w~s settled by mutual a9reernent 
between claimant, the workers' comp~nsation carrier and the ad­
verse party. · A dispute then arose between.claimant and tne work­
ers' compensation.carrier involving "the proper distribution of 
certain parts of the third party settlement. Pursuant to ORS 
656.593(3), the parties requested the Board to resolve that dis­
pute. 

The parties have since privately settled that dispute and now 
request the Board to approve their agreement. 

The proceeds of the ea~lier th~rd party settlement were dis-
tributed as provided by ORS 656.5931 as follows: · 

Gross recovery 
Less attorney fees & 

costs@ 33-1/3% 

su_b-total 
Less 25% to claimant 

Sub-total 
Less insurer's past 

expenditures 

Balance remaining 
I 

$15,000.00 

- 5,000.00 

$10,000.00 
- -2,500.00-

$ 7,500.00 

- 2,395.83 

. $ 5 , ·l O 4 . 1 7 

Claimant and the workers' c6mpensation carrier disagreed ahout the 
distribution of the $5,104.17 remaining balance. They have agreed 
to resolve that dispute as follows: 

• • I 

"l. The remaining balance of the third porty settlement 
proceeds, i.e., $5,104.lJ, shall be paid over to and re­
ceived by claimant; and: 

I 

• 11 2 • I n exchange f o r i ts' w a i v e r o f i ts f u tu r e pay rn en t s 
lien against ~hose remaVning proceeds, claimant hereby 
agrees that Mission shall have and receive a credit in 
the amount of· $5,104.17 1as and against any future work­
~rs' compensatibn benefits to which claimant might 
otherwise.be entitled·, incurred or to become payable 
within the next 12 succeeding months after execution of 
this agreement; and 
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Claim' 04-07171
June 3, 1981

LONNIE G. MILLER, CLAIMANT i
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney
Scott Gilman, Attorney
Order Approving Stipulated Distribution of Third Party Claim Settlement

Claimant was injured in an automobile accident. His workers'
compensation claim was accepted by his employer and its workers’
compensation carrier. Claimant also sued the other driver in­
volved in the accident.

Claimant's third party claim was settled by mutual aoreement
between claimant, the workers' compensation carrier and the ad­
verse party. A dispute then arose between.claimant and the work­
ers' compensation carrier involving ' the proper distribution of
certain parts of the third party settlement. Pursuant to ORS
656.593(3), the parties requested the Board to resolve that dis­
pute.

The parties have since privately settled that dispute and now
request the Board to approve their agreement.

The proceeds of the earlier third party settlement were dis­
tributed as provided by ORS 656.593! as follows:

Gross recovery
Less attorney fees &
costs @ 33-1/3%

Sub-total
Less 25% to claimant

Sub-total
Less insurer's past
expenditures

Balance remaining

$15,000.00

- 5,000.00

$10,000.00
- -2,500.00

$ 7,500.00

- 2,395.83

■$ 5,-104.17

Claimant and the workers' compensation carrier disagreed about the
distribution of the $5,104.17 remaining balance. They have agreed
to resolve that dispute as follows:

"1. The remaining balance of the third party settlement
proceeds, i.e., $5,104.17, shall be paid over to and re­
ceived by claimant; and :

• "2. In exchange for its' waiver of its future payments
lien against those remaining proceeds, claimant hereby
agrees that Mission shaLl have and receive a credit in
the amount of $5,104.17 'as and against any future work­
ers' compensation benefits to which claimant might
otherwise be entitled, incurred or to become payable
within the next 12 succeeding months after execution of
this agreement; and
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The Determination Order of Aprii 9, 1980 shall be- ·o 
come final and claimant shall waive any appeal rights as 
to that Determihation Order." 

The Board will approve this disposition with the following 
comments: 

The most vexing questions that can arise uncler· ORS 656.593 
are in those cases where the workers' compensation claim is stiil 
being litigated, and thus the ultimate expenditures of the work­
ers' compensation carrier are_ unknown and unknowable. Th~ parties 
are to be complimented by avoiding those vexing questions here by 
the simultaneous resolution of the underlying workers' compensa­
tion claim and of their dispute about the distribution of the 
third party settlement. The Boar~ recommends that approach. 

The Bbard has serious doubts about the use of set-offs in 
workers' compensation settlements. Specifically, we have recently 
refused ·to approve stipulated settlements in which the parties 
agteed to a set-off or_ credit-of amounts then to be paid against 
any future ·workers' compensation benefits, including medical ser­
vices and time lqss. We presently and generally intend to refuse 
approval of a· bargain in which a worker relinquishes future rights 
to medical services and time loss. On.the dth~r hand, in one case 
~e did ·approve a stipulated settlement which contained a set-off 
for any future award of .increased permanent disahility based on 
rep~esentations ab9ut unique circumstances in that case. 

Despite our _general concerns about set-offs, we will approve 
the set-off n¢gotiated by the parties in this .case because: (1) 
there is not now pending any workers' compensation litigation·in­
vol vi ng these parties; ( 2) the· worker. is not trading the- right to 
receive future workers• compensation benefits for- present receipt 
of workers• compe~~afion benefits, _but instead is trading t~e 
right to· receiv~ future wotkers• ·compensation ~enefits for present 
receipt of some~hing else, i.e., a l~rger share of the third party 
settlement than he'miqht otherwise be entitled to receive; and (3) 
.the possibility of a set-off is limited in duration to 12 months, 
which seems like ·an eminently reasonable period. 

ORDER 

The parties "Settlement· Stipulation and Orde~ for; Distribu­
tion of Third Party Settlement Proceeds" dated March 4, 1981 is 
approved by t~e Board~ 
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to that Determination Order."

comments

ers' compensation carrier are. unknown and unknowable.

tion claim and of their dispute about the distribution of the
third party settlement. The Board recommends that approach.

, 1980 shall be-
appeal rights as

the fol lowi ng

er ORS 6 56.5 93
n claim is s till
es of the wo rk-
ble, Th e pa rties
uestions her e by
kers' compen sa-

The Board has serious doubts about the use o
workers' compensation settlements. Specifically,
refused to approve stipulated settlements in whic
agreed to a set-off or. credit of amounts then to
any future workers’ compensation benefits, includ
vices and time loss. We presently and generally
approval of a bargain in which a worker relinquis
to medical services and time loss. On.the other
we did approve a stipulated settlement which cont
for any future award of increased permanent disab
representations about unique circumstances in tha

f set-offs in
we have recently
h the parties
be paid against
ing medical ser-
intend to refuse
hes future rights
hand, in one case
ained a set-off
ility based on
t case.

Despite our
the set-off negot
there is not now
volving these par
receive future wo
of workers' compe
right to receive
receipt of someth
settlement than h
the possibility o
which seems like

general concerns about set-offs, we will
iated by the parties in this case because
pending any workers' compensation litigat
ties; (2) the worker is not trading the r
rkers' compensation benefits for present
nsation benefits, but instead is trading
future workers' compensation benefits for
ing else, i.e., a larger share of the thi
e might otherwise be entitled to receive;
f a set-off is limited in duration to 12
an eminently reasonable period.

approve
: (1)
ion in-
ight to
receipt
the
present
rd party
and (3)
mon ths,

ORDER

The parties "Settlement Stipulation and Order for- Distribu­
tion of Third Party Settlement Proceeds" dated March 4, 1981
approved by the Board.

IS
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D •. NICHOLSON, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi' w·:nson· et al, Claimant 1 s Attorneys1 

SAIF Corp Legal , Defense Attorney • ,. 
Own Motion Order Referring for Consolidated 

Own.Motion 81-0138M 
June 3, 1981 

Hearing 

On.May 12·, 1981, ·claimant, by aryd through his.attorney, re­
quested the Board exercise·· its own motion jurisdiction and reopen 

· his clai~ for an injury sustained on August 31, ·1971. This re­
quest is based on the _premise tha~ s~arp pains suffered' on August 
18, 1980 are related t6 claimant's 1971 industrial injury. Claim­
ant also filed a cl~im·for a new inj~ry ~s a resuit of that· inci­
dent which was denied by SAIF Corpor~tion on December 1, ~980. 
Claimant has requested a hearing on this denial. 

The Board concludes. tha_t it w9uld be in the best interests of 
the parties-inv6lved to refer this o~n ~otion:case·to its Hearings 
Division to be set for a h~aring in -bonsolidation with WCB Case 
No. 81-00328. The Referee shall take evidence in both cases and 
determine whether claimant's cur rent: condition is the result of· 
h{s Aµgust 1971 injury ~r? new injuri sustained. on August 18, 
1980, or neither. Upon conclusion o~ the hearing, th~ Referee . 
shall cause a transcript to be prepared ·and forwarded to the Board 
together •with his· recommendation as ·to the disposition of t~e own 
motion ca~e. · He shall also enter a~ appealable order· with r~spect 
to the.ne~ injuty claim (WCB C~se N9. 81~00328). 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

LEROY.SYLVESTER, CLAIMANT ., ., 
Richard Kingsley, Clainiant'·s Att_orney 
Amended Own Motion Order 

' 

Own Motion 81-0094M 
June 3, 1981 

The ~oa~d is~ued its Own Motio6 Order on April 28, 1981 and 
found claimant entitled to medical services under the provisions 
of ORS 656 •. 245. The Board denieri' reopeni~g iri .the absence of in­
formation re~~rding claimant's time lost from work or his employ-
ment-status. . 

By a lette~ dated May 12, 1981.cl·aimant's attorney has now 
provided employment status information. ~he Board finns·that 
claimant is entitled to have his claim reopened. March 7, 1981 
was the last day worked. Claimant was hoipitalized on.March 8 or 
9, 1981. , . . 

Claimant is granted compensati~n for tempor~ry tot~l dis­
ability commencing March 8, 1981 anp until closure is ·authorized 

·pur~uant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

#

BILL D. NICHOLSON, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order Referring for Consolidated Hearing

Own.Motion 81-0138M
June 3, 1981

On,May 12, 1981, claimant, by and through his attorney, re­
quested the Board exercise its own motion jurisdiction and reopen
his claim for an injury sustained on August 31, 1971. This re­
quest is based on the premise that sharp pains suffered on August
18, 1980 are related to claimant's 1971 industrial injury. Claim­
ant also filed a claim for a new injury as a result of that'inci­
dent which was denied by SAIF Corporation on December 1, 1980.
Claimant has requested a hearing on this denial.

The Board concludes, that it would be in the best interests of
the parties■involved to refer this own motion,case to its Hearings
Division to be set for a hearing in consolidation with WCB Case
No. 81-00328, The Referee shall take evidence in both cases and
determine whether claimant's current' condition is the result of
his August 1971 injury or a new injury sustained on August 18,
1980, or neither. Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Referee
shall cause a transcript to be prepared and forwarded to the Board
together with his'recommendation as to the disposition of the own
motion case. He shall also enter an appealable order with respect
to the.new injury claim {WCB Case No. 81^00328).

IT IS SO ORDERED.

LERO .S LVESTER, CLAIMANT
Richard Kingsley, Claimant's Attorney
Amended Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0094M
June 3, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 28, 1981 and
found claimant entitled to medical services under the provisions
of ORS 656.,245. The Board denied reopening in the absence of in­
formation regarding claimant's time lost from work or his employ­
ment sta'tus.

By a letter dated May 12, 1981,claimant's attorney has now
provided employment status information. The Board finds that
claimant is entitled to have his claim reopened. March 7, 1981
was the last day worked.
9, 1981.

Claimant is granted
ability commencing March
pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Claimant was hospitalized on.March 8 or

compensation for temporary total dis-
8, 1981 and until closure is authorized
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L. WEST, CLAIMANT -WCB. 80-03396 
June 3, 1981 R. Ray Heysell t Claimant 1 s Attorney 

SAIF Corp Legalt Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis. 

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of the Ref~ 
eree's otder which directed it to pay the sum of $149 (or medical 
services previously denied, assessed a penalty.against it of 25% 
of that amount and awarded a $400 attorney fee~ SAIF seeks re­
versal of the Referee's order on all points. 

The $149 in question is for services rendered by Dr. Engl~n-­
der on March 28, 1980. Just prior to that date claimant moved_ to · 
Eugene. He was unfamiliar with that area and called his at­
torney's office for~ recommendation of a doctor he could see for 
his continuing back pain. The attorney recommended Dr. Englander. 
From this -slender basis, SAIF suggests that the ·March 28 examina­
tion was for the purpose of litigation, possibly to establish. a 
need for ieopening. The Board is satisfied that tlaimant was 
merely seeking treatment for the continuing consequences of his 
industrial injury. SAIF is responsible for the payment of Dr. 
Englander's bill. ORS 656.245. 

Several requirements are outlined in the Workers• Compensa­
tion Department's rules which were not complied with by Dr. 
Englander. OAR 436-69-110(7) requires that after ·claim closure, 
when a work~r seeks additional m~~ical treatment, the doctor must 
report this to the.insurer promptly. OAR 436-69-110{9) states 
that when a worker changes doctors, the new doctor must advise the 
insurer of that fact within five days 6f the ·change or within five 
days after the first treatment. OAR 436-69-220(2) states that 
after claim closure, if a worker reports to a physician on his own 
initiative, the physician should contact the carrier to determine 
the -status of the claim and whether or not the c~rrier will accept 
responsibility for the examination. -None of these (ules were com­
plied.with by.Dr. Englander. Under these circumstances, the Bdard 
concludes that SAIF's actions were not so unrea~onable as to war­
rant the assessment of a penalty. 

SAIF also objects to the Referee's award of attorney fees, 
both on the basis of authority and amount. As for authority, SAIF 
denied claimant's claim for compensation, i.e., medical services. 
See ORS 656.005(9). Upon pro~~rly concluding that claimant was 
entitled to have that denial set aside, the Referee not only had 
the authority but the duty to-~ward an attorney fee to claimant. 
See ORS 656.386(1). 

As for 
fees ($400) 
three.:..fold. 
strategy in 

1 

the amount, it is admittedly anomalous when attorney 
exceed the amount in controversy ($149) by almost 
That, however, is·a consequence of SAIF's hang-tough 

thi~ case. The fee will not be reduced. 

CURTIS L. WEST, CLAIMANT
R. Ray HeyseTI, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB.80-03396
June 3, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of the Ref­
eree's order which directed it to pay the sum of $149 for medical
services previously denied, assessed a penalty.against it of 25%
of that amount and awarded a $400 attorney fee. SAIF seeks re­
versal of the Referee's order on all points.

The
der on Ma
Eugene,
torney's
his conti
From this
tipn was
need for
merely se
Industrie
Englander

$149 in question is for services rendered by Dr. Fnglan-
rch 28, 1980. Just prior to that date claimant moved to
He was unfamiliar with that area and called his at-

a recommendation of a doctor he could see for
The attorney recommended Dr. Englander

SAIF suggests that the March 28 examina-
of litigation, possibly to establish, a
Board is satisfied that claimant was
for the continuing consequences of his
is responsible for the payment of Dr.

office for
nuing back pain,
slender basis,
for the purpose
reopening. The
eking treatment
1 injury. SAIF
s bill. ORS 656.245.

Several requirements are outlined in the Workers' Compensa­
tion Department's rules which were not complied with by Dr.
Englander. OAR 436-69-110(7) requires that after claim closure,
when a worker seeks additional medical treatment, the doctor must
report this to the insurer promptly. OAR 436-69-110(9) states
that when a worker changes doctors, the new doctor must advise the
insurer of that fact within five days of the change or within five
days after the first treatment. OAR 436-69-220(2) states that
after claim closure, if a worker reports to a physician on his own
initiative, the physician should contact the carrier to determine
the status of the claim and whether or not the carrier will accept
responsibility for the examination. None of these rules were com­
plied with by.Dr. Englander. Under these circumstances, the Board
concludes that SAIF's actions were not so unreasonable as to war­
rant the assessment of a penalty.

.SAIF also objects to the Referee's award of attorney fees,
both on the basis of authority and amount. As for authority, SAIF
denied claimant's claim for compensation, i.e., medical services.
See ORS 656.005(9). Upon properly concluding that claimant was
entitled to have that denial set aside, the Referee not only had
the authority but the duty to-award an attorney fee to claimant.
See ORS 656.386(1).

As for
fees ($400)
three-fold.
strategy in

the amount, it is admittedly anomalous when attorney
exceed the amount in controversy ($149) by almost
That, however, is a consequence of SAIF's hang-tough
this case. The fee will not be reduced.
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The order of the Referee dated September 29, 1980 is modified 
to eliminate the 25% penalty assesied oh the amount of Dr. 
Englander 1·s ~ill for _services rendered on March 28, 1980. The 
remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed. · 

Claimant's attorney i~ awarded $150 as a reasonable attoiney 
fee for services rendered in connection with this Board review, 
payable by the SAIF Corporation. 

SANDRA -WINDHAM, CLAIMANT 
Evohl F. Malaqon, Claimant's Attorney 
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Carrier 

WCB 78-00513 
June 3, ·1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Barn~s and Mccallister. 
I 

~he carrier seeks Board review of the Referee's order which 
awarded an additional two and one-half months of temporary total 
disability benefits and awarded 30% unscheduled pe~manent partial 
disability for claimant's back strain, an increase-over the 10% 

__ awarded ·by the Determination Order. 

The Determination Order awarded time loss to September 22, 
1977. T~is date was based on the r~ports 6f Dr. Matthews and Dr. 
Scheer. Di. Matthews, an orthopedic physician, reported that 
claimant was me~ically sfationary whe~ he examinea her on Septem­
b~r 22. Dr. Scheer, ·a chiropractic orthopedist, reportc~ that 
claimant was medically stationary when he examined her on Septem­
ber 19. 

The Referee extended time loss benefits from September 23, 
1977 to December 2, 1977, the latter date being when Orthopaedic 
Consultants examined claimant and later reported that she was 
medically stationary on that date. : Orthopaedic Consultants did 
not, however, suggest that claimant. had not previously b~en medi­
cally stationary. Their report is thus ~ompletely consistent with 
the Se~ternber reports_of Ors. Matthews and Scheer; claimant was 
stationary in September and remained stationary in December. 
There is no basis in this evidence tor· extending temporary total 
disabil~ty ~enefits. 

Instead th~ evi~entiary basis of the Referee's decis.ion, both 
on duration.of temporary disabilit~ and extent of permanent.par-· 
tial disability,. i~ th~ reports of Dr. Garrison, a chiropractor . 
and clai~ant's treating physician, ind clairnarit's testimony at· the 

·hearing. ·To be ~eighed against or •. Garrison and claimant are all 
other medic~l reports in the recqrd, all of which .ar~ consistent 
with the Determination Order. 
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ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 29,.1980 is modified
to eliminate the 25% penalty assessed oh the amount of Dr,
Englander's jDill for .services rendered on March 28, 1980. The
remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is awarded $150 as a reasonable attorney
fee for services rendered in connection with this Board review,
payable by the SAIF Corporation.

SANDRA WINDHAM, CLAIMANT
Evohl F. Malaqon, Claimant's Attorney
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Carrier

WCB 78 00513
June 3, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The carrier seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
awarded an additional two and one-ha!lf months of temporary total
disability benefits and awarded 30% unscheduled permanent partial
disability for claimant's back strain, an increase-over the 10%
awarded by the Determination Order.

The Determination Order awarded time loss to September 22,
1977. This date was based on the reports of Dr. Matthews and Dr.
Scheer. Dr. Matthews, an orthopedic physician, reported that
claimant was medically stationary when he examined her on Septem­
ber 22. Dr. Scheer, a chiropractic orthopedist, reported that
claimant was medically stationary when he examined her on Septem­
ber 19.

The Referee extended time loss be
1977 to December 2, 1977, the latter d
Consultants examined claimant and late
medically stationary on that date. :Or
not, however, suggest that claimant, ha
cally stationary. Their report is thu
the September reports of Drs. Matthews
stationary in September and remained s
There is no basis in this evidence for
disability benefits.

nefits from September 23,
ate being when Orthopaedic
r reported that she was
thopaedic Consultants did
d not previously been medi-
s completely consistent with
and Scheer? claimant was
tationary in December,
extending temporary total

Instead the evidentiary basis of the Referee's decision, both
on duration of temporary disability| and extent of permanent par
tial disability,, is the reports of Dr. Garrison, a chiropractor
and claimant's treating physician, and claimant's testimony at the
hearing. To be weighed against Dr. Garrison and claimant are all
other medical reports in the record, all of which are consistent
with the Determination Order.

-107-

- -

-

­



         
            
          

           
        
         

           
         
          
        

           
        

         
           
         
          
       
        

        
         
        
       

           
       

Referee rejected one part of Dr. Garrison's opinion: "I 
am not persuaded to defer to the opinion of Dr. Garrison that 
claimant did not become medically stationary until August 31, 1978 
even though he is the treating·doctor." The Referee also rejected 
claimarit's testimony in part: "I do not ... believe [claimant. 1 s 
testimony}' that the examination conducted ·by the staff of Ortho­
paedic ton~ultants, ·P.C. took 15 minutes only. The content of ~he 
report, including the examination p6rtion, would indicate to the 
contrary." The Referee nevertheless must have found parts of Dr. 
Garrison's reports and claimant's testimony to have been ·persua­
sive since his ~ecision is only consistent with that evidence an~ 
is inconsistent with all the rest of the evidence. 

The Board, on de novo review, carries the Referee's skepti­
cism one step fuither: We are simply not persuaded by Dr. Garri­
son's reports or claimanf•s testimony.· Our reasons are basically 
those stated in the carrier's closing argument filed with the 
Referee, i~e., under the heading "The·Clai~a~t•s Credibility," 
paragraphs numbered one through. six, and under the hearing "Credi­
bility of Chiropractor Garrison," paragraphs numbere<l one through 
three and five through eight. Without finding Dr. Garrison's 
reports and claimant's testimony persuasive,' which we do not, 
ther~ is no basis for the Referee's decision. 

ORDER 

• The order of the Referee dated May 30, 1980 is reversed. The 
Determination Order dated January 13, 1978 is reinstated. 
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The Referee rejected one part of Dr.. Garrison's opinion: "I
am not persuaded to defer to the opinion of Dr. Garrison that
claimant did not become medically stationary until August 31, 1978
even though he is the treating doctor." The Referee also rejected
claimant's testimony in part: "I do not... believe [claimant’s
testimony] that the examination conducted by the staff of Ortho­
paedic Consultants, P.C. took 15 minutes only. The content of the
report, including the examination portion, would indicate to the
contrary." The Referee nevertheless must have found parts of Dr.
Garrison's reports and claimant's testimony to have been persua­
sive since his decision is only consistent with that evidence and
is inconsistent with all the rest of the evidence.

The Board, on de novo review, carries the Referee’s skepti­
cism one step further: We are simply not persuaded by Dr. Garri­
son's reports or claimant's testimony. Our reasons are basically
those stated in the carrier's closing argument filed with the
Referee, i.e,, under the heading "The'Claimant's Credibility,"
paragraphs numbered one through.six, and under the hearing "Credi­
bility of Chiropractor Garrison," paragraphs numbered one through
three and five through eight. Without finding Dr. Garrison's
reports and claimant's testimony persuasivewhich we do not,
there is no basis for the Referee's decision.

ORDER

m

The order of the Referee dated May 30, 1980 is reversed.
Determination Order dated January 13, 1978 is reinstated.

The

m

m
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A. WOLFER, CLAIMANT 
Richard T.. Kropp, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Claimant 

i 
I 
I• 

. i Revie~ed by the Board en bane. 1 
! 

~/CB 78~07336 
June 3, 1981 

I The claimant seeks Board revie~ of the Referee 1 s order which affirmed the SAIF's denial of his claim for aggravatiori, reversed the denial· of compensabilitj issued by Nqrth Pacific rrisurance Co.~ ordered_ bcimperisation for t~mpoiary total disability to be paid through Febr~ary 6, 1979 and affirmeJ·the Determination Or~ ders of April 18 0nd July 20, 1978.; Claimant contend.s that his condition from the February 5, ·· 1976 ;injury has become aggravated, or in the ~lternative, he is entitled to a greater ~~ard of per­manent partial·disability. He furt~er cont~nds he is entitled to cornpens.ati6n for temporary total disability 'beyond February 6, 
1979 bn the Novembei 16, 1978 injur~. · -

The first issue is whether claimant's current cdndition is the result of an ~ggravation of the!l976 industrial injury or-a new- injury sustained on ·Novemb?r 16~ 1978, or neither. A 307 or­der was issued in this case designa~ing North Pacific as-the pay­ing agent. This 307 ord~r was issu~d in error as both carriers 
denied· compensabili ty .. · ; --

On February 5, 1976 ~laimant ~Gffered an industrial injury wh~le employed by Exley Express whose workers' compensation car­rier was SAIF. Claimant injured his left shoulder, arm, neck and low back. The claim wa~ subiequentty closed by a Determination Order of April 18, 1978 in which hei received 32° for 10% unsched­
uled low back and neck disability. i In July 1978 Dr. Cher-ry, · claimant's treating physician, repo~ted that claimant ~as preqlu-ded from his-regular occupati6ri of ~ruck drivei. · 

i 

Clatmant then went ~o work arJvin~ an oil delivery truck f6r Diamond FUef whose wotkers' compen~ation·carriei was- North Pacific Insurance Co.'· On November 16, 1978, as he climbed out of the · truck, he s_tepped in spilled fuel, 1s1-ipped and· f el 1. Cla.iman t t~stified he injured his left wris~, _left shoulder, low_ back and 
head. 

Prior to this injury, in 
claimant's aggravation claim. 
denied that claimant suffered 

I 
September 1978, SAIF had denied 
· On February 7, 1979 North Pacific 
ahy 7ew industrial injury. 

Dr. Cherry continued to treaticlaimant for this latest _inci­dent and by a report of Jan~ary 21~ 1980 indicated that it was difficult to separate the consequences of· these two accidents., but Dr. C~erry felt that the -1976 injury accounteq for 2/3 of the claimant's residuals with the 1978j-injury representing 1/3. 

-l 

.I 
I 
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WCB 78-07336
June 3, 1981

RUSSELL A. WOLFER, CLAIMANT |,
Richard T,. Kropp, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant ;

!

Reviewed by the Board en banc. !
1

The claimant seeks Board review; of the Referee's
affirmed the SAIF’s denial of his claim for aqgravatio
the denial of compensability issued by North Pacific I
Co., ordered, compensation for temporary total disabili
paid through February 6, 1979 and affirmed'the Determi
ders of April 18 and July 20, 1978. i Claimant contends
condition from the February 5, 1976 jinjury has become
or in the alternative, he is entitled to a greater avva
manent partial disability. He further contends he is
compensation for temporary total disability beyond Feb
1979 bn the November 16, 1978 injury.

order which
n, reversed
nsurance
ty to be
nation Or-
that his
agg r avated,
rd of per-
entitled to
ruary 6,

The first issue is whether claimant's current condition is
the result of an aggravation of thejl976 industrial injury or a
new injury sustained on November 16; 1978, or neither. A 307 or­
der was issued in this case designating North Pacific as the pay­
ing agent. This 307 order was issued in error as both carriers
denied compensability•

On February 5, 1976 claimant suffered an industrial injury
while employed by Exley Express whose workers' compensation car­
rier was SAIF. Claimant injured his left,shoulder, arm, neck and
low back. The claim was subsequently closed by a Determination
Order of April 18, 1978 in which hej received 32° for 10% unsched­
uled low back and neck disability, i In July 1978 Dr. Cherry,
claimant's treating physician, reported that claimant was preclu­
ded from his regular occupation of fruck driver.

Claimant then went to work drijving an oil delivery truck for
Diamond Fuel whose workers* compensation carrier was North Pacific
Insurance Co. On November 16, 1978, as he climbed out of. the
truck, he stepped in spilled fuel, jslipped and fell. Claimant
testified he injured his left wrist, left shoulder, low back and
head,

Prior to this injury, in September 1978, SAIF had denied
claimant's aggravation claim. On February 7, 1979 North Pacific
denied that claimant suffered any new industrial injury.

Dr. Cherry continued to treat'claimant for this latest inci­
dent and by a report of January 21^ 1980 indicated that it was
difficult to separate the consequences of* these two accidents, but
^r. Cherry felt that the 1976 injury accounted for 2/3 of the
laimant's residuals with the 1978i.injury representing 1/3.

Dr
c
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Mattens examined claimant and reported. that claimant was 
precluded from truck driving but could perform work requiring no ii) 
bending, twisting, lifting, and no overhead work or prolonged 
standing or walking. 

The Board concurs with the Referee that the November 16, 1978 
injury represents a new injury that is the responsibility of North 
Pacific.· However, we find that.the termination date of compensa­
tion for temporary total disaqility as ordered by the Referee is 
not supported by the evidence. In late January 1979 Dr. Cherry · 
indicated that claimant was unable to work. By a report dated 
Janu~ry 21, 1980, Dr. Cherry reported that when he examined claim­
ant on April 14, 1979 he was much impioved. Claimait testified he 
did, in fact, return to work in May 1979. Therefore, the Board 
finds that the claimant is entitled to compensation for temporary 
total disability to the date in May that he rettirned to work. 

The second issue presented is claimant's contention that the 
Determinat.ion Order 6f April 18, 1978 arising out of his 1976 in­
jury granted insufficient compensation for permanent partial dis­
ability. The referee affirmed the Determination Order as reaf­
firmed by a Determination Order of_ July 20, 1978. The Determina­
tion Order granted claimant 10% unscheduled disability. 

The Board finds that the evidence indicates that these awards 
were inadequate to compensate claimant for his loss of wage ear­
ning capa6ity. Claimant is 68 years of age with an 8th grade edu~ 
cation, and most of.his work experience has been as a truck driver 
from whic~ he ·is now precluded. Claimant was told not to return 
to truck driving after both the 1976 and the 1978 industrial in­
juries. We- feel that claimant would be adequately compensated for 
his preclusion from the heavy industrial labor market and from the 
occupation in which he has for the most part been employed 
throughout his life by an award of 30% unscheduled disability. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated September ·22, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant's November 1978 injury claim. is remanded to North 
Pacific with compensation for temporary total disability to be 
paid to the date he returned to work in May 1979. 

The Determination Orders of April 18 and July 20, 1978 aris­
ing out of the 1976 injury are modified, and claimant is qranted 
an award of 96° for 30% unscheduled low back and ~eek dis~bility. 
This award is in lieu of all prior award~. 

Claimant's attorney is granted-as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee·2s% of the increased compensation granted by this 
order, not to exceed $3,060. 
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Dr. Martens examined claimant and reported, that claimant was
precluded from truck driving but could perform work requiring no
bending, twisting, lifting, and no overhead work or prolonged
standing or walking.

The Board concurs w
injury represents a new
Pacific. However, we fi
tion for temporary total
not supported by the evi
indicated that claimant
January 21, 1980, Dr. Ch
ant on April 14, 1979 he
did, in fact, return to
finds that the claimant
total disability to the

ith the Referee that the November 16, 1978
injury that is the responsibility of North
nd that,the termination date of compensa-
.disability as ordered by the Referee is
dence. In late January 1979 Dr. Cherry
was unable to work. By a report dated
erry reported that when he examined claim-
was much improved. Claimant testified he
work in May 1979. Therefore, the Board
is entitled to compensation for temporary
date in May that he returned to work.

The second issue presented is claimant's contention that the
Determination Order of April 18, 1978 arising out of his 1976 in­
jury granted insufficient compensation for permanent partial dis­
ability. The referee affirmed the Determination Order as reaf­
firmed by a Determination Order of July 20, 1978. The Determina­
tion Order granted claimant 10% unsched.uled disability.

The Board finds that the evidence indicates that these awards
were inadequate to compensate claimant for his loss of wage ear­
ning capacity. Claimant is 68 years of age with an 8th grade edu­
cation, and most of.his work experience has been as a truck driver
from which he is now precluded. Claimant was told not to return
to truck driving after both the 1976 and the 1978 industrial in­
juries. We feel that claimant would be adequately compensated for
his preclusion from the heavy industrial labor market and from the
occupation in which he has for the most part been employed
throughout his life by an award of 30% unscheduled disability.

ORDER
The order of the Referee dated September 22, 1980 is modified

Claimant's November 1978 injury claim is remanded to North
Pacific with compensation for temporary total disability to be
paid to the date he returned to work in May 1979.

The Determination Orders of April 18 and July 20, 1978 aris­
ing out of the 1976 injury are modified, and claiipant is granted
an award of 96® for 30% unscheduled low back and neck disability.
This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

Claimant's attorney is granted-as and for a reasonable at­
torney fee 25% of the increased compensation granted by this
order, not to exceed $3,000.
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GUS HOLMBERG, CLAIMANT . 
Robert E~ Martin, Clai~ant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF · 

WCB 80-02200 
June 4, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Me~bers Barnes and Mccallister. 

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of the Ref-• 
eree 1 s order which set aside iis den{al and remanded claimant's 
claim for a heart attack to it for acceptance and payment of com­
pensation. We reverse. 

There are numerous, sign{ficant.misstatements.of fact in the 
Referee's opinion. On de novo review, the Board finds the facts 
to be as-follows: 

Claimant wai employed as a.diesel mechanic. He worked the 
swing shift on Friday, January 18, 1980, returning home about mid­
nig~t. He returned to w6rk the following morning, Saturday, Janu­
ary 19, at abo~t 9 a.m. He worked a full shift th~t Saturday. 
Clairn~nt experienced.various periods'of var~ous forms of discom­
fort .while working that Saturday. H~ returned home about 5 p.m. 
While watching television about 11 p~m., he experienced serious 
ch~st pain.· About midnight he was t?ken to a hospital emergency 
room and admitted with a diagnosis of acute myocardial infarction. 

There are so many different versions of claimant's medical 
history, the nature and extent of claimant's sy~ptorns at work on 
that Saturday and whether he·was syrnptbm-free after returning home 
that evening that ·the Board is unabl~ to make findings on these 
critical i~sues. ·· 

In a report dated January 20,. 1980, i.e., written withi~ 24 
hours of claimant's admission to the hospital, Dr. Camp stated 
claimant's medical history inclu¢rea :. "One• month ago he had a-.one 
hour ep~sode of moderately severe aching left .anterior. chest pain 
associated with faintness and· 'cold ;sweat'." At .the hearing 
claimant d~nied that he ·had so stated to Dr. Camp·or denied re7 
membering so stating to the doctor, dependin~ 6n how one inter­
prets his testimony. But S~IF sent Dr. Camp's report to the 

Hearin~s DiVision for inclusion in tlhe record, with a copy to 
claimant's attorney, more than four months before the hearing. 
Given these ciicumstances and the magnitude of this claim, the 
Board expects something more than jtist the claimant's .implication 
that a coronary care unit doctor made so serious a mistake in tak­
ing a patient's history within 24 hours of hospital admission. 
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GUS HOLMBERG, CLAIMANT
Robert E. Martin, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-02200
June 4, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of the Ref­
eree's order which set aside its denial and remanded claimant's
claim for a heart attack to it for acceptance and payment of com­
pensation. We reverse.

There are numerous, significant.misstatements of fact in the
Referee's opinion. On de novo review, the Board finds the facts
to be as follows:

Claimant was employed as a.diesel mechanic. He worked the
swing shift on Friday, January 18, 1980, returning home about mid­
night. He returned to work the following morning, Saturday, Janu­
ary 19, at about 9 a.m. He worked a full shift that Saturday.
Claimant experienced various periods'of various forms of discom­
fort while working that Saturday. He returned home about 5 p.m.
While watching television about 11 p.m., he experienced serious
chest pain. About midnight he was taken to a hospital emergency
room and admitted with a diagnosis of acute myocardial infarction.

There are so many different versions of claimant's medical
history, the nature and extent of claimant's symptoms at work on
that Saturday and whether he was symptom-free after returning home
that evening that the Board is unable to make findings on these
critical issues.

In a report dated January 20,. 1980, i.e., written within 24
hours of claimant's admission to the hospital. Dr. Camp stated
claimant's medical history included:. "One month ago he had a-.one
hour episode of moderately severe aching left anterior chest pain
associated with faintness and''cold isweat'." At the hearing
claimant denied that he had so stated to Dr. Camp'or denied re­
membering so stating to the doctor, depending on how one inter­
prets his testimony. But SAIF sent Dr. Camp's report to the

Hearings Division for inclusion in the record, with a copy to
claimant's attorney, more than four months before the hearing.
Given these circumstances and the magnitude of this claim, the
Board expects something more than just the claimant's implication
that a coronary care unit doctor made so serious a mistake in tak­
ing a patient's history within 24 hours of hospital admission.

m

-111-

‘ 



         
          
          
           
            
            
           
         
      

       

        
      

       
     
        
       
      
       

       
        
       
       
     
    

          
         
            
             
          
            
          
            
           
     

      
   

     
    

Q As foi claimant's experiences on January 19, claimant told W 
Dr. G~iswold that he suffered'from nausea and chest pain through-
out that day while working and that these symptoms continued dur-
ing the.evening af~er he left work. Cl~imant told Dr. Kloster 
that he had a complete resolution of chest pain in the afternoon 
while still a~ work with no recurrence of sympioms until around 11 
p.rn. wh~n he was at·rest watchi~g t~levision~- Based 9n these 
rather ~ifferent histories, Drs. Griswold and Kiester arrived at 
opposit~ conclusion~i Dr~ Griswold believed claimant's infarction 
was work~related; Dr. Kloster believed it was·not. 

The Board finds ·m6st significant Dr. Kloster's interpretation 
of serum enzyme data.· Dr •. Kloster stated:· 

"Because the [claimant's] serum CPK was normal 
on:_[hospitaiJ .admission, increased to 509. 
units with.a positive MD fraction later, and 
p~aked at 769 units the· following day, and. 
considering ~his in conjunction w{th his 
clinicai hi~tory, it seems most probable to me 
that his myocardial ihf~rction began at the 
tiirie of onset of severe ches·t pain between· 
11:00 p.m. and midnight on.1/19/80. It seems 
most probable that the sympt6ms he experienced 
earlier that day represented myoriardial · 
i~chemia but not significant infarction." 

In summary, the record establishes that claimant may or may 
riot have had an earlier episode suggestive of coronary insuffic­
i~ncy; may ·qr may not ~ave had .resolution of his symptoms while 
still at work on.January 19, and may.or may not have been rela­
tivel~ symptom-free during the evening before his 11 p~m.- attack. 
The only t~ing that is clear on this record is that claimant's 
s~rum enzyme level~ ar~ most copsistent with his infarction having 
begun late in th~ evening, long after claimant had l~ft work. We 
are n6t:persuaded on ~his record that claimant sustained his bur-
den'of proving l~gal and medical causation. · 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated September 4, 1980 is reversed. 
The SAIF Cotporation's denia~ dated February 19, 1980 is reinsta­
ted. 
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As for claimant's experiences on January 19, claimant told
Dr. Griswold that he suffered from nausea and chest pain through­
out that day while working and that these symptoms continued dur­
ing the evening after he left work. Claimant told Dr. Kloster
that he had a complete resolution of chest pain in the afternoon
while still at work with no recurrence of symptoms until around 11
p.m. when he was at rest watching television. Based on these
rather different histories, Drs. Griswold and Kloster arrived at
opposite conclusions: Dr.. Griswold believed claimant’s infarction
was work-related; Dr. Kloster believed it was not.

The Board finds most significant Dr. Kloster’s interpretation
of serum enzyme data. Dr. Kloster stated:

7

"Because the [claimant's] serum CPK was normal
on [hospital].admission, increased to 509
units with a positive MD fraction later, and
peaked at 769 units the following day, and.

me
considering this in conjunction with his
clinical history, it seems most probable to
that his myocardial infarction began at the
time of onset of severe chest pain between
11:00 p.m. and midnight on.1/19/80. It seems
most probable that the symptoms he experienced
earlier that day represented myocardial
ischemia but not significant infarction."

In summary, the record establishes that claimant may or may
hot have had an earlier episode suggestive of coronary insuffic­
iency, may or may not have had resolution of his symptoms while
still at work on January 19, and may or may not have been rela­
tively symptom-free during the evening before his 11 p.m. attack.
The only thing that is clear on this record is that claimant's
serum enzyme levels are most consistent with his infarction having
begun late in the evening, long after claimant had left work. We
are not: persuaded on this record that claimant sustained his bur-
den'of proving legal and medical causation.

#

ORDER

The
ted

The order of the Referee dated
SAIF Corporation's denial dated

September 4, 1980 is reversed
February 19, 1980 is reinsta-
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MCCUISTION, CLAIMANT .. R. Ray Heysell ,. Claimant's Attorney•·· 
Don Pyle, Defense Attorney 

WCB 80-04234 DIR ~ED 
June 4, 1981 

Re~~est for Review by Employer 

Revie~ed ,bY Boaid·Members Barne~ and McCal1ister. 
~he employer seeks Board review:of the Re~eree's order which required payment of ~ertain.medical·~~lls and -imposed a penalty for ·not having previously paid thoselbills. .- · 

l 

The issues are all legal questibns involving interpre½atio~ and ~pplication of several of the me~ical- rules 6f the worke~~' ·compensation Department in OAR Chapter 436, Division 69.· However, the Board is aware that the Departrne;t is no~ cohsidering ado~tirig significant a~endments· to tho~j rule~: It s~ems p~infless to now _attempt to wade through a maze of administrative rules that may 
well soon· be c~~nged. 

The B6ar~ alfirms and adopts th~t portion of-the Referee's order regµiring payment of certain rn:eoical bills.· The· Refere~~s imposition of a penalty cannot be su·stained becau~e, given th_at it took the Re~eree ~lrnost five single·~paced pages of hair-splitting legal analysis_ to _conclude· the ernpltjyer was wrong_, it can hardly be said that the employer·was unieaspnable. · 
' 

ORDER 
-The order of the Referee dated ,October 1 1 1980. is affirmed, except that ·the penalty imposed -is ~liminated. 

I, 

{ . 
I 

.J 

. i 
-113- · ! 

I 

m
STEVE MCCUISTION, CLAIMANT.
R. Ray Heysell, Claimant's Attorney
Don Pyle, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Emoloyer

Reviewed by Board  embers Barnes

WCB 80-04234 DIR MED
June 4, 1981

and  cCallister.

The employer seeks
required payment of cer
for not having previous

The issues are all
and application of seve
Compensation Department
the Board is aware that
significant amendments
attempt to wade through
well soon be changed.

Board review of the Referee's order which
tain .medical tills and imposed a penalty
ly paid thoselbills.

j
legal questigns involving interpretation
ral of the medical rules of the Workers'
in OAR Chapter 436, Division 69.- However,
.the Department is now considering adopting
to those rules. It seems pointless to now
a maze of administrative rules that may

m

The Board affirms and adopts that portion of the Referee s
order requiring payment of certain medical bills. The Referee's
imposition of a penalty cannot be sustained because, given that it
took the Referee almost five single ispaced pages of hair-splitting
legal analysis to conclude' the employer was wrong, it can hardly
be said that the employer’was unreasonable.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 1980 is affirmed,
except that the penalty imposed -is eliminated.
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ROBERT SHUMWAY, CLAIMANT 
Albert Kottkamp, Claimant's Attorney· 
SAIF Corp Lega1. Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF · 

WCB 79-03019 
June 4, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Mccallister. 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which granted claimant compensation for permanent and total 
disabiliiy for ~n injury.sustained August 11, 1977 to his right 
buttock and leg. 

We ~gree with and adopt the Referee's statement of the facts 
down td the first full paragraph on page ·s of his Opinion and or~· 
der; However, the Board draws a different conclusion from those· 
facts than did the Refere~. 

Claimapt was injured when he fell backwards and struck his 
right buttock. All doctors agree he sustained some form of 
sciatic ·nerve damage. The continuing consequences ate pain, numb­
ness and w~akness, primarily in his rlght leg with some references 
in th& medical evidence to pain in claimant's buttock, hip and low 
back. · 

If workers'. compensation decisions were made only on the A\ 
basis of magic words, claimant's entitlement to an award for per- • 
manent, total disa6ility would be secure becau~e almost ~11 doc-
tors have used-the right magic .words. Ddctors Brodie, deRornanett 
and Zeck.all say claimant is permanently and totally disabled. 
B~t going be~ond labels to reasons stated for those o~inions, the 
pictur~ is less secure. Dr. ~rodie's stated r~asons include · 
claimant's age--64 at the time of·hearing--which has nolhing to do 

with permanent,·total disability in a medical sense. Drs. 
deRo~anett and Zech offer no reasons for their conclusory "one 
1 iner II opinions. · 

Especially perplexing is the report of the Orthopaedic Con-. 
sultants. They rated claimant's impairment fro~ his industrial 
injury as moderate but opined he could-not perform any gainful 
occupation .unless his condition improved with the use of a trans­
cutaneous nerve stimula~or. (Claimant tried the stimulator 

for two weeks with no sucbess.) There is an obvious inconsistency 
between .a moder~te impairment rating and the belief that claimant 
dould not petforrn any gainful occupation, absertt som~ other ex­
planation for the cause of claimant's disability.· 

.The Board finds this evidence too equivocal to establish from 
the medical evidence alone that claimant is perm~nently and to-

. tally di sabled. . 
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ROBERT SHUMWA , CLAIMANT
Albert Kottkamp, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79 03019
June 4, 1981

Reviewed by Board  embers Barnes and  cCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which granted claimant compensation for permanent and total
disability for an injury,sustained August 11, 1977 to his right
buttock and leg.

We agree with and adopt the Referee's statement of the facts
down to the first full paragraph on page 5 of his Opinion and Or­
der. However, the Board draws a different conclusion from those
facts than did the Referee.

Claimant was injured when he fell backwards and struck his
right buttock. All doctors agree he sustained some form of
sciatic nerve damage. The continuing consequences are pain, numb­
ness and weakness, primarily in his right leg with some references
in the medical evidence to pain in claimant's buttock, hip and low
back.

If worker
basis of magic
manent, total
tors have used
and Zeck.all s
But going beyo
picture is les 
claimant's age
with permanent
deRomanett and
liner" opinion

s’ compensation decisions were made only on the
words, claimant's entitlement to an award for per-
disability would be secure because almost all doc-

■ the right magic .words. Doctors Brodie, deRomanett
ay claimant is permanently and totally disabled,
nd labels to reasons stated for' those opinions, the
s secure. Dr. Brodie's stated reasons include
--64 at the time of hearing--which has nothing to do
,■total disability in a medical sense. Drs,
Zech offer no reasons for their conclusory "one
s.

Especially perplexing is the report of the Orthopaedic Con­
sultants, They rated claimant's impairment from his industrial
injury as moderate but opined he could not perform any gainful
occupation unless his condition improved with the use of a trans­
cutaneous nerve stimulator. (Claimant tried the stimulator

for two weeks with no success.) There is an obvious inconsistency
between a moderate impairment rating and the belief that claimant
could not perform any gainful occupation, absent some other ex­
planation for the cause of claimant's disability.

The Board finds this evidence too equivocal to establish from
the medical evidence alone that claimant is permanently and to­
tally disabled.
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this background, the reasonableness of claimant 1 s 
' refusal to submit to recommended•sur-gery becomes all the more 

important. Drs. Zeck and Mayon both recommended a s~rgical pro­
cedure "to expose the [sciatic] nerve and see if there are con­
stricting adhesions which may be causing or at least aggravating 
the sciatic neuritis."· Dr. Zeck stated, 11 If we don't try, we will 
not kno~ ~nd the most I can say [is] that it is possible that this 
surgery might v~ry ~ell improve Mr. Shumway's condition," and re­
ferred other questions to Dr. Mayon.: 

Dr. Mayon reported: 

"This condition seems to b~ becoming worse and I feel 
that the sciatic nerve needs surgical exploration. I 
feel that the patient would probably improve following 

·~xploration of the sciatic nerve but to what extend 
would be· impossible to say., until the nerve was visual­
ized. The fact that the lesion seems to be progressive 
seems to indicate· a more favorable prognosis. However, 
because of· the patient's age, the recovery would prob~ 
ably· be very slow. in any event, surgical procedure is 
minimal enough. procedure that even if there was only a 
slight chance at improvement it should be undertaken. 
In ~r. Shumway's case I feel that there is a good chance 
of signifi~ant improvement.· Therefore, .r would strongly 
suggest that this nerve b~ explored." 

In short; Dr. Mayon "strongly 11 recommended a "minimal" surgica~ 
procedure that had "a good chance" of producing "signific~nt im­
provement." 

The Referee summarized claimant's reasons for refusing this 
recommended surgery and concluded they were reasonable. The Board 
finds them to be unreasonable·. A prudent person who was experi­
encing only a small part of the pain, ·etc., that claimant says he 
experiences would, in our opinion, quickly submit to a minor sur­
gical procedure that had. a good chance of _ptoducing significant 
irnprovemerit. See Clemons ·v. ·Roseburg Lumber Co., 34 Qt.App 135 
(1978). 

We turn to the issue of claimarit's efforts· to look for.em­
ployment. Claimant was cannid at the hearing--he had mane no ef­
fort~ to look for employm~nt. He cataqorized potenti~l relatively 
sedentary jobs suggested at the hearing as "demeaning" or "paper 
shuffler" work .. Clai~arit has not m~de any effort, much less rea­
sonabl~ eff6rt, to secure· employment as required by ORS 656.206(3). 

In sum, the Board finds: (1) Claimant is not ·permanently. and 
totally disabled based on the medical evidence: (2) claimant's 
refusal to submit to recommended surgery is ~nreasonable; and (3) 
claimant has made no effort to secure· empioyment. 

I 
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all the more
a surgical pro-
there are con-

Against this background, the reasonableness
refusal to submit to recommended 'surgery becomes
important. Drs. Zeck and Mayon both recommended
cedure "to expose the [sciatic] nerve and see if -----
stricting adhesions which may be causing or at least aggravating
the sciatic neuritis." Dr. Zeck stated, "If we don't try, we will
not know and the most I can say [is] that it is possible that this
surgery might very well improve Mr. Shumway's condition," and re­
ferred other questions to Dr. Mayon.;

Dr. Mayon reported:

"This condition seems to be becoming worse and I feel
that the sciatic nerve needs surgical exploration. I
feel that the patient would probably improve following

^ exploration of the sciatic: nerve but to what extend
would be impossible to say,, until the nerve was visual­
ized. The fact that the lesion seems to be progressive
seems to indicate' a more favorable prognosis. However,
because of the patient's age, the recovery would prob­
ably be very slow. in any event, surgical procedure is
minimal enough, procedure that even if there was only a
slight chance at improvement it should be undertaken.
In Mr. Shumway's case I feel that there is a good chance
of significant improvement. Therefore, I would strongly
suggest that this nerve be explored."

In short;
procedure
provement.

Dr. Mayon "strongly" recommended a "minimal" surgical
that had "a good chance" of producing "significant im-

The Referee summarized claimant's reasons for refusing this
recommended surgery and concluded they were reasonable. The Board
finds them to be unreasonable. A prudent person who was experi­
encing only a small part of the pain, etc., that claimant says he
experiences would, in our opinion, quickly submit to a minor sur­
gical procedure that had a good chance of producing significant
improvement. See Clemons v. Roseburg Lumber Co., 34 Or App 135
(1978).

We turn to the issue of claimant's efforts to look for em­
ployment. Claimant was candid at the hearing--he had made no ef­
forts to look for employment. He catagorized potential relatively
sedentary jobs suggested at the hearing as "demeaning" or "paper
shuffler" work. Claimant has not made any effort, much less rea­
sonable effort, to secure employment as required by ORS,656.206{3)

m

In sum, the Board finds; (1) Claimant is not permanently, and
totally disabled based on the medical evidence? (2) claimant's
refusal to submit to recommended surgery is unreasonable? and (3)
claimant has made no effort to secure employment.
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turn t'o the question o.f the· extent of claimant.' s partial . A\ 
disability. 1he Board feels that claimant's lbss of· function in • 
his leg·.is greater than the 301 awarded by the Determination Order 
although ihe usual diffic~lty in rating loss of function is here 
esp~cially-compounded by claimant's unwillingness to- submit to 
.recommended_surgery. We conclude that claimant's loss of function 
in his right leg is 75% without consideration of claimant's un- · 
reasonable refusal of treatment~ with -that ~dditional considera-
tion in the calculus, we conclude that claimant would be appropri-
ately compensated for his loss of function of his right leg with 
an award equal to 90° for 60% scheduled disability. 

Theri is ~he further issue of whether claimant is also en­
titled to.an un~chedtil~d award. There are numerous references ~n 
the medicdl repbrts ·to claimant experiencing pain ln his right 
buttock· which he stru6k at the tim~ of his industrlal injury. 
There ·are \i few references in the medical reports to pain extend­
in~· ~~ward into claimant's low b~ck. ·Although the division of the 
seemless web known as the human body into scheduled and unsched­
uled com~on~nis at times must seem. arbitrary and.whi~sical, that 
divisi"on is c"ompelled by ORS 656. 214 •· The Board concludes that 
the evidence establishes compensable consequences of claimant's 
accident that extend into.unscheduled areas of the body. Claimant 
will be awarded 10% unscheduled disability for these consequences. 

ORDER 

The ·order of the Referee dated july 10, 1980 is reversed. 
Claimant.is hereby granted compensation equal to 90° (scheduled 
disability) for 60% loss of ·function of the.right leg. Claimant 
is separately and additionally granted ~ompensation equal to 32° 
(unscheduled disability) for 10% loss of earning capacity. These 
a~ards aie in iieu .of any previous· awards claimant has been 
grinted for this injury.. · 

·Claimant's attorney shall be paid 25% of the increased comp­
ensation. awarded by this order over that awarded by the Determina­
tion Order, payable from said iQcreasea·compensation, not to ex­
ceed $2.,000 •. This award of attorney fees is in lieu of any pr~~ 
vious awards. 
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There is the further issue of whether claimant is a
titled to an unscheduled award. There are numerous refe
the medical reports to claimant experiencing pain in his
buttock which he struck at the time of his industrial in
There are a few references in the medical reports to pai
ing upward into claimant's low back. Although the divis
seemless web known as the human body into scheduled and
uled components at times must seem arbitrary and whimsic
division is compelled by ORS 656.214. The Board conclud
the evidence establishes compensable consequences of cla
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sequence s.

The order of the Referee dated July 10, 1980 is reversed.
Claimant.is hereby granted compensation equal to 90® (scheduled
disability) for 60% loss of function of the right leg. Claimant
is separately and additionally granted compensation equal to 32®
(unscheduled disability) for 10% loss of earning capacity. These
awards are in lieu of any previous awards claimant has been
granted for this injury..

■Claimant's attorney shall be paid 25% of the increased comp­
ensation awarded by this order over that awarded by the Determine
tion Order, payable from said increased compensation, not to ex­
ceed $2,000. This award of attorney fees is in lieu of any pre­
vious awards.

#
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FRANCIS L. BACON, CLAIMANT 
Jeff Gerner, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
R~quest for Review by Claimant 

Reviewed by the Board en ba)1c. 

WCB. 80-07740 
June 8, 1981 

The claimant seeks Board review 1of the Referee's order which 
' found he had failed to prove his claim should be reopened either 

on the basis of .an aggravation or premature closure and which af­
firmed the May 23, 1980 Determination Order whereby he was granted 
no compensation for· permanent partial disability. 

The only issue before the Board,is claimant's extent of per­
manent disability. 

Claimant sustained a compensable injury to his low back on 
September 24, 1979. As a result of two Determin~tion Orders, 
claimant has r~ceived no a~ard for pei~anent· disability. 

C~aimant· is 47 y~ars old and has a 10th-grade education .. His 
work history is almost entirely in the field of heavy equipment 
operation. He has attempted to return to work but was bothered by 
pain and. discomfort. 

Claimant has been seen by several doctors who all seem to 
generally agree. The May 7, 1980 Orthopaedic Consultants report 
ad~quately su~s up the· conclusions reached by all the.doctors. 
Their diagnosis was "Contusion right; SI. .. Degenerative disc 
change~ as noted in x~rays, multiple ... Atheroscle~osis of the 
aorta." They recommended rio surgery be done and indicated ·cl~im­
ant could return fo hi~ same occupation. It was their opinion 
that claimant's impairment in the right SI area was minimal and 
due to the industrial injury. 

Based upon a thorough examination of the evidence before us, 
we conclude that claimant is entitle'.a to an award equal to 32° for 
10% unscheduled disability for his ~ow back injury. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated November 28, 1980 is m~dified. 

Claimant is hereby granted compensation equal to 32° foi.10% 
unschedule~ disability for his low back injury. 

The rem a ind er of the Referee's ,order is affirmed. 
. I 

' . 

Claimant I s at to'rney i ~ hereby granted, as· a reasonable at­
torney's .fee a sum equal to 25% of ~he increased compensation 
gianted bi this order, payable out of said compensation as paid, 

t) not to exceed $2,000. 
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FRANCIS L. BACON, CLAIMANT . , WCB^80 07740
Jeff Gerner, Claimant's Attorney June 8, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by the Board en banc.
The claimant seeks Board review'of the Referee's order which

found he had failed to prove his claim should be reopened either
on the basis of an aggravation or premature closure and which af­
firmed the May 23, 1980 Determination Order whereby he was granted
no compensation for permanent partial disability.

The only issue before the Board is claimant's extent of per­
manent disability.

!■
Claimant sustained a compensable injury to his low back on

September 24, 1979. As a result of two Determination Orders,
claimant has received no award for permanent disability.

Claimant'is 47 years old and has a lOth'grade education.. His
work history is almost entirely in the field of heavy equipment
operation. He has attempted to return to work but was bothered by
pain and. discomfort.

Claimant has been seen by several doctors who all seem to
generally agree. The May 7, 1980 Orthopaedic Consultants report
adequately sums up the' conclusions reached by all the doctors.
Their diagnosis was "Contusion right' SI... Degenerative disc
changes as noted in X-rays, multiple...Atherosclerosis of the
aorta." They recommended no surgery be done and indicated claim­
ant could return to his same occupation. It was their opinion
that claimant's impairment in the right SI area was minimal and
due to the industrial injury. .

m

Based upon a thorough examination of the evidence before us,
we conclude that claimant is entitled to an award equal to 32° for
10% unscheduled disability for his low back injury.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated November 28, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted compensation equal to 32° for 10%
unscheduled disability for his low back injury.

The remainder of the Referee's .order is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted,as a reasonable at­
torney's.fee a sum equal to 25% of the increased compensation
granted by this order, payable out of said compensation as paid,
not to exceed $2,000.
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0. BARNETTE, CLAIMANT 
Fran kl i ri. ·Bennett et a 1, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Lega 1 ,· Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0002M 
June 8, 1981 

The Board issued ari Own Motion Order Referring for Heiring on 
December 30, 1980 •. The Referee was to hold a_ hearing and deter­
mine if claimant 1 s condition had worsened since t~e last award or 
arrangement of compensation and if the worsening was related to 
claimant's 1966 industrial injury. 

The heaiing was held on March 13, 1981.· The Referee sub­
mitted his•re~ommendation to the Board on April 23, 1981. It was 
the recommendation of the Refeiee that claimant's condition tem­
porarily w9rsened in November 1980 and he was entitled.to compen­
sation for te~porary total disability, hospitalization and medical -
care. The Referee further found that claimant was permanently and 
totally disabled. The Board, after a careful review of the entire 
record, concurs with ·the Referee's ·recommendation. We find that 
the· date for ter~ination of temporary total disability and -the 
commencement qf. permanent total disability is difficult to 

· determine from this record. We conclud~ that December 4, 1980, 
the date of· claimant's discharge from the hospital, is the most 
reasonable date. · 

ORDER 

Claimant's claim is reopened for compensation for temporary 
total disability upon the date of hdspitalization, November 4, 
1980 through December '3., 198-0. 

Claimant is granted an award of peimanent total disability 
effect~ve December 4, 1980. 

Claimant's attorney is granted, as. and for a reasonable at­
torney fee, the sum of 25% of the permanent total disability 
award, not ·to exceed the sum of $3,000. 
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·-FRANKLIN D. BARNETTE. CLAIMANT
Franklin, Bennett et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0002M
June 8, 1981 #

The Board issued an Own Motion Order Referring for Hearing on
December 30, 1980. The Referee was to hold a.hearing and deter­
mine if claimant's condition had worsened since the last award or
arrangement of compensation and if the worsening was related to
claimant's 1966 industrial injury.

The hearing was held on March 13,
mitted his recommendation to the Board
the recommendation of the Referee that
porarily worsened in November 1980 and
sation for temporary total disability,
care. The Referee further found that

1981. The Referee sub-
on April 23, 1981, It was
claimant's condition tem-
he was entitled.to compen-
hospitalization and medical
claimant' was permanently and

totally disabled. The Board, after a careful review of the entire
record, concurs with the Referee's recommendation. We find that
the date for termination of temporary total disability and the
commencement of permanent total disability is difficult to
determine from this record. We conclude that December 4, 1980,
the date of claimant's discharge from the hospital, is the most
reasonable date.

ORDER

Claimant's claim is reopened for compensation for temporary
total disability upon the date of hospitalization, November 4,
1980 through December 3., 1980.

Claimant is granted an award of permanent total disability
effective December 4, 1980.

Claimant's attorney is granted, as. and for a reasonable at'
torney fee, the sum of 25% of the permanent total disability
award, not to exceed the sum of $3,000.

-118-

. 



   
     

  

   
  

          
          
          
         
 

         
          
           

         
            

         
            
       

           
          

            
          
  

          
           
           
       

   

R. CONNOR, CLAIMANT 
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys 
Own Motion Order · 

Own Motion 81-0097M 
June 8, 1981 

Claimarit, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdicti,on,, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and 
reopen his cliim for a worsened condrtion related to his indus­
trial injury of October 11, 1973. Claimant's aggravation rights 
have expired.·. 

The medica.l evidence submitted indicates that on Mar.ch 20, 
1981 Dr. Wells reported claimant had difficulty with his knee . 
locking and an inability to extend it; an arthroscopy revealed a 
posterior~lateral tear of th~ lateral meniscus which was removed. 
Dr. Wells felt that the tear of the meniscus was related to 
claimant's previods compensable knee injuries to th~ extent ihat 
he had an unstable knee with the anterior cruiciate out putting· 
his meniscus at risk resulting in a tear. 

The carrier was requested by letter dated April 13, 1981 to 
respond to claimant's r~quest for own motion relief. No response 
was forthcoming,· and the Board will decide the case on the record 
bef6re it. Dr. Wells' opinion is.~nrefuted and is the only evi­
dence on causation. 

Based on this medical report from Dr. Wells, the Board con­
cludes that claimant is entitled to have his cl~im reopened upon 
the ·date of his hospitalization for the March.-2,. 1981 surgery and 
until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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JAMES R. CONNOR, CLAIMANT
Oalton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81-0097M
June 8, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction,, pursuant to OFS 656.278, and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of October 11, 1973. Claimant's aggravation rights
have expired.

The medical evidence submitted indicates that on March 20,
1981 Dr. Wells reported claimant had difficulty with his knee
locking and an inability to extend it; an arthroscopy revealed a
posterior-lateral tear of the lateral meniscus which was removed.
Dr. Wells felt that the tear of the meniscus was related to
claimant's previous compensable knee injuries to the extent that
he had an unstable knee with the anterior cruiciate out putting
his meniscus at risk resulting in a tear.

The carrier was requested by letter dated April 13, 1981 to
respond to claimant's request for own motion relief. No response
was forthcoming, and the Board will decide the case on the record
before it. Dr. Wells' opinion is,unrefuted and is the only evi­
dence on causation.

Based on this medical report from Dr. Wells, the Board con­
cludes that claimant is entitled to have his claim reopened upon
the date of his hospitalization for the March-r2,, 1981 surgery and
until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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J. -HENDRIX. CLAIMANT 
Richard A. Sly, Claimant's Attorney 
Lang', Klein et al, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Claimant .. · 

WCB 80-01038 
June 8, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Mccallister and Lewis. 

The clairnanf seeks Boar~ review of the Referee 1 s order which 
affirmed the Determination Order of April 16, 1979 which granted 
claimant.corn~ensation for temporary total disability'onty and de­
nied claima~t•s request for further workers• compensation bene­
fits. The claimant raises multiple issues. She contends entitle­
ment to· compensation for temporary total disability, appeal of a 
"parti~i" denial, payment of chiropractic bills and extent of per­
manent partial disability. 

The Board affirms and adopts the Referee's order. Claimant's 
contention that she is ,appealing· the "partial denial" is invalid. 
That denial ~as never appealed, not by the request for_ hearing by 
claimant's first attorney, noi by her secohd attorney at the time 
of the hearing. Therefore, that issue. is not properly before the 
Board. The denial which was dated,September 21-, 1979 denied that 
any of claimant's current problems .were work related. Claimant's 
original clai~ was for· her right wrist only. Therefore, claim­
ant's oihei contention that th~ carrier ~ust pay Dr. Peter's chi­
ropractic ,billings is also ~n in~alid conten~ion as the claim for 
her. condition had already been denied and ne·ver appealed. 

We, as did the Referee, find that claimant lacks credibility 
· and agree with-the conclusiODS reached by the.Referee in his order. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated October 6, 1980 is affirmed. 

MEL VINT, HOLT, CLAIMANT 
Schwabei Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys 
Order of Dismissal 

WCB 79-06718 
June 8, · 1981 

Claimant's request for Board review 1s dismissed as abandoned. 
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,DORIS J. HENDRIX, CLAIMANT
Richard A. Sly, Claimant's Attorney
Lang, Klein et al. Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 80-01038
June 8, 1981 m

1 of a
of per-

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the Determination Order of April 16, 1979 which granted
claimant.compensation for temporary total disability only and de­
nied claimant's request for further workers' compensation bene­
fits. The claimant raises multiple issues. She contends entitle­
ment to' compensation for temporary total disability, appea
"partial'' denial, payment of chiropractic bills and extent
manent partial disability.

The Board affirms and adopts the Referee's order. Claimant's
contention that she is appealing the "partial denial" is invalid.
That denial was never appealed, not by the request for hearing by
claimant's first attorney, nor by her second attorney at the time
of the hearing. Therefore, that issue is not properly before the
Board. The denial which was dated . September 21, 1979 denied that
any of claimant's current problems .were work
original claim was for' her right wrist only,
ant's other contention that the carrier must
ropractic billings is also an invalid contention as the claim
her, condition had already been denied and never appealed.

We, as did the Referee, find that claimant lacks credibility
and agree with the conclusions reached by the-Referee in his order

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 6, 1980 is affirmed.

related. Claimant's
Therefore, claim-
pay Dr. Peter's chi-

for

e

MELVIN T. HOLT, CLAIMANT
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Order of Dismissal

WCB 79 06718
June 8, 1981

Claimant's request for Board review is dismissed as abandoned
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AHMAD KOJAH, CLAIMANT 
Mal~gon, Velure & Yates, Claimant 1 s Attor~eys 
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys ·. i 
Order of Remand · · i · 

WCB 80-03949 
June 8, 1981 

The Referee's.Opinion and Order is vacated ·and this case is remanded to the Hearings Division foi a new hearing on'the··grounds and for the reasons stated in the employer's May 26, 1~81 motion · 
for said relief. 

IT IS SO ORDERED~ 

JAMES L. MCCOLLUM, CLAIMANT 
Rick McCormick', Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SA!F Corp legal, Defense Atiorney 

· Request fa~ Review bv SAIF . ' 

• I 

WCB 80-02083 and 80-02856. 
June 8, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members.Barn~s and Lewis. 

The SAIF Corporaticin seeks Board review of the Referee's or­der which approved SAI F's den ia 1 of '.claimant's·. new i nj u iy _claim and disapproved SAIF's denial of an 'aggravation claim~ The i~sues on appeal are unknown.as SAIF has f~iled to•file a brief~ The Referee upheld SAIF's denial of claimant's new injury claim on credibility grounds, that is, that the claimant bad given so many different versions bf his accid~nf at -diffeient times that the . 
. I" •• Referee did not know which to.believe. The Board agrees. 

. I . . Claimant had alternately claim~a· ~hijt his January 1980 inci-dent _was an aggravation of his Sept~mber· 1978 compensable injury. SAIF also denied that claim. The Referee reversed. We do not know the ba~is of SAIF's disagree~eht with the Refere~~ We note, as did the Referee, that there is sbme equivocation in some o_f Dr. Melgard 's reports and deposition~ . T!')e fact remains tha·t Dr •. Mel­gard does support claimant 1 s aggrav~tion claim and.th~re is no evidence to the con t~ary. · - . / · 
I 

_.I 

ORDER 
I 

Xhe order of the Refere~ dated July 30, 1980 is affirmed and adopted by the Board.· Claimant's-a1ttorney ·is awarded $150, pay­able by SAIF, for·servicei rendereJ ih connection with this Board review. · i · 

l 
I 

I 
I 
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AHMAD KOJAH, CLAIMANT
Malagon, Velure &  ates, Claimant's Attorneys

Lang, Klein et al. Defense Attorneys
Order of Remand ' i

WCB 80-03949
June 8, 1981

The Referee's'Opinion and Order is vacated and this case is
remanded to the Hearings Division for a new hearing on the grounds
and for the reasons stated in the employer’s May 26, 1981 motion
for said relief. |

IT IS SO ORDERED.

JAMES L. MCCOLLUM, CLAIMANT
Rick McCormick', Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80 02083 and 80 02856
June 8, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barne's and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der which approved SAIF's denial of 'claimant's■new injury claim
and disapproved SAIF’s denial of an'aggravation claim. The issues
on appeal are unknown as SAIF has failed to file a brief. The
Referee upheld SAIF's denial of claimant's new injury claim on
credibility grounds, that is, that the claimant had given so many
different versions of his accident at different times that the .
Referee did not know which to.believe. The Board agrees.

I ... ■

Claimant had alternately claimed that his January 1980 inci­
dent was an aggravation of his September’ 1978 compensable injury.
SAIF also denied that claim. The Referee reversed. We do not
know the basis of SAIF's disagreement with the Referee. We note,
as did the Referee, that there is some equivocation in some
Melgard's reports and deposition. ■ The fact remains that Dr
gard does support claimant’s aggravation claim and.there is
evidence to the contrary. j

o.f Dr
,Mel-
no

ORDER

.The order of the Referee dated July 30, 1980 is affirmed and
adopted by the Board. ' Claimant's attorney is awarded $150, pay­
able by SAIF, for'services rendered in connection with this Board
review.
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R.·SHORE, CLAIMANT 
Peter Hanson; Cl a.ifnant_1 s Attorney 
SAIF .Corp Legal~ Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Claimant 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 80-02745 
June 8,. 1981 

Th~ claimant. see'ks Board review of the Referee Is cirder -which 
det·e rm inea· .that cfa iman t \',;as -medically stationary on- Februa-ry· 2.5, 
19 80 arid· awarded temporary total disability benefits to that -date. 

The Board agrees with the Referee's conclusion but disagrees 
in part with-the Referee's an~lysis. The Referee reasoned: 

"SAIF argues that a medically stationary 
date is to be.determined by medical evi­
dence from doctors.· Claimant argues· that 
lay testi~ony is sufficient. Me~ical tes­
timony is only required on the issue of 
need for further medical care and treat­
ment." 

The Referee was incorrect. There are numerous other situations in 
which medical,evidence is essential: for example, to prove tompli­
cated questions of ~edical causatiory. 

Medical evider,ce · is also generally required, in the Board·' s A.· 
opinion, to ~st~blish a date on which an injured ·worker wcis medi- W 
cally stationary. There may be exceptional circumstances in.which 
this determin~tion can be m~de solely on th~ basis of lay evi~ 
de nee, but this is .not one of them. We find that claimant was. 
rn~dically stationary on February 25, 1980 based .on the report of 
Dr. H~rris of his examin~tioh of blaimant on that date, f6llowing 

_claimant's discharg~ from the Callahan Center. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dateq November 14, 1980 is affirmed. 

-122-

JAMES R. SHORE, CLAIMANT WCB 80 02745
Peter Hanson, Cla.imant's Attorney June 8,. 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant ‘ ■ ■ ’

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
determined’ that claimant was medically stationary on February 25,
1980 arid awarded temporary total disability benefits to that date.

The Board agrees with the Referee's conclusion but disagrees
in part with the Referee's analysis. The Referee reasoned:

"SAIF argues that a medically stationary
date is to be determined by medical evi­
dence from doctors. Claimant argues that
lay testimony is sufficient. Medical tes­
timony is only required on the issue of
need for further medical care and treat­
ment."

The Referee was incorrect. There are numerous other situations in
which medical evidence is essential; for example, to prove compli­
cated questions of medical causation.

Medical evidence is also generally required, in the Board's
opinion, to establish a date on which an injured worker was medi­
cally stationary. There may be exceptional circumstances in which
this determination can be made solely on the basis of lay evi­
dence, but this is not one of them. We find that claimant was
medically stationary on February 25, 1980 based on the report of
Dr. Harris of his examination of claimant on that date, following
claimant's discharge from the Callahan Center.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated November 14, 1980 is affirmed.

9

m

-122-

-



    
    
     
    

 
  

      

         
         
            
   

           
        

        
        
           
         

           
            
            
         

           

         
           
       

       
         

          
         
          

         
      

        
           
         
           
         
          
     
           

          
        
    

T. ROLLINS, CLAIMANT 
John D. Peterson, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Requ~st for Review by Claimant · 

WCB 79-10332 
June 9, 1981 

Review~d by Board Members McCalli~ter and Lewis. 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of the Referee's or­
der whiih reversed its denial and rema~ded cJ.aimant's occupational 
disease claim to it for acceptance andi the payment of benefits as 
required by law. · 

The Referee's recitation of the f1acts in this case is adopted 
as our own. However, we reach a different conclusion. 

The medical evid~nce indicates that claimant had divertic~li~ .­
tis as early as 1976. Therefore, claimant's-condition was pte­
existing. In 1976 and again in 1979, ;or. Thompson, an osteopath, 
referred claimant to Dr. Loehden, a specialist in vascular surgery. 

• . , I 

When Dr. Loehden saw claimant, .he indicated in his report of 
March 7, 1979 that claimant indicated 1he had an acute change in 
his b·owel habits with acute abdominal ~pain six days prior to his 
hospital admission. The doctor indicated that claimant had had 
the flu abriut one week before the onset of the bowel chanqe. . -

Claimant was hospitalized for diJerticulitis from.March 6 to 
March 17, 1979. There was no iention'.in the hospital records or 
in Dr. Loehdents reports of any work ~tress. 

I 
Dr. Colbach, a psychiatrist, evaluated claimant on October 4, 

1979 and opined that claimant's inflammation of the colon was 
probably related to the aging processJ This, however, seemed 
aggravated by· his emotional state. Di. Colbach felt that claimant 
had underlying personality defects an~ that his job aggravated 
this, causing bowel spasms secondary ~o anxiety. · 

. . 
. . I 

Dr. Thompson, the osteopath, found that claimant's work 
stress anxiety caused a knotting effect in the GI tract .. Dr. 
Loehden, on the other hand, found claimant's aiverticulitis was 
caused by an impacted stool. Dr. Loehden found no relationship of 
the condition to claimant's work activity <"inn ~ta_tec1: "Frankly I 
cannot comprehend how diverticulitis of the colon can be job-
related ·~nder any circumstances. 11 • / 

The.Board is ~ost p~rs~~ded by ~~e opinion of the specialist 
who treat~d the conditibn, Dr~ Loehde~, and who was treating 
claimant upon referral-from Dr .. Thompson. We find t·he. diverticu­
litis condition is ncit co~pensable •. J 
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WILLIAM T. ROLLINS. CLAIMANT
John.D, Peterson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by. Claimant

WCB 79-10332
June 9, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCalli'ster and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board teview of the Referee's or­
der which reversed its denial and remanded claimant's occupational
disease claim to it for acceptance and' the payment of benefits as
required by /law. j.

The Referee's recitation of the tacts in this case is adopted
as our own. However, we reach a different conclusion.

The medical evidence indicates, that- claimant had diverticuli^
tis as early as 1976. Therefore, claimant's•condition was pre­
existing. In 1976 and again in 1979, iDr. Thompson, an osteopath,
referred claimant to Dr. Loehden, a specialist in vascular surgery,

When Dr. Loehden saw claimant, .he indicated in his report of
March 7, 1979 that claimant indicated |he had an acute change in
his bowel habits with acute abdomihal Ipain six days prior to his
hospital admission. The doctor indicated that claimant had had
the flu about one week before the onset of the bowel change.

Claimant was hospitalized for diverticulitis from March 6 to
March 17, 1979. There was no mention^in the hospital records or
in Dr. Loehden's reports of any work stress.

' ■ ' ■ i ■ ■
Dr. Colbach, a psychiatrist, evaluated claimant on October 4,

1979 and opined that claimant's inflammation of the colon was
probably related to the aging processi This, however, seemed
aggravated by his emotional state. Dr. Colbach felt that claimant
had underlying personality defects and that his job aggravated,
this, causing bowel spasms secondary to anxiety.

Dr, Thompson, the osteopath, found that claimant's work
stress anxiety caused a knotting effect in the GI tract.. Dr.
Loehden, on the other hand, found claimant's diverticulitis was
caused by an impacted stool. Dr. Loehden found no relationship of
the condition to claimant's work activity and sta.ted: "Frankly I
cannot comprehend how diverticulitis of the colon can he job-
related under any circumstances." ’ ]

The. Board is most persuaded by tile opinion of the specialist

who treated the condition. Dr. Loehden, and who was treating
claimant upon referral"from Dr. Thompson. We find the diverticu­
litis condition is not compensable.
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ne~t question is, was the pre-existing condition aggrava­
ted by claimant'.s work stress? Dr. Thompson felt. it was.rela'ted · 
to claimant's "constant strife 11 at work. This is· not in accord-
ance with claimant Is testimony at the hearing. Claimant did not" -A 
indicate that there was constant strife but:did teitify to dis- ~ 
agreements about work methods. Dr. Thompson's understanding of 
claimant 1 s -work situation w~s incoirect. 

Furt~er, we find that the Supreme Court's holding -in James v. 
SAIF, Or (1981) applies. In the opinion, the Court stated 
that inoccupatidnal disease cases, "the cause of-the disease, ag­
gravation or exacerbation of the disease must be one which is or­
dinarily en66untered_only on the job;" The evidence indicates 
that claimant was discharged from the Navy for 11 nerves." Claim­
ant's testimony reflects stress-on and off the job. Claimant tes­
tified he still suffers stomach-aches arid is nervous, these condi-· 

·tions are woriened by such -things as a~tending the Workers'· Cornb­
ensation hearing, driving in traffic, or when having trouble with 
his ·insuran~e. We find claimant's work conditions.did not aggra­
vate the claimant's pre-existing div~rticulitis.· 

ORDER 

The·order of the Referee dated·September 22, 1980 is ieversed. 

The deni~l of November· 1, 1979 is affirmed. 

MAURICE BRYAN; CL~IMANT 
J·. David Kry9er, Claimant's Attorney 
Michael Hoffman, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Employer 

. . . 

WCB 78-06745 
June 11, 1981 

Reviewed by'Board Members Barnes an~ McCallister. 

The employer seeks Board ~eview of the Referee's·order which 
granted claimant an award of 240° for 75% unscheduled low back 
disability from a Septe~ber 1969 job in1ury and found claimant's 
neck claim which the employei had denied to be compensable. 

Cl~ima~t ~as ihjured in 1969 when he struck his low back on a 
steel beam.· ~is low ba~k claim was accepted ~nd closed b~ two 
det~rmination orders that awarded a ·total of 25% unscheduled dis­
ability. In 1978 claimant underwent cervical surqery and claimed 
th~t his neck condition was causally related to his 1969 low back 
injury. Cl~imant·1 s neck claim ~as denied by the employer. Clai~­
ant's request for hearing raised .both the extent of his low back· 
disability and the denial of his claim for his neck condition. 

Th~ compensability of the neck condition depends primarily on 
wh~ther one accepts the opinion of Dr. Smith or Dr. Hughes. Dr. 
Smith, the surgeon who ~erformed the 1978 operation, opined that 
claimant's cervical·condition was not related to claimant's 1969 

0 

low back injury. Dr. Hughes, who treated claimant from May of A 
1976 to April of 1979, opined thaE-this cervical condition was V 
aggravated by "his 1969 low back ini ury . 

. -124-

The next question is, was the pre-existing condition aggrava­
ted by claimant's work stress? Dr. Thompson felt it was.related
to claimant's "constant strife" at work. This is not in accord­
ance with claimant's testimony at the hearing. Claimant did not
indicate that there was constant strife but did testify to dis­
agreements about work methods. Dr. Thompson's understanding of
claimant's work situation was incorrect.

Further, we find that the Supreme Court' s holding in James v.
SAIF, ___ Or ____ (1981) applies. In the opinion, the Court stated
that in occupational disease cases, "the cause of the disease, ag­
gravation or' exacerbation of the disease must be one which is or­
dinarily encountered only on the job." The evidence indicates
that claimant was discharged from the Navy for "nerves." Claim­
ant's testimony reflects stress-on and off the job. Claimant tes­
tified he still suffers stomach aches and is nervous, these condi­
tions are worsened by such things as attending the Workers' Comp­
ensation hearing, driving in traffic, or when having trouble with
his insurance. We find claimant's work conditions did not aggra­
vate the claimant's pre-existing diverticulitis.

ORDER

The'order of the Referee dated September 22, 1980 is reversed

The denial of November' 1, 1979 is affirmed.

MAURICE BR AN, CLAIMANT
0. David Kryger, Claimant's Attorney
Michael Hoffman, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 78 06745
June 11, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
granted claimant an award of 240° for 75% unscheduled low back
disability from a September 1969 job injury and found claimant's
neck claim which the employer had denied to be compensable.

Claimant was injured in 1969 when he struck his low back on a
Steel beam. His low back claim was accepted and closed by two
determination orders that awarded a total of 25% unscheduled dis­
ability. In 1978 claimant underwent cervical surgery and claimed
that his neck condition was causally related to his 1969 low back
injury. Claimant’s neck claim was denied by the employer. Claim­
ant's request for hearing raised both the extent of his low back
disability and the denial of his claim for his neck condition.

The compensability of the neck condition depends primarily on
whether one accepts the opinion of Dr. Smith or Dr. Hughes. Dr.
Smith,, the surgeon who performed the 1978 operation, opined that
claimant's cervical condition was not related to claimant's 1969
low back injury. Dr. Hughes, who_treated claimant from May of
1976 to April of 1979, opined thafe^his cervical condition was
aggravated by his 1969 low back injury.
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Board is not persuaded by Dr~'Hughes' opinion for ~he 
A following reasons: (1) At the time of claimant's 1969. ac·cident, · 
9 there was no trauma io the ne~k dr upp~r back: (2) between that 

accident in Septernbei 1969 and May 1~76 cl~~marit ~ade no reco~ded 
complaints to th~ numerous doctors he saw about any neck, upper 
back or arm pain or disability; (3) or'. Smith's opinion of. no work 
connection is cleai ·and unambiguous--clairnani's cervical condition 
was not the result of his 1969 lnj~ry but solely the result-of 
progressi~~ cervical.spondylitic degen~rative pr6cess; and (4) Dr. 
Hughes' contrary opinion, when cortsidered together with his ex~ 
planation of his opinion on deposttion~ is n~ither clear nor 
unambi~uous. 

Having concluded t'r~at cla1_rn.3:nt's _cer.vica1·cond·ition is not 
compensable, we turn to the questfon of the.extent of his disabil­
ity from h"is low back. injury. We confront the problem of separat­
i~g · t~e ~f~ects of claimaht's compensable low back. condiiion· ana· 
his noncomp~nsable neck conditioh. All doctois who exa~ined or 
treated claimant before 19_76. rated his.dis9b)lity from his. low 
back injury as minimal to mil4, one specific~lly stating that 
cJ_aimant'·s·-disability was in the 10% to 12% rang~. Aft!;!r 1976, 
when clai111ant ·came under: the care of Dr s. Hughes and Smith, none 
of their med~cal. reports· specifically ·addr~sses· claiman·t 1 5 -~ack 
cond·i~ion but rather ~~ly disc4sse~·his neck condition arid its 
cof!sequences •.. · 

The ~ost that can be said from t~e medical evidence is that 
claimant's back.conditi6n preclud~s him fiom h~avy labor o~cupa-. 
tions,·-but·even this obser~ation should be qualified by notin~ 

'that on ipril 1, .19j5, .or;·po~lson suggestea that if claimant.was 
motivated- he c~ul_d pr~bably _re'turn to heavy work. In h_is test'i-. 
mon~, claim~nt said he was able to pe~torrn mant·activities grossly 
inconsistent with. a finding of 75% loss.of wage_earning·capacity._ · 
Corisidering all relevant fa6tors and other similar tases, thi. 
Board concludes--as · be~t as _we can separate claimant's· back a~d 
neck conditi:ons--that his loss o'f wage earning cap·acity from··h~s;;-. 
back injury is at the most 50%. 

·ORDER 

·The Referee's order dated June 30, 1980 is modified •. 
·1 

The carrier's denial dated August 8, 1978 regarding claim­
ant's neck condition is affirmed. 

Claimant is awarded permanent partial disability compensation 
equal to 160° for 50% loss of wag~ earning capacity as the result 
of his September 19 69 low back in'j._ury; this award is made in lieu 
of all previous awards. ~ 

· Claimant's 
tion awarded by 
orders,- payable 
$2,000. 

attorney is awarded 25% of the increased compensa­
this order over that awarded by the determination 
out of clairnant 1 s compensation and not to exceed 

' 
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The Board is not persuaded by Dr. Hughes* opinion for the
following reasons: (1) At the time of, claimant's 1969. accident,
there was no trauma to the neck dr upper back; (2) between that
accident in September 1969 and May 1976 claimant made no recorded
complaints to the numerous doctors he saw about any neck, upper
back or arm pain or disability; (3) Dr. Smith's opinion of. no work
connection is clear and unambiguous--claimant's cervical condition
was not the result of his 1969 injury but solely the result of
progressive cervical.spondylitic degenerative process; and {4} Dr.
Hughes' contrary opinion, when considered together with his ex­
planation of his opinion on deposition, is neither clear nor
unambiguous.

Having concluded that claimant's cervical condition is not
compensable, we turn to the question of the extent of his disabil­
ity from his low back injury. We confront the problem of separat­
ing the effects of claimant's compensable low back, condition and
his noncompensable neck condition. All doctors who examined or
treated claimant before 1976 rated his disability from his low
back injury as minimal to mild, one specifically stating that
claimant*'s-disability was in the 10% to 12% range. After 1976,
when claimant came under the care of Drs. Hughes and Smith, none
of their medical, reports specifically addresses claimant's back
condition but rather only discusses his neck condition and its
consequences.

#
The most that can be said from the medical evidence is that

claimant's back condition precludes him from heavy labor occupa­
tions, but even this observation should be qualified by noting
that on April 1, 1975, Dr.Poulson
motivated he could probably return
mony, claimant said he was able to
inconsistent with, a finding of 75%
Considering all relevant factors and other similar cases, the
Board concludes--as best as we can separate claimant's back and
neck conditions--that his loss of wage earning capacity from'his
back injury is at the most 50%.

suggested that if claimant was
to heavy work. In his testi-
perform many activities grossly
loss.of wage earning capacity.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated June 30, 1980 is modified..
-I

The carrier's denial dated August 8, 1978 regarding claim­
ant's neck condition is affirmed.

Claimant is awarded permanent partial disability compensation
equal to 160® for 50% loss of wage earning capacity as the result
of his September 1969 low back injpry; this award is made in lieu
of all previous awards. "*

Claimant's attorney is awarded 25% of the increased compensa­
tion awarded by this order over that awarded by the determination
orders,- payable out of claimant's compensation and not to exceed
$2,000.
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R. -BUFF, CLAIMANT 
Charles Paulson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp. Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for ~eview by SAIF · 

WCB 80-01550 
J·une 11, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Mccallister artd Lewis. 

The.SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee 
Gernmell 1 s order which granted clairna~t an award of 90° for 60% 
loss of use of the left leg. The SAIF contends that the award 
granted -~as excessive. 

The medtcal record indicates that claimant has undergone 
three ~4rgical procedures for· his ind~stri~lly injured left knee, 
the last su~g~ry being performed on January 3, 1979 in Idaho by 
Dr.- Good~an. · In his closing report dated October 9, 1979 Dr. 
Goodman rated claimant's impaiiment at 30% of the entire left 
lower extremity. This impairment was for marked laxity of the 
unrepaited anterioi cruciate ligament and excision of the medial 
m~niscus. ·The doctor opined that claimant wou1a·need physical 
therapy for the.remainder of his life~ 

Claimant wa~ retrained by vocational rehabilitation and now 
is employed as an electronics technician at Tektronix. on· this 
job claimant may sit or stand as he chooses. The left leg injury 
has not impaired his abiiity to perform this job. Claim~nt testi­
fied tha~ he walks two miles per ~ay and one-half mile.backwards. 
He indicated-that the knee locks':Jn him·and gives way, causing him 
to fall.· He wears a knee brace daily. After exercisin~ he has a 
dull ache in his knee. His left l~g•.is numb from the knee down_to 
six inche~ above the ankle. 

The 9nly rating of im~airment in the record is that of Dr. 
Goodman. He.found 30% impairment for the laxity of the unrepaired 
anterior cruciate ligament and for the medial menisdectomy. · . 
Claimant also has a one inch atrophy of the left thigh as compared 
to the right. ~is testimony reflects the instability of the.Knee. 

The ~oard finds that the Referee's award was excessive and, 
based on the medical evidence and-claimant's testimony, he re~ 
tains, in-our opinion, more than 40% use of that extremity. We 
find that the award granted by the Determination Order is inade­
quate and does not reflect the actual loss of use of claimant's 
le.ft leg.. ·We grant claimant an award of 45% loss of use of. the 
left leg. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee date~ August 12, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant _is granted an award of 67.5° for 45% loss of the 
left leg. This award is in lieu of al+ prior awards. 

-126-

-CHARLES R. BUFF, CLAIMANT
Charles Paulson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp. Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-01550
June 11, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee
Gemmell's order which granted claimant an award of 90® for 60%
loss of use of the left leg. The SAIF contends that the award
granted was excessive.

The medical record indicates that claimant has undergone
three surgical procedures for his industrially injured left knee,
the last surgery being performed on January 3, 1979 in Idaho by
Dr. Goodman. In his closing report dated October 9, 1979 Dr.
Goodman rated claimant's impairment at 30% of the entire left
lower extremity. This impairment was for marked laxity of the
unrepaired anterior cruciate ligament and excision of the medial
meniscus. The doctor opined that claimant would need physical
therapy for the.remainder of his life.

Claimant was
is employed as an
job claimant may
has not impaired
fied that' he walk
He indicated that
to fall. He wear
dull ache in his
six inches above

retrained by vocational rehabilitation and now
electronics technician at Tektronix. On this
sit or stand as he chooses. The left leg injury
his ability to perform this job. Claimant testi-
s two miles per .i^ay and one-half mile backwards,
the knee locks on him and gives way, causing him
s a knee brace daily. After exercising he has a
knee. His left leg .is numb from the knee down to
the ankle.

The pnly rating of impairment in the record is that of Dr.
Goodman. He found 30% impairment for the laxity of the unrepiaired
anterior cruciate ligament and for the medial meniscectomy.
Claimant also has a one inch atrophy of the left thigh as compared
to the right. His testimony reflects the instability of the knee.

The Board finds that the Referee's award was excessive and,
based on the medical evidence and claimant's testimony, he re­
tains, in our opinion, more than 40% use of that extremity. We

the award granted by the Determination Order is inade-
does not reflect the actual loss of use of claimant's
We grant claimant an award of 45% loss of use of

find that
quate and
left leg.
left leg.

the

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated August 12, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is granted an award of 67.5® for 45% loss of the
left leg. This award is in lieu of all prior awards.

m
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KATHERINE CASTEEL, CLAIMANT · 
.,._;._. 

WCB 80-01021 and 80-04530 
June ~11, 1981 . Pozzi. Wilson et ·al , •Claimant I s Attorn~ys 1 

SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney_ 
Req~est fo.r·_Review. by SP.IF ·· · 

Reviewed by Boar,d M_ernbers ~arnes '.and McCallister. 

The SAIF Corpora.tion seeks Board ·review of Referee Baker's 
ordet which ·affirmed the SAIF's ~eni~i.of clai~ant's aggravation 
claim but gran~ed cla~mant; an awar~ of; permanent total disability. 

. ·. . . 

· ·· T~e rec9rd is procedurally co~fus~ng. ciai~ant compensably 
injured her back on.October ·25~ 1976~ :.That b~ck;claim was. closed· 
by D~termination Ord~r of September 20, 1977 with no ~w,q:·d for 
permanent disab'ility. No request for· hea,ring .. was filed on that 
Determihation Order: 

Claimar.it compensably injured her lhip on July 1'7, 1978. That 
hip claim was closed· by Determination 1order of ~pril 24, ·1979·· with· 
no _award of permanent.di~ab.ility •. we~ Case No."·ao-010~1 i~ claim­
ant's.·requesi for hearing on her exten~ of disability ~risiQg fr6m 
her hip inju~y. · · i · · · • 

Af_ter the request for hearing ~n 1WCB Cas~ No. 80-01021 (~978 
hip injury) had been filed, claimant submitted an aggravation 
·cl.aim for· he·r· 1976 back 'injury~ ~AIF :den~ed' that aggravat'ion. 
claim•. WCB Case No~ 80-04530 is ~.lairri'an~ 's · request for he·ar ing on 
SAIF's denial of the aggravation oiaim for worsened back condi- • 
tion. On cl~imant's motion, the two ~ases were consolidated for 
hearing. · I · . 

! 
. The Referee upheld SAif's denialiof claimant's ag~r~vation 

claim for her back condition· in WCB .Case No. 80-0·4530. ; It would 
thus ~e~~ that t~e only remaining gue~tion ~as· the exte~t of dis­
abi1=,i ty ar.i sing from cla i~ant 's ·hip itjj u ry in WCB Case No. 
80-01021. Th~ Refere~ cotrectly noteq_that t~~ medical_evid~rce 
w~s th~t "claimant ha$ made an·excell¢nt recovery from the hip 
surgery and had e~senti~lly a normal functioning hi~." y~t- t~e 
Referee then proceed~d to rule: i · 

. I . 
· "I find that the last injuri, the hip injury~ is the 
final precipitating and· material cause of·h~r inability 
to work .•• I conclude claimant is entitled to compensa-

- I ... 

tion for permanent total di~ability." . 
- I . 

It is inexplicable· to the Board how t~e Referee could'ha~e con­
cluded that claimant.was permanently bna totally disabl~d from his 
findings that (1) :_claimant had not pr6ven:her .bac_k .condition- had . 

-worseried since the Se~ternber 20,. i977IDetermination Order which·. 
awarded no per~anent disability and {2t claimant had a normal 
functioning·hip. . ' 
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KATHERINE CASTEEL, CLAIMANT ,
Pozzi, Wilson et al ,■Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney.
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-01021 and 80-04530
June 11, 1981 .

m

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee Baker's
order which affirmed the SAIF's denial.of claimant's aggravation
claim but granted claimant an award of permanent total disability.

The record is procedurally confusing. Claimant compensably
injured her back on October 25, 1976., That backN claim was closed
by Determination Order of September 20, 1977 with no award for
permanent disability. No request for hearing, was filed on that
Determination Order.

Claimant compensably injured her ‘hip on July 17, 1978. That
hip claim was closed by Determination 'Order of April 24, 1979 with
no award of permanent disability., WCB Case No. 80-01021 is claim­
ant's request fo.r hearing on her extent of disability arising from
her hip injury.

After the request for hearing in WCB Case No. 80-01021 (1978
hip injury) had been filed, claimant submitted an aggravation
claim for her' 1976 back injury. SAIF denied that aggravation
claim. WCB Case No. 80-04530 is ^.iaimant' s ■ request for hearing on
SAIF's denial of the aggravation claim for worsened back condi­
tion. On claimant's motion, the two cases were consolidated for
hearing.

1The Referee upheld SAIF's denial iof claimant's aggravation
claim for her back condition in WCB Case No. 80-04530. It would
thus seem that the only remaining question was the extent of dis­
ability arising from claimant's hip injury in WCB Case No.
80-()1021. The Referee correctly noted.that the medical evidence
was that "claimant has made an excellent recovery from the hip
surgery and had essentially a. normal functioning hip."  et the

Referee then proceeded to rule:
"I find that the last injury, the hip injury, is the
final precipitating and' material cause of her inability
to work...I conclude claimant is entitled to compensa­
tion for permanent total disability,"

It is inexplicable to the Board how the Referee could have con­
cluded that claimant was permanently and totally disabled from his
findings that (1) claimant had not proven/her back .condition had
•worsened since the September 20, 1977|Determination Order which
awarded no permanent disability and (2) claimant had a normal
functioning hip.
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Board, on de nova review, finds as follows.: 

WCB Case No. -80-01021. 

. Claimant fractcired her right femur in a fall at wdrk. Th~ 
fracture was repaired surgica~ly with a compression nail and side 
pl~te. ~he s~rgeon, ·or. Dqff, reported: _ "Postoperatively, she 
did ~uite w~ll." He also reported that permament impairment was 
"not-expected." ·oecember 2~, 1978 Dr. ·ouff reported: "X-ray exam 
·today shows the hip fractu~e w~ll healed." March.7, 1979 he re­
ported: "She has made an excellent recovery from the hi~ surgery 
and.ha~ essentially a normal functioning hip." On February 12, 
1980 Di. Du£f repprted: "She.has good r·ange of motion in the hip, 
~ithout ahy leg sho~tening or deformity here~" 

· Although claimant subjectiveiy complains of pain and disabil­
ity in her hip, .th1s is not verified by any of ihe medical ev~ 

· idence. ·All medical evidence, as sµmmarized ·above, establishes . 
only a fracture that was repaired uneventfully followed· by a c·orn­
plete -recovery (at least considering that claimant. is .in• her mid 
60's) •. Th~·_oeter~in~tirin Ordei of April 24, 1979, awarding no 
permanent disability f<:>r· claimant_'_s hip con~itio_n, ·i.s affirmed. 

~ 
~ •. :ff 

· (Although .we have used the wdr.d "hip" to describe claimant I s 
injury as Dr. Duff; the parties and the .Referee· do, we note that a 
fracture of the femur is actually a l~g injuri under Ch~ster 
Clark, WCB ·case· Nq. ,79-09?97 (May 5, 1981).. '• 

WCB Case No. 80-0453o' • 

. Claimant's 1976 back injury was also from a fall at work. 
There is little infoimation in th~ record ab6ut her ·1976 injury or 

, trea~ment. A-contemporary-medical report diagnosed, ~Compression 
fracture Ll, 2 & 3 vertebra~ and stated that perminent impairment 
would "ptobabli not" result._ 

· Despite tht;? 1976 rep·ort ·of fractures of three vertebra, on 
February 12, 1980 ,· Dr~ .Duff reported: 

~Further -~-rays are taken of her lumbar spine today and 
~ompared with thos~ of two years ago. ·She has •.. old 
compression fractures of L-1, 2 and 4 compared with two 
years ago, where there was a fractur~ of t-1 only.". 

In that same report, ·Dr. Duff ·founcl tlgenerali zed osteoporotic 
change." -In a more comple~e May 1, 1978 report Dr. Duff found 
senile osteoporosis and sc_lerosi-·s·. 

Thi~ evidence does not establish a compensable w6rsenin~ 6f· 
claimant's back condition. If there are more compression frac-

. tures n6w th~n ther~ were in 1976, nothing in the evidence docu-
•ments any conriection with the 1976 injury or any other bonnect~on 
with claimant'~ work. Claimant's· "g~neralized osteoporotic 
change" is, so far as we can te_ll from this record, merely ·m1turai_ a 
degeneration consistent with claimant's age and nbt connetted with W 
her worK or 1976 back injury. 
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The Board, on de novo review, finds as follows:

WCB Case No. 80-01021.

Claimant fractured her right femur in a fall at work. The
fracture was repaired surgically with a compression nail and side
plate. The surgeon. Dr, Duff, reported: "Postoperatively, she
did quite well." He also reported that permament impairment was
"not expected." December 28, 1978 Dr, Duff reported: "X-ray exam
today shows the hip fracture well healed." March.7, 1979 he re­
ported: "She has made an excellent recovery from the hip surgery
and- has essentially a normal functioning hip." On February 12,
1980 Dr. Duff reported: "She has good range of motion in the hip,
without any leg shortening or deformity here."

Although claimant
ity in her hip, this is
idence. All medical ev
only a fracture that wa
plete recovery (at leas
60 ' s)., The Determinati
permanent disability fo

(Although we have
injury as Dr. Duff, the
fracture of the femur i
Clark, WCB Case No. 79-

subjectively complains of pain and disabil-
not verified by any of the medical ev­
idence, as summarized above, establishes
s repaired uneventfully followed by a com-
t considering that claimant is in her mid
on Order of April 24, 1979, awarding no
r claimant's hip condition, is affirmed.

used the word "hip" to describe claimant's
parties and the Referee do, we note that a
s actually a leg injury under Chester
09297 (May 5, 1981).

WCB Case No. 80-04530.

Claimant's 1976 back injury was also from a fall at work.
There is little information in the record about her 1976 injury or
treatment, A contemporary medical report diagnosed, "Compression
fracture Ll, 2 & 3 vertebra" and stated that permanent impairment
would "probably not" result.

Despite the 1976 report of fractures of three vertebra, on
February 12, 1980, Dr. Duff reported:

"Further x-rays are taken of her lumbar spine today and
compared with those of two years ago. She has...old
compression fractures of L-1, 2 and 4 compared with two
years ago, where there was a fracture of L-1 only."

In that same report, Dr. Duff found "generalized osteoporotic
change." In a more complete May 1, 1978 report Dr. Duff found
senile osteoporosis and sclerosis.

This evidence does not establish a compensable worsening of
claimant's back condition. If there are more compression frac­
tures now than there were in 1976, nothing in the evidence docu­
ments any connection with the 1976 injury or any other connection
with claimant's work. Claimant's "generalized osteoporotic
change" is, so far as we can tell from this record, merely natural
degeneration consistent with claimant's age and not connected with
her work or 1976 back injury
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is one other item oi e~idence that does lend some sup­
port to claimant's aggravation claim., Dr. Duff's May 1, 1978 
report compared 1976 x-rays wiih 1978 ·x-rays: "The fracture of 
L-1 has changed over the period between the two films, and there 
is about 50% loss of height.now as compared.with 20% previously ..•• 
[The] compression fracture of L-1 ... seems to be progressively set- -
tling, and it is pr?bably responsible for her pairi~~ This me~ical 
evidence, ·albeit cry~tic, combined with claimant's testimpny about 
her subjecti~e difficulties, does lead us.to the conclusion that 
claimant has est~blfshed a compensable w6rsening of her back con-
dition. · 

There is no heed to defer rating ~laimant's back disability~ 
Considering_ a_ll relevant factors :¥a comparing claimant '.s condi- ._ 
tion with other similar cases, th~ Board concludes that an award-, 
of 10% u~sch~duled perman~nt partial disability is. appropriate.·· 

' . ' . ' 

The Board appreciates that clai~ant's doctors have on more 
t~an one occasio~ referred to her. inability to work. Their 
reasons, to· the limited ·extent a~y are stated, include a 16ng list 
of ·claimant's health problem~ th,t are n6t'related to her hip or·. 
back injuries or otherwise compensable. Clairn~nt's total situa­
tion may be· unfortunate, but our authority is limited to dealing 
with its compone~ts th~t are work r~lated. 

ORDER' 

· The Referee's order dated August 13, 1980 is revers~d in its 
entirety. In·wcB Case No. 80-01021 the Determination Orde~ dated 
April 24, 1979 is affirmed and claimant's request for increased 
compensation is denied.· In WCB Case No. 80"'.'04-530., · SAIF's denial 
of claimantis ~ggravation claim is reversed, ·and cla1rna~i is 
award·ed .10% unscheduled partial disability for her worsened b_ack 
condition. · 

Claimant's attorney is awarded as and for a reasonable attor­
ney fee for services rendered at the~Hearings and Board levels in 
securing the reversal of SAIF's denial in WCB Case .No. 80-04530 
the sum of $1,000, payable by the SAIF Corpor~tion •. 

I • 
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There is one other item of evidence that does lend some sup­
port to claimant's aggravation claim. , Dr. Duff's May 1, 1978
report compared 1976 x-rays with 1978 x-rays: "The fracture of
L-1 has changed over the period between the two films, and there
is about 50% loss of height now as compared-with 20% previously...
[The] compression fracture of L-1...seems to be progressively set­
tling, and it is probably responsible for her pain." This medical
evidence, albeit cryptic, combined with claimant's testimony about
her subjective difficulties, does lead us.to the conclusion that
claimant has established a compensable worsening of her back con­
dition.

There is no heed to defer rating claimant's back disability.
Considering all relevant factors .^d comparing claimant's condi-.
tion with other similar cases, the' Board concludes that an award
of 10% unscheduled permanent partial disability is. appropriate.

The Board appreciates that claimant's doctors have on more
than one occasion referred to her inability to work. Their
reasons, to- the limited extent any are stated, include a long list
of claimant's health problems that are not related to her hip or'
back injuries or otherwise compensable. Claimant's total situa­
tion may be unfortunate, but our authority is limited to dealing
with its components that are work related.

- ORDER'

The Referee's order dated August 13, 1980 is reversed in its
entirety. In WCB Case No. 80-01021 the Determination Order dated
April 24, 1979 is affirmed and claimant's request for increased
compensation is denied. In WCB Case No, 80-04530, SAIF's denial
of claimant's aggravation claim is reversed, and claimant is
awarded .10% unscheduled partial disability for her worsened back
condition.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as and for a reasonable attor­
ney fee for services rendered at the': Hearings and Board levels in
securing the reversal of SAIF's denial in WCB Case No. 80-04530
the sum of $1,000, payable by the SAIF Corporation.,
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C. HENRY, CLAIMANT. 
Brian L. Welch, Claimant's Attorney· 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Atto.rney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

WCB ,79-06484 _ 
June 11, 1981 

Review~d by Board Members Barnes and Mccallister. 

The SAif Corporation seeks B6ard review- of Referee Peterson's 
order which set aside SAIF's denial of claimant's non-disabling, 
i.e., medica_l services only, occupational disease claim for ·a back 
condition an~ ordered payment of a penalty and attorriey fees. 

The·Board interprets the Referee's order as ~equiring SAIF to 
pay for claimant's medical.services for his back condition except 
that: (1) To t~e extent that SAIF,has already paid for some of 
those services as part of an unrelated shoulder claim, it does not 
have to pay again; and (2) SAIF is only res~onsible for medical 
services rendered while claimant was ,in the employ of its .insured, 
Oregon City ~lumbing~. C(. Bracke v. Baza'r, 51 Or App 627 (1981). 

As so interpreted, the Board affirms and adopts the Referee's 
order with the additional observation that SAIF's contention that 
the filing of an·ao1 is something other than a clairn·is. a serious 
conte~der for the Board's Most S~ecious Argument Award. 

ORDER . -
:'f..i, 

. . . -~ 
The order of the Referee dated August 12, 1980 is affirrn~d as 

interpreted ab6ve. Claimantts attorney is awarded· $500 as area­
.. sonable.~ttorney fee for services render~d- i~ connection with this 

Board review, payable by SAIF Corporation. 

JAMES LEPPE, CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Def~nse Attorney 
Request for Revi.ew by Claimant 

WCB 79-08683 
June 11, 1981 . 

Reviewed ·_by Board Members Barnes and ·McCall ister. 

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Johnson's order 
which refused to invalidate a prior stipulation of the parties and· 
denied reimbursement for the cost of transcribing a doctor's depo­
sition. Claimant's brief makes no mention of the deposition 
issue, so we assu~e it has been abandoned. The sole issue, then, 
is whether to invalidate the prior stipulation of the parties. 
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HERMAN C. HENR , CLAIMANT
Brian L. Welch, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-06484
June 11, 1981

#
Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee Peterson's
order which set aside SAIF's denial of claimant's non-disabling,
i.e., medical services only, occupational disease claim for a back
condition and ordered payment of a penalty and attorney fees.

The Board interprets the Referee's order as requiring SAIF to
pay for claimant's medical services for his back condition except
that: (1) To the extent that SAIF-has already paid for some of
those services as part of an unrelated shoulder claim, it does not
have to pay again; and (2) SAIF is only responsible for medical
services rendered while claimant was in the employ of its ,insured,
Oregon City Plumbing,. Cf. Bracke v. Baza'r, 51 Or App 627 (1981)

As so interpreted, the Board affirms and adopts the Referee's
order with the additional observation that SAIF's contention that
the filing of an 801 is something other than a claim is a serious
contender for the Board's Most Specious Argument Award.

ORDER
ip

The order of the Referee dated August 12, 1980 is affirmed as
interpreted above. Claimant's attorney is awarded $500 as a rea­
sonable attorney fee for services rendered in connection with this
Board review, payable by SAIF Corporation.

m

JAMES LEPPE, CLAIMANT
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members

WCB 79 08683
June 11, 1981

Barnes and ‘McCallister.

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Johnson's order
which refused to invalidate a prior stipulation of the'parties and
denied reimbursement for the cost of transcribing a doctor's depo­
sition. Claimant's brief makes no mention of the deposition
issue, so we assume it has been abandoned. The sole issue, then,
is whether to invalidate the prior stipulation of the parties.
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.stipulation was entered in earlier cases invo+ving. claim­
ant, WCB Case -~os. 78-00877 and 1 78-01560. It was approv~d by R~f-
eree Muld~r. on· June 7, i97B. -

Cl~imant's preseni brief makes kn impressive atgument that 
Referee Mulder sho~ld not have appro~ed that stipulation. It pro­
vided for payment of clairnani's attorney's fee out bf .claimant's 
compens?tion even thoutjh claimant ts 6laim was partially ~eriied and 
thus attorney fees should probably have been paid in addition to 
compensation. At a time when th~ Bb~rd's rules limited attorney 
fees for gaining increased ·temporary total c1 isabili ty benefits to._ 
$500 ab~ent a statement of e~traordinary service, th~ s~ipulation 
allowed claimant's then attorney· ai fee o'f $1 ~ 000 f rem claimant's · 
increased temporary total disabi_lity. benefits without ahy state-.­
ment_ of extraordinary services. _ The, brief from claimant's present 
attorney in this case ·sums.up the si~uation well: Because of "the 
illegaiity bf the overre~ching·atto~rey fee included in ~he stip~-

- lat ion,~• i~ should -never have been approved, ·and the fact that it 
was ,approved is. "a poor reflection on the entire Workers.' Compen-
sation Syste!T!." . . .. · · 
. . . ' ' ' . 

The question· is what can -0r shobld be done about this poor 
reflectipn-·on the system. In Schulz[ v. State· Compensation Depart­
m~nt~ 252 Or- 211 (1968) ,·the Board s~t.aside a prior stipuiation 
of the parties·and was affirmed by the Supreme Cou-rt. This Board 
does not inte~~ret Schulz as establishin~ any standard for when a 
prior stipulation must be set aside·but only indi~ating whe~ a 
prior stipulation may be set aside. · Determination of how to 
implement the authority recognized by Schulz remains for ~gency 
judgment. 

·This Board concludes that the authority to set aside stipula­
tions sh~uld .be used very sparingly,• only in_ the most unconscion­
able_ of situations. Our.Referees arF now approving aboµt-1,000 
stipulated settlements per year. Th~s Board ~xpeqts these ap-. 
p~p~~ls to be taken as seriou~ly a~ ~he about 3,00Q cases:?er year 
decided by the Referees after hearing. Amor~ expansive view of 
our Schulz authority woul~ not encqu~age ·serious Referee aitentiqn 
to _the approval of -s~ipulated .settle~enti. :Also, a more expcinsive 
view of our Schulz authority could jeopardiie the quanfity and 
quality of settlements by creat.ing a: large question mark about the 
finality of all settlements. -

The atipulated settlement here in question is n6t at the 
"most unconsci6nable" end of the spe~tr~m. 

. . I 
ORDE~ 

I 
The order of the Referee dated huly 9, 1980 1s affirmed. 

I 
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9
The stipulation was entered in earlier cases

ant, WCB Case Nos, 78-00877 and' 78-01560. It was
eree Mulder on June 7, 1978.

involving, claim-
approved by Ref-

9

Claimant's present brief makes an impressive argument that
Referee Mulder should not have approved that stipulation. It pro­
vided for payment of claimant's attorney's fee out of claimant' s
compensation even though claimant's claim was partially denied and
thus attorney fees should probably have been paid in addition to
compensation,: At a time when the Board's rules limited attorney
fees for gaining increased temporary total disability benefits to.
$500 absent a statement of extraordinary service, the stipulation
allowed claimant's then attorney aifee of $1,000 from claimant’s
increased temporary total disability benefits without any state-,
ment of extraordinary services. The. brief from claimant's present
attorney in this case sums up the situation well: Because of "the
illegality of the overreaching attorney fee included in the stipu­
lation," it should never have been approved, and the fact that it
was approved is. "a poor reflection on the entire Workers' Compen­
sation System."

The question is what can or should be done about this poor
reflection on the system. In Schulz! v. State Compensation Depart­
ment, 252 Or- 211 (1968),■the Board set aside a prior stipulation
of the parties and was affirmed by the Supreme Court. This Board
does not interpret Schulz as establishing any standard for when a
prior stipulation must be set aside but only indicating when a
prior stipulation may be set aside. Determination of how to
implement the authority recognized by Schulz remains for agency
judgment.

This Board concludes that the authority to set aside stipula­
tions shpuld be used very sparingly, only in the most unconscion­
able of situations. Our.Referees are now approving about- 7,000
stipulated settlements per year. This Board expects these ap­
provals to be taken as seriously as the about 3,000 casesper year
decided by the Referees after hearing. A more expansive view of
our Schulz authority would not encourage serious Referee attention
to the approval of stipulated settlements. Also, a more expansive
view of our Schulz authority could jeopardize the quantity and
quality of settlements by creating a| large question mark about the
finality of all settlements.

The stipulated settlement here
"most unconscionable" end of the spectrum.

in question is not at the

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated July 9, 1980 is affirmed.
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E. NEWTSON, · CLAIMANT 
Leeroy 0. Ehlers, Attorney for Claimant. 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

WCB ·79-06452· 
June 11, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members .Barnes and Mccallister. 

The SAi~ Corporati6n seeks Board review of Referee.Danner's 
order which reversed its denials of compensability of claimant's 
lung condition. The issues ar~ estoppel and co~p~nsability. 

Claiman~ experienced.three episodes described in the.medical 
evidence as pneumothorax or hemopneumothorax_. SAIF accepted the· 
claim for the first episode, and i~ was clo~eff by Determination 
Order on February 23, 1979. Claimant ·experienced subsequent epi­
-sodes and made a subsequent claim; SAIF investigated further. On 
January 15, 1980 SAIF revoked .its acceptance of and denied claim-
ant's original claim. SAiF ~l~o denied the subsequent claim. 

The Referee concluded that SAIF was estopped to revoke its 
original acceptance, relying on the Court of Appeals decision in 
Frasure v. Agripac; Inc., 41 Or App 7, opinion on reconsideration, 
41 Or App 649 (1979). The Referee did not explain how SAIF's 
estoppel to revoke acceptance of the original claim extended to 
bar SAIF's denial of the subsequent.claim.· 

On appeal SAIF relies on the Supreme Court d~ci~ion reversing 
.the Court of Appeals decision. Frasure v. Agripac, Inc., 290 Or 
96 .(1981) • Claimant argues that the Supreme Court decision is 
distinguishable be6ause it only.·involved the question of whether 
payment of compensation can create an estoppel to deny a claim, 
whereas this case involves a formal acceptance that claimant con­
fends should bar a ·1ater· denial. It is uncle~r from the various 
appell~te deci~ions i~ Frasure whether the claim in that case was 
~ver formally accepted or not before being later denied. In the 
Board's opinion, ·however, this matters not~ -even if the only issue 
in Frasure· ·was whether payment of compensation could be the basis 
of an estoppel,. the court's r~asoning would be equally applicable 
to whether a formal acceptance could be the basis of a denial, 
subject to. one possibfe qualification. 

The qualification is whether there is any time limit on a. 
carrier changing its mind. Claimant argues that the Determination 
Order on his original claim had become final by operation of law 
before SAIF change~ its mind.· Claimant is ~istak~n. · The Deter­
min.a.tion Order is dated February 23,· 1979 .. SAJ;F revoke·d its 
acceptance an~ denied- oq January 15, 1980, whi6h was ·before the 
expira~ion of the one-year period before the Deterrninatioh Order 
wo~ld beco~e final by operation of law. While a different· ques­
tion would-be ·presented if a carrier attempted to revoke an accep­
tance more than a year after a Determination Order, there was:no 
estoppel here. 
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RAPHAEL E. NEWTSON,'CLAIMANT
Leeroy 0. Ehlers, Attorney for Claimant,
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-06452
June 11, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee.Danner's
order which reversed its denials of compensability of claimant's
lung condition. The issues are estoppel and compensability.

Claimant experienced three episodes described in the medical
evidence as pneumothorax or hemopneumothorax. SAIF accepted the
claim for the first episode, and it was closed by. Determination
Order on February 23, 1979. Claimant experienced subsequent epi-
'Sodes and made a subsequent claim; SAIF investigated further. On
January 15, 1980 SAIF revoked its acceptance of and denied claim­
ant's original claim. SAIF also denied the subsequent claim.

The Referee concluded that SAIF was estopped to revoke its
original acceptance, relying on the Court of Appeals decision in
Frasure v. Agripac; Inc., 41 Or App 7, opinion on reconsideration,
41 Or App 649 (1979). The Referee did not explain how SAIF's
estoppel to revoke acceptance of the original claim extended to
bar SAIF's denial of the subsequent'claim.

On appeal SAIF relies on the Supreme Court decision reversing
the.Court of Appeals, decision. Frasure v. Agripac, Inc., 290 Or
96 ,(1981) . Claimant argues that the Supreme Court decision is
distinguishable because it only, involved the question of whether
payment of compensation can create an estoppel to deny a claim,
whereas this case involves a formal acceptance that claimant con­
tends should bar a later denial. It is unclear from the various
appellate decisions in Frasure whether the claim in that case was
ever formally accepted or not before being later denied. In the
Board's opinion, however, this matters not; even if the only issue
in Frasure was whether payment of compensation could be the basis
of an estoppel,. the court's reasoning would be equally applicable
to whether a formal acceptance could be the basis of a denial,
subject to one possible qualification.

The qualification is whether there is any time limit on a,
carrier changing its mind. Claimant argues that the Determination
Order on his original claim had become final by operation of law
before SAIF changed its mind. Claimant is mistaken. The Deter­
mination Order is dated February 23, 1979. SAIF revoked its
acceptance and denied on January 15, 1980, which was before the
expiration of the one-year period before the Determination Order
would becoite final by operation of law. While a different ques­
tion would be presented if a carrier attempted to revoke an accep­
tance more than a year after a Determination Order, there was no
estoppel here.
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On the -issue of compensabil i ty, i:t is claimant I s theory that 
his _lung condition was caused by exposure to dust and che,mical 
fumes in his work in a seed cleaning plant. Three doctors attemp­
ted to assess this theory. Dr.· Collini, claimant's ~ii~inal · 
treating physici~n, .was of the opinion tha~ claimant's pulrn6nary 
condition _was not c~used by his work. Dr. Keppel, a pulmoriary 
specialist, was of the ~ame opinion. 

Dr. Yurchak, also a pulmonary specialist, was of the. ~pinion. 
that claimant's exposure- to chemicalsJ etc., at work did cause his 
pneum6thorax. Theie are, however, the Board. finds, two flaws in . 
Dr. Yurchak's opinion.· Dr. Yurchak seems to place strong reliance 
on claimant's expqi~t~ to indusiiial 6ornpourids c9ntaini~g ~er6~ry. 
But SAIF's chief indust~ial ~ygi~ne consultant testified~ co~ . 
gently, we fihd, that fungicides confaining ~ercury were barined in· 
1972 and, therefore,·clai~ant 6ould not have been e~pbsed. to that 
element at work since 1972. ·secon~ly, even with his conclusirin .· 
based on a ddubtful history, D~. Yurchak frankly-~dmits that. his 
conclusion II is _speculation" and "conj ~cture· only._" 

Weighin~ ~11. the above evidence~ the Board is not persuaded 
that claim~nt sustaihed his burden of proo~~ 

. + 

ORDER' 
.. ' 

I 

The order of the Referee. dated August 12,. 1980 is reversed·._ 
The SAIF Corporation's denials of th~ compensa~ili~y of claimant's 
lung ~ondition are ·affirmed. 
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m On the -issue of compensability, it is claimant's theory that
his lung condition was caused by exposure to dust and chemical
fumes in his work in a seed cleaning plant. Three doctors attemp­
ted to assess this theory. Dr. Collins, claimant's original
treating physician, was of the opinion that claimant's pulmonary
condition was not caused by his work. , Dr. Keppel, a pulmonary
specialist, was of the same opinion.

Dr,  urchak, also a pulmonary specialist, was of the. gpinion
that claimant's exposure to chemicals; etc., at work did cause his
pneumothorax. There are, however, the Board finds, two flaws in
Dr.  urchak's opinion. Dr.  urchak seems to place strong reliance
on claimant's exposure to industrial compounds containing mercury.
But SAIF's chief industrial hygiene consultant testified, co­
gently, we find, that fungicides containing mercury were banned in
1972 and, therefore,'claimant could not have been exposed to that
element at work since 1972. Secondly, even with his conclusion
based on a doubtful history. Dr.  urchak frankly admits that, his
conclusion "is speculation" and "conjecture only."

Weighing all. the above evidence, the Board is not persuaded
that claimant sustained his burden of proof.

ORDEP
)

I ' •
The order of the Referee dated August 12, 1980 is reversed.

The SAIF Corporation's denials of the compensability of claimant's
lung condition are affirmed. ;•
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M. PEOPLES, CLAIMANT 
Dwight G_erber, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by· SAIF 

WCB 79-09890 
June 11. 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Ba~nes and Mccallister. 

The SAIF Corporation 
order which set aside its 
claim for psychopathology 
pursuant to ORS 656.268. 
$1,436~17..· 

seeks Board review of Referee Williams' 
partial denial and reopened· clairnan"t Is· 
as of October 6, 1979 and until closed. 
Clai~ant 1 s attorney·~as granted a fee of 

SAIF contends that claimant's psychiatric condition whi6h re~ 
sulted from her compensable injury of April 29, 1976 should be 
denied under the r~tionale of James v. SAIF, 290 Or 343 (1981), 
and Paresi v. SAIF; 290 Or 365 (1981). These ca~es indicate that 
for a psychiatric.condition to be compensable it must be proven 
that the condition was caused by circumstances ~ .•• to which an em­
ployee is not ordinarily subjected or exposed other than during a 
period of actual employment" within the meaning of ORS 
656.802(1) (a). SAIF also contends that the attorney fee granted 
by. the Referee was e?{cessive and should be reduced. 

We generally concur with the findings of the Referee. we 
agree that claimant's request !or.hearing raised the issue of im­
proper denial and that the RefereJthad jurisdiction to hear that 
issue on i·t~ merits. We find th~r~ is no dispute that claimant , 
had_a pre-existing psychological condition. Her current condition 
was not· caused by the 1976 industrial injury; however, we find 
that it was-materially worsened to the extent that it produced 
disability cir the need for medical services~ Weller v. Union 
Carbide Corporation, 288 Or 27 (1979). We find that James· and 
Paresi are not here on point. The James and Paresi cases involve 
what we call mental~menta1· claims as opposed to physical-mental 
claims. Mental-mental cases encompass those psychological cases 
which are caused as-a result of unusual job situations such as 
stiess or harrassrnent~ There is generally no precipitating trauma 
involved. Physical-mental cases, as in this case, are psycholog­
ical conditions which result from a compensable physical injury. 
James and Paresi do not apply in this case. Rather, Patitucci v. 
Boise Cascade Corp., 8 Or App 503, 508 ~1972) states the rule here 
applicable: 

"* * *[W]hen there has been a physical ac­
cident or trauma, and claimant's disability· 

·is increased or prolonged by traumatic 
neurosis, conversion· hysteria, or hysteri­
cal paralysis, it is now uniformly held 
that the full disability including the 
effects of the neurosis is compensable. 
Dozens of cases, involving almost. every 
conceivable kind.of neurotic~ psychotic, 
depressive or hysterical symptom or person­
ality disorder, have accepted this rule.** 
*" 
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CLARA M. PEOPLES. CLAIMANT
Dwight Gerber, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal. Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 79-09890
June 11, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee Williams'
order which set aside its partial denial and reopened claimant's'
claim for.psychopathology as of October 6, 1979 and until closed,
pursuant to ORS 656.268. Claimant's attorney was granted a fee of
$1,436.17..-

SAIF contends that claimant's psychiatric condition which re­
sulted from her compensable injury of April 29, 1976 should be
denied under the rationale of James v. SAIF, 290 Or 343 (1981) ,
and Paresi v. SAIF, 290 Or 365 (1981). These cases indicate that
for a psychiatric condition to be compensable it must be proven
that the condition was caused by circumstances ’-...to which an em­
ployee is not ordinarily subjected or exposed other than during a
period of actual employment" within the meaning of ORS
656.802(1)(a). SAIF also contends that the attorney' fee granted
by. the Referee was excessive and should be reduced.

We generally concur with the findings of the Referee. We
agree that claimant's request for,hearing raised the issue of im­
proper denial and that the Referees had jurisdiction to hear that
issue on its merits. We find there is no dispute that claimant
had a pre-existing psychological condition. Her current condition
was not caused by the 1976 industrial injury; however, we find
that it waS'materially worsened to the extent that it produced
disability or the need for medical services. Weller v. Union
Carbide Corporation, 288 Or 27 (1979) . We find that James and ' •
Paresi are not here on point. The James and Paresi cases involve
what we call mental-mental’ claims as opposed to physical-mental
claims. Mental-mental cases encompass those psychological cases
which are caused as a result of unusual job situations such as
stress or harrassment. There is generally no precipitating trauma
involved. Physical-mental cases, as in this case, are psycholog­
ical conditions which result from a compensable physical injury.
James and Paresi do not apply in this case. Rather, Patitucci v.
Bois¥ Cascade Corp,, 8 Or App 503, 508 (1972) states the rule here
applicable:

'»* ★ *[w)hen there has been a physical ac­
cident or trauma, and claimant's disability
is increased or prolonged by traumatic
neurosis, conversion hysteria, or hysteri­
cal paralysis, it is now uniformly held
that the full disability including the
effects of the neurosis is compensable.
Dozens of cases, involving almost every
conceivable kind of neurotic, psychotic,
depressive or hysterical symptom or person­
ality disorder, have accepted this rule.* *

134

#

m

- -

, 



                     
          
             
          
            
    

          
          
       
           
            
        
          
          
        
         
           
       

         
         
         
             
          
          
          
       
     

  
           

           
           
        
           
             

  

respect to the ~ttorney fee awarded by the Referee, the 
Board has jurisdiction to coniider t~is ·question under Anlauf v. 
SAIF, ~2 Or App 115 (1981). Claimant suggests that the appropri­
ate scope of Board review of a Referee's· award of attorney fee·s is 
the abuse~of~discretion standard stated in Bentley v. SAIF, 38 ·or 
App 43 (1979). The Board disagrees; our review -0f all issues is 
de_n9vo on the r~cord. 

There -is o~e obvious error in t~e Referee's-a~ard -of attorney 
fees. Claimant•~ attorney it~miz~d 6is claim tb fees. One it~m. 
readsi "Medical Reports--or .. Marcel 1 $85.00."· Medical· reports aie 
never properly part of. an award of ~~torney fees. A·.~octor's fee 
for writing-a· report is the responsibility of the carrier if the 
report is written in connection with, compensable __ treatment. That 
fee is the worker's res~onsibility if the doctor's report is gen­
erated solely Jor·purpoies of litigati6n. While ihe line between 
reports in connection with compensable treatment· and ·reports 
solely for litig~tiori pµrposes ~a~ be.subtle and ~ifficult to 
apply· in srime·cases, that does hot m~ke medical repo~ts properly 
an element· of ari ~~ard ot attorney f~es~ · 

. , ~,t I 

Even after subtracting the $8-5 for med i_cal reports, the 
attorney fe·e awarded by the Referee still appears excessive com­
pared to"qther similir cases. When b1airnants prevail 6n denials 
of their ~laims, most of the Refer~~s in mo~t of the cases ate: 
awardi~~ attorney fees in the range ~f $800 to $1,200. While · 
efforts ei~ended and resulfs obtained c~n, of course,. jµstify· a 
larg·er or smaller attorney fee,. nothing in the present record in­
dicat~s extraordinary le~al se~vicei. Claimant's attorney's fee 
will be reduce~ to $1,000. 1· 

.ORDER 
. I 

' 
The orders of the Referee dated October ~0, 1980 and November 

7, 19Bq are modified-to a116w·c1a~m~nt 1 s attorney a iee for ser- _ 
vices rend~red before the Referee· of $1,000; in all other respects 
t_he Referee's orders are affirmed. -1 In addition, claimant's attar..: 
ney is entitled to a fee for.successfully defending the'claimant's 
victory on this Board review. Thatf fee·is set at $500, p~yable by 
the SAIF Corporation. 

. i 

I 
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with respect to the attorney, fee awarded by the Referee, theBoard has jurisdiction to consider th'is question under Anlauf v.
SAIF, 52 Or App 115 (1981). Claimant suggests that the appropri­
ate scope of Board review of a Referee’s award of attorney fees is
the abuse-of-discretion standard stated in Bentley v. SAIF, 38 Or
App 43 (1979). The Board disagrees; our review ,of all issues is
de novo on the record.

There-is one obvious error in the Referee's award of attorney
fees. Claimant's attorney itemized his claim to fees. One item
reads: "Medical Reports--Dr. Marcel|$85.00■ Medical reports are
never properly part of an award of attorney fees. A.doctor's fee
for writing a' report is the responsibility of the carrier if the
report is written in connection with^compensable treatment. That
fee is the worker's responsibility if the doctor's report is gen­
erated solely for purposes of litigation. While the line between
reports in connection with compensable treatment and reports
solely, for litigation purposes may be.subtle and difficult to
apply in some cases, that does not make medical reports properly
an element of an award of attorney fees.

Even after subtracting the $8% for medical reports, the
attorney fee awarded by the Referee still appears excessive com­
pared to'other similar cases. When Claimants prevail on denials
of their claims, most of the Referees in most of the cases are;
awarding attorney fees in the range 'of $800 to.$1,200. While
efforts expended and results obtained can, of course,. justify- a
larger or smaller attorney fee, nothing in the present record in­
dicates extraordinary legal services. Claimant's attorney's fee
will be reduced to $1,000.

ORDER
i

The orders of the Referee dated October TO, 1980 and November
7, 1980 are modified to allow claimant's attorney a fee for ser­
vices rendered before the Referee'of $1,000 ; in all other respects
the Referee's orders are affirmed.^ In addition, claimant's attor­
ney is entitled to a fee for successfully defending the claimant's
victory on this Board review. Thatf fee is set at $500, payable by
the SAIF Corporation.
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~Y/l.N, CLAIMANT 
Eric Lindauer, C1aimant 1 s Attorney 
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review ·by Claimant 

WCB 78-06038 
June 11. 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Barries and Lewis. 

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Johnson's order • 
awarding 90% loss of the right forearm as a result of her 
September 13, 1976 wrist injury. 

The ·sole issue on appeal is the extent of disability. 
Claimant seeks an award of permanent total disab.ility. 

It is apparent that a claimant's future employability is 
severely limited by a combination of factors. However, the Board 
may consider those conditions which piedate ai injury and those 
factors authoiized by statute. It may not consider unrelated, non­
compensable conditions, such as the_ claimant's Bell's Palsey which 
developed nearly two years after her 197~ inju~y. 

The Board concurs with the Referee's assessment that were it 
not for clllm~nt's Bell's ~alsey she would npt be so sev~rely 
limited'"'i.n her earning capacity. The Board further concludes that 
the Referee correctly applied the law in reaching a determination 
that claimant has failed to prove, by a preponderance of the 
evidence, that she is permanen tly_1'.:.pnd totally disabled as the 
result of her compensable injury.~ 

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the 
Opinion and Order of the Referee. 

ORDER 

The order of the Refere~ dated October 31, 1980 is affirmed. 

NOTICE ~0 ALL PARTIES: This order is final unless, within 
30 days after the date of mailing of copies of this order to the 
parties, one of the parties appeals to the Court of Appeals for 
judicial review as provided by ORS 656.298. 
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nvAN, CLAIMANT
Eric Lindauer, Claimant's Attorney
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 78-06038
June 11, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Johnson's order •
awarding 90% loss of the right forearm as a result of her
September 13, 1976 wrist injury.

The sole issue on appeal is the extent of disability.
Claimant seeks an award of permanent total disability.

It is apparent that a claimant's future employability is
severely limited by a combination of factors. However, the Board
may consider those conditions which predate an injury and those
factors authorized by.statute. It may not consider unrelated, non
compensable conditions, such as the claimant's Bell's Palsey which
developed nearly two years after her 1976 injury.

The Board concurs with the Referee's assessment that were it
not for claimant's Bell's Palsey she would not be so severely
limited^-lh her earning capacity. The
the Referee correctly applied the law
that claimant has failed to prove^ by
evidence, that she is permanently,*^.^nd
result of her compensable injury.

Board further concludes that
in reaching a determination
a preponderance of the
totally disabled as the m

The Board, after de novo review, affirms-and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 31, 1980 is affirmed

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES: This order is final unless, within
30 days after the date of mailing of copies of this order to the
parties, one of the parties appeals to the Court of Appeals for
judicial review as provided by ORS 656.298.
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E. SIDNEY 
Edward Olson, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp ·Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for.Revfew by Claimant·· 
Cross Request by SAif · 

l 
WCB 80-00994 
June 11, 1981 

R~vi~wed.by. Board ~embers McCalli~ter and Lewis. 
' 

The claimant seeks review and the, SAIF Corporation ( SAIF) 
cross reg·uests review of Referee Neal ' 1s order· which granted claim­
ant an additional 96° ~or 30% ·for· a iotal award 6f 60% unscheduled 

· disability. Claimant contends t~at t~e award_is iriadequate a~d 
·sAIF contends that· the award is ~xcesiive. 

• ' I • 

Claimant was ~mployed by E~ley Express as a tru6k driver, a 
job he has perfor~ed m6st of his working life. On August 18, 1977 
he suffeted ·an injtiry when a ·box. he was s~a6~ing fell apart and 
injur~d his left shoulder,·neck and l~ft arm.· 

··Dr. ·Snodgrass diagnosed ne_rve root anc. some sp.inal cord com­
pression 9f the mid-cervical spine. On _December 12, 19?7 claimant 
underwent~ myelogram ~nfr o~ December 16, 1977.he undeiwen~a 
thr~e-level ciervical· discectomy, .removal of osteophytes. and a 
f~sion from C4-C7 · · · · · 

Claim~n~ ~as examined by th~_Orth9pae~ic Cdniultants who re­
ported on July 17, 1978 that upon~examination there w~re •inconsis-

- tenci~s·~ · 'l'hey diagnosed· muscle ,'ana 11-gamentous sj:rain a'nd func­
tional .overl~y. They found ~is condition rnedtcally stationary, 
and he was pr~cluded frorn··truck diivin~! ~he to~al loss.of· the 
cervical spine related to this injury was in the upper~range of 
moderate. 

Cl_aimapt .was enrolled·· at the Disability Pr.even tion Divis ion, 
-and the psychologist "faun~ a moderate level of emotional distur~ 
bance. Claimant wa~ enrolled from August 31, 19~8 -until October · 
26,, 1978. Di.· Field indiciated that des~ite th~ vigorous effor£~ 
of. the t~er~pists, cl~imant· did•not se~m to iespond. It was felt 
claimant would not ~etutn t6 ~rue~ driving, but he wa~ medically 
stationary ijnd job plarie~ent was recommended·. · 

The claim was clos~d by a Det~cmination Order of November 30, 
1978 with an award of· 30% unscheduled disab;lity. 

Subsequently, Field Services Division t~ied to contact claim­
ant on 'three occ~sions, and claimant did not return their.calls 
when messa~es· were left for him t~ do so. 

In June 1979 Dr. Misko recommended that claimant· undergo .a 
fusion of C6-7. On June 20 he was hospit~lized, and the ~uigery 
was perfor~ed by· Dr. Mi,ko June-il, 1979. 

Claimant '.s claim· was reopened_ by a· stipulation dated July 11, 
·1979. 
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CHARLES E. SIDNE WCB 80 00994
Edward Olson, Claimant's Attorney • , June 11, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for.Review by Claimant ‘
Cross Request by SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks review and the, SAIF Corporation (SAIF)
cross requests review of Referee Neal"s order'which granted cla.im-
ant an additional 96“ for 30% for' a to^tal award of 60% unscheduled
disability. Claimant contends that the award.is inadequate and
SAIF contends that the award is excessive.

Claimant was employed by Exley Express as a truck driver, a
job he has performed most of his working life. On August 18, 1977
he suffered an injury when a box.he was stacking fell apart and
injured his left shoulder, neck and left arm.

•Dr. Snodgrass diagnosed nerve root and some spinal cord com­
pression of the mid-cervical spine. On December 12, 1977 claimant
underwent a myelogram and on December 16, 1977.he underwent a
three-level cervical discectomy, removal of osteophytes, and a
fusion from C4-C7

Claimant was examined by the.Orthopaedic Consultants who re­
ported on July 17, 1978 that upon’^examination there were inconsis­
tencies. They diagnosed muscle.an'd ligamentous strain and func­
tional overlay. They found his condition medically stationary,
and he was precluded from truck driving. The total loss of the
cervical spine related to this injury was in the upper range of
moderate.

Claimant was enrolled at the Disability Prevention Division,
and the psychologist found a moderate level of emotional distur­
bance. Claimant was enrolled from August 31, 1978 until October
26,, 1978. Dr. Field indicated that despite the vigorous efforts
of. the therapists, claimant didnot seem to respond. It was felt
claimant would not return to truck driving, but he was medically
stationary and job placement was recommended.

1978
The claim was closed by a Determination Order
with an award of 30% unscheduled disability.

of November 30,

Subsequently, Field Services Division tried to contact claim­
ant on three occaisions, and claimant did not return their,calls
when messages were left for him to do so.

In June 1979 Dr. Misko recommended that claimant undergo a
fusion of C6-7. On June 20 he was hospitalized, and the surgery
was performed by Dr. Misko June 21, 1979.

Claimant'.s claim was reopened,by a'stipulation dated July 11,
1979.
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Misko declared claimant again medically stationary on a, 
November 9, 1979. Dr. Noall thereafter examined and rated claim- 9 
ant•~ impairment as moderate .but claimant could perform light work. 

A second Determination Order was issued on January 28, ·1980 
which granted claimant compensation for temporary total disability 
only •. 

On May 27, 19.80 Dr. Wilson reported that there was objective 
evidence of organic neurological problems. The degree of impair­
ment, he. felt, w~s impossible to assess due to the .strong func­
tional overlay preient. Sensory loss was purely subjective, and 
the degree of weakness was out of proportion to claimant's atrophy. 

Claimant is 48 years of age with a high school education. 
His I.Q. is average. Since this induitrial injury of August 1977 
claimant has not returned to work or looked for work. He has 
failed to ~oop~rate in any wai with ~he efforts and recommendation 
for vocational retraining. Claimant has not shown any motivation 
to return to work or for any retraining or to help himself in any 
way to ·return to gainful employme~t. All the medical evidence 
indicates that his impairment is.Moderate and that he is physi­
cally capable of performing li~ht woik. Claimant i~ drawing 
social security disability and seems content with his present 
lifestyle. 

The Board finds that the award granted by the Referee is ex­
cessive. Based on all of the relevant factors, we conclude that 
claimant is entitled to an award of 45% unscheduled disabilitj. 

SAIF raised the issue of offset for its overpayment of tem­
porary total disability based on the Workers' Compensation De­
partment delay in issuing the Determination Order. We find this 
issue is not properly before the Board.· This issue could have 
been raised at the hearing before the Referee and was not. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dat~d November 6, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 144° for 45% unsched­
uled neck d~sability. This award is in lieu of all prior awards. 
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Dr. Misko declared claimant again medically stationary on
November 9, 1979. Dr. Noall thereafter examined and rated claim­
ant's impairment as moderate but claimant could perform light work.

A second Determination Order was issued on January 28, 1980
which granted claimant compensation for temporary total disability
only..

On May 27, 19.80 Dr. Wilson reported that there was objective
evidence of organic neurological problems. The degree of impair­
ment, he, felt, was impossible to assess due to the strong func­
tional overlay present. Sensory loss was purely subjective, and
the degree of weakness was out of proportion to claimant's atrophy

Claimant is 48
His I.Q. is average
claimant has not re
failed to cooperate
for vocational retr
to return to work o
way to return to ga
indicates that his
cally capable of pe
social security dis
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years of age with a high school education.
Since this industrial injury of August 1977

turned to work or looked for work. He has
in any way with the efforts and recommendation
aining. Claimant has not shown any motivation
r for any retraining or to help himself in any
inful employmet^t. All the medical evidence
impairment is moderate and that he is physi-
rforming light work. Claimant is drawing
ability and seems content with his present

The Board finds that the award granted by the Referee is ex­
cessive. Based on all of the relevant factors, we conclude that
claimant is entitled to an award of 45% unscheduled disability.

SAIF raised the issue of offset for its overpayment of tem­
porary total disability based on the Workers' Compensation De­
partment delay in issuing the Determination Order. We find this
issue is not properly before the Board. This issue could have
been raised at the hearing before the Referee and was not.

■ ORDER

The Referee's order dated November 6, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted an award of 144° for 45% unsched­
uled neck disability. This award is in lieu of all prior awards.
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M. WILLIAMS 
Own Motion Order 

WCB 81-0161M 
June 12~ 1981 

_ Claimant, by letter date¢!. May 23, .1981 requested the 
Board to exercise .its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to 
ORS 656.278, :and reopen his claim.for a worsened conqition 
related to his 1969.industrial. injury .. t1aimant 1 s·aggravition 
right~ have ~xpired. · · 

In support of clai~a~t's contention he h~s supplied this 
Board with.medical. reports from Dr. Rockey •. These reports give 
the history of the injury and the subsequent·medical history 
and treatment: The doctor indicates that claimant has suffered 
no new injury_but his back piin has· been gradually progressive 

·due· _to chronic ·-low pack strain and luml;>ar degenerative disc­
disease. • Claimant was finally hospitalized on May 12, l 981. . . . . . . ·, 

The-Board finds that claimant is entitled·to have·his­
claim reopened for a worsened condition commencing upon· the 
date of.his hoipitalization,·~ay 12, 1981 a~rl until closure is 
authorized· ~uisu~ht:to ~RS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORJ;)ERED 

ZELDA M. BAHLER, CLAIMANT 
~- Leslie Bush, Claimant's Attorney 
David 0. Horne, Attorney 
Ga.ry D: Hull, Attorney 
Lang, Klein et al, Attorneys 
Request for Review by;Employer 

WCB 79-06095 
June 15, 1981 

.Reviewed by Board ~embers Barnes and Mccallister. 
. ' 

The employer and its current·carrier, Employers Insurance Co. 
of Wausau, seek Board ieview of ~eferee Leahf 1 s order which set 
aside Wausau's denial and'remanded claimant's claim to pr6cess in 
accordance with ORS 656.268. The issues are compensability, car­
rier.responsibility and the appropriateness of· the Referee's award 
of a· penalty. 

The Bo~rd agrees wit~ and adopts that p6rtion of the· Ref­
eree's orde~:·which found this claim compensable with the foliowing 
additional observation: Although we conclude that the preponder­
ance of the evidence i~ that claimant's relatively stfenuous work 
activity was a material contributing cause of her herniated disc 
and laminectorny, the evidence onty supports our conclusion by the 
narrowest of ·legally po~sible margins. · 

. -]39-

JOSEPH M. WILLIAMS
Own Motion Order

WCB 81-0161M
June 12, 1981

Claimant, by letter dated May 23, 1981 requested the
Board to exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to
ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a worsened condition
related to his 196 9 industrial, injury.. Claimant's aggravation
rights' have expired.

In support of claimant's contention he has supplied this
Board with medical- reports from Dr. Rockey., These reports give
the history of the injury and the subsequent medical history
and treatment. The doctor indicates that claimant has suffered
no new injury but his back pain has been gradually progressive
due to chronic low back strain and lumbar degenerative disC'
disease. ■ Claimant was finally hospitalized on May 12, 1981.

The Board finds that claimant is entitled to have his
claim reopened for a worsened condition commencing upon the
date of his hospitalization,'May 12, 1981 and until closure is
authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278,

' IT IS SO ORDERED

ZELDA M. BAHLER, CLAIMANT WCB 79 06095
L. Leslie Bush, Claimant's Attorney June 15, 1981
David 0. Horne, Attorney
Ga ry DiHiill, Attorney
Lang,.Klein et al, Attorneys
Request for Review by.!Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The employer and its current‘carrier, Employers Insurance Co.
of Wausau, seek Board review of Referee Leahyls order which set
aside Wausau's denial and remanded claimant's claim to process in
accordance with ORS 656.268. The issues are compensability, car­
rier . responsibility and the appropriateness of the Referee's award
of a penalty.

The Board agrees with and adopts that portion of the’ Ref­
eree's order’which found this claim compensable with the following
additional observation: Although we conclude that the preponder­
ance of the evidence is that claimant's relatively strenuous work
activity was a material contributing cause of her herniated disc
and laminectomy, the evidence only supports our conclusion by the
narrowest of legally possible margins.

, ■ ■ . -139-
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carrier responsibility issue arises from the following 
chronology. Aetna Insurance Co. insured the employer until Janu­
ary 1, 1979; Employers of Wausau took over coverage on that date. 
Claimant first experienced intermittent pain in about August or 
September of 1978. However, she continued to work until February 
26, 1979 when the pain became so severe that she lef~ ~ork to seek 
medical ~id. Thus, claimant's first symptoms occurred in 1978 
while A~tna was on the tisk; but the condition first became dis­
abling in" 1979 after Wausau had assumed the risk. We are satis­
fied from the evidence that claimant's work environment after 
Wausau assumed t.he risk could have been a contributing cause of 
her back condition. Under Inkley v. Forest Fiber Products Co., 
288 Or 337, 344 (1980), this means Wausau is responsible for this 
claim. 

The Referee assessed a penalty of 25% against Wausau "of the 
amounts due and unpaid ... for its tardiness in time loss payment 
and in denying." The Board disagrees with both the form and sub­
stance of this part of the Referee's order. 

The claim was filed with Wausau on May 2, 1979. Wausau com­
menced temporary total disability payments on June 4, paying ret­
roactively to May 3 an6 contintiing to pay thereafter until it is­
sued its denial on July 12. Thus, Wausau was technically lati in 
initiating paym~nt of temporary total disability even though it 
corrected this omission by retroactive payment, and a little more 
than a week later in issuing its denial." 

On this record and as a matter of form, the Referee's penalty 
of 25% of "amounts due and unpaid" is too ambiguous. If the Ref~ 
eree was referring to interim compensation due between the claim ·a 
and the deriial, the problem is thai" it does not appear to the W 
Board that there was any amount due and unpaid. If the Referee 
was referring to.some other compensation due and unpaid, the prob-
lem is ~hat it is impossible to tell from his order what this 
other compensation might be. The Board expects greater precision 
in orders of Referees imposing penalties. 

We have two substantive concerns. First, the relevant pen-~ 
alty statute provides "for an additiorial amount up to 25 percent. 
ORS 656.262(8) {emphasis supplied). The Board interprets "up to" 
as mea"n ing the Leg i sla tur e wanted the "punishment to fit the 
crime." Just because there is a maximum possible penalty of 25%, 
it certainly does not follow that the maxim~m penalty is warranted 
for each and every carrier transgression. This Board sees so many 
examples of more extreme carrier transgressions that we conclude 
as a ~atter of law that the maximum penalty is not warranted 'just 
because the first "installment of temporary total di~ability was 
about two weeks late and the denial was about one week late. 

The secorid substantive question ii whether any penalty is 
warranted. Wausau substantially complied with·its statutory 
duties. Also, as noted above, ·between the date of the cl-aim and 
the date" of the denial, the available medical evidence weakly at 
best documented any connection between ~laimant's work activity 
and back condition. Under these circumstances, the Board con­
cludes Wausau's conduct was not so unreasonable as to warrant a 
Penaltv. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated June 13, 1980 is modified to 
eliminate the penalty imposed and affirmed in all other respects. 

The carrier responsibility issue arises from the following
chronology. Aetna Insurance Co. insured the employer until Janu­
ary 1, 1979; Employers of Wausau took over coverage on that date.
Claimant first experienced intermittent pain in about August or
September of 1978, However, she continued to work until February
26, 1979 when the pain became so severe that she left work to seek
medical aid. Thus, claimant's first symptoms occurred in 1978
while Aetna was on the risk; but the condition first became dis­
abling in 1979 after Wausau had assumed the risk. We are satis­
fied from the evidence that claimant's work environment after
Wausau assumed the risk could have been a contributing cause of
her back condition. Under Inkley v. Forest Fiber Products Co.,
288 Or 337, 344 (1980), this means Wausau is responsible for this
claim.

The Referee
amounts due and u
and in denying."
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in issuing its denial.

On this record and as a matter of form, the Referee's penalty
of 25% of "amounts due and unpaid" is too ambiguous. If the Ref­
eree was referring to interim compensation due between the claim
and the denial, the problem is that it does not appear to the
Board that there was any amount due and unpaid. If the Referee
was referring to,some other compensation due and unpaid, the prob­
lem is that it is impossible to tell from his order what this
other compensation might be. The Board expects greater precision
in orders of Referees imposing penalties.

We have two substantive concerns. First, the relevant pen-^
alty statute provides "for an additional amount up to 25 percent.
ORS 656.262(8) (emphasis supplied). The Board interprets "up to"
as meaning the Legislature wanted the "punishment to fit the
crime." Just because there is a maximum possible penalty of 25%,
it certainly does not follow that the maximum penalty is warranted
for each and every carrier transgression. This Board sees so many
examples of more extreme carrier transgressions that we conclude
as a matter of law that the maximum penalty is not warranted just
because the first installment of temporary total disability was
about two weeks late and the denial was about one week late.

The second substantive question is whether any penalty is
warranted. Wausau substantially complied with-its statutory
duties. Also, as noted above, 'between the date of the claim and
the date, of the denial, the available medical evidence weakly at
best documented any connection between claimant's work activity
and back condition. Under these circumstances,
eludes Wausau's conduct was not so unreasonable
penaltv.

ORDER

the Board con-
as to warrant a

The order of the Referee dated June 13, 1980 is modified to
eliminate the penalty imposed and affirmed in all other respects



    
        
     

    
   

      

         
       

            
          

         
          
         

       
           
            
         
         
  

          
          
          

         
            

         
            
             
             
            
            
             
             
          
          
           
  

           
           
           
           
            
      

BRITT, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi, Wilson· et al ,· C1 a imant I s Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Def~nse Attorney 
Reque~t,foi·Review by SAIF · · 
Cross Request by Claimant· 

WCB 80-09438 
June 15, 1981 

Re~iew~a by Boa~a·M~mbiis Mccallister antj Lewis. 

The ~AIF CorporatioD (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee 
Menashe's'.order directing that claiman~'s tempo~ary total disabil­
ity benefits be computed on the b~sis of a regular five-day a.week 
employment .as defined l?Y ORS 656. 210 (2). SAIF contends that the 
proper basis pf .computation is claimant's actual average weekly 
wage under subsection (a} or (c) of OAR 436-54-212(2) ~hich pro­
vides _for. ~orkers employed with 11 uns~hecluled, irregul~r- or_ no· 
earnings." · · 

. Claif[lant cross-appeals,. seeking review of the Referee• s award .. 
of at~~~i,ey fe~s,' co~tending that the fee should- have.been awarded 
in addition. to and· not out of the c·ompensation~. and that claimant 
should h!=',ve peen. granted penal ties a'nd additional attorney fees o·n 
the ground that the insurer ·unreasona·bly denied adequate· temporary.· 
total disability _p~nE:f its_. · · · 

. . . ' 

The issues are-determination of the proper rate of temporary 
·total disal;>ility compensation, 'attorney's: fees .and ·enti,tlement to . 
. penalties ·and fees. With only minor exception, "the part,ies a·cc~pt 
as accurate the .Referee·' s· statement of the facts. Appellant ar­
gues~ however, that.·the·facts.do not_suppo~t _the c~nqlusiori of the 
Referee. . ·: • · · · 

In early December 1979, the .employe.r agreed that the claim­
ant's brother·shouia convey a message·to claimant that he would be 
hired-as a laborer on ernploy~r's plasterin~ crew if_ he would re-. 
port to work the next morning. The employer knew that to no so 
claimant would need to quit his f~ll-time night job at a lumber 
mill. It was understood by the claimant and his brother that the 
work on the new job would be as full-time as the variqus projects 
would allolf, and that the claimant would· be paid $5 an hour .. Be­
cause the ·number of hours abtuaily w6rked by claimant· depe~ded 
upon the availability of work to be 0 done and weather condl~ioris, 
.the employer could make no ·guarantees, as to how steady the employ-
ment would.be.· · 

• 
Relying upon the understanding that the work would be as· 

steady as his brother 1 s·who had w6rked for the· employer for sev­
eral years, claimant quit his full~tim~ night job and reported to 
work ~?r the employer. Th~-actual .number-of hours actually worked 
by claimant prior to his March 26, 1980 inju~~ are shown on Exhi­
bit· A. attached· hereto and incorporated herein. 

-141-
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ELDON BRITT, CLAIMANT WCB 80 09438
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys June 15, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request.for Review by SAIF
Cross Request by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee
Menashe's order directing that claimant’s temporary total disabil­
ity benefits be computed on the basis of a regular five-day a.week
employment ,as defined by ORS 656.210(2). SAIF contends that the
proper basis of computation is claimant's actual average weekly
wage under subsection (a) or (c) of OAR 436-54-212(2) which pro­
vides for, workers employed with "unscheduled, irregular or no
earnings,"

Claimant cross-appealsseeking review of the Referee's award,
of attorney fees, contending that the fee should have been awarded
in addition to and- not out of the compensation,, and that claimant
should have beengranted penalties and additional attorney fees on
the ground that the insurer unreasonably denied adequate temporary,
total disability benefits.

The issues are determination of the proper rate of temporary
total disability compensation, attorney' s' fees and enti tlement to.
penalties and fees. With only minor exception, the parties acce;pt
as accurate the Referee' s■statement of the facts. Appellant ar­
gues, however, that the facts do not support the conclusion of the
Referee.

In early December 1979, the .employer agreed that the claim­
ant's brother should convey a message to claimant that he would be
hired as a laborer on employer's plastering crew if he would re-
port to work the next morning. The employer knew that to do so
claimant would need to quit his full-time night job at a lumber
mill. It was understood by the claimant and his brother that the
work on the new job would be as full-time as the various projects
would allow, and that the claimant would be paid $5 an hour. , Be­
cause the number of hours actually worked by claimant depended
upon the availability of work to be'done and weather conditions,
the employer could make no guarantees as to how steady the employ­
ment would be.

Relying upon the understanding that the work would be as ■
steady as his brother's who had worked for the employer for sev­
eral years, claimant quit his full-time night job and reported to
work for the employer. The actual number of hours actually worked
by claimant prior to his March 26, 1980 injury are shown on Exhi­
bit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.
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administrative rule relie9 upon by SAIF, OAR 346-54-212 
provides for ~mployment wi£h "unschedul~d, irregular or no earn­
ings." Subsecti6n (a) of that rule -refers to workers who are em­
ployed on an "on'-call ba.sis." Subsection (c) refers to workers 
with unscheduled, irregular or no earnings who work "varying 
hours, shifts or wages." OAR 346-54-005(11} defines 11 on-call 11 to 
mean '1sporadic, unscheduled employment ·on-call by an employer with 
no right of reprisal if employee unavoilable." The word "spor­
adic" means occurring only occasionally, singly or in scattered 
instan~es. Webster's Third New lnterriational Unabridged Diction-~-

The Board concurs with the Referee's opinion which stated: 

11 Clairnant initially worked seven weeks; 
during this period were the Chri~tmas and 
New Year's holidays and the ice storm. He 
was then laid off for about two weeks. 
Upon being recalled claimant worked six 
weeks before sustaining the injury. During 
this latter segment he worked three weeks 
of 24 hours each and then 37, 35 and 40 
hours, respectively. This pattern does not 
reflect sporadic unscheduled employment in-
dicative 6f someone employed to be avail-
able on-call to come in at unscheduled 
times or fill in in an emergency; but in-
stead a consistent on-going steady employ-
ment relationship. The impression I have 
from listening to the witnesses is that 
rather than being on call, claimant was an 
integral part of the employer's crew,_ em-
ployed to work regularly as long as work 
was available. I conclude claimant was not 
employed on-call and the administrative 
rule relied on by SAIF is not applicable to 
this case. · 

"The statute quoted above (ORS 656.210(2) 
defines regularly employed to mean avail­
able for such employment, in addition to 
actual. employment. A reasonable 

inference from the evidence is that both 
parties expected claimant to be available ... 
to work up to 40 hours a week. He quit an­
other job to take the one at Portland Plas­
tering, had no other em~loyrnent during the 
period and was so available. Furthermore, 
he w~rked 40 hours or close to 40 hours per 
week on some w~eks. 

"~on~idering the sketchy conversations and 
the conduct of the parties during the 
course of employment, I conclude claimant. 
was regularly employed as defin~a by ORS 
656.210, five days a week." · 

-142-
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rule relied upon by SAIF, OAR 346-54-212
with "unscheduled, irregular or no earn-
f that rule refers to workers who are em-
sis." Subsection (c) refers to workers
lar or no earnings who work "varying

OAR 346-54-005(11) defines "on-call" to
led employment on-call by an employer with
employee unavailable." The word "spor-
ly occasionally, singly or in scattered
ird New International Unabridged Diction-

The Board concurs with the Referee's opinion which stated:

"Claimant initially worked seven weeks;
during this period were the Christmas and
New  ear’s holidays and the ice storm. He
was then laid off for about two weeks.

■ Upon being recalled claimant worked six
weeks before sustaining the injury. During
this latter segment he worked three weeks
of 24 hours each and then 37, 35 and 40
hours, respectively. This pattern does not
reflect sporadic unscheduled employment in­
dicative of someone employed to be avail­
able on-call to come in at unscheduled
times or fill in in an emergency; but in­
stead a consistent on-going steady employ­
ment relationship. The impression I have
from listening to the witnesses is that
rather than being on call, claimant was an
integral part of the employer's crew, em­
ployed to work regularly as long as work
was available. I conclude claimant was not
employed on-call and the administrative
rule relied on by SAIF is not applicable to
this case.

"The statute quoted above (ORS 656.210(2)
defines regularly employed to mean avail­
able for such employment, in addition to
actual, employment. A reasonable

inference from the evidence is that both
parties expected claimant to be availal:ile *
to work up to 40 hours a week. He quit an­
other job to take the one at Portland Plas­
tering, had no other employment during the
period and was so available. Furthermore,
he worked 40 hour's or close to 40 hours per
week on some weeks.
"Considering the sketchy conversations and
the conduct of the parties during the
course of employment, I conclude claimant,
was regularly employed as defined by ORS
656.210, five days a week."

-142-
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On the issue of an appropriate awarci foi attorney fees, the 
Board disagrees with claimant's assertion that fees shoulci have 
been awarded in addition to, but not out of the additional tempor­
ary disability compensation award~d by the Refeiee. OAR 
436-47-030 states: 

"In a proceeding before a referee requested 
by claimant, if additional temporary dis­
ability is awarded by th~ referee-, the ref­
eiee may approve attorney fees equal to: · 

(1) Twenty-five percent of any addi­
ti6rial temporary disabilit~ awarded, ~ot to 

-exceed $750;" 

The Board concludes that the Referee's award· of attorney's fees 
was appropriate and proper. 

Concerning penalties and fees for .unreasonable conduct, re- -
quested by the claimant, the Board agrees wi-th .the· Referee's con­
clusion th~t th~ ci-rcumstances of the employm~nt relationship were 
such that~ teasonable basis existed to question what f_ate of tem­
poiary disability compensation should be ap~iied and that the in­
surer's conduct was not such as ~o warrant impos;tiori of a penalty. 

ion 
The Board, after de nova review, affirms and adopts the Opin­

and Ordet of .the Referee. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated December 2, 1980 is affirmed. 

Attorney's fees are hereby awarded to claimant's attorney in 
the sum of $500 for prevailing on the insurer's appeal to the 
Board, pursuant to OAR 4}6-47-055. 

Payroll Period 

12-12-79 
12-19-79 
12-26.:..79 

1-2-.80 
1-9-80 
1-16-80 
1-23-80 

2-13-80 
2.,.20-so 
2-27-80 
3.-5-80 

·3-12-80 
3-19-80_. 

3-26-80 
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!!ours 

t\O 
2 <1 

24 

23 
23 
14 
13 

24 
24 
24 
37 
34 
40 

EXHIBLT A 

6 (injury March 21, 1980) 

m

On the issue of an appropriate award for attorney fees, the-
Board disagrees with claimant's assertion that fees,should have
been awarded-in addition to, but not out of the additional tempor­
ary disability compensation awarded by the Referee. OAR
436-47-030 states:

"In a proceeding before a referee requested
, by claimant, if additional temporary dis­
ability is awarded by the referee, the ref­
eree may approve attorney fees equal to:

. (1) Twenty-five percent of any addi­
tional temporary disability awarded, not to
exceed $750;"

The Board concludes that the Referee's award of attorney’s fees
was appropriate and proper.

Concerning penalties and fees for ^unreasonable conduct, re-
quested by the claimant, the Board agrees with the Referee's con-
elusion that the circumstances of the employment relationship were
such that a reasonable basis existed to question what rate of tem­
porary disability compensation should be applied and that the in­
surer's conduct was not such as to warrant imposition of a penalty

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the Opin­
ion and Order of the Referee.

'ORDER

The Referee's order dated December 2, 1980 is affirmed.

Attorney's fees are hereby awarded to claimant's attorney in
the sum of $500 for prevailing on the insurer's appeal to the
Board, pursuant to OAR 436-47-055.

Payroll Period

12-12-79
12-19-79
12-26-79

1-2-80
1-9-80
1-16-80
1- 23-80

2- 13-80
2-20-80
2- 27-80
3- 5-80
3-12-80
3-19-80,

3-26-80

Hours

40
24
24

23
2 3
14
13

24
24

■ 24
37
34
40

EXHIBIT A

6  i.njury March 21, 1980)
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CARMICHAEL, CLAIMANT 
· Evoh.l Malagon, Claimant's- Attorney 
SAIF Corp legaJ, ·oefense Attorney 
Request for-Review by SAIF 

WCB 80-06887 and 80-06029 
June 15, 1981 

Reviewed by Board·Members Barnes and Lewis. 

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of that por­

tion of Referee Danner 1 s order which granted claimant an addi-

. tional amount of 25% of all compensation benefits due tci·claimant 

because of SAIF's unreasonable refusal to pay compensation pur­

suant to ORS 656. 262 (8) • 

SAIF's contention is that a penalty against an employer/ 

carrier cannot be granted unless claimant gives notic~ that he is 

claiming such a penalty in· his ieguest for hearing or raises the 

issue at the hearing. We agree. See Mavis v. SAIF, 45· Or App 
1059 (1980}. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated November •19, _1980 is modified. The 

Refere~•s award of an additional amourit of 25% of all compensation 

benefits d~e as an~ for a ~enalty pu~suant to ORS 656.262(8) is 
reversed.· 

·. TERRY DORSEY, CLAIMANT 
James Francesconi, Claimant 1 s:Attorney 
SAIF ~orp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

WCB 80-00274 
June 15, 1$81 

Reviewe~ by Board Members Barnes and McCallister. 

_The SAIF Corporation (SAIF} seeks Board review of Referee 

Ail's ord~r which set aside its denial of claimant's aggravation 

claim and imposed a penalty and attorney fee for SAIF's 

unr-easonable conduct. No party has filed. a brief.- The issues, as 

the Board understands them on de novo review, are whether the 

evidence establishes claimant's aggravation claim, the du~ation of 

claimant's entitlement to interim compensation and whether 

penalties and attorney fees are warranted.· 

ORS 656.273(7) provides: "If the evid~nce as a whole shows a 

worsening of the claimant's condition, the faggravationJ claim 

shall be allowed." The Board agrees with the Referee that the 

.evidence -as a whole, most notably Dr. Blosser 1 s March 24, 1980 

report, shows a worsening of the claimant's condition. -
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ROBERT CARMICHAEL, CLAIMANT
Evohl Mai agon, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80 06887 and 80 06029
June 15, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of that por­
tion of Referee Danner's order which granted claimant an addi­
tional amount of 25% of all compensation benefits due to claimant
because of SAIF's unreasonable refusal to pay compensation pur­
suant to ORS 656.262(8),

SAIF's contention is that a penalty against an employer/
carrier cannot be granted unless claimant gives notice that he is
claiming such a penalty in his request for hearing or raises the
issue at the hearing. We agree. See Mavis v. SAIF, 45‘ Or App
1059 (1980).

ORDER

The Referee's order dated November '19, 1980 is modified. The
Referee's award of an additional amount of 25% of all compensation
benefits due as and for a penalty pursuant to ORS 656.262(8) is
reversed.

. TERR DORSE , CLAIMANT WCB 80 00274 v
James Francesconi, Claimant's Attorney June 15, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee
Ail's order which set aside its denial of claimant's aggravation
claim and imposed a penalty and attorney fee for SAIF's
unreasonable conduct. No party has filed, a brief.- The issues, as
the Board understands them on de novo review, are whether the
evidence establishes claimant's aggravation claim, the duration of
claimant's entitlement to interim compensation and whether
penalties and attorney fees are warranted.

ORS 656.273(7) provides: "If the evidence as a whole shows a
worsening of the claimant's condition, the [aggravation] claim
shall be allowed." The Board agrees with the Referee that the
■evidence as a whole, most notably Dr. Blosser's March 24, 1980
report, shows a worsening of the claimant's condition.
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duration ot claimant's entitlement to tempor~ry t6tal 
disability and possible entitl~ment to ·a penai·ty largely dep.end on 
a common issue: The effect to be given to SAIF's ·Januaiy 24, 1980 
deni?l. The Referee identified Dr. Blosser's November 29, 1979 
report as the aggravation claim.. We· as sum~ that is correct for 
sake of discussion. SAIF iss6ed a de~ial pn Jariu~ry .24, 1980. · So 
;ar that wou~~ appe~r to· be timely. · 

The Referee, however, reasoned· that:· (1) Since SAIF 1 s' 
·Jahuary 24···1~~~~i di~ not i~clude nofice of a~p~al right~, it.was 
·not "an.effective denial;~ (2) therefoie, there was-~o timely 
"ef feet i ve 11 -denial; ·, 3.) therefore, SAIF' s duty, to pay interim . 
compensation, which would have otherwise ended· upon issuance of .an 
11 effective" denial, continued to the date of the hearing: and ·(4) 
SAIF was also liable fqr a penalty and attorney fees for lat'e . ,: 
denial. The Board does·not agree that ~AIF's failure to;include 

·notice of appeal rights ·iri its ,January 24· letter renner.s .that·· 
document meanihgles~. The notice of appeal riqhts is;· of course,· 
to· iriform ~ worker of tho~e- righ~s so the work~r can decide 

whether to exercise them. But ·in this ~ase the.claimant had 
requested a hearing on January 22, 1980-~two days before SAIF's 
denial. Claimant was rather obviously~ th~refore, not prejudiced 
b~ SAIF's failure to include notice· of appeal rights that had 
already been exercised. · 

l't follows, in .·our opinion,· that SI\ IF'' s January 2 4 cien i al was 
"effective" and, therefo~e, timely to deny the November 29 claim. 
It further follows that SAiF's d~ty_to pay interim•compensation 
ended on January 24. and there is no basts for assessment of a 
penalty_ for a .late den~ai because the_ denial was ti.m_ely •. 

Claimant was nevertheless entitled to payment of interim 
compensatiori betweeri dat~ of claim and date of denial. SAIF did 
not do so. A penalty will be ass~ssed on this bas~s only. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated July 18, 1980 is modified to reduce 
SAIF's liability for interim c~mpensation to 'the period between 
Novemper 29, 1979 and January·_ 24, 1980; to reduce the penalty 
imposed to 25% of that amount~ and to eliminate the attorney fee 
awarded for 11 unreasonable conduct." In all oth~r ·reipects the 
Referee's ordei is a(firmed. 
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The duration ot claimant's entitlement to temporary total
disability and possible entitlement to-a penalty largely depend on
a common issue: The effect to be given to SAIF's January 24, 1980
denial. The Referee identified Dr. Blosser's November 29, 1979
report as the aggravation claim. We assume that is correct for
sake of discussion. SAIF issued a denial on January .24, 1980. So
far that would appear to be timely.

The Referee, however, reasoned that:
January 24 letter did not include notice o
not "an effective denial;". (2) therefore,
"effective" denial; (3) therefore, SAIF's
compensation, which would have otherwise e
"effective" denial, continued to the date
SAIF was also liable for a penalty and att
denial. The Board does'not agree that SAI
notice of appeal rights in its January 24
document meaningless. The notice of appea
to inform a worker of those rights so the

(1) Since SAIF's
f appeal rights, it.was
there was no timely
duty to pay interim
nded upon issuance of an
of the hearing; and (4)
orney fees for late ‘
F's failure to include
letter renders that
1 rights is, of course,
worker can decide

whether to exercise them. But in this case the claimant had
requested a hearing on January 22, 1980--two days before SAIF's
denial. Claimant was rather obviously, therefore, not prejudiced
by SAIF's failure to include notice of appeal rights that had
already been exercised.

It follows, in.our opinion, that SAIF's January 24 denial was
"effective" and, therefore, timely to deny the November 29 claim.
It further follows that SAIF's duty to pay interim compensation
ended on January 24. and there is no basis for assessment of a
penalty for a .late denial because the denial was timely..

Claimant was nevertheless entitled to payment of interim
compensation between date of claim and date of denial. SAIF did
not do so. A penalty will be assessed on this basis only.

. ' ORDER

The Referee's order dated July 18, 1980 is modified to reduce
SAIF's liability for interim compensation to the period between
NovemJ^er 29, 1979 and January 24, 1980; to reduce the penalty
imposed to 25% of that amount; and to eliminate the attorney fee
awarded for "unreasonable conduct." In all other respects the
Referee's order is affirmed.
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FLAHERTY, CLAIMANT 
David Goulder, Claimant's Attorney 
Mertin & Saltveit, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Employer 

~/CB 80-01642 
June 15, 1981 

Revi~wed by Board Members McCallister and Lewi~ • 

. The employer seeks Board review of Referee Ail's order which 
granted claimaht an increased award of compens~tion for a total 
equal to 80°.for 25% unscheduled disability for injury to his low 
back. The employer contends the award granted by_ the Referee is 
excessive. 

tlaimant sustained a compensable low back injury on Septemb~r 
18, 1978. He •is 46 years of age and has ·a high school education 
together with. one semester of college. He has worked for the em­
ployer for 25 years chiefly as a pressm~n .. The general consensus 
of the.doctors iho have examined claimant is that he should avoid 
repetitive bending, stoopi.ng, twisting and lifting. They feel his 
lifting should be ·limited to approximately 50 pounds. It is also 
agreed tha~.claimant probably should not continu~ to do his regu­
lai job as· that requiies some lifting of a~out 80 pounds and some 
bending, reaching and ciimbing. Because of claimant'.s seniority 
and wage and retirement benefits, he has chosen to continue to do 

· the same work with some pain •. Claimant wears a hack brace when he 
works which seems to help a great de_al. His impairment has been ~ 
rated at- 10%. Based on the evidence, we conclude the award gran- • 
ted by the Referee was excessive. Claimant was granted no perman-
ent partial d·isability by· the January 25, 1980 Determination Or-
der.· We conclude·a more proper evaluation of claimant's disabil-
ity is represented in the·arnount -~gual to 48° for 15% unscheduled 
disability for his lciw back injury. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated Nbvember 20, 1980 is modified. 

Claimant is hereby granted compensation equal to 48° ·for 15% 
unscheduled disability for injury to his low back. This award is 
in lieu of that granted by the Refer~e in his order which, in all 
other respects, is affirmed. 
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THOMAS FLAHERT , CLAIMANT
David Goulder, Claimant's Attorney
Mertin & Saitveit, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 80-01642
June 15, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Ail's order which
granted claimant an increased award of compensation for a total
equal to 80° for 25% unscheduled disability for injury to his low
back. The employer contends the award granted by the Referee is
excessive.

Claimant sustained a compensable low back injury on September
18, 1978. He is 46 years of age and has a high school education
together with, one semester of college. He has worked for the em­
ployer for 25 years chiefly as a pressman,. The general consensus
of the doctors who have examined claimant is that he should avoid
repetitive bending, stooping, twisting and lifting. They feel his
lifting should be limited to approximately 50 pounds. It is also
agreed that.claimant probably should not continue to do his regu­
lar job as that requires some lifting of about 80 pounds and some
bending, reaching and climbing. Because of claimant's seniority
and wage and retirement benefits, he has chosen to continue to do
the same work with some pain.. Claimant wears a back brace when he
works which seems to help a great deal. His impairment has been
rated at 10%. Based on the evidence, we conclude the award gran­
ted by the Referee was excessive. Claimant was granted no perman­
ent partial disability by the January 25, 1980 Determination Or­
der. We conclude a more proper evaluation of claimant's disabil­
ity is represented in the amount equal to 48° for 15% unscheduled
disability for his low back injury.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated November 20, 1980 is modified.

Claimant is hereby granted compensation equal to 48° for 15%
unscheduled disability for injury to his low back. This award is
in lieu of that granted by the Referee in his order which, in all
other respects, is affirmed.

m
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D. JONES, CLAIMANT . WCB ao:.04839 
Pozzi, Wilson ef''"IiT;'--~l'a'fma·nt Is. Attor:neys 
Paul Roess; Defense Attorney · 

. · ., .. ,, ···· June"15·~· '1981 

Request· for Review-by Employer · :· . ' ' ' . . 

Reiiew~~ by.Boar~ Members McC~llister an~ Lewi~. 

The ·_~mpioyer seeks Boa·ra tevi_"e·w of Ref~re~ 'nafon ':s. ·ordei:­
'which increased claimant:;.' .s l_o_w· back" di sabi 1 i ty· aw a.rd f tom· the· 5% 
uns~heduled~dlsability awarded·by:the betei~iriaiion Or4er ~~tea 
May 16, · .19 80, to_ 4 5%_· .• · · 

· The isstie is the extent of disability resulting from 
.claimant's compensable injui¥.of_March 8, 1977. _- · · 

· Upon ·a.e. -no·vo ·review, the Board affirms and adopts .the:. 
f indi"ngs: ·o·f t"he Ref~ tee. but reaches a d if f e rent coriclus ioh as to' 
the. extent_ ·of disability. In view o_f c~aimanf's age·, ec'fucc1;tion,· . 
work. exper fence; adaptabi 1 i ty and· mental 'capacity, ,the Boa rd . . 
conclude~ iha~ claimint should ~e award~d 25% of' the maximum · · 
compensation -provided by _statute· for his ·unscheduled' low back· 
disability;· · 

ORDER· 

Th~·Referee's o~ae~ dit~a· December 11, 1~80 is modified. 
. . 

Claimant.-i~ h~rebi grant~a an award of 25% permanent pa~~ial 
unscheduled disa•bil.i ty in lieu of. the award of. the Referee o.r of 
the Determinatioi-6rder. Th~·Refere~'s order is.affirmed in all 
o_ther respects. 

KIM KOLLEAS·, CLAIMANT· 
Noreen Sa1tveit, Claimant 1 s Attorrey 
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys· 
Request·for Review·by Claimant 
Cro·ss ~eq~est by E!f1p1oye~ 

WCB 80-06719 
·June 15, 1981 

Reviewed_by--B~ard Members· McCallister and· Lewfs.· 

The clairnaht seeks Board review ~nd the employ~r/carrier ·seek 
cross review of Reteree Menashe's or<le(which affirmed the-Deter-• 
mination Order of July 15, 1980 which granted claimant 12·.l O for 
55% loss O of . the left middle f i n"ger and granted claim.ant addition a 1 
compensation for te~porary total disa6ility from Jun~ 20,. 1980 to'. 
August i,. 1980. ·The.claimant.contends that the··award should be to 
the left hand~ ·no_t the finger. The employer/carrier contends that_ 
claimant i~ not ·entitl~d-to additional compensation fQr· temporijry 
tota~ di~abi~ity. , 
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HAROLD D. JONES., CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et“aT;'"Cla'irnant'^
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney
Request for Review'by Employer

Attorneys
WCB 80-04839
June“T5'i 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis,

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Daron’s, order
which increased claimant’s low back disability' award from'the- 5%
unscheduled.disability awarded by the Determination Order dated
May 16 , ,19 80 to 4 5%,

The issue is the extent of disability resulting from
claimant's compensable injury of March 8, 1977. •

Upon de. novo review, the Board affirms and adopts the. :
findings of the Referee but reaches a different conclusion as to
the extent of disability. In view of claimant's age, education,
work experience, adaptability and mental'capacity, the Board
concludes that claimant should be awarded 25% of the maximum
compensation-provided by statute for his unscheduled low back
disability.- - ‘ ...

#
ORDER

. The-Referee' s order dated December 11, 1980 is modified.

Claimant, is hereby granted an award of 25% permanent partial
unscheduled disability in lieu of the award of . the Referee or of
the Determination Order. The Referee’s order is affirmed in all
other respects.

KIM KOLLEAS, CLAIMANT . WCB 80 06719
Noreen Saltveit. Claimant's Attorney June 15. 1981 .
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Claimant
Cross Request by Employer

Reviewed,by Board Members McCallister and- Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review and the employer/carrier seek
cross review of Referee Menashe’s order which affirmed the-Deter­
mination Order of July 15, 1980 which granted claimant 12.1® for
55% loss'of the left middle finger and granted claimant additional
compensation for temporary total disability from June' 20,. 1980 to
August 1,1980. The claimant contends that the award should be to
the left hand, not the finger. The employer/carrier contends that
claimant is not entitled to additional compensation for temporary
total disability. , . \
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Button was claimant's treating physician after claimant 1 s 
injury at Consolidated Freightways on·January 28, 1980. The diag- a 
nosis made was laceration of the left mi~dle tinger with probable W 
severance of the medial digital nerve.". Dr~ Button performed re-
pair surgery on Febr~ary 17, 1980 

By a report dated June 20, 1980 Dr. Button indicated that ~e 
felt it unlikely that claimant would regain full s~nsation to the 
digit due· to the infection he de~eloped to· the flexor'tendon 
sheath. Dr. Button found claimant's condition was medically sta~ 
tionary and he could return to modified work with no liftinq ov~r 
25 pounds as the only restriction for a period oi three weeks. He 
r~ted claimant's imp~irmept of the finger at 44% or 9% of a hand. 

The Referee found that ciairnant had fiiled :to prove that h~ 
had any loss greater than loss of function of the left middle · · 
finger and that the award grante~ by· the riet~rmination Or<ler to 
the finger wa~ prop~r~ We concur. 

On the issue of clai~ant's entitle~ent to•additional compensa~ 
tion for temporary total disability. we find claimant 'is not en­
titled to the compensation for tempor~ry total disability qranted 
b~ the Referee. ,Claimant was released fo~-modified .work on·J~ne 
20, 1979~ At that time the employer had a generalized layoff and 
clai~ant was among those laid off. Around August 1980 .clai~ant 
applied for unemployrnen~ benefiti. · 

The Referee granted compensation for temporary total dis-- fii 
ability f~orn June 20 to August 1, 1980. We lind, ~ased~on the 
eviderice that Dr. Button found claimant's condlti6n\medically sta-
tionary and releas~~ him for modifi~d work on Jun~.20, 1979 ~ith a 
lifting restriction .of. 25 pounds foe three \-\leeks. We find that if 
the employer h~d not had·. the lay-off _clairnanf would have returryed _ 
to work and at the end-of three -weeks the work restriction would 
have ended. · Aside from that fact, claimant testified that his, job 
required rio 1{f(ing. · Based on this we fin8 claimant not entitled 
to compensation for temporary ~otal disability benef!ts: 

ORDER 

The Referee's order ·dated· December 2, 1980 'is modified. 

The Determination ,Order of July 15, 1980 is affirmed. 

The remainder of the ~eferee's order is reversed. 
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Dr. Button was claimant's treating physician after claimant’s
injury at Consolidated Freightways on January 28, 1980. The diag­
nosis made was laceration of the left middle finger with probable
severance of the medial digital nerve. Dr. Button performed re­
pair surgery on February 17, 1980

By a report dated June 20, 1980 Dr. Button indicated that he
felt it unlikely that claimant would regain full sensation to the
digit due to the infection he developed to the flexor tendon
sheath. Dr. Button found claimant’s condition was medically sta­
tionary and he could return to modified work with no lifting over
25 pounds as the only restriction for a period of three weeks. He
rated claimant's impairment of the finger at 44% or 9% of a hand.

The Referee found that claimant had failed to prove that he
had any loss greater than loss of function of the left middle
finger and that the award granted by the Determination Order to
the finger was proper. We concur.

On the issue of claimant's entitlement to additional compensa
tion for temporary total disability we find claimant is not en­
titled to the compensation for temporary total disability aranted
by the Referee. Claimant was released for modified work on June
20, 1979. At that time the employer had a generalized layoff and
claimant was among those laid off. Around August 1980 claimant
applied for unemployment benefits.

The Refe
ability from
evidence that
tionary and r
lifting restr
the employer
to work and a
have ended,
required no 1
to compensati

ree granted compensation for temporary total dis-
June 20 to August 1, 1980. We find, based on the
Dr. Button found claimant's condition'medically sta-
eleased him for modified work on June , 20, 1979 with a
iction of. 25 pounds for. three weeks. We find that if
had not had . the lay-off .claimant would have returned
t the end'of three weeks the work restriction would
Aside from that fact, claimant testified that his,job
ifting. Based on this we find claimant not entitled
on for temporary total disability benefits.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated December 2, 1980 is modified

The Determination Order of July 15, 1980 is affirmed.

The remainder of the Referee’s order is reversed.
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LEROY F. LUCAS, CLAIMANT 
M;D. Van Valkenburgh, .Claimant's Attorney 
William Replogle, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Employer 

WCB 79-02653 
June i5, 1981 

Eeviewed by Board.Members.Barnes and Mccallister. 

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Leahy's order 
which remanded claimant's ·claim for his bruised riqht forearm to 
the ernploy~r an~ it~ insurer for acceptance ~nd payment cif-bene­
fits as provided by law~ 

The Boaid, after de novo review, reverses the Opinion and 
Order of the Referee. 

The• claimant was eating his lunch during a regularly sche~~ 
uled l~nch break in the tool room. ~lth6ugh lunch ro6~s were·Rr6-

_vided by the employer, the employer; allowed those -work-ing in the· 
Boring mill to eat their lunch in the tool ·room. 

While-the claimant ate his lunch, a radi~ played just.above 
his head at a low volume·. Another employee, Lyle K. Warner, who 
was also eating his lunch in .the tool room, turned th~ radio vol­
ume up in order to.hear it over noise made by;a heater. 

Within 30 secorids the· claimant turned the radio off,,turned 
it down and/or unplugged it. With _that, Warner· picked up the ra-

_ dio and threw it to the flocir. The radio struck the claimant's 
tight forearm on the way_down, causing the forearm t6 bruise. The 
radio was not intentionally thrown at claimant. 

The Referee based his order on Larson's Workmen's Compensa~ 
tion Law, Section 11 entitled, "As~aults." I~ is not clear which 
of several theories state~ in Section 11 is.the one upon which the 
Referee relied. 

· The cases·- c i tea in ·the Sect ion relate to incidents where 'a 
person intentionally assaulted the claimant~ or where the claimant 
himself was the physical aggressor in a conflict resulting in the 
clalmant'_s injury; In this case, neither the cJ.aimant's nor War­
ner's actions rise to the level of physical assault d~scribed 

1n Section 11. 

The basic issue is whether "the relationship b~tween the in­
jury. and the employment [is} sufficient that the injury_ should be 
compensable." Rogers v. SAIF, 28~ Or 633, 642, (1980). Factors 
such as whether the injury occurred "in the course of employment," 
or.whether the injury was "arising out of employment" are used on 
a sliding scale to determine if either factor is stronq enouqh in 
the claimant's favor to m~ke·the claim compensable. T~e Roq~rs 
court ~ites Larson 1 s ireatise at 289 Or 643 (Footnote 3). Section 
29.10 in Larson's states: . 
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LERO F. LUCAS, CLAIMANT
M.D. Van Valkenburgh, Claimant's Attorney
William Replogle, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 79-02653
June 15, 1981

Reviewed by Board'Members,Barnes and McCallister,

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Leahy's order
which remanded claimant's claim for his bruised right forearm to
the employer and its insurer for acceptance and payment of bene­
fits as provided by law.

The Board, after de novo review, reverses the Opinion and
Order of the Referee.

The claimant was eating his lunch during a regularly sched­
uled lunch break in the tool room. Although lunch rooms were pro­
vided by the employer, the employer' allowed those working in the
Boring mill to eat their lunch in the tool room.

While the claimant ate his lunch, a radio played just,above
his head at a low volume. Another employee, Lyle K. Warner, who
was also eating his lunch in the tool room, turned the radio vol­
ume up in order to hear it over noise made by*a heater.

Within 30 seconds the claimant turned the radio off,'turned
it down and/or unplugged it. With that, Warner picked up the ra­
dio and threw it to the floor. The radio struck the claimant's
right forearm on the way down, causing the forearm to bruise. The
radio was not intentionally thrown at claimant.

The Referee based his order on Larson's Workmen's Compensa­
tion Law, Section 11 entitled, ''Assaults," It is not clear which
of several theories stated in Section 11 is.the one upon which the
Referee relied. , -

The casescited in the Section relate to incidents where a
person intentionally assaulted the claimant, or where the claimant
himself was the physical aggressor in a conflict resulting in the
claimant's injury. In this case, neither the claimant's nor War­
ner's actions rise to the level of physical assault described
in Section 11.

The basic issue is whether "the relationship between the in­
jury. and the employment (isj sufficient that the injury should be
compensable." Rogers v. SAIF, 289 Or 633, 642, (1980), Factors
such as whether the injury occurred "in the course of employment,"
or-whether the injury was "arising out of employment" are used on
a sliding scale to determine if either factor is strong enough in
the claimant's favor to make-the claim compensable. The Rogers
court cites Larson's Treatise at 289 Or 643 (Footnote 3). Section
29.10 in Larson's states:
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is almost tempted to formulate a so~t 
of quantum theory of work-connection that a 
~ertain.minimurn quantum of work-connection 
must be- shown, arid if the "course". quantity 
is very small, but the 1iarising 1.' quantity 

-is large, the g~antum will add up the nec­
essary minimum, as·it will also when the 
"arising~ quantity is very small but the 
"course"-quantity_ is relatively large. 

"But if both the "course" and "arising 11 

quantities are small, the minimum quantum. 
will not be met." 

The rest of the cited section gives examples, one of which 
seems particularly on point. In the case of Shultt v. Nation 
Associates, 281 App Div 915, 119 NYS2d 673 (1953), compensation 
was denied to an empl~yee who, while combing her hair before going 
to lurich~ negligently ~tiuck her eye with the comb. All the fac­
tors .were weak. As to the course of employment· factors dealing 
with time, place and circumstances under which the accident took 
place, the time was a lunch period, the place was not at a work 
station, and the circumstances of the activity were for the pur­
pose of personal appearance. The causal factor was thcit of 
negligence of the employee.· · 

In the present cas~, the "course" factor is in the middle of 
the scaie beca_use it occurred during a r~gularl:y· scheduled lunch 
period, but not at the work ~tation d~ring··work activitiei nor en­
tirely off the ~m~loyer 1 s premises during non-work activities not 
related to the employment. The "arising" factor is negligible or 
non-existant because the volume of the radio in a non-work area 
d~ring·_th¢ lunch period ha~ little to do with work activity. 

This is not to say that injuries occurring on the premises 
during a regular meal break have not been held to be within the 
course of employment. On the contrary, meal time injuries have 
been found to be compensable if the conduct causing the accident 
was work-related,· acquiesced· in by a supervisor, or was directly 
related to preparation of .lu!"}ch food or. beverages· (such as by 
heating or cooling·the food).· See, .for example, 1 Larson's Work­
mens1 Compensation .Law, Section 21.2l(c) and.Clark v. U.S. Ply-
wood, 288 Or 255 (1980). · 

In Clark, the outcome.centered on whether or not the super­
visor acquiesced in the emploiee's activity of climbing up on a 
glue press to warm his lunch (which resulted in the employee's 
death). 

In the present case, all the factors are weak and without the 
saving factors found in Clark or ot~er cases cited in Section 
21.2l(c) of Larson's.· For example, the supervisor did not acqui­
esce in the radio plug pulling by the claimant or the throwin~ 
down of the radio by Warner. Also, neither the playing of the 
radio nor the fight about the volume had anything to do with work-
ing conditions. --
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"One is almost tempted to
of quantum theory of work-
certain minimum quantum of
must be shown, arid if the
is very small, but the "ar
is large, the quantum will
essary minimum, as it will
"arising" quantity is very
"course" quantity is relat

formulate a sort
connection that a
work-connect ion
"course" quantity
ising" quantity
add up the nec-
also when the
small but the
ively large.

"But if both the "course" and "arising"
quantities are small, the minimum quantum,
will not be met."

The rest of the cited section gives examples, one of which
seems particularly on point. In the case of Shultz v. Nation
Associates, 281 App Div 915, 119 N S2d 673 fl953), compensation
was denied to an employee who, while combing her hair before going
to lunch, negligently struck her eye with the comb. All the fac­
tors .were weak. As to the course of employment factors dealing
with time, place and circumstances under which the accident took
place, the time was a lunch period, the place was not at a work
station, and the circumstances of the activity were for the pur­
pose of personal appearance. The causal factor was that of
negligence of the employee.

In the present case, the "course
the scale because it occurred during
period, but not at the work station di
tirely off the employer's premises du
related to the employment. The "arising
non-existant because the volume of the radio
during the lunch period has little to do with work activity.

fac tor is i n th e mi'ddle of
regula riy s chedul ed lun ch
ing wo rk ac tivi ti es nor en
ng non -work act iv it ies not
g" fac tor i s negi ig ible or
rad io in a non-wo rk are a

This is not to say that injuries occurring on the prem
during a regular meal break have not been held to be within
course of employment. On the contrary, meal time injuries
been found to be compensable if the conduct causing the acc
was work-related, acquiesced in by a supervisor, or was dir
related to preparation of lunch food or.beverages-(such as
heating or cooling the food).' See, for example, 1 Larson's
mens' Compensation Law, Section 21.21(c) and.Clark v. U.S.
wood, 288 Or 255 (1980).

In Clark, the outcome.centered on whether or not the super­
visor acquiesced in the employee's activity of climbing up on a
glue press to warm his lunch (which resulted in the employee's
death).

ises
the
have
ident
ectly
by
Work
Ply-

In the present case, all the factors are weak and without the
saving factors found in Clark or other cases cited in Section
21.21(c) of Larson's.' For example, the supervisor did not acqui­
esce in the radio plug pulling by the claimant or the throwing
down of the radio by Warner. Also, neither the playing of the
radio nor the fight about the volume had anything to do with work­
ing conditions.
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This case alsq differ~ from •the case of Youngreri .v. Wey€r~ 
haeuser., 41 Or App 333 (1979), in which the sourc~ of the argument 
and resultant•inj·ury was w6rk-related~ tike th~ present ca~e~.a 
flare~up o~cuired.between empi6y~es in which ho iritenti6nal as­
sault ~a~-found,~ but wh~ie• an injury rionetheless iesulted, to otie 
emp1·oyee :"because, in a· fit of anger, he· pou·naecl on a 70.0-pound . · 
steel drum·, the(eby injuring ·h{s .hand •. The Cour·t reversed the 
Board's ~enial of cqmpensjtion·b~~au~e the arg~~ent between the 
e~ployee~ .. con~erned w~ether·o~ not a particular exit f~om· the 
clai~ant 1 s-work aiea would b~ boardea:up which.woul~ make th~ 
c1·aimant· 1 s job more diffic.ult. -Tperefore, even·· though the craim­
an~ ~n ~oungren wa~ not engaged in any of··t~~ duties for which he 
was paid a~ th~ time of his -ihjury~ sine~ the ar~u~~nt related to 
employmerit•·activiti~s, th~ Co~rt still allo~ed a finding of com­
pensat_ion for the claimant. 111 the pr_esent case_,: the claimant, wa~ 
not engaged in any of ·-the duties for which· he was pa id at the-. time 
of his J:njLiry,' nor was the argument related to employment activi-
ties. · · · · · · · 

Our conclusion is that based on·the·wor~~c~nnectedn~is·~eit 
found in.Rogers, ~~d ~he oth~i abov~-c~~e~ ca~es, ·the Boa~d finds 
that ·the ~njury and the ernpl6yment were not suffitiently relat~d 
so that the· injury to claimant's for·earm from the falling radfo 
should be compensabl~. · · 

ORDER 

The order of t~e Referee ~ated July 15, 1980 i.s reversed. 

The deni~l issued by·the employer and its insurer is affirmed. 
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9 This case
haeuser.r 41 Or

also differs from ‘the case of  oungren' .'v, Weyer-
. . .. App ’333 (1979), in which the source of the argument

and resultant injury was work-related. Like the present case,.a
flare-up occurred.between employees in which ho intentional as­
sault was -found, but where an injury nonetheless resulted to one
employee-because, in a fit of anger, he pounded on a 70-0-pound
steel drum, thereby injuring his hand. ' The Court reversed the
Board’s denial of compensation because the argument between the
employee's, .concerned whether or not a particular exit from'the
claimant's work area would be boarded'up which.would make the
claimant’s job more difficult. Therefore, even though the claim­
ant in  oungren was not engaged in any of the duties for which he
was paid at the time of his injury, since the argument related to
employment activities, the Court still allowed a finding of com­
pensation for the claimant. In the present case,.the claimant,was
not engaged in any of the duties for which he was paid at the.time
of his injury,' nor was the argument rel-ated to employment activi­
ties. .

Our conclusion is that based on the work-connectedness test
found in.Rogers, and the other above-cited cases, the Board finds
that the injury and the employment were not sufficiently related
so that the injury to claimant's forearm from the falling radio
should be compensable.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated July 15, 1980 is reversed.

The denial issued by the employer and its insurer is affirmed

151

--

- -



   
    
     
   

 
  

      

         
        
        
          

         
       

        

        
          
          
         
         

    

         
           
         
     

         
              
         
       

             
           

            
            
         

            
     
         

            
          
          

       
           
         

          
           
          
           

           

A. MUNSELL, CLAIMANT 
Rick W. · Roll, Claimant's Attorney 
MacDonald, Mccallister et al, Defense Atto~neys 
Request for1 Review by Claimant 

WCB 79-09128 
June 15, 1Q8I 

Re~i~wed by Board Members Mccallister an~ Lewis. 

The claimant seeks review- of Referee Neal's order which 
awarded ~0% unscheduled disability, or 64°, for residual disabil­
ities resulting from claimant's head injuries ana subsequent 
craniotomy in addition to the award of 236° scheduled disability 
for loss of· clairnant'i vision awarded by Determination Orders 
dated Janµary 22-, 1979 and ~arch 1, l979. 

The issue o~ appeal is the extent of disability. 

Claimant contends that his unscheduled disability far exceeds 
the Referee's award which was intended to compensate claimant for 
his loss of eg~ilibrium, loss· of smell a~a iastet impaired memory 
and mood changes.· Claimant further contenai that claimant is 
entitled to compensation for _residual back problems and numbness 
in parts of his body. 

0 

The employer argues that claimant twice went back 'into the 
woods to attempt to fell timber, deipite his loss of vision, ana 
that claimant's·o~her residual problef!!s are minimal and were ade- () 
quately co~pensated by the Referee's award. · 

Claimant ~uff~rs a ~ide range of residual problems in addi-
. tion to his loss of vision: (l} Loss of smell;· (2} loss of taste; 

(3) loss -of equilibrium; (4) uncinate seizures; (S) impaired mem­
ory1 (6) personality disorder, including violent reactions and· 
mood ·swings; (7) numbness o'f his arm and face; (8) arm, neck and 
shouldei pain: (9) ear pain; and (10) intermittent skin lesioni of 
the chest an6 arms. Although_claimaht ~lso complains of a -loss of 
hearing in the left ea~, tests conducted by Dr. Huewe revealed no 
measurable hearing ·loss •. X-rays of the cervical spine confirmed 
that it was riormal and free. of fracture or oth~t injury, al~hough 
claimant complains of some back pain. 

Brain scans conducted some two months after claimant's head 
injury and right.frontal craniotomy indicat~d some atrophy in ~~e 
frontal fold of claimant's brain. Adjacent to the atrophic•areas, 
dilation of the frontai horns of the ·1aieral ventricles was noted. 

A follow-up electroehcephalogram, administered in· March of 
1980, showed ~onsiderably more sharp jnd-slow ~ave activity in the. 
claimant's frontal region. Dr~ Schwarz expressed £he opi~ion that 
this was ~onsistent with the clinicial diagnosis for seizures with 
focal origin. At the time of that exam, Dr. Schwarz advised 
claimant oi the possibility-that his seizures •~ould be more 
generalized in the future and that the electrical discharae may () 
not always be. totally confined to one sm~ll area of the -brain." 
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ANDRE A. MUNSELL, CLAIMANT
Rick W. Roll, Claimant's Attorney
MacDonald, McCallister et al, Defense Attorneys
Request for'Review by Claimant

WCB 79-09128
June 15, 1981

Q

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks review of Referee Neal's order which
awarded 20% unscheduled disability, or 64°, for residual disabil­
ities resulting from claimant's head injuries and subsequent
craniotomy in addition to the award of 236° scheduled disability
for loss of claimant's vision awarded by Determination Orders
dated January 22, 1979 and March 1, 1979.

The issue on appeal is the extent of disability.

Claimant contends that his unscheduled disability far exceeds
the Referee's award which was intended to compensate claimant for
his loss of equilibrium, loss of smell and taste, impaired memory
and mood changes. Claimant further contends that claimant is
entitled to compensation for residual back problems and numbness
in parts of his body.

The employer arguesthat claimant twice went back into the
woods to attempt to felltimber, despite his loss of vision, and
that claimant's other residual problems are minimal and were ade­
quately compensated by the Referee’s award.

Claimant suffers a wide range of residual problems in addi­
tion to his loss of vision; (!) Loss of smell; (2) loss of taste;
(3) loss of equilibrium; (4) uncinate seizures; (5) impaired mem-

(6) personality disorder, including violent reactions and
mood swings; (7) numbness of his arm and face; (8) arm, neck and
shoulder pain; (9) ear pain; and (10) intermittent skin lesions of
the chest and arms. Although claimant also complains of a loss of
hearing in the left ear, tests conducted by Dr. Huewe revealed no
measurable hearing loss. X-rays of the cervical spine confirmed
that it was normal and free, of fracture or other injury, although
claimant complains of some back pain.

Brain scans conducted some two months after claimant's head
in jury and right , frontal craniotomy indicated some atrophy in the
frontal fold of claimant's brain. Adjacent to the atrophic areas,
dilation of the frontal horns of the lateral ventricles was noted.

O

A follow-up electroehcephalogram, administered in March of
1980, showed considerably more sharp and slow wave activity in the
claimant's frontal region. Dr. Schwarz expressed the opinion that
this was consistent with the clinical diagnosis for seizures with
focal origin. At the time of that exam. Dr. Schwarz advised
claimant of the possibility that his seizures "could be more
generalized in the future and that the electrical discharae may
not always be totally confined to one small area of the brain."
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Ruth ·~ens, w~o~e practice is limited to ~europsychiatry 
and electroencephalography,_ reported i~ May of 1980 that the 
claiiant's visual ffelds ~re ~ven more limited now in comparison 

-wifh the _vis~al 'field.·a~fects do~~~~nted in earlier reports~ .S~e 
attribute~ claima~t's loss_ of equiii~rium to his poor vision, and 
noted claimant's problem~ with double vision. Coritrary._to the· 
findings of Dr.: Huewe, Dr. Jens found that' claimant has a hearing 
loss on the left side. 

As· to claimant 1·s m~mori loss, Dr.· Jens reported that the 
claimant can only remember five digits in sequence and four in 
reverse. Observing that claimant has good reasoning ability, as 
demonstrated. in interpreting ptoveibsj good ability.to--s~btract, 
arid an ad~quate kri6wledge of current events, Dr. Jens concluded 
that ~h~ pobr.memory recall probably represents decreased recall 
from his pr~-acci~ent level. · · · 

Dr. Jens! final analysi~ included the following_op~nion: 

"In summa~y, Mr. _Munsell "is a 30-year_-old, 
mariied father of two children ages 4 and 
11 who was well when a tree limb forcibly 
strucik_hirn w~ile he was working on 3/1/78. 
The blow was of sufficient force to frac­
fure his ;skull a~d-cause· underlying he~or­
thage -and clotti~g,· neces~jt~ti~g ~urgery. 
·He ha~ a disfiguring ·forehead sbar, im­
paired memory, personality change de~on-

. stratea bi ~uibk ~nger which can l~aa to 
-viblenc~, absent sm~ll, diminished· t~ste, 
impaired vision, arm,· neck and shoulder 
pain with rectirr~nt numhhess ·of his right 
fbrearm (for which surgery has be~n-rec6m~ 

·mended):·' This ~uch-difficulty over two 
_ yea~s after the a9cident is 

·, ·expected -tq last lifelong and can be .fur­
_ther complicated by seizures, driving limi­
tation and additional lessening ·of earning 
capacity. I have prescribed fuedication 
designed to decrease Mr. Munsell's bursts 
~f a~~er·, also medication for c6me-and-go 
skin iesions ... He is expected to·req~tr~ · 
long-term follow~up care in the future, 
perhaps lifelong." 

In response io an inquiry from claimant's attorney, claim­
ant!s treating physician, Dr. Mark A. Melgard, reported on Septem­
ber 25, ·1979 that he considered the inability to see out to the 
right si~e claimant's greatest disability. Regar~ina the loss of 
vision, Dr. M~lgard stated: 

-153-

m

m

Dr. Ruth'.Jens, whose practice is limited to neuropsychiatry,
and electroencephalographyreported in May of 1980 that the
claimant’s visual fields are even more limited now in comparison
with the visual field, defects documented in earlier reports. She
attributed claimant•s loss, of equilibrium to his poor vision, and
noted claimant's problems with double vision. Contrary, to the
findings of Dr.' Huewe, Dr. Jens found that claimant has a hearing
loss on the left side.

As to claimant's memory loss. Dr. Jens reported that the
claimant can only remember five digits in sequence and four in
reverse. Observing that claimant has good reasoning ability, as
demonstrated in interpreting proverbs, good ability.to -subtract,
and an adequate knowledge of current events, Dr. Jens concluded
that the poor.memory recall probably represents decreased recall
from his pre-accident level.

Dr. Jens' final analysis included the following opinion:

"In summary, Mr. Munsell is a 30-year-old,
married father of two children ages 4 and
11 who was well when a tree limb forcibly
struck him while he was working on 3/1/78.
The blow was of sufficient force to frac­
ture his skull and cause underlying hemor-

, rhage and clotting, necessitating surgery.
He has a disfiguring forehead scar, im­
paired memory, personality change demon­
strated by quick anger which can lead to
violence/ absent smell, diminished taste,
impaired vision, arm,' neck and shoulder
pain with recurrent numbness of his right
forearm (for which surgery has been recom­
mended) . ■ This much difficulty over two
years after the accident is
.expected to last lifelong and can be fur­
ther complicated by seizures, driving limi­
tation and additional lessening of earning
capacity. I have prescribed medication
designed to decrease Mr. Munsell's bursts
of anger, also medication for come-and-go
skin lesions...He is expected to require
long-term follow'-up care in the future,
perhaps lifelong."

9

In response to an inquiry from claimant's attorney, claim­
ant's treating physician. Dr. Mark A. Melgard, reported on Septem­
ber 25, 1979 that he considered the inability to see out to the
right side .claimant’s greatest disability. Regarding the loss of
vision, Dr. Melgard stated:
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is present in both .eyes and is· a sig­
. nif icant disability. It is a ctisability 
that would prevent the patient from being 
in any type of dangerous situation where a 

·tree limb or piece of machinery or an auto­
mobile corning from the ·inferior right por­
tion of his vi~ual field, as it would not 
be perceived and therefore the patient 
could be in real danger because of the 
defect." 

Concerning claimant's head injury generally, Dr. Melgard went on 
to explain: 

"The patient had a significant intercranial 
injury. He had an intercerebral hematoma · 
on the opposite .side that resolved. without 
surgical intervention. He has not had any 
specific testing regarding hearing, smell 
and taste loss, but I am_positive that 
these deficits are secondary to his injury. 
It is not uncommon at all to lose the sense 
of .srn~ll with a head injury, ana· certainly 
a head injury involving the frontal portion 
of the brain. It would be the rule i~ther 
than the exception. ·The uncinate fit or 
the unpleasant odor the patient·has may 
come from a contusion of the temporal 16be 
and may be.correctable with medication ... 
The numbness of the face undoubtedly is due 
to injury about the right oibit and is also 
compatible with the blo~ to the head." 

The claimant's personality disorder, exemplified by his ag­
gressive behavior and mood swings, would ind.icate that there is 
moderate .to severe emotional· disturbance under. ordinary to minimal 
stress.· Under such circumstances, the AMA guidelines would indi­
cate an impairment value ranging from 50% to ·as% of the whole man. 
Considering all of the evidence, including testimony concerning 
claimant's aggressive behavior which did not exist prior to his 
injury, the Board concludes that an es, impairment rating is war­
ranted. 

Where more than one type of manifestation of impairment re­
sults from brain disorders, the AMA guidelines suggest that the 
various degrees of impairment are not added or combined, but the 
largest value is used to represent the impairment for ·all of the 
types of symptoms. AMA, Guides to the Rvaluation of Permanent 
Impairment, supra, ~t page 64. 
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"This is present in both eyes and is a sig-
,nificant disability. It is a disability
that would prevent the patient from being
in any type of dangerous situation where a
tree limb or piece of machinery or an auto­
mobile coming from the inferior right por­
tion of his visual field, as it would not
be perceived and therefore the patient
could be in real danger because of the
defect. "

Concerning claimant’s head injury generally. Dr. Melgard went on
to explain:

"The patient had a significant intercranial
injury. He had an intercerebral hematoma
on the opposite side that resolved, without
surgical intervention. He has not had any
specific testing regarding hearing, smell
and taste loss, but I am.positive that
these deficits are secondary to his injury.
It is not uncommon at all to lose the sense
of smell with a head injury, and certainly
a head injury involving the frontal portion
of the brain. It would be the rule rather
than the exception. The uncinate fit or
the unpleasant odor the patient'has may
come from a contusion of the temporal lobe
and may be correctable with medication...
The numbness of the face undoubtedl.y is due
to injury about the right orbit and is also
compatible with the blow to the head."

The claimant's personality disorder, exemplified by his ag­
gressive behavior and mood swings, would indicate that there is
moderate to severe emotional disturbance under ordinary to minimal
stress. Under such circumstances, the AMA guidelines would indi­
cate an impairment value ranging from 50% to 85% of the whole man.
Considering all of the evidence, including testimony concerning
claimant's aggressive behavior which did not exist prior to his
injury, the Board concludes that an 85% impairment rating is war­
ranted.

Where more than one type of manifestation of impairment re­
sults from brain disorders, the AMA guidelines suggest that the
various degrees of impairment are not added or combined, but the
largest value is used to represent the impairment for all of the
types of symptoms. AMA, Guides to the Fvaluation of Permanent
Impairment, supra, at page 64.
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The Board concludes, therefore, that claimant's physical im­
pairment, excluding his loss of vision, is equal to 85% of the 
whole mari. The fact that the claimant retained sufficient physi­
cal strength to twic~ attempt to work in the woods--against doc­
tor's orders-~aoes not indicate that ~he claimant has the overall 
c·apacity to obtain and hold a :job. The Board· concludes- that this 
cl~imant is seveiely handicapped .. In view of the claimant's young 
age, it is the Board's further opinion that this clairnarit. should 

. promptly be enroll~d in an iritensive vocational rehabilitation 
program. 

The criteria for rating -a claimant's loss of earning capacity 
includes consi~eration bf other factors--such as the claimant's 
age, education, training, skills and work experience--which affect 
his ability to obtain and hold gainful employment in the broad 
field of general occupations. ORS 656.214(5) Here, while claim­
ant has been ~ble to obtain employment, he has been unable to hold 
a job due to his i nabi 1 ity to control his emotions. Dr. ,Jens,· who 
conducted a neuropsychiatric interview and examinition, concluded 
that the claiman~•s difficulties ar~ ~xpected to last a lifetime 
and can be·further corn~licated by s~izures,. driving limitations 
and additional .lessening of earning capacity; ·· 

In consideration of the evidence as a whole, the Board con­
cludes that claimant's unsched~led disability ~s a result of the 
brain damage and: existing residual difficulties, aside from and in 
addition to. his loss of viSio~, is equal to a 90% unscheduled loss 
of his earning capacity. 

The ~e1~ree considered claimant's main problems to he his 
loss of vision, lack of ability to judge distances and. his loss of 
eqtiilibriurn. The Board disagrees. Aside from the ioss of vision, 
his loss of memory and personality disorder would.appear to be the 
two most limiting f~ctors as far as his loss of earning capacity 
is concerned .. 

The Board accepts as an accurate assessment the summary and 
recommendations of the vocational rehabilitation counselor in his 
August 6, 1980 report which states: 

"This counselor .would rate Mr. t-Aunsell 's 
emotional changes as severly (sic) limiting 
his. ability to obtain and hold qainful em~ 
ployment. · He reports ·that he has been 
fired twice from job's (sic) due to his 
(in)ability to 6ontiol his emotions. His 
low frustration tolerance, reduced ability 
to adopt to the new job situations, reduced 
ability to cooperate with co-workers, or 
all severely limiting factors in Mr. Mun­
sell's ability to.obtain and hold gainful 
employment. 
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... Counselor would rate Mr. Munsell's im­
paired memory as a very significant factor 
in his ability to obtain and hol~ gainf~l 
employm~nt. Memory is an important factor 

-in learning a new job and the skills demand 
it-for that job~ Also his reduced memory 
will add to Mr. Munsell's frustration and 
cou1a·aggravate his emotional condition on 
the job." (emphasis added) 

In attempting to assess the extent of claimant's physical im­
pairmen_t, . the Board· looks for guidance to the American 'Medical 
Association jn its 1971 Guides to the Evaluation of Permanent Im­
pairment. Claimant's memory loss is discussed by the AMA 0s a. 
"Complex Integrated Cerebral-Function Disturbance." From the·med­
ical evidence and claimant's testimony, the Board concludes that 
the memory. loss constitutes a 10% impairment of the whole man, in_ 
that there is "a degree of i_mpairment of complex· integrated ce·re­
bral functions but there is ability to carry out most activities 
for daily living." AMA Guides, supra, at page 65. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated October 2, 1980 is modified as 
follows: 

The ·scheduled award of 236° for loss of vis-ion in both eyes 
is hereb1 affirmed: 

Claimant is further awarded 90% unscheduled disability for 
loss of earning capacity. as a result of the brain damage and re­
lated disabilities, including loss of memory and personality dis­
order; 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that ~laimant's attorney be paid 25% of 
the addition~! compensation granted by this order, not to exceed 
$3,000. 
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ORDER

The Referee's order dated October 2, 1980 is modified as
follows:

The scheduled award of 236° for loss of vision in both eyes
is hereby affirmed;

Claimant is further awarded 90% unscheduled disability for
loss of earning capacity as a result of the brain damage and re­
lated disabilities, including loss of memory and personality dis­
order;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that claimant's attorney be paid 25% of
the additional compensation granted by this order, not to exceed
$3,000.

m
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R. PYLE, CLAIMANT 
Jan Thomas Baisch, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
Jon Littlefield, Defense Attorney. 
Request for Review by Claimant 

Reviewed by -the Board en bane. 

WCB 80-00139 
June 15, 1981 

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which 
denied the claimant penalties and attorney fees for the employer's 
failure to pay an award of permane~t partial disability for over 
one year .. 

As stated by the Referee the essence of this case is that 
claimant was awarded a permanent partial di~ability in May of. 
1979. Through an uneiplained oversight, he was not paid~ Howev~r, 
claimant requested a hearing on January 7, 1~80 and ~ade no conten­
tion regarding any failure to pay the permanent partial disahility 
award made by the Determination Order of May 1979. ·After a new 
claim ~as filed on June 5, 1980 it was discovered that the award 
from th~t Determination Order had not been paid and the payment 
was then· issued on June 27, 1980. 

The Referee refused to assess penalties and attorney fees 
against the employer for a]Jeqed unreason~hle rlelay 1n the payment 
of compensation. We ~gree. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated December 9, 1980 i.s affirmed. 
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JAMES R. P LE, CLAIMANT
Jan Thomas Baisch, Claimant's Attorney
Jon Littlefield, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 80-00139
June 15, 1981

m

Reviewed by -the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
denied.the claimant penalties and attorney fees for the employer's
failure to pay an award of permanent partial disability for over
one year.

As stated by the Referee the essence of this case is that
claimant was awarded a permanent partial disability in May of
1979. Through an unexplained oversight, he was not paid-. However,
claimant requested a hearing on January 7, 1980 and made no conten­
tion regarding any failure to pay the permanent partial disability
award made by the Determination Order of May 1979. After a new
claim was filed on June 5, 1980 it was discovered that the award
from that Determination Order had not been paid and the payment
was then issued on June 27, 1980.

The Referee refused to assess penalties and attorney fees
against the employer for alleged unreasonable delay in the payment
of compensation. We agree.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated December 9, 1980 is affirmed.
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PHYLLIS R. WESTON, CLAIMANT 
Cameron Thom, Claimant's Attorney 
Paul .Roess, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by Claimant 

WCB 80-00422 
June 15, 1981 

Reviewed by Board ~embers McCallister and Lewis. 

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Daron's order 
which affirmed the SAIF Corporation's denial .of her claim. The 
sole issue is compensability. 

Claimint submitted a clai~ for low back injury on October 31, 
1979 a11·eging that she had hurt her back on October 5, 1979 pick­
ing up a carton of sterile water in the course of her work as a 
respiratory therapy technician at Bay Area Hospital in Coos Bay. 
SAIF was the insurance carrier, and they denied the claim by let­
ter of November 19, 1979. 

The Referee ordered th~t claimant's claim for workers' com­
pen~ation for ~n injury arising out of and in the couise of her · 
employment with Bay Area Hospit~l District be. denied. He found: 
~The evidence in this case is just too inconsistent and incomplete 
f6r me to find claimant's claim compensable. The weight of the 
evidence does not favor claimant without totally accepting claim~ 
ant as a credible witness." 

After de novo review we agree with the Referee; his order is 
affirmed. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated October 31, 1980 is affirmed . 

OHMA.N CHRISTOPHER, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0127M 
June 16, 1981 

The claimant requests the· Board to exercise its own motion 
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a 
worsened condition related to his August 7, 1952 industrial in­
jury. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired. 

Dr. Matteri submitted to the Board a report dated April 27, 
1981 wherein he authorized time loss from that·date for the claim­
ant who had an acute flare up of his chronic osteomyeli~is. By 
letter dated May 19, 1~81 the SAIF indicated ·that it was unopposed 
to a claim reopening. 

Claimant is entitled to have his claim reopened commencing 
April 27, 1981 and until closure is abth9rized pursuant to ORS 
656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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PH LLIS R. WESTON, CLAIMANT
Cameron Thom, Claimant's Attorney
PaulRoess, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant

WCB 80-00422
June 15, 1981

m

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and Lewis.

The claimant seeks Board review of Referee Daron's order
which affirmed the SAIF Corporation's denial of her claim. The
sole issue is compensability.

Claimant submitted a claim for low back injury on October 31,
1979 alleging that she had hurt her back on October 5, 1979 pick­
ing up a carton of sterile water in the course of her work as a
respiratory therapy technician at Bay Area Hospital in Coos Bay.
SAIF was the insurance carrier, and they denied the claim by let­
ter of November 19, 1979.

The Referee ordered that claimant's claim for workers' com­
pensation for an injury arising out of and in the course of her *
employment with Bay Area Hospital District be. denied. He found:
"The evidence in this case is just too inconsistent and incomplete
for me. to find claimant's claim compensable. The weight of the
evidence does not favor claimant without totally accepting claim­
ant as a credible witness."

After
affirmed.

de novo review we agree with the Referee; his order is

ORDER

The Referee's order dated October 31, 1980 is affirmed.

m

OHMAN CHRISTOPHER, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0127M
June 16, 1981

The claimant requests the' Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a
worsened condition related to his August 7, 1952 industrial in­
jury. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired.

Dr. Matteri submitted to the Board a report dated April 27,
1981 wherein he authorized time loss from that date for the claim­
ant who had an acute flare up of his chronic osteomyeli.tis. By
letter dated May 19, 1981 the SAIF indicated that it was unopposed
to a claim reopening.

Claimant is entitled to have his claim reopened commencing
April 27, 1981 and until closure is authorized pursuant to ORS
656.278.

^ IT IS SO ORDERED.
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DONALD H ~- TALL, CLAIMANT 
D.S. -Denning, Jr.,. Claimant's Attorney -

. SAIF Corp Le9al, Defense Attorney < 
Order of.Abatement 

" .. •' 

-wcs--·Bo-oos6B · 
. June.··17 ,· 1981 

-On hhis.date the Board received a Motion ·to~ Reccinsider~ti6n 
of i~i Order on Revie~ dated May lij, 19~1 fio~ the SAit'• 
Corpora tic:rn ~ · 

In 6rder to aliow tim~ to c~nsider this-Motig~~ ·that Order on 
Review is hereby abated. 

IT IS SO ORDEREp. 

DANIEL BEAVERS~ CLAIMANT 
Rog~r Luedtke, Claim~nt's Att~rney· 
SAIF Corp Legal, Oefens~ Attorney 
Own.Motiori' Referring· for Hear:-inq 

Own Motion 81-0135M 
June 18, 19Bi 

. - . 
. Claimant:! by and through his- a~toi::riey, ~equests th<:. :ioard ;:o 
exe~cise it~ own motion jurisdictio~ pursuant to ORS 656.278, and 
reopen his clairn.for·a wor~ened condition related to.his i~aus~ 
t~ial injury of De~e~ber 11, ~~74. · Cliimant's aggravatio11 tights 
h~ve expi~ed. · 

Claimant's claim was originally closed by a Determination-Or­
der of May 12, 19-7 5. Suqs~quently )~is claim· was reopen_eJ and t.::e · 
most recent closure occurred on· Aoril 28, 1980. · Claimant harc. at,-. 
peal~d th~t Determinatlon Order o~-~he.issue of extent 0t disabil­
ity .. By his own mbtion request. clai~ant is c9nt2nding. th~t his 

. condition has aggrava~ed sin~e ·that iast clcsur~. · 
. . 

In the interest of all parties· concernr;d, ·the Boi:"lrd -"~f,)"i::~-­
this matter to a rt~feree to be hea-rd on b consolidahed G~~is with 
claimahtis request for heaiing ori pbpe~l fcorn the riete~miG~iion 
Order· in WCB Case No. 81-00924 set f6r J~ly 17, 1981 befo~e Ref~ 
ere~ W~lliams. I · 

-The Refer~e is to- hold~ hearin~·on this ow~ ~otion m~ttei 
and wca Ca~e-No. 81-00924 on a.consblidated basis. We r~cJest ~e 

. take ev~de~ce on ~hether claima~t 1 sj c~nditio~ related~~ ~is ~e~· 
cember 1974 inju~y has ~orsened sihce th~ la~t awilrd or ~;ra~ge~ 
ment":of compensation.' Upon closure! of ~he h~arfn~, f~e.Rs~er~e 
shall cause a transcript. of the proce~d1ngs _tone prepareo anc,· 
together with his Opinion and Order and retommendation~ s4brnit to 
the Board. . . . . 

IT IS SO Q_RDERED. 

m

DONALD H. TALL, CLAIMANT
D,S. Denning, Jr,,. Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order of.Abatement

WCB 80-00568
June. 17, 1981

On this-date the. Board received a Motion for Reconsideration
of its Order on Review’ dated May 18, 1981 from the SAIF
Corporation.

In order to allow time to consider this-Motion, that Order on
Review is hereby abated.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DANIEL BEAVERS, CLAIMANT
Roger Luedtke, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion' Referring for Hearing

Own Motion 81 0135M
June 18, 1981

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the- r>oard :o
exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS 656.278, and
reopen his claim .for a worsened condition related to his indus­
trial injury of December 11, 1974.
have expired.

Claimant’s agciravation rights

Or-Clairaant^s claim was originally closed by a Determination
der of May 12, 1S75. Subsequently his claim was reopened and uhe
most recent closure occurred oh April 28, J 900. ' Claimant -las ap­
pealed that Determination Order on the.issue of extent or disabil
ity. By his own motion request, claimant is cgntending that nis

last closure.

concerned, 'the Board
this matter to a Referee to be hoard on a consol, ion tod , i).
claimant’s request' for hearing oh appeal I;aom the- Determination
Order in WCB Case No. 81-00924 set for July. 17, 19S1 before Ref­
eree Williams.

condition has aggravated since that

In the interest of all parties ■ e e r s
i s wit

mo . o n m .er•The Referee is to- hold a hearing on this ov;:-,
and WCB' Case'No. 81-00924 on a - consolidated basis. We.rocjest he
cake evidence on whether claimant‘sjcondition related to* his De-
cember 1974 injury has worsened since the last award or arrange­
ment of compensation. Upon closurej of the .hearing, the.'Rereree
shall cause a transcript, of the procee'din'gs to be prepared and,-
together with his Opinion and Order
the Board.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
-159-
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BURGE, CLAIMANT 
SAIF Corp tegal. Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion.81-0151M 
June '18, 1981 

Claim§nt iegu~sts the Board to exercise its own motion 
jurisdicti~n, pursuant t9 ORS 656.278 and reopen ·his claim for ·a 
worsened. condition related to his December 4, ·1967 industrial 
injury. Claimant's aggravation rights h~ve expir~d·. 

The medical· evi~ence from Dr. Ho indicatis that.claimant's 
present problems aie· ielate~ to his 1967 jndustrial injurj. On 
March 22, 1981 claimant was hospitalized a~d the following day 
_uriderwent a discecto~y of L4-5 performed by Dr. Eazel~ 

The Board concludes that claimant is entitled to a· claim 
reopening as of the date of his hosoitalization ~nd until.closure 
is authorized putsuant to ORS 656.2~8. · 

IT rs so ORDERED. 

JAMES BYRNES, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0120M 
June 18, 1981 

Claimant. requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, p~iiu~nt to ORS 656.278, and reopen his.tlaim for a wor­
sened condition ·related to his-~e~ruari 6~ 1971 industrial injury. 
Claimant 1 i aggravation righ~s have eipired. 

There are two medical opinions in ·~v{denc~. Dr. Buza makes 
the necessary ·causal relationship of claimant '.s ruptured disc to 
his industrial injury. However, ihe evidence indicate~ that from 
th~ original injU!Y claimant had a susp~cted herniated disco~ the 
left side. Claimant's proble~ now is on the riaht Side, and the 
opI'niori. of Dr. Nor.ton, SAIF consultant, 1- s more 1-:>er suas i ve to the 
Board. 

~herefore, we conclude that claimant's ~urrent con~itiqri is 
unrelated to his February 1971: ind~str.ial injury, and his request 
for own rnotidn re~ief is deni~d. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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PAUL BURGE, CLAIMANT
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion. 81-0151M
June 18, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a
worsened.condition related to his December 4, 1967 industrial
injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired'.

The medical- evidence from Dr. Ko indicates that claimant's
present problems are' related to his 1967 industrial injury'. On
March 22, 1981 clai.mant was hospitalized and the following day
underwent a discectomy of L4-5 performed by Dr. Hazel.

The Board concludes that claimant is entitled to a- claim
reopening as of the date of his hospitalization and until.closure
is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

JAMES B RNES, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0120M
June 18, 1981

Claimant, requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ,ORS 656.27.8, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his February 6, 1971 industrial injury.
Claimant’s aggravation rights have expired.

There are two medical opinions in evidence. Dr. Buza makes
the necessary causal relationship of claimant's ruptured disc to
his industrial injury. However, the evidence indicates that from
the original injury claimant had a suspected herniated disc on the
left side. Claimant's problem now is on the r i g h t:. side, and the

more persuasive to the

€

opinion of Dr. Norton, SAIF consultant, i
Board.

Therefore, we conclude that claimant’s current conditio.n is
unrelated to his February 1971, industrial injury, and his request
for own motion relief is denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
-160-

-



        
     
      
    

      

          
           

           
           

       

        
              
         
          
       
          

        
          

         
           

       
           
         
         

    

          
               
             
          
         

        
          
         
  

         
       
       

         
     
        
         

      
      
       
       
      

W. CHiLDRESS, CLAIMANT . 
Bernard Jolles, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
Sch~abe, Williamson et al~ Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by ½laimant·. . . ' . . 

WCB 80~06215 ·. 
June. 18, 1981 

Reviewed_by Boatd, Mem~ers Barnes and Lewis.· 

:"Th~ clairn~ht seeks Board review of the Refere~-•s order' which 
affirmed the den_ial of a ·c;laim for· back injuries alleq·~·d'ly a rising 
out of an un~itnessed May 24, 1980 incident i~ which claimant .. 
twisted his.back.while working fot Delta Truck Lin~s ln Medford~ 
rhe is~ue on. appeal is compensability. · · .. 

, '. Claimant, _a 31-year-o_ld: ·truck dr.iver, was hospitaJ.)zed on_ May 
27, 1980 for what was believed by two admitting physicans .to be an 
acute lumbosacraJ ~train.· At the request of ihe tre~fing physi- -
ciari, 6lairnant wai examined by both orthopeaic and neurolcgic con­
stultants~ Neither of.the consulting physicians fb~nd obj~c~ive. · 
"fi_ndings sufficient to explain th_e ·clajmed_ s~ve~ity of the pain. 
One consult~nt. concluded that claimant•s·condition·was an hyster- • 
ical reaction;"·the other believed 90% of his problem was psychi-
atric. · 

Claimant contends t~at -it is immaterial whether the pr~mary. 
pLoblem was acute back strain or hysteria! reaction in that b6ih. 
are compensable. The employer contends ·that claimant's exaggera~· 
ted symptoms and tonflicting statements indicate that he is not. 
credible. Em.ployer further arques that claimant has failed to 

· establish legal and medical .causation and has, therefore~ tailed· 
~o s~stain.his b~rd~n of proof. · · · 

.: ·claimant alleg~s that while attempting to get into his truck 
on May 24, 1980 his hand slipped on the h~nd rail; his body twis­
t~d and fell a short distance until he caught himself and was ~ble 
to-get into the truck. tlaima~t contends that he ~ustained ari · · 
acute back strain as a result of the in6ident 

Cl~irnant firs~ sought rnedicai treatment on the afterrioon of 
May 27, 1980 when ·he was -hospitalized at Meridian Park Hospital. 
Dr. Rob~rt Wagrier, who fir~t reported on claimant's condition,. 
recorded the following_history: 

~''l'he patient is a 31-ye.-~. old white; mal<: 
previously irt good heal th wi thou.: even· a_ 

· pr~vious history of back trouble who notea 
the onset of an ache in the low~r thoracic 
and upper lumbar a~ea Saturday evening 
~hile climbing up so~e steps into his semi 
truck-trailer (sic) which he drove from 
Medford to Portland. ~e noted some ·in­
crease -ache~type discomfort in th~ lower 
back area while driving the 4-5 hours and. 
again on disembarking from the truck, he 
noted some discomfort. in the ~rea as well. 
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#
DAVID W. CHILDRESS, CLAIMANT . ' WCB 80 06215 ■.
Bernard Jolles, Claimant's Attorney June.18, 1981
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Lewis.

The claimaht seeks Board review of the Referee-'s order which
affirmed the denial of a claim for back injuries alleqed'ly arising
out of an unwitnessed May 24, 1980 incident in' which claimant
twisted his back while working for Delta Truck Lines 'in Medford.
The issue on- appeal is compensability. •

■Claimant, a 31-year~old,-'truck driver, was hospitalized on May
27 , 1980 for what was believed by two admitting physicans .to be an
acute lumbosacral strain. At the request of the treating physi­
cian, claimant was examined by both orthopedic and neurologic con-
stultants. Neither of.the consulting physicians found objective,
findings sufficient to explain the claimed severity of the pain.
One consultant, concluded that claimant's condition was an hyster­
ical reaction the other believed 90% of his problem was psychi­
atric.

m

m

Claimant contends that-it is immaterial whe.ther the pri^mary
problem was acute back strain or hysterial reaction in that both
are compensable. The employer contends that claimant's exaggera­
ted symptoms and conflicting statements indicate that he is not
credible. Employer further argues that claimant has failed to
establish legal and medical .causation and has, therefore, railed-
to sustain,his burden of proof.

Claimant alleges that while attempting to get into his truck
on May 24, 1980 his hand slipped on the hand rail; his body twis-
ted and fell a short distance until he caught himself and was able
toget into the truck. Claimant contends that he sustained an
acute back strain as a result of the incident •

Claimant first.sought medical treatment on the afternoon of
May 27, 1980 when he was hospitalized at Meridian Park Hospital.
Dr. Robert Wagner, who first reported on claimant's condition,
recorded the following.history:

"The patient is a 3].-yeer old white mal.o ■
previously in good health withouu even a
.'previous history of back trouble who noted
the onset of an ache' in the lower thoracic
and upper lumbar area.Saturday evening
.while climbing up some steps into his semi
truck-trailor (sic) which he drove from , ' .
Medford to Portland. He noted some in­
crease ache-type discomfort in the lower
back area while driving-the 4-5 hours and
again on disembarking from the truck, he
noted some discomfort.in the area as well.
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next day the pain was intermittent, but 
was somewhat worse and the day prior ta ad­
mission, the pati~nt had noted increase 
·spasm in the area and, in fact, had diffi-
culty walking and apparently had some dif­
ficulty getting into the car to come to 
E~R. for= examination." (emphasis added) 

There is nothing remarkable in .the reported sympfoms, as fiist 
rel~ted to Dr. Wagner at the time claimant was ~dmitted to the 
hospital. From that history, Dr. Wagner had the impression that 
claimant suffered an acute lumbosac~al strain with secondary 
muscle spasm. The doctor prescribed strici bedrest with Heat and 
muscle relaxants. 

Two days later, ~hen examined by Dr .. J. Scott Struckmnn, the 
history related by claimant was hotably exaggerated from that 
given ~o Dr. Wagner on ~ay 27. W~ note, however, Dr. Struckman_'s 
observation that claimant was "taking large amounts of narcotics 
to control·his syrnptcims. 11 Even more interesting, perhaps~ is Dr. 
Wagner's subsequent report that as of the second day of hospitali­
zation claimant had refused aJ.l pain medicines. If, then, hy the 
third day, when claimant was exomined by Dr.. Struckman, claimant 
had been given "larqe amounts of narcotics," those large amounts 
of narcotics were ail presumably adminiE:tf.:.,rN'l withi_n one 6-:iy prior 
to Dr. Struckman's examination. 

· In any event, the history related by claimant to Or. Struckman 
was.that claimant had remained in bed for two and one-half days 
after the incident until the pain became intolerable. It is well 
established from claimant 1 s own testimony and that of other wit­
nesses that this wai not true. Dr. Struckman's report a]so indi­
c~ted thai after b~ing admitted to the hos~ital claimant felt an 
increasing weakness to the point claimant called it "paralysis 
f rorn the neck down" -when the pa in got really bad. 

Dr. Stuckman concluded that l_;laimant· was sufferinq .. 1 "acute 
hysterical reaction" and recom~ended di~continuahce of-tni nar­
cotics. He ~entured the fu~th~r opinion that. he ~ould tr~ to 
treat the claimant with psychotrophic drugs rather .than n~~cotici. 
He recommended that claimant have psychiatric co:,sultatio,1. 

By the time Dr. Paul Ash examined claimant on May 3J., the 
fifth day of hospitalization_, it was his opinion that the claimant· 
was "impossible to examine" and could have almost anything ''rang­
ing from rheumatoid. arthritis and ankylosing spondylitis to psoas 
abscess." He concluded that at Jeast 90% of the complaint was 
psychiatric. 

The Referee notrid that neither Dr. Struckman nor Dr. As~ were 
able tb reconcile what the R~feree terms claimant 1 s ''bizarre pain 
behavior" with their objective medica-1 findings. It is the _Q 
Board's impression that claimant's symptoms were only ,ibizzare" to W 
the ~xtent that any acute ca~e of hysterical reaction misht be. 
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The next day the pain was intermittent, but
was somewhat worse and the day prior to ad-
nussion^ the patient had noted increase
spasm in the area and, in fact, had diffi­
culty walking and apparently had some dif­
ficulty getting into the car to come to
E.R. for- examination." (emphasis added)

There is nothing remarkable in the reported symptoms, as first
related to Dr. Wagner at the time claimant was .admitted to the
hospital. From that history, Dr. Wagner had the impression that
claimant suffered an acute lumbosacral strain with secondary
muscle spasm. The doctor prescribed strict bedrest with Heat and
muscle relaxants.

Two days later, when examined by Dr., J. Scott Struckman, the
history related by claimant was notably exaggerated from that
given to Dr. Wagner on May 27. We note, however'. Dr. Struckman.'s
observation that claimant was "taking large amounts of narcotics
to control his symptoms." Even more interesting, perhaps; is Dr.
Wagner's subsequent report that as of the second day of hospitali­
zation claimant had refused all pain medicines. If, then, by the
third day, when claimant was examined by Dr.. Struckman, claim.ant
had been given "large amounts of narcotics," those large amounts
of narcotics were all presumably administered withi.n one cay prior
to Dr. Struckman's examination.

In any event, the history related by claimant to Dr. Struckman
was that claimant had remained in bed for two and one-half days
after the incident until the pain became intolerable. It is well
established from claimant's own testimony and that of other wit­
nesses that this was not true. Dr. Struckm.an's report al.so indi­
cated that after being admitted to the hospital claimant felt an
increasing weakness to the point claimant called it "parcilysis

• from the neck down" -when the pain got really bad.

i)

Dr. Stuckman concluded that claimant was suffering rn "acute
hysterical reaction" and recommended discontinuance of tee nar­
cotics. He ventured the further opinion that, he would try to
treat the claimant with psychotrophic drugs rather -than narcotics.
He recommended that claimant have psychiatric coriSultation.

By the time Dr. Paul Ash examined claimant on May 31, the
fifth day of hospitalization., it was his opinion that the claimant
was "impossible to examine" and could have almost anything "rang­
ing from rheumatoid arthritis and ankylosing spondylitis to psoas
abscess." He concluded that at least 90% of the comipj.aint was
psychiatric.

The Referee noted that neither Dr. Struckman nor Dr. Ash were
able to reconcile what the Referee terms claimant's "bizarre pain
behavior" with their objective medica-1 findings. It is the
Board's impression that claimant's symptoras were only "bizzare" to
the extent that any acute case of hysterical reaction might be.
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Referee·apparently rea~6n~d th~t where.an hy~i~rical 
reaction results from an unwi~n~ssed inju~y theri is•a·logic~l 
conclusion that the incident ~as also-imagined. To a~cept this 
reasonirig, che Board would need t6 ignore th~ medi~aJ findings -~f 
a lumbosacral strairi by two treating phsycians, Dr. Wagn~r ~n~ Dr. 
Miller,. as well as the testimony of w.i tnesses who ob.served or k;1ew · 
of claimant's physical distress in the two days following the:a1~ . 
leged accident. 

Dr.· Struckman., when presented at his d~position with the 
facts of claimant'' s behavior in the two ·aays following the alleged· 
incident, concluded that his earlier diagnosis of an.:hyste~ical 
reaction was accur~te. It was. his.medical opinion th~t claima~t 
was not rpaling·ering .. It was also his :opinion thc,t the. accident 
described by claimant. would be sufficient to produce: the low barr:: 
strain that he found. 

Inairntich as the Referee'~ findinqs conc~ining the 2r~dibi~ity 
of the-~itriesses w~s based ~pon his r~vie~ of the-rec6rd rather 
th~n·upon ~n bbservation of the witnesses' dernea~or, atiitude or 
appearance, the Board ~oes not feel compelled to accept hi~ finJ-
in~s on credibility, Based upon .its review of the record and.the 
.evidence:as a whole, the Board.conclutjes that there is· no partic~~ 
lar reason the witnesses shoulo not he hl~J j everl. 'J'he Go:.i i:c'J fur.,, 
ther c6nciudes that whether t~e ~l~imant's-resultl~g dis~t,ility 
was due to·a back itrain or.his subsequent hysteri~al reoction, 
both condition~ a~e c6mpensable. · 

OF-DER' 

The Referee's order dated October 24, 1980 is reversed. 

Th~ cl~irn for ciai~~nt's back injury sustain~d on May 24, 
1980 is remanded to the •insurer for payment of all compensation· 
benefits u~tii closed puriuant to ORS 656.268. · · , • 

Clai~ant's attorney is a~arded $1,250 as a reasonabie atto;~ 
ney fee for legal seivices rendered in connection.with a denied 
claim~ . · 1 · 
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The Referee'apparently reasoned that where'an hysterical
reaction results from an unwitnessed injury thebe' is' a' logical
conclusion that the incident was .also•imagined. To accept this
reasoning, rhe Board would need to ignore the medica] findings 'Of •
a lumbosacral strain by two treating phsycians, Dr.. Wagner and Dr.
Miller,, as well as the testimony of witnesses who observed or knew
of claimant's physical distress in the two days following the-al­
leged accident. ■ •

Dr. ■ Struckman., when presented at his deposition with the
facts of claimant's behavior in the tv;o days following the alleged'
incident, concluded that his earlier diagnosis of an..hysterical
reaction was accurate. It was. his medical opinion.that claimant
was not maling'er ing. , 11 was also his -opinion that the. accident
described by claimant would be sufficient to -produce', the low bac'k
strain that he found. ' . ■

m

Inasmuch as th
of the■witnesses wa
than -upon an observ
appearance, the Boa
ings on credibility
.evidence- as a whole
lar reason the witn
ther concludes that
was due to'a back s‘
both conditions are

e Referee's
s based upon
ation of the
rd does not
, Based upo
, the Board
esses should
whether the
train or'his
compensable

findings concerning the credibility
his review of the record rather
witnesses' demeanor, attitude or
feel compelled to accept his find-
n.its review of the record and the'
concludes that there is no particu-
not be believed. The Board fur-
claimant's resulting disability
subsequent hysterical reaction,

OEDER' ■

- The Referee’s order dated October 24, 1980 -is reversed.

Th.e claim for claimant's back injury sustained on May 24,
1980 -is remanded to the insurer for-payment of all compensation'
benefits until closed pursuant to ORS 656.268.

Claimant's attorney is awarded $1,250 as a reasonabi'e attor­
ney fee for legal services rendered in connect ion.with a denied'
claim. . • " '
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FEVEC, CLAIMANT 
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys 
Schwibe, Will.iamson et·a1, Defense Attorneys 
Own Motion Referring for Hearing· 

Own Motion 81-0153M 
J.une 18; 1981 

ciaimant, by and through her attorney, requests the Board to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and 
reopen his claim .for a worsened condition relaied to. his January 
3, 1972 inciustrial injury. 

. . 
The evidence ~ubmitted in support of clairnant 1 s 

a medical report of Dr. ·Sch~ler which iriciicates that 
8, 1980 she slipped and fell and reinjured·her back. 
felt the new injury .aggravated the previous problem. 

con t1:: r, tion is 
on L :·cemt.er 

Dr. Schuler' 

ciairnant filed a claim lor 
quently denied by the carrier. 
that denial on Ap~il 13, 1981. 

this reinj'ury which was s:::-,se­
Claimant requested a hearing o~ 

The Boa~d feels in the best interest of all parties that 
claimaht'.s own motion request should be referred to a Referee t~ 
be heard with her reguest for hearing on the denial of a new in­
jury claim. 

The Referee is to hold.a hearinq and· take evidence or._ whether 
claimant's current condition is· related. to her injury on :JZJnuar'1 
3, 1972 or· a new injury of December 8, 1980 or neither. 7ne Ref­
eree is to cause a· transcript of the proceedings to be prep~red 
and submit it to the Board ~ogether with his Opinion and o~aer and 
Recommendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED •. · 

VERNA FIELDS, ·CLAIMANT 
Edward Daniels, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney 
Own Motion Order 

Own Motion 81-0168M 
June 18, 1981 

Claimant reques~s the.Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656 .• -278, and reopen her claim for a wor-· 
sened eondition ielated to her industrial injury of March 6, 1975. 
Claimant's' aggravation rights have expired. 

Th~ evidence pro0ided indicates that claimant has not been 
and. is ·not in the labor market. Therefore, she is not entitled to 
her claim being reopened nor compensation for temporary total dis­
ability. Cl~imant is entitled to all the benefits provided by ORS 
656~245 for m~dical care and services. · 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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RUTH FEVEC, CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Attorneys
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Own Motion Referring for Hearing

Own Motion 81-0153M
June 18,' 1981

Claiinant, by and through her attorney, requests the Board' to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 658.278, and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to, his January
3, 1972 industrial injury.

The evidence submitted in support of claimant's conrt.ntion is
a medical report of Dr. Schuler v;hich indicates that on i;;'cem,ber
8, 1980 she slipped and fell and reinjured'her back. Dr. Schuler'
felt the new injury aggravated the previous .problem.

Claimant filed a claim for this reinj’ury which was sa :\>se-
quently denied by the carrier. Claimant requested a hearing on
that denial on April 13, 1981.

The Board feels in the best interest of all parties tnat
claimant’s own motion request should be referred to a Referee to
be heard with her request for hearing on the denial of a new in­
jury claim. , •

The Referee is to hold.a hearing and'take evidence on whether
claimant's current condition is related,to her injury on Januarv
3, 1972 or' a new injury of December 8, 1980 or neither. Tr.e Rei-
eree is to cause a transcript of the proceedings to be prepared
and submit it to the Board together with his Opinion and Order and
Recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

VERNA FIELDS, CLAIMANT
Edward Dani.eis, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0168M
June 18, 1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656,.'278, and reopen her claim for a v-;or-'
sened condition related to her industrial injury of March 6, 1975.
Claimant's' aggravation rights have expired.

The evidence provided indicates that claimant has not been
and. is 'not in the labor market. Therefore, she is not entitled to
her claim being reopened nor compensation for temporary total dis­
ability. Claimant is entitled.to all the benefits provided byORS
656.245 for medical care and services.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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F. GABRIEL, CLAIMANT 
Mi1 o Pope, C1 a·imant I s Attorney 
·sAi F co·ro Le9a l, Defense Attorney 
Reouest fot-Revjew by SAIF . 

WCB 80-0.3969 
June 18,. 1981 

Reviewed by Boar~ Members Mccallister and. Lewig. 

The SAIF coip6ration (SAIF) seeks Boar~ review of.R~feree 
G~rnmell 1 s·order which granted claimant increased ~~ardS 0f comperi­
sation for total~ equal io 20.25° for 15% loss of the right focit 
and 80° for .25% urischedule~ low back disability. SAIF contends 
that the second Determination Order dated May 25, .1979 should be 
aff irrned. · · 

The s61e issue is extent of disability for both t~e right 
foot and low back.- Claimant had received award_ equal to 6.75° for 
the right foot and 16° for the ;i.ow b~ck prior to the· issuanc;:::_e of 
the Re~eree's order . 

. Claim_a.nt, · a 49-year-o.ld secretary for the Stanfield School 
District, sustained a compensable inj~ry to.her 16w back on June 
5, 1974. -She was able to return to full-time work in August 1974, 
and the claim was· first closed on November 27, 1974.with no award 
for -perman_ent partiai disability. 

Claima~t co~ti~ued to experience problems, both in her back 
and in her legs. On June 28, 1978 she underwent surgery fer re­
moval of~ protruded inter~ertebral di~c. On_ August 21, 1978. 
claimant was·able to return to full-time work with her employer. 

Dr. R~af; claimant's surge6n, -indicated on November 20, 1978 
that claimant was corn~laining of a serisory loss on· the 6~ter boi­
der of her iight foot and.that she cannot-run because 6f numbneijs 
and we·alrness of· the foot. She <?-lso complained. cf back ache. _ · On 
March 22, 1979, Dr. Raaf stated ·that she was -still complaining ~f 
nu~bness which. he.felt would subside eventua~ly. ·He found her 
right leg did not handicap her from perfbrming her work and her 
back pairi ~as muc~ i~proved. · · 

On May 8,· 1979 Dr. Raaf inaicatea that claimant ~as scation~­
ary on Ma.rch 1_6, 1979 and that no·further curat.ivG treat11,ent W..':S 

necessary. ~~ noted that.claimartt had been working at her old j_9b 
since August 1978 •. In july 1979~ Dr. Ra3f advised claimant that. 
the award she had been granted by the Evaluation'Division. was ade­
quate. fn March 1980 he indicated that she had had an ~xcellent 
result from her disc surgery. She complained of some numbness an~ 
slight pain in the right leg with som~ pain in the low back. He 
again fel~ she should be satisfied with her disability award. 

Claimant has worked for her ernplojer for some 20-plus years. 
She h~s a high school educatio~ with an addition2l term of col­
lege. She is able to do hei jdb with apparently few problems. 
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m
ALIDA F. PABRIEL, CLAIMANT
Milo Pope, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Coro Leaal, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-03969
June 18, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members McCallister and. Lewis'.

. The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of-ReCeree
Gemmell' s'order which granted claimant increased awards of compen­
sation for totals equal to 20.25° for 15% loss of
and 80° for .25% unscheduled low back disability,
that the second Determination Order dated May 25,
affirmed. •

the right foot
SAIF contends
.1979 should be

m

The sole issue is extent of disability for both the right
foot and low back.- Claimant had received award, equal to 6.75° for
the right foot and 16° for the low back prior to the issuance of
the Referee's order.

. Ciaim,ant,’a 49-year-old secretary for the Stanfiel.d School
District, sustained a compensable injury to.her low back on June
5, 1974. She was able to return to full-time work in August 1974,
and the claim waS' first closed on November 27, 1974 with no award
for permanent partial disability.

Claimant continued to experience problems, both in her back
and in her legs. On June 28,.1978 she underwent surgery for re­
moval of a protruded intervertebral di.sc. On. August 21, 1973
claimant was-able to return to full-time work with her employer.

Dr. Raaf-, claimant's surgeon, - indicated on November 20, 1978
that claimant was compilaining of a sensory loss on the outer bor­
der of her right foot and .that she cannot - run because of numbness
and weakness of the foot. She also complained, of back ache. On
March 22, 1979, Dr. Raaf stated that she was-still complaining of
numbness which, he feltwould subside eventually. -He found her
right leg did not handicap her from performing her work and her
back pain was much improved.

On May 8, 1979 D
ary on March 16, 1979
necessary. He noted
since August 1978. .1
the award she had bee
quate. In March 1980
result from her disc
slight pain in the ri
again felt she should

r. Raaf indie
and that no
that ..claimant
n July 1979,
n granted by
he indicated
surgery. She
ght leg with
be satisfied

ated that claimant was station-
further curative treatment was
had been working at her old job
Dr. Raaf advised claimant that,
the Evaluation ' Division, was ade-
that she, had had an excellent
complained of some numbness an'd
some pain in the low back.' Ke
with her disability award.

Claimant has worked for her employer for some 20-plus years
She has a high school education with an additional texm of col­
lege, She is-able to-do her job with apparently few problems.
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thorough review of the evtdence,·we ~onclud~ that 
claimant· was adequately. compensated by the award gr ante~ by· the · 9)_ 
Evaluation Division. Dr~ Raaf f"inds little-or no impairment.in 
the right leg and foot~ She ~as a good· educ~li6n, a corisistent 
background. and is :able to c_ontinue to" per_fo:rm her regular job.. We 
find her lo~s of e~rning capacity has been adequately 6bmpensatea. 
The Deterrnin•ation Order is affi z::med. · 

ORDER 

The Refifree's order dated November 14, 1880 •is reversed .. 

The Defe~min~tion Order da~ed May 25, 19J9 is affir~ed • 

. fiARY A •. i,ETMAN. CLAI°MANT 
Pozzi' Wi l_son et. al~ Claimant Is Attorneys 
Lanq~·Klein et al, Qef~nse Attorrieys 
Own Motjon Order : .. · . . 

-WCB 80-05930 
June 18, 1981 

Claim~nt, ~y and through his· attorney, requested the. Board to 
exercise its o~n motion. j~rt~diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278. In 
July 1980 claimant was hospitalized.and had surgery and the car-. 
r.ier denied_ these _-medical services undei:- the pr.o_visions of ORS 
~56.245 •. _Claim~nt r~quesfea·a hearing on ~hi~ denial. 

Th~ Board issued an Order on ·April 13, 1981 in which the par­
ties were infor·rned that until r,7e ·rec~ived a copy o-f the Opinion 
and Order .of the Referee regarding the deriial of medical• ·services·· 
t~~t- we ~quld hold ~laim~n~•s··request for own mofio~ relief in 
abeyance. 

We have now received the Referee's Opinion and Order dated 
May 18, 1981 in which the Referee reversed .the carrier's denial of 
ORS 656.245 .benefits and.remanded the claim· to th~ carrier with-·a 
pen~lty assesse~··ag~inst ,the ~ut~tandtng medical bill~. 

On the own mo"ticin reli.ef .~eque~t,. tne Board c9ncludes that 
claimant's -claim is to be reopened with the payment of compens~­
tion fop· temporary total disability commencing the date of hospi­
talizati6n tn ·July· 19~0 and.6ntil cl6sure i~ autho~ized pursuant 
to ORS 656.278. • . 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
--- ·-· --·---- ··-···. --~ - .. -·---~-~--·······---,. ~---:----

·-l66-

--

·-

We

After a thorough review of the evidence,'we conclude that
claimant was adequately compensated by the award granted by the
Evaluation Division. Dr. Raaf finds little or no impairment in
the right leg and foot. She has a good education, a consistent
background, and is -able to continue to perform her regular job.,
find her loss of earning capacity has been adequately compensated.
The Determination Order is affirmed.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated November 14, 1^980 is reversed,

The Determination Order dated May 25, 1979 is affirmed.

GAR A. GETMAN, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et al. Claimant's Attorneys
Lanq, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys
Own Motion Order

WCB 80 05930
June 18, 1981

Claimant, by and through his- attorney, requested the. Board to
exercise its own motion- jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278. In
July 1980 claimant was hospitalized and had surgery and the car­
rier denied these medical services under the provisions of ORS
656.245. Claimant requested a hearing on this denial.

The Board issued an Order on April 13, 1981 in which the par­
ties were informed that until we received a copy of the Opinion
and Order.of the Referee regarding the denial of medical- services
that we would hold claimant's request for own motion relief in
abeyance.

We have now received the Referee's Opinion and Order dated
May 18, 1981 in which the Referee reversed.the carrier's denial of
ORS 656.245 benefits and-remanded the claim to the carrier with a
penalty assessed against .the outstanding medical bills..

On the own motion relief request, the Board concludes that
claimant's claim is to be reopened with the payment of compensa­
tion for temporary total disability commencing the date of hospi­
talization in July 1980 and Until closure is authorized pursuant
to ORS 656.278.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m

m
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GEORGE LONG, CLAIMANT. 
Richard'•Kropp, ~laima!)t's Attorney 
SAIF Coro.Leqal, D~fense Attorney 
Own Motion Oetermination . . 

Own.Motion·s1-0157M 
,lune 18, 1981 

The B~ard issued its Own Motion Ordei in the above entitled 
matter ·on July 24, 1980 and reopened claimant's claim for a wor­
sened 9ondition related to his industrial ·injury o~ July· lo·, 1973. 

The claim has how bee~ submitted for closur~, and it is the 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the· woikers 1 Co~pen­
satio~ Depart~ent that claimant be grante~ co~pensation forte~­
porary total disability from June 6, 1980 through April 9, 1981' 
and to no·further.award of pe~manent partial disa~ility.· The 
Board concurs in this recommendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

JESSIE QUINTEROS, CLAI~ANT 
Own Motion Determination 

Own Motion-81•0030M 
June 18, 1981 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled 
matter on April 14, 1981 which reo~ened claimant's claim Eor a 
worsened condition related ~o h_i~ May 6, 1974 industrial injury. 

· The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the 
recomrr:e11·dation Of the Evaluation Division of the \'7orkers 1 Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability f~om January 6, 1981 through Febr~ary 16, 
1981 and an additionai award·of 16° f6r 5% unschedul~d disability 
for a·total award of 15%. 

The Board concurs with the recommensation for co~pensation 
for tempor~ry total.disability but disagrees with the awar¢ for· 
permanent partiai disability. Clai~ant. js 46 ye3rs of age, anci 
Dr. Teal rated his impairme~t a~ modera~e•with work ;estrictions 
of avoidance o'f repetitive forward· bending, lat.eral·henc1ing, ro­
tation and extra heavy lifting.· Claimant is a very highly Dotiva­
ted individual. Dr. T~al felt that ~laimant 1 s jo~ description was 
tailored for his needs. 

The Board concludes that clai~ant is entitled t6 a~ ~ddi­
tional award· of 32° for 10% unschedule~ disability for a ccital of 
~0% to adequately compensate him for his loss of wage earning cap­
acity. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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THOMAS GEORGE LONG, CLAIMANT.
Richard Kropp, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF CoroLenal, Defense. Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81-0157M
dune 18, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on July 24, 1980 and reopened claimaivi.'s claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of July lo-, 1973

The claim has how been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the'Workers* Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from June 6, 1980 through April 9, 1981
and to no ' further • award of permanent partial disability.' The
Board concurs in this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

JESSIE QUINTEROS, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0030M
June 18, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on April 14, 1981 which reopened claimant's claim for a
worsened condition related to his May 6, 1974 industrial injury.

• The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted com.pensation for tem­
porary total disability from January 6, 1981 through February 16,
1981 and an additional award'of 16° for 5% unscheduled disability
for a total award of 15%.

The Board concurs with the recommensation for compensation
for temporary total disability but disagrees with the av/ard for'
permanent partial disability. Claimant is 46 yo-^ars of ago, and
Dr. Teal rated his impairment as moderate'with work restrictions
of avoidance of repetitive forward' bending, la teral ' bending , ro­
tation and extra heavy lifting.' Claimant is a very highly motiva­
ted individual. Dr. Teal felt that claimant's job description was
tailored for his needs.

The Board concludes that claimant is entitled to' an' addi­
tional award' of 32° for 10% unscheduled disability for a cdtai of
20% to adequately compensate him for his loss of v;age earning cap­
acity.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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DAVID E. ROBERTSON, CLAIMANT. 
David. W. James; tlaimant 1 s Attorney 
SAI F Corp Le~,a l, Defense Attorney 

WCB 81-05502.a'nd 0wri'Motion 
·s1-0l30M 

June 18, 1981 · 

... On May 6~- 1981 the SAIF Corporation (SAIF) foiwardea co tne 
Board all per-t.inent medical information with i~spect to claimant 1 s 
right. knee. .SAIF r1as agreed· to ·accept responsibility £_or. the.- .s--1r­
gery under Cl~im'.No. D 38265 (August 6, 1974. industiial injury). 

·claimant's a_gg_r,::i.vation rights have expired in this claim, and ror 
that reason the matter ~as referred to the Boatd. Claima~t also 
had:a knee injuri:on October 2i, 1976 (Claim No. D 19i32Sj and 
another injury. on December 23, 1980 (Claim No. ·D 501557). The ·n·ew · 
injury has been deni~d by SAIF, a~d claimant has requesied a hear­
ing on that deriial. This matter is'currenily pen4ing i~ the Hear­
ings Division under WCB Case No. 81-05502. 

The Boar ct· feels that it would be· in the best in ter·es ts of the 
_parties involved if the own motion request were consolia·a:.ect·wit.h 
.the pending regues~ for hearing for a combined hear{ng. we· heieby 
instruct ihe R~feree to take evidence in both claims to.deter­
mine: 1) Is,· or was, clai~ant suffering from worsened c6nditi6ns 
as a result Of his August 1974· iridustrial injury; 2) is tne nee~ 
for surgery-the r~sult of his August 1974 injury cir the .new inj~ry 
suffered on December 23, '1980; and 3) is claimant's c·laim-i'or a · 
new_injury of-December 23, 1980 compensable? Upon conclus~on oi 
the h·ear ing, the Referee shall cause a transcript to be.- prepared &\ 
and forward_ed to the ·Board together with his recommendati,rn· wit:h' • 
respect to the own mo~ion cl2.1i111. 

IT IS SO QRDERED. 
' ' ··. : 

KENfllETH V. WARING, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination 

The Board issued .its Own 
mattet on Decembei 19, 1980. 
worsened condi~ion related to 
trial· 'injury .• 

Claim ·133 cs· 6929~52 
June 18, 1981 · · 

Motion .Order in the above ent_i tled: ... 
The claim was ordere~· reoperied for a· 
claimant's October 6, 1973 indus~ 

15, 
The 
the 
22, 

·Upon request of 
1981 to allow the 
c~rrier failed t6 
December 19, 1980 
1981. · · 

the carrier, our order was abated on January 
carrier to provide addit1onal information. 
provide additional •ihformation; theiefore, 
Own Motion O~der was rep~bli~hed on Ap~il 

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the 
recornrn·enda tion o·f the -Evaluation Divis ion of· the Workers_'· Corripen~ 
satio11 D~~ar~ment that ·claimant be granted compens~tion for tern~ 
porary-~otal disa~iiity from November 7, -1980 through M~rch. 31, 
19 81 and no · fur the-r. award of permanent part ia 1 d j sabi-1 i ty. The. 
Bqard concurs;with this .r~commendation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED .. 

. -1€8-

·--

DAVID E. ROBERTSON, CLAIMANT
David, W. James, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Lepai, Defense Attorney

WCB 81 05502.and Own Motion
;:.'81 0130M

June 18, 1981

■ On May 6/ 1981 the SAIF Corporation (SAIF) forwardeo. to tne
Board all pertinent medical information with respect to claimant's
right knee. .SAIF has agreed to accept responsibility for,. the--sar-'
ge'ry under Claim'No. D 38265 (August 6, 1974 industrial injury) ..
Claimant's aggravation rights have expired in this claim, and tor
that reason the matter was referred to the Board. Claimant also
had'a knee injury^on October 25, 1976 (Claim No. D 192325) and
another injury.on December 23, 1980 (Claim No. D 501557). The new
injury has been denied by SAIF, and claimant has requested a' hear­
ing on that denial. This matter is currently,pending in the Hear­
ings Division under WCB Case No. 81-05502.

The Board' feels that it would be in the best interests of the
parties involved if the own motion request were consolidated with
the pending request for hearing for a combined hearing. We hereby
instruct the Referee to take evidence in both claims to,deter­
mine: 1) Is, or was, claimant suffering from worsened conditions
as a result of his August 1974 industrial injury; 2) is tne need
for surgery the result of his August 1974 injury or the new injury
suffered on December 23, 1980; and 3) is claimant's claim for a
new injury of December 23, 1980 compensable? Upon conclusion of
the hearing, the Referee shall cause a transcript to be prepared
and forwarded to the Board together with his recommendation with'
respect to the own motion claim.

m

IT IS SO ORDERED.

KENNETH V. WARING. CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Claim 133 CB 6929352
June 18, 1981

.The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled -
matter on December 19, 1980. The claim was ordered' reopened for a
worsened condition related to claimant's October 6, 1973 indus­
trial injury..

15,
The
the

22,

Upon request of the carrier, our order was abated on January
1981 to allow the carrier to provide additional information,
carrier failed to provide additional information; therefore,
December 19, 1980 Own Motion Order was republished on April
1981.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary-total disability from November 7, 1980 through March 31,
1981 and no furthex. award of permanent partial disability. The.
Board concurs.with this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
-168-
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WALTER .J. DETHLEFS, CLAIMANT 
Richard·.s1y, .Claimant rs Attorneys 
Roaer Warren, Defense Attorney 
Reauest for Review by Emp1 oyer 

WCB -79-04604 · .. T 
June 19,'1981 

Re~i~wed ~y Board Members Barnes ana McCalliiter~--

,' :·· .. -

. The ~mpioyer seeks Bo~rd review of Ref~ree Pferdner'.s o:cer 
whicri set: as1de its. denic.1.l. and f o..:.nd Clo imant I s ·occupat::. Gt:Jl ·dis..:_ 
ease. cla irn :f Or· vasomo'tor r hini tL:; and btadacnes · to be ·coL_i?,;;:nsable·. . ,. . . . . 

It i ::a. ·c,laima!1 t I s theory that _his resp ir a tory-r elat.ed· pr0blems 
are caused _-oy dust, smoke, fumes and particulate :-natter to w!".ich · 
he is exposed a~ work~ ·The Referee .found, " ••• 6lai~ant 1 s employ- . 

. ment was.a .~ubstantial contributing cause to his ·vasom6to~ rhini~ ~1 . 

tis and ·that the va·somotor rhinitis was a sub·sta:-.tial cc,·,:cib.uting 
cause oi 6i~imant 1 s h~adaches." We agree~ · 

7he problem~ ho~eve'r ,· is whether. 11 subs !=dntial._ cont:- ]';:.J
0 t i~g _ 

·cau~e" continuei·to be the. legal-test.in this.tjp~ of :cic~LJational 
disease c~~e~ ··rn Thbrnpsori ·v. ·SAIF, 51 Or App 395 (1981), t~e 

_Court-of· Appeals held. a respiratory occupc.tional· diseas0 (;i.aim WctS 

·not· compen_able when the· evidence documented it ·was caus<2c bv _both 
on-work arid off-work exposure. Reading between the line·~. it ' 
would appeat that the on-woik.expcsure involved in Tho~psoh ~as a 
substantial ~ontributing cause. So the ·court's re~ult in Thorn~~on. 
must amo~nt to a rejection of the "~ubstaritial cunt~ib~ti~g caLse" 
test for this type of occu~ational disease claim. :aa~ncr, the· 

-proper· test is whether _ the disease was caused solely_ by tte wor.k 
environmerit. 

Claim.ant ·aces not,· and on this record coula not, o.rgui.: _his 
-,~initis is:~~~sed solely ~y'his work environmen~-- _Bas~o-on:tGsts 
one ooctor. ·:·£ ound claimant "quite strikingly" allerg lC ,to s :.;ch . ' 
things as.house aust and freshly~~own grass~ It i~ imp0~s~b1~·to 
separate ihe eff~cts o~·on-woik arid off~w6rk expo~~re i~ c~using 
clairnan~•s condition. But it is_•inescapable that:both on-wor.k-~na 
off~wor~-e~POsures cont~ibute to that coriditibn. Gnder Tncm~so~, 
this is not enough for the condition to be compensable.· 

.. . ORDER .. 

. The Referee's order dated June 27, 1980 is reverseci ilnd ~~e. 
employer's denial is reinstated. 

-169-
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o

WALTER J. DETHLEFS, CLAIMANT
Richard SIy, Claimant's Attorneys
Roger Warren, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by Employer

WCB 79-04604
June 19, 1981

Reviewed'by Board Members Barnes and McCallister--

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Pferdner's orcer
whicri set aside, its, denial, and foand claimant's occupationai dis-.
ease, claim .f or vasomotor rhinitis and headaches to be con.pensabie.

It is,claimant's theory that his respiratory-related problems
are caused by dust, smoke, fumes and particulate matter to which
he is exposed at work. The Referee .found, .claimant' s employ-. .
ment was ;a .substantial contributing cause to his vasomoto: rhini- ..
,tis and. that. the vasomotor rhinitis was a substantial, ccnrribuuing
cause of.claimant?s headaches," We agree.

The problem, however, is whether "substantial.contrJbjting
cause" continues'to be the. legal test in this,type of occupational '
disease case. In Thompson v. SAIF, 51 Or'App 395 (1981), tr.e
,Court'of Appeals held a respiratory occupational disease claim was
■npfcompenable when the'evidence documented it was causec by both
dn-work and off-work exposure. Reading between, the lines, it
would appear that the on-work exposure involved in Thompson was a
substantial,contributing cause. So the court's result in Thompson.,
must amount to a rejection of the "substantial contributing cause"
.test for this type of occupational disease claim. . Rat.ner, the
proper test is whether the disease was caused solely.by the work
environment.

Claimant does not, and on this record could not, argue his
rhinitis is.caused solely by'his work environment.. Basea-on. tests
one doctor.'found claimant "quite strikingly" allergic-.to such
things as.house oust and. freshly-mown grass. . It is impossible .to
separate the effects of'on-work and off-work exposure in causing-
claimant's condition. But it'Is inescapable :that:both on-work and
off-work■exposures contribute to that condition. Under Tnompson,
this is not enough for the condition to be compensable. ■

ORDER

The .Referee's order dated June 27, 1980
employer's denial is reinstated.

is reverseu and the.
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riERALD E. OAR; .CLAIMANT 
: ·, '. 

Kenne"th:D/.Peterson·, Jr., Claimant 1 s Attorney 
:·'Marcus K.Ward, oe:ren?e Attorney 
:·· Reauest -f()r-. Review -b,Y Claimant 

•···· - - ' --~ ---···-···· ,, '--~-~ ...... _,.,_ ~-- ----

. _ Reyie\.-::2d by,. B"oard Member S Barne S and 'McCall ist:.e r •· 

·,.;: !'" 

• • • • ' • • ·, • - t • • • • "'I,, • '·, ' • • ' ' ' .. 

": The claimant :seeks Board· _review of ·those. por.tion/,}ot:_Jetere": - -;­
Mannix' s qrde:r whfch:, (a) denieci fu_ll rein1burserri'e11t:6fi•actua·1- -· .. ': 
travel expeQs~s ihcurrea by claimant in ton~ectibn'witW . 
trans0ortation. costs between his residence· in LaPine and-·_his ·'-

- - ~' • ~ - • f -: '.. - • • ~ c' - - • ' • ' -- -- ' i ~ . . - • .. • . 

chir:opracto;'s office in Eugene; -(b) upheld-the SAIF C9r?o-ca_t1on·-s 
- a'e, facto. __ deri,ial. of. <;:laimant, S- putative aggrava ti6n-.·c~ai,:n Jn_.reg_aro -
to his· low .back .c 9_nd it ion; and _ ( c) denied claimant's., requ,e_s ts, f_or · 
penalties: and _attorney fees for the alleged unreasonabl~ :conduc·t·. -' .: 

.- :Qi.\ -• 

-of SAIF in:·~its fa~lure to ~_ccept or deny oth·er tnan on_ a, c'.e_·;fci·ct? ·_ 
bas-is a_ny _.one· of t_hree possible claims tor aggra.vation'":_da,t~a·,.AI;'.t; 11 ·· .-
30.,_ ~980,, May- 19, 1980 and· May 20, 1980. The. Referee·'_s o~aer,.c_i_d_, 
allow ·claiajarit' s -aggravation claim regarding_ h'it! :ne·ck:cor:1di.tiOt1</ :;-. 
~nd :::-emanded it-for_ payment of.cotnpensation., -·1t:f_ur.the()9-_ward_eq_':_-.; 
_an': attorn~y· fee of· $600" payabl·e by\SAIF-, ·-foe services:?re,hdere'p· 1 n•: 
,o_vertu;ning ._ the de: _facto. denial of ·the agg.ra\,ati_on-' claim /o_r- the,_.:"· ... _ 
neck condition.-. The. Referee. oraered ·reimbursement, for·\travel,/:_"'_:, -' - -· 
expenses e,qual . to trave·l costs between -LaPi n'e)and- Bend f;Or·: e·ac'r~~i\:i'f ,-_ ·· · 

_·,the -clairnant•s· trips: to Eug~ne and awarded ·$100 irl' att_o(n~y<fec,§\;·, _ . ·· -
· for serv ice_s· rendered in partially overt urning SAIF "s''.-de'.1iaL ot, ;,, __ < ·: 
· reimbursement f_or any. of the travel expenses_ .. ···•· ,. . ' ,'.: _. __ :: -'."__:-,,'.·, 

.. ir;-e 'Board- affir~s and adopts the Re,feree'.s. o.rde;c ~xc~pt.;EfS;_:: ·' .. _ · ___ _ 

· foll:ows: _ ... · , _. 
, ~: -· 

_ (1) The_.Refe'ree'.s ruling that claimant had. not_ i;froven a· _-: 
corripensabl~;aggravation of his low back -was gratuit'ous··and_,wil_l;.be .·, '.·. 
reversed.: Given wholesale-imprecision on both sides ·abouLw_hat· ·._ :· .. · 
was being cl<?-imed and what was be i"ng den 1e.d ,· the 'Referee 1.s _rul_.\09 ·. ·• _; , , 
is understandi3:ble.·. Ne.ve_rtheless, claimant's ;brie{.presenfs a·: >·_,_ -:_· 

cogent ar·gurnent that h.is low. back disabilit:.y-,'{£ any; w'a:~r,;-:1ev~r ':-_a;i:_,.:·.: 
,issue in· thes.e· proceedings. . - .. , ·. - 1 ,:, '·, 

•' i • • • < • ' 1' • ~ • r • •• 

·-'--- ----- --~ ,---------~-~-- ··-... '--r'_:;-·~~., ·-,':' -:··~·! ~,--;,.,: --: .. 

. _· (2) Much of. the Refere_e '_s analysis WuS based·, on -t~e; :co~c~p~·., >· _ 
:of a·· "de _fa~to ~enial. _" That term has gai"ned. wicie'sprea·a· usag~ .l~ · ·. -

; wor k __ er s' ;Co;npensa t'ion practice without the benef_i t _·ot· .ahy bas1_s, _ -_in :,-- · 
the statutes,: rule_s or _case law. common usage of a term_·v11_th•_no··. ·_ 
clear ·1egal ·-basis. is an _unusual and undesirable .way _t.o -~men~ the. la)'i. - . . ' ·· ·. _,. ,, . . ·1 • 

·- ·:, < ._·. 'I'.rie· -l'~w- __ on'iy' .'recognize·s actual. ( "de j ~ren)': q~h,{'aI~··.:··~·-::_,_N~,t .. _·;·~~~e-, . 
. b_ut·'•twJc~ ·.the Legislature' has ---stated. that ae'n iai' must .be -by.··•· .. : . ·,.; :_ 

; . .- '·_ .. _._· '.'writ.ten _not-.~ce·.·n 'O~S: 656.-262 (5) ;·· 656>262"(6) ,_.' BGt the _Conc~p_t. of : 
· -:-·:: '··.:., .·. , "tje :fa~to· .denial;'.''. ·as, ·we understand it, -has· c·cime -to,.:iii~2i;ri -,a .. :: -·-.i ·. _-:,_: :--·.: _ . _ . . 

. ·- . .- · .. · .. · ·.'' c"artier' s, J:a_il~re :to·.respo·nd. to _a claim on'e _way oi:- thE,>.-:_pt__her·_ · ·._:'.-::~ ,:-.. · -··.·, 
:- ·: ;·; ',' ,, > ', ,wi,th~n 60: ,day~_- as-- required .by" o~s 65 ~. 26'2 {5)'- ·and/or: '-_f~irt;i~e,,-t:O:, ··; ., . ·: ·. 
'\;'.:_ -. .-. __ ·._ b~gi0_·p9y_{ng:_:.irit·e~·im·compen·~ation oh th~ 14th·ctay a:~ f,eq;:1.i._~~d_ .. ~l;: ·._._, .. _ ._·.a 

__ ..... : ·, .. , ORS· 656. 262:(4) -.:_ ·.-This ·concept, in other words·,· gives t_he: ?a~e-:· ·, -:-'. ·:- . W 
·:·:·::': ... _.· .. · · leg'a.l'.· ef_f.ect to ~arriei .inaction as the Leg·i~lature has. Q-_i,ve,n: ·to,· 
. _·-:_· .·.,_,. specific·c,(rr~ef actiqn,· ··i.e.; written notice•iof.'denia).:~·:,:. : .... _:- -.. 
.... ' ---~ •. · •• -., _,; . ' •, --·---· _· .• _· -,-- !.·- :..._~-:-·~.:_---:::-_-,-.-.... :-----, .•• _. J--: .. -;-:---:;.-, --------:---,--;--- - ·-·--~-

.... . -~- ... ' .... . 
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GERALD E. OAR, CLAIMANT
KennetH:Dj;.Peterson, Jr.,, ClaimantVs Attorney
'Marcus K. ;Ward, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by .Clainiiant

W B 80 04513 :' >■
June,19;^ imA

;Reyi-,ewed- by-.Board', Members Barnes and McCaliisterV-;:;'"-.;-

eeBoard-.review of those,- portlonsi'of: Refe
SeT (a) -denieo foil reimbursement,. Ofactual

claimant- in^ connection^wrth- i
Ohironrso?^'between his residence ;in LaEine .and- his: i
dW fsc^n in.Eugene; -(b). upheia.the SAIF.-epfporation-ts.
to hVw'io = claimant's, putative aggrayati6n-',-c.laim-;in./regarci

J-. 1 ^^.PG.dition; -and,(c} denied Giaimant's.', requests'■ for,
of c A -rp fees.for the .alleged unreasonabld-'conduc't' ■
basis to accept or deny other. tnan dn:-a-de.:factb--

Vain possible claims for aggravatioh^datedlApril
"allow'oi ana-.May 20, 1980'. ■ The.'-Re.f ef ee'.’.slo'rder^.q id>;
and ^p'm;^'nr^pa'' . claim regarding- h'islne'ck-eondi.ti.onl'l';
an\;fornfv r ■ of',compensation.:;-^I,thfurther:::atv-ardedt'.
over turn fho ' fh^' Payable byl-SAlF-/ -for* services'-*.-rehdered>',in
.overturning.,;thede^,facto_denial of :the aggr avatidrivclaimllpr'thed;,::

. condition, V The..Referee■ oroered ■ reimbursementsneck
expenses equal, to- travel costs betwe.en ■ LaPine"-an'd;\Behd.._fpr'Veachlib^^
the claimant' s tr ips ^ to Eugene and awarded "$100 .'in attorney 'teep;.'':
-.-f or, service,S'- rendered' in. partially-overturning SAIF':Si'''de-niaii. o£.. .1;;
reimbursement for any- of the travel-expenses,.,: , ..-hi'd'.

'-The, Board’'affirms and adopts the'.Referee' s order'".except:'as.
■follows:' '/h'd. si'.V-.'t

m

(1) The ...Referees ■ r uling that claimant- had. not.'.-p'ro.yen a :
compensable' aggravation of his low back was gratuitous';ahd 'wiri,vbe
reversed,'-- Given wholesale imprecision on both .sides' abput:.what
was being ,'dl^imed-and what '.was being -denie.d,- the 'Referee'-s' f ul^n'g
is .under standable Nevertheless^ claimant's ^br ief-. presents a„
cog.ent’ argument ..that his low, back disability', ;■ if ..any wa s . ,never ian
i-s su.e in ■ t he se pr oc eed ing s.

^of
work
the

(2) .Much-;,of..the;-- Referee's . analysis was based' on,':the:.concep-t:i'
a--"de .fac.tp denial". " ' That term■ has gained., wiaesprea’a-usage'.in•a> c « • gJ • : 0.11 IU L. J. JU • uaa ycaxucu. w w.

Pt^ctlce without .the.'benef.it 'pf".ah 'basis:-in
■- ■■ or .case law. Common usag'e .of .a ternilv/it.h:l'i6'''.,'

• • ^ ti V>clear' -'-legal'-basis; is anunusual' and undesirable-w'ay .t.o--;amend: ;tho, -„
law.

The law only
.but twice the Leg
"written .notice.'"
"do facto denial,
carrier's. failure
within 60' days as
begin paying Virite
ORS- 656.262 (4) ...
legal effect to c
specific carrier

recognizes actual, (* de jure ) .dehi als. V hNot ,once

- hy
ORS, 656.262(5); 656.'’262 (6) . But the co'nce'pt of

, as-we understand It, - has- come ■ tbg-mean -a,,-''.'... *,-V;
to respond, to a claim one way or the other' , .■ required .by' ORS. 656.26'2 (5)'- and/ot-fail'ure.-to;/'-
rim,compensation on the 14th. day as’ r.equ.i.red by£
IS concept, in other words', gives the' same--;!'

arrier inaction as the Legislature has given- to'
action, l.e., written , notice'„of,'denia'll-S':'

#
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Board bas- s~rious doubts ab6ut.th~ continuing vitali~y 
of. the "de facto denial .. - concept. However, given. the 

•• 
. long-standirig _ _"acceptance. ·of· that c·oncept and the fact -that no"_ 
party ~as here phall~nged it, we will affirm the Referee's or6~r­
even though" it :"is based i"r-1 large· part on a conce:pt .of d"ouji:ful 
val id i ty ~ ·,.· •. 

. ' ' . . . 

ORDER ·. 

'I'he. order: of the Referee dated October :22 ;, . 1980 is· modified 
to _elim{~~t~ ·any:r~feren6~ to ilaimant's low:back riisability, if 
any, and.·ii af£ir~~d in.all· other respectsr · · 

---------------~ -, --- ------•r~ • .. ,.~·· ~- ........ --- _-----· ._ 

,. 

·, 

LOYCE·D. ,ROBINSON, CLAIMANT 
Pozzi'. Wilson. et ·al·, . Claimant Is 'Attorneys 
SAIF Cot".n -Le9al, Defense .Attorney . . · . 
Own Motion Detenriination 

·Own.Motion 81.;.0150M 
·_June 19;.1981 

·.- '---· .. ··-------··--··-Tne. ·c1~·trnanE·\;·uf f ~re:a·. a:· cornpens~_ble industrial. i nj L! ry ·on May · _ 
6, 19 7 4, a_nd his- cl aim was 'initially· closed by. a -Dete rinina t i_on . 

. Order of· August 7·; . 19 7 4.. · 'A second - De term.ina tion Order was issued 
on March·. 4··, ·-:·'19'76 wherein claimant was cir anted lot unsc'hed~l-ed . ; 
disability.·:·· Claimant requeste"d a hearing,. and by an Opini6n and·· 
Order of December 6, _·1976 claiman_t.was .granted an additional.award 
of 40% uris_cheduled disability. · · · · · .- . · · · 

. ,: . .~ . ' . ' 

, .. On· September · 2, · •19 80 ~ after aggravation r igh_t s: had exp ired, 
cla~rnant ,wa~ pla6ed.in .an ·authorized program of v9cational . 

•• rehabilitition and fhe clairn•w~s.reopenea.· This program wa~ 
completed:·cfri·. S~ptember 26, 1980 •. - On September ~2, 1980 ·a ·_ 

· stipulation:· of: the .. parties was entered into which granted _clailTlant 
an a~d i tiona_l.· 10~ unschedu_led disabi·l i ty for a tot a i of '6 0_% -~ : · .- . 

~ ' • • • • • • , • ' r < • 

.. _·· ... After :·corripletion. of _the :vocational rehabiiita"tion .program or1 · 
September 26 ~ 1980,. the Evaluation. bi vision. issued ·a .Dete rmina t iori 
cider· under the ~r6visions of ~RS 656.268. This tssuanc~ of~ 
tieterrninatio~:Oid~r:·wa~··1n ·eiior as claim~nt's ag~ravation rights 
ex~ired in ~ug~~~-1979.: Th~ 6iai~a~t retjuested a hearihg ~6n this 
Determination· 'Order,. but prio•r to a. h·e_ar ing bein·g held. a 
stipulatio~'of-~the.parties was: entered ·into Because clai~ant:had 
been placed''i!r:i. anpther authori~ed program of vo.catio~al · . · .. -. i 
rehabilitat"ion. · The stipulation. of. the partie·s ·was dated.·March·_ 
30, 1981 ard ~ntiil~d cl~irnant· to litigate all iss~es raisej cir . 
raisable ·by :the r~quest for hearing on the Dete.rmination Order. of 
October 13 · 198·0. _-· · · · ·· 

' . ·' . . 

.. The claim·· has.· now been submitted.- for clo.s:tire ·since · claimant-·. 
has complet~d bi_s authorized program:as of May 10, ·1981 .•. Based·._on 
the above -the·· Board ·~inds that· the. peterrnination order .dated .· 
October 13, 1980 is· :/.nvalid and. is hereby lield for naught :because 
clai~ant's i~gravat~on rights had ~~pired .in 1979~ ·. · · ·· 

--·-· -- ··-·--·-·---:-;--cYaimari_t. {s"""}i'~~ei;~/granted· co.npensation. f~r: tempor_aT)' totaJ 
disability.frorn·s~piember 2; ·1980- through ·Sepi~mber 2~; 1980 ~nd. 
{ro~- No~ernber 10, 1980 through December 4, ·1980· and furth~r ~rorn'­
n~cember 22~- L980 throug~ May 10, 1981. · Cliimant is ~oi. e~tiiled. 
to ~ny fut~h~r_award f6r.perrnanent ·partial ·aisability~ · · 

. - . . . ~ . . . . .. 
. . . •· ,· ·---- ~--~-- _,_ 

IT IS $0 ORtiERED. -171-
--~-~-~------~--,----... . . . . . . ..... 

This Board has serious doubts about.the continuing vitality
of .the "de facto denial" concept. However, given.the
lpng-standihg..acceptance of that concept and the fact -that no',
party has here .challenged it, we will affirm the Referee's order
even though"it Vis based in large part on a concept of doubtful
validity. V

ORDER

The order: of. the Referee dated October -22,,'1980 is modified
to. .eliminate any; r'eference to .claimant's low; back disability, it
anyand is af firmed . in all other respects.

#

LO CE D.,ROBINSON. CLAIMANT
Pozzi.Wilson,et a1,.Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corn Lepal, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own.Motion 81 0150M
.June 19i 1981

The claimant suffered a compensable industrial.injury on May '
6, 1974, and his claim was initially closed by a Determination
Order of August 7-,. 1974.. A second Determination Order was issued
on March 4, ;1976 wherein claimant was granted 10^ unscheduled
disability.- Claimant requested a hearing, and by an Opinion and- '
Order of December 6, 1976 claimant.was granted an additional.award
of 40% unscheduled•disability.

. On September 2, ■ 1980, after aggravation rigb.ts’had expired,
claimant was placed,in an authorized program of vocational
rehabilitation and- the claim was.reopened. This program was -
completed on.September,26, 1980. On September 22, 1980 a
stipulation;of- the.parties was entered into which granted claimant
an adcitional 10% unscheduled disability for a total of 60%.

After ^.completion . of .the .vocational rehabilitation program oh
September 26, 1980, the Evaluation. Division.issued a Determination
Order under the provisions of ORS 656.268. This issuance of a
Determination.. Order- was in error as claimant.’ s aggravation rights
expired in August 1979. ' The claimant requested a hearing on this
Determination Order, -but prior to a'hearing being -held a
stipulation ' of .the, par ties was- entered into because .claimant; had
been placed'-’in another authorized pr.ogram of vocational ' -• -
rehabilitation. The stipulationof the parties was dated. March
30, 1981 and entitled claimant to litigate all issues raised or
raisable by,the request for hearing on the Determination Order, of
October 13 , 1980.'

The claim■has, now been submitted, for closure since claimant ;
has completed.his authorized program.as of May 10, 1981. . Eased .on
the above the' Board 'finds that the. Determination Order .dated
October 131980 is invalid and is hereby held for naught because
claimant's aggravation rights had expired .in 1979. . ■ . .

'Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary total:
disability.; from September 2, 1980 through September 26, .1930 and.
from-November-. 10, 1980 through December 4, 1980 and further from---
■December 22, 1980 through May 10, 1981. Claimant is not. entitled
to any further.award for permanent partial disability.

IT IS SO ORDERED. -171-
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BARNETT, CLAIMANT 
· Rick Roll. Claimant's Attorney 
MacDonald, Mccallister et al, Defense Attorneys 
Lang, Klein et al,. Defense Attorneys 
Schwabe, Williamson et ·a1, Defense Attorneys 
Order Denying Remand 

WCB 79-07210 and 79-11012 
June 25, 1981 

The· EBI Compiny has filed a motion that we regard as being in 
the nature of a motion to remand to the Referee on the ground of 
newly-discovered evidence. The hearing was held before Referee 
Neal on July 31, 1980. The evidence that EBI wants the record re­
opened to admit consists of Dr. Heinonen's August 28, 1980 r~port. 

EBI first raised this issue before the Board by motion dated 
November 19, 1980. We denied EBI's motion by order dated December 
16, 1980 that stated in part: · 11 In our review, we will decide.~. 
whether we should consider it [i.e., Dr. Heinonen's rep6rt]."_ 
Claimant's attorney protested repeatedly and forcefully that· until 
the Board resolved this evidentiary question, it was impossible 
for him to brief this case for Board review. That criticism 

· seemed ·weli taken, so we scheduled this case for oral argument on 
the evidentiary question. 

Ther~ is some doubt whether, absent stipulation of the par­
ties, th is Boa rd ·can consider evidence that was not i ntt"oduced 
before a Refe~ee. See Brown v. SAIF, si Or App 389 (1981). 
Ther~fore, even though EBI's motion was for the Board to consider 
Dr. Heinonen's report, we treat it as a motion to remand to the 
Referee for introduction of that report. 

ORS 656.295(5) authorizes this Board to remand to a referee 
"for_ f_urther evidence taking." In Buster v. Chase Bag Co. , 14 Or 
App 323, 329 (1973), the Court of Appeals stated this Boa.rd "has 
very broad discretion under ORS 656.295(5) ." However, our discre­
tion is limi~ed by our rules. OAR 436-83-700(5) states: 

"If Board review is sought on newly­
disc6vered evidence, the request shodld 
conform to Rule 83-480 (2)." 

OAR 436-83-480(2). provides: 

"A motion to reconsider ... shall state: (a) 
The nature of the new evidence; and (b) an 
explanation :why the evidence could not r-ea­
sonably_ have been discovered an~ produce~ 
at_ the ·hearing." 

In sum, our_g~neral ?RS 656.295{5).discretion to remand depends 
upon a specific showing that material -evidence "could not· reason- 1 

ably· hav~ been discovered-and produced at the hearing." 
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ROBERT A. BARNETT, CLAIMANT
Rick Roll, Claimant’s Attorney
MacDonald, McCallister et al. Defense Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al,. Defense Attorneys
Schwabe, Williamson et al, Defense Attorneys
Order Denying Remand

WCB 79-07210 and 79-11012
June 25, 1981

The'EBI Company has filed a motion that we regard as being in
the nature of a motion to remand to the Referee on the ground of
newly-discovered evidence. The hearing was held before Referee
Neal on July 31, 1980. The evidence that EBI wants the record re­
opened to admit consists of Dr. Heinonen's August 28, 1980 report.

first raised this issue
19, 1980. We denied

before the Board by motion dated
EBI's motion by order dated December
"In our review, we will decide,;,
[i.e.. Dr. Heinonen's report]."

EBI
November
16, 1980 that stated in part:
whether we should consider it
Claimant's attorney protested repeatedly and forcefully that’until
the Board resolved.this evidentiary question, it was impossible
for him to brief this case for Board review. That criticism
seemed well taken, so we scheduled this case for oral argument on
the evidentiary question.

There is some doubt whether, absent stipulation of the par­
ties, this Board can consider evidence that was not introduced
before a Referee. See Brown v. SAIF, 5i Or App 389 (1981).
Therefore, even though EBI's motion was for the Board to consider
Dr. Heinonen's report, we treat it as a motion to remand to the
Referee for introduction of that report.

ORS 656.295(5) authorizes this Board to remand to a referee
"for further evidence taking." In Buster v. Chase Bag Co., 14 Or
App 323, 329 (1973), the Court of Appeals stated this Board "has
very broad discretion under ORS 656.295(5)." However, our discre
tion is limited by our rules. OAR 436-83-7,00 (5) states;

"If Board review is sought on newly-
■ discovered evidence, the request should
conform to Rule 83-480 (2) ."

OAR 436-83-480(2). provides:

"A motion to reconsider ... shall state: (a)
The nature of the new evidence; and (b) an
explanation why the evidence could not rea­
sonably have been discovered and produced
at the hearing."

In sum, our general ORS 656.295(5) discretion to remand depends
upon a specific showing that material evidence "could not reason
ably have- been discovered.and produced at the hearing."

#

#
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· In imple~enting this standard~ we hav~ available g~id~rice 
from t~e C6uit•-of Appeal~'. und~r an anal~gous statute •. ORS. . 

·. ··_659.298'(9) _pe.tmits that·· court to. "hear additional evidenc·e·· con-· 
cerning. d:i'sability that was not obtainable: at the time of the_.· 
hearing._" -. (Emphasfs ·Added.) . The difference between 'this· statute 
('inot: obtainable"). and our. rule_ ("could not reas·onably have. been· 

_ discovered and _produced'.'): is merely a f\latt-~r· of semantics; in. con.­
cept the two standards ·are the ~ame.· 

. Court. o:f: Appeals dec.isio~·s · have defined -these. standards~ In 
Man.sf ield v. Caplener Br·os., _ 3 Or App 4 4 8, _ 452, the court sai"d"" 
that ~vidence·that_was "not available" for the he~ring was·not the· 
same thing as evi_dence ·being "not obtainable. II Evidence might ·be 
not available·solely because no. party has as~~d a doctor to· write 
a report~ :,.Such ev"idence· is· _obtainable fo_r a hearing· simply by­
askin_g_· that· ft be.,generat~d. 

Alring thi~ line, ~he'~o~~~ has repeatedly i~posed a require~ 
ment of du~_~iligence. i~ase wlil not be ieopened ~ve~ if evi­
dence w~s ~h~vailable at ~ear{ng _if the evidence could have been·· 
obJained by. d.iligent effort.' Logue v. SAIF 43 Or App- 991 __ (1979); 
Peterson v •. Travelers Ins. , 21_ Or. App 6_37 ( 19 7 5) : Maumary v. Ma:r:-· 
fair Markets,- -1_4· Or App 180. (1973). · As ·an· exampl~ of an effort 
that falls: short of· due diligence, .the court has ruled that <;1 re­
mand .should not be granted ~het a Referee his ruled a~ainst a 
party and :it appears th.at party merely w.1.shes ·to strengthen his· , 
case with additi°onal ·evidence that could have been produced at the 

. hea·r ing:~ . Buster .-v. Ch-ase Bag. Co.~ supra.. ' . . ' 
' ' . 

Other_- lapguage .. the_· Coult of App.eal:{ has . used includes tha·t it· 
should be "cleaiff that evidence-was unobtainable at the time of 
hearing· and "there should be "good cause" 'constituting a ··11 compel­
'Iing basis~ fo~ ~em~nd. Brenner·~. Industrial Indemnity c6., 30 
Or; App 69. (1977) ·;, Tanner v. P & C Tool Co., 9 Or App. 463 · (1972). -
Bised o~ fh~·iesults in· the abo~e cases, alt generalJ~-~enyin~ re­
mand~ it could ?~so be said that rem~nd is .hot~favored; 

··At.the -6~her end ~f th~ s~ectrum, about the,o~ly case·1n 
which the Court- of, Appeals found evidence wa::, .·not obtainable a_t 
t~e time-· of the Referee '.s ·hearing ·.fs Berov v. SAIF, 51_ · Or App _3.33 
(~~81). Iri· that case the new ~vidence rela~ed.to a compensabl~ ~ 
6onsequenc~ 6f-an.=industria1··injury. that wa~·_n6t. even- ~edically. 
discovered.:untii :1ong after tpe· hearinq. . . . . 

1 · _The B~ara··aaopts these judic'ial doctri_nes _as_.its· 9wn ,inte:r~-
p~etation of its own rule govetnin~ ~emands, OAR 436~83-480(2). 
-T,o merit·- remand. it must be clearly shown that material ·evidence 
w:as .not obtainable with due .diligence before .the hearing. · Just a 
statement·. that ev-idence was- "not available II for hearing is insuf-
f icienL _ Moreo_ver, ·given that due diligence _is·. the most import:anb:· 
decisional variable, the Board_ expects the moving_ party's efforts ·. 
to obtain the evidence. inqu.estion to be detai.led in an affida.vit 
fn · support· of a. mot ton t_o rem~nd. 

.. --, ··-. ,, 
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■ In implementing this standard, ,we have available guidance
from the Court of Appeals under an analogous statute.. ORS
656.298(6) .permits that court to "hear additional evidence con-'
cerning disability that was not obtainable at the time of the,,
hearing.;" (Emphasis Added.) .The difference between this statute
{"not obtainable") and our, rule.("could not reasonably have.been
discovered and produced") is merely a matter' of semantics; in. con­
cept the, two standards are the same.

Court.of - Appeals decisions have defined these standards. In
Mansfield v, Caplener Bros., 3 Or App 448, 452, the court said
that evidence that.was "not available" for the hearing was not the
same thing, as evidence being "not obtainable." Evidence might be
not available-solely because no party has asked a doctor to write
a report. -Such evidence is obtainable for a hearing simply by
asking, that it be. generated. . •

Along.this line, the court has repeatedly imposed a require­
ment of due.diligence. A case will not be reopened even if evi­
dence was unavailable at hearing if the evidence could have been
obtained by-diligent effort,' Logue v. SAIF 43 Or App 991 (1979);
Peterson v,. Travelers Ins., 21 Or. App .637 (1975) ; Maumary v. May-
fair Markets, 14 Or App 180 (1973). As an example of an effort
that falls short of due diligence, the court has ruled that a re­
mand,should not be granted when a Referee has ruled against a
party and it appears that party merely wishes to strengthen his '
case with additional evidence that could have been produced at the
hearing,. Buster v. Chase Bag Co., supra. '

Otherlanguage the Court of Appeals has used,includes that if
should be "clear" that evidence was unobtainable at the time of
hearing and there should be "good cause" constituting a "compel­
ling basis" for remand. Brenner v. Industrial Indemnity Co., 30
Or App 69 (1977) Tanner v. P & C Tool Co., 9 Or App. 463' (1972) .
Based on the results in the above cases, all generally denying fe-
mand> it could also be said that remand is not favored.

At the .other end of the spectrum, about the. only case in
which the Court of. Appeals found evidence was not obtainable at
the time of the Referee',s hearing' is Berov v, SAIF, 51'Or App .333
(i981), In that case the new evidence related.to a compensable
consequence o’f-.an.'industrial injury, that was not. even medically .
discovered until long after the hearing.

' The Board adopts these judicial doctrines as its own inter--
p'retation of its own rule governing remands, OAR 436-83-480 (2) .
-To merit remand it must be clearly shown that material evidence
was not obtainable with due diligence before the hearing. - Just a
statement that evidence was "not available" for hearing is insuf­
ficient. Moreover, given that due diligence is.the most important
decisional variable, the Board expects the moving, party's efforts
to obtain the evidence in question to be detailed in an affidavit
in support of amotion to remand.

-173-
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addit{on; the Board makes the following comments. 

We appreci~te that the c6urse of.an injured worker 1 s recovery 
can be prottacted and dynamic, -with medical treatment and voca- · 
tional training~ etc., starting, stopping and starting again. In 
many cases, this dynamic process undoubtedly presents .the ·practi~ 
cal problem ot when aie matters stable enough to litigate disputed 
.is~ues at a -hearirig. The Board expects the ·parties to m~ke that 
decision. Uhder current practice, no hearing is scheduled until 
the parties file an a¢plication to sch~d~le. Thus, the-parties: 
more than the Board no~ control when a hearing is held. In on­
going medic~l treat~ent or vocational training situations-~. 
situations that frequently give rise to mo~ion~ to remand~-the 
parties should decide ~hen they want disputed issues resolved 
based on the· available evidence and not rely on motions ·to rem.and -
based on subsequently obtained evidence as a fallback possibility. 

' . . . 

. Even if a· hearing is sched~ted in a case where evidence is 
still ·bein~ generat~d, there ar~ more effective alternatives than 
asking the Board to r~mand. A hearing can be postponed for good 
cause sh6wn. Although the good cause decision is made by a Ref­
eree, it i~ ·the Board 1 s belief that good cause to postpone in­
cludes a situation tbat could otherwise be presented to t~e Boar~ 
as a motion .to remand _because of newly-discovered evidence. Fur.-
therrnore, even if a hearing is helc, the Referee has authority to ·Ii) 
keep the·r~cord open for submissi6n of additi6nal evidence. 
Ag~in, the Boa;d_believes that good cause to keep the record open­
includes a situation that could otherwise be presented to the 
Board as a motion to rern~nd because of newly-discovered evidence~ 

Given all of these circumstances--significant control' by the 
p~rties over when a case is docketed for hearing, t~e·possibili~y 
of a postpone~ent and the possibility of keeping the record open-­
the Board· concludes that a restrictive poiicy .toward remands is 
appropriate. 

Applying these standards in this case, the Board 6oncludes 
that EBI's motion is not well taken. This is simply an effort by 
the side that lost at~ hearing to get additional- evidence t6 
sterigthen its case. No explanati()n has been offered why this evi­
dence could _not have been obtained before the ·hearing with dili­
gent effort. Furthermore, although the Referee kept this record 
open for over two months after the hearing for other reasbns, 

_ EBI_'s ~ttorney neiiher regu~sted keeping ~he record open for a 
report from Dr. Heinonen nor submitted that report before the 
record was closed. 

ORDER 

The B6ard's order ~ated December 16, 1980 is vacated.· EBI's 
motion is denied. At the time. of Board review Dr. Heinonen's Aug­
ust 28, 198b report will not be considered. 

-174-
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In addition, the Board makes the following comments. -

We appreciate that the course of an injured worker's recovery
can be protracted and dynamic, with medical treatment and voca­
tional training, etc., starting, stopping and starting again. In
many cases, this dynamic process undoubtedly presents the practi­
cal problem of when are matters stable enough to litigate disputed
issues at a hearing. The Board expects the parties to'make that
decision. Under current practice, no hearing is scheduled until
the parties file an application to schedule. Thus, the parties
more than the Board now control when a hearing.is held. In on­
going medical treatment or vocational training situations--
situations that frequently give rise to motions to remand--the
parties should decide when they want disputed issues resolved
based on the available evidence and not rely on motions to remand
based on subsequently obtained evidence as a fallback possibility.

Even if a hearing is scheduled in a case where evidence is
still being generated, there are more effective alternatives than
asking the Board to remand. A hearing can be postponed for good
cause shown. Although the good cause decision is made by a Ref­
eree, it is the Board's belief that good cause to postpone in­
cludes a situation that could otherwise be presented to the Board
as a motion to remand because of newly-discovered evidence. Fur.-
thermbre, even if a hearing is held, the Referee has authority to
keep the record open for submission of additional evidence.
Again, the Board.believes that good cause to keep the record open •
includes a situation that could otherwise be presented to the
Board as a motion to remand because of newly-discovered evidence.

Given all of these circumstances--significant control by the
parties over when a case is docketed for hearing, the'possibility
of a postponement and the possibility of keeping the record open--
the Board' concludes that a restrictive policy toward remands is
appropriate.

Applying these standards in this case, the Board concludes
that EBI's motion is not well taken. This is simply an effort by
the side that lost at a hearing to get additional evidence to

stengthen its case. No explanation has been offered why this evi­
dence could not have been obtained before the hearing with di1i-
gent effort. Furthermore, although the Referee kept this record
openfor over two months after the hearing for other reasons,
EBI's, attorney neither requested keeping the record open for a
report from Dr. Heinonen nor submitted that report before the
record was closed.

m

... ORDER

The Board's order dated December 16, 1980
motion is denied. At the time of Board review
ust 28, 1980 report will not be considered.

is vacated.
Dr. Heinonen

EBI's
s Aug- a
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· RUSSELL CAUL, CLAIMANT .. 
C. Rodney _Kirkpatrick, Claimant 1 s Attornev 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Order of .Remand 

WCB 79-10589 
. June 25, 1981 

The clJi~~rit ~as ~oved io remarid to the Referee. on the ground 
of newly~d.i:scovered ·evidence~ The h·earing. was held before Referee. 
Pferdner on -May 12, 19 80. The rec_ord was held·_ op~n for ·various 
reason~ until it was closed'.on June 23, 1980. App~rently purely 
bi coin~ia~~ce; claimant was operated 6n the next.day~ Juri~ 24. 
The· new evide.nce that is the· basis of· the niot-i-on is· the doctor's 
report on. the results of: that. _surge'ry. · . 

. ' ~ 

In Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case Nos. 79..:.07210 and 79-11012 
(decided this date} we construed OAR 436-83-480(2) as. requiring a 
co~p€lling showing ·tpat evidence could not have been discovered 
and· produced at. a hear- ing. in order to justify a. Board remand. T t 
is obvious -that evfdence about the Jun~ Z4· surgeiy could not have 

. been introduced into a; record that .was closed on June 2"3. 

That is not, ·however, ·necessari1y·_deterrninative. In Barnett 
we'also s~i~ that in situati6ns like~this w~ would like to know 
why the pa~ti~s ~roceed~d with a· hearing if th~r~ was on~oing med~ 
ical treatment and. ~hy they did not keep the·record open·for in­
fo~mation abqut th~ origoing_tteat~ent. Alsq., .in Barn~tt, we said 
th~t such explanatiorr·should ordinarily be ·made· by affidavit in 
support 6£ the ~otiori .to remarid. No ~ffidavit or expl~nation in 
other -~orm 'has bee~ fiied in s~pport of this moti6n~ 

-. . ' . ,• 

But, ·at least.~ntil a~torneys become aware of th~ Barnett 
re:quiremen:ts,· we find sufficient explanation here in another form. 
The .doctor•s.·report about the June 24. s1:1rgery st_ates: . 

11·We. postponed Mr. Caul Is' SU rg~ry qnt il we 
.h~ard fiom~SAIF. riuring·this period~ the 
. tension increased in. his· home life·; I had 
se~eral iiate ealls from ·Mrs •. C~ul reg~rd-

- ing Mr • . Caul's·rnedication. Generally, Mrs. 
Caul·was upset because her husband was un­

·_able to ~o ~nythi~g. 

"We ••• scheduled.his surgery [because) .I. 
.felt it was important to treat t,he patient. 
I felt it was· unwise to·wait to hear from 
SAIF any long~r." 

We interpret this to mean that the decision to proceed with sur­
:g~ry was made. s9mewhat· spontaneously, .with.out any real' opportun'i ty 
for the claimant or his -doctor to consult with claimant's attor­
ney.· we ac~e~t this as suffitient explanation under Barnett~ Btit 
t6 undersco~e Barnett, we add that had claimant a~d his attorney 
pioc~eded to hearing kn6wi~g s~rgery:was on the.boiiz~n without . 
asking that the. record be 'kept open for· the report on· the surgery ,r · 
we would deny remand. 

For the above-stated reasons, this case is re~anded f6r such 
further proceedings_ as· the Referee may deem appropriate; 

....... !-
IT IS SO 6RDtRED~ 

-175-
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RUSSELL CAUL, CLAIMANT
C. Rodney Kirkpatrick, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney .
Order of Remand ...

WCB 79-10589
- June 25, 1981

The claimant has moved to remand to the Referee, on the ground
of newly-discbvered evidence. The hearing was held before Referee
Pferdner on May 12, 1980. The record was held open for various
reasons until it was closed on June 23, 1980. Apparently purely
by coincidencer claimant was operated on the next.day, June 24.
The new evidence that is the basis of the motion is the doctor's
report on the results of.that, surgery. •

In Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012
(decided this date) we construed OAR 436-83-480(2) as. requiring a
compelling showing that evidence could not have been discovered
and'produced at.a hearing, in order to justify a Board remand. It
is obvious that evidence about the June 2^ surgery could not have
been introduced into a record that .was closed on June 23.

That is not, however, necessarily determinative. In Barnett
we!also said that in situations like this we would like to know
why the parties proceeded with a hearing if there was ongoing med­
ical treatment and. why they did not keep therecord open for in­
formation about the ongoing .treatment. Also, in Barnett, we said
that such explanation should ordinarily'be made-by affidavit in
support of the motion to remand. No affidavit or explanation in
other form has been filed in support of this motion.

But, at least,until attorneys become aware of the. Barnett
requirements, we find sufficient explanation here in another form.
The .doctor's. report about the June 24 surgery states:

"We - postponed Mr. Caul's surgery until we
.heard from SAIF. During this period, the
tension increased in.his home,life. I had
several irate calls from Mrs.. Caul regard­
ing MrCaul's medication. Generally, Mrs.
Caul was upset because her husband was un­
able to do anything,

"We... scheduled .his surgery [because] , I
felt it was important to treat the patient.

' , I felt it was unwise to wait to hear from
SAIF any longer."

m

We interpret this to mean that the decision to proceed with sur­
gery was made, somewhat' spontaneously, .without any real opportunity
for the claimant or his doctor to consult with claimant's attor­
ney. We accept this as sufficient explanation under Barnett. But
to underscore Barnett, we add that had claimant and his attorney
proceeded to hearing knowing surgery was on the horizon without
asking that the . record be kept open for the report on the surgery,,
we would deny remand.

For the above-stated reasons, this case is remanded for such
further proceedings as the Referee may deem appropriate.'

IT IS SO ORDERED.
-175- .

■ 



   
    
    
  

 
  

            
        

         
    
  

      

 
      
      
  

  
  

          
        
    

          
            
           
       

           
         
            
          

            
           

          
           

 

            
         
    

   

DEAN, CLAIMANT 
Rolf Olson, Claima·ntfs A~torney 
Daniel Meyers, Defense Attorney 
Order of Remand 

WCB 80-02825 
June 25, 1981 

· The e·mployer has filed a mo_tion to remand to the Referee on 
. ~he grciuna· of newly-discovered evidence. Based on ·Robert A .. 
Barnett, WCB case· Nqs. _79-07210 and 79-11012 (decided this date}, 

-the motiori is _granted, and the Referee's order dated January 13, 
1981 is vacated. · 

. LANCE El,t,E, · CLATMANT 
Wel~h. -~ruun & ~reen, Claimant's Attorneys 
Schw·abe, Wi 11 i ams on et al, Defense Attorneys 
Order Denyin~-Remand 

WCB 79-07880 
June 25, 1981 

The· claimant has moved to. remand to the Referee on the ground A 
of newly discovered evidence. Based on the information now- before • 
us~ we deny th~ rno~ion. 

. Refer~e Foster's order _was issued.on September 15, 1980. The. 
new evidence that. is the basi~ of the motion 6onsists of reports 
from Dr~. Staker and G6r~an d~ted September 16, 1~80, October 2, 
1980, October 15, 1980 and February 3, 1981. 

In support of· the motion, claimant seems to suggest tha~. he 
moved to Bremerton; Washington after the hearing and began treat­
ment with.Ors. Staker.and Gorman. But at the August 15, 1980 
hea~ing,. tlaim~nt tes~ified he was th~n living in Bremerton. It 
is unclear from the preseni record why.the rnedi~al reports here.in 
queitfon could-not have been obtained for the hearing by delaying 
the hearing date rir·keepihg the recQrd_open~-a showing that is 
required ·by Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case. No. ·79-07210 ·(decided this 
date} • 

. ciai~ant may, of-course, renew his. rndtiop to rem~na it he can 
satisfy the B~rnett iequirements. But on the.present record, the 
motion to_ remand 1s denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
. ·' . 

-17fi-

WILLIAM DEAN, CLAIMANT
Rolf Olson, Claimant's Attorney
Daniel Meyers, Defense Attorney
Order of Remand

WCB 80-02825
June 25, 1981

The employer has filed a motion to remand to the Referee on
the ground of newly-discovered evidence. Based on Robert A.

79-07210 and 79-11012 (decided this date)Barnett, WCB Case Nos.
the motion is .granted,
1981 is vacated.

and the Referee's order dated January. 13,

LANCE EORE, CLAIMANT
Welch, Bruun & Oreen, Claimant's Attorneys
Schwabe, Williamson et al. Defense Attorneys
Order Denying Remand

WCB 79 07880
June 25, 1981

The claimant has moved to, remand to the Referee on
of newly discovered evidence. Based on the information
us,, we deny the motion.

the
now

ground
before

Referee Foster's order was issued on September 15, 1980. The
new evidence that is the basis of the motion consists of reports
from Drs. Staker and Gorman dated September 16, 1980, October 2,
1980, October 15, 1980 and February 3, 1981.

In support of the motion, claimant seems to suggest that he
moved to Bremerton, Washington after the hearing and began treat­
ment with Drs. Staker and Gorman. But at the August 15, 1980
hearing, claimant testified he was then living In Bremerton. It
is unclear from the present record why the medical reports here in
question could not have been obtained for the hearing by delaying
the hearing date or keeping the record,open--a showing that is
required by Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case. No. 79-07210 {decided this
date).

Claimant may, of course, renew his motion to remand if he can
satisfy the Barnett requirements. But on the,present record, the
motion to remand Ts denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

m
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HARGENS, CLAIMANT , 
Michael Stebbins,_Claimant 1 s Attorne~ 
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney 
Order of Remand 

WCB 80-09628 
June 25 ~ 1981 

The claimant has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground 
of newly-discovered evidence. We grant the rnotiori. 

Referee Wolff's .order was issued on January 29, 1981. _It 
relied in large· part ori a report from claimant's treating physi­
cian that was ~ritten in response to a question in a letter to the 
doctor from a SAIF'representative. The doctor's ieply was une­
quivocal and was totally adverse to.the claimant's,position. 

Claimant's motion to remand includes an affidavit from-claim­
ant's doctor, -a procedure to• be encouraged. See Robert:A. ·Barn­
ett , WC B Ca s e Nos • 7 9 - 0 7 21 0 and 7 9 -110 I 2 (de c id e d th i s d ate) • I n 
his affidavit the doctor explains that, in retrospect, he obvi­
ously misun¢lerstoo"d t·he question fr.om· SAIF. he was responding to in 
his report introduced in the he~ring, that as he now understands 
the issue his prior report is inaccurate and that it wa~ only af­
ter-claimant shdwed him the Refer~e•s order "that I re~lized the 
confusion which I had created." The doctor now· tenders an opinion 
that is more favorabie t6 cl~im~nt, albeit not overwhelmi~gly so. 

In Robert A. Barnett, supra, and a group of related cases de­
cided this date, we hav~ ruled that~ reman~ will be allowed if 
there is newly~discovered evidence that could not have been ob-.· 
tained for the hearing with due •ailigence •. This is sue~ a case. 
Due diligence t6 prepare for a hearing does not r~quire contacti-ng 
every doctoi who wrote~ report and asking if he really meant what 
he ·said. 

This is not. a case where the side that lost at the hearing 
l~vel is merely trying to strenithen its case with additional evi­
dence. Rather, we· nbw know the hearirig result was based in part 
on .erroneoGs evidenc~, and the bisis ot the r~mand i~quest is to 
have a hear·ing result based on correct evid~nc~. 

For the above stated reasons, this case is.remanded for such -
further proceedings as the Referee may deem ~ppropriate. 

IT·IS SO ORDERED. 

-177-
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CL DE HARRENS, CLAIMANT
Michael Stebbins, Claimant's Attorney
Paul Roess, Defense Attorney
Order of Remand

WCB 80-09628
June 25, 1981

The claimant has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground
of newly-discovered evidence. We grant the motion.

Referee Wo-lff' s order was issued on January 29, 1981. It
relied in large'part on a report from claimant's treating physi­
cian that was ,written in response to a question in a letter to the
doctor from a SAIF■representative. The doctor's reply was une­
quivocal and was totally adverse to,the claimant's position.

Claimant
ant's doctor,
ett, WCB Case
his affidavit
ously rhisLinde
his report in
the issue his
ter•claimant
confusion whi
that is more

's motion to remand includes an affidavit from claim-
a procedure to be encouraged. See Robert-A. Barn-
Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012 (decided this date). In
the doctor explains that, in retrospect, he obvi-
rstood the question from SAIF, he was responding to in
troduced in the hearing, that as he now understands
prior report is inaccurate and that it was only af-
showed him the Referee's order "that I realized the
ch I had created." The doctor now tenders an opinion
favorable to claimant, albeit not overwhelmingly so.

In Robert A. Barnett, supra, and
cided this date, we have ruled that a

a group of related cases de­
remand will be allowed ifw A ^ WA A<A.4j rvw I Lfji V ^ c i j.^iiicaiiv4 v¥xi..a. k/ ^

there is newly-discovered evidence that could not have been ob­
tained for the hearing with due diligence. . This is such a case.
Due diligence to prepare for a hearing does not require contacting
every doctor who wrote a report and asking if he really meant what
he said.

This is not. a case where the side that lost at the hearing
level is merely trying to strengthen its case with additional evi­
dence. Rather, we now know the hearing result was based in part
on erroneous evidence, and the basis of the remand request is to
have a hearing result based on correct evidence.

For the above stated reasons, this case is remanded for such
further proceedings as the Referee may deem appropriate.

IT•IS SO ORDERED.

-177-
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K~ HEDLUND, CLAIMANT 
Peter Hansen; Cla1~ant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney 
Order Denyin9 Reconsideration. 

WCB 79-09967 
June 25, 1981 

Claimant requests reconsideration of the Board's Order on Re- ~ 

view dated dune 3, 1981. ~ 

Claimant first suggests there is no evidence in the record t6 
support our· conclusiori that claimant did backfilling work during 
the first ~ix mo~th~ of ]979. Claimant is incorrect. Dr. Mig~ 
hell's September 11, 1979 report, in evidence as Exhibit 12; 
states: "The patient has never again been able to go down into 
the ditch and do pipe laying· work, but for the first six ~onths of 
1~79 he was able to work as a backfill man until this job ended." 
This report was. submitted to.the Referee byrclaimant's-a.ttcirney 
under cover le~ter of May 15, 1980 which stated it was an exhibit 
"upon which claimant intends to rely at time of hearing."·. Both 
claimant's reliance on Exhibit 12 and the contents thereof are in­
consisteni wit~ claimant's position asserted 1n .the motion for re­
consideration. 

Even though.apparently previously unaware of the contents .of· 
Exhibit 12, claimant next argues that there is contrary evidence, 
i.e., evidence that claimant did not work after February 1, 1979. 
Claimant is correct that th~re is a conflict 1n the evidence on 
th is point. 

On reconsideration, we find it unnecessary to resolve this 
conflict in the evidence and agree we errerl in noing so j n ou·r Or-
ner on Review. Claimant's motion for. recon~5ideration _!nake:, the ,A 

strongest possible argument for his entitlement to temp6rary total W 
disability beyond February 1, 1979: ·"The Board's statement that 
inability.to perform one-specific job is not total disability ig-
nores the evidence that Dr. Mighell concluded that claimant.could 
not return to his job, a related octupatinn or work in ~h~·con-
·struction industry where he w6uld be exposed to things that might 
topple on him or .where he might fall ciff somethinq." We are not 
ignoring any evidence. We consider the evidence as paraphrased in 
claimant!s motion ,for reconsideration together wjth .another of Dr. 
Mighell's reports: "His psychological state preclurles him from 
working down in a hole, or a ditch, but it is p~ssible.for this 

patient to work prod0ctively at some .other type of work.u_ (Ex-
hibit 14.) Considering all the evidence, we continue to find that 
factually -at most claimant wa~ medically unable to perform some, 
but not allj jobs after February 1, 1979, and aahere to the con-
clusion that legally claimant was not totally disabled. And we so 
find and so conclude regardless of whether or not claimant was 
working after February 1, 1979. 

· Claimant's attorney also requests an in~rease·in his attorney 
fee, payable from claimant 1 s ~ompensat~on, o-~~.~.····•;~)lowed. by 
our June 3, 1981 Order on. Review~ Cla1rnant.~~,t .. ~:'s request 
is denied on the basis of our April 6, 1981 ord~r~it~.Roy D. Nelson, 
WCB Case No. 78-05969. . ~l~J·~ ~· 

' ,:J \_¢ ::,"'' 

ORDER 

Claimant's request for reconsideration is denied. 
-178-

ROBERT K. HEDLUND, CLAIMANT
Peter Hansen; Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Reconsideration

WCB 79 09967
June 25, 19P1

Claimant requests reconsideration of the Board's Order on Re­
view dated June 3, 1981.

Claimant first suggests there is no evidence in the record to
support our conclusion that claimant did backfilling work during
the first six months of 1979. Claimant Is incorrect. Dr. Mig-
hell's September 11, 1979 report, in evidence as Exhibit 12,
states: "The patient has never again been able to go down into
the ditch and do pipe laying work, but for the first six months of
1979 he was able to work as a backfill man until this job ended."
This report was, submitted to,the Referee byrclaimant' s attorney
under cover letter of May 15, 1980 which stated it was an exhibit
"upon which claimant intends to rely,at time of hearing."'. Both
claimant's reliance on Exhibit 12 and the contents thereof are in­
consistent with claimant's position asserted in the motion for re­
consideration.

Even though.apparently previously unaware of the contents of
Exhibit 12, claimant next argues that there is contrary evidence,,
i.e., evidence that claimant did not work after February 1, 1979.
Claimant'is correct that there is a conflict in the evidence on
this point.

On reconsideration, we find it unnecessary to resolve this
conflict in the evidence and agree we erred in doing so in our Or­
der on Review, Claimant's motion for reconsideration makes the
strongest possible argument for his entitlement to temporary total
disability beyond . February 1, 1979: "The Board's statement that
inability ,to perform one specific job is not total disability ig­
nores the evidence that Dr. Mighell concluded that claimant could
not return to his.job, a related occupation or work in the con­
struction industry where he would be exposed to things that ,might
topple on him or where he might fall off something." We are not
ignoring any evidence. We consider the evidence as paraphrased in
claimant's motion.for reconsideration together with .another of Dr.
Mighell's reports: "His psychological state precludes him from
working down in a hole, or a ditch, but it is possible.for this

patient to work productively at some .other type of work.", (Ex­
hibit 14.) Considering all the evidence, we continue to find that
factually at most claimant was medically unable to perform some,
but not all, jobs after February 1, 1979, and adhere to the con­
clusion that legally claimant was not totally disabled. And we so
find and so conclude regardless of whether or not claimant was
working after February i, 1979.

Claimant's attorney also requests an increase in his attorney
fee, payable from claimant's compensation, lowed by
our June 3, 1981 Order on Review: Claimant ! request
is denied on the basis of our April 6, 1981 orderRoy D. Nelson,
WCB Case No. 78-05969. ' • •.

ORDER

Claimant's request for reconsideration is denied.
-178-
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J_OSEPH W. MANLEY, CLAIMANT 
David Li oton·, Claimant I s Attorney 
John· Klor, Defense Attorney 
Order Denying Remand 

WCB 80-09593 
June_25, 1981 

The clairnarit. has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground 
of newly-discovered evidence. ·Referee Williams' order was issued 
March 3, 1981. The "ne~ly discovered evidence" is a report from 
claimant's treating·physic{an, Dr. P·oulson, ·aated·Ma·rch 23, 1981. 
It does not. r~port ·any new treatment or· examination o_f claimant; 
it merely offers· an opinion favorable to the p·osition claimant 
asserted in the hearing that culmina.ted in ·the Referee's order. 

. . . . . . 

In Robert A. Barn~tt, WCB C~se Nos. 79-07210 and i9-ll012 
(decided this date), ·we ruled that to merit remand it must be 
clearly shown that ~aterial evidenc~ was not obtainable with due 
diligei:,ce -before a !1earing. We said we would not allow a remand 
whe~. it appears thae the losing part~ merely wishes to strengthen 
his case with additional evtdence that could have been produced at 
the hear1rig. Based on the ~~tnett stand~rds, claimant's motion to 
remand is denied. · 

· IT IS SO ORDERED. 

ARTHUR NEISS, CLAIMANT 
Gerald Dobl .; e. Claimant I s ~ttorne_y 
R. Ray Heyse11, Defense Attorney 
Order of Remand 

. WCB 80'..03241 
June 25, 1981 

The claimant··h_as ·moved to r·emand· to the Refe·ree on the ground 
·of ne~ly-discovered evidence. ·Based on· Robert A. Barne~t, W~B · 
Case Nos .. 79-07210· and 79-11012 ·{decided this,date), the motion is 
granted. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-179-. 

JOSEPH W. MANLE , CLAIMANT
David Lioton, Claimant's Attorney
John Klor, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Remand

WCB 80-09593
June 25, 1981

The claimant, has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground
of newly-discovered evidence. Referee Williams' order was issued
March 3, 1981. The "newly discovered evidence" is a report from
claimant's treating physician, Dr. Poulson, dated’March 23, 1981.
It does not report any new treatment or examination of claimant;
it merely offers an opinion faivbrable to the position claimant
asserted in the hearing that culminated in the Referee's order.

In Robert A. Barnett,
(decided this date'
clearly shown that

79-11012
must be

WCB Case Nos. 79-07210 and
, we ruled that to merit remand it
material evidence was not obtainable with due

diligence-before a hearing. We said we would not allow a remand
when it appears that’ the losing party merely wishes to strengthen
his case with additional evidence that could have been produced at
the hearing. Based on the Barnett standards, claimant's motion to
remand is denied. . '

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ARTHUR NEISS, CLAIMANT
f^erald DobMe, Claimant'
R. Ray Heysell, Defense
Order of Remand

s Attorney
Attorney

WCB 80L03241
June 25, 1981

The claimant has‘moved to remand' to the Referee on the ground
of newly-discovered evidence. Based on Robert A. Barnett, WCB
Case Nos..79-07210- and 79-11012 (decided this^date), the motion is
granted.

IT IS SO: ORDERED.

-179-



     
      
     
    

     

         
          
      

          
            
         

            
          
          
         
          

          
         

  

          
            
          
           
        

        
          
             
              

        
       
        
           
             
 

      
            
           
       
            

             

A. PERKINS, CLAIMANT 
Daniel Seitz, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Reauest for Review by SAIF 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 78-0S9'.)? 
June 25, 1981 

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Boaid review of Referee 
Johnson's order which found claimant to be permanently and totally 
disabled. The issue is extent of disability. 

That issue,· in turn, depends on the ~roper interpretation of 
Butcher v. SAIF, 45 Or App 313 (1980) ~ In .1977 the _Legi"slature 
enacted ORS 656.206(3) which assigns io a worker clai~ing perman­
ent total disabilify the burden of proving "that he is willi~g to 
seek regu-lar gainful -:employment and that he has made r-easonable 
effort~ to obtain such ·ernploym~nf." ·6n its f~ce this statute 
recognizes no exception. The Court of Appeals, however, in 
Butcher saiq there are exceptions to the unqualified.mandate of 
ORS 656.206(3) ~ The present problem is to determine the scope·and 
extent of the-exceptions the Court of Appeals recognized in 
Butcher. 

SAIF argues that the Butcher exception to the ORS 656.206(3) 
need to seek employment only applies to a worker who is totally 

-

di~abled based on the med.ical evidence a.lone. Claimant argues the 4' 
Butcher exception also applies to a worker who is totally disabled 
based on a combination of me~i~al and social/vocational evidence. 

The consequence of theie variqus interpretitions of Butcher 
can be graphically illustrated by the facts of this case. Claim­
ant sustained a compensable injury to his left leg in May of 1977 
when he was struck by a log. After two operations and a year of 
recuperation, claimant's recovery was-fairly good. Dr. Young, -
claimant's treating physician, found minimal objective disability 
following claiciant's ~~covery~ Based on the medical evidence 
alone, c~aimant's disability is•far from total; rather it is about 
the 10% los~ of a leg awarded by the De~errnination Order of June 
22, 1978. . . . . .. 

Social/vocational factors change the picture consirlerably. 
Claimant was 66 years old at the time 6f hearing. His f6rmal edu­
cation ended after the second grade; claimant is prohahly Fune-. 
tionally illiterate. Claimant's work exp~ri~nce is hasicaily 
limited to ~alling and bucking t~m~er, ·the jon he was doing when 
he was injured, and a jo~ to which or. Young says he cannot return. 

-180-

DOCK A. PERKINS, CLAIMANT WCB 78 099 ^^
Daniel Seitz, Claimant's Attorney June 25, 1981
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Reouest for Review by SAIF

Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Referee
Johnson's order which found claimant to be permanently and totally
disabled. The issue is extent of disability.

That issue, in turn, depends on the proper interpretation of
Butcher v, SAIF, 45 Or App 313 (1980). In ,1977 the Legislature
enacted ORS 656.206(3) which assigns to a worker claiming perman­
ent total disability the burden of proving "that he is willing to
seek regular gainful employment and that he has made reasonable
efforts to obtain such employment." On its face this statute
recognizes no exception. The Court of Appeals, however, in
Butcher said there are exceptions to the unqualified mandate of
ORS 656.206(3). The present problem is to determine the scopeand
extent of the-exceptions the Court of Appeals recognized in
Bu tche r.

SAIF argues that the Butcher exception to the ORS 656.206(3)
need to seek employment only applies to a worker who is totally
disabled based on the medical evidence aione. Claimant argues the
Butcher exception also applies to a worker who is totally disabled
based on a combination of medical and social/vocational evidence.

The consequence of these various interpretations of Butcher
can be graphically illustrated by the facts of this case. Claim­
ant sustained a compensable injury to his left leg in May of 1977
when he was struck by a log. After two operations and a year of
recuperation, claimant's recovery was fairly good. Dr.  oung,
claimant's treating physician, found minimal objective disability
following claimant's recovery. Based on the medical evidence
alone, claimant's disability is far from total; rather it is about
the 10% loss of a leg awarded by the Determination Order of June
22, 1978.

Social/vocational factors change the picture considerably.
Claimant was 66 years old at the time of hearing. His formal edu­
cation ended after the second grade; claimant is probably Pune-
tionally illiterate. Claimant's work experience is basically
limited to falling and bucking timber, the job he was doing when
he was injured, and a job to which Dr.  oung says he cannot return
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Claimant admitted at the hearing that he had made no effort 
to obtain employmen.t after recovering from his leg fracture. 
Based on that, Butcher becomes critical. If the ButcGer exception 
to the ORS 656·.206(3) -seek-woik ·r~quirement is only appli~able 
wheri the·medicai e~idence shows total disability, .clai~ant is not 
~otally disabled. If the B~tcher e~ception to th~ ORS 656.206(3) 
seek-work requirement applies when the medical evidence in combin­
ation·with the social/v6cational evidence ~hows total disability, 
the Board agrees_ with the Referee that claimant is totally dis­
abled. 

If.we were writing on a clean slate we would rule that 
Butcher only applies when, based solely on the ~edical evidence 
the worker is totally disabled. For wo.rkers like this claimant 
the l~gisl~ture must ha0e intended so~ething when.it adopted bRS 
656.206(3). It intended, we believe, that the social/ 
vocation~l element of tQtal disability be subjecte~ to the acid 
test of applying _for work. It may well be that this claimant and 
nine out of ten other similarly situated 9lairnants would be turned 
down as job-applicants._ ~ut the ORS 656.206(3) purpose would have 
then been achieved--for some we would be more certain that dis­
ability" was total, .for the-others ·we ·would have gotten them back 
into the labor market, to th~ pleasant surprise of all concerned. 

We are, however, not writing on a clean slate. This Board 
has to comply with Butcher. In that case, the Court of Appeals 
reli~d on "the other factors of age~ education, work experience 
and· mental capacity" to conclude "it would be futile for claimant 
to attempt to become employed;" 45 Or App at 318. The Board, 
therefore,· concludes that social/vocational factors are properly 
part o~ the Butcher calculus, as claimant here agrees. 

We leave to the Legislature and the Court.of _Appeals the 
question of ~hethei this analysis undermines the intent of ORS 
656.203(3) ~s adopted in 1977. We are only applying a binding 
precedent as we understand it. · 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated ·october 30, 1"980 is affirmed. 

Claimant's attorney is·allowed as a reasonable attorney fee. 
$560 for services rendere~ on Board review, payable by £he SAIF 
Corporation. 

CONCURRD.lG OPINION BY BOARD MEMBER LEWIS: 

I do-not.believe that the Court of Appeals has created an ex­
ception to an "unqualified mandate," as suggested by the majority 
decision. ~hat the court attempted to do in Butcher was to set . 
some limits on what can be considered reasonable and what is not. 
The court stated: 
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Claimant admitted at the hearing that
to obtain employment after recovering from
Based on that, Butcher becomes critical, I
to the ORS 656.206(3) seek-work requirement
when the'medical evidence shows total disab
..totally disabled. If the Butcher exception
seek-work requirement applies wh^n the niedi
ation with the social/vocational evidence ^s
the Board agrees, with the Referee that clai
abled.

he had made no effort
his leg fracture,
f the Butcher exception.
is only applicable
ility, claimant is not
to the ORS 656.206 (3)
cal evidence in combin-
hows total disability,
mant is totally dis-

If we were writing on a clean slate we would rule that
Butcher only applies when, based solely on the medical evidence
the worker is totally disabled. For workers like this claimant
the legislature must have intended something when it adopted ORS
656.206(3). It intended, we believe, that the social/
vocational element of total disability be subjected to the acid
test of applying for work. It may well be that this claimant and
nine out of ten other similarly situated claimants would be turned
down as job-.applicants. . But the ORS 656.206 (3) purpose would have
then been achieved--for some we would he more certain that dis­
ability was total, -for the others we would have gotten them back
into the labor market, to the pleasant surprise of all concerned.

We are, however, not writing on a clean slate. This Board
has to comply with Butcher. In that case, the Court of Appeals
relied on "the other factors of age, education, work experience
and mental capacity" to conclude "it would be futile for claimant
to attempt to become employed." 45 Or App at 318. The Board,
therefore,' concludes that social/vocational factors are properly
part of the Butcher calculus, as claimant here agrees.

We leave to the Legislature and the Court.of Appeals the
question of whether this analysis undermines the intent of ORS
656.203(3) as adopted in 1977, We are only applying a binding
precedent as we understand it.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated October 30, 1980 is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is'allowed as a reasonable attorney fee
$500 for services rendered on Board review, payable by the SAIF
Corporation.

CONCURRIIIG OPINION B BOARD MEMBER LEWIS:

I do not believe that the Court of Appeals has created an ex­
ception to an "unqualified mandate," as suggested by the majority
decision. What the court attempted to do in Butcher was to set
some limits on what can be considered reasonable and what is not.
The court stated:
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do-not believe that the leqislature in­
ten~ed that ~very injured work~r, regard­
less of capacity to do so, must demonstrate 
an effort to become employed even where it 
i~ c~ear that such an effort ~outd be in 
Vain." Butcher v. SAIF, 45 Or App 313, at 
p. 318. 

The legislature did riot reguire that an unreasonable effort 
be made t6 find a regular .job. ORS 656.206(3) states: 

"The worker has the burden of proving per­
ma~ent total disability. status and mGst es­
tablish that he is willing to seek regular 
gainful employmen~·and that he has made 
reasonable effort~.to obtain such e~ploy- · 
ment. "(emphasis added) 

Nowhere does it state that the injured worker must seek regular 
gainful employment; he must only be willing to do so, and must 
show that he has ma~e reasonable efforts to find a job. 

Where it would be useless for an injured worker to look for 
regular gainful employment, to require him to do so would be to 
require him to make an unreasonable effort. The only purpoie 
which 6ould be served would be to satisfy some strange twist in 
the law and to cause needless humiliation. 

If the rule established in Butcher were applicable only to 
tho?e cases where the medical evidence a1one proves that a claim­
ant is totaily disabled, the court 1 s subsequent deci~ion in Morris 
v. Denny's Restaurant·and Employers Insura~ce of Wausau, __ Or 
App. , WCB Case No. 78-06247, CA 18174 (February 1981), would 
have---seen difficult. In that case, the cour-t reminds us that: 

"Permanent total disability may be caused 
hY· less than total physical incapacity plus 
nonmedical conditions including 'age, 
training, aptitude, adaptability to non­
physical labor, mental capacity, emotional 
condition, as well as conditions of the 
labor market.' Wilson v. Weyerh.Jt?user, 30 
Or App 403, 409, 567 P2d 567 (1977) ." 

"Permanent total disability" is more than a leqal term of 
art. It is a very real state of being. Those unfortunate workers 
who find.themselves in that state by reason of a combination of 
factors are no less disabled than those who are there by reason of 
physical incap~city alone; the loss of earning capa~ity is the 
same in either Gase. ·To impose an unreasonable stand~rd on one 
group, requ.iring a fu~ile search for employment, wouJd be grossly· At 
unfair. Fortunately, the court has decided-upon a more judicious W 
approach. 
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"We do-not believe that the legislature in­
tended that every injured worker, regard­
less of capacity to do so, must demonstrate
an effort to become employed even where it
is clear that such an effort would be in
vain." Butcher V. SAIF, 45 Or App 313, at
p. 318.

The legislature did riot require that an unreasonable effort
be made to find a regular job. ORS 656.206(3) states:

"The worker has the burden of proving per­
manent total disability, status and must es­
tablish that he is willing to seek regular
gainful employment and that he has made
reasonable efforts , to obtain such employ­
ment, (emphasis added)

Nowhere does it state that the injured worker must seek regular
gainful employment; he must only be willing to do so, and must
show that he has made reasonable efforts to find a job.

Where it would be useless for an injured worker to look for
regular gainful employment, to require him to do so would be to
require him to make an unreasonable effort. The only purpose
which could be served would be to satisfy some strange twist in
the law and to cause needless humiliation.

If the rule established in Butcher were applicable only to
those cases where the medical evidence alone proves that a claim­
ant is totally disabled, the court's subsequent decision in Morris
V. Denny's Restaurant and Employers Insurance of Wausau, ___ Or
App-, WCB Case No. 78-06247, CA 18174 (February 1981), would
have been difficult. In that case, the court reminds us that:

"Permanent total disability may be caused
by' less than total physical incapacity plus
nonmedical conditions including 'age,
training, aptitude, adaptability to non­
physical labor, mental capacity, emotional
condition, as well as conditions of the
labor market.' Wilson v. Weyer liaeuse r, 30
Or App 403, 409, 567 P2d 567 (1977)."

"Permanent total disability" is more than a legal term of
art. It is a very real state of being. Those unfortunate workers
who find themselves in that state by reason of a combination of
factors are no less disabled than those who are there by reason of
physical incapacity alone; the loss of earning capacity is the
same in either case. To impose an unreasonable standard on one
group, requiring a futile search for employment, wouJd be grossly
unfair. Fortunately, the court has decided upon a more judicious
approach.
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R ... PETERSON, CLAIMANT 
James Francesconi, Claimant's Attorney 
David O. Hbrne~ Defense Attorney 
Order of Remand 

WCB 79-09942 
June 25, 1981 

The ernp~oyer has filed a motion that we regard as being in 
the nat~r~ of a.motion to remand to th~ Ref~ree on the.ground of 

-newly-discovered evidence. Based on Robert Aw Barnett, WCB ~as~ 
Nos. 79-01210 and 79-11012 (decided this date}, the motion i.s 
granted·, and the Referee's order dated July 2, 1980 is vacated. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

~ERALD SAXE, CLAIMANT 
Huffman & Zenger, Claimant's Attorneys 
Lang, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys 
Reque~t for ~eyiew by Employer 

WCB 80-06489 
June 25, 1981 

The employer has moved to· remand to the Referee on_ the ground 
of newly-~iscov~red evidence. Based upon Robert A. Barnett, WCB . 
Case Nos. 79-07210 an9 79-11012 (decided this date), the motion is 
denied. 

IT ·IS SO ORDERED. 

CLIFFORD WALDRON, CLAIMANT 
,John Parkhurst, Claimant I s Attorney 
SAIF Corp Le~al, Defense Attorney 
Order Denying Remand 

~ICB 80-07436 
J,une 25, 1981 

The ciaimant has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground 
of newly-discovered evidence. Th~ hearing was held before Referee 
Menashe oh Noiember 25, 1980. There was evidence presented at 
that time that ~laimant had. just started, about two weeks earlier, 
being counselled by a.group of vocational rehabilitation consul- · 
tartts. Th~ "newli-discovered evidence" that i~ the basis of the 
motion cqnsists of,.reporti of rehabilitation/reemployment efforts 
dated December 31, 1980, January 22, 1981 and March 3, 1981. 

In Robert A. Barnett, WCB- Case Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012 
(decided this date)~ we construed OAR 436-83~~80(2) as requiring a 
clear ~howing that evidence could not .have been discovered and 
produced at a hearing in order· to justify a Bo~rd remand. Other­
wise, there might not ever be any fi~ality to the hearing process. 
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JOHN R.. PETERSON, CLAIMANT
James Francesconi, Claimant's Attorney
David 0. Horne', Defense Attorney
Order of Remand

WCB 79-09942
June 25, 1981

The employer has filed a motion that we regard as being in
the nature of a motion to remand to the Referee on the. ground of
newly-discovered evidence. Based on Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case
Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012 (decided this date), the motion is
granted, and the Referee's order dated July 2, 1980 is vacated,

IT IS SO ORDERED.

GERALD SAXE, CLAIMANT
Huffman & Zenqer, Claimant's Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al. Defense Attorneys
Reauest for Review by Employer

WCB 80 06489
June 25, 1981

The employer has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground
of newly-discovered evidence. Based upon Robert A. Barnett, WCB .
Case Nos, 79-07210 and 79-11012 (decided this date), the motion is
denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

CLIFFORD WALDRON, CLAIMANT
John Parkhurst, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Remand

WCB 80 07436
June 25, 1981.

The claimant has moved to remand to the Referee on the ground
of newly-discovered evidence. The hearing was held before Referee
Menashe oh November 25, 1980. There was evidence presented at
that time that claimant had just started, about two weeks earlier,
being counselled by a group of vocational rehabilitation consul­
tants. The "newly-discovered evidence" that is the basis of the
motion consists of^reports of rehabilitation/reemployment efforts
dated December 31, 1980, January 22, 1981 and March 3, 1981.

In Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012
(decided this date), we construed
clear showing that evidence could
produced at a hearing in order to
wise, there might not ever be any

OAR 436-83-480(2) as requiring a
not have been discovered and
justify a Board remand. Other-
finality to the hearing process.
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one sense,· it is clear that rehabilitation/reemployment 
reports dat~d December 31, 1980, Ja~~ary 22, ·1981 and March ·3, 
1981 could not have been obtained regardles~ of ~egree of dili­
gence ifi tim~ for a November 25, 1980 hearing •. But there is ano­
ther faq~t to the Barnett rule: Given that the evidende coul~ not 
have been obtained sooner, why could not t~e hearing have been 
held later? 

We noted in Barnett that the parties largely control when a·. 
workers' cornpensati6n hearing is held, i.e., if the parties do not 
file an application to schedule, no ~earipg is•~cheduled undei 
current procedure. we also discussed the dynamics of cases. 
involving ongoing medical treatment or ~ocation~l rehabilitation 
efforts and concluded these tircumstances were good cause to ei­
ther postpone ·a scheduled hearing and/or keep the hearing record 
open fpr submission.of ~dditional evid~nce. 

In this case th~ claimant did control 
held~-he filed an application- to sche~ule~ 
postponement. -He did not request that the 
rec~ipt of the ~vid~nce here in question. 

~heD the hearing was 
He a id no't .seek a 

record be kept open.·fdr 
At the time.of oral 

argument on this m~tion, we.asked clatmant's attorney: Given that 
all pa~ties knew at the time of the Nove~b~r 5, 1~80 hearing that 
the claimrint was then patticipating in a rehabilitatibn prograw, 
why was·the hearing held when· it was and why was the record promp­
tly closed without objection? Claimant's attorney responded .that 
he had discussed·the _situation with_claimant who had indicated a 
desire to proceed with the h~aring based on the then available 
evidence. That is certainly claimant's tactical choice, but we· 
rep'eat now what we said at the ·time of argument: A p~rty who 
m~kes that tactic~l choice has to take _the bitter with the sweet-­
a decision based on the then available evidence without the safety 
net of- Board remand to.consider evidence that could have been ob~ 
tained for the heaiing had the claimant been willing to delay the 
beaiing date. · · 

Claimant•~ motion fo remand is denied. This rende~s moot a 
sep~rate motion to remjnd SAii filed on different giounds. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-~ 

--

In one sense, it is clear that rehabilitation/reemployment
reports dated December 31, 1980, January 22, 1981 and March 3,
1981 could not have been obtained regardless of degree of dili­
gence in time for a November 25, 1980 hearing. But there is ano­
ther facet to the Barnett rule; Given that the evidence could not
have been obtained sooner, why could not the hearing have been
held later?

We
workers
file an
current
involvi
efforts
ther po
open fp

noted in Barnett that the parties largely control when a
' compensation hearing is held, i.e., if the parties do not
application to schedule, no hearing is scheduled under
procedure. We also discussed the dynamics of cases,
ng ongoing medical treatment or vocational rehabilitation
and concluded these circumstances were good cause to ei-
stpone a scheduled hearing and/or keep the hearing record
r submission.of additional evidence.

In this case the claimant did control when the hearing was
held--he filed an application' to schedule. He did no't seek a
postponement. He did not request that the record be kept open.for
receipt of the evidence here in question. At the time of oral

argument on this motion, we-asked claimant's attorney: Given that
all parties knew at the time of the November 5, 19.80 hearing that'
the claimant was then participating in a rehabili tat ion prograf;^,
why was the hearing held when it was and why was the record promp­
tly closed without objection? Claimant's attorney responded that
he had discussed the situation with claimant who had indicated a
desire to proceed with the hearing based on the then available i
evidence. That is certainly claimant's tactical choice, but we
repeat now what we said at the time of argument: A party who
makes that tactical choice has to take the bitter with the sweet--
a decision based on the then available evidence without the safety
net of Board remand to consider evidence that could have been ob­
tained for the hearing had the claimant been willing to delay the
hearing date.

Claimant's motion to remand is denied. This renders moot a
separate motion to remand SAIF filed on different grounds.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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RI CHARD E. DONALDSON,· CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Order 

·-.. 

Ow~ Motion 81-0167M 
June 26, 1981 

Claimant requests the Board to ex~rcise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 6~6.278, and reopen hi.s claim for a wor­
sened condition related to, his July 8, 1950 •industrial injury. 

. I 
The SAIF Corporation does not oppose a claim reopening and 

submitted medical evidence to the Board. Qr. Noiton, SAIF 1 s con­
sultant~ related claimant's current left knee condition to1his 
right leg injury, and Dr. Larson recommended an arthrotomy:with 
debridernent rif. the joint surfaces~ · · 

I 
Based on this evidence the Board finds that claimant is en-

titled to have his claim reoperi~d for payment of compensation for 
temporary total disability upon the date that.claimant is hos~ · 
pitalized for the recommended procedure and until closure is auth-
orize~ pursuant to ORS 656.278. ·. 1 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

TWYLA K .. GOULD, CLAIMANT 
Kenneth Zenger, Claimant 1 s Attorney 

·SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Owh Motion Determination 

Own ~1oti on 81-0159M 
. June 26, 1981 ·· 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in this matt~r on J~nu­
iry 9, 1980 and r~opened ~lairnant's claim for a worsened condition 
rela~ed to his industrial injury 6f Sept~mber 13, 1971. 

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it 'is the. . . , . . 

recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Campen~ 
sation Department that claimant be granted temporary t.otaJ; disa­
bility from August 3, 1979 through October 19, 1980, as a0ar~ed by 
the Own Motion Order, and temporary total disability from October 
20, 1980 through May 6, 1981 ~nd compensation eaual to 48~ for 15% 
unscheduled disability and 15° for 10% loss of the use of ;the left. 
leg restilting from the injury. The Board concurs •with t~is recom~ 
mendation. 

Claimant's attorney is qranted as a reasonable attorney fee 
the sum of $300 out of claimant's increased compens~tion. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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RICHARD E. DONALDSON, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0167M
June 26, 1981

Clciiinant requests the Board to exercicut: l.<_» cAtL«^j-se its owfi motlon juris'
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his July 8, 1950 industrial injury.

The SAIF Corporation does not oppose a claim reopening and
submitted medical evidence to the Board. Dr. Norton, SAIF's con­
sultant, related claimant's current left knee condition toihis
right leg injury, and Dr. Larson recommended an arthrotomy'with
debridement of. the joint surfaces.

t -Based on this evidence the Board finds that claimant is en­
titled to have his claim reopened for payment of compensation for
temporary total disability upon the date that.claimant is hos­
pitalized for the recommended procedure and until closure is auth
orized pursuant to ORS 656.278. i

IT. IS SO ORDERED.

TW LA K. .ROULD, CLAIMANT
Kenneth Zenger, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Owh Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0159M
June 26, 1981 |

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in this matter on Janu­
ary 9, 1980 and reopened claimant's claim for a worsened condition
related to his industrial injury of September 13, 1971.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the.
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted temporary total; disa­
bility from August 3, 1979 through October 19, 1980, as awarded by
the Own Motion Order, end temporary total disability from .October
20, 1980 through May 6, 1981 and compensation eoual to -^8°- for 15%
unscheduled disability and 15° for 10% loss of the use of ;the left
leg resulting from the injury. The Board concurs with this recom­
mendation.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee
the sum of $300 out of claimant's increased compensation. ;

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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D. GRAY, CLAIMANT 
· Own Motion Order · 

Claim GC 449993 
June 26, 1981. 

Claimant requests t~e Board to exercise its owri motion jur(~­
_dictioni pursuarit to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim .for a wor­
sened .condition.related to his industrial injuiy of July 5, 1973. 
_Claimant's aggravation rig~ts have expired.· 

/· 

br. Grewe reported 6n May 12, 1981 that he had no plans for 
further neurosurgical investigation or surgica} treatment but felt 
tha·t "it i·s medically probable that his current symptoms prevent· 
him from earning a living." 

The Board .feels that claimant's claim should be reopened as 
of May 12, 1981 and order the SAii to have claimant enrolled at 
the Callahan Center in order to have his medical condition thor­
oughly evaluated along· with his vocational capabilities. The SAIF 
is to terminate compensation for temporary total disability upon 
his dischar~e from the Center. · 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

ROBERT ,l. HANEY. CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Detennination 

Own Motion 81-0164M 
June 26, 1981 

Claimaht's aggravation rights expired 6n August 28, 1980 from 
an injury he sustained· on June 10, 1974. However, on September 
24~ 1980 he was enrolled in an approved progr~rn of rehabilitation. 
This program was interrupted in October 1980, ~na claimant ~ai 
hospitalized. The program was reinstated on November 24i and 
claimant was again hospitalized. The program was effectively 
terminated on November 25, 1980. 

· Claimant's claim has now been sbbmitted for closure under the 
provisions of ORS 656.278 since his aggravation rights have ex­
pired. It is the recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the 
Workers' Compensation Department that claimant be granted no ad­
ditional award of permanent partial disability and recommended two 
possible ways of granting·compensation for temporary total disabil-
ity. . 

The Board finds that claim~nt is.entitled to comp_en_.sation fcir 
temporary total di~ability from Se~tembei 29, ·1980 thro~gh May l, 
1981. This covers both the periods while enrolled in vocational 
rehabilitation and also the periods.of a worsening of his condi­
tion which required hospitalization. 'l'o date, claimant has ·ari 
award of 60% unschedul~d disabiiity. we feel that he would be, 
based on all the relevant factors to be considered, adequately 
compensated for his los~ of wage earning capacity with an award of 
70% unscheduled disability. 

I~ .IS SO ORDERED. 
-186-

DELBERT D. RRA , CLAIMANT
Own Motion Order

Claim CC
June 26,

449993
1981

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion juris­
diction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a wor­
sened condition related to his industrial injury of July 5, 1973.
Claimant's aggravation rights have expired.

Dr. Grewe reported on May 12, 1981 that he had no plans for
further neurosurgical investigation or surgical treatment but felt
that "it is medically probable that his current symptoms prevent
him from earning a living."

The Board feels that claimant's claim should be reopened as
of May 12, 1981 and order the SAIF to have claimant enrolled at
the Callahan Center in order to have his medical condition thor­
oughly evaluated along'with his vocational capabilities. The SAIF
is to terminate compensation for temporary total disability upon
his discharge from the Center.

IT IS SO ORDERED. i

ROBERT J. HANE . CLAIMANT Own Motion 81 0164M
Own Motion Determination June 26, 1981

Claimant's aggravation rights expired on August 28, 1980 from
an injury he sustained on June 10, 1974. However, on September
24, 1980 he was enrolled in an approved program of rehabilitation.
This program was interrupted in October 1980, and claimant was
hospitalized. The program was reinstated on November 24, and
claimant was again hospitalized.. The program was effectively
terminated on November 25, 1980.

Claimant's claim has now been submitted for closure under the
provisions of ORS 656.278 since his aggravation rights have ex­
pired. It is the recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the
Workers' Compensation Department that claimant be granted no ad­
ditional award of permanent partial disability and recommended two
possible ways of granting compensation for temporary total disabil­
ity.

The Board finds that claimant is.entitled to compensation for
temporary total disability from September 29, 1980 through May 1,
1981. This covers both the periods while enrolled in vocational
rehabilitation and also the periods of a worsening of his condi­
tion which required hospitalization. To date, claimant has an
award of 60% unscheduled disability. We feel that he would be,
based on all the relevant factors to be considered, adequately
compensated for his loss of wage earning capacity with an award
70% unscheduled disability.

of

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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C. HOWLAND. CLAIMANT 
ow·n Motion Order 

I 

Own Motion 81-0f65M 
June 26. 1981 I 

) 
. I 

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motiqn 
jurisdi~tion, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a 
worsened condition related to his, February 5, 1971 industrial 
injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired. I · 

The medical evidence submitted indicates that claima~t 1s 

entitled to have his claim be reope~ed for compensation for 
temporary total disability from December 1, 1980 through January 
5, 1981, less time worked. This claim will now be submitted to 
the Evaluation Division for their recommendation on closure 
pursuant to ORS 656.278. i 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
I 

i 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
EDWARD HUMMELL, CLAIMANT Own Motion 81-0lf.6M 
Charles M~ier, Claimant's Attorne~ 
Ronald Atwood, Defense Attorney 
Roger Luedtke, Defense Attorney 

June 26, 1981 f 

I 
. Own Motion Referri nq for Heari nq I . 

j 

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the ~oard to 
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and 
reopen claimant's claim for a worsened condition related 1to his 
October 28, 1972 industrial injury. Claimant's aggravat~on rights 
have expired. · ~ 

I 
j 

Claimant's attorney also provided information that ~laimant 
filed a new injury claim for an alleged· injury·of March 16, 1981 
and that claim has been denied. Claimant's attorney reqJested a 
hearing which date has not yet ·been set. j 

r 
In the interest of all parties concerned, the BoardJfeels 

that this own motion matter should be referred to the He~ririgs 
Division. 1 

•rhe Referee is to hold a hearing on a consolidated basis with 
the' own motion case and WCB Case No •. 81-03381 and. take evidence ·on 
whether 6laimant's current condition is related to hi~ 1~72 
indu~trial inj~ry (the own motion case) or the result.of' his 
alle~ed new injury of· March 1981, or neither.· At the clbse of the· 
hearing he is ·to cause a transcript of 'the ~roceedin9s tb be 
submitted to the Board, together with his Opinion and Or~er and 

- Recommendation.. I 
IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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MICHAEL ,C. HOWLAND, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0T65M
June 26, 1981 .

Claimant requests the Board to exercise its own motion
jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen his claim for a
worsened condition related to his* February 5, 1971 industrial
injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have expired. \

The medical evidence submitted indicates that claimant is
entitled to have his claim be reopened for compensation for
temporary, total disability from December 1, 1980 through January
5, 1981, less time worked. This claim will now be submitted to
the Evaluation Division for their recommendation on closure
pursuant to ORS 656.278, |

■ •

IT IS SO ORDERED.

EDWARD HUMMELL, CLAIMANT
Charles Maier, Claimant's Attorney
Ronald Atwood, Defense Attorney
Roger Luedtke, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Referring for Hearing

Own Motion 81 0166M
June 26, 1981 (

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the |Board to
jexercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278,

reopen claimant's-claim for a worsened condition related 'to hi
and

October 28, 1972
have expired.

industrial injury. Claimant's aggravation rights

C:iaimant's attorney also provided information that claimant
filed a nev; injury claim for an alleged injury'of March 16, 1981
and that claim has been denied. Claimant’s attorney requested a
hearing which date has not yet been set. j

IIn the interest of all parties concerned, the Board'feels
that this own
Division.

*• . fmotion matter should be referred to the Hearings

The Referee is to hold a hearing on a consolidated basis with
the' own motion case and WCB Case No. 81-03381 and take eyidence on
whether claimant's current condition is related to his 1972
industrial injury (the own motion case) or the result of his
alleged new injury of March 1981, or neither. At the close of the
hearing he is to cause a transcript of the proceedings to be
submitted to the Board, together with his Opinion and Order and
Recommendation. 1

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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A. LAINE, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination 

·Own Motioh 81-0171M 
June 26, 1981 

. The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled 
matter on August 12, 1980 which reopened cl~irnant's claim for a 
worsened cbndition related to his industrial lnjuiy of September 
s, 1972. 

The c~aim h~s now been submitted for closure, and it. is the 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Campen-. 
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from Sept~mber 1, 1980 through April 30, 
1981 and no additional award for permanen~ partial disability. 
The.Board disatjrees with the recommendation for permanent partial 
disability but agrees on the.time ldss recommendation. · · 

The Board finds, based on the evidence_ of record, that· c;laim­
ant would be more adequately compensated for his lpss of wage 
earning capacity by an award of 60% ~nscheduled dis~bility. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

LARRY MCDONALD, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination 

Own Motion 81-0162M 
June 26, 1981 

This claim is being reopened pursuant to ORS 656.278 for a 
worsened condition related to claimant's industrial injury sus­
tained on March -28, 1973 to his left foot. Claimant's aggravation 
rights have. expired. 

A Determination Order in October 1973 and an Own Motion De~ 
terminati~n in May 1980 each granted temporary total disability 
only with no permanent partial disability. 

On November 18, 1980 claimant saw Dr~ Stephen Schachner, and 
he was hospitalized for eradication of the osteomyelitis and clo­
sure of his tib1al wound on December 2, 1980. He was released to 
return to work on March 4, · 19 81. 

The claim having now been submitted for closure, it is the 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claim~nt be granted temporary total dis~­
bility from November 18, 1980 through March 3, ·1981 and that 
claimant be granted no further award of permanent partia·1 disabil- ii 
ity. The Board concurs. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
-188-

WILLIAM A. LAINE, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0171M
June 26, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order in the above entitled
matter on August 12, 1980 which reopened claimant’s claim for a
worsened condition related to his industrial iniury of September
5, 1972. . '

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from September 1, 1980 through April 30,
1981 and no additional award for permanent partial disability.
The Board disagrees with the recommendation for permanent partial
disability but agrees on the time loss recommendation.

The Board finds, based on the evidence of record, that claim'
compensated for his loss of wage
of 60% unscheduled disaibility.

ant would be more adequately
earning capacity by an award

IT IS SO ORDERED.

LARR MCDONALD, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0162M
June 26, 1981

This claim is being reopened pursuant to ORS 656.278 for a
worsened condition related to claimant’s industrial injury sus­
tained on March 28, 1973 to his left foot. Claimant's aggravation
rights have expired.

A Determination Order in October 1973 and an Own Motion De­
termination in May 1980 each granted temporary total disability
only with no permanent partial disability.

On November 18, 1980 claimant saw Dr; Stephen Schachner, and
he was hospitalized for eradication of the osteomyelitis and clo­
sure of his tibial wound on December 2, 1980. He was released to
return to work on March 4,' 1981.

The claim having now been submitted for closure, it is. the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted temporary total disa­
bility from November 18, 1980 through March 3, 1981 and that
claimant be granted no further award of permanent partial disabil­
ity. The Board concurs.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
-188-
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I. VINSON, CLAIMANT 
David Vandenber~, Jr., Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense. Attorney 
Reauest for Review by SAIF 

WCB 78-08235 
June 26, 1981 

R~viewed by Bo~rd Members Barnes and Mccallister. 
I 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee Williams' 
order which grantea·ciaimant an award of permanent total 4isabil­
ity. . . . . . I . 

Based on the medical evidence alone, claimant is able to do 
1 ight work and is not ·pe rrnanent-ly, totally di sabled. Shel _has no.t 
sought work ··since her injury. Based on these facts and O~S 
656.2Q6(3), the· Bo~rd would rate claimant's loss of earnihg capa­
city at 75% if we had ~he discretiori to do so.· Ho~ever, ~ased on 
the decision of the ~ourt of Appeals in Butcher v SAIF, 45 Or ~PP 
313. (1980), as· we interpreted it in Dock A. Perkins, wca Case.No. 
78-09922 (June 25, 1981) ,. and based on the social/vocatiobal evi­
dence, t~e Board agrees claimant is permanently and total~y di~-
abled. , 

! 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated September 16, 1.980 
I 

is affirmed. 

Clai~ant's atfoiney is awarded as~ reasonable 
for servicies rendered on Board review $500, p~yable 

a t.torney 
by SA~F. 

l 

DONALD WEBER, CLAIMANT 
Amended Own Motion Order 

' I 
Own Motion 81-0089M 
June 26, 1981 ! 

fee 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 21, 1$a1 and 
reopened claimant's claim for a worsened c0ndition related to his 
industiial injuri of August 20, 1975 with compensation fo! 
temporary total disability to commence upon his h6spitaliiation. 

Claimant has now pr6vided the Boa~d with. a medical rtport 
from Dr. Struckman authorizinq compensation for temporaryj total 
disability for claimant's inability to work from Novembei 1980. 

. . . . . 1 

The employer, upqn claimant's request, indicated that his 
last day of emplo~men~ was November 25, 1980. · i 

I 

T,heref ore, our ··own Motion Order of Apr i 1 21, 19 81 is; hereby 
amended, .and claimant is granted compensation for temporary total 
disability commencing November 26,· 1980 and until closure! is 
authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278. 

IT IS SO ORDERED, 
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BERTHA I. VINSON, CLAIMANT
David Vandenberq, Jr., Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense. Attorney
Reouest for Review by SAIF

WCB 78 08235
June 26, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee Williams*
order which granted'claimant an award of permanent total disabil­
ity.

Based on
light work and
sought work si
656.206(3), th
city at 75% if
the decision o
313 (1980), as
78-09922 (June
dence, the Boa
abled.

the medica
is not pe
nee her in
e Board wo
we had th
f the Cour
we interp
25 , 1981)
rd agrees

1 evidence alone
rmanently, totally
jury. Based on th
uld rate claimant'
e discretion to do
t of Appeals in ^
reted it in Dock A
, and based on the
claimant is perman

claimant is able to
disabled. She*has
ese facts and

do
not

ORS
s loss of earning capa-
so. However, based on
tcher V SAIF, 45 Or App
■ Perkins, WCB Case.No.
social/vocational evi-
ently and totally dis-

for

ORDER

The Referee's order dated September 16, 1980 is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable at.torhey fee
services rendered on Board review $500, payable by SAIF.

m

DONALD WEBER, CLAIMANT
Amended Own Motion Order

Own Motion 81 0089M
June 26, 1981 !

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on April 21, 1981 and
reopened claimant’s claim for a worsened condition related to his
industrial injury of August 20, 1975 with compensation for
temporary total disability to commence upon his hospitalization.

Claimant has now provided the Board with a medical report
from Dr. Struckman authorizing compensation for temporaryjtotal
disability for claimant's inability to work from Novemberj1980.

The employer, upon claimant's request, indicated that his
last day of employment was November 25, 1980. |

Therefore, our Own Motion Order of April 21, 1981 is,' hereby
amended,.and claimant is granted compensation for temporary total
disability commencing November 26, 1980 and until closurej is
authorized pursuant to ORS 656.278. ■

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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CHARLES L. WILLIAMS, CLAIMANT 
Own Motfon Determination· 

Own Motion 81-0172 
June 2E, 1981" 

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on November 4, 1980 a·na 
r~opened claimant's claim for a worsened condition related to his 
April 11, 1972 industrial injury~ 

The claim has now been suhmitted for closure, and it is the 
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be grant~d compensation for tem­
porary total disability from April 23, 1960 _th~ough June 1, 1980 
a~d add{tibnal comp~nsation for temporary tota1 dis~bility from·. 

· . November ·24·, 1980 through January 1, 1981 and no award for pe-rman­
ent partial disabilit~. The Board concurs with this iecom~enda~ 
tion. 

IT -IS SO ORDERED. 

JAMES L. CAWARD, CLAIMANT 
Cramer & Pinkerton, Claimant 1 s Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney · 

~!CB 80-07571 
June 30, 1981 

. On June 17, 1980 claimant, by and through his attorney, re­
quested the Board to exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursu­
ant to ORS ~56.278, and ·reopen his claim related to his July 3, 
1973 he.art at.tack. 

Based on the evidence presented to us at.that ~ime, the Board· 
felt it was in the best interest of all pirties to refer this case 
to a Referee for a hearing, and issued an order so d6ing on Augu~t 
20, 1980. · . 

. The hearing was h~ld on March 24, 1981 before Referee McCul­
lough who submitted his recommendation to the Boara·on April 21, 
1981. It was. the Referee's conclusion that the weight of the med­
ical evi~ence did not su~port a caus~l rel~tions~ip between claim­
ant's 1973 work injury and his myocardial.infarctions in 1979 and 
1980. He reco~rnended that th~ request for own motion relief be 
denied·. 

The ~oard, having been provided by the Referee with a tran­
sc~ipt of the pr9ceedings and all the evidence before him and . 
after review of such, agrees with the recommendation of the Ref­
eree that the weight of th~ evidence is that claimant's 1979 and 
1980 myocardial infarctions are not related to his 1973 industrial 
injury~ Claimant's request for own motion relief is therefore 
denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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CHARLES L. WILLIAMS, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81 0172
June 26, 1981

The Board issued its Own Motion Order on November 4, 1980 and
reopened claimant’s claim for a worsened condition related to his
April 11, 1972 industrial injury.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted compensation for tem­
porary total disability from April 23, 1980 through June 1, 1980
and additional compensation for temporary total disability from
November 24, 1980 through January 1, 1981 and no award for perman­
ent partial disability. The Board concurs with this recommenda­
tion.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

JAMES L. CAWARD, CLAIMANT
Cramer & Pinkerton, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney

WCB 80 07571
June 30, 1981

On June 17, 1980 claimant, by and through his attorney, re­
quested the Board to exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursu­
ant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his claim related to his July 3,
1973 heart attack.

Based on the evidence presented to us at that time, the Board
felt it was in the best interest of all parties to refer this case
to a Referee for a hearing, and issued an order so doing on Auaust
20, 1980.

The hearing was held on March 24, 1981 before Referee McCul­
lough who submitted his recommendation to the Board on April 21,
1981. It was.the Referee's conclusion that the weight of the med­
ical evidence did not supporjt a causal relationship between claim­
ant's 1973 work injury and his myocardial infarctions in 1979 and
1980. He recommended that the request for own motion relief be
denied.

The Board, having been provided by the Referee with a tran-’
script of the proceedings and all the evidence before him and
after review of such, agrees with the recommendation of the Ref­
eree that the weight of the evidence is that claimant's 1979 and
1980 myocardial infarctions are not related to his 1973 industrial
injury. Claimant's request for own motion relief is therefore
denied.

 

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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CLAIMANT 
Michael Strooband, Claimant's Attornev 
SA1f Corp Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 79-04289 
June 30, 1981 

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee McSwairi 1 s 
order that awarded claimant 128° for 40% loss of earning bapacity 
resulting from an industrial injury to his neck. ! 

' 

The issue is extent of disability. However, a ~reli~inary 
issue was raised before the Re.feree that the Board m~jori~y finds 
dispositive: Whether the rules adopted by the Director of the · 
Workers' Compensation D~pirtment governing ·the rating of bisabil­
ity that became effective on April 1, 1980 should be applied in 
this case in which the inaustrial injury occurred before ~hat· 
date. ~s the Referee explaiped it, "the defense has move~ that 
the decision in this matter contains specific findings with regard 
to the application of those rules and empl.oy those rules ~s a 
g~ideline." The Referee declined to apply the Department 1's rules, 
reasoning: I 

"The rating of disability results in an 
amount which is the worker's permanent 
award. Hence, the use or non-use of the 
[Department's rules] is a substantive, noi 

.procedural matter. ·There is a ·presumption 
against the retroactivity of substantive 
rules. I have been cited to no author~ty 
for the proposition that the rule should be 
applied to injuries occ~rring before April 
1, 1980, the effective date of the rules. 
I am unable to discern what purpose would 
be served by an eiercise wherein this 
writer ·first ·applies the rules and then 
applies th~ s~me subjective process which 
preceded the rules and compares the dif­
ference .. ~~ence, I find it proper absten­
tion to decline the invitation of defense 

_counsel with regard to the rules." 

I 

I . 
f 

i 
The Board majority disagrees with the Referee's anal~sis, and 

remands for further proceedings to include application of: the De­
part~ent's rules. The "substantive" and'"procedural 11 labels are 
not particularly enlightening in.determining the· retroactive ap­
plication of the De~artment's new disability rating rules~ What 
is significant, we feel, is the fact that ORS 56.726(3) {f) em-

· powers th~ Director of the Workers' Compensatfon·Department· to· 
adopt. rat-ing ·rules "in accor~ance with ~xisting law." The rules 
that were adopted by the Department effective April 1·, 1980 must 
be in harmony with then~existing law or they are invalid.! In OSEA 
v~ Workers' Co~pensation Department, 51 Or App 55 (1981) ,: the 
Cour~ of Appeals ·held. that generally challenge~ to the Depart­
ment's rules. as inconsistent with existing law must ·be made on a 
case-by-case· ba~is. 
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DENNIS GARDNER, CLAIMANT WCB 79-04289
Michael Strooband, Claimant's Attorney June 30, 1981
SAIF Corp Leaal, Defense Attorney • ;
Request for Review by SAIF

• j
Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The SAIF Corporation seeks Board review of Referee McSwain’s
order that awarded claimant 128® for 40% loss of earning capacity
resulting from an industrial injury to his neck.

The issue is extent of disability. However, a preliminary
issue was raised before the Referee that the Board majority finds
dispositive: Whether the rules adopted by the Director of the
Workers' Compensation Department governing the rating of disabil­
ity that became effective on April 1, 1980 should be applied in
this case in which the industrial injury occurred before that
date. As the Referee explained it, "the defense has moved that
the decision in this matter contains specific findings with regard
to the application of those rules and employ those rules as a
guideline.
reasoning:

The Referee declined to apply the Departmenti's rules

"The rating of disability results in an
amount which is the worker's permanent
award. Hence, the use or non-use of the
[Department's rules] is a
procedural matter. There
against the retroactivity

I have been cited
proposition that

rules.
for the
applied
1, 1980

substantive, not'
is a presumption
of substantive
to no authority
the rule should be

to inDuries occurring before April |
the effective date of the rules.

1 am unable to discern what purpose would
be served by an exercise wherein this
writer first applies the rules and then
applies the same subjective process which |
preceded the rules and compares the dif-
ference...Hence, I find it proper absten-
tioh to decline the invitation of defense
counsel with regardto the rules." I

- '
The Board majority disagrees with the Referee's.analysis, and

remands for further proceedings to include application of’ the De­
partment’s rules. The "substantive" and'"procedural" labels are
not particularly enlightening in determining the retroactive ap­
plication of the Department's new disability rating rules;. What
is significant, we feel, is the fact that ORS 56,726(3)(f) em­
powers the Director of the Workers' Compensation Department to •
adopt rating rules "in accordance with existing law." The rules
that were adopted by the Department effective April 1, 1980 must
be in harmony with then-existing law or they are invalid,i In OSEA
V. Workers' Compensation Department, 51 Or App 55 (1981),' the
Court of Appeals held, that generally challenges to the Depart­
ment's rules, as inconsistent with existing law must be made on a
case-by-case basis. i
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Thus, the statutory basis for the Department's rules, as in-· 
terpreted· in the OSEA decision, already specifically contains the 
general Joseph v.Lowery, 261 Or 545 (1972), concern about effect­
"ing legal iights and duties arising from past transactions. The 
Referees, this Board and the courts can, on a case-by-case basis, 
find application of those rules "inconsistent with existing law," 
meaning existing law would, of course, prevail. Unless and until, 
however, there is a finding at some level of the review process . 
that the Department's r~les are inconsistent with existing law in 
a particular case, they should be applied to the evidence presen­
ted at the hearing. The RefFree erred in not so doing. 

ORDER 

The order of the Referee dated August 28, 1980 is reversed, 
·and this case is remanded for.further proceedings consistent with 
this <;>pinion. 

Board ~e~ber George Lewis respectfully dissents. 

Ad~inistrative rules may be applied retroactiveiy only where 
they do not affect the substantive_ rights of the parties. In this 
caie, I believe they do, for the reasons expressed later in this 
opinion. The majority a·pparen tly sees no sign if ic~rnce 1 n whether · 

-substantive rights are or are ~ot affected.· I disagree and woul~: 
affirm the.Referee's decision. 

The majority ·firids that the Referee erred in failipg to apply 
department rules governing the method for determining th·e extent 
of disability of an injured worker. Those rules became ~ffective 
Apri~·l, 1980.1 The majority remands with instructions to apply 
the rules retroactively to an injury which occurred on May 19, 
1975. 

Appellant -in this case has ~onceded that the rules did not 
become effective until April 1, 1980 but argues that.no substan­
tive rights are affected. In its amicus brief requested by the· 
Board, the Association of Workers' Compensation Defehse. Attorneys 
argues, alternatively, th~t whether the rules. are labeled substan­
tive or procedural .is "merely a matter of semantics" and ''not par­
ticularly ~nlightening pr controllin~" insofar as determining ret­
roaGtive applicability. 

Retroactive applicatio~ of law--whether enacted by rule or 
statute--which affects substantive rights or ·the obligation of _ ~ 
contracts·is prohibited by law.2 Where the amount of compensa- WI 
tion to. be paid an injured worker is affected, so are his substan-
tive rights.· 
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Thus, the statutory basis for the Depar
terpreted in the OSEA decision, already spec
general Joseph v. Lowery, 261 Or 545 (1972),
ing legal fights and duties arising from pas
Referees, this Board and the courts can, on
find application of those rules "inconsisten
meaning existing law would, of course, preva
however, there is a finding at some level of
that the Department's rules are inconsistent
a particular case, they should be applied to
ted at the hearing. The Refpree erred in no

tment's rules, as in--,
ifically contains the
concern about effect-
t transactions. The
a case-by-case basis,
t with existing law,"
il. Unless and until,
the review process
with existing law in
the evidence presen-
t so doing.

ORDER

The order of the Referee
and this case is remanded for
this opinion.

dated August 28, 1980 is reversed,
further proceedings consistent with

Board Member George Lewis respectfully dissents.

Administrative rules may be applied retroactively only where
they do not affect the substantive, rights of the parties. In this
case, I believe they do, for. the reasons expressed later in this
opinion. The majority apparently sees no significance in whether
substantive rights are or are not affected. I disagree and woulc3
affirm the.Referee's decision.

The majority finds that the Referee erred in failing to apply
department rules governing the method for determining the extent
of disability of an injured worker. Those rules became effective
April 1, 1980.1 majority remands with instructions to apply
the rules retroactively to an injury which occurred on May 19,
1975.

Appellant in this case has conceded that the rules did not
become effective until April 1, 1980 but argues that no substan­
tive rights are affected. In its amicus brief requested by,the
Board, the Association of Workers' Compensation Defense, Attorneys
argues, alternatively, that whether the rules, are labeled substan­
tive or procedural is "merely a matter of semantics" and "not par­
ticularly enlightening or controlling" insofar as determining ret­
roactive applicability.

Retroactive application^ of law--whether enacted by rule or
statute--which affects substantive rights or the obligation of
contracts'is prohibited by law.2 where the amount of compensa­
tion to.be paid an injured worker is affected, so are his substan­
tive rights.
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656.202(2} specifically provides: 

"Ex~ept as otherwise provided by law, pay­
ment of benefits for injuries or deaths 
under ORS 656:001 io 656.794 shall be con­
tinued as authorized, and in the amourt~s 
provided for, by the law- in force at the 
.time the injury giving rise to the right to 
co~pensation occurred." · 

i 
l 

. l 

It would se~m analogous then, where the amount of compensa~ion 
must first be determined by the extent of d°isability, tha·t' the 
method used to determine that eitent be consistent with the law in 
effect at the time of the in.jury, if the methodology wouldj in any 
way_alter the·result. · I 

' I 
The Director's order adopting the rules expressed no inten-

tion that they be applied to inj ur ie s occurring before Apr ii 1 1, 
1980. Abse·nt a clear, express intention, legislation in o'regon is 
not normally applied retrospectively. 3 St~tutes other th~~ 

I 

those which are-only procedural or remedial4 in nature are! ap­
plied only prospecti~ely, in the absence of an ~xplicit di~ection 
to the contrary.5 Where laws are silent on the point, the: Ore­
gon Supreme_ Court assumes only prospective applicability. 6 J 

The Oregon Attorney General has twice held that le~is~ation 
providirig for an increase in benefits un~er the Workers' Cbmpensa­
tion Act,- for thos·e persons injured prior t9 the effectivej elate of 
the new act, is unconstitutional as an impairment of the obliga­
tion of 6ontracts:7 It reasonably follows that rules havi~g the 
full fo.rce and effect of law, which could effectively incr 1ease or 
decrease the amount of comp.ensation benefits, may not be applied 
retroactively. 

I 
It is a generally recognized fund~mental principle o~ law 

that retroactive application of new laws is not acceptabl~ because 
it risks the potential of unfairness.8 As ageneral rule of 
statutory construction~ letjislative enactment is applied only 
prospectively. ·The same rules of construction and· interpretation 
govern the rules and regulations of administrative agencies as 
apply to statutes in the sam~ iield. 9 · · ; 

As to injuries occurring prior to the enactment of the rules, 
the employer's responsibility for compensaticin must he .me~sured 
under the ~tatutes ahd rules in ~ffect at the time·of the jin­
jury·,10 

. The Director's "Summary of the Testimony ~na Agency ~espon-
.ses,1111 attached to the oraer of adoption, notes that implemen­
tation of the rules--previously reierred to as "in-house aides''-­
wo~ld affect workers who sustain compensable injuries whiJh result 
1n disability. The summary further notes that implement~tion "af­
fects premiums paid by employers subject to the Workers' Compensa­
tion Law and affects the State Accident Insurance Fund an9 insur­
ance companies writing wotkers' compensation~» The Director -con­
clud~d, therefore, thai the agency had to qo through the ~ule­
~aking process before they could be properiy implemented.' 
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ORS 656,202(2) specifically provides:

"Except as otherwise provided by law, pay-
raent of benefits for injuries or deaths
under ORS 656.001 to 656.794 shall be con­
tinued as authorized, and in the amounts
provided for, by the law in force at the j
time the injury giving rise to the right to !
compensation occurred."

It would seem analogous then, where the amount of compensation
must first be determined by the extent of disability, that: the
method used to determine that extent be consistent with the law in
effect at the time of
way alter theresult.

the injury, if the methodology would in any

The Director's order adopting the rules expressed no inten­
tion that they be applied to injuries occurring before April 1,
1980. Absent a clear, express intention, legislation in Oregon is
not normally applied retrospectively.^ Statutes other than

those which are only procedural or remedial^ in nature are; ap­
plied only prospectively, in the absence of an explicit direction
to the contrary.^ Where laws.are silent on the point, the: Ore­
gon Supreme Court assumes only prospective applicability."!

The Oregon Attorney General has twice held that legislation
providing for an increase in benefits under the Workers' Compensa­
tion Act, for those persons injured prior to the effective; date of
the new act, is unconstitutional as an impairment of the obliga­
tion of contractsi"^ It reasonably follows that rules having the
full force and effect of law, which could effectively increase or
decrease the amount of compensation benefits, may not be applied
retroactively.

iIt is a generally recognized fundamental principle of law
that retroactive application of new laws is not acceptable because
it risks the potential of unfairness.® As a general rule of
statutory construction, legislative enactment is applied only
prospectively. The same rules of construction and interpretation
govern.the rules and regulations of administrative agencies as
apply to statutes in the same field.®

As to injuries occurring prior to the enactment of the rules,
the employer's responsibility for compensation must he,measured
under the statutes and rules in effect at the time-of the pi n-
jury. 10 ^ I

' ' *
The Director's "Summary of the Testimony and Agency Respon-

.ses,"^^ attached to the order of adoption, notes that implem.en-
tation of the rules--previously referred to as "in-house aides"--
would affect workers who sustain compensable injuries which result
In d1sabi1ity. The summary further notes that implementation "af­
fects premiums paid by employers subject to the Workers' Compensa­
tion Law and affects the State Accident Insurance Fund and insur­
ance companies writing workers' compensation." The Director con­
cluded, therefore, that the agency had to go through the rule-
making process before they could be properly implemented.
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may ~afely be presumed that one major way in which prem-
iums could be affected would be by either .reducing or increasing -
the amounts of compensation to be paid compensably injured ~or-
kers. It is ·reasonable to ~onclude, therefore, that the substan-
tive rights of both employers and the injured workers are affe~ted 
by implementation of the rules-.-The rules may not, therefore, as 
a matter of law, be given retroactive effect. 

Even if retroactive application were proper, the B6ard on de 
novo review can as readily apply the ·rules to the facts of this 
case as can the Referee.· In my opinion, ·1t_- would be more e.nlight-
ening to do so. The court has said: 

"While it is not appropriate for an admin­
istrative agency to rend~r an unguided, 
stan<lardless adjudication in the name of 
d~veloping guides and standards, where, a~ 
here, there are validly promulgated rules, 
which set forth a clear· policy which is 
sufficiently analogous to the case at bar 
to provide guides and standards, an adju­
dication in the nature of a· refinement 
thereof is not only permissible, but is 
desirable,·to establish a rule to resolve 
the instant case and for application in 
subsequent similar situations." Larsen v. 
Adult an~ Family Services Division, 34 Or 
App 615 (1978). 

Since it is the Board's decision that has precedential value, 
remand at this point· in the proceedings would neither serve to 
establish a rule to resolve this case nor would it establish a 
ruli which could be applied in subsequent similar ca~es. 

By applying the department's 1980 rules to the facts of this 
case, on de. n~vo review, the Board could first determine whether 
those rules do in fact affect substantive rights and hase its 
decision concerning retroactivity accordingly .. 

. . I 
Application of the rules to the instant case, however, risks 

the discovery that the rules are inconsistent with law, and are 
therefore invalid. Rather· than assume that risk, the majority 
states that unless and until there is a finding at some level of 
the review process, in a particular case, that the rules are in­
consistent with existing law they should be applied to the evi­
dence presented at the hearing-. 

The Co~rt of Appeals, in OSEA v. Workers' Compensation De­
pa·rtment,_ 51 Or App _5~ (1981) has said: 

"We cannot say.that the system 0£ evalua­
iion is invalid on it, face. If the rules 
.are applied in such a manner as to be in­
consistent with the statutory or case law 
regarding permanent unscheduled disability 
they maf be challenged on that basis at 
that tirne. 11 
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It may 'safely be presumed that one major way in which prem­
iums could be affected would be by either .reducing or increasing
the amounts of compensation to be paid compensably injured wor­
kers. It is reasonable to conclude, therefore, that the substan­
tive rights of both employers and the injured workers are affected
by implementation of the rules. The rules may not, therefore, as
a matter of law, be given retroactive effect.

Even if retroactive application were proper, the Board on de
novo review can as readily apply the rules . to the facts of this
case as can the Referee. In my opinion, it; would be more enlight­
ening to do so. The court has said:

"While it is not appropriate for an admin­
istrative agency to render an unguided,
standardless adjudication in the name of
developing guides and.standards, where, as
here, there are validly promulgated rules,
which set forth a clear policy which is
sufficiently analogous to the case at bar
to provide guides and standards, an adju­
dication in the nature of a refinement
thereof is not only permissible, but is
desirable,'to establish a rule to resolve
the instant case and for application in
subsequent similar situations." Larsen v.
Adult and Family Services Division, 34 Or
App 615 (1978).

Since it is the Board's decision that has precedential value,
remand at this point-in the proceedings would neither serve to
establish a rule to resolve this.case nor would it establish a
rule which could be applied in subsequent similar cases.

By applying th
case, on de,novo re
those rules do in f
decision concerning

Application of
the discovery that
therefore invalid.
states that unless
the review process,
consistent with exi
dence presented at

e department's 1980
view, the Board cou
act affect substant
retroactivity acco

the rules to the i
the rules are incon
Rather' than assume
and until there is
in a particular ca
sting law they shou
the hearing.

rules to the facts of this
Id first determine whether
ive rights and base its
rdingly.

nstant case, however, risks
sistent with law, and are
that risk, the majority

a finding at some level of
se, that the rules are in-
Id be applied to the evi-

The Court of Appeals, in OSEA v. Workers' Compensation De­
partment, 51 Or App 55 (1981) has said:

"We cannot say .that the system of evalua­
tion is invalid on its face. If the rules
are applied in such a manner as to be in­
consistent with the statutory or case law
regarding permanent unscheduled disability
they may be challenged on that basis at
that time."
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Were it not for the fact that the OSEA 
and awaits further judicial review-;---Tt 
had arrived. 

case is still unre~olved 
w6uld appear that that time 

I ' • 

I 
i 

Strict application of the ruJ.~s, however, would reve~l their 
inflexibility and inconiistency with law. Without personal evalu­
ation of the individual claimant, the rules· c~n blindly riduce or 
increase the amount of compensation ·to which the ·claimant !is. 
otherwise entitled. . . 1 • · 

, . I . 

Because any '1Green Book" exercise must first assume the val­
idity of the rules, ·it will not be venturea here. The reiult, I 
believe, would_be inconsistent with statutory and case la~, in any 
event. I base that opinion on the following discussion of the ap-
plicable rules. f 

(1) The rules cannot be uniformly applied without t~e- aid 
of supplemental material provided by the department in distribu­
ting copies-of the rules to the Board and to the Referees.; These 
supplemental materials, including tables and charts, appe~r to be 
"informal" rules under the definition o-f ORS 183.210(7) .l~ I· 
deem it permissible to take notice of these informal rules under 
the doctrine of official notice. The supplemental materi~ls are 
intended to interpret the rules and to describe the ¢rocedure and 
practice of the agency in applying the rules. I · 

No examination of the formal rules is meaninqful without con­
current examination of the informal rules which s~ow spec{fically 
how the rules are to be applied. 1 

) I 
In the· Director's "S~mmary of the Testimony and Agen~y Re-

sponses"l3 the Director noted that he had "decided to ;me~d the 
proposed rules, deleting references to char ts and graphs u , even 
though advised th~t he· had the legal authority to adopt t~e charts 
and graphs as a formal part of·the ·rules. Surprisingly, although 
the supplemental material is widely disseminated and presumably 
used~ the Director.'s Summary also noted that: 

"It would be improper to permit the Evalua­
t{on Division to utilize in-house aids that 
interpret the existing law and affect the 
public without using the Administrative· 
Procedure Act procedure for ruJ.e adoption~ 
Further, it would be improper to limit 
rules adopted for thi use of the Evaluation 
Division only. 11 14 

' 
The agency's informal rules--the supplementai materi~ls--will 

be specifically dis6u~sed in the following p~ragraphs as they re­
late to the various sections, even though'! aqree with the Direc-
tor's conclusion that their use-is improper. - . 
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m Were it not for the fact that the OSEA case is still unresolved
and awaits further judicial review, it would appear that that time
had arrived. - 1 '

Strict application of the rules, however, would reveal their
inflexibility and inconsistency with law. Without personal evalu­
ation of the individual claimant, the rules can blindly reduce or
increase the amount of compensation to which the claimant is
otherwise entitled.

Because any "Green Book" exercise must first,assume the val­
idity of the rules, it will not be ventured here. The result, I
believe, would be inconsistent with statutory and case lav;, in any
event. I base that opinion on the following discussion of the ap­
plicable rules. j

(1) The rules cannot be uniformly applied without thje aid

of supplemental material provided by the department in distribu­
ting copies • of the rules to the Board and to the Referees.' These
supplemental materials, including tables and charts, appear to be
"informal" rules under the definition of ORS 183.210 (7).j
deem it permissible to take notice of these informal rules under
the doctrine of official notice. The supplemental materials are
intended to interpret the rules and to describe the procedure and
practice of the agency in applying the rules.

0^ No examination of the fo
current examination of the in
how the rules are to be appli

In the' Director's "Siimma
sponses"!^ the Director noted
proposed rules, deleting refe
though advised that he had th
and graphs as a formal part o
the supplemental material is
used, the Director's Summary

rmal rules is meaningful without con­
formal rules which show specifically
ed. i
ry of the Testimony and Agency Re-
that he had "decided to amend the
rences to charts and graphs" leven
e legal authority to adopt the charts
f -the rules. Surprisingly, although
widely disseminated and presumably
also noted that: '

"It would be improper to permit the Evalua-
tion Division to utilize in-house aids that *
interpret the existing law and affect the )
public without using the Administrative \
Procedure Act procedure for rule adoption.
Further, it would be improper to limit
rules adopted for the use of the Evaluation
Division only."^^

The agency's informal rules--the supplemental materials--will
be specifically discussed in the following paragraphs as they re­
late to the various sections, even though'I agree with the Direc­
tor's conclusion that their use is improper.
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(2) OAR 436-65-6bl(4) fails to specify any method for con~ 
vert~ng lost ~arning capacity ·into a disahility rating which would 
fairly·compensate for that ·lo~s. The- rule assumes that 320°, or 
100% unsch~duled permanent partial-disability, represents 100% of 
th~ ~hole person. It does·n6t. It represents only 100% of the 
maximum parti~l disability·rati~g allowed· by law. ORS_656 •. 214(5). 

. . 

·. · Nowh~t~ in the sta~ute is it ~evealed what number of degr~es · 
represents tbe whole person. rt _is clear,·however, that the.100%. 

:· disability· provi~ed by ORS 656.214.(5) is for partial disabil.ity 
only._ Paitial disability is something less than totil disability~ 
Tot~l disability is defined in a separate statute. ORS 656.20.6. 
If 100% disability repr~s~nts only a partial disability, th~n a 
claimant·who loses 50% of his earning capacity, is entitled to 
something more than half of the maximum partial disability allowed 
by law·. 

. . 
.Where.a claimant has lost a specific percentage of his earn-· 

ing _capacity, as in this case, he·is entitled to something more 
t.han tha_t same percentage rate by way of a permanent. partial dis­
ability award.· The rule, although ·specific in the method for as-

. sembling and combining· plus anq minus factors relating· to the loss 
of earning capacity, f~ils t6 specify any mrthod for converting 
the, p~rceritage of lost earning capacity into a disability rating 
which fairty·compensates for that loss. 4i 

. J 

· {3) OAR 436~65-602 provides that certain vaiues be assigned 
to the highest educational achievement level of the claimant, 
without consideration·of the claimaqt's functional-education 
level, or·the .academic achievement level at which the claimant 
performs. In· other·woids; it erroneously ~ssumes that if·a claim­
ant possesses a high school diploma oi its equivalent, the claim~ 
ant I s· achievement level, in fu·nctional terms, is identical. · In 
this case, ~sin many; it is·not. 

The youngest of three children, claimant was forced to drop 
out of scihooi in the 9~h grade when his brother ·aied and he had to 
help his father in. the cons-truction trade .. · In 19 78 he obtained a 

· GED~ He has an aveiage IQ. Although his reading level is some­
where in the high school level, his math skills are poor, probably 
at the 7~h grade level. 

The. fact that claimant secured a GED may heli him find .a j~b. 
It may not, however, enable him to hold onto one where tbe·demands 

. of the job r·equire reading and math· skills _at the level of a high 
school graduate. Further, claimant tested out at only the 19th 
percentile in the ~se of his· righ~ and predominant h~nd. Thi~ is 
m~ntioned h~r~ because the rule applying -to work 
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(2) OAR 436-65-601(4) fails to specify any method for con-
verting lost earning capacity into a disability rating which would
fairly compensate for that loss. The rule assumes that 320°, or
100% unscheduled permanent partial disability, represents 100% of
the whole person. It does not. It represents only 100% of the
maximum partial disability rating allowed by law. ORS 656.214 (5) .

Nowhere in the statute is it revealed what number of degrees
represents the whole person. It is clear, however, that the 100%
disability provided by ORS 656.214(5) is for partial disability
only. . Partial disability is something less than total disability.
Total disability is defined in a separate statute. ORS 656.206.
If 100% disability represents only a partial disability, then a
claimant who loses 50% of his earning capacity, is entitled to
something more than half of the maximum partial disability allowed
by law.

Where a claimant has lost a specific percentage of his earn­
ing capacity, as in this case, he is entitled to something more
than that same percentage rate by way of a permanent partial dis­
ability award. The rule, although specific in the method for as­
sembling and combining plus and minus factors relating to the loss
of earning capacity, fails to specify any method for converting
the percentage of lost earning capacity into a disability rating
which fairly compensates for that loss.

j(3) OAR 436-65-602 provides that certain values be assigned
to the highest educational achievement level of the claimant,
without consideration of the claimant's functional-education
level, or the academic achievement level at which the claimant
performs. In other words, it erroneously assumes that if a claim­
ant possesses a high school diploma or its equivalent, the claim­
ant's achievement level, in functional terms, is identical. ‘ In
this case, as in many, it is not.

The youngest of three children, claimant was forced to drop
out of school in the 9th grade when his brother died and he had to
help his father in. the construction trade. In 1978 he obtained a
GED. He has an average IQ. Although his reading level is some­
where in the high school level, his math skills are poor, probably
at the 7th grade level.

The. job
It

fact that claimant secured a GED may help’ him find .a
may not, however, enable him to hold onto one where the'demands

of the job require reading and math skills at the level of a high
school graduate. Further, claimant tested out at only the 19th
percentile in the use of his right and predominant hand. This is
mentioned here because the rule applying to work

#
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experience, and presumably related. skills, makes no allowance for 
1 imi ted physical skills.. T~e. statutes, on the other hand,! require 
their consideration. 

I Claimant's earning capacity in real life depends uponf actual 
transferrable skills, including his -actual a-cademic perfortnance 
levels in reading, writing and arithmetic, rather than upon an 
illusory level .of. eci uca t ion al achievement sugqested by the' rule. 

• - < 

' If strictly.applie~, OAR 436-65-602 would.alter the cQairn-
ant's disability rating by a percentage factor appr.oximati'.ng 5%. 
That 5% factor equals 16°, or $1,360. 

' j • 

It becomes evident that application of the iul~ in claimant's 
case Dnfairly reduces the amount of compensation tb ·b~ pai~ be­
cause it d6e~ not allow personal evaluation of the individ~al. It 
becomes equally evident that claimant's substantive right~ are 
greatly affected by application of the tule. I 

(4) OAR 436-65-604 assigns plus factors on a range df zero 
to 10, depending upo~~the complexity of claimant's previo~s jobs. 
More complex jobs receive hi~her points. It should be reiembered 
that pl~s factors increase.the award; minus factors decreJse it. 
A reading of the rule itself is not partic~larly 0nlighte~ing, 
without the.aid of the informal rule--a supplemental explanation 
sheet--which accompanies it~, More important, perhaps, is :the fact 
that the impact df this rule cannot be measured until it is cor­
rel~ted with a subsequent rule relatinq to Labor Market F~ndings, 

.OAR 436-65-608. . - ! 
I 

Certain.assumptions are stated in informal rule 65-604 which 
appear to cieate a numerical distortion in the.factoring system. 
On its face, OAR 436-65~604 appears to be inconsistent wi\h the 
meaning of ORS 656.214(5). Numerical values are·assigned ito the 
claimant's past work experience depending upon the length :of time 
.it requir~d him to reach proficiency in his most complex ·former 
jobj even thou~h he may no longer be able to perform the duties of 
that job because of his injuries. 

•. I 

In this case, claimant was a journeyman carpenter who entered 
the trade as a teenager. It may be presumed, therefore, ihat it, 
took him t~o years or more to actually acquire his journeiman 

. status. His work experience would be factored at +10. The infor­
mal rule links th~t ·value to a "Specific Vocational Prepiiation" 
level ("SVP") which, in this case, is established at "7". That 

, I numerical value will later be applied to another informal rule, a 
chart, .used td determine Labor Market Findings under OAR 
436-65-608 •. Problems created by that application will be 
addressed in later discussions of that section. 

-197-

#

limited physical skills,
their consideration.

Claimant's earninq
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If strictly applied, OAR 436-65-602
ant's disability rating by a percentage
That 5% factor equals 16°, or $1,360.

It becomes evident that application of the rule in claimant's
case iinfairly reduces the amount of compensation to be paid be­
cause it does not allow personal evaluation of the individual. It
becomes equally evident that claimant's substantive rights| are
greatly affected by application of the rule.

(4) OAR 436-65-604 assigns plus factors on a range o'f zero
to 10, depending upon the complexity of claimant's previous jobs.
More complex, jobs receive higher points. It should be remembered
that plus factors increase ■ the award; minus' factors decrea^se it.
A reading of the rule itself is not particularly enlightening,
without the.aid of the informal rule--a supplemental explanation
sheet--which accompanies it., More important, perhaps, is the fact
that the impact of this rule cannot be measured until it is cor­
related with a subsequent rule relating to Labor Market Fi'nd'ings,
OAR 436-65-608.

Certain assumptions are stated in
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be inconsistent with the
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ble to perform the duties of
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is important, here, to ·recognize that it is at this poi~t­
in the rules, at informal rule 65-604, that the claimant's skills 
a_nd· training are considered. Nowhere else in the rules are they 
assessed. The ·11 SVP" level determined .he re, by 1 inking it to the 
most ~omple~ job claimint has ever held, whether or not he can 
still perform it, distorts and- ignores reality.· This oversimpli­
fication also ignores clai~ant's obvious handic~p in.motor re­
flexes of his rig~t hand, which· tested at the 19th.percentile. In 
view of·hii other physical limitations, that ~kill limitation is 
significant to claimant's remaining earning· capacity. 

. . 

· ·The rule embraces the concept that simply because the claim~ 
int once learned ·how to become a journeyman carpenter, taking t~o 
years or more to accomplish, .he may now be presumed ·to have a· high 
11 SVP 11 level, in fact the hi~hest cine allowed hy the rul~. In re­
ality, howeve·r, claima~t is·now precluded from returning to his 
work as a carpenter. The "SVP" level of ·"7" e!:'itab-lished by the 
rule would have to accept a·presumption that becau~e he once ~as 
capable of acquiring a high skill level, he will once again ac­
qulre equar1y complex skills thro~gh new job ex&erie~ce or train­
ing, thereby achieving the same skill level in some other unspe6i-
fied occupatio~. · Such a presumption is contrary to· law.IS . 

The full impact of this finding cannot be fully recognized 

i 
I 

ft' 

until it is applied to the subsequent rule concerning Labor Market -
·Findings. · The "SYP" level i~ given no numerical value for compu-
tati¢n at the work-experience rule level. It should be stated 
here, however, that the "SVP 1' finding--which should ·be a finding 
on what tr~ining and skills the claimant now actually possesses--
is totally invalid. It assumes a level of skill and training that 
is no longer-of any value to claimant in earning a living, since 
~e can no longer utilize previous skills as a· result of his injur-
ies. · · 

• 1 

Another probiem with OAR-436-65-604 ls that.it evades the ob­
vious -inten~ of the statute requiring consideration of the claim­
ant's work experience. An excellent employment record with high 
skill levels which might be transferable and which might enabl'e 
claimant to secure other employm~nt, despite his injuries·, works 
to increase the award, rather than decrease it. The clear intent 
of the statute, however, is t~at a claimant's damaqes be mitigated 
in, direct relationihip tp those job skills retained by him which 
he f~r~erli acquired th~oug~ w~rk experience. 

Examined alone, the faulty logic is obvious. Only when the· 
impa~t of this ffndirig is appiied to OAR 436-65-608 does it hecome 
app?rent that a subs·tantial off-set will' follow, based on invalid 
~iesumptions rea~hed ·at the work experierice level. 
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-

It is important, here, to recognize that it is at this point
in the rules, at informal rule 65-604, that the claimant's skills
and training are considered. Nowhere else in the rules are they
assessed. The "SVP" level determined here, by linking it to the
most qomplex job claimant has ever held, whether or not he can
still perform it, distorts and ignores reality. This oversimpli­
fication also ignores claimant's obvious handicap in motor re­
flexes of his right hand, which tested at the 19th percentile. In
view of his other physical limitations, that skill limitation is
significant to claimant's remaining earning capacity.

The rule embraces the concept that simply because the claim­
ant once learned how to become a journeyman carpenter, taking two
years or more to accomplish, he may now be presumed to have a high
"SVP" level, in fact the highest one allowed by the rule. In re­
ality, however, claimant is now precluded from returning to his
work as a carpenter. The "SVP" level of "7" established by the
rule would have to accept a presumption that because he once was
capable of acquiring a high skill level, he will once again ac­
quire equally complex skills through new job experience or train­
ing, thereby achieving the same skill level in some other unspeci­
fied occupation. Such a presumption is contrary to'law.

The full impact of this finding cannot be fully recognized
until it is applied to the subsequent rule concerning Labor Market
Findings. The "SVP" level ip given no numerical value for compu­
tation at the work-experience rule level. It should be stated
here, however, that the "SVP" finding--which should be a finding
on what training and skills the claimant now actually possesses--
is totally invalid. It assumes a level of skill and training that
is no longer-of any value to claimant in earning a living, since
he can no longer utilize previous skills as a result of his injur­
ies.

Another problem with OAR 436-65-604 is that it evades the ob­
vious intent of the statute requiring consideration of the claim­
ant's work experience. An excellent employment record with high
skill levels which might be transferable and which might enable
claimant to secure other employment, despite his injuries, works
to increase the award, rather than decrease it. The clear intent
of the statute, however, is that a claimant's damages be mitigated
in direct relationship tp those job skills retained by him which
he formerly acquired through work experience.

Examined alone, the faulty logic is obvious. Only when the
impact of this finding is applied to OAR 436-65-608 does it become
apparent that a substantial off-set will- follow, based on invalid
presumptions reached at the work experience level.
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More problematic, however, is the fact that neither the for­
mal nor informal rules concerning.work experience considej whether 
the claim~nt can or ~annot perform any of the work in whi~h he· 
once gained experience. It becomes even more apparent th~t OAR 
"436-65-604 is designed to cor.relate ~ith OAR 436-65-608 wbere the 
Labor Market Findings will more than offset any illusory gain in 
benefits tbe work experience rule may have vested. 1 

I 

Informal rule 65-604 recognizes the paradox created by the 
attempt to con~ert·consideration of a clai~ant 1 s work exp~rience 
into a numerical eguation.16 Pointing to the accompanyin1g 
higher "SVP" thereby established, the informal rule concl~des that 
the smaller total range of impact for the work experienc~ .factor, 
as compared to the heavy impact of the Labor Market Findihgs which 
follow, adequately resolves the problem. · 

I conclude ·that the Work Experience rule is invalid in that 
it establishes a presumed skill level which has no relati:onship to 
r ea 1 i t y . I t i s a 1 so in v a 1 id i n th a t i t p u r po r t s to i n c r e;a s e a n 
award· where the factors considered would, in reality, terid to de-
crease the award. ! 

I 

I further conclude that the Work Experience rule is Jrrimarily 
designed to reach a Labor Market Finding which embodies considera­
tions not allowed by law, discussed in more detail h~low,; based on 
faulty and invalid findings pf presumed but nonexistent ~ransfer­
able skills. 

(5) · OAR 436-65- 605 expands ORS 656.214(5) to inclJde consi­
deration of the claimant's adaptability to less strenuou~ physical 
labor. Again, a reading of the formal rule is less than !enlight­
ening. The informal rule, however, sheds som~ light upotj its use: 

"The Adaptability factor is not included 
for workers· whose residua 1 functional cap­
acity equals or exceeds the physical ex­
ertional level of their regular jobs ..• " 
(emphasis added.) 

It would appear that the standard is only applied tJ that 
level of exertion involved in a claimant's last job, the[one held 
at the time of the injury •. The effect is to preclude consiaeta­
tion of real physical limitations imposed as a resLilt of I the in­
juries, in ·relation to the broad field of industrial endeavor·, if 
at the time of the. injury the exertion involv~d in that last job 
was less than heavy. T.his would appear to be true even ¥?here a 
claimant was fully capable of doing extremely heavy work ,prior to 
the injuries. For many, the effects would be unjust. 
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More problematic, however, is the fact that neither the for­
mal nor informal rules concerning work experience consider whether
the claimant can or cannot perform any of the work in which he
once gained experience. It becomes even more apparent that OAR
436-65-604 is designed to correlate with OAR 436-65-608 where the
Labor Market Findings will more than offset any illusory gain in
benefits the work experience rule may have vested.

m

Informal rule 65-604 recognizes the paradox created by the
attempt to convert consideration of a claimant's work experience
into a numerical equation.Pointing to the accompanying
higher "SVP" thereby established, the informal rule concludes that
the smaller total range of impact for the work experience' factor,
as compared to the heavy impact of the Labor Market Findings which
follow, adequately resolves the problem.

I conclude that the Work Experience rule is invalid in that
it establishes a presumed skill level which has no relationship to
reality. It is also invalid in that it purports to increjase an
award' where the factors considered would, in reality, ten'd to de­
crease the award. !

I further conclude that the Work Experience rule is|primari]y
designed to reach a Labor Market Finding which embodies considera­
tions not allowed by law, discussed in more detail helow,i based on
faulty and invalid findings pf presumed but nonexistent 1:ransfer-
able skills.

(5) OAR 436-65- 605 expands ORS 656,2].'4(5) to include consi­
deration of the claimant's adaptability to less strenuous physical
labor. Again', a reading of the formal rule is less than lenlight-
ening. The informal rule, however, sheds some light upon its use:

"The Adaptability factor is not included
for workers whose residual functional cap­
acity equals or exceeds the physical ex- ^
ertional level of theirregularjobs..."
(emphasis added.) i

It would appear that the. standard is only applied to that
level of exertion involved in a claimant's last job, the|one held
at the time of the injury. The effect is to preclude considera­
tion of real physical limitations imposed as a result ofjthe in­
juries, in relation to the broad field of industrial endeavor', if
at the time of the. injury the exertion involved in that last job
was less than heavy. This would appear to be true even where a
claimant was fully capable of doing extremely
the injuries. For many, the effects would be

heavy work .prior to
unjust.
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because in this particular case-claimant was.in­
volved in heav~ work at the tim~ of the injuries, no further dis­
cus~ion on this r~le wiLl be pursued here. 

(6) OAR 436-65-608 attempts to determine what· segment of the 
l?Ibor market remains open· to injured workers. The rule presup­
poses that~ valid "SVP" (highest specific vocational preparation 
level)- was ~arli~r established at fhe work-experience rule stage. 
Informal rule 65~608 includes a chart showing the percentage of 
Oregon·employment available at specific "SVP" levels, in direct 
relation to what is there termed as a ".,GED" level. (As used in 
the ·chart,· "GED" should not be confused with a high school equiv­
a~~ncy, but means the_ general educational development level.of the 
claimant.) in the instant case, ·when strictly applied, even the 
"GEb" ievel is suspect; the "SVP" level is totaliy invalid. 

- It is interesting that the chart, utilized to determine j~st 
what percentage of the labor market remains open to tne claimant, 
in v~ew of his disability, is based on data compiled by the Uni­
versity of Oregon's Cireer Information System's semi:annual pub­
lication, Occupational Information which was valid. only from March 
of 1980 through October of- 1980. It may b~ presumed, th~refore, 
that·even the-statistical dafa upon which a ~inding might be based· 
is invalid. · 

In summary, by using a guestionable educ;:ational leve-1 'and ap­
plying it to an invalid "SVP". level, on a statistically outdated 
chart, the informal rules would limit the claimant's award by 
about ?5 minus factors, or 25% • 

. $urther, the f6rrnal rule OAR 436-65-608 ~ttempts to hegate 
any finding bf limitation where a claimant was actually returned 
to work, by the following .language: 

"Whe~ a worker has successfully returned to 
work •• ~there is deemed to be an immediate 
and continuing demand for his/her services." 

The possible extent of any immediate demand is not defined~ how­
ever, continuing demand may not be presumed, despite th~ l~nguage 
of the rule. Clearly, this portion of the rule is inconsistent 
w·ith law, as articulated in Ford v. SAIF; 7 Or App 549, when a· 
preponderance of the evidence shows that a claimant's employabil­
ity, in the broad range of industrial fields, has beeri limited by 
the injuries and a combination of s~cio-economic factors, despite 
a claimant's e~ployrnent·at one particular time and place. By at­
tempting to est~bli·sh a presumption which- is contrary to law, the 
rule is invalid on its face •. 

.. -
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However, because in this particular case claimant was in­
volved in heavy work at the time of the injuries, no further dis­
cussion on this rule will be pursued here.

(6) OAR 436-65-608 attempts to determine what segment of the
labor market remains open to iniured workers. The rule presup-

ng the percentage
Oregon employment available at specific "SVP" levels, in direct
relation to what is there termed as a "-OED" level. (As used in
the chart, "GED" should not be confused with a high school equiv­
alency, but means the general educational development level.of the
claimant.) In the instant case, when strictly applied, even the
"GED" level is suspect; the "SVP" level is totally invalid.

- It is interesting that the chart, utilized to determine just
what percentage of the labor market remains open to the claimant,
in view of his disability, is based on data compiled by the Uni­
versity of Oregon's Career Information System's semi-annual pub­
lication, Occupational Information which was valid only from March
of 1980 through October of 1980. It may be presumed, therefore,
that even the statistical data upon which a finding might be based
is invalid.

In summary, by using a questionable educational. level and ap­
plying it to an invalid "SVP" level, on a statistically outdated
chart, the informal rules would limit the claimant's award by
about 25 minus factors, or 25%,

.Further, the formal rule OAR 436-65-608 attempts to negate
any finding of limitation where a claimant was actually returned
to work, by the following language:

"When a worker has successfully returned to
work...there is deemed to be an immediate
and continuing demand for his/her services."

The possible extent of any
ever, continuing demand ma
of the rule. Clearly, thi
with law, as articulated i
preponderance of the evide
ity, in the broad range of
the injuries and a combina
a claimant's employment at
tempting to establish a pr
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aider to ~pply OAR 436-65-608, the ."SVP" level es~ablished 
in the exercise at informal i~le 65-604 must be use<l. That "SVP" 
level was based upon sheer speculation. Informal rul~ 6SL6Q4 
speculates that where a claimant had the ~bility to learnlone com­
plex job or to achieve one skill-level, he has the capacity to 
achieve an equivalent skill level at some new job. - ! 

In deter~ining the extent of the claimant's disabili~y, we 
may not speculafe as to his potential £or vocational reha~ilita­
tion or job ietraining as enunciated in Gettman v. SAIF, 289 Or 
6 0 9 ( 19 8 0 ) an a Lohr v • SA I F , 4 8 _ or App 9 7 9 ( 19 8 q ) . Th e s :ta t u t e i n 
effect at the time of claimant's injuries, ORS 656.214(5):, did not 
mention .,rehabilitation" or any "potential" for retraining. It 
merely provided that: · 

" ... the number of d~grees of disability 
shall be a maximum of 320° determined by 
the extent of the disability compared to 
the worker before such injury and without 

_such disability." Formei ORS 656.214(5). 

I 

\ 

I 

It would be improper, therefore, to reduce an award of permanent 
partial disability on the basis of a speculative future change in 
employment status, based on possible future job retrainin~. . I 

It becomes obvious that 1 the rules attempt- to cio with, tahles 
and charts, and inter-related sections, what we are prohibited as 
a matter of law from doing without the~. I conclude, the~efore, 
that· OAR 436-65-608 is contrary to la~ and is invaiia. ' 

* * * * 

I conclude that the department's rules, whether strittly ap­
plied or used only as general "guidelines," not only affect the 
substantive rights of the parties but are contrary to statutory 
and case law. 

FOOTNOTES 

1 The department's rules establishing a system for rattng ~er­
manent disability, OAR 436-65-000· through 436-65-99~, were 
adopted by.WCD·Adrninistrative Order 4-1980. · The ef£ective 
date specified in'the order is April 1, 1980. i 

ORS 183.355(2} states: 

"Eaeh rule is effective upon filing as 
required by subsection (1) of this 
section •.• " 

There is no provision for retroactive effective dates. 
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m
In order to apply OAR 436-65-608, the.''SVP" level established

in the exercise at informal rule 65-604 must be used. That "SVP"
level was based upon sheer speculation. Informal rule 65|“604
speculates that where a claimant had the ability to learnj.one com­
plex job or to achieve one skill-level, he has the capacity to
achieve,an equivalent skill level at some new job.'

■ -In determining the extent of the claimant's disability, we
may not speculate as to his potential for vocational rehabilita­
tion or job retraining as enunciated in Gettman v. SAIF, 289 Or
609 (1980) and Lohr v, SAIF, 48 Or App 979 (1980). The statute in
effect at the time of claimant's injuries, ORS 656.214 (5) did not
mention "rehabilitation" or any. "potential" for retraining. It
merely provided that:

"...the number of degrees of disability
shall be a maximum of 320° determined by
the extent of the disability-.compared to
the worker before such injury and without
such disability." Former ORS 656.214(5).

It would be improper, therefore, to reduce an award of permanent
partial disability on the basis of.a speculative future change in
employment status, based on possible future job retraining.

I
It becomes obvious thatj the rules attempt to do withl tables

and charts, and inter-related sections, what we are prohibited as
a matter of law from doing without them. I conclude, therefore,
that OAR 436-65-608 is contrary to law and is invalid.

I conclude that the department’s rules, whether strictly ap­
plied or used only as general "guidelines," not only affect the
substantive rights of the parties but are contrary to statutory
and case law.

FOOTNOTES

The department's rules establishing a system for rating per
manent disability, OAR 436-65-000 through 436-65-998, were
adopted by VJCD Administrative Order 4-1980. The effective
date specified in the order is April 1, ,1980.

ORS 183.355(2) states:

"Each rule is effective upon filing as
required by subsection (1) of this
section..."

There is no provision for retroactive effective dates.

201- -

■ 

( 

| 

, 

, 



             
  

      

         
      

      
  

     

        
       

       
       
     
       

     
       

       

          
      

      
      

        
       

  

       
          
    

         

           
 

         

            

    
      
       
       

       
  

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Dorenc6 v. Benj. Franklin Fed. -Sav. & Loan, 281 Or 533i 577 
P 2d 4 7 7 ( 19 7 8 ) : 

Oregon Constitution, Article I, Section 21, stat~s: 

"No ex post facto law, or law impairing the 
obligation of contracts shall ever be 
passed ... except as provided .in this Consti­
tution; •.. " (emphasis added.) 

I 
~ Blatk 1 s Law.Dictibnary, Fourth Edition, states: 

"A law which irnpaiis the obligation of a 
contract is one which renders the contract 
in itself less valuable .or less enforce­
able~ whether by changing its terms and 
stipulatioris, its legal qualities a~d 
.conditions, or bY regulating the iemedy for 
its enforcement. City of Indianapolis v. 
Robinson, 186 Ind. 660, 117 N.E. 861." 
Black's Law Dictionary, 4th ed, at p. 885. 

. . 
American Timber & Trading Co. v. First National Bank of Ore­
~,. 511 F 2d 980, cert den 95 s. Ct. ]588,· 421 us 92], 43 

·LEd 2d 789; Held v. Product Mfq. Co~, 592 P2d 1005, 286 Or 
67;.Mahana ·v. Miller, 573 P2d 1238, 281 Or 77. 

For definitions of "Procedural'1 and "Remedial," see: Perkins 
v.· Willam~tte Industries, 273 Or 566 (1975) and Judkins v. 
Taffee, 21 Or 89 (1891). 

Joseph ·v. Lowery, 2~1 Or 545, 495 P2d 273 (1972). 

Hall~- Northwest Outward Bound School, Inc., 280 Or 655, 472 
P2d 100 7. 

27 Op Atty Gen (19·54~56) 77;. Op Atty Gen (1942-44) 144. 

In Whipple v. Howser, 51 Or App 83 (1981), the court stated: 

"A generally recognized fundamental prin­
ciple of jurisprudence is that r~troactive 
ap~lication of new la~s is disfavored .. · The 
principle is based upon the pre~ise that 
such application involves a high risk of 

.- ·. ·potential unfair·ness. 
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Dorenco v. Benj. Franklin Fed. Sav. & Loan, 281 Or 533 ,- 577
P2d 477 (1978);

Oregon .Constitution, Article I, Section 21, states:
r

"No ex post facto law, or law impairing the
obligation of contracts shall ever be
passed... except as provided in this Consti­
tution;..." (emphasis added.)

iBlack's Law .Dictionary, Fourth Edition, states:

"A law which impairs the obligation of a
contract is one which renders the contract

■ in itself less valuable or less enforce­
able, whether by changing its terms and
stipulations, its legal qualities and
-conditions, or by regulating the remedy for
its enforcement. City of Indianapolis v.

. Robinson, 186 Ind. 660, 117 N.E. 861."
Black's Law Dictionary, 4th ed, at p. 885.

American Timber & Trading Co. v. First National Bank of Ore-
gon,.511 F 2d 980, cert den
LEd 2d 789; Held v. Product
67; Mahana V. Miller, 573 P2d 1238,

95 S. Ct. ]588, 421 US 921, 43
Mfq. Co., 592 P2d 1005, 286 Or

281 Or 77. m

PerkinsFor definitions of "Procedural" and "Remedial," see; _________
V.- Willamette Industries, 273 Or 566 (1975) and Judkins v.
Taffee, 21 Or 89 (1891).

Joseph v. Lowery, 261 Or 545,.. 495 P2d 273 (1972).

Hall V. Northwest Outward Bound School, Inc., 280 Or 655, 472
P2d 1007.

27 Op Atty Gen (1954-56) 77; Op Atty Gen (1942-44) 144.

In Whipple v, Howser, 51 Or App 83 (1981) , the court stated

"A generally recognized fundamental prin­
ciple of jurisprudence is that retroactive
application of new laws is disfavored.- The
principle is based upon the premise that
such application involves a high risk of

..•. potential unfairness.
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11 

nAs a general rule ot statutory construc­
tion, therefbre, a legislative enactment is 
presumed to. apply only prospe·c_ti ve~y- and 
will be constru~d as applying retroactively 
,6nly where the enactment clearly, by ex-
~~ess l~nguage oi necessary impli~ation, 
indicates that the l~gislature intetided· 
such a result. 2 Sutherland, Statutory 
_Construction, section 41.04 at .252 (4th ed 
1973)~ The_ courts of this state have long 
adhered to this general rule. See Judkins 
v. Taffee, 21 6r 89, 27 P 221 (1891); Pit­
man v. Bump, 5 Or 17 (1873); and Coos-CUrry 
Elec. v. Curry Coupty-, 26 Or App_ 645, 5?4 

·P2d 601 (1976) .n s1·or App at 89. 

I 
- -I 

I. 

I 
I 

Ex Parte Mitsuye Endo, 323 US 283, 65 S. ~t. 208 (19144); 2 Am 
Jur 2d Administrative Law, section 307. 

. -- I . 
In Holmes v. SAIF, 38 Or App 145, s·sg P2d 1151 (19791), con-
c~rning 1975 amendments to ciRS 656.206, relating to ~ermanent 
tqtal disability, the court said: 

nThe m~nner 6f ad~u~ication is not-.affected. 
Th~ injury occuried ·prior to the amendment_ 
of the statute and therefore, the ·c1ai~­
·arit1s entitlement. ~o arid the emplojer's re-
s~onsibility for compensation are to be 
measured under the statijte 1n effect at the 
time of the injury." 

Directqr's summary of the Testimony and Agency Respqnse, 
dated March 20, 1980, a~tached as Exhibit "C". to th~ Direc­
·tor's Order 4-1980. The stated purpose of.the summJry is "tq 
provide a record of the agency conclusions.about th~ major 

. ~ssues _raised by the Order· of Adoption, WCD · j 
Adm1n1strat1ve Order 4~1980", In the Matter of the Amendment pf 
OAR Chapter 436, Workers' Compensation Department, Division 65, 
Claims Evaluation and Determination • 

. 12 - ORS 183. 310 (7) defines a "rule 11 as: 

" ( 7) !-Rule' means any agency directive, 
standard, regulation o·r statement of gen­
eral applicability that implements, inter­
prets. or prescribes law or policy, or .des-
_cribes ih~ proc~dure or practice r~quire­
ments of any-agency. Th~ term incl~des the 
amentjment or repeal of a prior rule, but 
does not include: · 

(a) 

- (A) 

Unless a hearing is required by stat­
ute, internal management directives,· 
regulations or statements which do · 
not substantially affect the interes~ 
of the public; 

. Between agencies, or their officers 
or their employes~ or 

(BJ Within an agpncy, between its offi­
cers or between ernployes. 

:L_+_i: I -203-

I 
I -

#

"As a general rule ot statutory construc­
tion, therefore, a legislative enactment is
presumed to.apply only prospectively'and
will be construed as applying retroactively
only where the enactment clearly, by ex­
press language or necessary implication,
indicates that the legislature intended
such a result. 2 Sutherland, Statutory
Construction, section 41.04 at 252 (4th ed
1973). The courts of this state have long
adhered to this general rule. See Judkins
V. Taffee, 21 Or 89, 27 P 221 (1891); Pit­
man V. Bump, 5 Or 17 (1873); and Coos-Curry
Elec. V. Curry Coupty', 26 Or App 645, 554
-P2d 601 (1976)." 51 Or App at 89'.

Ex Parte Mitsuye Endo, 323 US 283, 65 S
Jur 2d Administrative Law, section 307.

Ct. 208 (19 44); 2 Am

10 In Holmes v. SAIF, 38 Or App 145, 589 P2d 1151 (1979|), con-
1975 amendments to ORS 656.206, relating to permanent

the court said:
cerning
total disability.

"The manner of adjudication is not.affected.
The injury occurred prior to the amendment
of the statute and therefore, the claim­
ant's entitlement to and the employer's re­
sponsibility for compensation are to be
measured under the statute in effect at the
time of the injury."

m 11

#

Director's Summary of the Testimony and Agency Response,
dated March 20, 1980, attached as Exhibit "C",to the Direc-

■ ‘tor's Order 4-1980. .The stated purpose of,the summary is "to
provide a record of the agency conclusions about the major
issues raised by the Order of Adoption, WCD

Administrative Order 4-19.80", In the Matter of the Amendment of
OAR Chapter 436, Workers' Compensation Department, Division 65,
Claims Evaluation and Determination. 1

ORS 183.310(7) defines a "rule" as: J

I"(7) !Rule' means any agency directive,
standard, regulation or statement of gen- .!
eral applicability that implements, inter-
prets or prescribes law or policy, or des-
cribes the procedure or practice require- ■
ments of any agency. The term includes the i
amendment or repeal of a prior rule, but
does not include:

(a) Unless a hearing is required by stat­
ute, internal management directives,'
regulations or statements which do
not substantially affect the interest
of the public;

(A) .Between agencies, or their officers
, or their employes; or

(B) Within an ag^ency, between its offi­
cers or between employes.

___________* 4- •*. It__________________ -203-_________

9 

. 

-

' 

i 
' 

' 



      

     

             
  

     

     
      

     

     
       

      
      
       

     
       
       
     

      
     

  

      
      
  

     
      
     

  

     
       
     
      
        
     
  

      
       

      
      
      

        
   

14 

15 

16 

Director's Summary, supra, at p; 3. 

Director's Summary, supra, at p. 4. 

Gettm~n v. SAIF, 289 Or 609 (1980); Lohr v; SAIF, 48 Or App 
979 (1980). 

Informal rule 65-604 states, in part: 

"Highly-skilled workers have a theoretical 
advantage in that they have demonstrated 
the capacity to mast~r complex skills; 

"However, in possessing and historically 
relying on those complex skills, they have 
a practical disadvantage in that their 
skills, being specialized, tend to have 
limited application in the broad range of 
occupations. 

"Put another way, highly:-skilled workers 
who no longer can perform their complex 
jobs have a difficult time making the ad­
ju~tment to alternate votations, especiaJ.1.y 
when the alternatives by definition are 
~ntry-level positions scaled to lower-­
often much lower--wages. 

"The converse situation, where a worker 
possesses relatively few job skills also 
presents this paradox: 

"Unskilled workers have· a theoretical 
disadvantage in that they have not 
demonstrated a capacity to master com­
plex, specialized skills; 

"However, they have a practical advan­
tage in that the broad range of gen­
eral occupations includes many types 
and numbers of low-skilled johs which 
tend to be scaled to wages which the 
unskilled worker has historically been 
accustomed to receive. 

"The.practical asprcts to this issue are 
considered to be of more significance than 
the theoietical aspects; thus the increased 
irnp~ct accompanying higher SVP levels. The 
theoretical aspect is not entirely ignored; 
thus the smaller total range of impact for 
this factor." (emphasis added.) 
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13

14

15

Director's Summary, supra, at p. 3.

Director's Summary, supra, at p. 4.

Gettman v. SAIF, 289 Or 609 (1980); Lohr v. SAIF, 48 Or App
979 (1980) .

16 Informal rule 65-604 states, in part;

"Highly-skilled workers have a theoretical
advantage in that they have demonstrated
the capacity to master complex skills;

"However, in possessing and historically
relying on those complex skills, they have
a practical disadvantage in that their
skills, being specialized, tend to have
limited application in the broad range of
occupations.

"Put another way, highly-skilled workers
who no longer can perform their complex
jobs have a difficult time making the ad­
justment to alternate vocations, especially
when the alternatives by definition are
entry-level positions scaled to lower--
often much lower--wages.

"The converse situation, where a worker
possesses relatively few job skills also
presents this paradox:

"Unskilled workers have a theoretical
disadvantage in that they have not
demonstrated a capacity to master com­
plex, specialized skills;

"However, they have a practical advan­
tage in that the broad range of gen­
eral occupations includes many types
and numbers of low-skilled jobs which
tend to be scaled to wages which the
unskilled worker has historically been
accustomed to receive.

"The.practical asppcts to this issue are
considered to be of more significance than
the theoretical aspects; thus the increased
impact accompanying higher SVP levels. The
theoretical aspect is not entirely ignored;
thus the smaller total range of impact for
this factor." (emphasis added.)

m

9
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HINOJOSA, CLAIMANT 
James • Fra·ncesconi , Claimant's ·Attorney 

- SAI F Corp Leg a 1 , Defense· Attorney 
· Ofder of Dismiss~l 

_ WCB 80-03716 
June 30, 1981 

I 
j. 

A request f6r revie~, having been duly filed with.th~ 
Workers' Compensation Board -in the-above~entitlea matter tjy the 
claimant, and a cross request for review having been f-iled by the 
SAIF Corporation, and said requests for review now hav'ing !both 
been withdrawn,· · · 1 

i-
i 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request.for review now 
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and· the· order of 
Referee i~ final by operation of law. i 

RICHARD L. LAKEHOMER, CLAIMANT 
W.D. Bates, Jr .. Claimant's Att9rney 
SAIF Corp Legal, pefense Attorney 
Order Denying Remand 

\~CB -80-3181 
June 30, 1981 

I 
l 

I. 
I 

the 

Claimant _has.filed a motion that we reqard as-in the 1 nature 
o( a motion ~o r~mand for presentati6n of -a~ditional evid~nce. 
The motion is denied on· the b~sis of Robert A. Barnett, WCB Ca~e 
Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012 dated June 25, 1981. · I· 

. f 

IT·IS SO ORDERED. 

i 
,· 
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OSVALDO HINOJOSA, CLAIMANT
James . FraVicesconi, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order of Dismissal

WCB 80-03716
June 30, 1981

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above-entitled matter h!y the
claimant, and a cross request for review having been filed by the
SAIF Corporation, and said requests for review now having iboth
been withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

RICHARD L. LAKEHOMER, CLAIMANT
W.D. Bates, Jr. Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Order Denying Remand

WCB 80 3181
June 30, 1981

Claimant has filed a motion that we regard as in the;nature
of a motion to remand for presentation of additional evidence.
The motion is denied on the basis of Robert A. Barnett, WCB Case
Nos. 79-07210 and 79-11012 dated June 25, 1981.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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W. LITTLE, CLA 1 MANT 
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys 
SAIF Corp Leqal, Defense Attorney . 
Own Motion Order Referrin~ for Consolidated 

Own ~otion 81-0176M 
WCB 81-01229 
June 30, 1981 

Hea ri nq 

and 

On June~ 15, 1981, ·claimant, .by and through his attorney, re­
quested the Board reopen his claim under its own motion jurisdic~ 
tion and.grant him continuing medical care and treatment under the 
provisions of ORS 656.245. Claimant has been off work since April 
21, 1981 and.surgery has been recommended. Claimant has·also 
fil~d a request for hearing with the Hearings Division which is an 
appeal from the August 21, 1980 Determinati6n drder issued in this 
same case. The-·SAIF Corporation cont~nds this Determin~tion Order 
is a nullity beca~se claimant's aggravation rights h~ve expired. 
Claimant is apparently unsure as to how this claim should be prop­
erly handled and requests that the Board refer the bwn m6tion re­
quest to the Hearings Division so that the two cases may be heard. 
together. We conclude that it would be in the best interest of 
al~ the parties if this were done. 

. } 

This matter is hereby referred to the Hearings Division to b~ 
consolidated with WCB Case No. 81-01229 which is presently set for 
July· 16, 1981 before Referee Baker~ Referee Baker shall take evi­
derice in both cas~s-a~d determine the most proper way to dispos~ 
of this matter. Upon conclusion of the hearinq, he shall cause a 
transcript of the proceedings together with hi~ recommendation in 
the own motion case to be forwarded to the Board. He shall also 9) 
enter an ·appealable order with respect to WCB Case No. 81-01229. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

BRUCE A. MILLER, CLAIMANT 
Own Motion Determination· 

Own Motion 81-0163M 
June 30, 1981 

The Board issued'its Own Motion Order in this matter on Aug­
ust 27, 1980 and reopened this claimant's claim for a worsened 
condition related to his industrial injury of January 11, 1974. 

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the 
recommendation of the· Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted temporary total dis­
ability from July 23, 1980 through October 7, 1980 and temporary 
total disability for an authorized Field Services plan from Janu­
a~y 5, 1981 through May 8, 1981. It is also their recommendation 
that no further award of permanent partial disability be granted 
at thi~ time. The Board concurs with thi~ redommendation. · 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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ROBERT W. LITTLE, CLAIMANT
Pozzi, Wilson et al, Claimant's Attorneys
SAIF Corp Leaal, Defense Attorney

Own Motion 81-0176M and
WCB 81-01229
June 30, 1981

Own Motion Order Referrinq for Consolidated Hearinq

On June.15, 1981, claimantby and through his attorney, re­
quested the Board reopen his claim under its own motion jurisdic­
tion and grant him continuing medical care and treatment under the
provisions of, ORS 656.245. Claimant has been off work since April
21, 1981 and surgery has been recommended. Claimant has also
filed a request for hearing ,with the Hearings Division which is an
appeal from the August 21, 1980 Determination Order issued in this
same case. The SAIF Corporation contends this Determination Order
is a nullity because claimant's aggravation rights have expired.
Claimant is apparently unsure as to how this claim should be prop­
erly handled and requests that the Board refer the own motion re­
quest to the Hearings Division so that the two cases may be heard,
together. We conclude that it would be in the best interest of
all the parties if this were done.

This matter is hereby referred to the Hearings Division to be.
consolidated with WCB Case No. 81-01229 which is presently set for
July 16, 1981 before Referee Baker. Referee Baker shall take evi­
dence in both cases and determine the most proper way to dispose
of this matter. Upon conclusion of the hearinq, he shall cause a
transcript of the proceedings together with his recommendation in
the own motion case to be forwarded to the Board. He shall also
enter an appealable order with respect to WCB Case No. 81-01229.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
m

BRUCE A. MILLER, CLAIMANT
Own Motion Determination

The Board issued’its
ust 27, 1980 and reopened

Own Motion 81 0163M
June 30, 1981 ■

Own Motion Order in this matter on Aug'
this claimant's claim for a worsened

condition,related to his industrial injury of January 11, 1974.

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers' Compen­
sation Department that claimant be granted temporary total dis­
ability from July 23, 1980 through October 7, 1980 and temporary
total disability for an authorized Field Services plan from Janu­
ary 5, 1981 through May 8, 1981. It is also their recommendation
that no further award of permanent partial disability be granted
at this time. The Board concurs with this recommendation.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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A. KtPIN, CLAIMANT 
Steven Ya-tes, Claimant 1 s Attorney 
William Holmes, Defense Attorney 
Own.Motion Detennination · 

I 
Own -Motion 81-0150M 
June 30, 1981 

The B6ard issued its ·own ~oti6n Order in this m~tterion Aug­
ust 15, 1980 ana· reopened ciaimant's claim for a worsened]condi­
tion related to his industrial injury of October 13, 1969j ,. 

I 

The claim has now been submitted for clo~ure, and itlis the 
recommendation cif the ·Eval~~tiori Division of the Workers' lco~pen~ 
sati6n Department that claimant he awaraed tem~orary_ t9tal disa­
bility from A~gust 15, ·19ij0 through April 30, 1981 and an;award of 
permanent total ~isability effectiv~ May 1, 1981. The Bo~rd con-
curs. I . ! 

I" 
Claimant's ~tiorney is grinted as a reas6nable attor~ey _fee 

the sum of $350 out of the claimant's increased compensation. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DARLENETTE ·RICHARDSON, CLAIMANT 
Robert K. Udziela, Claimant 1 s··Attornev 
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney -
Reau~st for Review by Claimant 
Cross Request by SAIF 

Reviewed by the Board en bane. 

WCB 79-08297 
June 30, 1981 

' ' I 

l 
! 

i 
I • The claimant seeks Board review and the SAIF Corporation 

cross requests review of R~feree Mongrain 1 s 6rd~r which aifirmed 
SAIF's denial of claimant's right knee and left hip ~onditions and 
granted her an award of 16° for 5% unschedulea low hack disabil­
ity~ Claimant contends that:her right knee condition is related 
to her indus·tr.ial injury of May ~O, 1979 and that the awafd gran­
ted by the Referee is inadequate. SAIF conterids that the\Ref­
eree's award was "generous." l 

. ' 
: 

We accept the Referee' s 1 recitation of the facts and adopt 
them as our own. We· agiee with the Referee that claimant:s right 
knee conqition is not compens~ble. SAIF's denial is affirmed. 

; ·The Board disagrees with the Referee's award for uns~heduled 
disability. Claimant's· low back condition·was diagnosed as a back 
strain. There is not one rnedic~l report in evidence which finds 
that condition to be permanent in natu~e. Claimant was r~leased 
to return to her regular occu~ation with no restrictions imposed 
because of her back condition. The totality of evidence tndicates 
she suffered-no p~rmanent impaiiment nor loss of wage earning cap­
acity attributable to the back injury. The Ref~ree 1 s a~afd of 5% 
unscheduled disa_bility- for loss of wage earning capacity is re­
versed. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated August 27, 1980 is modified. 

The 5% unscheduled disability award is reversed. 

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed. 
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KICHAKU A. REPIN, CLAIMANT
Steven  ates, Claimant's Attorney
William Holmes, Defense Attorney
Own Motion Determination

Own Motion 81-0160M
June 30, 1981

The Board issued its 0,wn Motion Order in this matter Ion Aug­
ust 15, 1980 and reopened claimant's claim for a worsened Icondi-
tion related to his industrial injury of October 13, 1969i

The claim has now been submitted for closure, and it is the
recommendation of the Evaluation Division of the Workers'|Compen-
sation Department that claimant be awarded temporary total disa­
bility from August 15, 19.80 through April 30, 1981 and aniaward of
permanent total disability effective May 1, 1981. The Board con­
curs. I

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney fee
the sum of $350 out of the claimant's increased compensation.

WCB 79 08297
June 30, 1981

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DARLENETTE RICHARDSON, CLAIMANT
Robert K. Udziela, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Claimant
Cross Request by SAIF
Reviewed by the Board en banc.

The claimant seeks Board review and the SAIF Corporation
cross requests review of Referee Mongrain’s order which affirmed
SAIF's denial of claimant's right knee and left hip conditions and
granted her an award of 16° for 5% unscheduled low back disabil­
ity; Claimant contends that her right knee condition is related
to her industrial injury of May 30, 1979 and that the award gran­
ted by the Referee is inadequate. SAIF contends that the
eree's award was "generous."

Ref-

We accept the Referee's, recitation of the facts and adopt
them as our own. We agree with the Referee that claimantjs right
knee condition is not compensable. SAIF's denial is affirmed.

The Board disagrees with the Referee's award for unscheduled
disability. Claimant's low back condition was diagnosed as a back
strain. There is not one medical report in evidence which finds
that condition to be permanent in nature. Claimant was released
to return to her regular occupation with no restrictions imposed
because of her back condition. The totality of evidence indicates
she. suffered no permanent impairment nor loss of wage earning cap­
acity attributable to the back injury. The Referee's award of 5%
unscheduled disability for loss of wage earning capacity is re­
versed.

ORDER

The Referee's order dated August 27, 1980 is modified.

The 5%unscheduleddisability award isreversed.

The remainder of the Referee's order is affirmed. ,
-207-
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LESLEY L. ROBBINS, CLAIMANT 
Robinson & Stevens, Claimant's Attorneys 
Lano, Klein et al, Defense Attorneys 
Request for Review by Employer 

WCB 79-04284 
June 30, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallistei. 

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Mulder's order 
which affirmed the Determination Order's award of 5% scheduJ.ea 
disability for claima~t's eye injury and awarded an additional 5% r 
unscheduled disability~ The issue is extent of disability to 
claimant's left eye. 

The claimant's left eye was injured January 3, 1979. The 
initial treating physician diagnosed ocular contusion left eye, 
multiple conjunctival lacerations, multiple cor~eal abrasions ~nd· 
eyelid abrasions and lacerations. 

l 

The primary treating physician has heen Dr. Johnson, an oph­
thamologist. On March 1s,··1979 Dr. John~on in part reported: 
" ..• unaided visual acuity was 20/20 in the right eye and 20/30 in 
the injured J.eft eye fbr distance an~ 15/15 with tbe rioht eye for 
near and 15/30 iri the left eye. A minus Jens corrected the left' 
eye to 20/25 for distance. 11 In the same report he went on to. 
state, 11 I believe that Mr. Robbins' condition_js now meriicc1lly 
stable and.ready for cl6sinq on the basis of a milrl Joss of visual 
ac~ity in the left eye second~ry to the corneal scarrino ana at­
tendant discomfort related to glare s~nsitivity and mild blurri­
ness. I think the epiphora is prohabJy secondary to the optical 
disturbance. 11 

Based on thi~ medical report the claim was closed ~na a 
Determination Order mailed April 23, 1979 awarcling claimant 11 5° 
for 5% loss ~f vision in the left eye." Claimant requested a 
hearing on the Determination Order. After the Deter~i~ation Order 
was issued and prior to the hearing the claimant was examined by a 
second ophthamologist, Dr. Simons. December 10, 1979 Dr. Simons 
reported, 11 ••• examination showed 20/20 visual acuitv uncorrected 
in ea~h eye." Dr~ Simons werit on ~o state: · 

" ... he is photophobic in the left eye, he has occasional 
pain in the left eye, he has occasional double vision, 
vertical in nature and t~e left eye tears easily." 

"It would appear that this industrial case could be 
closed with minimal or no.permanent seguelae ae a conse­
quence of the injuries of January. 1978. 11 

A hearing. was held April 30, 1980 over one year from the date 
the Determination Order was mailed. The Referee, in an order 
dated May ·29, ·1980, awarded "claimant compensation equal to 16° 
{5%) unscheduled permanent partial disability for left eye· sensi- @ 
tivity and t~aring abnormality." The employer re~uested reconsid-
eration, stating "the reason for this request for reconsideration 
regards __ the award of unscheduled dis~hilitv in thiR s~hPrl11lPrl ,n~ 
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LESLE L. ROBBINS, CLAIMANT
Robinson & Stevens, Claimant's Attorneys
Lang, Klein et al. Defense Attorneys
Request for Review by Employer

WCB 79-04284
June 30, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The employer seeks Board review of Referee Mulder's order
which affirmed the Determination Order's award of 5% scheduled
disability for claimant's eye injury and awarded an additional
unscheduled disability. The issue is extent of disability to
claimant's left eye.

5%

The claimant's left eye was injured January 3, 1979
initial treating physician diagnosed ocular contusion le
multiple conjunctival lacerations, multiple corneal abra
eyelid abrasions and lacerations.

)
The primary treating physician has been Dr. Johnson

thamologist. On March 15, 1979 Dr. Johnson in part repo
"...unaided visual acuity was 20/20 in the right eye and
the injured I.eft eye for distance and 15/15 with the rig
near and 15/30 iri the left eye. A minus lens corrected
eye to 20/25 for distance." In the same report he v/ent
state, "I believe that Mr. Robbins' condition.is now men
stable and ready for closing on the basis of a mild loss
acuity in the left eye secondary to the corneal scarring
tendant discomfort related.to glare Sensitivity and mild
ness. I think the epiphora is probably secondary to the
disturbance."

. The
ft eye,
sions and'

, an' oph-
rted :
20/30 in
ht eye for
the left
on to.
ically
of visual
and at- .
b 1 u r r i -
optical

Based on this medical report the claim was closed and a
Determination Order mailed April 23, 1979 awarding claimant "5®
for 5% loss of vision in the left eye." Claimant requested a
hearing on the Determination Order. After the Determination Order
was issued and prior to the hearing the claimant v;as examined by a
second ophthamologist. Dr. Simons. December 10, 1979 Dr. Simons
reported, "...examination showed 20/20 visual acuity uncorrected
in each eye." Dr. Simons went on to state:

"...he is photophobic in the left eye, he has occasional
pain in the left eye, he has occasional double vision,
vertical in nature and the left eye tears easily."

"It would appear that this industrial case could be
closed with minimal or no permanent sequelae as a conse­
quence of the injuries of January. 1978."

A hearing, was held April 30, 1980 oyer one year from the date
the Determination Order was mailed. The Referee, in an order
dated May 29, 1980, awarded "claimant compensation equal to 16°
(5%) unscheduled permanent partial disability for left eye sensi­
tivity and tearing abnormality." The employer requested reconsid­
eration, stating "the reason for this request for reconsideration
regards the award of unscheduled disabilitv in this scheduled in-
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case and in addition· the question of whether or not the 
scheduied award, ~hich was granted by D~termination Order,ishould 
be set aside and the unscheduled award granted in lieu of the 
scheduled_ award. II The employer a rg uerl, 11 Thi' s Bearing Re fe tee, re­
viewing this matter de novo, should find no permanent residual 
disability and no award for compensation, or·at the very l~ast, if 
the unscheduled disability award is allowed, it should be ~n iieu 
of the scheduled award previously' grante<'l. II I 

The Referee issued his order on reconsideration Septe~ber 23~ 
19SO. He found '' ••• claimant1 does have impairment of funct~on, 
other than loss of visual acuity, ... ~ He further lound that, "The 
fact that the March Determination Order awarded 5% permanent par­
tial-disability for loss of visual acuity, where it was liter es­
tablished that there was no loss of. visual acuity, is unrejated to 
my later finding of unscheduled disability. That both awa~ds were 
5% is coincidental." The Referee denied the employer's re~uest 
because "there was ho cross appeal from the Determination brder." 

, • I . ' . . . i 
The -employer contends the Referee erred when he faile~ to 

correct the Determination Order and further erred when he oranted 
an unscheduled disability award based.on loss cif wage earning cap-
acity. ; 

I 
In his request for hearing, the claimant stated the i 1c:;sues to 

be determined it hearing were,· r 
(1) Extent of permanent partial disability; 

(2) Extent of permanent total aisability. 
I 
I 

The claimant's attorney made the following openinq- statement at 
I - - • { 

hearing: j 

"The testimony we would like to put on this morniing 
would be the testimony of Mr. Robbins expanding~ Jittle 
more· in detail than: what the medical reports have in the 
record, the nature and extent of his injury, and the 
disability that he suffers as a result of this i~jury. 
We feel. that the medical reports are a little br;ief on 
this and that ... we feel that we can best develop this 
th~ough the examination of Mr. Robbins. That's all I 
have." (Emphasis Added.) 

When the claimant appealed the Det~rmination Order, He opened 
the issue of extent and nothing in logic, Jaw, or rule sais that 
the Referee's only options ar~ to determine whether its award 
should be affirmed or ·incre~sed. Clearly, in this case, the 
claimant's condition· of visual .acuity. had changed between ·Dr . 
. J9hnson's closing exam upon which the Determination Order 'was 
based and Dr. Simon's examination secured by cl~imant's attorney 
in preparation for .hearing. We find the Referee, having found a 
basis to award uns~h~duled disability, taking into consideratirin 
all the post D~termin~tion Order evidence, ,should ha~e corrected 
th~ Determination Order and awarded unscheduled-disabi1.iti in lieu 
of the prior Determination Order's award of scheduled disability. 
See Russell v. A & D-Terminals,- 50 Or App 27 (1981) ~ Neely v. 
SAIF, 43 Or App 319 {1979). 
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jury case and in addition'the question of whether or not the
scheduled award, which was granted by Determination Ordershould
be set aside and the unscheduled award granted in lieu of the
scheduled award.The employer argued, "This Hearing Referee, re­
viewing this matter de novo, should find no permanent residual
disability and no award for compensation, or at the very least, if
the unscheduled disability award is allowed, it should be in lieu
of the scheduled award previously granted."

The Referee issued his order
1980, He found " . . • cla imant^ does
other than loss of visual acuity,
fact that the March Determination
tial disability for loss of visua
tablished that there was no loss
my later finding of unscheduled d
5% is coincidental." The Referee
because "there was ho cross appea

on reconsideration September 23,
have impairment of function,
..." He further found that, "The
Order awarded 5% permanent par-
1 acuity, where it was later es-
of. visual acuity, is unrelated to
isability. That both awairds were
denied the employer's request
1 from the Determination Order."

The -employer contends the Referee erred when he failed to
correct the Determination Order and further erred when he granted
an unscheduled disability award based.on loss of wage earning cap­
acity. ;

In his request for hearing, the claimant stated the issues
be determined at hearing were:

(1) Extent of permanent partial disability;

to

2) Extent of permanent total disability.

The claimant
hearing:

s attorney made the following opening' statement at

"The testimony we would like to put on this morning
would be the testimony of Mr. Robbins expanding a ]ittle
more in detail than-, what the medical reports have in the
record, the nature and extent of his injury, and the
disability that he suffers as a result of this injury.
We feel.that the medical reports are a little brief on
this and that...we feel that we can best develop this
through the examination of Mr. Robbins. That's all I
have." (Emphasis Added.)

When the claimant appealed
the issue of extent and nothing
the Referee's only options are
should be affirmed or increased
claimant's condition of visual
Johnson's closing exam upon whi
based and Dr. Simon's examinati
in preparation for hearing. We
basis to award unscheduled disa
all the post Determination Orde
the Determination Order and awa
of the prior Determination Orde
See Russell v. A & D Terminals,
SAIF, 43 Or App 319 (1979).

the Determination Order, he opened
in logic, ]aw, or rule say's that
to determine whether its award
. Clearly, in this case, the
acuity, had changed between Dr,
ch the Determination Order was
on secured by claimant's attorney
find the Referee, having found a
bility, taking into consideration
r evidence, .should have corrected
rded unscheduled disability in lieu
r's award of scheduled disability^
50 Or App 27 (1981); Neely v.
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ORDER 

The order .of the Referee aated May 29, 1980 and republished 
on. September 23, 1980 is modified. 

The claimant is granted 5% unscheduled disabiliti for left 
eye sensitivity and tearing abnormalit~ in lieu of the award of 
the April. 23,- )979 Determination Order. 

. ' 

· DONALD R. SANFORD, CLAIMANT 
R. Ray Helsell. Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corp 'Legal,. Defense Attorney 
Own Moti-on Order 

j:_ 

Own Motion 81-00SBM 
llur_ie 30, 1981 

Claimant, by ·and through his attorney, requests the Board to tj __ · 
_exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656,278, and 
ieopen his claim for a woisened condition relatea to hi~ September 
27, 1962 industrial injury. Claimant's aggravation rights have 
expired. \ 

The medical evidence submitted iridicates that it is ·ihe opin­
ion of Dr. Wilson and the Orthopaedic Consultants that claimant's 
current condition is-related to his 1962 injury. 

Dr. Wilson hospitalized claimant in March 1981 and by a re­
port dated March 2, ·19s1 indicated that he was recommending claim­
ant have a·cT scan and possible myelogram. On May 15, 1981 the 
Orthopaedic Cons~ltants cpncprred ~ith Or. Wilson. 

The Board concludes that claimant's hospitalization and all 
medical services are to be paid pursuant to the provisions of ORS 
656.245. However, claimant's claim will not be reopened nor is he 
entitled to compensation for temporary total disability as he has 
retired himself from the labor market for al~ost ten years, 

, IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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ORDER
 

on.
The order of the

September 23, 1980
Referee dated May 29,
is modified.

1980 and republished

The claimant is granted 5% unscheduled disability' for left
eye sensitivity and tearing abnormality in 3ieu of the award of
the April 23, 1979 Determination Order.

Own Motion 81 0058M
June 30, 1981

■ DONALD R. SANFORD, CLAIMANT
R. Ray Helsell, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp LegalDefense Attorney
Own Motion Order

Claimant, by and through his attorney, requests the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and
reopen his claim for a worsened condition related to his September
27 ,- 1962 industrial injury. Claimant’s aggravation rights have
expired. ^

The medical evidence submitted indicates that it is the opin­
ion of Dr. Wilson and the Orthopaedic Consultants that claimant's
current condition is related to his 1962 injury.

Dr. Wilson hospitalized claimant in March 1981 and by a re­
port dated March 2, 1981 indicated that he was recommending claim­
ant have a CT scan and possible myelogram. On May 15, 1981 the
Orthopaedic Consultants concurred with Dr. Wilson.

The Board concludes that claimant's hospitalization and all
medical services are to be paid pursuant to the provisions of ORS
656.245. However, claimant's claim will not be reopened nor is he
entitled to compensation for temporary total disability as he has
retired himself from the labor market for almost ten years.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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ROBERT TUCKER, CLAIMANT 
Keith T~e~hnor, Claimant's Attorney 
William Reploqle, Defense Attorney 
Reauest for Review by Eml)loyer · 

WCB ao..:00758· 
June 30, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and Mccallister. 

I 

I 

The employer and carrier seek Board review of 
order finding claimant's hea_rt attack compensable. 
compensabiliti. We ~ffirrn.· 

Referee Neal 1 s 
h . ! . 

T e issue is 
I 
I 

In the·_process of ~roving how strenuous his job· was ~o eitab­
lish the compensability of his heart att~ck; claimant·a1sd proved 
how imperfect our system is for r_ating inaustrial disabili,ty. 
Claimant was awarded jo% loss of a leg because of a 1970 fnjury. 
Claimant was awarded. 50% loss of earning capacity because iof a 
1977 neck injury. The combined effect of .those two injur~es would. 
seem to be ·a rather severe d/sability. _ 1 

I 

Claimant!s job at the time of his heart attack invol~ed col­
lecting samples of concrete being.poured at construction sites ana 
delivering it to a laboratory for testing for.corn~liarice Jith code 
and ipecifications. At the construction sites, tlaimant ~ould get 
a wheelbarrow filled with wet concrete at a concrete truck. The 
loaded wheelbarrow weighed up to 500 or 600 pounds. Clai~ant 

A would then push. the _loaded wheelharrow up to 300 ya~ds, of1ten 
~ through loose dirt or mud. He would then scoop the wet c9ncrete 

into molds, tamping it down with an iron rod 7 5 times for ieach · 
mold. The molds would be left at the job site ovein~ght ~o harden. 

. . I 

The next day claimant w6uld return, remove the concr~te s~m­
pJes from the molds and load them into his pi~kup. Each doncrete 
sample weighed about 30 to 35 pounds. Claimant would then arive a 
collection of samples to the testing lab. At the lab he took the 
samples from the pickup and loaded them onto a cart. Fully 
loaded, the cart weighed abou~ 1,000 pourids. Claimant would roll 
it 40 to SO feet into a curing room. · 

This ~vidence suggests that c~aimant's prior compens~tion 
awards, which are not here in ·issue, may have heen oenerous. This 
evidence eitablishes proof of leqal cau~ation ~s to-claimbnt's 
heart attack, which is 0ere in issue. 

The medical causation question comes down to a battle of the 
experts. Dr~ Intile, an internist and claimant's treating physi­
cian, opines that clairnant'·s work caused his heart attack. Dr. 
Roger~, a cardiologist, opines that claimant's work did not cause 
his heart attack. 
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ROBERT TUCKER, CLAIMANT
Keith Tiechnor, Claimant’s Attorney
William ReploqTe, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by Emoloyer

WCB 80-00758
June 30, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members Barnes and McCallister.

The employer and carrier seek Board review of Referee Neal's
order finding claimant's heart attack compensable
compensability. We affirm.

The issue is

In the process of proving how strenuous his job'was to estab­
lish the compensability of his heart attack; claimant also proved
how imperfect our system is for rating industrial disability.
Claimant was awarded 30% loss of a leg because of a 1970 injury.
Claimant was awarded 50% loss of earning capacity because jof a
1977 neck injury. The combined effect of those two injuries would
seem to be a rather severe .djisability.

Claimant!s job at the time of h
lecting samples of concrete being po
delivering it to a laboratory for te
and specifications. At the construe
a wheelbarrow filled with wet concre
loaded wheelbarrow weighed up to 500
would then push the loaded wheelbarr
through loose dirt or mud. He would
into molds, tamping it down with an
mold. The molds would be left at th

is heart attack invo
ured at construction
sting for.compliance
tion sites, claimant
te at a concrete tru
or 600 pounds. Cla
ow up to 300 yards,
then scoop the wet
iron rod 75 times fo
e job site overnight

l\^ed col-
sites and
With code
would get
ck. The
imant
ofjten
concrete
r ieach '
to harden

The next day claimant would return, remove the concrete sam­
ples from the molds and load them into his pickup. Each concrete
sample weighed about 30 to 35 pounds. Claimant would then drive a
collection of samples to the testing lab. At the lab he took the
samples from the pickup and loaded them onto a cart. Fully
loaded, the cart weighed about 1,000 pounds. Claim.ant would roll
it 40 to 50 feet into a curing room.

I
This evidence suggests that claimant's prior compensation

awards, which are not here in issue, may have been generous. This
evidence establishes proof of legal causation as to claimant’s
heart attack, which is here in issue.

The medical causation question comes down to a battle of the
experts. Dr. Intile, an internist and claimant's treating physi­
cian, opines that claimant's work caused his heart attack. Dr.
Rogers, a cardiologist, opines that claimant's work did not cause
his heart attack. . '
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Since the persuasiveness of a doctor's opinion in a case like 
this depends. largeli on histo.ry given by the patient, .the 
employer/carrier makes much aao about discrepancies in the his­
tories claimant gave the two doctors and at the hearing. A sig­
nificant discrepancy in histories given to different doctors can 
destroy a claimant's position in a case like this. However, in 
this ca~e both medical exp~rts were ultimately aware of all pos­
sible variations in claimant 1 s symptoms that preceded his heart 
attack--Dr. Intile by being examined anrl cross-examined on them 
when he testified at the hearing, Dr. Rogers by being confronted 
with the same variations at his deposition. Despite beinq made 
aware of the discrepancies, each doctor basically adhered to his 
own ultimate ·opinion of causation under all variations of claim­
ant's history. Therefore, alth6ugh we agree with the contention 
of the employer/carrier that, claimant fold different stories at 
different times, we do not find those discrepancies dispositive in 
this case. · 

Dr. Rogers has greater expertise than does Dr. Intile, who in 
· turn has the advantage over Dr. Rogers of having been claimant's 
treating physician for several years before the heart attack. So 
far, about a 50-50 standoff. 

There is one area of general agreement hetwecn the two doc-
tors. Both strenuous physical .Jctivity and coJrl weather place If 
more demands on the heart because the body nee~s more oxvgen. We 
are satisfied that the evidence establishes that claimant· was per-
forming strenuous labor outdoors in cold and wet weather for sev-
eral days before the onset of his November 27, 1979 heart attack. 
We, therefore, find Dr. Intile's opinion to be slightly more per-
suasive. 

ORDER 

Th~ Referee's order dated October 21, 1980 is affirmed. 
Claimant's attorney is awarded.as a reasonable attorney fee for 
services in connection with this Board review the .sum of $750, 
payable by the employer/carrier. 
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since the persuasiveness of a doctor’s opinion in a case like
this depends largely on history given by the patient, ,the
employer/carrier makes much ado about discrepancies in the his­
tories claimant gave the two doctors and at the hearing. A sig­
nificant discrepancy in histories given to different doctors can
destroy a claimant's position in a case like this. However, in
this case both medical experts were ultimately aware of all pos­
sible variations in claimant's symptoms that preceded his heart
attack--Dr. Intile by being examined and cross-examined_on them
when he testified at the hearing. Dr. Rogers by being confronted
with the same variations- at his deposition. Despite being made
aware of the discrepancies, each doctor basically adhered to his
own ultimate opinion of causation under all variations of claim­
ant’s history. Therefore, although we agree with the contention
of the employer/carrier tbat^claimant told different stories at
different times, we do not find those discrepancies dispositive in
this case.

m

Dr. Rogers has greater expertise than does Dr. Intile, who in
turn has the advantage over Dr. Rogers of having been claimant's
treating physician for several years before the heart attack. So
far, about a 50-50 standoff.

There is one area of general agreement between the two doc­
tors. Both strenuous physical activity and cold weather place
more demands oh the heart because the body needs more oxygen. We
are satisfied that the evidence establishes that claimant’was per­
forming strenuous labor outdoors in cold and wet v/eather for sev­
eral days before.the onset of his.November 27, 1979 heart attack.
We, therefore, find Dr. Intile's opinion to be slightly more per­
suasive.

#

ORDER

The Referee's order dated October 21, 1980 is affirmed.
Claimant's attorney is
services in connection
payable by the employer/carrier.

awarded.as a reasonable attorney fee for
with this Board review the sum of $750,
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VAL TINSON, CLAIMANT 
Lyle C. Velure, Claimant's Attorney 
SAIF Corr Legal, Defense Attorney 
Request for Review by SAIF 

~/CB 80-07387 
june 30, 1981 

Reviewed by Board Members .Barnes and Mccallister. 
I 

The SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board review of Refe'ree 
Wolff's ord~r which reversed its denial of claimant's occup~tional 
disease claim-for his low back condition and.remanded it for pay-· 
ment of benefits as provided by law. We reverse. 

t 

Claimant was employed by ·the Jbsephine.County Sheriff'~ De­
partment as a jailer. On June 21, 1980 claimant drove a jiil van· 
from Grants Pass to Portland, picked up a prisoner and dro~

1
1e back 

to Grants Pass. On the return trip claimant ·experienced a 1sharp. 
pain in his back and some numbness in·his·right leg. T~er~ was no 
accident- or traumatic injuryr. ) 

I 

Dr. Kend~ll and Dr. Campagna both reported the belief ithat 
the work-related stress of driving the polic~ Van aggravat~d 
claimant's pre-existing· back. problems. Both doctors volun~eered 
the further belief that SAIF's denial was "ridiculous." Tlie Ref­
eree relied on these reports t~·conclude: "The underlying 1struc­
ture was adversely affected and altered hy the ordinary stress 
incidental_t~ driving." · I 

The Referee's analysis overlooks James v. SAIF, 290 O~ 343 
(1981). The Court there ruled· that for an occupational· disease 
claim to be compensable, the condition has to be caused by circum­
st~nces "to ~hich an employee is not ordinarily subjected qr ex­
posed other than during a per'ioa of regular actual employment" 
within the me~ning· of ORS 656.802(1) (a). With due respect Ito the 
doctors' opinions of what is "ridiculous," the Boa~d concl0des 
that claimant was "ordiriarily subjected" to the stress of driving 
both on and off the· job •. Under James, this claim is not compen.:. 
sable. 

ORDER 

The Referee's order dated December 2, 1980 is reversed and 
the SAIF Corporation's denial is reinstated. 
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WILLIAM VALTINSON, CLAIMANT
Lyle C. Velure, Claimant's Attorney
SAIF Corp Legal, Defense Attorney
Request for Review by SAIF

WCB 80-07387
June 30, 1981

Reviewed by Board Members .Barnes and McCallister.

The
Wolff's
disease
ment of

SAIF Corporation (SAIF) seeks Board revievv* of Refefee
order which reversed its denial of claimant's occupational
claim for his low back condition and remanded it fo
benefits as provided by law. We reverse.

r pay-

a ia'il van'
Claimant was employed by the Josephine .County Sheriff's De­

partment as a jailer. On June 21,
from Gra
to Grant
pain in
accident

a gailer. On June 21, 1980 claimant drove
nts Pass to Portland, picked up a prisoner and drove back
s Pass, On the return trip claimant experienced a jsharp
his back and some numbness inhis'right leg. There was no
or traumatic injury^..

Dr. Kendall and Dr. Campagna both reported the belief [that
the work-related stress of driving the police van aggravated
claimant's pre-existing•back, problems. Both doctors volunteered
the further belief that SAIF's denial was "ridiculous." The Ref­
eree relied on these reports to conclude: "The underlying 'struc­
ture was adversely affected and altered by the ordinary stress
incidentalto driving."

The Referee's
(1981). The Court
claim to be compen
stances "to which
posed other than d
within the meaning
doctors' opinions
that claimant was
both on and off th
sable.

analysis overlooks James v. SAIF, 290 Or 343
there ruled that for an occupational’ disease
sable, the condition has to be caused by circum^
an employee is not ordinarily subjected or ex-
uring a period of regular actual employment"
of ORS 656.802(1)(a). With due respectjto the
of what is "ridiculous," the Board concludes
"ordinarily subjected" to the stress of driving
e job., Under James, this claim is not compen-

ORDFR
tThe Referee’s order dated December 2, 1980 is reversed and

the SAIF Corporation's denial is reinstated.
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OF THE COURT OF APPEALS 
concerning workers' compensation law 

{There were no Supreme Court opinions issued 
on the subject of workers 1 compensation law 
during these months.)· 

PROPERTY OF 
WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 8llARD 

SALEM, OREGON 

PROPERT OF
HOWS COMPENSAllOfi BOARD

SALEM, OREGON

OPINIONS OF THE COURT OF APPEALS
concerning workers' compensation law

{There were no Supreme Court opinions issued
on the subject of workers' compensation law
during these months.)'

OPINIONS 
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No. ·237 May 11, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF·APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
Norman Anlauf, Claimant. 

STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE 
FUND CORPORATION, 

Peti'tioner, 
v. 

ANLAUF, 
Respondent. 

(No. 78-431, CA 19072) 

115 

Judicial Review from Workers' Cotnpcnsntion Board, 

~gucd and submitted Februm·y 9, 1981. 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 

Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem, argued the cause for 

petitioner. ·With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney, 

General Counsel, and James A. Blevins, Chief Trial Coun• 

sel, State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem. 

Kenneth D. Peterson, Jr:, Eugene, argued the cause for 

respondent. On the brief were Evoh1 F. Malagon and Mala­
gon, "Velure & Yates, Eugene. 

Dave Frohnmayer; Attorney General, John R.. McCul­

loch, Jr., Solicitor General, William F. Gary, Deputy Solici­

tor General, and James C. Rhodes, Assistant Attorney 

General, Salem, filed a brief ainicus curiae. 

Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 

Van Hoomissen, Judges. 

RICH~DSON, P.J. . 

Reversed and remanded for further proceedings. 
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No. 237 May 11, 1981 115

IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Norman Anlauf,  laimant.

STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E
FUND  ORPORATION,

Petitioner,
V.

ANLAUF,
Respondent.

(No. 78-431,  A 19072)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted February 9, 1981.

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident
Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem, argued the cause for
petitioner. With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney,
General  ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief Trial  oun
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem.

Kenneth D. Peterson, Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for
respondent. On the brief were Evohl F. Malagon andMala-
gon, Velure & Yates, Eugene.
Dave Frohnmayer, Attorney General, John R. Mc ul

loch, Jr., Solicitor General, William F. Gary, Deputy Solici
tor General, and James  . Rhodes, Assistant Attorney
General, Salem, filed a brief amicus curiae.

Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and
Van Hoomissen, Judges.

RI HARDSON, P.J.
Reversed and remanded for further proceedings.

#
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Cite as 52 Or App il5 (1981) 117 

RICHARDSON, P.J. 

. In this workers' compensation case, the State Acci-
. dent Insurance Fund (SAIF) appeals from an order of the 

Workers' Compensation Board (Board) dismissing SAIF's 
request for review of t~e amount of an attorney fee .ordered 
by the referee to be paid by it in addition to claimant's .. , · 
award. The Board held that the exclusive remedy available 
to SAIF for resolving the dispute was provided in. 0~ 

· 656.388(2)1 and that it was without jurisdiction to review 
the referee's determination. The Board dismissed SAIF's 
petition for review. We reverse and remand. · 

Claimant moved to dismiss this appeal pursuant to 
Rule 9.10, Rules of Appellate Procedure,2 contending that 
the Board's ·order is not subject to review under ORS 

· 656.298 and that the appeal involves a hypothetical ques­
tion because SAIF hns an alternative remedy at law which 
it has not yet "exhausted."· 

O~ 656.298(1) provides, .in part, that "[a]ny party 
· affected by an order of the Board may*"* request judicial 

review of the order with the Court of Appeals." Claimant 
argues that the order · in issue here was not a "quasi­
judiciaI" order but, rather, an expression of Board policy in 
a· "quasi-legislative" act not subject to direct review under 

• ORS 656.298(1) .. We disagree. The order of the Board in this 
case was a uquasi-judicial" order. The Board's determina-

. tion -concerning its jurisdiction was final and reviewable. 
SAIF is a party affected by the Board's order. We conclude 
that we have jurisdiction under ORS 656.298(1) to review 
the Board's· d~cision. 

We ?1-lso conclude that SAIF's failure to "exhaust" 
the remedy available under ORS 656.388(2) does not re-

. quire dismissal of this appeal. The issue here is the review ' 

1 ORS 656.388(2) provides: 

"If an attorney and the referee or board cannot agree upon the amount ·or 
the fee, each forthwith shall submit a written statement of the services 
rendered to the presiding judge of the circuit court in the county ~n which the 
claimant resides. The judge shall. in a summary manner, without the pay• 
ment of filing, trial or- court fees, determine the amount of such fee. This 
controversy shall be given precedence over other p:roc_eedings." 

. ~ Rule 9.10, in pertinent part, provides that "a party may challenge the 
jurisdiction of the appellate court under Oregon statute or otherwise by motion 
made at any time during th~ appellate process." · 
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 ite as 52 Or App 115 (1981) 117

RI HARDSON, P.J.

In this workers’compensation case, the State Acci
dent Insurance Fund (SAIF) appeals from an order of the
Workers’  ompensation Board (Board) dismissing SAIF’s
request for review of the amount of an attorney fee ordered
by the referee to be paid by it in addition to claimant’s
award. The Board held that the exclusive remedy available
to SAIF for resolvdng the dispute was provided in. 01^
656.388(2)^ and that it was without jurisdiction to review
the referee’s detennination. The Board dismissed SAIF’s
petition for review. We reverse and remand.

 laimant moved to dismiss this appeal pursuant to
Rule 9.10, Rules of Appellate Procedure,^ contending that
the Board’s order is not subject to review under ORS
656.298 and that the appeal involves a hypothetical ques
tion because SAIF has an alternative remedy at law which
it has not yet "exhausted.”

ORS 656.298(1) provides, .in part, that "[a]ny party
affected by an order of the Board may * * request judicial
review of the order with the  ourt of Appeals.”  laimant
argues that the order in issue here was not a "quasi-
judicial” order but, rather, an expression of Board policy in
a "quasi-legislative” act not subject to direct review under
ORS 656.298(1). We disagree. The order of the Board in this
case was a "quasi-judicial” order. The Board’s determina
tion concerning its jurisdiction was final and reviewable.
SAIF is a party affected by the Board’s order. We conclude
that we have jurisdiction under ORS 656.298(1) to review
the Board’s decision.

We also conclude that SAIF’s failure to "exhaust”
the remedy available under ORS 656.388(2) does not re
quire dismissal of this appeal. The issue here is the review

‘ ORS 656.388(2) provides:
"If an attorney and the referee or board cannot agree upon the amount of

the fee, each forthwith shall submit a written statement of the services
rendered to the presiding judge of the circuit court in the county in which the
claimant resides. The judge shall, in a summary manner, without the pay-
ment of filing, trial or court fees, determine the amount of such fee. This
controversy shall be given precedence over other proceedings."

"Rule 9.10, in pertinent part, provides that "a party may challenge the
juri.sdiction of the appellate court under Oregon statute or otherwise by motion
made at any time during the appellate process."
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jurisdiction of the Board. SAIF asserts a right under ORS 
656.295 ,to seek revie,v of the referee's decision \.Vith regard 
to the amount of an attorney fee. No "hypothetical" ques­
tion is presented for our consideration. The issue raised by 
this appeal is not affected by the availability of an alter­
nate forum for resolving the underlying dispute in this 
case. Claimant's motion to dismiss is denied. 

The issues in this case are controlled by ORS 
656.386(1): 

"* * * In such rejected cases .where the claimant prevails 
finally in a hearing before the referee or in a review by the 
board itself, then the referee or board shall allow a reason­
able attorney fee; however, in the event a dispute nrises as 
to the amount allowed by the referee or board, that amount 
may be settled as provided for in subsection (2) of ORS 
656.388. Attorney fees provided for in this section shall be 
paid from the Industrial Accident Fund as an administra­
tive experwe when the claimant was employed by a con­
tributing employer, and be paid by the direct responsibility 
employer when the claimant was employed by such an 
employer." 

SAIF argues that direct review to the Board of the referee's 
order pursuant to ORS 656.295 is the exclusive method of 
review where an attorney fee is ordered to be paid by SAIF 
in addition to claimant's compensation award as opposed to 
a fee paid by claimant out of his award. In SAIFv. Huggins, 

Or App --, __ P2d __ (1981) (decided 
this date), we rejected the argument that the summary 

· procedure provided, for in ORS 656.388(2) does not apply 
where an attorney fee is to be paid by SAIF in addition to a 
compensation award. In reaching that conclusion, we noted 
that ORS 656.386(1), which provides for an attorney fee to 
be paid in addition to compensation on a successful appeal 
from a denied claim, expressly provides that the summary 

· procedure in ORS 656.388(2) was available to resolve dis­
putes as to the amount of a fee allowed under that statute. 
It follows that we disagree with SAIF that direct Board 
review is the exclusive method of review in this case. 
Circuit court review is also available pursuant to ORS 
656.386(1). SAIFu. Huggins, supra; see also, Moe v. Ceiling 
Systems, 44 Or App 429, 606 P2d 644 (1980); ·Bentley v. 
SAIF, 38 Or App 473, 590 P2d 746 (1979); Muncy v. SAIF, 
19 Or App 783, 529 P2d 407 (1974). 
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jurisdiction of the Board. SAIF asserts a right under ORS
356.295 to seek review of the referee’s decision with regard
to the amount of an attorney fee. No "hypothetical” ques
tion is presented for our consideration. The issue raised by
this appeal is not affected by the availability of an alter
nate forum for resolving the underlying dispute in this
case.  laimant’s motion to dismiss is denied.

The issues in this case are controlled by ORS
556.386(1):

"* * * In such rejected cases where the claimant prevails
finally in a hearing before the referee or in a review by the
board itself, then the referee or board shall allow a reason
able attorney fee; however, in the event a dispute arises as
to the amount allowed by the referee or board, that amount
may be settled as provided for in subsection (2) of ORS
656.388. Attorney fees provided for in this section shall be
paid from the Industrial Accident Fund as an administra
tive expem?e when the claimant was employed by a con
tributing employer, and be j)aid by the direct responsibility
employer when the claimant was employed by such an
employer.”

SAIF argues that direct review to the Board of the referee’s
order pursuant to ORS 656.295 is the exclusive method of
review where an attorney fee is ordered to be paid by SAIF
in addition to claimant’s compensation award as opposed to
a fee paid by claimant out of his award. In SAIFv. Huggins,

Or App, ___________________P2d(1981) (decided
this date), we rejected the argument that the summary
procedure provided* for in ORS 656.388(2) does not apply
where an attorney fee is to be paid by SAIF in addition to a
compensation award. In reaching that conclusion, we noted
that ORS 656.386(1), which provides for an attorney fee to
be paid in addition to compensation on a successful appeal
from a denied claim, expressly provides that the summary
procedure in ORS 656.388(2) was available to resolve dis
putes as to the amount of a fee allowed under that statute.
It follows that we disagree with SAIF that direct Board
review is the exclusive method of review in this case.
 ircuit court review is also available pursuant to ORS
656.386(1). SAIFv. Huggins, supra; see also, Moe v. Ceiling
Systems, 44 Or App 429, 606 P2d 644 (1980); Bentley v.
SAIF, 38 Or App 473, 590 P2d 746 (1979); Muncy v. SAIF,
19 Or App 783, 529 P2d 407 (1974).

m
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The specific issues here, however, were not raised 
in Huggins. It remains for us ·to determine whether SAIF 
may seek Board review of the amount of an attorney fee 
and whether the· Bo.ard has jurisdiction to review the 
amount of an attorney fee, considering the existence of the 
.procedure provided for in ORS 656.388(2). The ami~us 
contends that the terms of ORS 656.388(2) make the use of 
the procedure provided for in that section mandatory in 
any case which involves a question of the amount (?fan 
~ttorney fee. The amicus further argues that there is no 
statutory authority for the Board to review the amount of 
an attorney fee award._· 

. . 
As noted, the provisions of ORS 656.386(1), not 

ORS 656.388(2), control the question in t~is case. ORS 
656.386(1} provides that in the event a dispute arises as to 
the amount of a fee ordered to he paid by SAIF under that 
statute, the amount. "may be settled as. provided for in 
subsection (2) of O.RS656'.388. "Thus, while ORS 656.388(2) 
might arguably make circuit court review the exclusive 
method in a ca~e where an attorney fee is ordered to be paid 
out of compensation, no such requirement exists in a case 
where the fee is ordered to be paid. by SAIF in addition to , 
compensation under ORS 656.386(1). Nothing in the lan­
guage of ORS 656.386(1) or the statute's legislative history 
indicate that the legislature intended to remove the right of. 
a party in such cases to petition the Board for review 
pursuant to ORS 656.295. · 

We conclude that direct Board review, pursuant to 
ORS 656.295, is not removed by ORS 656.386(1). SAIF. had 
the right to request review of the referee's· order pursuant 
to ORS 656.295. The Board had jurisdiction to consider the 
question raised in SAIF's petition for review, Therefore, 
the Board erred in dismissing SAIF's petition for-·review ·on 
the ground that it was without jurisdiction to review the 

· referee's order. Accordingly, we remand the case to the , 
Board for further proceedings consistent with this opinion. '. 

· Reversed and remanded for further proceedings. 
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The specific issues here, hov/ever, were not raised
in Huggins. It remains for us to determine whether SAIF
may seek Board review of the amount of an attorney fee
and whether the • Board has jurisdiction to review the
amount of an attorney fee, considering the existence of the
procedure provided for in ORS 656.388(2). The amipus
contends that the terms of ORS 656.388(2) make the use of
the procedure provided for in that section mandatory in
any case which involves a question of the amount of an
attorney fee. The amicus further argues that there is no
statutory authority for the Board to review the amount of
an attorney fee award.;

As noted, the provisions of ORS 656.386(1), not
ORS 656.388(2), control the question in this case. ORS
656.386(1) provides that in the event a dispute arises as to
the amount of a fee ordered to be paid by SAIF under that
statute, the amount '*may be settled as provided for in
subsection (2) ofORS656.388. ^Thus, while ORS 656.388(2)
might arguably make circuit court review the exclusive
method in a case where an attorney fee is ordered to be paid
out of compensation, no such requirement exists in a case
where the fee is ordered to be paid by SAIF in addition to
compensation under ORS 656.386(1). Nothing in the lan
guage of ORS 656.386(1) or the statute’s legislative history
indicate that the legislature intended to remove the right of
a party in such cases to petition the Board for review
pursuant to ORS 656.295.

We conclude that direct Board review, pursuant to
ORS 656.295, is not removed by ORS 656.386(1). SAIF.had
the right to request review of the referee’s order pursuant
to ORS 656.295. The Board had jurisdiction to consider the
question raised in SAIF’s petition for review. Therefore,
the Board erred in dismissing SAIF’s petition for review on
the ground that it was without jurisdiction to review the
referee’s order. Accordingly, we remand the case to the
Board for further proceedings consistentwith this opinion.

Reversed and remanded for further proceedings.
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.No. 238 May 11, 1981 

. IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
Jerry K. Huggins, Claimant. 

STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE 
-FUND- CORPORATION, 

. · App_ellant, 
v . 

. HUGGINS, 
Respondent. 

(No. EB0-2031, CA 19167) 

ApJJeal from Cil'cuit Court, Douglas County . 

. Don H. Sanders, Judge. 

Argued and submitted February 9, 1981. 

121 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance Furid Corporation, Salem, argued the cause for 
appellant. With ·him on the brief were K. R. Maloney, 
General Counsel, and James A. Blevins, Chief Trial'Coun­
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem: 

Kenneth D. Peterson, Jr., -Eugene, argued the cause for 
respondent. On the brief were Steven· C. Yates,' and Mala­
gon, Velure & Yates, Eugene. 

· · Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 
Van Hoomissen, Judges. 

·RICHARpSON, P.J . 

Affirmed. 

..... 
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, IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Jerry K. Huggins,  laimant.

STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E
FUND  ORPORATION,

Appellant,
V.

' HUGGINS,
Respondent.

(No. E80-2031,  A 19167)

Appeal from  ircuit  ourt, Douglas  ounty.

Don H. Sanders, Judge.

Argued and submitted February 9, 1981.
Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident

Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem, zirgued the cause for
appellant. With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney,
General  ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief Trial' oun
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem.

Kenneth D. Peterson, Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for
respondent. On the brief were Steven  . Yates, and Mala-
gon, Velure & Yates, Eugene.
Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and

Van Hoomissen, Judges.

RI HARDSON, P.J.

Affirmed.
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RICHARDSON, P.J. . 
. The State Accident Insurance Fund appeals from a 

circuit co~ order setting the amount of an attorney_ fee· as 
. prescribed in ORS 656.3&8(2). · · 

"U an attorney and the referee or board cannot agre~ . 
upon the amoµ.nt of the fee, each forthwith shall submit a 

· written statement of the services rendered to the presiding 
judge of the circuit court in the county in which the 
claimant resides. The jµdge shall, in a summary manner, 
without the payment of 'filing, trial or court fees, deter­
mine the amount of such fee. This controversy shall be 
given precedence over other proceedings." · 

. . . 

The issue is whether the circuit court had jurisdiction 
urider that statute to set the am9unt of an attorney fee in a 
workers! compnnsntion case where the referee, pursuant to 
ORS 656.386(1), awarded the fee to be paid by SAIF in 
addition to claimant's compensation award. We ~ffirm. 

Claimant sought compensation for an industrial 
mJury. SAIF de11ied the claim and clai~ant requested a 
hearing. The referee ordered SAIF "to accept the.claim. In 
addition, SAIF · was ordered to pay $1100 to claimant's 
attorney. Dissatisfied with the referee's fee award, claim­
ant's attorney filed a motion pursuant to ORS 656.388(2) 
requesting the circuit.court to determine the amount of his 
fee. SAIF sought permission to intervene. The court grant­
ed · that permission and held a hearing, at which time 
claimant's attorney and counsel for SAIF appeared. The 
court increased the amount of attorney fees to be paid over 
and above the compensation award. 

· SAIF _contends that the circuit court had no juris­
diction under ORS ·656.388(2) to set the amount of the 
attorney fees. SAIF argues· that ORS 656.388 gives the 

· circuit court jurisdiction only in tho~e cases where an 
attorney fee is ordered to be pa~d out of claimant's compen­
sation award. Claimant contends that ORS 656.388(2) ap­
plies whenever a dispute as to the amount of an attorney 

. fee arises, and that claimant's attorney had a right to 
u;ilize t_he summary procedures specified in the statute, 

The issue is controlled by ORS 656.386(1), which 
provides: . 

"* * * In such rejected cases where the claimant prevails 
finally iri a· hearing before the referee or in a review by the 
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RI HARDSON, P.J.
The State Accident Insurance Fund appeals from a

circuit court order setting the amount of an attomey.fee as
prescribed in ORS 656.388(2).

"If an attorney and the referee or board cannot agree
upon the amount of the fee, each forthwith shall submit a
written statement of the services rendered to the presiding
judge of the circuit court in the county in which the
claimant resides. The judge shall, in a summary manner,
without the payment of filing, trial or court fees, deter
mine the amount of such fee. This controversy shall be
given precedence over other proceedings.”

The issue is whether the circuit court had jurisdiction
under that statute to set the amount of an attorney fee in a
workers’ comptmsation case where the referee, pursuant to
ORS 656.386(1), awarded the fee to be paid by SAIF in
addition to claimant’s compensation award. We affirm.

 laimant sought compensation for an industrial
injury. SAIF denied the claim and claimant requested a
hearing. The referee ordered SAIF to accept the claim. In
addition, SAIF was ordered to pay $1100 to claimant’s
attorney. Dissatisfied with the referee’s fee award, claim
ant’s attorney filed a motion pursuant to ORS 656.388(2)
requesting the circuit court to determine the amount of his
fee. SAIF sought permission to intervene. The court grant
ed that permission and held a hearing, at which time
claimant’s attorney and counsel for SAIF appeared. The
court increased the amount of attorney fees to be paid over
and above the compensation award.

SAIF contends that the circuit court had no juris
diction under ORS 656.388(2) to set the amount of the
attorney fees. SAIF argues that ORS 656.388 gives the
circuit court jurisdiction only in those cases where an
attorney fee is ordered to be paid out of claimant’s compen
sation award.  laimant contends that ORS 656.388(2) ap
plies whenever a dispute as to the amount of an attorney
fee arises, and that claimant’s attorney had a right to
utilize the summary procedures specified in the statute.

The issue is controlled by ORS 656.386(1), which
provides:

* * In such rejected cases where the claimant prevails
finally in a hearing before the referee or in a review by the

-219-
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board itself, then the reie1;ec or board shall allow a reason­
able attorney fee; however, in the event a dispute arises as 
to the amount allowed by the referee or board, that amount 
may be settled as provided for· in subsection (2) of ORS 
656.388. Attorney fees provided for in this section. shall be 
paid from the lndu_strial .Ac~ident Fund as an administra­
tive .expense when the claimant was employed by a con­
tM.buting employer, and be paid by the di:rect responsibility 
employer when the claimant -was employed by such an 
employer."· · 

As noted, SAIF contends that ORS 656.388 does 
not apply-in this case. In support of its argument, SAIF 
points out that:. (1) ORS 656.388(2),does not provide for any 
notice to, or appearance by, an adverse party, i.e., the only 
r~quirement is o controversy between claimant's nttorney · 
and either the ref erec or B()ard and there is no provision for 
participation by SAIF; and (2) ORS 656.388(3) provides 
tha_t an attorney foe allowed under the statute becomes a 
lien on the claimant's compensation, which can only occur 
where a·Jee 18" to be paid out of a CQmpensation award. It 
follows, SAIF' contends, that the statµtc applies only where 
attorney fees are to be paid by a claimant from his compen- · 

. sation award, its purpose being to res·~lve disputes between 
claimants· and their attorneys concerning. f~es for legal 
representation. 

ORS,656.386(1) specificaily refers to ORS 
656.388(2) as a· .procedure that may oe used to resolve a 
dispute ,as to th~ amount of attorn~y f cies .to be paid by the 
employer or insurer in addition to compensation. The ref­
~rence in ORS 656.386(1) does not incorporate all of ORS 
656.388, but refers only to the p~ocedure in subsection (2): 
Altho·ugh the language of ORS 656.388(1) and (3), as point­
ed out by. SAIF, would seem to restrict the use of that 
statute to disputes regarding attorney fees paid from com­
pensatior:i, the specific ref ere nee to ORS 65(3.388(2) in ORS 
656.386(1) shows a legislative intent that the procedure~ 
applicable to disputed awards of attorney fees ordered in 
addition to compensation. . 

The fact .that ORS 656.388 does not contain a 
specific provision for making the employer or insurer a 
party to the circuit court proceedings does not eliminate the .. 
right of an a:ff ected empoyer or insurer to ~otice and an 
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board itself, then the referee or board shall allow a reason
able attorney fee; however, in the event a dispute arises as
to the amount allowed by the referee or board, that amount
may be settled as provided for in subsection (2) of ORS
656.388. Attorney fees provided for in this section shall be
paid from the Industrial Accident Fund as an administra
tive.expense when the claimant was employed by a con
tributing employer, and be paid by the direct responsibility
employer when the claimant was employed by such an
employer.”

As noted, SAIF contends that ORS 656.388 does
not apply in this case. In support of its argument, SAIF
points out that:, (1) ORS 656.388(2),does not provide for any
notice to, or appearance by, an adverse party, i.e., the only
requii’ement is a controversy between claimant’s attorney
and either the referee or Board and there is no provision for
participation by SAIF; and (2) ORS 656.388(3) provides
that an attorney fee allowed under the statute becomes a
lien on the claimant’s compensation, which can only occur
where a ^fee is to be paid out of a compensation award. It
follows, SAIF contends, that the statute applies only where
attorney fees are to be paid by a claimant from his compen
sation award, its purpose being to resolve disputes between
claimants and their attorneys concerning fees for legal
representation.

ORS.656.386(1) specifically refers to ORS
656.388(2) as a procedure that may be used to resolve a
dispute as to the amount of attorney fees to be paid by the
employer or insurer in addition to compensation. The ref
erence in ORS 656.386(1) does not incorporate all of ORS
656.388, but refers only to the procedure in subsection (2).
Although the language of ORS 656.388(1) and (3), as point
ed out by . SAIF, would seem to restrict the use of that
statute to disputes regarding attorney fees paid from com
pensation, the specific reference to ORS 656.388(2) in ORS
656.386(1) shows a legislative intent that theprocedurehe
applicable to disputed awards of attorney fees ordered in
addition to compensation.

The fact that ORS 656.388 does not contain a
specific provision for making the employer or insurer a
party to the circuit court proceedings does not eliminate the
right of an affected empoyer or insurer to notice and an
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opportunity to appear. See Giltner v. Cammpdore C_on~ C,ar­
.· riers, 14 Or App 340, ~49, 513 ~2d 541 (1973l. When an 

·· ·· attorney fee award, made pursuaI1;t to ORS 656.386(1) to be 
paid in addition to compensation, is d1sputed by claimant or 
his attorney by initiation of a proceedings in ci_rcuit court · 
pursuant to ORS 656.388(2), due process requires that the 
affected employer or insurer be given written notice of the 
proceedings. The statute (QRS ~56.388(2)) incorporates, by 
implication, the ~UC process requirement of notice and 
opportunity to appear. Giltner v. Commodore Con. (:arriers, 
supra. 

We conclude the procedure of ORS 656.388(2) is 
applicable to resolve diHputcs as to the amount of attorney 
fees awarded pursuunl to OHS ·65G.38o·(l) ·and may be 
utiiized by either party to the dispute. The circuit court had 
ju_risc.liction to 8et the amount ·of att~frney\; · fees. 1 

Affirmed. 
. . 

1 SJ\IF' dOEis not mise on RJJpenl any issttc with n•gard to the l"{'asonablene~<s of 
the nmu~nt nw:mfod claimAnt's attorney by the ci~cuit cuurt. 1'hat i&<suc, there• 
fore, is not before us for determination. · 

-221-

m

 ite as 52 Or App 121 (1983) 125

m

opportunity to appear. See Giltner v. Commodore Con. Car
riers, 14 Or App 340, 349, 513 P2d 541 (1973). When an
attorney fee award, made pursuant to ORS 656.386(1) to be
paid in addition to compensation, is disputed by claimant or
his attorney by initiation of a proceedings in circuit court
pursuant to ORS 656.388(2), due process requires that the
affected employer or insurer be given written notice of the
proceedings. The statute (ORS 656.388(2)) incorporates, by
implication, the due process requirement of notice and
opportunity to appear. Giltner v. Commodore Con. Carriers,
supra.

We conclude the procedure of ORS 656.388(2) is
applicable to resolve disputes as to the amount of attorney
fees awarded pursuant to ORS 656.386(1) and may be
utilized by either party to the dispute. The circuit court had
jurisdiction to set the amount of attorney’s fees.^

Affirmed.

' SAIF do(!s not rniso on appeal any issue with regard to the rcnson.abienc.s.s of
the amount awarded claimant'a attorney by the circuit court. That issue, thcrc-
foi-e, is not before us for determination.
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No. 239 

In Ba1(lc 

May 11, 1981 

IN_ THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
. STATE OF OREGON . 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 

Juan (Ivan) Anfilofieff, Claimant. 

ANFILOFIEFF, · · 
Respondent - Cross-Petitioner, 

(). 

STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE 
FUND CORPORATION, 

Petitioner. 

(No. 78-1ffl2, CA 17980) 

i27 

. . . 
Judicinl Review from Workers' Compensation Boa.rd. 

Argued and submitted November 21, 1980, resubmitted 

in bane May 6, 1981. 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 

Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem, argued the cause for 

~t:it\om~r. With him ()!".. th.<: r .. :riP:f w;;rF: K. P.,_ ~/.::: '.'x.;0::.-. 

Gc1'=1r=!-a..i C~vm~~l~ and. jc;:.tes _~_ b~c·-~,ti_:-.~-:· c.:r4~: ~I:--~;:...~ c_-,J·..:.:.:­

sel, State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem. 

Paul J. Lipscomb, Salem, argued the .cause for respond~ 

ent - cr,oss-petitioner. With him on the brief was Blair, 

MacDonald, Jensen -Lipscomb, Salem. 

RICHARDSON,. J. 

Affirmed as modified and remanded for further proceed­
ings. 

GILLETTE, J., dissenting opi~ion. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In Baijic
In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Juan (Ivan) Anfilofieff,  laimant.

ANFILOFIEFF,
Respondent Cross-Petitioner,

V.
STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E

FUND  ORPORATION,
Petitioner.

(No. 78-4G12,  A 17980)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted November 21, 1980, resubmitted
in banc May 6, 1981. '

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident
Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem, argued the cause for
petitioner. With him on th.o bri.of v/oro K. R. )/U!or..^7,,
Ocriei'sj  'OUXiSci.. sxio. Jc-TTi&s A. Eicv-.r.s.. Omei ir-iLi
sel. State Accident Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem.

Paul J. Lipscomb, Salem, argued the .cause for respond
ent cross-petitioner. With him on the brief was Blair,
MacDonald, Jensen Lipscomb, Salem.

RI HARDSON, J.

Affirmed as modified and remanded for further proceed
ings.

GILLETTE, J., dissenting opinion.
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RICHARDSON, J. 

In this workers' compensation case, the State Acci• 
dent Insurance Fund. (SAIF) seeks review of an order. of the 
Workers' Compensation Board (Board) finding claimant 

· suffered a compensable injury.' SAIF contends that claim• 
ant was not a subject worker as defined in ORS 656.027(2) 
and, therefore, not enti_tled to compensation. Claimant 
cross•petitions,- claim1ng the Board ·erred in failing to 
award, or even address the issue of, statutory penalties for 
employer's alleged unreasonable resistance and· delay in 
providing compensation. We review de novo, ORS 
656.298(6);.· Coday v. Willamette Tug & .(large, 250 Or 39, 
440 P2d 224 (1968); Bi-enner v. Industrial Indemnity Ca .• 30 
Or App 69, 5~6 P2d' 5~0 (1977), and affirm as modified. 

. . 

Claimant suffered a severe laceration to his lcf t 
hand while at employer's residence on ·,January 10, 1978. 
On March 20, 1978, he submitted a claim for benefits on a 
standard claim form. The form provided. space for both 
claimant and employer to describe how the injury occurred. 
Claimant answered that he was standing on a ladder nail• 
ing corrogated metal ·siding to the side of a bath house at 
employer's home when the ladder slipped, causing him to 
.fall. He stateq that his hand was lacerated on a piece of the 
siding. Employer answered that claimant had stopped to 
visit him at his residence and cut his hand while helping 
employer carry a fence gate. On June 2, 1978, SAIF denied 
claimant's claim for the stated reason that claimant was 
not an employee of. employer at the time of his injury and, 
therefore, not a "subject worker" entitled to compensation 
under the Workers' Compensation Law. Claimant request-
•ed a hearing on June 16, 1~78. · 

As stated in the referee's opinion and orde~, the 
issue for determination was whether claimant sustained an 
injury arising out of and in the course of his employment 
for. employer, on January 10, 1978. There was no dispute ; 
that claimant s·uffered an injury ori that date while on 
. employer's ·premises. The questions · in dispute were (1) 
whether claiin:::mt was an employee and (2) how the injury 

: occurred. · · · . . · 

There was a substantial conflict· in the evidence 
presented by the parties. Claimant did not speak English 
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RI HARDSON, J.

In this workers’ compensation case, the State Acci
dent Insurance Fund (SAIF) seeks review of an order of the
Workers’  ompensation Board (Board) finding claimant
suffered a compensable injury. SAIF contends that claim
ant was not a subject worker as defined in ORS 656.027(2)
and, therefore, not entitled to compensation.  laimant
cross-petitions, claiming the Board erred in failing to
award, or even address the issue of, statutory penalties for
employer’s alleged unreasonable resistance and delay in
providing compensation. We review de novo, ORS
656.298(6); Coday v. Willamette Tug & Barge, 250 Or 39,
440 P2d 224 (1968); Brennerv. IndustrialIndemnity Co.. 30
Or App 69, 566 P2d 530 (1977), and affirm as modified.

 laimant suffered a severe laceration to his left
hand while at employer’s residence on January 10, 1978.
On March 20, 1978, he submitted a claim for benefits on a
standard claim form. The form provided space for both
claimant and employer to describe how the injury occurred.
 laimant answered that he was standing on a ladder nail
ing corrogated metal siding to the side of a bath house at
employer’s home when the ladder slipped, causing him to
fall. He stated that his hand was lacerated on a piece of the
siding. Employer answered that claimant had stopped to
visit him at his residence and cut his Hand while helping
employer carry a fence gate. On June 2,1978, SAIF denied
claimant’s claim for the stated reason that claimant was
not an employee of employer at the time of his injury and,
therefore, not a "subject worker” entitled to compensation
under the Workers’ ( ompensation Law.  laimant request
ed a hearing on June 16, 1978.

As stated in the referee’s opinion and order, the
issue for determination was whether claimant sustained an
injury arising out of and in the course of his employment
for employer, on January 10, 1978. There was no dispute
that claimant suffered an injuiy* oh that date while on
employer’s premises. The questions in dispute were (1)
whether claimant was an employee and (2) how the injury
occurred.

There was a substantial conflict in the evidence
presented by the parties.  laimant did not speak English
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and testified through .. rn interpreter. He testified that he 
began work for employer, who was a home builder, in 
December, 1_977, as a carpenter. He stated that" his salary 
was $5 per hour and that he earned approximately $215 
prior to his injury, of which $175 was paid in the form of .a 
cow. All payments, other than the cow," were in cash and 
employer neither withheld taxes nor social security. 

Claimant stated that on the morning of January 
10, 1978, he and his son appeared at employer's residence to 
be transpor~d to a housing project on which clnimant was 
working· for employer. Upon his arri-:al, employer told 
claimant that he was to work on a bath house located on 
employer's . property, while employer ran some errands. 
Claimant test.if ied that he was told that when employer 
returned, they would go to the housing project. Claimant 
worked six and a half hours, first covering the bath house 
floor and, later, nailing up corrogated · metal siding. He 
testified that he lacerated his hand on the siding ti-ying to 
catch himself after the ladder on which he was standing 
slipped. 

Employer testified that he never had employed 
claimant. He further stated that on January 10, 1978, 
claimant had come to ~is premises· to. visit, that he had 
asked claimant to assist him in moving a fence gate and 
that while ·handling the gate, claimant cut his hand. He 
denied claimant was either on a ladder or working on the 
bath house. He stated that· the bath house had no cor­
rogated mrtal siding and that, in .fact, the exterior of the. 
structure was covered with plywood. He also offered the 
testimony of a representative of the. Workers' Compensa­
tion Department, who stated that he had visited the prem­
ise~ four months after-the injury and that, at that time, the 
bath house was covered with plywood siding. 

Claimant's testimony was corroborated by his son. 
Claimant also offered testimony of an investigator for 
employer's personal liability carrier, who had visited the 
premises and taken photographs of the area within a few 
days after claimant's_injury. The investigator stated that at 
the time of his visit, the bath house was partiany covered 
with corrogated metal siding laid over the plywood siding 
and that he observed a piece of the metal siding on the 
ground adjacent to a ladder lying on the ground. 
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and testified through an interpreter. He testified that he
began work for employer, who was a home builder, in
December, 1977, as a carpenter. He stated that his salary
was $5 per hour and that he earned approximately $215
prior to his injury, of which $175 was paid in the form of a
cow. All payments, other than the cow, were in cash and
employer neither withheld taxes nor social security.

 laimant stated that on the morning of January
10, 1978, he and his son appeared at employer’s residence to
be transported to a housing project oh which claimant was
working for employer. Upon his arrival, employer told
claimant that he was to work on a bath house located on
employer’s property, while employer rah some errands.
 laimant testiHed that he was told that when employer
returned, they would go to the housing project.  laimant
worked six and a half hours, first covering the bath house
floor and, later, nailing up corrogatedmetal siding. He
testified that he lacerated his hand on the siding trying to
catch himself after the ladder on which he was standing
slipped.

Employer testified that he never had employed
claimant. He further stated that on January 10, 1978,
claimant had come to his premises to. visit, that he had
asked claimant to assist him in moving a fence gate and
that while handling the gate, claimant cut his hand. He
denied claimant was either on a ladder or working on the
bath house. He stated that the bath house had no cor
rogated metal siding and that, in fact, the exterior of the
structure was covered, with plywood. He also offered the
testimony of a representative of the Workers’  ompensa
tion Department, who stated that he had visited the prem
ises four months after the injury and that, at that time, the
bath house was covered with plywood siding.

 laimant’s testimony was corroborated by his son.
 laimant also offered testimony of an investigator for
employer’s personal liability carrier, who had visited the
premises and taken photographs of the area within a few
days after claimant’s injury. The investigator stated that at
the time of his visit, the bath house was partially covered
with corrogated metal siding laid over the plywood siding
and that he observed a piece of the metal siding on the
ground adjacent to a ladder lying on the ground.
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Following the injury, employer took claimant to a 
doctor and then to a hospital. Employer, \vho spoke claim­
ant's native language, acted as an interpreter. Both claim-
ant and·his son testified-that employer told Claimant to tell 
the· doctors that he cut his hand on a gate, or o~ some glass 
or on a shovel while digging in the yard. Employer told the 
treating physician that claimant had cut his hand on some 
glass; 'Later, when claimant was taken to a hospital for 
further treatment, employer stated, according to the hos­
pital. record, that the injury occurred while claimant was 
repairing a gate on employer's farm. Claimant. testif icd 
that employer told him on one other occasion to tell even a 
different version of how the injury occurred. 

The referee, who had the chance to observe the 
witnesses, found that the testimony of the employer was 
"not credible, and, in fact, that his version of these events is 
a deliberate falsification to avoid his responsibility as an 
emp]oyer." Because we have only the record to review, \Ve 

give great weight to such findings, especially in a case such 
as this, where credibility is an important issue·. Miller v. 
Granite Construction Co., 28 Or App 473,477,559 P2d 944 
(1977); Fredrickson v. Grandma Cookie Co., 13 Or App 334, 
337-38, 509 P2d 1213 (1973). 

We agree that employer's entire story is suspect. 
The credible testimony, supported by the medical evidence, 
leads to the conclusion that claimant's injury occurred as 
he described. We also agree with the Board's determination 
that claimant was employed by employer at the time he 
was injured. We turn then to the Board's determination 
that claimant was a "subject worker" at the time -of his 
injury and entitled to compensation under the Workers' 
Compensation Law:_ . . . 

SAIF argues that even assuming claima~t was 
employed by employer at the time of his injury, he is not 
entitled to· compensation because he was a '!nonsubject 
worker" as defined in ORS 656.027(2): · 

"All workers are subject to ORS 656.001 to 656.794 
except those nonsubject workers described in the following 
subsections: · · 

· "(2) A worker employed to do gardening, maintenance, 
repair, remodeling or similar work in or about the private 
home of the person employing him." 
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Following the injuiy, employer took claimant to a
doctor and then to a hospital. Employer, who spoke claim
ant’s native language, acted as an interpreter. Both claim
ant and his son testified that employer told claimant to tell
the'doctors that he cut his hand on a gate, or on some glass
or on a shovel while digging in the yard. Employer told the
treating physician that claimant had cut his hand on some
glass. Later, when claimant was taken to a hospital for
further treatment, employer stated, according to the hos
pital record, that the injury occurred while claimant was
repairing a gate on employer’s farm.  laimant.testified
that employer told him on one other occasion to tell even a
different version of how the injury occurred.

The referee, who had the chance to observe the
witnesses, found that the testimony of the employer was
"not credible, and, ,in fact, that his version of these events is
a deliberate falsification to avoid his responsibility as an
employer.” Because we have only the record to review, we
give great weight to such findings, especially in a case such
as this, where credibility is an important issue. Miller v.
Granite Construction Co., 28 Or App 473, 477, 559 P2d 944
(1977); Fredrickson v. Grandma Cookie Co., 13 OrApp 334,
337-38, 509 P2d 1213 (1973).

We agree that employer’s entire story is suspect.
The credible testimony, supported by the medical evidence,
leads to the conclusion that claimant’s injury occurred as
he described. We also agree with the Board’s determination
that claimant was employed by employer at the time he
was injured. We turn then to the Board’s determination
that claimant was a "subject worker” at the time of his
injury and entitled to compensation under the Workers’
 ompensation Law.

SAIF argues that even assuming claimant was
employed by employer at the time of his injury, he is not
entitled to compensation because he was a "nonsubject
worker” as defined in ORS 656.027(2):

"All workers are subject to ORS 656.001 to 656.794
except those nonsubject workers described in the following
subsections: .

"(2) A worker employed to do gardening, maintenance,
repair, remodeling or similar work in or about the private
home of the person employing him.”
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Anfilofieff v. SAIF ------------------------
SAIF contends that ORS 656.027(2) describes the only 
conceivable employment relati~mship between the parties 
and, therefore, controls the disposition of claimant's claim. 
We. disagree. Though a wide variety of employment ac­
tivities may fall within this "householders exemption,'' see 
lC Larson, Workmen's Compensation Law,§ 50.21 at 9-70-
9-73 (1980), claimant was not employed to repair or remodel 
the bath-house. The evidence shmvs that the parties em­
ployment relationship ar!)se weeks earlier when claimant 
was hired by employer as a carpenter for the housing 
pr9ject. On the day claimant was injured; his employment 
status remained as a carpenter for employer. His work at 
employer's residence·was incidental to· his general employ­
~ent and ren~ered for the personal benefit of employer. 
ORS 656.027(2) is inapplicable .. 

Although the precise question presented in this 
case has not been addressed in previous appellate opinions, 
Bos u. Ind. Acc. Com., 211 Or 138, 315 ~d 172 (1957), 
preset1ts a useful analysis. In Bos, employer was engaged in 
two separate occupations, one for which coverage was re­
quired by the compensation statutes and one which was 
exempt 'from coverage. Ninty-five percent of claimn11t's 
time was spent in the.covered occupation. At the time of his· 
injury, however, claimant was being transported after per­
forming labor in employer's exempt business. Claimant 
appealed a determination that his injury was not compen­
sable. The court concluded that claimant was entitled to 
compensation and reversed. The court ·noted: 

"Under the findings of fact in this particular case, and 
in view of the oft repeated rule requiring that the Work­
men's Compensation Act be giveri a liberal construction in 
favor of the workman, and particularly in borderline cases, 
we are constrained to hold that plaintiff was eD1ployed in a 
hazardous occupation, an~ that the small portion of his 
time spent in forming work was merely inciq.ental thereto. 
ORS 656.022(4); Livingston v. State I11dustrial Accidl'lzl 
Commission.. 200 Or 468, 266 P2d 684. Such a liberal 
construction of our statutes in the case at bar will accom­
plish a result which will be in harmony with the rule 
generally applied· in other states. . 

"'The second category of troublesome cases is that 
which involves employees who go from one class of work to 
another. Here, as in the other specific exemptions. it is 
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SAIF contends that ORS 656.027(2) describes the only
conceivable employment relationship between the parties
and, therefore, controls the disposition of claimant's claim.
We disagree. Though a wide variety of employment ac
tivities may fall within this "householders exemption,” see
1 Larson, Workmen’s  ompensation Law, § 50.21 at 9-70
9-73 (1980), claimantwas not employed to repair or remodel
the bath house. The evidence shows that the parties em
ployment relationship arose weeks earlier when claimant
was hired by employer as a carpenter for the housing
project. On the day claimant was injured, his employment
status remained as a carpenter for employer. His work at
employer’s residence was incidental to his general employ
ment and rendered for the personal benefit of employer.
ORS 656.027(2) is inapplicable.

Although the precise question presented in this
case has not been addressed in previous appellate opinions.
Bos V. Ind. Acc. Com., 211 Or 138, 315 P2d 172 (1957),
presents a useful analysis. In Bos, employerwas engaged in
two separate occupations, one for which coverage was re
quired by the compensation statutes and one which was
exempt from coverage. Ninty-five percent of claimant’s
time was spent in the covered occupation. At the time of his
injury, however, claimant was being transported after per
forming labor in employer’s exempt business.  laimant
appealed a determination that his injury was not compen
sable, The court concluded that claimant was entitled to
compensation and reversed. The court noted:

"Under the findings of fact in this particular case, and
in view of the oft repeated rule requiring that the Work
men’s  ompensation Act be ^veri a liberal construction in
favor of the workman, and particularly in borderline cases,
we are constrained to hold that plaintiff was employed in a
hazardous occupation, and that the small portion of his
time spent in farming work wasmerely incidental thereto.
ORS 656.022(4); Livingston v. State Industrial Accident
Commission. 200 Or 468, 266 P2d 684. Such a liberal
construction of our statutes in the case at bar will accom
plish a result which will be in harmony with the rule
generally applied in other states.

" "The second category of troublesome cases is that
which involves employees who go from one class of work to
another. Here, as in the other specific exemptions, it is
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impractical to construe the act in such e. way ths.t employ-; 
ees and employers dart in ar:d out of cr.lVerage with every 
momentary change in activity. The great majority of deci­
sions, therefore, attempt to classify the overall nature of 
the claimant's duties, disregarding temporary departures 
from that class of duties even if the injury occurs during 
one of the departures.***' 1 Larson, Workmen's Compen­
sation Law, § 53.40, page 782." 211 Or at 146-47.· 

The issue in the present case is similar to that 
considered in Bos. The only difference is that in the case 
before us claimant's work was incidental to his normal 
employment and for employer's private benefit, rather 
t}:lan for e~ployer's exempt occupation as in Bos. The 
prin,ciple stated in Bos, however, is applicable to the 
present situation as well. 

"When any" purson in authority di.reels an employee to 
run some private errand or do some wo.rk outside his 
normal duties for the private benefit of 'the c1nploycr or 
superior, an injury in the course of that work is compt•ns­
ble." 1A Larson, Workmen's Compensation Law,~ 27.40 at 
5-310 (1979) .. 

The rationale underlying this rule is that employer 
has the power to enlarge the scope of an employee's employ- . 
ment- by assignjng sped fie tasks~ Once that authority is 
exercised, the employee . has no practical choice but to 
perform as requested. The e~ployee must either comply or 
face dismissal. To reqq.ire the employee to decide whether 

. to comply, but forfeit compensation, or refuse, and face 
dismissal, is impractical ~nd unfair. The majority of courts 
that have decided this issue have reached the condusion we 
now adopt that an injury suffered by an otherwise subject 
worker under such circumstances, is compensable. See 

. Keene o. I:zsley, 26 Md App 1, 337 A2d 168 (1975); Vicknair· 
v; Southern Fann Bureau Casualty Ins. C., 292 So 2d 747 
(La App 1974); Jackson v. Lawler, 273 So 2d 856 (La App 
1973); San Antonio v. Al Izzis Motor Sales, 110 RI 54,290 
A2d 59 (1972); Friend v. Industrial Com., 40 Ill 2d 79,237 
NE 2d 491 (1968); Carrol! v. Trans-Dyne C01poration, 22 
AD 2d 739, 253 NYS 2d 449 (1964); Annot., 172 ALR 378 
·(1948). Claimant suffered a compensable injury, and the 
Board did not err in finding accordingly. 

The remaining issue involves claimant's cross-. 
petition. Claimant requested, before the referee and. the 
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impractical to construe the act in such a way that employ
ees and employers dart in and out of coverage with eveiy
momentary change in activity. The great majority of deci
sions, therefore, attempt to classify the overall nature of
the claimant’s duties, disregarding temporary departures
from that class of duties even if the injury occurs during
one of the departures. * * *’ l Larson, Workmen’s  ompen
sation Law, § 53.40, page 782.” 211 Or at 146-47.•

The issue in the present case is similar to that
considered in Bos. The only difference is that in the case
before us claimant’s work was incidental to his normal
employment and for employer’s private benefit, rather
than for employer’s exempt occupation as in Bos. The
principle stated in Bos, however, is applicable to the
present situation a.s well.

"Wlion any person in authority directs an employee to
run some pjrivato errand or do some work outside his
normal duties for the private benefit of the employer or
superior, an injury in the course of that work is compons-
ble.” lA Larson, Workmen’.s  ompensation Law, § 27.40 at
5-310 (1979).

The rationale underlying this rule is that employer
has the power to enlarge the scope of an employee’s employ-
ment by assigning specific tasks. Once that authority is
exercised, the employee has no practical choice but to
perform as requested. The employee must either comply or
face dismissal. To require the employee to decide whether
to comply, but forfeit compensation, or refuse, and face
dismissal, is impractical ^nd unfair. The majority of courts
that have decided this issue have reached the conclusion we
how adopt that an injury suffered by an otherwise subject
worker under such circumstances, is compensable. See
Keene u. Insley, 26 Md App 1, 337 A2d 168 (1975); Vicknair
V. Southern Farm Bureau Casualty Ins. C., 292 So 2d 747
(La App 1974); Jackson v. Lawler, 273 So 2d 856 (La App
1973); San Antonio v. Al Izzis Motor Sales, 110 RI 54, 290
A2d 59 (1972); Friend v. Industrial Com., 40 111 2d 79, 237
NE 2d 491 (1968); Carroll v. Trans-Dyne Corporation, 22
AD 2d 739, 253 NYS 2d 449 (1964); Annot., 172 ALR 378
(1948).  laimant suffered a compensable injury, and the
Board did not err in finding accordingly.

The remaining issue involves claimant’s cross
petition.  laimant requested, before the referee and. the

-227-

­

­

­

, 
■ 

. 

’ 

-, 



  

           
        

        
         
           
         

         
          
     

         
   

        
      
       
         
          
          
        

       
         
        

     
          
       
        
          

      
     

          
          

         
       

          
         
         
         

           
       

         
        
        

Anfilofieff v. SAIF 

Board, that he be given penalties for what he described as 
· employer's· lies ancl active efforts to conceal the evidence. 

But for employer's actions, claimant suggests, SAIF would 
have accepted the dai.m and the financi::11 hardship which · 
he suffered as a result of the denial would have been 
avoided. Neither the referee nor the Board addressed the 
issue of penalties. Claimant contends the Board erred in 
this regard and urges this court to impose a "25%penalty· 
on all compensation ultimately found due." 

The issue of statutory penalties is covered in ORS 
656.262(8). The subsection provides: 

"If the co,poration. or direct responsibility employer or 
its insurer unreasonably delays or unreasonably re/uses to 
pay compensation, or unreasonably delays nccuptance or 
denial of a daim, the co,poration or direct responsibility 
employer shall be liable for an additional amount up to 25 
percent of the amounts then clue plus any attorney fees 
which may be assessed under ORS 656.382." (Emphasis 
added.) 

Read literally, the statute does not address penal­
ties against SAIF for the conduct of contributing employers 
or noncomplying employers. The wording of the statute 
appears to authorize penalties only against a direct respon­
sibility employer or against SAIF if either SAIF itself, a 
direct responsibility employer or its insurer unreasonably 
refuses or delays payment cif compensation. However, the 
statute, read in the context of SAIF's function as an auto­
matic insurer of noncomplying employers, indicates a legis­
lative design.to authorize penalties for unreasonable delay 
or refusal by the conduct of employers insured by SAIF. 
SAIF has the responsibility, when a claim is made against 
a noncomplying employer, to process the claim and make 
an independent determination whether the claim should be 
accepted or· denied. In that respect, SAIF stands in the 
shoes of the noncomplying employer for the purposes of 
accepting or denying the claim. If a direct responsibility 
employer or its insurer is guilty of unreasonable conduct, 
the employer is liable for penalties. We do not believe the 
legislature intended to treat noncomplying employers or 
other employers insured by SAIF differently or to insulate 
their unreasonable conduct from penalties. One purpos~ of 
the penalty provisio~ is to induce prompt and reasonable 
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Board, that he be given penalties for what he described as
employer’s'lies and active efforts to conceal the evidence.
But for employer’s actions, claimant suggests, SAIF would
have accepted the claim and the financial hardship which
he suffered as a result of the denial would have been
avoided. Neither the referee nor the Board addressed the
issue of penalties.  laimant contends the Board erred in
this regard and urges this court to impose a "25%penalty
on all compensation ultimately found due.”

The issue of statutory penalties is covered in ORS
656.262(8). The subsection provides:

"If the corporation or direct responsibility employer or
its insurer unreasonably delays or unreasonably refuses to
pay compensation, or unreasonably delays acceptance or
denial of a claim, the corporation or direct responsibility
employer shall be liable for an additional amount up to 25 
percent of the amounts then due plus any attorney fees
which may be assessed under ORS 656.382.” (Emphasis
added.)

Read literally, the statute does not address penal
ties against SAIF for the conduct of contributing employers
or noncomplying employers. The wording of the statute
appears to authorize penalties only against a direct respon
sibility employer or against SAIF if either SAIF itself, a
direct responsibility employer or its insurer unreasonably
refuses or delays payment of compensation. However, the
statute, read in the context of SAIF’s function as an auto
matic insurer of noncomplying employers, indicates a legis
lative design .to authorize penalties for unreasonable delay
or refusal by the conduct of employers insured by SAIF.
SAIF has the responsibility, when a claim is made against
a noncomplying employer, to process the claim and make
an independent determination whether the claim should be
accepted or denied. In that respect, SAIF stands in the
shoes of the noncomplying employer for the purposes of
accepting or denying the claim. If a direct responsibility
employer or its insurer is guilty of unreasonable conduct,
the employer is liable for penalties. We do not believe the
legislature intended to treat noncomplying employers or
other employers insured by SAIF differently or to insulate
their unreasonable conduct from penalties. One purpose of
the penalty provision is to induce prompt and reasonable
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payment of c~mpe~ation so the injured worker will not be 
subjected to protracted periods of econom~c hardship. 

· Construing ORS 656.262(8) literally not to au­
thorize penalties for unreasoruble conduct of employers 
insured by SAIF would substantially detract from that 
purpose. Pursuant to the statu\e, SAIF is specific!111Y liable 
. for penalties for its own conduct determined to be un­
reasonable. We interpret the statute to· authorize· penalties 
to be paid by SAIF to t~e extent unreasonable con.duct of a 
contributing or noncomplying employer causes or contri-
butes to the delay or refusal of compensation. · 

SAIF denied the claim in this case, based on the 
reports from employer and its own investigation. Employer 
did not tr_uthf ully describe the cu use of the injury or his 
relationship with claimant in the t·cport to SAIF'. By the 
time the investigator for SAili' reviewed the scene of the 
injury, employer had apparently altered the scene in order 
to cover up the true facts. In addition, employer gave false. 
iµ.formation to the doctor as to how the injury occun-ed. The 
conduct of employer was clearly unreasonable and was 
designed to avoid responsibility for the injury. Employer's 
cqnduct was a contributing cause of the denial of compensa­
tion and the consequent delay. Claimant is entitled to 
pe_nalties for unreasonable denial of his claim. 

The order of the Board is affirmed with the 
exception of the tacit denial of penalties. We TI::!mand to the 
Board for determination of appropriate penalties to be paid 
by SAIF for unreasonable denial of the claim. 

Affirmed as modified and remanded for further 
proceedings. 

GILLE'ITE, J., dissenting in part. 
. . 

My sole concern with this case is the way it deals 
with the issue <?f penalties to be imposed against SAIF. The 
opinion holds that SAIF is liable for penalties in this case of 
a non-complying employi:ir whose lies kept SAIF from time­
ly accepting claimant's claim. With respect, I disagree. 

The st;:ttutory penalty section at issue here is ORS 
656.262(8), which provides,· · 
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payment of compensation so the injured worker will not be
subjected to protracted periods of economic hardship.

 onstruing ORS 656.262(8) literally not to au
thorize penalties for unreasonable conduct of employers
insured by SAIF would substantially detract from that
purpose. Pursuant to the statute, SAIF is specifically liable
for penalties for its own conduct determined to be un
reasonable. We interpret the statute to authorize penalties
to be paid by SAIF to the extent unreasonable conduct of a
contributing or noncomplying employer causes or contri
butes to the delay or refusal of compensation.

SAIF denied the claim in this case, based on the
reports from employer and its own investigation. Employer
did not truthfully describe tlic cause of the injury or his
relationship with claimant in the report to SAIF. By the
time the investigator for SAIF reviewed the scene of the
injuiy, employer had apparently altered the scene in order
to cover up the true facts. In addition, employer gave false,
information to the doctor as to how the injuiy occunud. The
conduct of employer was clearly unreasonable and was
designed to avoid responsibility for the injury. Employer’s
conduct was a contributing cause of the denial of compensa
tion and the consequent delay.  laimant is entitled to
penalties for unreasonable denial of his claim.

The order of the Board is affirmed with the
exception of the tacit denial of penalties. We remand to the
Board for determination of appropriate penalties to be paid
by SAIF for unreasonable denial of the claim.

Affirmed as modified and remanded for further
proceedings. , • ■

GILLETTE, J., dissenting in part.
My sole concern with this case is the way it deals

with the issue of penalties to be imposed against SAIF. The
opinion holds that SAIF is liable for penalties in this case of
a non-complying employer whose lies kept SAIF from time
ly accepting claimant’s claim. With respect, I disagree.

The statutory penalty section at issue here is ORS
656.262(8), which provides,
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Anfilofieff v. SAIF 

. "If the corporation or direct responsibility employer or 
its insurer unreasonably delays or unreasonably ref uses to 
pay compensation, or unreasonably delays acceptance or 
denial of a cJaim, the co,poration or direct responsibility 
employer shall be liable for [a penalty]. * * *" (Emphasis 
supplied.) 

The "corporation" is, of course, SAIF. As the opinion 
acknowledges~ "Read literally, the statute does not address 
penalties for contributing employers or non-complying em­
ployers." That should settle it. ORS 174.010 tells us: 

"In the construction of a statute, the office of the judge 
is simply to ascertain and declare what is, in terms or in 
subst.'.lnce, contained therein, not to insert what hus been 
omitted, or to omit what has been inserted; and where 
there are several provisions or particulars such construc­
tion is, if possible, to be udoptcd as will givC' effect to all." 

Unfortunately, that docs not settle it. In spite of 
the statutory admonition, the majority goes ahead and 
"insert[s] what has been omitted," anyway. It does so by 
explaining that, since.the statute makes direct responsibili­
ty employers responsible for penalties, it must have been 
intended by the legislature that SAIF, which stands in the 
shoes of the non-complying employer, be liable as well. _ 

It should have -been enough to say that if the 
legislature has meant that it had only to say so. Since this 
obviously isn't enough, I suggest that we look for a reason 
for the distinction. 

There is one. 'SAIF's responsibility for non­
complying employers includes every fly-by-night operation 
.in the state. SAIF may not even be able to findthe employ­
er. Certainly, it has no control over him. One can readily 
contrast this situation with that of the direct responsibility 
employer and/or its iru;urer-they are a responsible, known 
quantity. The exigencies of financial responsibility are 
such that such an employer may fairly be charged with his 
own recalcitrance (after all, he knows about it and only he 
has to pay for it) or even with that of his insurer (which has 

· contractual responsibilities to· him). 

This. contrast in reliability, accountability and 
even discoverability could, it seems to me, lead a rational 
legislature to conclude that it was putting enough pressure 

_C_it_e_._as_5_2_0r __ A_..p_._p_12_7----'-(1_9_8_1..:...) ___________ ~137 

on SAIF by making SAIF responsible for its own unreason­
able actions, without making SAIF responsible for paying 
penalties for acts over which it-uniquely, in this system-
had no control. · · 

I respectfully dissent. 

Roberts, Warren and Young, JJ., joins in this dis-
sent. 
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,’'If the corporation or direct responsibility employer or
its insurer unreasonably delays or unreasonably refuses to
pay compensation, or unreasonably delays acceptance or
denial of a claim, the corporation or direct responsibility
employer be liable for [a penalty]. * * *” (Emphasis
supplied.)

The “corporation” is, of course, SAIF. As the opinion
acknowledges, "Read literally, the statute does not address
penalties for contributing employers or non-complying em
ployers.” That should settle it. ORS 174.010 tells us:

"In the construction of a statute, the office of the judge
is simply to ascertain and declare what is, in terms or in
substance, contained therein, not to insert what has been
omitted, or to omit what has been inserted; and where
there are several provisions or particulars such construc
tion is, if possible, to be adopted as will give effect to all.”

Unfortunately, that does not settle it. In spite of
the statutory admonition, the majority goes ahead and
"insert[s] what has been omitted,” anyway. It does so by
explaining that, since the statute makes direct responsibili
ty employers responsible for penalties, it must have been
intended by the legislature that SAIF, which stands in the
shoes of the non-complying employer, be liable as well.

It should have -been enough to say that if the
legislature has meant that it had only to say so. Since this
obviously isn’t enough, I suggest that we look for a reason
for the distinction.

There is one. SAIF's responsibility for non
complying errlployers includes every fly-by-night operation
in the state. SAIF may not even be able to //Wefthe employ
er.  ertainly, it has no control over him. One can readily
contrast this situation with that of the direct responsibility
employer and/or its insurer they are a responsible, known
quantity. The exigencies of financial responsibility are
such that such an employer may fairly be charged with his
own recalcitrance (after all, he knows about it and only he
has to pay for it) or even with that of his insurer (which has
contractual responsibilities to him).

This contrast in reliability, accountability and
even discoverability could, it seems to me, lead a rational
legislature to conclude that it was putting enough pressure
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on SAIF by making SAIF responsible for its own unreason
able actions, without making SAIF responsible for paying
penalties for acts over which it uniquely, in this system
had no control.

I respectfully dissent.

Roberts, Warren and Young, JJ., joins in this dis
sent.
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No .. 246 May 11, 1981 

-: . , . IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF GREGO~ 

In the Matter -of the ~ompensation of 
. . Ray Brown, Claimant. ·. 

BROWN,. 
Petitioner, 

U. 

JELD-WEN, INC., 
Respondent, 

(No. ?9-2895, CA 1~235) 

191 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and submitted February 9, 1981. 

Rolf Olson, Salem, argued the cause for petitioner. With 
him· on the brief was Olson, Hittle, Gardner & Evans, 
Salepi. 

Brian L. Pocock, Medford, argued the cause for respond­
ent. With him on the brief was Cowling, Heysell & Pocock, 
Medford. .. 

. . 
. Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 

Van Hoomissen, Judges. . , . · · 

· VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 

Reversed. 
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, In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Ray Brown,  laimant.

BROWN,
Petitioner,

V.
JELD-WEN, IN .,
Respondent.

(No. 79-2895,  A 19235)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted February 9, 1981.

Rolf Olson, Salem, argued the cause for petitioner. With
him on the brief was Olson, Hittle, Gardner & Evans,
Salem.. .
Brian L. Pocock, Medford, argued the cause for respond

ent. With him on the brief was  owling, Heysell & Pocock,
Medford.

. Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and
Van Hoomissen, Judges.

VAN HOOMISSEN, J.

Reversed.
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 
In this workers' compensation case, the claim was 

accepted and benefits were paid. After the claim was closed 
claimant's request that it be reopened was denied. 

Thereafter, claimant requested a hearing on the 
issues of his entitlement to additional benEJfits, penalties 
and attorney fees for resistance or delay, or, in the alterna~ 
tive, on the extent of permanent disability. ORS 656.283. 
Finding the claim had been prematurely closed, a referee 
ordered the claim reopened and that claimant be paid an 
additional 25 percent as pcn~lty and $9G0 attorney fees. 
The employer requested review by the Workers' Compensa­
tion Board. OHS 6G6.295. On de novo review, a majority of 
the Board reversed the referee and restored and affirmed 
the employcr'B denial of reopening and the closing order. 
Clniruant seeks judicial review of the Board's order. ORS 
656.298. 

The issue is whether the claim should have been 
reopened, and,· if so, whether claimant is entitled to penal­
ties and attorney fees. We review de nouo, ORS 656.298(6); 
James v. SAIF, 290 Or 343, 351, 624 P2d 565 (1981), 
reverse and reinstate the referee's order. 

The facts may be summarized as follows: Claimant 
sustained a back injw-y in October, 1977, while lifting 
lumber. He was examined by his family physician, who 
diagnosed his problem as a job-related lumbar sprain. The 
claim was. accepted. 

Claimant continued under treatment until July, 
1978, when he was examined by Dr. Campagna, a neurolo­
gist, who recommended that he be hospitalized for pelvic 
traction, EMG, and myelography. He was hospitalized, 
underwent testing including the myelography, and was 
discharged. In August, 1978, he returned to Dr. Campagna, 
complaining of severe back pain. Dr. Campagna found "the 
patient appears in severe pain" and "is not capable of work" 
and ordered claimant hospitalized "for control of pain." He 
was readmitted to the hospital and was treated with trac­
tion, bed rest and analgesics. In November, 1978, Dr. C~rn:­
pagna reported to the employer that "(t]he present diag­
nosis * * * is lumbar sprain. Surgery has not been consid­
ered. He is being treated conservatively and should be able · 
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J.
In this workers’ compensation case, the claim was

accepted and benefits were paid. After the claim was closed
claimant’s request that it be reopened was denied.

Thereafter, claimant requested a hearing on the
issues of his entitlement to additional benefits, penalties
and attorney fees for resistance or delay, or, in the alterna
tive, on the extent of permanent disability. ORS 656.283.
Finding the claim had been prematurely closed, a referee
ordered the claim reopened and that claimant be paid an
additional 25 percent as penalty and $950 attorney fees.
The employer requested review by theWorkers’  ompensa
tion Board. ORS 656.295. On de review, a majority of
the Board reversed the referee and restored and affirmed
tlie employer’.^ denial of reopening and the closing order.
 laimant seeks judicial review of the Board’s order. ORS
65G.298.

The issue is whether the claim should have been
reopened, and, if so, whether claimant is entitled to penal
ties and attorney fees. We review de novo, ORS 656.298(6);
James v. SAIF, 290 Or 343, 351, 624 P2d 565 (1981),
reverse and reinstate the referee’s order.

The facts may be summarized as follows:  laimant
sustained a back injury in October, 1977, while lifting
lumber. He was examined by his family physician, who
diagnosed.his problem as a job-related lumbar sprain. The
claim was . accepted.

 laimant continued under treatment until July,
1978, when he was examined by Dr.  ampagna, a neurolo
gist, who recommended that he be hospitalized for pelvic
traction, EMG, and myelography. He was hospitalized,
underwent testing including the myelography, and was
discharged. In August, 1978, he returned to Dr.  ampagna,
complaining of severe back pain. Dr.  ampa^a found ”the
patient appears in severe pain” and "is not capable of work”
and ordered claimant hospitalized "for control of pain.” He
was readmitted to the hospital and was treated with trac
tion, bed rest and analgesics. In November, 1978, Dr.  am
pagna reported to the employer that "[t]he present diag
nosis * * * is lumbar sprain. Surgery has not been consid
ered. He is being treated conservatively and should be able
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______________ ,.------·•-----~~------- Brown v. Jcld-Wen, Inc. 

to return to work on 1/2/79." On January 18, 1979, Dr. 
Campagna advised the employer ~li.e claim could be closed 
as of December 8, 1978. On the basis of the doctpr's reports 
that claimant's condition was medically stationary and 
that the claim could be closed as of December 8, 1978, the 
I)etermination Order was issued February 8, 1979.1 · 

On January 22, 1979, Dr .. Campagna directed a 
supplemental report to the employer indicating: "[Claim­
ant] returns· to the office continuing to have total spine 
pain. He is not working. ***Physical examination reveals 
[he] has guarding of the neck ·and low back muscles. The 
deep tendon reflexes are moderately hypoactive bilaterally. 
* * * [His] condition is s~ationary. There is no·neurosurgical 
treatment indicated. He should be evaluated by orthopedic 
consultant." On February 2, 1979, claimimt told Dr. Cam­
pagna he had returned to work but was unable to tolerate 
the pain. Dr. Campagna notified the employer nnd 
scheduled claimant for rehospitalization on February '1, 
1979, for orthopedic· consultation·. While hospitalized, 
claimant was treated with traction and physical therapy, 
and- an9ther myelogram was performed. 

On March 21, 1979; Dr. Campagna found claim­
ant's back motions were "limited to 50 percent normal 
range." He recommended evaluation at Callahan Center. 
Claimant then asked the employer to reopen his claim. The 
employer ·refused and denied further benefits'. In June, 
1979, Dr. Campagna r~examined claipiant and found him 

1 At the time t~,c Evaluatiun Division considcrL'<l clos~rc, it rtpparcntly wn,; _ 
unaware of Dr. Campagna's supplDment.al. reports to employer, dated January 22. 
1979, and February 2, 1979. 

ORS 656.268(2) and (3) provide: 

"(2) When the injured· worker's condition i·csulting from a disabling 
injury hn,1 ·becomc medicnlly nlntionury. * • " the State Accident Insurance 
Fund Corporation or direct responsibility employer shall so notify the Evalua­
tion Division, the work<>r. and rontributing employer, if any, and request th<> 
claim be cxnmincd nnd further compensation. if any, is dctorminl'd. A·copyof 
all mrdical rr•porls ~ * ' necrssary to ma/re ,such dctcrminatr'on also shall be 
f11r11i.~hed lo 1/Je Bi-'lllualirm Di11ision • * ~: 

"(3} ~¥7,en the medi,·al n'ports indicate to the insurer or self-insured 
employer that the workers condition has become medically stationary and the 
self-insured employer or the cmployer·s in.surer decides that the claim is 
nondisabling or is disabling but wilhout pennanent di~ability, the claim may 
be closed, * • *." (Emphasis added.) · 
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to return to work on 1/2/79.” On January 18, 1979, Dr.
 anipagna advised the employer the claim could be closed
as of December 8, 1978. On the basis of the doctor’s reports
that claimant’s condition was medically stationary and
that the claim could be closed as of December 8, 1978, the
Determination Order was issued February 8, 1979.^

On January 22, 1979, Dr.  ampagna directed a
supplemental report to the employer indicating: "j. laim-
antj returns to the office continuing to have total spine
pain. He is not working. * Physical examination reveals
[he] has guarding of the neck and low back muscles. The
deep tendon reflexes are moderately hypoactive bilaterally.
* * * [His] condition is stationary. There is no neurosurgical
treatment indicated. He should be evaluated by orthopedic
consultant.” On February 2, 1979, claimant told Dr.  am-
pagna he had returned to work but was unable to tolerate
the pain. Dr.  ampagna notified the employer and
.scheduled claimant for rehospitalization on February 4,-
1979, for orthopedic' consultation. While hospitalized,
claimant was treated with traction and physical therapy,
and another myelogram was performed.

On March 21, 1979; Dr.  ampagna found claim
ant’s back motions were "limited to 50 percent normal
range.” He recommended evaluation at  allahan  enter.
 laimant then asked the employer to reopen his claim. The
employer refused and denied further benefits. In June,
1979, Dr.  ampagna reexamined claimant and found him

' At the time '.'•.o Evaluation Division considered closure, it apparently w.as
unaware of Dr.  ampagna’s supplemental reports to employer, dated January 22,
1979, and February 2, 1979.

ORS 656.268(2) and (3) provide:

"(2) When the injured worker’s condition resulting from a disabling
injur>’ h.a.s'l)ccomo modicnlly slntioniiry, the State Accident In.surance
Fund  orporation or direct i-esponsibility employer shall so notify the Evalua
tion Division, the woi'ker, and contributing employer, if any, and request the
claim be examined and further compensation, if any, is determined. A copyof
all medical reports “ ► necessary to make such determination also shall be
furnished to the Eviduotion Diuision • * *;

"(3) When the medical reports indicate to the insurer or self-insured
employer that the worker's condition has become medicallystationaryeeaA the
self-insured employer or the employer's insurer decides that the claim is
nondisabling or is di.sabling but without pennanent disability, the claim may
be closed, * * (Emphasis added.)
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incapable of regular work. He recommended he be 
evaluated at the University of Oregon Medical School. 
Claimant was not evaluated or treated at either institution 
because his claim was not reopened. In July,' 1979, Dr. 
Campagna advised employer's attorney that clnimant's 
condition had "remained essenbally unchanged throughout 
this period of time which I have treated him." Dr. Campag­
na reexamined claimant in August, 1979, and finding no 
essential change, he again recommended evaluation. at 
Callahan Center. In October, 1979, D,. Campagna opined 
in a letter to claimant's attorney that his chronic lumbar 
sprain was related to his industrial injury. 

Finding that the l �'cbrnary, 1979, closure was pre­
mature, the reforoc ordered lhc claim rcopened. 2 The 

l1 Bn~d upon thi,i rr;i·(Jl'U, thu refc-r,'e reasoned: 

"Tim i;itual.ion npp,·m·,i so1m,what obvious. The physician" t!i_,-cu,-,; !wr-
11iutt>d nudcmi pulpo,;us. nnd h1rnb:u· r<prain. but re<:ommcndt•d no n1~rntive 
treatm<int, H('em to vncillnlc in thi.,i1· opiniom• as to whether or llflt. tht•n• an• 
vuli<l c:-om1>lninL-. exieiting, and n•conunend that claimant be cvaluat,;•d else­
where. Although relensc<l for work on sevcrnl diffc·rent occnsions, the claim• 
ant has adamantly refused tu return to work, alleging that he remains 
<..aomplctcly disnblcd by his low back pain. 

"On the,basis on Dr. Campagna's reports, the claim must be reopened as 
of February 4, 1979. Dr. Campagna stated that the claimant was ndmitted to 
the hospital 'for treatment of low back pain.' In his letter to Mr. Olson dated 
October 25, 1979, Dr. Campagna connects the chronic lumbar sprain, :1ppar­
ently still existing, to the industrial injw-y of October 19, 1977. (Emphasis in 
original.) 

"The Workers' Compensation Board has hdd that when compensation for 
temporary total di&:-1bility is paid, it is' requil·cd that the claim be reopened 
;1.nd cannot be unilaterally closed by the carrier or employer, without being 
resubmitted to the Ev:iluation Division (John R. Daniel, WCB i9-2521). 

"ORS 656.273(,3) provides that a physician's report indicating a need for 
further medical services is a claim for aggravation. Vlhile a fkt,mnination 
Order con be appealed anytime during thc first year after it,,, publication 
(ORS 656.268(5)) there is nothing to rrohibit a clnirn for aggrnvation l:x•ing 
filcd within that one year, in li4;u or ,1p1x•:din1: th,i Dl'!,,1·min11tion Onk,·.· 

''.In this particular case, hnwevt'r, tho unique, siluat ion exists where the 
Detcrminntion Order had not yet bccin publislwd on the dnlc that Dr. 
Campugnn hnd ndmitted clnimnnt to th,i hospit:il for further 'treatment.~·­
The clnimnnt w::rn admitted Fcla-unrv •1. 197\), m,d Lhc !Jd(•nnlnatin1, OnlN 
wns not publtshed until 1''cbru;.1ry 8, 1979. Accordingly, although the Detem1i­
nation Order wns properly issued with the infom,ntion then avnilnblc to the 
Evnluation Division, to wit, Dr. Campngm1's earlier repo1-t indic:1ting a 
December 8, 1978 closing date. it mu,;t now be set aside as l't'prescn,ing a 
pn!maturr c!osurr of this clniJ'!l," · 
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incapable of regular work. He recommended he be
evaluated at the University of Oregon Medical School.
 laimant was not evaluated or treated at either institution
because his claim was not reopened. In July, 1979, Dr.
 ampagna advised employer’s attorney that claimant’s
condition had "remained essentially unchanged throughout
this period of time which I have treated him.” Dr.  ampag
na reexamined claimant in August, 1979, and finding no
essential change, he again recommended evaluation at
 allahan  enter. In October, 1979, Dr.  ampagna opined
in a letter to claimant’s attorney that his chronic lumbar
sprain was related to his industrial injury.

Finding that the February', 1979, closure was pre
mature, the rererec ordered the claim reopened.*^ The

JJiiscd ui>on tills rovord, tluj refcive reasanctl:

'Till! .situation ajiiMVirs somowlint obviou.s. The physician.s discu.ss !ier-
niatod nuelcus ]>iili>osu.s, and luinbnr sprain, but recommended no ojK'i'ative
treatment, seem to vacillate in tlieii' opinions as U) whether or not thei'e are
valid complainLs oxistinp. .and reconxinend that claimant bo evaluaU'd else
where. Although released for work on several different occasion-s. the claim
ant has adamantly refused to return to work, alleging that he remains
completely disabled by ius low back pain.

"On the basis on Dr.  ampagrta’s reports, the claim must be reopened a.s
of February 4, 1979. Dr.  ampagna stated that the claimant was admitted to
the hospital 'for treatment of low back pain.’ In his letter to Mr, Olson dated
October 25, 1979, Dr.  ampagna connects the chronic lumbar sprain, appar
ently still existing, to the industrial injuiy’ of October 19, 1977. (Emphasis in
original.)

"The Workers’  ompen.sation Boanl has held that when compen.sation for
temporary total disability is paid, it is' required that the claim be reopened
and cannot be unilaterally closed by the carrier or employer, without being
resubmitted to the Evaluation Division (John R. Daniel, W B 79-2521).

"ORS 656.273(3) provides that a physician’s report indicating a need for
further medical services is a claim for aggravation. While a Determination
Order can be appealed anj'time during the first year after its publication
(ORS 656.268(5)) there is nothing to prohibit a claim for .aggravation being
filed within lhal one ye:ir. in lieu of iipjx.';iling the Detei'ininiition Order.

"In this particular case, however, the unique^ situation exists whore the
Determination Order had not yot been published on the date that Dr.
 ampagna had admitted claimant to the hospital for further 'treatmont-s'.
ITie claimant was admitted Fchruary 4, 1979, and the Deh-nninatioii Order
was not published until February 8,1979. Accordingly, although the Determi
nation Order was properly issued with the information then available to the
Evaluation Division, to wit. Dr.  ampagna’s earlier report indicating a
December 8, 1978 closing date, it mu.st now be set aside as representing a
premature closure of this clairn."

 

 

 

-234-

­

­

­
­

­

­



   

        
   
       
         

       
        

       
        
       
       
        
        

         
        
       
     

          
     

        
        
       
       

          
        

          
    
   

        
            
              
  

            
  

       

             
        

   

         
           

               
            

   

Brown v. Jeld-Wen, Inc. -----------------

referee also determined the employer's denial of reopening 
was ·arbitrary and improper.3 

In this court, cl~imant argues Dr. Campagna's 
February 2, 197~, letter containing notification that he was 
being hospitalized for orthopedic consultation indicated a 
need for further medical services, mandating a reopcnirig 
of the claim. Alternatively, claimant argues Dr. Campag­
na's letter constituted' a valid claim for aggravation which 
_employer arbitrarily and improperly denied. He argues 
that :because the Evaluation Division failed to consider Dr. 
Campagna's letter, the Determination Order resulted in a 
premature claim closµre. Employer contends this is neither 
a premature closur·e nor an aggravation claim and that the 
claim was properly closed because claimant was then med­
ically stationary. Employer contends further that evidence 
claimant subsequenUy underwent conservative medical 
care and treatment does not establish a basis upon which 
the claim should have been reopened. 

Dr. Campagna's February 2, 1979, letter to the 
employer indicating that the claimant was being hos~ 
pitalized for orthopedic consultation, together with Dr. 
Campagna's supplemental . report to the employer dated 
March 14, 197~, enclosing a copy of the hospital discharge 
summary ,4 satisfies us that the claimant was not "medical­
ly stationary"5 at the time. his claim was closed. Closure 
was therefore premature. ORS 656.268(1).6 

3 The referee found: 

"The employer's. arbitrary decision to terminate temporary dis..'lbility was 
improper. If the letter from the employer to claimant dated March 27, 1979 
purports to be a letter of denial, it does not conforni. to the stntutory 
requirements (ORS 656.262(6))." 

The employer's denial letter failed to inform claimant of his hearing rights 
under ORS 656.283. · · · 

• The Providence Hospital discharge summary states in part: 

'This 42 year old white nwle was ~drriitted for treatment of low back 
pain: He wris treated with traction and ther;:ipy. * * >"." 

~ ORS 656.005(21) provides: 

"(21) 'Medically stationary' means that no further mnterial improvement 
would reasonably be expected from medical treatment. or the passage uf 
time." 

See also Dimitroff v. State Ind. Acc. Com., 209 Or 316, 333, 306 P'2d 398 
- (1957); Pratt v. SAIF, ~9 Or App 255, 258, 562 P2d 1242 (1977}. 

6 ORS 656.268(1} provides: 
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referee also determined the employer’s denial of reopening
was arbitrary and improper.^

In this court, claimant argues Dr.  ampagna’s
February 2, 1979, letter containing notification that hewas
being hospitalized for orthopedic consultation indicated a
need for further medical services, mandating a reopening
of the claim. Alternatively, claimant argues Dr.  ampag
na’s letter constituted a valid claim for aggravation which
employer arbitrarily and improperly denied. He argues
that because the Evaluation Division failed to consider Dr.
 ampagna’s letter, the Determination Order resulted in a
premature claim closure. Employer contends this is neither
a premature closure nor an aggravation claim and that the
claim was properly closed because claimant was then med
ically stationary. Employer contends further tliat evidence
claimant subsequently underwent conseiwative medical
care and treatment does not establish a basis upon which
the claim should have been reopened.

Dr.  ampagna’s February 2, 1979, letter to the
employer indicating that the claimant was being hosr
pitalized for orthopedic consultation, together with Dr.
 ampagna’s supplemental report to the employer dated
March 14, 1979, enclosing a copy of the hospital discharge
summary,'^ satisfies us that the claimant was not "medical
ly stationary”® at the time his claim was closed.  losure
was therefore premature. ORS 656.268(1).®

^ The refei-ee found:

'The employer’s arbitrary decision to terminate temporary disability was
impro^r. If the letter from the employer to claimant dated March 27, 1979
purports to be a letter of denial, it does not confonh to the statutory
requirements (ORS 656.262(6)).”

The employer’s denial letter failed to inform claimant of his hearing rights
under ORS 656.283.

^The Providence Hospital discharge summary states in part:

"This 42 year old white male was admitted for treatment of low back
pain. He was treated with traction and therapy. *.*

® ORS 656.005(21) provides;

"(21) 'Medically stationary' means that no furthermaterial improvement
would reasonably be expected from medical treatment, or the passage of
time.”

See also Dimitroff v. State Ind. Acc: Com., 209 Or 316, 333, 306 P2d 398
(1957); Pratt v. SAJF, 29 Or App 255, 258, 562 P2d 1242 (1977).

® ORS 656.268(1) provides:
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We agree ~ith the referee that penalties are appro• 
priate here, ORS 656.262(8), ·and that the employer should 
pay clairriant's reasonable attorney fees. ORS 656.382. See 
Vandehey v. Pumilite Glass 9 building Co., 35 Or App 187, 
580 P2d 1068 (1978); Smith v. Amalgamated Sugar Co., 25 
Or App' 243, 548 P2d 1329 (1976). The amounts ordered by 
the referee are reasonable under the facts of the case. 

The order of the referee is reinstated. 

Reversed. 

"(l) One purpose of this; chuplcr i!:! t-0 restore the injured worker ns soon as 
possible and as near as pomiiblc to [I condition of self support and muintenance 
ns nn able-bodied worker. Claims ~-hall 110/ be closed nor temporary disability 
<.vmpC!lHulion terminated ,f the worl.:er's ,~mdilion has not b,•tYJme medically 
Hlafli.m11ry * • *." (E111pl1111,is mldcd.l 
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We agree with the referee that penalties are appro
priate here, ORS 656.262(8), and that the employer should
pay claimant’s reasonable attorney fees. ORS 656.382. See
Vandehey v. Pumilite Glass 9 building Co., 35 Or App 187,
580 P2d 1068 (1978); Smith v. AmalgamatedSugar Co., 25
Or App 243, 548 P2d 1329 (1976). The amounts ordered by
the referee are reasonable under the facts of the case.

. The order of the referee is reinstated.

Reversed.

"(1) One purpose of this chapter is to restore the injured worker as soon as
possible and aa near asptwsiblc to a condition of si*If supjwrt and nuiintonance
as nn able-bodied worker. Clnitns ghall not he closed nor temporary disability
cvnifH'nsution terminated if the u.orker's condition has not iwcorne medically
stntitmary (I nipliiisi.s added.)

#

m

-236-

­



   

       
  

      
      

   

    

     

     

       
           
    

        
           

      

       
 

 

   

249. May 11, 1981 

. IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the :M;atter. of the Compensation of 
the Beneficiaries of Robert A. Carter, Deceased. 

. ' 
CARTER, 
Petitio,~e~ 

u. 
CROWN ZELLERBACH CORPORATION, 

. . . . . 

Respondent. . . 

(WCB No. 79-S038, CA 18767) 

215 

Judicial_ Review fro~ Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and submitted February 25, 1981. 

Bernard Jo1les, Portland, argued· the cause for peti­
. ti oner. On the brief w~re Robert A. Sacks, and· J olles, Sokol, 

Bernstein & Aitchison, P.C., Portla~d. 

Mildred J. Carmack, Portland, argued the cause for 
respondent. With her on the brief were Paul R. Bocci, and 
Schwabe, Williamson, Wyatt, Moore & Roberts, Portland_. 

Before Gillette; Presiding ·Judge, and Roberts and 
Young, Judges. 

YOUNG, J. 

Reversed. 

ROBERTS, J., dissenting opinion: 
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m

IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter-of the  ompensation of
the Beneficiaries of Robert A.  arter, Deceased.

 ARTER,
Petitioner,

V.
 ROWN ZELLERBA H  ORPORATION,

Respondent.
(W B No. 79-3038,  A 18767)

Judicial Review from Worlcers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted February 25, 1981.

Bernard Julies, Portland, argued the cause for peti
tioner. On the briefwere Robert A. Sacks, and Jolles, Sokol,
Bernstein & Aitchison, P. ., Portland.

Mildred J.  armack, Portland, argued the cause for
respondent. With her on the brief were Paul R. Bocci, and
Schwabe, Williamson, Wyatt, Moore «fe Roberts, Portland,.

Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and
Young, Judges.

YOUNG, J.

Reversed.
ROBERTS, J., dissenting opinion.
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YOPNG, J. 

Claimant appeals ·from an order of the Workers' 
Compensation Board, reversing the opinion and order of 
the referee. This is an on the job heart-exertion death case. 
The issue is. compensability. The Board, in reversing the 
referee, found that claimant failed to meet the burden of 
proving both legal arid medical causation. We review de 
novo on the record. ORp 656.298(6). We reverse. 

Decedent was 52 years old with atherosclerotic 
heart disease, a prior myocardial infarction ahd other ail­
ments; He was a long-time employe at a Crown Zellerbach 
Corporation (Crown) sawmill. In recent years and at the 
time of. death he was a barker machine . operator. 1 · On 
January 10, 1979, while sitting in the cab of the idle 
barker, he suffered heart failure ancl died soon thereafter.2 

' ' . . ' 

Claimant has the burden of proving by n prepon­
derance of the evidence both legal ·and medical causation. 
Coday v. ·willamette Tug & Barge,-250 Or 39,440 P2d 224 
(196_8); Riutta v. Mayflower Farms, fnc., 19 Or App 278,' 527 
·P2d ·424 (1974). Both are fact questions. Mawhinney v. 
SAIF, 43 ·Or App 819, 6~4 _P2d 430 (1979) .. 

Decedent· reported to work for the swing shift 
around 4:30 p.m. Decedent and co-workers· took a. short 
break around 6:45 ·p.m., during which decedent made no 

. c·omplaints and no signs of illness were observed by others. 
The night was cold and decedent was dressed in a shirt and 
sweatshirt. He operated the barker until 8:05 p.m., ,vhen a 
breakdown occurred in the mill and decedent shut down the 
·barker. When he shut down the barker, he exited from the 
barker cab and walked· a short distance along a catwalk. 
From this p~int on there is littie·direct evidence of deced­
ent's activity. His co-worker Smith was of the opinion that 
the decedent was headed to tl~c lower !11ill level of the 

. 1 The bnrker machin!', ns its name implies removt'S bnrk from log~ t-nte,;ng 
the mill. It is operated from n C.'lh position seV!'ral fret above the burker. The 
barker is opcrat....-d by pressing buttons and foot pcdals.1\vo barkers were OIJ<.·rnt<'<l 
from the cab, one by decedent and the other by co-worker Smith. 

2 We use the term "heart fo.ilure" to describe the cause of death more clearly. 
There is a definable medical difference between n myocardial infurction and a 
myocardial failure.The medical evidence indicates the immediate cause of death 
w::is due to myocardiul failure. 
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YOUNG, J.

 laimant appeals from an order of the Workers’
 ompensation Board, reversing the opinion and order of
the referee. This is an on the job heart-exertion death case.
The issue is compensability. The Board, in reversing the
referee, found that claimant failed to meet the burden of
proving both legal and medical causation. We review de
novo on the record. ORS 656.298(6). We reverse.

Decedent was 52 years old with atherosclerotic
heart disease, a prior myocardial infarction and other ail
ments. He was a long-time employe at a  rown Zellerbach
 orporation ( rown) sawmill. In recent years and at the
time of . death ho was a barker machine operator.^ On
Januaiy 10, 1979, while sitting in the cab of the idle
barker, he suffered heart failure and died soon thereafter.^

 laimant has the burden of proving by a prepon
derance of the evidence both legal and medical causation.
Coday v. Willamette Tug d: Barge, 250 Or 39, 440 P2d 224
(1968); Riutta v. MayflowerFarms, Inc., 19 Or App 278, 527
P2d 424 (1974). Both are fact questions. Mawhinney v.
SAIF, 43 Or App 819, 604 P2d 430 (1979).,

Decedent reported to work for the swing shift
around 4:30 p.m. Decedent and co-workers took a short
break around 6:45 p.m., during which decedent made no
complaints and no signs of illness were observed by others.
The night was cold and decedent was dressed in a shirt and
sweatshirt. He operated the barker until 8:05 p.m., when a
breakdown occurred in the mill and decedent shut down the
barker. When he shut down the barker, he exited from the
barker cab and walked a short distance along a catwalk.
From this point on there is little direct evidence of deced
ent’s activity. His co-worker Smith was of the opinion that
the decedent was headed to the lower mill level of the

' The barker machine, ns its name implies removes bark from logs entering
the mill. It is opc-rated from a cab position several feet above the barker. The
barker is operated by pressing buttons and foot pedals. Two barkerswere opornted
from the cab, one by decedent and the other by co-worker Smith.

^ We use the term "heart failure” to describe the cause of death more clearly.
There is a definable medical difference between a myocardial infarction and a
myocardial failure.The medical evidence indicates the immediate cause of death
was due to mvocardial failure.

%
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v. Crown Zellct·bach Corp_: 

barker to sweep up bark and debris with a pushbroom. No 
one observe~ the activity. In a :very few minutes, decedent 
returned to the cab, took a hand tool called a pickaroon, 
(described as an axe handle with a·hook on the end, weigh­
ing three pounds or less) and told Smith the barker was 
"plugged up." Decedent wou1d have only known of the 
plugup by having gone to the lower mill level earlier, 
apparently. to sweep. 

Decedent left with the pickaroon and presumably 
descended a second time to the lower level of the barker to 
clear away the jam. No one saw him do that. Smith nor­
mally unplugged the barker, but it was not unusual for 
decedent to perform that task.3 Smith said decedent return­
ed to the cab level in seven minutes, replaced the pickaroon 
and said he would be back in a minute, walking in the 
direction of the foreman's ofice. Smith observed perspira­
tion on the decede~t's brow:1 Co-worker Scott was in the 
foreman's off ice when decedent entered. Scott also observed 
perspiration on the decedent's brow. The decedent leaned 
against the office wall. He made no complaints and did not 
look ill. Decedent stayed in the off ice briefly and returned 
to the cab. Smith testified the decedent returned to the cab, 
after replacing the pickaroon, in about four m~nutcs. No 
words were exchanged. Decedent took his seat in th.e cab 
and within minutes slumped in his seat unconscious. Short­
ly thereafter he was pronounced dead in a local hospital. 5 

To decide compensability, we must determine ooth 
legal and TUedical causation. Coday u. J,Vil!amette Tug & 
Barge, supra, explains causation as follows: 

"* * * The first question is whether there is any evi­
dence that plaintiff exerted himself in carrying out his job. 
This is a question of legal causation. The second question is 

3 To c:lcnr the jam, r1 worker stands on n slow moving conveyor chain, kePping 
positioned by walking in a treadmill like fosh1on am! raking or chopping the jum 
away. 

� Co-worker Smith described the job of cleaning a jam as, "sometimes it's easy 
nnd sor:netimes it'.s hard." The referee said "clearing a jam can b.~, but is not 
always, strenuous work." The refereee found the de(.'(:dent had engaged in "moder~ 
ately strenuou:' work." We accept_ that finding. 

5 From the record .we estimate the period of time from leaving the cab to 
. sweep, returning and leaving with the pickaroo!).; stopping by the foreman's office 
and retum\ng to the cab and sit~ing down as roughly 70 minutes. · 
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m

barker to sweep up bark and debris with a pushbroom. No
one observed the activity. In a very few minutes, decedent
returned to the cab, took a hand tool called a pickaroon,
(described as an axe handle with a hook on the end, weigh
ing three pounds or less) and told Smith the barker was
'’plugged up.” Decedent would have only known of the
plugup by having gone to the lower mill level earlier,
apparently to sweep.

Decedent left with the pickaroon and presumably
descended a second time to the lower level of the barker to
clear away the jam. No one saw him do that. Smith nor
mally unplugged the barker, but it was hot unusual for
decedent to perform that task.^. Smith said decedent return
ed to the cab level in sevenminutes, replaced the pickaroon
and said he would be back in a minute, walking in the
direction of the foreman’s ofice. Smith observed perspira
tion on the decedent’s brow.''  o-worker Scott was in the
foreman’s office when decedent entered. Scott also observed
perspiration on the decedent’s brow. The decedent leaned
against the office wall. He made no complaints and did not
look ill. Decedent stayed in the office briefly and returned
to the cab. Smith testified the decedent returned to the cab,
after replacing the pickaroon, in about four minutes. No
words were exchanged. Decedent took his seat in the cab
and within minutes slumped in his seat unconscious. Short
ly thereafter he was pronounced dead in a local hospital.^

To decide compensability, we must determine both
legal and piedical causation. Coday u. Willamette Tug &
Barge, supra, explains causation as follows:

* * The first question is whether there is any evi
dence that plaintiff exerted himself in carrying out his job. 
Ihis is a question of legal causation. The second question is

® To clear the jam. n worker stands on a slow moving conveyor chain, keeping
positioned by walking in a treadmill like fashion and raking or chopping the jam
away.

 o-worker Smith described the job ofcleaning a jam as, "sometimes it’s easy
and sometimes it’s hard.” The referee said "clearing a jam can be, but is not
always, strenuous work.” The refereee found the decedent had engaged in "moder
ately strenuous work.” We accept that finding.

®From the record we estimate the period of time from leaving the cab to
sweep, returning and leaving with the pickaroon^ stopping by the foreman’s office
and returning to the cab and sitting down as roughly 20 minutes.
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whether the exertion was a material contributing factor in 
producing. the heart attack. This a question of medical 
causation." 250 Or at 47, · · · 

LEGAL CAU&4TJON 
The rule is that usual exertion on the job is suff i­

cient to establish legal causation. Coday v. H'illamctte Tug 
· & Barge, supra,· Anderson v. SAIF, 5 Or App 580, 585 P2d 
1236 (1971). In Riutta v. Mayflower Farms, Inc., supra, a 
heart case, we said, at p. 281, 

"The claimant may prove legal causation by showing 
that he was exerting himself inn normal and usual way in 
the performance of his job; he need not demonstrate un-
usual stress. (Citntio1;s omit.t'ed.)" . 

In this case, legal causation has been established. Crown 
argues there is.no direct evidence of decedent's activities to 
show exertion nnd that decedent died while quietly sitting. 
We agree there is little direct evidence but find sufficient 
circumstantial evidence to satisfy the burden of proof, viz., 
sweeping, using a pickaroon and ascending and descending 
eight to ten steps all in a brief time interval. The circum­
stantial facts of exertion are more probably true than not. 
Hutcheson v. Weyerhauser, 288 Or 51,602 Pd2d 268 (1979). 

Crown asks us to retreat from our holding in An­
derson v. SAJ~ supra, by ,,,,,hich we overruled Fagaly v. 
SAIF, 3 Or App 270,471 ·P2d 441 (1970), which had adopted 
the personal· risk test in determining legal caus:1tion in 
heart cases.6 Recently, this court reaffirmed its rejection of 

6 Prof. A. Larson suggests the "Personal· Risk Test" in his article, "Th" 'Heart 
Cases' in Workmen's Compensation: An Analysis & Suggested Soluti:.m;" 65 
Mich. L. Rev. 441 (1967). We quote: 

"[T]he causation issue can be solved by invoking the distinction which 
exists in compensation law between neutral-risk situations (where there is no 
obvious personal or employment element contributing to the risk) and pcrso11-
nl-risk silu,1tio11s (where a personal risk contributes to tlw i11jury, ,1lthough 
perhaps in a relatively small degree). ' • ' 

"In heart cases, the effect of applying this distinction betw,:,en neutral­
risk and personal-risk situations would be clear. If there is some personal 
causal contribution in the form of a previously weakened or diseased heart, a 
heart.attack would be compensable only if the employment contribtion takes 
the form of an exertion greater than .. that of nonemployment life. Note that 
the comparison is not with this employee's usual exertion in his employment, 
but rather with the exertions present in the nonnal nonemploymcnt life of 
this or any other person: * * *'" 
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whether the exertion w’as a material contributing factor in
producing the heart attack. This a question of medical
causation.” 250 Or at 47.

LEGAL CAUSATION
The rule is that usual exertion on the job is suffi

cient to establish legal causation. Coday v. Willamette Tug
& Barge, supra; Anderson v. SAIF, 5 Or App 580, 585 P2d
1236 (1971). In Riutta v. Mayflower Farms, Inc., supra, a
heart case, we said, at p. 281,

"The claimant may prove legal causation by showing
that he was exerting himself in a normal and usual way in
the performance of his job; he need not demonstrate un
usual stress. ( itations omitted.)”

In this case, legal causation has been established.  rown
argues there is.no direct evidence of decedent’s activities to
show exertion and that decedent died while quietly sitting.
We agree there is little direct evidence but find sufficient
circumstantial evidence to satisfy the burden of proof, viz.,
sweeping, using a pickaroon and ascending and descending
eight to ten steps all in a brief time interval. The circum
stantial facts of exertion are more probably true than not.
Hutcheson v. Weyerhauser, 288 Or 51, 602 Pd2d 268 (1979).

 rown asks us to retreat from our holding in An
derson V. SAIF, supra, by which we overruled Fagaly v,
SAIF, 3 OrApp 270, 471 P2d 441 (1970), which had adopted
the personal risk test in determining legal causation in
heart cases.® Recently, this court reaffirmed its rejection of

Prof. A. Larson suggests the "Personal Risk Test" in his article, "The 'Heart
’ Anulysls & Suggested Solution,” 65 ases’ in Workmen’s  ompensation

Mich. L. Rev, 441 (1967). We quote

"[T]he causation issue can be solved by invoking the distinction which
exists in compensation law between neutral-risk situations (where there is no
obvious personal or employment element contributing to the risk) and person
al-risk situations (where a personal risk contributes to the injur>', although
perhaps in a relatively small degree). *

"In heart cases, the effect of applying this distinction between neutral
risk and personal-risk situations would be clear. If there is some personal
causal contribution in the form of a previously weakened or diseased heart, a
heart,attack would be compensable only if the employment contribtion takes
the form of an exertion greater than .that of nonemployment life. Note that
the comparison is not with this employee’s usual c.xertion in his employment,
but rather with the exertions present in the normal nonemployment life of
this or any other person; * * *‘‘

m
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Carter v. Crown Zellerbach Corp. 

that test in Williams·v. Burns Int'! Security, 36 Or App 769, 
585 P2d 734 (1978). We agree with Crown that the Oregon 
Supreme Court has neithe1; rejected nor accepted the doc• 
trine. We decline to further refine the law on.legal causa• · 
tion until we are satisfied that such a ref inenient would, in 
fact, be an iniprovement and of assistance in determining 
causation. 7 

MEDICAL CAU9ATION 
Having found legal causation, ,ve turn to the ques­

tion of whether the exertion was a material contributing 
factor· in ca.using heart failure and death. Coday ·v. Wil-
lamette Tug & Barge, supra. · · 

The death _certificate reports the immcdiotc cause 
of death as, "acute myocardial infarct," ns a consequence of 
"ten years" of "athcrosclerotic heart disease.'' A subsequent 
autopsy report states, "death was due to acute myocardial 
failure secondary · to the severe coronary atherosclerosis 
{with) acute plaque hemorrhage." 

Decedent did not have an enviable medical history. 
He had diabetes rnellittis for ten years or more; in 1969 he 
suffered a myocardial infarction; he had·occasional angina 
attacks, atherosclerotic heart disease and hypertension. He 
was. overweight and was described as being obese. Daily 
medication was taken for the diabetes and hypertension. 
He carried nitroglycerin for angina but took it infrequent• 
ly. Two doctors described the decedent as having cardiovas-
cular "risk factors." · · 

Medical causation must be established by medical 
experts. Ji'oley u. SAIF, 29 Or App 151, 562 P2d 593 (1977). 
There was medical evidence from three physicans. Charles 
M. Grossman, M. D., testified at the hearing for the ciaim• 
ant. Gene ·Smith, M. D., ~nd Wayne R. Rogers, M. D., 
presented letter opinions at the request of Crown. Dr. 
Grossman's testimony supported causation. The opinions of 
the other doctors did not. We have· to determine which 
medical hypothesis is most persuasive. 

7 We note that this court has not fomclosed consideration of the degree of 
exertion in non-employment life when considering medical causation. See Wil• 
Iiams 1,1," Burns Inf'/ Security, supra, and Scharlner 1,1, Roseburg Lumber Co., 20 Or 
App l, 3, 530 P2d 545 (1975). . 
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that test in V/illiams v. Burns Int’l Security, 36 OrApp 769,
585 P2d 734 (1978). We agree with  rown that the Oregon
Supreme  ourt has neither rejected nor accepted the doc
trine. We decline to further refine the law on.legal causa
tion until we are satisfied that such a refinement would, in
fact, be an improvement and of assistance in determining
causation.^

MEDICAL CAUSATION
Having found legal causation, we turn to the ques

tion of whether the exertion was a material contributing
factor in causing heart failure and death. Coday v. Wil
lamette Tug & Barge, supra.

The death certificate reports the immediate cause
of death as, "acute myocardial infarct," as a consequence of
"ten years” of "atherosclerotic heart disease." A subsequent
autopsy report states, "death was due to acute myocardial
failure secondary to the severe coronary atherosclerosis
(with) acute plaque hemorrhage.”

Decedent did not have an enviable medical history.
He had diabetes mellitiis for ten years or more; in 1969 he
suffered a myocardial infarction; he had occasional angina
attacks, atherosclerotic heart disease and hypertension. He
was. overweight and was described as being obese. Daily
medication was taken for the diabetes and hypertension.
He carried nitroglycerin for angina but took it infrequent
ly. Two doctors described the decedent as having cardiovas
cular "risk factors.”

%

Medical causation must be established by medical
experts. Foley v. SAIF, 29 Or App 151, 562 P2d 593 (1977).
There was medical evidence from three physicans.  harles
M.  Jrossman, M. D., testified at the hearing for the claim
ant. Gene Smith, M. D., and Wayne R. Rogers, M. D.,
presented letter opinions at the request of  rown. Dr.
Grossman’s testimony supported causation. The opinions of
the other doctors did not. We have to determine which
medical hypothesis is most persuasive.

’We note that this court has not foreclosed consideration of the degree of
exertion in non-employment life when considering medical causation. See Wil
liams V. Burns Intl Security, supra, and Schartner v. BoseburgLumberCo., 20 Or
App 1. 3. 530 P2d 5-15 (1975).
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Dr. Grossman is an internist. Part cf his privat-2 
practice involves cardiology. About half of his time is 
devoted to research. He had not treated or examined the 
decedent and based his opinion on decedent's medical his­
tory and the facts we have summarized. Essentially, the 
doctor's testimony was to the effect that it was medically 
probable that the exertion at work was the material pre­
cipitating cause of the heart failure, albeit, the decedent 
was vulnerable because of atherosclerotic heart disease and 
other diseases .. 

Dr. Grossman's explanation of. the factors leading 
to decedent's heur~ failure, i.e. a myocardial failure, and 
their relationship to the physical exertion was persuasive. 
The referee found Dr. Grossman to be "a very credibilc 
witness." 

On the other hnnd, Dr. Rogers, a cardiologist, 
wrote, in part: 

"My opinion, based on the above information, is that he 
had nnturally progressive coronary disease based on mul­
tiple severe risk factors that culminated in triple vessel 

· stenoscs and then, for an undetermined reason, developed 
a hemorrhage into a plaque in the right coronary artery· 
that led to sudden death. I see no causative or aggravating 
relationship between his work and this death, as the 
mechanism of plaque hemorrhage is unknown." 

nr: Rogers, like Dr. Grossman, had not treated or examined 
the decedent. Dr. Rogers based his opinion on the relevant 
·medical records and an inclusive •sritten description sup­
pli_ed by Crown of decedent's personal history and his 
activities at work on the day of his .death.8 

Dr. Roger's description of the cause of death, i. e., 
the hemorrhage of an artery, is consistent with Dr. Gross­
man's opinion. However, Dr. Roger's report, although re­
cognizing- that the decedent \vas working "normally" does 
not clearly indicate that Dr. Rogers appreciated the fact 
that decedent had exerted himself in carrying out his job. 
The referee articulated his finding, with which we agree, as 
follows: 

,,. We are limited to an analysis of both Dr. Rngers and Dr. Smiths n.•port.s, 

without the benefit of direct or cross-examination. 
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Dr. Grossman is an internist. Part of his private
practice involves cardiology. About half of his time is
devoted to research. He had not treated or examined the
decedent and based his opinion on decedent’s medical his
tory and the facts we have summarized. Essentially, the
doctor’s testimony was to the effect that it was medically
probable that the exertion at work was the material pre
cipitating cause of the heart failure, albeit, the decedent
was vulnerable because of atherosclerotic heart disease and
other diseases.

Dr. Grossman’s explanation of. the factors leading
to decedent’s heart failure, i.c. a myocardial failure, and
their relationship to the physical exertion was persuasive.
The referee found Dr. Grossman to be "a very credibilc
witness.”

On the other hand. Dr. Rogers, a cardiologist,
wrote, in part:

"My opinion, based on the above information, i.s that he
had naturally progressive coronary disease based on mul
tiple severe risk factors that culminated in triple vessel
stenoses and then, for an undetermined reason, developed
a hemorrhage into a plaque in the right coronary artery
that led to sudden death. I see no causative or aggravating
relationship between his work and this death, as the
mechanism of plaque hemorrhage is unknown.”

Dr. Rogers, like Dr. Grossman, had not treated or examined
the decedent. Dr. Rogers based his opinion on the relevant
medical records and an inclusive written description sup
plied by  rown of decedent’s personal history and his
activities at work on the day of his death.®

Dr. Roger’s description of the cause of death, i. e.,
the hemorrhage of an artery, is consistent with Dr. Gross
man’s opinion. However, Dr. Roger’s report, although re
cognizing that the decedent was working "normally” does
not clearly indicate that Dr. Rogers appreciated the fact
that decedent had exerted himself in carrying out his job.
The referee articulated his finding, with which we agree, as
follows:

'^We are limited to an analysis of both Dr. Rogers and Dr, Smiths reports,
withoxit the benefit of direct or cross-examination.

#
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Although not stated directly l;,y Dr. Rogers, ! conclude 
that ·he did not pe,rceive that exertion preceded the deced­
ent's collapse. As to the hemorrhage that "Led to .sudden 
death", I was per!Suaded by Dr: Grossman's explanation of 
its "mechanism." · 

Gene Smith, M. D., had been decedent's doctor 
since 1969. Qr. Smith signed the death certificate, describ­
ing the immediate cause of death as "myocardial infarct." 
The autopsy report, D.r. Grossman, and apparently Dr. 
Rogers, describe death due to myocardial failure. Dr. Smith 
refers to _a myocardial infarct again in ·his written opinion 
of ApriJ 26, 1979.9 Dr. Smith discounted any exertion when 
he wrote: · · · · 

"'!' ~ ,.. such stresses ~s exertion * * "' seem to be abs_ent. 
Therefore, ·I feel his myocardial infarction was n result of 
the natural progression ef his [athcrosclemti"c "twartJ dis~ 
ease an~ it just happenc~ that hi~ dcuth occurred at work." 

We conclude, as did the referee, that claimant has 
established legal and medical causation and hence compen­
sability .by a preponderence of the evidence. 

Reversed . 

. ROBERTS, J., dissenting. 

I dissent. I would af firrn the. Boar~. 

9 There is little evidence in the record to support Dr. Smith's opinion thnt 
death was due to a myocardial infarction. All three physicians had the autopsy 
report for review prior to expres.c;ing·their opinions. The autopsy report.t.-d was 
prepared aft.ea the death certificate but before Dr. Smith's written opinion 
describing death due to a myocardial infarction. Dr. Grossman"s testimony clearly 
makes a•distinction between the two dingnoscs. Although not stated directly, we 
Clonclude that Or. Roger's report was premised on 11 death caused by myocardial 
failure. · 
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Although not stated directly by Dr. Rogers, I conclude
that he did not perceive that exertion preceded the deced
ent’s collapse. As to the hemorrhage that "Led to.sudden
death”, I was persuaded by Dr. Grossman’s explanation of 
its "mechanism.”

Gene Smith, M. D., had been decedent’s doctor
since 1969. Dr. Smith signed the death certificate, describ
ing the immediate cause of death as "myocardial infarct.”
The autopsy report. Dr. Grossman, and apparently Dr.
Rogers, describe death due to myocardial failure. Dr. Smith
refers to a myocardial infarct again in his written opinion
of April 26, 1979.^ Dr. Smith discounted any exertion when
he wrote:

* * such stresses as exertion *■ * '* seem to be absent.
Therefore, I feel his myocardial infarction was a result of 
the natural progression of his [atherosclerotic heart] dis
ease and it just happened that his death occurred at work.”

We conclude, as did tlie referee, that claimant has
established legal and medical causation and hence compen
sability by a preponderence of the evidence.

Reversed.

ROBERTS, J., dissenting.

I dissent. I would affirm the Board.

is evidence in the record to support Dr. Smith's opinion that
death was due to a myocardial infarction. All three physicians had the autopsy
report for review prior to expressing their opinions. The autopsy repoitcd was
prejjared ofteo the death certificate but before Dr. Smith's \vritton opinion
describing death due to a myocardial infarction. Dr. Grossman’s testimony clearly
makes a distinction between the two diag7iose.s. Although not stated directly, we
 onclude that Dr. Roger's report was premised on a death caused by myocardial
failure.
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262 May 18, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF' THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
_ Robert DeGraff, Claimant. 

J. C. COMPTON COfvlPANY, 
Petitioner, 

v. 
DeGRAFF, et al, 

Respondents. 
(WCB No. 78-7405 & 78-9173, CA 19196)-

317 

Juclicinl review from Worker's Compensation Board. 

· Argued and submitted Mure~ 11, 1981. 

David 0. Horne, Beaverton, -argued the cause and filed 
the brief for petitioner. · · 

Rolf T. Olson, Salem, argued the cause for respondent 
Robert DeGraff. With him on the brief was Olson, Hittle, 
_Gurdner & Evans, Salem. 

Darrell E_. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem, argued the cause· for 
respondent State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation. 
With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney, General Coun­
sel, and James A. Blevins, Chief Trial Counsel, Salem. 

' ' 

Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and 
Young, Judges. _ · 

ROBERTS, J. 

Affirmed in part; reversed in part. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Robert DeGraff,  laimant.
J.  .  OMPTON  OMPANY,

Petitioner,
V.

DeGRAFF, et al,
Respondents.

(W B No. 78-7405 & 78-9173,  A 19196)

Judicial review from Worker’s  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted March 11, 1981.

David O. Home, Beaverton, argued the cause and filed
the brief for petitioner.

Rolf T. Olson, Salem, argued the cause for respondent
Robert DeGraff. With him on the brief was Olson, Hittle,
Gardner & Evans, Salem.

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident
Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem, argued the cause for
respondent State Accident Insurance Fund  orporation.
With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney, General  oun
sel, and James A. Blevins,  hief Trial  ounsel, Salem.

Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and
Young, Judges.

ROBERTS, J.

Affirmed in part; reversed in part.
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ROBERTS, J. 

Th~ first issue in this appeal ·from the \Vorkers' 
Compensation Board is whether claimant's injury is com~ · 
pensable as an aggravation, as the referee found, or as a 
new injury, as the Board found. The resolution of that 
question determines which of two insurers; SAIF or Em­
ployers' Mutual of Wausau ("Wausau"), is the responsible 
carrier. 

Claimant first injured his back .in 1975 and as a 
result underwent a lumbar laminectomy. His claim was 
closed in 1976 with an unscheduled disability award of 10 
percent for injury to his low back. In 1976 he was awarded 
an additional lO percent by stipulation. The 'rollO\ving 
additional facts urc taken from the referee's opinion. 

"The claimant rctume<l to work in June of-l!J7G for J. 
C. Compton Co. working continuously for that employer 
until August 4, 1978_. During this period, the claimant was 
doing general road construction work which included the 
operation of vorious types of rood building related machin­
ery, trucks and equipment. This type of work is generally 
considered as moderate to severe physical labor. 

"B.etwcen June of 1~76 and July of 1978, the cla,imant 
did not receive any medical treatment, did not take any 
medication; to speak of, for pain in his back and worked 
without any significari.t loss of time _due fo his 1Q75 back 
injury and resulting operation. · ; · 

''.Some time in the beginning of July of 1978, claimant 
was required, as part of his job with J. C'. Compton Co., to 
shovel asphalt out of the back of a truck having to lift it 
over the side of the truck_ at approximately· shoulder 
height. During this event, claimant noted more significant 
pain in his lower back and left hip but continued working 
for that employer until August 4, 1978." . 

Whether claimant suffered an aggravation or new 
.injury is determined by the medical evidence, but medical 
evidence ofttimes is in terms susceptil?le of either iritcrpre·" 
tation, at least to the parties involved. That is the case 
here. · 

There were four doctors involved in the examina­
ti.on, evaluation and treatment of claimant. However, only 
Dr. Coletti, an ·orthopedic surgeon who examined claimant 

. for the purpose of evaluation, expressed clearly that in his 
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ROBERTS, J.

The first issue in this appeal from the Workers’
 ompensation Board is whether claimant’s injury is com
pensable as an aggravation, as the referee found, or as a
new injury, as the Board found. The resolution of that
question determines which of two insurers^ SAIF or Em
ployers’ Mutual of Wausau ("Wausau”), is the responsible
carrier.

 laimant first injured his back.in 1975 and as a
result underwent a lumbar laminectomy. His claim was
closed in 1976 with an unscheduled disability award of 10
percent for injury to his low back. In 1976 he was awarded
an additional 10 percent by stipulation. The following
additional facts lire taken from the referee’s opinion.

"The claimant retunied to work in June of 197G for J.
 .  ompton  o. working continuously for that employer
until August 4, 1978. During this period, the claimant was
doing general road construction work which included the
operation of various tjqjes of road building relatedmachin
ery, trucks and equipment. This tjq>e of work is generally
considered as moderate to severe physical labor.

"Between June of 1976 and July of 1978, the claimant
did not receive any medical treatment, did not take any
medication, to speak of, for pain in his back and worked
without any significant loss of time due to his 1975 back
injury and resulting operation.

"Some time in the beginning of July of 1978, claimant
was required, as part of his job with J.  .  ompton  o., to
shovel asphalt out of the back of a truck having to lift it
over the side of the truck, at approximately shoulder
height. During this event, claimant notedmore significant
pain in his lower back and left hip but continued working
for that employer until August 4, 1978.”

Whether claimant suffered an aggravation or new
injury is determined by the medical evidence, but medical
evidence ofttimes is in terms susceptible of either interpre
tation, at least to the parties involved. That is the case
here.

There were four doctors involved in the examina
tion, evaluation and treatment of claimant. However, only
Dr.  oletti, an orthopedic surgeon who examined claimant
for the purpose of evaluation, expressed clearly that in his
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J. C. Compton Co. v. DeGraff 

opinion "this is [claimant's] second injury, unrelated to the 
first, for its symptoms and location are completely different 
an~ the patient had a two year period in which he had no 
medical care for the previous problem." The statements of 
Dr. Fax, Dr. McKillop and Dr. Pasquesi are susceptible of 
either interpretation, and each party relies on certain parts 
of the doctors' statements as support for. their respective 
positions. · 

Dr. Fax performed the operation on claimant in 
1975, and claimant went first to Dr. Fax with his more 
recent physical problem. Dr. Fax reported in the "off-work 
slip" that claimant "will be off work for at least two we·eks 
due to flare-up of back probler:1." However, in the initial 
report of the injury, Dr. Fax diagnosed claimant's condition 
as "[d]egenerative disc disease with new injury to back." 
Dr. Fax also noted that the "pain this time is in his left leg 
rather than the right leg." In his·report dated October 26, 
1978, Dr. Fax recognized that "[t]here is apparently a 
question as to whether [claimant's) present difficulty is due 
to an aggravation of his previous -low back injury * * * or 
whether his present difficulty is due to a new injury***." 
He then concluded that "no new injury occurred * * *. It 
would be my opinion that his present symptoms are due to a 
recurrence or aggravation of the previous problem dating 
back to his injury in 1975." However SAIF sent a memoran­
dum to Dr. Fax on February 27, 1979, with the message, 
"We have received Dr. Coletti's report on [claimant] and 
are sending you a copy for-your information .. If you do not 
concur with h.i.s findings we would appreciate hearing from 
you." Dr. Fax replied, "I would agree with the physical 
findings and recommendations. I'll leave it up to the insur­
ance companies to decide who is responsible for his 
coverage." · · 

Dr. McKiUop, an orthopedic surgeon, stated clearly 
and unequivocally that claimant's "present symptoms are 
due to a recurrence or aggravation of the previous problem" 
and that there is no indication "that a new and separate 
process has developed." However, Dr. McKillop had noted 
in his "chart notes" that claimant had had "good relief of 
symptoms" from:his 1975 operation and that he had a 
"recent acute sprain to the lumbo sacral spine." · 
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opinion "this is [claimant’s] second injury, unrelated to the
first, for its symptoms and location are completely different
and the patient had a two year period in which he had no
medical care for the previous problem.” The statements of
Dr. Fax, Dr. McKillop and Dr. Pasquesi are susceptible of
either interpretation, and each party relies on certain parts
of the doctors’ statements as support for .their respective
positions.

Dr. Fax performed the operation on claimant in
1975, and claimant went first to Dr. Fax with his more
recent physical problem. Dr. Fax reported in the ”off-work
slip” that claimant "will be off work for at least two weeks
due to flarc-up of back problem.” However, in the initial
report of the injury, Dr. Fax diagnosed claimant’s condition
as "[djegenerative disc disease with new injury to back.”
Dr. Fax also noted that the "pain this time is in his left leg
rather than the right leg.” In his report dated October 26,
1978, Dr. Fax recognized that "[tjhere is apparently a
question as to whether [claimant’s] present difficulty is due
to an aggravation of his previous low back injury * * * or
whether his present difficulty is due to a new injury * *
He then concluded that "no new injury occurred * * *. It
would be my opinion that his present symptoms are due to a
recurrence or aggravation of the previous problem dating
back to his injury in 1975.” However SAIF sent a memoran
dum to Dr. Fax on February 27, 1979, with the message,
"We have received Dr.  oletti’s report on [claimant] and
are sending you a copy for your information. If you do not
concur with his findings we would appreciate hearing from
you.” Dr. Fax replied, "I would agree with the physical
findings and recommendations. I’ll leave it up to the insur
ance companies to decide who is responsible for his
coverage.”

Dr. McKillop, an orthopedic surgeon, stated clearly
and unequivocally that claimant’s "present symptoms are
due to a recurrence or aggravation of the previous problem”
and that there is no indication "that a new and separate
process has developed.” However, Dr. McKillop had noted
in his "chart notes” that claimant had had "good relief of
symptoms” from-'his 1975 operation and that he had a
"recent acute sprain to the lumbo sacral spine.”
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Dr. Pasquesi reported, "I believe that the * * * 
shoveling incident was the most proximate cause of the 
patient's need of treatment and lay-off of work, but at the 
· same time, it aggravated a pre-existing condition. It would 
appear that the injury which this patient received*** was 
probably also aggravating an area which had been injured 
on several previous occasions." Dr. Pasquesi also said he 
could only present the medical facts and stated "the legal 
facts, I cannot comment qn." . 

As. the referee's opinion points out, "[t]he medical 
opinions * * * do not help in the •resolution of the issue of 
aggravation versus new injury because they are conflicting 
and contradictory. This is due primarily to the fact that the 
medical definitions of uggravation versus new injury do not 
necessarily fit ·the legal definition as identified in the 
applicable ~aw * * *." With that observation in mind we 
conclude, in our de novo review, that claimant suffered an 
aggravation of his old injury. · 

The various doctors' references to ''new injury," 
"recent acute sprairi," and ''proximate cause" must be taken 
in context with their entire statements. After using these 
terms, three doctors, Dr. Fax, Dr. McKillop and Dr. Pas­
quesi, also stated "no new injury occurred," "no indication 
that a new and separate process has developed," the shovel­
ing "aggravated a pre-existing condition" and that claim­
ant's "present symptoms·are due to a recurrence or aggra­
vation." SAIF argues that Dr. Fax's statement that he 
agreed with Dr. Colletti's "findings and recommendations" 
means that he agrees with Dr. Colletti that claimant suf -
fered a new injury. We do not believe that an agreement on 
what claimant's medical condition is and what his· treat-. . 

ment should be gives any information on whether this is a 
new injury or an aggravation. The statements made by the 
doctors. who said that this was an aggravation ca.rry the 
greater weight and are;thercfore, dispositive of this case. 
We note also that claimant's testimony regarding his ex­
periences after the first injury supports this conciusion} 

1 The referee's opinion summuri~ claimant's testimony as follows: . . . . . 

· "* * * the claimant claims that he had spotty pain in his back of a non­
continuous nature w:ith·which he learned to Jive ns part of his daily activity 
~d job requirements. During this same period, claimant asserts tha~ ·his 
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Dr. Pasquesi reported, '1 believe that the * * * *
shoveling incident was the most proximate cause of the
patient’s need of treatment and lay-off of work, but at the
same time, it aggravated a pre-existing condition. It would
appear that the injury which this patient received * * * was
probably also aggravating an area which had been injured
on several previous occasions.” Dr. Pasquesi also said he
could only present the medical facts and stated ”the legal
facts, I cannot comment on.”

As the referee’s opinion points out, "[t]he medical
opinions * * * do not help in the resolution of the issue of
aggravation versus new injury because they are conflicting
and contradictory. This is due primarily to the fact that the
medical definitions of aggravation versus new injury do not
necessarily fit the legal definition as identified in the
applicable law * * With that ohservation in mind we
conclude, in our de novo review, that claimant suffered an
aggravation of his old injury.

The various doctors’ references to ''new injury,”
"recent acute spraiii,” and "proximate cause” must be taken
in context with their entire statements. After using these
terms, three doctors, Dr. Fax, Dr. McKillop and Dr. Pas
quesi, also stated "no new injury occurred,” "no indication
that a new and separate process has developed,” the shovel
ing "aggravated a pre-existing condition” and that claim
ant’s "present symptoms-are due to a recurrence or aggra
vation.” SAIF argues that Dr. Fax’s statement that he
agreed with Dr.  olletti’s "findings and recommendations”
means that he agrees with Dr.  olletti that claimant suf
fered a new injury. We do not believe that an agreement on
what claimant’s medical condition is and what his treat
ment should be gives any information on whether this is a
new injury or an aggravation. The statements made by the
doctors who said that this was an aggravation carry the
greater weight and are, therefore, dispositive of this case.
We note also that claimant’s testimony regarding his ex
periences after the first injury supports this conclusion.^

^The referee’s opinion summarized claimant's testimony as follows:

* • the claimant claims that he had spotty pain in his back of a non-
continuous nature with which he learned to live as part of his daily activity
£ind job requirements. During this same period, claimant asserts that his
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J. C. Compton Co. v. DeGraff 

We find, therefore, that claimant has suffered an aggrava­
tion of his old injury and reverse the Board's decision. 

Another issue raised in this case is whether a 
disputed claim settlement entered into by Wausau and 
claimant under ORS 656.289(4)2 is valid. It was entered 
into after an order was issued under ORS 656.307 3 desig­
nating one of the insurance companies to be the paying 
agent until the question of new injury or aggravation had 
been resolved. If it is valid, the disposition we make of the 
aggravation/new injury claiµ1 in this case will have the 
effect of claimant receiving payments from both carriers. 
The referee held the settlement was valid, but the Board 
held it to be invalid. We agree with the Board. 

SAIF was designated the paying agent; claimant 
then entered into a disputed claim settlement with 
Wausau. SAIF argued at the he.oring that it was prejudiced 
by the settlement because claimant would be biased as to 
the presentation of his evidence. The referee held the 
settlement valid because he _found that "within the four 
corners of the document itself, sufficient allegations of a 
disputable claim of compensability are present and there is 
a disposition made on a reasonable basis." He concluded, 

activities were restricted specifically in lifting, bending and other types of 
activities which tended to cause pain and irritate the back. Where possible, 
claimant avoided lifting. Claimant alsci asserts that his back gradually 
became worse over this period." 

2 ORS 656.289(4) provides: 

"Nothwithstanding ORS 656.236, in any cnse where there is a bona fide 
dispute over compensubility of a claim, the parties may, with the approval of 
a referee, the board or the court, by agreement make such disposition of the 
claim as is considered reasonable." · 

3 ORS 656.307(l)(b} provides: 

"(1) Where there is an issue regartling: 

"(b) Wh·ich of more than one insurer of a certain employer is responsible 
for payment of compensation to a worker; 

"the director shall, by order, designate who shall pay the claim, if the 
'claim is otherwise compensable. Payments shall begin in any event as 
provided in subsection (4) of ORS 656.262. \Vhen a determination of the 
responsible paying party has been made, the director shall direct any neces­
sary, monct.nry adjustment between the parties involved. Any. failure to 
obtain reimbursement from an insurer or self-insured employer shall be 
recovered from the Administrative Fund.'' 
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We find, therefore, that claimant has suffered an aggrava
tion of his old injury' and reverse the Board’s decision.

Another issue raised in this case is whether a
disputed claim settlement entered into by Wausau and
claimant under ORS 656.289(4)^ is valid. It was entered
into after an order was issued under ORS 656.307^ desig
nating one of the insurance companies to be the paying
agent until the question of new injury or aggravation had
been resolved. If it is valid, the disposition we make of the
aggravation/new injury claim in this case will have the
effect of claimant receiving payments from both carriers.
The referee held the settlement was valid, but the Board
held it to be invalid. We agree with the Board.

SAIF was designated the paying agent; claimant
then entered into a disputed claim settlement with
Wausau. SAIF ai'gued at the hearing Uiat it was prejudiced
by the settlement because claimant would be biased as to
the presentation of his evidence. The referee held the
settlement valid because he found that "within the four
comers of the document itself, sufficient allegations of a
disputable claim of compensability are present and there is
a disposition made on a rea.sonable basis.” He concluded,

activities were restricted specifically in lifting, bending and other types of
activities which tended to cause pain and irritate the back. Where possible,
claimant avoided lifting.  laimant also asserts that his back gradually
became worse over this period."
2 ORS 656.289(4) provides:

"Nothwithstanding ORS 656.236, in any case where there is a bona fide
dispute over compensability of a claim, the parties may, with the approval of
a referee, the board or the court, by agreement make such disposition of the
claim as is considered reasonable."

2 ORS 656.307(l)(b) provides:

"(1) Where there is an issue regarding:

"(b) Which of more than one insurer of a certain employer is responsible
for payment of compensation to a worker;

"the director shall, by order, designate who shall pay the claim, if the
claim is otherwise compensable. Payments shall begin in any event as
provided in subsection (4) of ORS 656.262. VVhen a determination of the
responsible paying party has been made, the director shall direct any neces-
sar>’■monetary adjustment between the parties involved. Any failure to
obtain reimbursement from an insurer or self-insured employer shall be
recovered from the Administrative Fund.”
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however, that it was valid "unless ORS 656.307 contem­
. plates. disputed claim settlements to be void ab initio for 

purposes of adjudicating claims in the context of this sec-
tion." · 

The Board, however, concluded that "to a1low one 
of the carriers to settle its portion of the claim prior to the 
hearing ,vould be unjust," and it then sp.ecifically foun~ 
·tl~at any ·settlements entered into by one · carrier and a 
claimant settling the issue of re.sponsiblity for claimant's 
condition between them, after an order·is issu.ed under ORS 
656:307, is invalid. We agree with the Bom;d that such a 
situation has all the po~ential for creating prejudice.4 · lt 
may also enco~rage ·a claimant to gamble on which insurer 
is responsible in the hope that.he ~ight recover twice ~f he 
is lucky. To hold the settlement valid in this case would 
aJiow claimant to be paid twice· for the same disability. We 
do not believe the lcgi1-Jiaturc intended that result. ·we hold 
that where there is u d1spute as to which ius·ui;cr is respon­
sible for a "Claimant's injury or condition any settlment 
entered'into by one of the insurers and the claimant on the 
issue of responsibility after an order under ORS 656.307 

.has been issued is invalid. 

Affirmed in part; reversed in part. 

4 We have considered SAIF's argument that the settlement itself could haYe 
influenced claimant to be more fayorable to the insurer who had settled, and we 
have kept that in min.:! in weighing claimant's. testimony on tho issue of aggrava­
tion or now injury. 
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however, that it was valid "unless ORS 656.307 contem
plates, disputed claim settlements to be void ab initio for
purposes of adjudicating claims in the context of this sec
tion.”

The Board, however, concluded that "to allow one
of the carriers to settle its portion of the claim prior to the
hearing would be unjust,” and it then specifically found
that any settlements entered into by one carrier and a
claimant settling the issue of responsiblity for claimant’s
condition between them, after an ordcr-is issued under ORS
656.307, is invalid. We agree with the Board that such a
situation has all the potential for creating prejudice.'^ It
may also encourage a claimant to gamble on which insurer
is responsible in the hope that he might recover twice if he
is lucky. To hold the settlement valid in this case would
allow claimant to be paid twice for the same disability. We
do not believe the lcgi.slatuj*c intended that result. We hold
that where there is a dispute as to which insurer is respon
sible for a claimant’s injury or condition any settiment
entered into by one of the insurers and the claimant on the
issue of responsibility after an order under ORS 656.307
-has been issued is invalid.

Affirmed in part; reversed in part.

■* We have considered SAIF’s argument that the settlement itself could have
influenced claimant to be more favorable to the insurer who had settled, and we
have kept that in mind in weighing claimant’s testimony on tho issue of aggrava
tion or new injury.
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279 May 26, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
Nancy Hunt, Claimant, 

HUNT,. 
Petitloner:1 

v. ' 
WHI'ITIER WOOD PRODUCTS, 

Respondent. · 

(WCB No. 78-9233, CA 18599) 

493 

Judicial ~eview from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and submitted December 17, 1980. 

Kennelh D .. Pcterson, Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for 
petitioner. On the brief were Evohl F. Malagon and Mala~ 
gon, Velure & Yates, Eugene. 

David 0. Horne, Beaverton,·argued the cause and filed 
the brief for respondent. 

Before Joseph, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War· 
ren, Judges. · · · 

WARDE_N, J. 

Affirmed. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Nancy Hunt,  laimant,

HUNT,.
Petitioner,

V.
WHITTIER WOOD PRODU TS,

Respondent.
(W B No. 78-9233,  A 18599)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted December 17, 1980.

Kenneth D.,Peterson, Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for
petitioner. On the brief were Evohl F. Malagon and Mala-
gon, Velure & Yates, Eugene.
David O. Home, Beaverton, argued the cause and filed

the brief for respondent.
Before Joseph, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War

ren, Judges.

WARDEN, J.

Affirmed.
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WARDEN, J. 

Claimant appeals the order of the Workers' Com­
pensati~n Board. (Board) denying her. permanent partial 

· disability and requests that we reinstate the order of the 
referee which awarded her 20 ·percent permanent partial 
unscheduled disability. Respondent, Whittier Wood Prod~ 
ucts '(Whittier), accepted the claim and did not deny th~t 
claimant's all~rgic reaction experienced while employed at 
Whittier was a worsening of her condition. Whittier con­
tends that claimant was not permanently disabled, but that 
there was only a temporary worsening of her condition. Tp.e 
issue on appeal, therefore, is whether .claimant ~uffered 
any· permanent disability from her occupational disease. 
Loss of caming capacity is the test for determining the 
extent of permanent parlial m1schedulc<l disability. Surratt 
v. Gunqerson Bros., 259 Or 65, 7.G, 485 P2d 410 (1971). 

Claimant was 38~years old at the time of the hear­
ing and had obtained a GED. She has previously worked as · 
a packer of trailer· "batten," as a packer in- a clothing 
manufacturer's warehouse and as -an upholsterer. 

In 1974, claimant began working for \Vhittier in an 
environment which exposed-her to fumes and wood dust.· 
Ten months later she left this employment aft~r experienc­
ing an inflammation of her right ear due, in large part, to 
inhalation of dust and fumes on her job, according tq Dr. 
Hiatt, one of. her treating physicians, an ear, nose and 
throat specialist .. Claimant also suffered from an attack of 

. chronic bronchitis, which Dr .. Thomashefsky, another treat­
ing physician, concluded· was job related and which im­
proved upqn her departure froni Whittier. Both of claim­
ant's conditions were diagnosed as .. chronic." She ,vastest­
ed for an ·_allergic sensitivity to wood shop dust. The test 
result :was negative. Nearly all· of the doctors who ex-

- amined · or treated claimant agreed that she should not 
return to ·the wood· products industry.· 

At the time of the hearing, cl~imant described her 
remaining physical .problems as follows: · 

· '.'I feel like I have a headache all the time and under my 
eyes it just feels like pressure, and my·ears hurt;I'd say, 
ninety percent of the time -- the one._ * * * The more 
pressure I have under my eyes, it seems like the harder it 
is for me to hear out. of my right ear." . 

m
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WARDEN, J.
 laimant appeals the order of the Workers’  om

pensation Board (Board) denying her, permanent partial
disability and requests that we reinstate the order of the
referee which awarded her 20 percent permanent partial
unscheduled disability. Respondent, Whittier Wood Prod
ucts (Whittier), accepted the claim and did not deny that
claimant’s allergic reaction experienced while employed at
Whhtier was a worsening of her condition. Whittier con
tends that claimant was not permanently disabled, but that
there was only a temporarj^ worsening of her condition. The
issue on appeal, therefore, is whether claimant suffered
any permanent disability from her occupational disease.
Loss of earning capacity is the test for determining the
extent of permanent partial unscheduled di.sability. Surratt
V. Gunderson Bws., 259 Or 65, 76, 485 P2d 410 (1971).

 laimant was 38-years old at the time of the hear
ing and had obtained a GED. She has previously worked as
a packer of trailer "batten,” as a packer in a clothing
manufacturer’s warehouse and as an upholsterer.

In 1974, claimant beganworking for \Vhittier in an
environment which exposed-her to fumes and wood dust.
Ten months later she left this employment after experienc
ing an inflammation of her right ear due, in large part, to
inhalation of dust and fumes on her job, according to Dr.
Hiatt, one of. her treating physicians, an ear, nose and
throat specialist.  laimant also suffered from an attack of
chronic bronchitis, whichDr. Thomashefsky, another treat
ing physician, concluded was job related and which im
proved upon her departure from Whittier. Both of claim
ant’s conditions were diagnosed as "chronic.” She was test
ed for an allergic sensitivity to wood shop dust. The test
result was negative. Nearly all of the doctors who ex
amined or treated claimant agreed that she should not
return to the wood products industry.'

At the time of the hearing, claimant described her
remaining physical -problems as follows:

feel like I have a headache all the time and under my
. eyes it just feels like pressure, and my ears hurt, I’d say,
ninety percent of the time the one. * * * The more
pressure I have under my eyes, it seems like the harder it
is for me to hear out of my right ear.”
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Hunt v. \Vhittier Wood Products 

It was revealed at the hearing that claimant had not been 
· truthful about her previous medical history. Contrary to 
her representations, she had experienced hearing and 
bronchial difficulties for many years prior ·to her employ­
ment by Whittier. 

As to claimant's continuing disability, Dr. Hiatt 
stated in a report dated December 14, 1976: 

"He . [sic] fluctuations in hearing have never been of 
such severity as to prevent employment in any area free of 
strong industrial fumes." 

On July 19, 1977, Dr. Hiatt reported: 
"I do not feel that Mrs. Hunt is disabled as far as 

working or continuing in the rehabilitation program. * * * · 
There is· no evidence of disability because of these prob-
· 1e1ns." 

He felt that her "occasional nasal congestion * * * is due to 
vasomotor rhinitis not related to her job * * * ." 

Dr. Tuhy, a specialist in treatment of diseases of 
the lungs, examined claimant and reported on October 3, 
1978: 

"I agree with the Workmen's Compensation Depart­
ment that she did not suffer any permanent partial dis­
ability as a result of wood dust exposure (except the medic­
al advice that she stay out of the wood products industry, 
and seek other employment)." 

On October 26, 1978, when asked by Whittier's insurance 
carrier whether any permanent impairment would. result 
"from this ~njury," Dr. Hiatt answered, "no." 

None of the doctors who treated or examined claim­
ant expressed an opinion that she suffered permanent 
disability from the exacerbation of her ear and respiratory 
ailments while working at Whittier. The record discloses 
that in 1979 she took a job at another· wood products mill 
and again had an exacerbation of her prior problems. We 
agree with the Board that claimant has failed to prove 
anything more than a temporary worsening of her chronic 
medical problems when exposed to particular irritants. She 
has·not demonstrated a loss of earning capacity caused by 
the need to avoid. that exposure. and, therefore, is not 
entitled to an award for permanent partial disability. 

Affirmed. 
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It was revealed at the hearing that claimant had not been
truthful about her previous medical history.  ontrary to
her representations, she had experienced hearing and
bronchial difficulties for many years prior to her employ
ment by Whittier.

As to claimant’s continuing disability, Dr. Hiatt
stated in a report dated December 14, 1976:

"He [sic] fluctuations in hearing have never been of 
such severity as to prevent employment in any area free of 
strong industrial fumes.”

On July 19, 1977, Dr. Hiatt reported:
"I do not feel that Mrs. Hunt is disabled as far as

working or continuing in the rehabilitation program. * * *
There is no evidence of disability because of these prob
lems.”

He felt that her "occasional nasal congestion * * * is due to
vasomotor rhinitis not related to her job * * * .”

Dr. Tuhy, a specialist in treatment of diseases of
the lungs, examined claimant and reported on October 3,
1978:

"I agree with the Workmen’s  ompensation Depart
ment that she did not suffer any permanent partial dis
ability as a result of wood dust exposure (except themedic
al advice that she stay out of the wood products industry,
and seek other employment).”

On October 26, 1978, when asked by Whittier’s insurance
carrier whether any permanent impairment would result
"from this injury,” Dr. Hiatt answered, "no.”

None of the doctors who treated or examined claim
ant expressed an opinion that she suffered permanent
disability from the exacerbation of her ear and respiratory
ailments while working at Whittier. The record discloses
that in 1979. she took a job at another wood products mill
and again had an exacerbation of her prior problems. We
agree with the Board that claimant has failed to prove
anything more than a temporary worsening of her chronic
medical problems when exposed to particular irritants. She
has not demonstrated a loss of earning capacity caused by
the need to avoid that exposure and, therefore, is not
entitled to an award for permanent partial disability.

Affirmed.
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May 26, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

CODY,_ 
Appellant, 

V. 

DISCO, INC., 
. Respondent. 

(No. 36-960, CA 17296) 

Appeal from ~fr~uit Co~rt, Washington County. 

Hollie Pihi, Judge. 

Argued and SU;bmiited March 6, 1981. 

543 

· Barbee B. Lyon, Portland, argued the cause for appel­
lant. With him on ~he briefs· were John E. Frohnmaycr, and 
_Tonkon, Torp,_ Galen, ·Marmaduke & Booth, Portland. 

Mildred J. Carmack', Portland, argued the cause for 
respondent. With her on the brief were Wayl}e A. William­
son, and Schawbe, Williamson, Wyatt, Moore . & Roberts, 
Portland.· · 

Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 
Van Hoomiss~n, Judges. . · · · · · · · 

VAN !100MISSEN, J. Reversed and remanded. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

m

m

.  ODY,.
Appellant,

u. ■
DIS O, IN .,
Respondent.

(No. 36 960,  A 17296)
Appeal from  ircuit  ourt, Washington  ounty.

Hollie Pihl, Judge.

Argued and subrniited March 6, 1981.
Barbee B. Lyon, Portland, argued the cause for appel

lant. With him on the briefs were John E. Frohnmayer, and
Tohkon, Torp, Galen, Marmaduke & Booth, Portland.

Mildred J.  armack, Portland, argued the cause for
respondent. With her on the brief were Wayne A. William
son, and Schawbe, Williamson, Wyatt, Moore & Roberts,
Portland.
Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and

Van Hoomissen, Judges.
VAN HOOMISSEN, J. Reversed and remanded.
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· VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 
. This is an action for negligence brought by a Cali-

fornia worker against an Oregon employer. The trial court 
dismissed plaintiff's complaint on the ground that plain­
tiff's action was barred by Oregon's Workers' Compensa-
tion Law. Plaintiff appeals. . 

The facts are not in dispute. In 1974, plaintiff, a 

truck driver, was hauling sugar out of San Jose, California, 
for Refrigerated Transport Co., Inc. (RTC), :.1 Georgia corpo­
ration doing business in California. The sugar was pack­
aged in twenty-five pound bags which were stacked on 
pallets. Each loaded pallet weighed approximately 2750 
poun<ls. Plaintiff was directed to deliver about one-fourth 
of his load to defendant's store in Beaverton, Oregon. 
Plaintiff hnd. never made a delivery to defendant 1:iefore. 
When he aITivcd at defendant's store, he was told by 
defendant's employee where to unload. Plaintiff's contract 
made him responsible for unloading. Defendant's employ­
ees were not required to assist in the unloading, but only to 
verify the delivery. · · · 

One of defendant's employees volunteered to help 
plaintiff unload. That employee fetched a piece of metal to 
make a bridge between the loading dock and the truck 
trailer and brought out a pallet jack which truckers fre­
quently use while unloading. As defendant's employee be­
gan jacking up the first pallet, orie of the pallet boards 
broke. The pallet was jacked up again and plaintiff and 
defendant's employee both were working to move it \vhen 
the load became stuck on a splinter of wood from the 
broken board. As plaintiff attempted to remove the splint­
er, the load shifted and some of the bags of sugar fell on 
plaintiff, injuring his back. · 

Plaintiff is covered by California workers' compen­
sation, and he has received benefits from that source. 
Plaintiff brought this action against defendant as a third 
party whose negligence he alleged caused his injuries. In 

· the trial court defendant argued that plaintiff was not 
e'ntitled to bring this action, citing ORS 656.154(1),1 which 
provides: · 

l This defense wag abolished by Or Laws, 1976, Ch 152, effective July 1, 1975. 
The amendment is not retroactive to injuries which occurred prior to the effective 
date of repeal. Cole v. Zidell E:rploralions, Inc., 275 Or 317, 550 P2~ 1194 (1~76). 
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J.
This is an action for negligence brought by a  ali

fornia worker against an Oregon employer. The trial court
dismissed plaintiff’s complaint on the ground that plain
tiff’s action was barred by Oregon’s Workers’  ompensa
tion Law. Plaintiff appeals.

The facts are not in dispute. In 1974, plaintiff, a

truck driver, was hauling sugar out of San Jose,  alifornia,
for Refrigerated Transport  o., Inc. (RT ), a Georgia corpo
ration doing business in  alifornia. The sugar was pack
aged in twenty-five pound bags which were stacked on
pallets. Each loaded pallet weighed, approximately 2750
pounds. Plaintiff was directed to deliver about one-fourth
of his load to defendant’s store in Beaverton, Oregon.
Plaintiff had never made a delivery to defendant before.
When he aiTivcd at defendant’s store, he was told by
defendant’s employee where to unload. Plaintiff’s contract
made him responsible for unloading. Defendant’s employ
ees were not required to assist in the unloading, but only to
verify the delivery.

One of defendant’s employees volunteered to help
plaintiff unload. That employee fetched a piece of metal to
make a bridge between the loading dock and the truck
trailer and brought out a pallet jack which truckers fre
quently use while unloading. As defendant’s employee be
gan jacking up the first pallet, one of the pallet boards
broke. The pallet was jacked up again and plaintiff and
defendant’s employee both were working to move it when
the load became stuck on a splinter of wood from the
broken board. As plaintiff attempted to remove the splint
er, the load shifted and some of the bags of sugar fell on
plaintiff, injuring his back.

Plaintiff is covered by  alifornia workers’ compen
sation, and he has received benefits from that source.
Plaintiff brought this action against defendant as a third
party whose negligence he alleged caused his injuries. In
the trial court defendant argued that plaintiff was not
entitled to bring this action, citing ORS 656.154(1),^ which
provides:

^ This defense was abolished by Or Laws, 1976,  h 152, effective July 1,1975.
The amendment is not retroactive to injuries which occurred prior to the effective
date of repeal. Cole v. ZidellExplorations, Inc., 275 Or 317, 550 P2d 1194 (1976).
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546 Cody v. Disco 

"If the injury to a workman is due to the negligence or· 
wrong of a third person not in the same employ, the injured 
workman, or if death results from the injury, his widow,. 
children or other dependents, as the case may be, may elect 
to seek a remedy ·against such third person. However,' n9 
action shall be brought against any such third person if he : . 
or his workman causing the injury was, at the time of th~ · . 
injury, on premises over wliich he had joint supervision . 
and control with the employer of the injured workman and : . 
was an employer subject to ~>RS 656.001 and. 656.794." 

Plaintiff contends that the defense of joint supcrvi~ 
sion and control is not' available here because his California 
employer was not covered by Oregon's workers' compensa~ 
tion law. He contends further. that, even if the _defense is 
available, it. does not apply because he was engaged in a 
"pickup or delivery." ORS 656.154(3) provides: 

"No person engaged in pickup or delivery of any goods, 
wares or ·merchandise to or from the premises of any. 
employer other than his own shall be deemed to have joint 
supe1·vision or control over the premises of a third party 
employer." . · · ' 

Assuming arguendo the "joint supervisio'n and con­
trol" provision of ORS 656.154(1) would otherwise apply 
here, it would clearly be inapplicable if plaintiff was·"e·n­
gaged in pickup or delivery" within the· meaning of ORS 
656.154(3). 

On its face, ORS 656.154(3) would appear to apply 
to the· activity in which plaintiff was engaged at def end­
ant's ·store at the time of his'injury. However, the Supreme 
Court has interpreted. ORS 656.154(3) to e?'clude much 
activity which would.appear to -a layman to be··"pickup or 
delivery." · ·· · · · 

In Boling u. Nork, 232 Or 461, 375 P2d 548 (1962), 
· the Supreme Court determined the legislature did not 
. interid the pickup and delivery exception · 

"* *. * to apply to operations such as lo~ding logs, . 
unloading logs, and like.activities which ordinarily require 
the massing of men and machinery for such purposes." 232 
Or at 465. · 

The court. applied this "massiYlg of men and machinery" 
analysis in Childers u. Schaecher Lbr. Co., 234 Or 230, 380 
P2d 993 (1963)(logging operations); Gorham v. Swanson, 
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"If the injury to a workman is due to the negligence or
wrong of a third person not in the same employ, the injured
workman, or if death results from the injury, his widow,
children or other dependents, as the case may be, may elect
to seek a remedy against such third person. However, no ■
action shall be brought against any such third person if he : .
or his workman causing the injury was, at the time of the '.
injury, on premises over which he had joint supervision
and control with the employer of the injuredworkman and
was an employer subject to ORS 656.001 and 656.794.”

Plaintiff contends that the defense of joint supervi
sion and control is not available here because his  alifornia
employer was not covered by Oregon’s workers’ compensa
tion law. He contends further, that, even if the,defense is
available, it does not apply because he was engaged in a
"pickup or delivery.” ORS 656.154(3) provides:

"No person engaged in pickup or delivery of any goods, 
wares or merchandise to or from the premises of any
employer other than his own shall be deemed to have joint
supervision or control over the premises of a third party
employer.”

Assuming arguendo the "joint supervision and con
trol” provision of ORS 656.154(1) would otherwise apply
here, it would clearly be inapplicable if plaintiff was "en
gaged in pickup or delivery” within the meaning of ORS
656.154(3). ■

On its face, ORS 656.154(3) would appear to apply
to the activity in which plaintiff was engaged at defend
ant’s store at the time of his injury. However, the Supreme
 ourt has interpreted ORS 656.154(3) to exclude much
activity which would appear to a layman to be "pickup or
delivery.”

In Boling u. Nork, 232 Or 461, 375 P2d 548 (1962),
the Supreme  ourt determined the legislature did not
intend the pickup and delivery exception

"* * * to apply to operations such as loading logs,
unloading logs, and like.activities which ordinarily require
the massing of men and machinery for such purposes.” 232
Or at 465.

The court applied this "massing of men and machinery”
analysis in Childers v. SchaecherLbr. Co., 234 Or 230, 380
P2d 993 (1963)(logging operations); Gorham v. Swanson,
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253 Or 133, 453 P2d 670 (1969)(loading of two-ton bundles 
of lumber with a forklift); Patnode v. Carver Electric, 253 
Or 89, ·453 · P2d 675 (1969)(unloading heavy electrical 
equipment with a forklift); and Cogburn v. Roberts Supply, 
256 Or 582, 475 P2d 67 (1970)(unloading 16 to 24 foot 
lengths· of culvert. pipe ·w~ighing about 600 pounds). 
Hadeed v. Wit. Hi-Grade Concrete Co., 238 Or 513, 395 P2d 
553 (1964)·, involved a defendant whose employers -
delivered as many as 100 truckloads of concrete per' day to 
plaintiff's ·employer's construction site. Each delivery re­
quired cooperation between defendant's drivers and plain­
tiff's hod carriers, who hauled the concrete away in wheel­
barrows. The court held: 

" * * * there are found here a concert of effort and a 
rninglint! of the employees of both employers an"tl their 
comrnon exposure to the hazards of the work going for­
ward, all designed to facilitate its accomplishment. Within 
the constniction heretofore placed by us upon ORS 656.154 
(sec, «:).g., Pruett v. Lininger et al, 224 Or 614, 356 P2d 547 
(1960)), the premises where plaintiff was injured were 
premises over which the two employers had joint supervi­
sion and control." 238 Or 516-17. 

In Green '-!· Market Supply Co., 257 Or 451, 4 79 P2d 
736 (197i), plaintiff was injured while voluntarily helping 
defendant's employees load a 400 pound meat grinder. The 
court said: 

· "It is apparent that in deciding Boling v. Nork we had in 
mind a continuum, running from the simple delivery of a 
parcel on one end to a complex operation requiring the 
'massing of men and machinery' on the other. We think 
this case falls somewhere in the middle and is a pickup and. 
delivery situation as those words are commonly used. We 
are persuaded to that conclusion by the findings of the trial 
court that (1) defendant's employees were ·exclusively 

· respons~ble for making the delivery; {2) they were capable 
of accomplishing it themselves; (3) it was not necessary for 
any employee of Fred Meyer, Inc.; to help with the 
delivery; and.(4) it was not necessary to use any machinery 
to make the delivery." 257 Or at 455-56. 

In Perkins v. Willamette Industries, 273 Or 566, 
542 P2d 473 (19'75), the defendant operated a lumber and 
plywood operation which· produced wood shavings as a by­
product. The shavings were blown into large bins in which 
they wer_e stored pending removal. When a bin became full, 
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253 Or 133, 453 P2d 670 (1969)(loading of two-ton bundles
of lumber with a forklift); Patnode v. Carver Electric, 253
Or 89, 453 P2d 675 (1969)(unloading heavy electrical
equipment with a forklift); and Cogburn v. Roberts Supply,
256 Or 582, 475 P2d 67 (1970) unIoading 16 to 24 foot
lengths of culvert, pipe weighing about 600 pounds).
Hadeed v. Wil. Hi-Grade Concrete Co., 238 Or 513, 395 P2d
553 (1964), involved a defendant whose employers
delivered as many as 100 truckloads of concrete per'day to
plaintiffs employer’s construction site. Each delivery re
quired cooperation between defendant’s drivers and plain
tiffs hod carriers, who hauled the concrete away in wheel
barrows. The court held:

" * * * there are found here a concert of effort and a 
mingling of the employees of both employers and their
common exposure to the hazards of the work going for
ward, all designed to facilitate its accomplishment. Within •
the construction heretofore placed by us upon ORS 656.154
(see, c.g., Pruett v. Liningeret al, 224 Or 614, 356 P2d 547 
(I960)), the premises where plaintiff was injured were
premises over which the two employers had joint supeiwi-
sion and control.” 238 Or 516-17.

In Green v. MarketSupply Co., 257 Or 451,479 P2d
736 (1971), plaintiff was injured while voluntarily helping
defendant’s employees load a 400 pound meat grinder. The
court said; .

"It is apparent that in decidingBoling v. Norkwe had in
mind a continuum, running from the simple delivery of a
parcel on one end to a complex operation requiring the
‘massing of men and machinery’ on the other. We think
this case falls somewhere in themiddle and is a pickup and.
delivery situation as those words are commonly used. We
are persuaded to that conclusion by the findings of the trial
court that (1) defendant’s employees were exclusively

■ responsible for making the delivery; (2) they were capable
of accomplishing it themselves; (3) it was not necessary for
any employee of Fred Meyer, Inc., to help with the
delivery; and (4) it was not necessary to use any machinery
to make the delivery.” 257 Or at 455-56.

In Perkins v. Willamette Industries, 21Z Or 566,
542 P2d 473 (1975), the defendant operated a lumber and
plywood operation which'produced wood shavings as a by
product. The shavings were blown into large bins in which
they were stored pending removal. When a bin became full,
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Cody v. Disco 

defendant would notify plaintiff's employer,· Timber By­
Products, Inc., anq a truck would be dispatched by Timber 
By•Products to haul the shavings to a processing pbn in 
Albany. In order to empty the bins and collect the·shavings, · 
the truck drivers for Timber By-Products ,vould park under 

· the bin doors, pull a pin attached to a handle and swing the 
handle open, thus allowing the doors to open arid dumping 

· the shavings into the truck. After the shavings had· fallen, 
the doors would partially close automatically and would be 
shut by.the truck driver using the handle, or a winch, and a 
counterweight. The driver would use a '!'-shaped bar to hold 
the doors closed while he reinserted the pin that locked the 
doors. 

Normally, three to four trips daily were made to 
defendant's plant by Timber By-Products truck drivers to 
empty the bins and haul away the shavings. Other than 
directing the drivers to the particular bin to be emptied, 
none of def end ant's employees were specifically authorized 
or directed to assist the truck drivers in loading the _shav­
ings: Occasionally, however, some-of defendant's employees 
voluntarily assisted the truck drivers in closing the bin 

· doors. Defendant was solely· responsible for the mainte­
nance and repairs of the bins. 

At the time of the accident, plaintiff was a truck 
driver for Timber By-Products and was collecting the shav­
ings .from one of the bins at defendant's plant .. Plaintiff was 
injured when the door closing mechanism malfunctioned 
while plaintiff and one of defendant's employees were 
attempting 'to close the bin door. The Supreme Court saidi 

"We believe that there was ample evidence to support 
the trial court's finding that defendant had joint supervi- · 
sion and control with plaintiff's employer over the prem­
ises and that both· employers were engaged in the fur­
therance of a common enterprise. 

"6,7. As we stated in Deitz v. Savaria, Smith, supra,:· 
'* * * The term 'joint supervision and control' describes 
a situation in which each employer has· control·of his 

. employees' activities and, thus, through them has some 
control of the conditions under which his employees and 
the employees·of the other employer must work.:**~;, 
260 Or. at 542-43. 

"Thus, if there is an operational commingling of workmen, 
there may be joint supervision and control even though 
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defendant would notify plaintiffs employer, Timber By-
Products, Inc., and a truck would be dispatched by Timber
By-Products to haul the shavings to a processing plan in
Albany. In order to empty the bins and collect the shavings,
the truck drivers for Timber By-Products would park under
the bin doors, pull a pin attached to a handle and swing the
handle open, thus allowing the doors to open and dumping
the shavings into the truck. After the shavings had fallen,
the doors would partially close automatically and would be
shut by. the truck driver using the handle, or a winch, and a
counterweight. The driver would use a T-shaped bar to hold
the doors closed while he reinserted the pin that locked the
doors.

Normally, three to four trips daily were made to
defendant’s plant by Timber By-Products truck' drivers to
empty the bins and haul away the shavings. Other than
directing the drivers to the particular bin to be emptied,
none of defendant’s employees were specifically authorized
or directed to assist the truck drivers in loading the shav
ings. Occasionally, however, some of defendant’s employees
voluntarily assisted the truck drivers in closing the bin
doors. Defendant was solely responsible for the mainte
nance and repairs of the bins.

At the time of the accident, plaintiff was a truck
driver for Timber By-Products and was collecting the shav-
ings.from one of the bins at defendant’s plant. Plaintiffwas
injured when the door closing mechanism malfunctioned
while plaintiff and one of defendant’s employees were
attempting to close the bin door. The Supreme  ourt said:

"We believe that there was ample evidence to support
the trial court’s finding that defendant had joint supervi
sion and control with plaintiffs erhployer over the prem
ises and that both employers were engaged in the fur
therance of a common enterprise.

"6,7. As we stated in Deitz v. Savaria, Smith, supra,:
’* * * The term 'joint supervision and control’ describes
a situation in which each employer has control of his

. employees’ activities and, thus, through them has some
control of the conditions under which his employees and
the employees of the other employer must work.;* * *’
260 Or.at 542-43.

"Thus, if there is an operational commingling of workmen,
there may be joint supervision and control even though
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only one of the co,·ered employers may be said to be in 
actual control over the site where the work is performed 
and over the instrumentality that causes the harm.'' 

The court distinguished Perkins, supra, from Green, supra, 
in two ways. First, the drivers in Perkins made several trips 
each day to defendant's lumber mill; second, the loading in 
Perkins involved the use of industrial machinery. 

Jl;Iisner v. Hercules, Inc., 275 Or 669, 552 P2d 542 
(1976), involved a delivery of formaldehyde. Plaintiff and 
defendant's employee worked together to bypass defend­
ant's defective pump aftc( defendant's employee had shown 
plaintiff where to pump the formaldehyde and had assisted 
him in hooking up his hose and opening the valves. Th~ 
court found there was no massing of men and machinery 
and no continuing course of conduct involving the efforts of• 
both employees in the furtherance of a common objective 
and thei·cfore the pickup or delivery exception applied. 

The question here is where on the continuum re­
cognized by the Supreme Court in Green, supra, do the facts 
of this case fall? 

Plaintiff was making his first delivery to defend­
ant's store; there was no "continuing course of conduct with 
a common goal involving cooperation" between plaintiff 
and the defendant. There was no "massing of men and 
machinery." One of defendant's employees volunteered to 
assist plaintiff, and they attempted to use a hand-operated 
pallet jack. When the jack proved ineffective, the sugar 
was unloaded by hand,· as it probably would have been had 
plaintiff unloaded it by himself. Plaintiff's contract re­
quired that he unload the sugar himself or have it unloaded 
at his own expense. No one was hired by plaintiff to help 
unload,' and it is reasonable to assume that he would have 
done so by himself, had defendant's employee not volun­
teered to help. 

We conclude that the facts here support a finding 
that a delivery within the pickup or delivery exception 
occurred and we therefore hold that the defense of joint 
supervision is not available to defendant. For this reason 
we find that the trial court erred in dismissing plaintiff's 
complaint. 
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only one of the covered employers may be said to be in
actual control over the site where the work is performed
and over the instrumentality that causes the harm.”

The court distinguished Perkins, supra, from Green, supra,
in two ways. First, the drivers in Perkins several trips
each day to defendant’s lumber mill; second, the loading in
Perkins involved the use of industrial machinery.

Misner v. Hercules, Inc., 275 Or 669, 552 P2d 542
(1976), involved a delivery of formaldehyde. Plaintiff and
defendant’s employee worked together to bypass defend
ant’s defective pump after defendant’s employee had shown
plaintiff where to pump the formaldehyde and had assisted
him in hooking up his hose and opening the valves. The
court found there was no massing of men and machinery
and no continuing course of conduct involving the efforts of
both employees in the furtherance of a common objective
and therefore the pickup or delivery exception applied.

The question here is where on the continuum re
cognized by the Supreme  ourt in Green, supra, do the facts
of this case fall?

Plaintiff was making his first delivery to defend
ant’s store; there was no "continuing course of conduct with
a common goal involving cooperation” between plaintiff
and the defendant. There was no "massing of men and
machinery.” One of defendant’s employees volunteered to
assist plaintiff, and they attempted to use a hand-operated
pallet jack. When the jack proved ineffective, the sugar
was unloaded by hand, as it probably would have been had
plaintiff unloaded it by himself. Plaintiff’s contract re
quired that he unload the sugar himself or have it unloaded
at his own expense. No one was hired by plaintiff to help
unload, and it is reasonable to assume that he would have
done so by himself, had defendant’s employee not volun
teered to help.

We conclude that the facts here support a finding
that a delivery within the pickup or delivery exception
occurred and we therefore hold that the defense of joint
supervision is not available to defendant. For this reason
we find that the trial court erred in dismissing plaintiff’s
complaint.
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Cody v. Disco 

Defendant contends . that even if the defense of 
joint supervision is riot available, plaintiff's action should 
not be allowed because defendant's relationship v~rith plain­
tiff at the time of the injury was that of "special employer.'.' 
Despite the fact that he is in the general employment of 
another, a worker who becomes the special or borrowed 

· employee of an employer subject to the Workers' 9ompcn­
sation Act may not sue the special employer for negligence, 
but must look to the Act for benefits for injuries arising 
from that employment. TVarner v. Synnes,· et al; 114 Or 451, 
230 :P 362; 235 P 3Q5 (1925). 

The facts of this case lend no support to defendant's 
contention that plaintiff was a special employee. Plaintiff 
was a trucker making a delivery as requ~rcd by his contract 
with RTC. No Oregon authority suppqrts the proposition 
that such an individual i.s· a special employee. 'rh·e trial 
court correctly rejected this defense: · 

Reversed and remanded. 
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#

Defendant contends that even if the defense of
joint supervision is not available, plaintiff’s action should
not be allowed because defendant’s relationship with plain
tiff at the time of the injury was that of "special employer.”
Despite the fact that he is in the general employment of
another, a worker who becomes the special or borrowed
employee of an employer subject to the Workers’  ompen
sation Act may not sue the special employer for negligence,
but must look to the Act for benefits for injuries arising
from that.employment. Warner v. Synnes, etal, 114 Or 451,
230 :P 362; 235 P 305 (1925).

The facts of this case lend no support to defendant’s
contention that plaintiff was a special employee. Plaintiff
was a trucker making a delivery as required by his contract
with RT . No Oregon authority supports the proposition
that such an individual is a special employee. The trial
court correctly rejected this defense.

Reversed and remanded.
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305 June 15, 1981 

· IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
. STATE OF OREGON 

STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 
CORPORATION, 

Petitioner, 
V. 

BROADWAY CAB COMPANY, 
Respondent. 

(WCB No. 79~1978, CA 18461) 

689 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued ·and submitted January 16, 1981. 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appc1Ia1e Counsel, SAH', argued the 
cause for petitioner. With him on the brief were K. R. 
Maloney, General Counsel, and James A. Blevirn,, Chief 
Trial Counsel, SAU', Salem. 

Jeffrey M. Batchelor, Portland, argued the cause for 
respondent. With him on the brief were James H. Clarke, 
Nelson D: Atkin, II, and Spe~rs, Lubersky, Campbell & 
Bledsoe, Portland. 

Before Joseph, Chief Judge, and Buttler and \Varden, 
Judges. 

JOSEPH, C.J. 

Remanded with instructions to dismiss. 
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STATE OF OREGON

STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E FUND
 ORPORATION,
Petitioner,

V.
BROADWAY  AB  OMPANY,

Respondent.
(W B No. 79-1978,  A 18461)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted January 16, 1981.

Darrell E. Bcwlcy, Appcllale  ounsel, SAIF, argued the
cause for petitioner. With liim on the brief were K. R.
Maloney, General  ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief
Trial  ounsel, SAIF, Salem.

Jeffrey M. Batchelor, Portland, argued the cause for
respondent. With him on the brief were James H.  larke,
Nelson D; Atkin, II, and Spears, Lubersky,  ampbell &
Bledsoe, Portland.

Before Joseph,  hief Judge, and Buttler and Vv’arden,
Judges.

JOSEPH,  .J.

Remanded with instructions to dismiss.
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Cite as 52 Or App 689 (1981) 691 

JOSEPH, C. J. 
The State Accident Insurance Fund (SAIFr has 

petitioned .for judicial review of an order of the Workers' 
Compensation Board (Board) which reversed the part of the 
referee's order which had found owner-drivers of taxicabs 
to be subject workers within the meaning of former ORS 
656.005(28) (now ORS 656.005(29)). Although the referee 
and the Board had expressed substantial doubt about their 
subject matter jurisdiction to determine the controversy in 
the absence of a clear legislative grant of authority or a 
pending claim for compensation, the parties chose to.ignore 
_the· problem in this court. We canriot. ,'When the matter 
came on for hearing, we raised the· issue and requested 
supplemental briefs. We' hold that neither the referee nor 
the Board had subject matter jurisdiction at the time of 
their respective orders, and we remand the matter to the 
Board for dismissal. 

The only facts of imp~rtancc now are those which 
establish the time ·frame. Prior to March 5, 1979, Broadway 
Cab Company (Broadway) appli~d to SAIF for coverage of a 
certain number of its employees, but did not include owner­
drivers in the group to be covered. SAIF responded· by 
refusing to issue a . certificate until Broadway agreed to 
include driver-owners in the covered group. Broadway ac­
ceded under protest, and on March 5, 1979, its attorney 
requested a hearing by the Board. The matter was referred 
to a referee, who conducted hearings in 1979. He issued his 
opinion on February 12, 1980. On July 23, 1980, the Board 
issued its opinion on review. The coverage period involved 

• is February 1, 1979, to October 2, 1979. · 

Broadway's supplerrie.ntal brief contains a detailed 
and very helpful recitation and analysis of the statutes 
involved in this problem·, and it is substantially persuasive 
that up to January 1, 1980, the referee and the Board had 
subject matter jurisdiction, either within the provisions of 
ORS chapter 656 itself or under ORS chapter 183 as partly 
incorpo~ated by reference in ORS chapter 656. However, we 
need not and will not enter into that iabyrinth. Even if 
there was jurisdiction over this controversy prior to the 
effective date of Oregon Laws 1979, chapter 839, that 

, jurisdiction was destroyed on January 1; 1980, when the 
1979 Act became effective. · · 
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JOSEPH,  . J.
. The State Accident Insurance Fund (SAIF) has

petitioned for judicial review of an order of the Workers’
 ompensation Board (Board) which reversed the part of the
referee’s order which had found owner-drivers of taxicabs
to be subject workers within the meaning of former ORS
656.005(28) (now ORS 656.005(29)). Although the referee
and the Board had expressed substantial doubt about their
subject matter jurisdiction to determine the controversy in
the absence of a clear legislative grant of authority or a
pending claim for compensation, the parties chose to ignore
the-problem in this court. We cannot. When the matter
came on for hearing, we raised the issue and requested
supplemental briefs. We hold that neither the referee nor
the Board had subject matter jurisdiction at the time of
their respective orders, and we remand the matter to the
Board for dismissal.

The only facts of importance now are those which
establish the time frame. Prior toMarch 5,1979, Broadway
 ab  ompany (Broadway) applied to SAIF for coverage of a
certain number of its employees, but did not include owner-
drivers in the group to be covered. SAIF responded by
refusing to issue a certificate until Broadway agreed to
include driver-owners in the covered group. Broadway ac
ceded under protest, and on March 5, 1979, its attorney
requested a hearing by the Board. The matter was referred
to a referee, who conducted hearings in 1979. He issued his
opinion on February 12, 1980. On July 23, 1980, the Board
issued its opinion on review. The coverage period involved
is February 1, 1979, to October 2, 1979.

Broadway’s supplemental brief contains a detailed
and very helpful recitation and analysis of the statutes
involved in this problem, and it is substantially persuasive
that up to January 1, 1980, the referee and the Board had
subject matter jurisdiction, either within the provisions of
ORS chapter 656 itself or under ORS chapter 183 as partly
incorporated by reference in ORS chapter 656. However, we
need not and will not enter into that labyrinth. Even if
there was jurisdiction over this controversy prior to the
effective date of Oregon Laws 1979, chapter 839, that
jurisdiction was destroyed on January 1, 1980, when the
1979 Act became effective.
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SAIF v. Broadway Cab Co. -------------
ORS 656. 708 now provides, in part: 

"(1) .. There is created the Workers' Compensation 
Department. The department consists of the board, the 
director and all their assistants and employes. 

"* * * * * 
"(3) The Hearings Division is continued within the 

board. The division has the responsibility for providing an 
impartial forum for deciding all cases, disputes arid con­
troversies arising under ORS 654.001 to 654.295, all cases, 
disputes and controversies regarding matters concerning a 
claim 'under ORS 656.001 to 65G.794, and for conducting 
such other hearings and proceedings as may be prescribed 
by Jaw. 

it* * * * * " 

ORS 656.726(2) now provides, in part: 
"The board hereby is charged with the odministration 

and the responsibility for the Hearings Division and for 
reviewing appealed orders of referees in controversies con­
cerning a claim arising under ORS 656.001 to 656.794, 
exercising own motion -jurisdiction uncler 01{8 656.001 tu 
656.794 and providing such policy advice as the director 
may request, and providing such other review functions as 
may be ~rescribcd by lu w. ~ * *" 

ORS 656. 704 now provides: 
"(1) Where ORS 656.001 to 656.794 does not provide a 

procedure for administrative or judicial review of actions 
and orders of the department or State Accident Insurance 
Fund Corporation, the provisions of ORS 183.310 to 
183.500 shall apply to the board review and judicial review 
of such ijctions and orders. 

"{2) For the purpose of determining the respecti vc 
authority of the director and the board tci conduct hearings, 
investigations and other proceedings under ORS 656.001 
to 656.794, and for determining· the procedure for the 
conduct and review thereof, mutters concerning a claim 
under ORS 656.001 to· 656.794 arc those matters in which a 
worker's right to receive compensation, or the amount 

. thereof, are directly in issue. However, such matters do not 
include any proceeding under ORS 656.248 or any proceed­
ing resulting therefrom."· 

·~·~ is clear that the only specific subject matter for a 
referee's activities on February 12, 1~80, in connection 
with Workers' Compensation under the quoted statutes 
was in "cases, disputes and controversies regar~ing matters 
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ORS 656.708 now provides, in part;
”(1) There is created the Workers’  ompensation

Department. The department consists of the board, the
director and all their assistants and employes.

"(3) The Hearings Division is continued within the
board. The division has the responsibility for providing an
impartial forum for deciding all cases, disputes and con
troversies arising under ORS 654.001 to 654.295, all cases,
disputes and controversies regarding matters concerning a
claim under ORS 656.001 to 656.794, and for conducting
such other hearings and proceedings as may be prescribed
by law.

fj): * * * *

ORS 656.726(2) now provides, in part:
"The board hereby is charged with the administration

and the responsibility for the Hearings Division and for
reviewing appealed orders of referees in controversies con
cerning a claim arising under ORS 656.001 to 656.794,
exercising own motion jurisdiction under ORS 656.001 to
656.794 and providing such policy advice as the director
may request, and providing such other review functions as
may be proscribed by law. * * *”

ORS 656.704 now provides:
"(1) Where ORS 656.001 to 656.794 does not provide a

procedure for administrative or judicial review of actions
and orders of the department or State Accident Insurance
Fund  orporation, the provisions of ORS 183.310 to
183.500 shall apply to the board review and judicial review
of such actions and orders.

"(2) For the purpose of determining the respective
authority of the director and the board to conduct hearings,
investigations and other proceedings under ORS 656.001
to 656.794, and for determining the procedure for the
conduct and review thereof, matters concerning a claim
under ORS 656.001 to 656.794 are those matters in which a 
worker’s right to receive compensation, or the amount

, thereof, are directly in issue. However, such matters do not
include any proceeding under ORS 656.248 or any proceed
ing resulting therefrom.”

li. is clear that the only subject matter for a
referee’s activities on February 12, 1980, in connection
with Workers’  ompensation under the quoted statutes
was in "cases, disputes and controversies regardingmatters

m
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concerning a claim * ~ *"; similarly, the Board's subject 
matter jurisdiction on July 23; · 1980, was to review ·"ap­
pealed orders of referees in controversies ·concerning. a 
claim.** *;" Broadway seems to concede these conclusions 
but asserts that "there is nothing to. indicate that the 
amendment[s were] intended to ·retroactively divest the 
Board ·and its Hearings Division of jurisdiction in pending 
cases." The difficulty with that is that "retroactivit:/' is ~ot 
the issue. The plain thrust of the 1979 amendments is that 
the Board's review jurisdiction ·after the effective da.te is 
limited to "controversies concerning a claim.'' 1 

The ·only remaining question is the meaning of 
"other hearings and proceedings as may be prescribed by 
law" in ORS 656. 708(3), supra, and "providing such review 
functions as may be prescribed by law" in ORS G56. 726(2), 
supra. Because the latter phr~se refers to "review func­
tions," its meaning depends upon the determination of any 
original source for a matter to be reviewed. It cannot be the 
referees, for their Workers' Compensation jurisdiction is 
limited to claims by ORS 656.283 and ORS 656:708(3)­
unless there is another grant of jurisdiction-to support the 
phrase first quoted a_bo~e.2 The parties have not given any 
attention in their supplemep.tary briefs to this aspect of the 
Board's jurisdiction, and we hav~ been able to discern only 
two instances ·of what seems to have been intended as the 
source:· 0~$ 656.740(3),.whi~h provides for a referee's 
hearing on a proposed order declaring a · person to be . a 
noncomplying employer, and ORS "656.745(3), which re­
lates to penalties and assessments. Whether the Workers' 
Compensation Department could by rule invest the Hear­
ings Division with jurisdiction over some matter (and 
thereby give the Board review authority) is doubtful under 

1 We note that the additio~ of subsection (2).to ORS.656.704, quoted supra, 
may merely have been intended to clarify the original int('nded meaning of what 
is now subsection (1), which until the 1979 amendments was the only l!rngunge in 
the section. Both former and present ORS 656.283 only provide jurisdiction for 
the Board to hold "a hearing on any question ronceming a claim." (Emphasis 
supplied.) · 

2 An order pursuant to·ORS 656.307 designating an interim paying ·carrier 
could, of course, give rise to a controversy, but it would be one "concerning a 
claim." · '. · 

694 ___ SAIF· v. l3r(_)i_tdw~y Cnb Co. 

ORS 656. 704(2) and unnecessary to decide, for the depart­
ment has not attempted to do so in this matter. 3 We are 
satisfied that neither the referee nor the Board had juris­
diction in this dispute at the time of their respective orders. 

Remanded with instructions to dismiss. 
3 Had the contretemps between SAIF. and Broadway result­
ed in the director of the department acting under· ORS 
656.052(2) to serve a cease and desist order on Broadway, 
then the issue could have been tried in circuit court. ORS 
656.052(3); see also ORS 656.740. 
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concerning a claim similarly, the Board’s subject
matter jurisdiction on July 23, 1980, was to review "ap
pealed orders of referees in controversies concerning a
claim * * *.” Broadway seems to concede these conclusions
but asserts that "there is nothing to. indicate that the
amendmentfs were] intended to retroactively divest the
Board and its Hearings Division of jurisdiction in pending
cases.” The difficulty with that is that "retroactivity” is not
the issue. The plain thrust of the 1979 amendments is that
the Board’s review jurisdiction after the effective date is
limited to "controversies concerning a claim.

The only remaining question is the meaning of
"other hearings and proceedings as may be prescribed by
law” in OKS 656.708(3), supra, and "providing such review
functions as may be prescribed by law” in ORS 056.726(2),
supra. Because the latter phrase I'efcrs to "review func
tions,” its meaning depends upon the determination of any
original source for a matter to be reviewed. It cannot be the
referees, for their Workers’  ompensation jurisdiction is
limited to claims by ORS 656.283 and ORS 656.708(3)
unless there is another grant of jurisdiction to support the
phrase first quoted above.^ The parties have not given any
attention iii their supplementary briefs to this aspect of the
Board’s jurisdiction, and we have been able to discern only
two instances of what seems to have been intended as the
source: ORS 656.740(3), which provides for a referee’s
hearing on a proposed order declaring a person to be a
noncomplying employer, and ORS 656.745(3),, which re
lates to penalties and assessments. Whether the Workers’
 ompensation Department could by rule invest the Hear
ings Division with jurisdiction over some matter (and
thereby give the Board review authority) is doubtful under

' We note that the addition of subsection (2).to ORS 656.704, quoted supra,
may merely have been intended to clarify the original intended meaning of what
is now subsection (1), which until the 1979 amendments was the only language in
the section. Both former £md present ORS 656.283 only provide jurisdiction for
the Board to hold "a hearing on any question concerning a c/aj'/n. "(Emphasis
supplied.)

^An order pursuant to ORS 656.307 designating an interim paying carrier
could, of course, give rise to a controversy, but it would be one "concerning a
claim.”

694____________ SAIF V. Broadway  ab  o.

ORS 656.704(2) and unnecessary to decide, for the depart
ment has not attempted to do so in this matter.^ We are
satisfied that neither the referee nor the Board had juris
diction in this dispute at the time of their respective orders.

Remanded with instructions to dismiss.
^ Had the contretemps between SAIF and Broadway result
ed in the director of the department acting under ORS
656.052(2) to serve a cease and desist order oh Broadway,
then the issue could have been tried in circuit court. ORS
656.052(3); see also ORS 656.740.

-263-

­

­

— 

­

­

­

­

­



     

       
  

       
  

    
     

     
        

         

         
  

      
 

  
     

310. J';lne 15, 1S81 

IN· THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
· STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
· Ervin Edge, Claimant. · 

EDGE, 
Petitioner, 

V. 

JELD-WEN, 
Respondt:nt. 

(WQB No. 79-4080; CA 19742) 

725 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and submitted Mny 8, 1981. 

Robert K. Udziela, Portland, argued the cause for peti­
tioner. On the brief was David Vandenberg, Jr., Klamath 
Falls. . · 

Brian L. Pocock, Eugene, argued the cause and filed the 
brief for: respondent. · 

Before Buttler, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War­
ren, Judges. 

BUTTLER, P. J. 

Reversed and rerianded for further proceedings. 
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. BUTTL~R, J>. tl•. . .. 
· ... ~:. ___ ., ......... Cfaiman:t-~ppeals- fr6~-- a determinatio~ by-_the 

\Vorkers' C~mpe;is·ation. Board .(Board) affJrming· the ref­
eree's opinion and order; which affirmed the determination 
order awarding claimant 15 · percent permanent partial 
disability for unscheduled low back injury. Claimant as­
serts that he is ·permanently totally disabled. The referee 
found 'that claimant had not 'presenteq. sufficient expert 
medica} .evidence to support a· finding of compensability; 

· the ·original award of 15 percent was left standing because 
the empioyer had not. raised compensability as an issue, or 
asked that the award be reduced. On de nova review, we 
conclude that claimant's disability. is compcn~~ble; because 
neither the referee 1101· the Board focused on the extent of 

· claininnt's disnbilit.y, we reverse and remand. 

At the time of the heuring, claimant was 54 years 
old. He had been a mill laborer for 35 years. On August 7, 
1978,· claimant slipped when handling a large paint-drip 

· pan and experienced immediate jabbing patn in his low 
back, left buttock and thigh. He. thought he had pulled ·a 
muscle. The pain, which ~l.aimant described as a kind of 

. "charley horse," steadily worsened. Claimant say/ a doctor 
three days later and, after seeing another doctor, required 
hospitalizaticm two weeks after the accident. During that 
period he was able to get around only by using a "walker." 
The diagnosis, following ·a myelogram. was severe root 
compression at S1 secondary to an extruded disc at L5." On 
September 1, 1978, a lumbar. Iarninecto~y was p~rform.ed 
by Dr. Campagna. Subsequently, on November 6, 1978, Dr. 
Campagna wrote t9 the employer that the claimant's-symp­
toms at that time were related to the accident of August·?, 

. 1978. . . . 

· · Claimant h':'l,d. polio·when he was two_years old. As 
a resµlt, he was pigeon-toed, and his right leg was slightly · 
smaller than the left, which caused a sligh~ limp. He also 
had lumbar. spondylosis, or stiffening of the lumbar spine. · 
His former super.visor testified that claimant' had ex-· 
perienced some dif(iculty .in !?.ending prior to the injury. 
Claimant testified he had no low back or leg pain prior to 
the accident: he c·ould' bowl; play baseball and perform 
<;>ther activit~es. ;Fie h~d ·never sustc_tined any injury, on or 
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......  laimant appeals-from a determination by the
Workers’  ompensation. Board .(Board) affirming the ref
eree’s opinion and order, which affirmed the determination
order awarding claimant 15 percent permanent partial
disability for unscheduled low back injury.  laimant as
serts that he is permanently totally disabled. The referee
found that claimant had not presented sufficient expert
medical evidence to support a finding of compensability;
the original award of 15 percent was left standing because
the employer had not raised compemsability as an issue, or
asked that the award be reduced. On de novo review, we
conclude that claimant’s disability is compensable; because
neither the refci’ce nor the Board focused on tlie extent of
claimant’s disability, we reverse and remand.

At the time of the hearing, claimant was 54 years
old. He had been a mill laborer for 35 years. On August 7, 
1978, claimant slipped when handling a large paint-drip
pan and experienced immediate jabbing pain in his low
back, left buttock and thigh. He. thought he had pulled a
muscle. The pain, which claimant described as a kind of
"charley horse,” steadily worsened.  laimant saw a doctor
three days later and, after seeing another doctor, required
hospitalization two weeks after the accident. During that
period he was able to get around only by using a "walker.”
The diagnosis, following a myelogram, was severe root
compression at Si secondary to an extruded disc at L5. On
September 1, 1978, a lumbar laminectomy was performed
by Dr.  ampagna. Subsequently, on November 6,1978, Dr.
 ampagna wrote to the employer that the claimant’s symp
toms at that time were related to the accident of August 7, 
1978.

 laimant had polio when he was two years old. As
a result, he was pigeon-toed, and his right leg was slightly
smaller than the left, which caused a slight limp. He also
had lumbar spondylosis, or stiffening of the lumbar spine.
His former supervisor testified that claimant had ex
perienced some difficulty in bending prior to the injur>'.
 laimant testified he had no low back or leg pain prior to
the accident: he could bowl, play baseball and perform
other activities. He had never sustained any injury, on or

#
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Edge v. Jeld-Wen 

off the job, which had prevented him from working success­
fully as a·manual laborer, which he had done all his adult 

. life. . . 

Dr. Campagna reported on November 27, 1978, 
that neither the polio nor the spondylosis had any bearing 
on the industrial injury, which we understand to mean that 
neither of those conditions was worsened by the injury. On 
March 2, i979, the physician reported that claimant had 
made a good recovery from disc surgery, and that his 

. residual problems were caused· by his lumbar spondylosis 
and the polio. By letter of July 13, 1979, the doctor 
expressed the opinion that claimant's polio residuals had 
not been aggravated by the accident and that claimant was 
permanently and t·otally disabled. 

At the time of hearing in November, 1979, claim­
ant testified that he still had pain· in his left leg at the calf 
and on the left side of his lower back radiating both across 
and upward. His toes were numb, and his left leg would not 
reliably support him. He could not twist or turn, and his 
ability to bend or lift was minimal. Claimant was extreme• 
ly limited in the activities he could do. He was observed by' 
a private investigator· while nailing weatherstripping 
around a door for a few minutes, resting in the middle of 
that activity, and also while tending a fire. The referee 
found, and we agree, that the surveillance evidence did not 

· discredit claimant's testimony as to his limitations. . 

In a post-hearing deposition taken on January 10, 
1980; Dr. Campagna stated that claimant was permanently 
and totally disabled. He stated that claimant was honest 
and was not exaggerating his complaints. He emphasized 
that neither claimant's polio residuals nor the spondylosis 
was worsened by the industrial accident or had thereafter 
changed. Dr. Campagna stated that claimant had made an 
excellent recovery from the disc· surgery with no detectable 
residuals. from it. Whether or not that statement means 
that claimant no longer suffered disabling symptoms from 
the injury, as opposed to the surgery, is not entirely clear. 
However, the physician expressed puzzlement at the cause 
of claimant's current problems, attributed them to the· old 
polio and spondylosis (neither of which, he said, had wor­
sened since the accident), which_- led. him to suggest, 
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off the job, which had prevented him fromworking success
fully as a manual laborer, which he had done all his adult
life.

Dr.  ampagna reported on November 27, 1978,
that neither the polio nor the spondylosis had any bearing
on the industrial injury, which we understand to mean that
neither of those conditions was worsened by the injury. On
March 2, 1979, the physician reported that claimant had
made a good recovery from disc surgery, and that his
residual problems were caused by his lumbar spondylosis
and the polio. By letter of July 13, 1979, the doctor
expressed the opinion that claimant’s polio residuals had
not been aggravated by the accident and that claimaint was
permanently and totally disabled.

At the time of hearing in November, 1979, claim
ant testified that he still had pain in his left leg at the calf
and on the left side of his lower back radiating both across
and upward. His toes were numb, and his left legwould not
reliably support him. He could not twist or turn, and his
ability to bend or lift was minimal.  laimant was extreme
ly limited in the activities he could do. He was observed by
a private investigator' while nailing weatherstripping
around a door for a few minutes, resting in the middle of
that activity, and also while tending a fire. The referee
found, and we agree, that the surveillance evidence did not
discredit claimant’s testimony as to his limitations.

In a post-hearing deposition taken.on January 10,
1980’ Dr.  ampagna stated that claimant was permanently
and totally disabled. He stated that claimant was honest
and was not exaggerating his complaints. He emphasized
that neither claimant’s polio residuals nor the spondylosis
was worsened by the industrial accident or had thereafter
changed. Dr.  ampagna stated that claimant had made an
excellent recovery from the disc surgery with no detectable
residuals from it. Whether or not that statement means
that claimant no longer suffered disabling symptoms from
the injury, as opposed to the surgery, is not entirely clear.
However, the physician expressed puzzlement at the cause
of claimant’s current problems, attributed them to the old
polio and spondylosis (neither of which, he said, had wor
sened since the accident), which led him to suggest.

#
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somewhat implausibly, that claimant had been working for 
many,years when he may have been totally disablcdpriorto 
the. indust!ial injury. . . 

Incori.clusive medical evidence is not necessarily 
fatal to a claimant's case. Mueller v. SAIF, 33 Or App 31, 
35, 575 P2d 673 (1978). In Briggs v. SAJF,, 36 Or App 709, 
713, 585 P2d ·719 (1978), we found that the industrial 
injury there ipvolved w~s a substantial contributing factqr 
to 'the· claimant's disabling condition, despite the lack of 
medical ,eyidence directly to that effect, where no physician 
expressly ruled o.ut that. finding ·and where one do~tor 
implied• that a lesser part qf the trouble stemmed from the 
i~jury. · · 

Here, the undisputed medical evidence is that the 
herniated disc was caused by the in~ustrial injury and that 
claimant's post-surgery symptoms were related to that in,: 
jury,1 although his pre-existing conditions impo·sed some. 

· physical limitations. The only confusion stems froltj the • 
later, and apparently inconsistent, statement of the physi­
cian that there were n·o res1duals from the disc· surgery; 
however, the record does not reveal whether the doctor had 
seen claimant within the six months prior to the <leposition. 

· The fact is that· despite pre-existing conditions ·of polio 
residuals and spondylosis; claimant had been able to· sup­
port himself a:ii.d his family doing manual labor up until the 
time of the industrial injury. The symptoms.he experienced 
immediately after the injury were substantially the same· 

· as those described at the hearing, although more · severe 
. and disabling. Two months after the surgery, his physician 
attributed claimant's symptoms to the industrial injury. 
The physician expressly stated his opinion that the indus- · 
trial injury did not cause changes in the claimant's pre-

. existing polio residuals or spondylosis. No other.off-the-job 
' . ' 

. 1 Concededly, the medical problem is not uncomplicated arid therefore r·e­
quires medical evidence to establish causation. Uris v. Compensation Deparlment, 
247 Or ·420; 426-27, 427 P2d 753, 430 P2d 861 (1067). In Uris, the Supreme Court 

: held that medical testimony was unneccsaary to make a prima facie case of 
· causation where the situation was uncomplicated, the symptoms appeared imme­
. diately, ·the OCCWTence waa promptly reported at work and to a physician, the 
• claimant was previously free from disability of the kind involved, and no expert 
· -t.estified that the alleged precipitating event could not have been the cause of the 
.' injury.' A prima fade case of causation of the disc problem, at least, was made 
· here. Furthermore, the employer did not contest causation before the referee, 
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somewhat implausibly, that claimant had beenworking for
many.years when he may have been totally disabledpriono
the industrial injury.

Inconclusive medical evidence is not necessarily
fatal to a claimant’s case. Mueller v. SAIF, 33 Or App 31,
35, 575 P2d 673 (1978). In Briggs v. SAIF, 36 Or App 709,
713, 585 P2d 719 (1978), we found that the industrial
injury there involved was a substantial contributing factor
to the claimant’s disabling condition, despite the lack of
medical evidence directly to that effect, where no physician
expressly ruled out that, finding and where one doctor
implied that a lesser part of the trouble stemmed from the
injuiy.

Here, the undisputed medical evidence is that the
herniated disc was caused by the industrial injury and that
claimant’s post-surgery symptoms were related to that in
jury,^ although his pre-existing conditions imposed some
physical limitations. The only confusion stems froni the
later, and apparently inconsistent, statement of the physi
cian that there were no residuals from the disc surgery;
however, the record does not reveal whether the doctor had
seen claimant within the sixmonths prior to the deposition.
The fact is that despite pre-existing conditions of polio
residuals and spondylosis, claimant had been able to sup
port himself and his family doingmanual labor up until the
time of the industrial injury. The symptorris he experienced
immediately after the injury were substantially the same
as those described at the hearing, although more severe
and disabling. Two months afterihe surgery, his physician
attributed claimant’s symptoms to the industrial injury.
The physician expressly stated his opinion that the indus
trial injury did not cause changes in the claimant’s pre
existing polio residuals or spondylosis. No other off-thc-job

. '  oncededly, the medical problem is not uncomplicated arid therefore re
quires medical evidence to establish causation. Uris v. Compensation Department,
247 Or 420.420-27, 427 P2d 753, 430 P2d 861 (1967). In Uris. the Supreme  ourt

. held that medical testimony was unnecessary to make a prima facie cose of
causation where the situationwas imcomplicated, the symptoms appeared imme
diately, the occiirrence was promptly reported at work and to a physician, tlie
claimant was previously free from disability of the kind involved, and no expert
testified that alleged precipitating event could not have been the cause of the
injury.'A prima facie case of causation of the disc problem, at least, was made
here. Furthermore, the employer did not contest causation before the referee.
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mJury or other cause of the physical problems has been 
suggested. We do not believe that the physician's assertion 
that claimant made an excellent recovery from the disc 
surgery rules out the conclusion that the industrial acci­
dent was a "significant contributing factor" to the existing 
disabling condition. Briggs v. SAIF, supra, 36 Or App at 
712. The.most reasonable conclusion on this record is that 
the industrial accident was such a factor. 

Our finding of compensability raises the question 
of the extent of claimant's permanent disability. It is clear 
that he is more than 15 percent disabled, but whether he is 
totally disabled is more problematical. The referee noted in 
passing that the medical and lay evidence in this case 
indicated that claimant was "permanently and possibly 
totally disabled," but neither the referee nor the 13oard 
focused clearly on the issue of the extent of disability. As 
we have noted before, the Board is generally presumed to 
have expertise in determining the extent of disability. See, 
e.g., Russell v. SAIF, 33 Or App 153, 155, 576 P2d 376, rev'd 
on other grounds 281 Or 353, 574 P2d 653 (1978). Although 
this court in the exercise of its de novo function is empow­
ered to make its own independent evaluation, Russell v. 
SAIF, 281 Or 353, 360, 574 P2d 653 (1978), where, as here, 
neither the referee nor the Board has reached that issue, 
we consider it more appropriate to remand to the Board to 
take whatever action it deems appropriate to determine the 
extent of claimant's permanent disability. 

Reversed and remanded for further proceedings. 
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injur>’ or other cause of the physical problems has been
suggested. We do not believe that the physician’s assertion
that claimant made an excellent recovery from the disc
surgery rules out the conclusion that the industrial acci
dent was a "significant contributing factor” to the existing
disabling condition. Briggs v. SAIF, supra, 36 Or App at
712. The most reasonable conclusion on this record is that
the industrial accident was such a factor.

Our finding of compensability raises the question
of the extent of claimant’s permanent disability. It is clear
that he is more than 15 percent disabled, but whether he is
totally disabled is more problematical. The referee noted in
passing that the medical and lay evidence in this case
indicated that claimant was "permanently and possibly
totally disabled,” but neither the referee nor the Board
focused clearly on the issue of the extent of disability. As
we have noted before, the Board is generally presumed to
have expertise in determining the extent of disability. See,
e.g., Russell v. SAIF, 33 Or App 153,155, 576 P2d 376, rev'd
on othergrounds 281 Or 353, 574 P2d 653 (1978). Although
this court in the exercise of its de novo function is empow
ered to make its own independent evaluation, Russell u.
SAIF, 281 Or 353, 360, 574 P2d 653 (1978), where, as here,
neither the referee nor the Board has reached that issue,
we consider it more appropriate to remand to the Board to
take whatever action it deems appropriate to determine the
extent of claimant’s permanent disability.

Reversed and remanded for further proceedings.
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Before Buttler, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War

ren, Judges.
BUTTLER, P. J.

Reversed.
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BUTTLER, P. J. 

Claimant appeals from an order by the Workers' 
Compensation Board (Board) reducing an award of perma• 

· nent total disability made by the referee to 50 percent 
permanent partial' disability for low back injuries. 

·' 

. In August, 1978, at the age of 61, claimant 
incurred an acute_ lu~bar sacral strain while driving a 

· truck. Claimant did not finish the fifth grade and has 
worked as a logger and heavy equipment driver all his life. 
He has ·never worke'd inside a mill. 

A myelogram· performed in November, 1978, 
revealed a defect at the L4-5 level. Shortly thereafter, a 
bilnternl pnrtial laminectomy was performed with removal 
of a protruding disc, as well us a bilaternl foraminotomy of 
. the L5 ~1crvc roots. rrhe neurosurgeon found claimant to be . 
medically stationary on May 21, 1979. He indicated claim• 
ant could not return to his previous type of work and should 
not do work requiring repetitive bending at the waist, 
repetitive lifting ovc:r 25 pounds or prolonged sitting. 

The Field Services Division of the Workers' Com­
pensation Department evaluated claimant in September, 

. 1979, and concluded that "claimant wiU never be able to 
,vork. He is still in great distress. Medically 'Not feasible' to 
place him." In 'January, 1980, the neurosurgeon indicated 
that claimant's physical limitations were the same as they 
were in May, 1979, and that claimant could do sedentary­
type work from a physical ·standpoint. Orthopedic Consult­
an~s examined claimant in _:ranuary, 1980, ·and concluded 
that his condition was stationary, his loss of function "mild­
ly moderate," (although his upper extremities were tremul­
ous) and that he was "vocationally impaired." The doctor 
writing the report stated: · 

"It is unlikely, in our opinion, that he will return to 
· work in view of his age and his type of job skills." 

. On November 21, 1979, a hearings officer for the 
Social Security Administration found claimant to be totally 
disabled. Four days earlier, a vocational counselor for the 
Employment Di vision administered aptitude tests to claim• 
ant to see if he could qualify for any occupational aptitude 

: patterns ?r j9b classifications.- He noted that claimant was 
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BUTTLER, P. J.

 laimant appeals from an order by the Workers’
 ompensation Board (Board) reducing an award of perma
nent total disability made by the referee to 50 percent
permanent partial disability for low back injuries.

. In August, 1978, at the age of 61, claimant
incurred an acute. lumbar sacral strain while driving a
truck.  laimant did not finish the fifth grade and has
worked as a logger and hea;vy equipment driver all his life.
He has never worked inside a mill.

A myelogram performed in November, 1978,
revealed a defect at the L4-5 level. Shortly thereafter, a
bilateral partial laminectomy was performed with removal
of a protruding disc, as well as a bilateral foraminotomy of
the L5 nerve roots. The neurosurgeon found claimant to be
medically stationary on May 21, 1979. He indicated claim
ant could not return to his previous type of work and should
not do work requiring repetitive bending at the waist,
repetitive lifting over 25 pounds or prolonged sitting.

The Field Services Division of the Workers’  om
pensation Department evaluated claimant in September,
1979, and concluded that "claimant will never be able to
work. He is still in great distress. Medically 'Not feasible’ to
place him.” In January, 1980, the neurosurgeon indicated
that claimant’s physical limitations were the same as they
were in May, 1979, and that claimant could do sedentary-
type work from a physical standpoint. Orthopedic  onsult
ants examined claimant in January, 1980, and concluded
that his condition was stationary, his loss of function "mild
ly moderate,” (although his upper extremities were tremul
ous) and that he was "vocationally impaired.” The doctor
writing the report stated:

"It is unlikely, in our opinion, that he will return to
work in view of his age and his type of job skills.”

On November 21, 1979, a hearings officer for the
Social Security Administration found claimant to be totally
disabled. Four days earlier, a vocational counselor for the
Employment Division administered aptitude tests to claim
ant to see if he could qualify for any occupational aptitude
patterns or job classifications. He noted that claimant was
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Petersen. v. SAIF 

.. abie to sit down for only .ten minutes at a time. On the 
motor. coordination and, finger dexterity tests, claimant 
.scored lower than.the first'percentH~that 1s, 99 percent of 
the adult population would score higher .. On manual dex­
terity, he scored in the second percentile.·On general intel-· 
ligence; _verbal, numerical and clerical aptitudes, claimant 
scored between the 11th and 18th percentiles. Without' 
adjustment for standard error of measurement, claimant' · 
qualified for -no ·occupational pattern. With that adju'st-

. ment, he qualified for three, but the voc~tional expert· 
testified at the hearing that in noi:i~ of them could ·claimant 
have functioned with his· education and physica.l restric­
tions. Th~ expert did ~ot pursue' trying 'to find actual 
employment for claimant. After claimant informed the 
field services worker that Social Scq1rity had awarded him 
total disability, the worker closed the case, although claim­
ant did not ask the worker either to stop looking for 
employment prospects or to pursue the matter further. 

In response to a hypothetical question regarding 
the ·chances for any worker with claimant's aptitudes and 
restrictions to find gainful employment, the expert tcs­

. tified thatthey were "exceedingly limited." Except for that 
visit to the Employment Division's vocational expert, 
claimant has made no efforts to seek employment. 

Claimant testified that he is never without pain in 
his back. His right thigh and hip feei numb. He finds it 
necessary to lie down five or six times a day for about half 
an hour at a time. He has given up gardening, raising 
chickens and doing housework, except for occasionally 
washing the dishes and windows. He is no longer ablcdo 
hunt cir fish. He is able to drive only for distances of about a 
mile; he can ride as a passenger in a cru: only if he can stop 
about every 15 miles, get out of the car and straighten up. 

The Board, in reducing the disability award, 
emphasized the fact that the medical evidence alone does 
not support a finding that claimant is totally disabled. 
Although that may be true, we agree with the referee that 
claimant, from a realistic standpoint, is totally foreclosed 
from the labor market, when orie considers his age, educa­
tion, work history and physical restrictions. Wilson v. 
Weyerhaeuser, 30 Or App 403, 409, 567 P2d 567· (1977). It 
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able to sit down for only ten minutes at a time. On the
motor. coordination and, finger dexterity tests, claimant
scored lower than the first percentile that is, 99 percent of
the adult population would score higher.. On manual dex
terity, he scored in the second percentile. On general intel
ligence, verbal, numerical and clerical aptitudes, claimant
scored between the 11th and 18th percentiles. Without
adjustment for standard error of measurement, claimant
qualified for no occupational pattern. With that adjust
ment, he qualified for three, but the vocational expert
testified at the hearing that in none of them could claimant
have functioned with his education and physical restric
tions. The expert did not pursue trying to find actual
employment for claimant. After claimant informed the
field services worker that Social Security had awarded him
total disability, the worker closed the case, although claim
ant did not ask the worker either to stop looking for
employment prospects or to pursue the matter further.

In response to a hypothetical question regarding
the chances for any worker with claimant’s aptitudes and
restrictions to find gainful employment, the expert tes
tified that they were "exceedingly limited.” Except for that
visit to the Employment Division’s vocational expert,
claimant has made no efforts to seek employment.

 laimant testified that he is never without pain in
his back. His right thigh and hip feel numb. He finds it
necessary to lie down five or six times a day for about half
an hour at a time. He has given up gardening, raising
chickens and doing housework, except for occasional!}'
washing the dishes and windows. He is no longer able to
hunt or fish. He is able to drive only for distances of about a
mile; he can ride as a passenger in a car only if he can stop
about every 15 miles, get out of the car and straighten up.

The Board, in reducing the disability award,
emphasized the fact that the medical evidence alone does
not support a finding that claimant is totally disabled.
Although that may be true, we agree with the referee that
claimant, from a realistic standpoint, is totally foreclosed
from the labor market, when one considers his age, educa
tion, work history and physical restrictions. Wilson- v.
Weyerhaeuser, 30 Or App 403, 409, 567 P2d 56T (1977). It
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would be "futile for claimant to attempt to be employed." 
Morris v. Derz'}Y~, 50 Or App 533,538,623 P2d 1118 (1931). 

ORS 656.206(3)1 requires 'reasonable efforts' to 
seek employment. Given the expert opinion, which is undis- · 
puted by -SAIF, .that someone with claimant's aptitudes, 
education and physical restrictions was extremely unlikely 
to finµ.employment on his own, and.the fact that claimant 
~as reje~t~d for job retraining by the Workers' Compensa-' 
tion Departm~nt, we find that his lack of effort to do more 
was not uri.re~sonable under the circumstances. 

Reversed. 

1 ORS (i:,G.201,(3) provithis: 

"{3) 'l'hc ·worker has tilll burden of proving permanent total disability 
status und 111u:;t c:;tublish that he i11 willing to seek regular gainful employ­
mt'nt und thot he hus mmlc r!'uiionuble effort,., to obtuin ~uch employment." 
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would be "futile for claimant to attempt to be employed.”
Morris v. DennyX 50 Or App 533, 538, 623 P2d 1118 (1931).

ORS 656.206(3)^ requires 'reasonable efforts' to
seek employment. Given the expert opinion, which is undis
puted by SAIF, that someone with claimant’s aptitudes,
education and physical restrictions was extremely unlikely
to find,employment on his own, and the fact that claimant
was rejected for job retraining by the Workers’  ompensa
tion Department, we find that his lack of effort to do more
was not unreasonable under the circumstances.

Reversed.

'ORS ()5G.20(j(3) proviilos:
"(3) The worker lias the burden of proving permanent total disability

status and must establish tliut he is willing to seek regular gainful employ
ment and that lie has made roanonable effort-s to obtain such employment.''

m
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No. 315 June 15, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
·. STATE OF OREGON · . 

In the Matter of the Compens~tion of 
~ames E. Fossum, Decea?ed, 

FOSSUM, 
Petitioner, 

. . v. 
STATE A_CCIDENT INSURANCE FUND, et al, 

Respondents. · 

(Nos. 77-3475, 77-6112, 78-958, 78-959 
and 78~957, CA 1.4961) . 

769 

Submitted on remand from the Oregon Supreme Court, 
October 21, rnso. . · . 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensati~n Board. 

Argued and submitted May 29, 1981.. • 
. . 

Allen T. Murphy, Jr., Portland, argued the cause for 
petitioner. With him on the brief was Richardson, Murphy 
& Nelson, Portland. 

Darrell E. Bewley, Associate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance Fund, Salem, argued the cause for respondent, 
State Accident Insurance Fund. With him on the brief were 
K. R. Maloney, Chief Counsel, and James A. Blevins, Chief 
Counsel, . State Ac"cident. Insurance Fund, Salem. 

Margaret H. Leek Leiberan, Portland, argued the cause 
for respondent Argonaut Insurance Company. With her on 
the brief wa·s Lang, Klein, Wolf, Smith, Griffith & Hall-
mark, Portland. . 

Jerard S. Weigler, Portland, argued the cause for 
respol"l;dent Underwriters Adjusting Co. With him on the 
brief was Lindsay, Nahstoll, Hart, Neil & Weigler; Port­
land. 

Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and 
Young, Judges . 

. GILLETTE, P. J. 

Reversed. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
. STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
James E. Fossum, Deceased,

FOSSUM,
Petitioner,

■ V.
STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E FUND, et al,

Ecspondents.
(Nos. 77-3475, 77-6112, 78-958, 78-959

and 78-957,  A 14961)

Submitted on remand from the Oregon Supreme  ourt,
October 21, 1980.

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted May 29, 1981.

Allen T. Murphy, Jr., Portland, argued the cause for
petitioner. With him on the brief was Richardson, Murphy
& Nelson, Portland.
Darrell E. Bewley, Associate  ounsel, State Accident

Insurance Fund, Salem, argued the cause for respondent.
State Accident Insurance Fund. With him on the brief were
K. R. Maloney,  hief  ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief
 ounsel, State Accident Insurance Fund, Salem.
Margaret H. Leek Leiberan, Portland, argued the cause

for respondent Argonaut Insurance  ompany. With her on
the brief was Lang, Klein, Wolf, Smith, Griffith & Hall
mark, Portland.

Jerard S. Weigler, Portland, argued the cause for
respondent Underwriters Adjusting  o. With him on the
brief was Lindsay, Nahstoll, Hart, Neil & Weigler, Port
land.
Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and

Young, Judges.

GILLETTE, P. J.

Reversed.
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GILLETTE, P. J. 

771 

This is a workers' compensation proceeding 
brought by the widow of a worker who died· from asbestos­
caused cancer. She· seeks reversal of the decision of the 
Workers' Compensation Board (Board) finding the claim 
noncompensable. In an earlier opinion we found her claim 
to be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. Fos­
sum v. SAIF, 45 Or App 77, 607 P2d· 773 (1980). The 
Supreme Court disagreed and reversed that decision. 289 
Or 777, 619 P2d 233 (1980). Because our prior opinion did 
not discuss the merits of petitioner's claim, the case was 
remanded to us to determine whether or not the deceased 
worker's condition \.Vas caused by the conditions of. his 
employment arid was therefore compensable. We conclude 
that it wos. 

James E. Fossum was an electrical worker. During 
the ~nrly 1940s he worked as an electrician for three 
different employers in the ship-building industry in Port­
land. From 1948 to 1967, he had numerous employers, but 
the majority of the time he worked for W. R. Grasle 
Company. From December, 1969, to December, 197t.), he· 
was employed by Willamette Western. He left work on 
December 15, 1976; on February 15, 1977, a probable 
diagnosis was made of mesothelioma, an incurable form of 
lung cancer caused by asbestos. On March 18, 1977, Fos• 
sum fileq a claim for workers' compensation with Under­
writers Adjusting Company against Willamette Western.· 
The claim was denied. On August 4, 1977, he filed claims 
with SAIF against Poole 9 mcGonigle, Oregon Shipyards 
and Kaiser Company, T.R.D., the three shipbuilders. Fos­
sum died on August 5, 1977. His widow filed death benefit 
claims with SAIF against Poole 9 mcGonigle, Oregon Ship­
yards, and Kaiser Company, with Argonaut Insurance· 
Company against W. R. Grasle Company, and with Under~ 
writers Adjusting Company against Willamette Western; 
all the claims were denied. . 

A hearing was held on July 27, 1978, to determine 
whether Fossum's death was caused by an occupational 
disease and, if so, which, if any, of the three caniers was 
responsible. The referee found, in pertinent part: 

"(1) That the employer responsible for Fossum's condi­
tion is the last employer where there was some exposure of 
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GILLETTE, P. J.
This is a workers’ compensation proceeding

brought by the widow of a worker who died from asbestos-
caused cancer. She seeks reversal of the decision of the
Workers’  ompensation Board (Board) finding the claim
noncompensable. In an earlier opinion we found her claim
to be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. Fos-
sum V. SAIF, 45 Or App 7.7, 607 P2d 773 (1980). The
Supreme  ourt disagreed and reversed that decision. 289
Or 777, 619 P2d 233 (1980). Because our prior opinion did
not discuss the merits of petitioner’s claim, the case was
remanded to us to determine whether or not the deceased
worker’s condition was caused by the conditions of. his
employment and was therefore compensable. We conclude
that it wa.s.

James E. Possum was an electrical worker. During
the early 1940s he worked as an electrician for three
different employers in the ship-building industry in Port
land. From 1948 to 1967, he had numerous employers, but
the majority of the time he worked for W. R. Grasle
 ompany. From December, 1969, to December, 1976, He
was employed by Willamette Western. He left work on
December 15, 1976; on Februaiy 15, 1977, a probable
diagnosis was made of mesothelioma, an incurable form of
lung cancer caused by asbestos. On March 18, 1977, Pos
sum filed a claim for workers’ compensation with Under
writers Adjusting  ompany against Willamette Western.'
The claim was denied. On August 4, 1977, he filed claims
with SAIF against Poole 9 mcGonigle, Oregon Shipyards
and Kaiser  ompany, T.R.D., the three shipbuilders. Fos-
sum died on August 5, 1977. His widow filed death benefit
claims with SAIF against Poole 9 mcGonigle, Oregon Ship
yards, and Kaiser  ompany, with Argonaut Insurance
 ompany against W. R. Grasle  ompany, and with Under
writers Adjusting  ompany against Willamette Western;
all the claims were denied.

A hearing was held on July 27, 1978, to determine
whether Possum’s death was caused by an occupational
disease and, if so, which, if any, of the three carriers was
responsible. The referee found, in pertinent part:

"(1) That the employer responsible for Fossum’s condi
tion is the last employer where there was some exposure of

m

-274-

­

­
­

­

­

­



- - ---------

  

         
       
         
        
         
         

        
 
         
         
          
         

        
          
       

          
         

         
        
         
         
           
           

           
      
         
          
        

        
          

          
          

      
           
          
           

           
         

         
            
         
         
          

- - - -

772 Fossum v. SAIF 

a kind contributing to his condition; (2) that his employ­
ment at W. R.Grasle Company and at Willamette Western 
neither caused nor contributed fo his condition; (3) that 
Fossum's death from mesothelioma was caused by his 

· employment in .the shipyards in the 1940's; (4) that Kaiser 
Company, as Fossum's last employer in the shipyards, is 
the responsible employer; and (5) that SAIF is the respon­
sible carrier." 

The referee entered ·an order affirming all the denials 
issued on the deceased's claims and affirmi"ng all the de- . 

· nials issued on the widow's daims, except for the claim 
filed with SAIF against Kaiser Company,- which was held 
compensable. SAIF appealed to the Board, which concluded 

· that the claimant had failed to prove either legal or medical 
causation and reversed the order of the referee. 

We turn first to the issue of causation. The referee 
summarized the testimony of the two medical experts as 
follows: · 

"Dr. Miles Edwards, Chief of the Division of Chest 
Diseases of the University of Oregon Health Sciences 
Center, testified that mesothelioma is a cancer which is 
caused by exposure to asbestos. He stated that the disease 
does not develop generally until 25 to 40 years after the 
exposure to asbestos and that in no case is the disease 
known to develop in less than 15 years after exposure. He 
stated that any recent employment (definitely any emplof­
ment within 15 years of death and probably any employ• 
ment within 25-30 years of death) would not _have caused 
Mr. Fossum's mesothelioma. Dr. Edwards testified that it 
is medicaliy probable that Mr. Fossum acquired the ashes•· 
tos fibers in 1943 or 1944 while working ori the shipyards 
and that this later led to mesothelioma. He testified that 
he is absolutely certain that asbestos was the cause of the 
mesothelioma which caused claimant's death. Dr. Edwards 
stated that to be a high risk occupation for contracting this 
disease the occupution must be one where the asbestos is 
scattered in the air in very iimaU particle form and that 
studies show that the people who get this dcsease [sic] were 
insulation workers or people who worked in the shipyard 
even though they were not asbestos workers. Dr. Edwards 
testified that if claimant moved from job to job he could not 
possibly designate the responsible employer, but that.he is 
relating claimant's disease and death to employment in the 
shipyards in the 194_0's. He stated that to date stu~ies have 
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a kind contributing to his condition; (2) that his employ
ment at W. R.Grasle  ompany and at WillametteWestern
neither caused nor contributed to his condition; (3) that
Fossum’s death from mesothelioma was caused by his
employment in the shipyards in the 1940’s; (4) that Kaiser
 ompany, as Fossum’s last employer in the shipyards, is
the responsible employer; and (5) that SAIF is the respon
sible carrier.”

The referee entered an order affirming aU the denials
issued on the deceased’s claims and affirming all the de
nials issued on the widow’s claims, except for the claim
filed with SAIF against Kaiser  ompany, which was held
compensable. SAIF appealed to the Board, which concluded
that the claimant had failed to prove either legal or medical
causation and reversed the order of the referee.

We turn first to the issue of causation. The referee
summarized the testimony of the two medical experts as
follows:

"Dr. Miles Edwards,  hief of the Division of  hest
Diseases of the University of Oregon Health Sciences
 enter, testified that mesothelioma is a cancer which is
caused by exposure to asbestos. He stated that the disease
does not develop generally until 25 to 40 years after the
exposure to asbestos and that in no case is the disease
known to develop in less than 15 years after exposure. He
stated that any recent employment (definitely any employ
ment within 15 years of death and probably any employ
ment within 25-30 years of death) would not have caused
Mr. Fossum’s mesothelioma. Dr. Edwards testified that it
is medically probable that Mr. Fossum acquired the asbes
tos fibers in 1943 or 1944 while working on the shipyards

■ and that this later led to mesothelioma. He testified that
he is absolutely certain that asbestos was the cause of the
mesothelioma which caused claimant’s death. Dr. Edwards
stated that to be a high risk occupation for contracting this
disease the occupation must be one where the asbestos is
scattered in the air in very small particle form and that
studies show that the people who get this dcsease [sic] were
insulation workers or people who worked in the shipyard
even though they were not asbestos workers. Dr. Edwards
testified that if claimant moved from job to job he could not
possibly designate the responsible employer, but that he is
relating claimant’s disease and death to employment in the
shipyards in thie 1940’s. He stated that to date studies have
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not shown any incidence of mesothelioma in workers in 
occupations which incidentally deal with asbestos * * *. 

"Dr. Charles Hine, clinical professor of occupational 
· medicine and toxology at the Dniversity of Califomia at 
San Francisco, testified· that he had reviewed the adopsy 
report,. the medical reports, Mr. Fossum's deposition and 
that he had heard * * * testimony regarding Mr. Fossum's 
work at Willamette Western. He stated his opinion that 
* * * [it] is medically probable that Mr. Fossum's death 
from mesothelioma occurred from occuptiorial exposure. 
He stated that these tumors appear from 20 to 40 years 
after exposure and that extensive use of asbestos and lack 
of care in its dissemination led to exposure of all crafts that 
worked in yards constructing vessels. He causally related 
Mr. Fossum's work in the shipyards and his death from 
mesotheliornu. Hn stated his opinion that in claimant's 
employment nt Willurnelte Western his exposure to asbes­
tos was so infrequei1t, of such low intensity anu for such a 
short period thnt it would not have given rise to this tumor 
in an indefinite period of time. He stated that at Willamet­
te Western Mr. Fossum was not put at any greater risk of 
developing mcsothelioma than any person present in the 
hea:r-ing room." · 

The referee's summary accurately reflects both 
doctors' opinions. On de novo review, we conclude that the 
deceased worker's cancerous condition was caused by expo­
sure to asbestos found in the work place. There is no 
question that Fossum suffered from a type of lung cancer 
known to be caused by exposure to asbestos. It is also 
undisputed that he was exposed· to asbestos, in varying 
degrees and forµ-is, in all of the jobs identified above. The 
do_ctors' testimony supplies the necessary causal connection 
between the occupational exposure and the cancer. 

The question remains as to which of the three 
carriers is responsible for compensation. The answer to this 
question depends upon whether the "last injurious expo­
sure" rule applies. That rule was adopted by this court in 
k(athis v. SAIF, 10 Or App 139, 499 P2d 1331 (1972). In 
that case we held that, where an occupational disease is 
caused by a succession of jobs, each of which exposes the 
claimant to conditions which could cause the disease, then 
the last employer with risk exposure is liable. See Bra eke v. 
Baza'r, Inc., 51 Qr App 627, __ P2d __ 0981). 
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not shown any incidence of mesothelioma in workers in
occupations which incidentally deal with asbestos * *

"Dr.  harles Hine, clinical professor of occupational
medicine and toxology at the University of  alifornia at
San Francisco, testified that he had reviewed the autopsy
report, the medical reports, Mr. Fossum’s deposition and
that he had heard * * * testimony regarding Mr. Possum’s
work at Willamette Western. He stated his opinion that
* * * [it] is medically probable that Mr. Fossum’s death
from mesothelioma occurred from occuptional exposure.
He stated that these tumors appear from 20 to 40 years
after exposure and that extensive use of asbestos and lack
of care in its dissemination led to exposure of all crafts that
worked in yards constructing vessels. He causally related
Mr. Fossum’s work in tlie shipyards and his death from
mesothelioma. Ho stated his opinion that in claimant’s
employment at WillumcLte Western his exposure to asbes
tos was so infrequeisl, of such low intensity ami for such a 
short period timt it would not have given rise to tliis tumor
in an indefinite period of time. He stated that at Willamet
te Western Mr. Fossum was not put at any greater risk of 
developing mesothelioma than any person present in the
hearing room.”

The referee’s summary accurately reflects both
doctors’ opinions. On de novo review, we conclude that the
deceased worker’s cancerous condition was caused by expo
sure to asbestos found in the work place. There is no
question that Fossum suffered from a type of lung cancer
known to be caused by exposure to asbestos. It is also
undisputed that he was exposed to asbestos, in varying
degrees and forms, in all of the jobs Identified above. The
doctors’ testimony supplies the necessary causal connection
between the occupational exposure and the cancer.

The question remains as to which of the three
carriers is responsible for compensation. The answer to this
question depends upon whether the "last injurious expo
sure” rule applies. That rule was adopted by this court in
Mathis V. SAIF, 10 Or App 139, 499 P2d 1331 (1972). In
that case we held that, where an occupational disease is
caused by, a succession of jobs, each of which exposes the
claimant to conditions which could cause the disease, then
the last employer with risk exposure is liable. SeeBracks u.
JBazar, Inc., 51 Or App 627,______P2d : (1981).

#
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Fossum v. SAIF 

Claimant arbT\.l.es that, under Mathis, Willamette 
Western, as the last employer, is responsible for compensa­
tion, We disagree. In Mathis, we rejected the contention 
that the last employment m~st be a "material contributing 
cause" of the occupational disease. However, we did. con­
clude that the last employer is only liable if the conditions 
of the last employment were such that they could cause the 
claimant's occupational disease over some indefinite period 
of time; As we stated: · 

"It goes without stating that, before the last injurious· 
exposure.rule can be applied, thei-e must huvc been some 
exposure of a kind contributing to the condition. "jl,fat/zis v. 
S!iJF, supra, 10 Oi:- App at 139, quoting frori1 3 Larson, 
Workmen's Compensation Law,§ 95.21 (;1.971) (Emphasis 
supplied); see also Inkley v. Forest Fiber Products Co,, 288 
Or 337, 605 P2d 1175 (1980). . 

We· conclude that the last injurious exposure rule, applied 
fo the present c3:se, relieves Willamette Western and 
Grasle of liability. The medical testimony indicates that 
recent employment, within the last 15 to 20 years, would 
not have caused the deceased's inesothclioma. This particu~ 
lar form of ·cancer does not generally develop until 20 to 40 
years after exposure. While it is clear that the.deceased was 

· exposed to asbestos at Willamette Western; we are satisfied 
from the medical evidence that this exposure did not contri­
bute to the cause of his disease in this case and could not 
have done so. · 

We agree with the referee's conclusion that Fos­
sum's death from mesothelioma was caused by his employ­
ment in the 'shipyards during the 1940_s. His last employer 
in the· shipyards was Kaiser .Company, T.R.D; therefore, 
under the last injurious exposure rule, liability for compen­
sation lies with Kaiser Company. Mathis u. SAIF, supra. 
Claimant contends that State Industrial Accident Commis­
sion (SIAC), SAIF's predecessor, was Kaiser's cnrrier. 
SAIF, however, denies coverage. Kaiser Company is no 
longer in existence. and SAIF admits that it has destroyed 
the records of its predecessor, SIAC: The relevant workers' 
compensation statute at the time of Fossum's employment 
with Kaiser was OCLA § 102-1712. It provided, in perti­
nent part: 

"All persons, firms and corporations engaged as em­
ployers ~n any of the hazardous occupations hereafter 
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 laimant argues that, under Mathis, Willamette
Western, as the last employer, is responsible for compensa
tion. We disagree. In Mathis, we rejected the contention
that the last employment must be a "material contributing
cause” of the occupational disease. However, we did. con
clude that the last employer is only liable if the conditions
of the last employment were such that they could cause the
claimant's occupational disease over some indefinite period
of time. As we stated:

"It goes without stating that, before the last injurious
exposure rule can be applied, there must have been some
exposure ofa kind contributing to the condition. "Mathis v.
SMF, supra, 10 Or App at 139, quoting from 3 Larson,
Workmen’s  ompensation Law, § 95.21 (1971) (Emphasis
supplied); see also Jnkley u. Forest Fiber Products Co., 288 
Or 337, 605 P2d 1175 (1980).

We conclude that the last injurious exposure rule, applied
to the present case, relieves Willamette Western and
Grasle of liability. The medical testimony indicates that
recent employment, within the last 15 to 20 years, v/ould
not have caused the deceased’s mesothelioma. This particu
lar form of cancer does not generally develop until 20 to 40
years after exposure. While it is clear that the deceased was
exposed to asbestos atWillamette Western, we are satisfied
from the medical evidence that this exposure did not contri
bute to the cause of his disease in this case and could not
have done so.

We agree with the referee’s conclusion that Pos
sum’s death from mesothelioma was caused by his employ
ment in the shipyards during the 1940s. His last employer
in the shipyards was Kaiser  ompany, T.R.D; therefore,
under the last injurious exposure rule, liability for compen
sation lies with Kaiser  ompany. Mathis v. SAIF, supra.
 laimant contends that State Industrial Accident  ommis
sion (SlA ), SAIF’s predecessor, was Kaiser’s carrier.
SAIF, however, denies coverage. Kaiser  ompany is no
longer in existence, and SAIF admits that it has destroyed
the records of its predecessor, SIA . The relevant workers’
compensation statute at the time of Possum’s employment
with Kaiser was O LA § 102-1712. It provided, in perti
nent part;

"All persons, firms and corporations engaged as em
ployers in any of the hazardous occupations hereafter
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specified shall be subject to the:: prov1s10ns of this act; 
provided, however, that any such person, firm or corpora­
tion may be relieved of certain of the cbligations hereby 
imposed and shall lose the benefits hereby conferred by 
filing with the commission written notice.of an election not 
to be subject thereof in any manner hereinafter specified. 
* * *:' (Emphasis supplied.) · 

The law required all employers in hazardous occu­
pations to provide workers' compensation benefits. Kaiser 
Co., T.R.D:, ·was engaged in a·hazardous occupation. OCLA 
§ 102-1725(c). Absent evidence to the contrary, we presume 
that Kaiser complied with the law and provided compensa­
tion benefits. See ORS 41.360(33). There is no evidence that 
Kaiser elected not to be coverec!. SAIF contends that the 
claimant· must prove that Kaiser did not elect to not be 
subject tot.he Worken;' Compensation Act. We disagree. Iri 
the posture in which this case now stands, WC hold that the 
claimant has met her burden by showing the statutory 

. scheme.concerning hazardo1.is occupations, Kaiser, T.R.D.'s 
-status as a hazardous occupation employer and the destruc­
tion by. SAIF of any evidence which would have shown 
Kaiser's election not to be subject to the Act. 1 See Olds v. 
Olds~ 88 Or 209, 171 P 1046 (1918); Walter v. Turtle, 146 Or 
1, 29 P2d 517 (1934). The burden then shifted to SAIF, 
which has made no showing to t_he contrary. We find that 
Kaiser was covered by the Act and that SAIF, as SIAC's 
successor, ·is the responsible carrier. 

· We hold that petitioner's claim is compensable and 
. that SAIF is responsible for compensation. The order of the 
Board is reversed and· that of the referee is reinstated. 

Reversed. 

1 At oral argument, counsel for SAIF pointed out other lines of inquiry which 
claimant might have. pursued to establish, at least by inference, that Kaiser, 
T.R.D., was or was not subject to the Act. Such inquiries; including an examina­
tion of aid lawsuits brought :.md~r the Act, would not, hawL•ver. hm·c established 
anything conclusively. Only the ·destroyed records could have done that. 
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specified shall be subject to the provisions of this act;
provided, however, that any such person, firm or corpora
tion may be relieved of certain of the obligations hereby
imposed and shall lose the benefits hereby conferred by
filing with the commission written notice ofan election not
to be subject thereof \x\ any manner hereinafter specified.
* * *” (Emphasis supplied.)

The law required all employers in hazardous occu
pations to provide workers’ compensation benefits. Kaiser
 o., T.R.D.,'was engaged in a hazardous occupation. O LA
§ 102-1725(c). Absent evidence to the contrary, we presume
that Kaiser complied with the law and provided compensa
tion benefits. SeeORS 41.360(33). There is no evidence that
Kaiser elected not to be covered. SAIF contends that the
claimant must prove that Kaiser did not elect to not be
subject to the Workers’  ompensation Act. We disagree. In
the posture in which this case now stands, wo hold that the
claimant has met her burden by showing the statutory
scheme concerning hazardous occupations, Kaiser, T.R.D.’s
-status as a hazardous occupation employer and the destruc
tion by SAIF of any evidence which would have shown
Kaiser’s election not to be subject to the Act.^ See Olds v.
Olds, 88 Or 209, 171 P 1046 (1918); Walter u. Turtle, 146 Or
1, 29 P2d 517 (1934). The burden then shifted to SAIF,
which has made no showing to the contrary. We find that
Kaiser was covered by the Act and that SAIF, as SIA ’s
successor, is the responsible carrier.

We hold that petitioner’s claim is compensable and
that SAIF is responsible for compensation. The order of the
Board is reversed and that of the referee is reinstated.

Reversed.

' At oral argument, counsel for SAIF pointed out other lines of inquiry- which
claimant might have pursued to establish, at least by inference, that Kaiser,
T.R.D., was or was not subject to the -\ct. Sucii inquiries, including un examina
tion of old lawsuits brought under the Act, would not, however, have established
anything concl'jsively. Only the destroyed records could have done that.
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No. 337 June 29, 1981 

.· IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON . 

In the Matter. of the Compensation 
of Sharon S. Webster, Glaimant .. 

WEBSTER, 
Petitioner, 

V. 

STATE ACCIDENT·IN$URANCE FUND 
CORPORATION, 

'Respondent. 

(WCB No. 79-10,543, CA 19497) 

957 

,Judicial Review from Workers' Comp.ensut.io_n Boa:d. 

Argued and submitted Mard~ 25, 1981. 

Robert K. Udziela, Portland, argu('d the ·cause for peti­
tioner. With him on the brief was 'r-1oz.zi,' Wi1son, Atchison, 
-Kahn & O'Leary, Portland. · 

Darrell ~- Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance F1.:1,nd Corporation, argued the cause for respQnd­

. ent. With him oii lhe brief were·K. R. Maloµey, General 
· Counset and.James A. Blevins, Chief Trial Counsel, State 
Accident Insurance Fund Corpor0:tion, Salem. . 

· . Bcfo:re Buttler, Presiding Judge, and ·warden and War-
. ren, ,:fud~es. · · 

BUTILER, P._ J. 

Affirmed in part; reversed in part, a·nd remanded. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation
of Sharon S. Webster,  laimant.

WEBSTER,
Petitioner,

V.
STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E FUND

 ORPORATION,
Respondent.

(W B No. 79-10,543,  A 19497)
Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted March 25, 1981.

Robert K. Udziela, Portland, argued the cause for peti
tioner. With him on the brief was Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison,
Kahn & O’Leary, Portland.

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident
Insurance Fund  orporation, argued the cause for respond
ent. With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney, General
 ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief Trial  ounsel, State
Accident Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem.
Before Buttler, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War

ren, Judges.
BUTTLER, P._ J.
Affirmed in part; reversed in part, and remanded.
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BUTTLER, P. J. 

The only issue in this Workers' Compensation case 
is whether claimant has proven a worsening(aggravation) 
of her compensable psychiatric condition· since her last 
arrangement of compensation. 1 The referee gr..-.nted claim­
ant temporary total disability benefits because SAIF failed 
to act on her claim, allowed her a penalty, ORS 656.262(8), 
and attorney fees, ORS 656.382(1), but denied her aggrava­
tion claim. The Workers' Compensation Board (Board), 
with one member _dissenting, affirmed, adopting the ref­
eree's· opinion and order. Claimant seeks judicial review; 
we reverse the denial.of the nggravation claim and remand 
for further proceedings. 

Claimant's psychiatric disability has been deter­
mined previously to Le compcns:1ole, resulting in an ..-.ward 
of 30 percent unscheduled permanent disability, >,.vhich was 
affirmed by this court. ·JVebster u. S:4JF, 45 Or App 873, 609 
P2d 430 (1981). Since her last award, October· 13, 1978, 
claimant's condition has worsened; she has become ·more 
withdrawn and has. experienced more delusional and 
suicidal ruminations than she had experienced prior to the 
last determination. Her· condition required that she be 
hospitalized for severe depressive neurosis: twice in April, 
1979, once in September, 1979, and again in January, 1980. 
Numerous combinations of medications prescribed for. her 
met with little success. During claimant's last two hos­
pitalizations, she received electroconvulsive shock treat­
ment, a treatment never before given her, after her treat­
ing physician, Dr, Petroske, brought in a consultant, Dr. 
Ball, and after the risk factors involved in such treatment 
were discussed with claimant and her husband. She under­
went a cciurse of three electroconvulsive shock treatments, 
after which Dr. Petroske expressed the opinion, on October 
23, 1979, that claimant showed a "noticeable improvement 
in her mood state" but experienced a "moderate amount of 
post ECT confusion." On December 10, 1979, that doctor 
stated: · 

1 ORS 656.273( 1) provides: 

"(1) After the last award or nrnmgcment of comp .. nsation. an injured 
worker is entitled to additional compensation, including medical $ervicc\s·, for 
worsened conditions resulting from the original injury." . . ' 
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EUTTLER, P. J.

The only issue in this Workers’  ompensation case
is'whether claimant has proven a worsening (aggravation)
of her compensable psychiatric condition since her last
arrangement of compensation.^ The referee granted claim-,
ant temporary total disability benefits because SAIF failed
to act on her claim, allowed her a penalty, ORS 656.262(8),
and attorney fees, ORS 656.382(1), but denied her aggrava
tion claim. The Workers’  ompensation Board (Board),
with one member .dissenting, affirmed, adopting the ref
eree’s opinion and order.  laimant seeks judicial review;
we reverse the denial of the aggravation claim and remand
for further proceedings.

 laimant’s psychiatric disability has been deter
mined previously to be compensable, resulting in an award
of 30 percent unscheduled permanent disability, which was
affirmed by this court. Webster v. SAIF, 45 Or App 873, 609
P2d 430 (1981). Since her last award, October 13, 1978,
claimant’s condition has worsened; she has become more
withdrawn and has experienced more delusional and
suicidal ruminations than she had experienced prior to the
last determination. Her condition required that she be
hospitalized for severe depressive neurosis: twice in April,
1979, once in September, 1979, and again in January, 1980.
Numerous combinations of medications prescribed for her
met with little success. During claimant’s last two hos
pitalizations, she received electroconvulsive shock treat
ment, a treatment never before given her, after her treat
ing physician. Dr. Petroske, brought in a consultant. Dr.
Ball, and after the risk factors involved in such treatment
were discussed with claimant and her husband. She under
went a course of three electroconvulsive shock treatments,
after which Dr. Petroske expressed the opinion, on October
23, 1979, that claimant showed a "noticeable improvement
in her mood state” but experienced a "moderate amount of
post E T confusion.” On December 10, 1979, that doctor
stated:

" ORS 656.273(1) provides:
"(1) After the last award or arrangement of compens.ation, an injured

worker is entitled to additional compensation, including medical ser.'iccs', for
worsened conditions resulting from the original injury."
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Webster v. SAIF 

"Mrs. \Vebster had a worsening of her condition; a 
severe depressive reaction, that was a result of her injury 
at work. She was unable to work because of a worsening of 
the depression ,vhich had become so severe that she re­
quired hospitalization and even a course of electroshock 
treatment. 

''Mrs. \Vcbster· was hospitalized for treatment of her 
worsened condition namely due to an increase in the sever­
ity of the depression. 

"In my opinion, she is currently unable to work." 

The medical records reveal that by late January, 
1980, claimant had retrogressed, had become very depress­
ed and preoccupied with suicide. Additional electroshock 
treatment was discussed with Dr. Ball, after which claim­
ant agreed to a series of two further treatments. Following 
those treatments, she began t.o show "marked improvement 
in her mood state" and was discharged from the hospital on 
February 8, 1980, with prescribed medication. 

A request for hearing on the aggravation claim 
was filed in December, 1979;'thc hearing was held on April 
21, 1980, following our opinion on review of the original 
claim. On the record then before us, we concurred in the 
Board's determination that claimant w8s not pcrmanc~ntly 
and totally disabled, and affirmed the award of 30 percent 
unscheduled permanent disability. Webster v. SAJF, supra, 
45 Or App at 878. Although the referee had concluded in 
the first hearing that claimant was permanently and total­
ly disabled, he concluded in the second hearing, after we 
affirmed ihe Board's determination reducing the award, 
that the record did not support a worsening of her condition 
because ttere was rio evidence of a "pathological chirnge." 
The referee also· stated there was "no evidence of any 
greater loss of earning capacity from the time loss of the 
last award." Claimant had not worked from the original 
compensable injury in December, 1973, until the time of 
th~ first hearing, and still had not worked at the time of the 
second hearing. 2 

· In dissenting from the Board's adoption of the 
referee's order, then Chairman Wilson stated:. 

2 There is no contention that cloimurit is malingering. 
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"Mrs. Webster had a worsening of her condition; a
severe depressive reaction, that was a result of her injury
at work. She was unable to work because of a worsening of
the depression which had become so severe that she re
quired hospitalization and even a course of electroshock
treatment.

"Mrs. Webster was hospitalized for treatment of her
worsened condition namely due to an increase in the sever
ity of the depression.

”In my opinion, .she is currently unable to work.”

The medical records reveal that by late January,
1980, claimant had retrogressed, had become very depress
ed and preoccupied with suicide. Additional electroshock
treatment was discussed with Dr. Ball, after which claim
ant agreed to a series of two further treatments. Following
those treatments, she began to show "marked improvement
in her mood state" and was discharged from the hospital on
February 8, 1980, with prescribed medication.

A request for hearing on the aggravation claim
was filed in December, 1979;’thc hearing was held on April
21, 1980, following our opinion on review of the original
claim. On the record then before us, we concurred in the
Board’s determination that claimant was not pei manontly
and totally disabled, and affirmed the award of 30 percent
unscheduled permanent disability. Webster v. SAIF, supra.
45 Or App at 878. Although the referee had concluded in
the first hearing that claimant was permanently and total
ly disabled, he concluded in the second hearing, after we
affirmed ^he Board’s determination reducing the award,
that the record did not support a worsening of her condition
because there was no evidence of a "pathological change.”
The referee also stated there was "no evidence of any
greater loss of earning capacity from the time loss of the
last award.”  laimant had not worked from the original
compensable injury in December, 1973, until the time of
the first hearing, and still had not worked at the time of the
second hearing.^

In dissenting from the Board’s adoption of the
referee’s order, then  hairman Wilson stated:

There is no contention that claimant is malingering.
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Cite as 52 Or App 957 (1981) __;_----------~---
"The uncontradicied medical evidence establishes a 

worsened condition resulti~g from the industrial injury. 
The Referee. bases his denial on a failure to show a 
'pathological' change. The law does not require such proof; 
indeed, it would be a rare finding in cases such as th:s · 
involving psychological illness. To establish an aggrava- ' 
tion claim, it is only necessary to show a worsened condi­
tio~ from the industrial injury. This has been established 
by the treating doctor's medical opinion that the claimant's 
conditiqn had deteriorated· to the point that she had be­
come increasingly psychotic and needed inpatient hos­
pitalization and electroshock treatment, a type of treat­
ment never .before given . to her. 

"The Referee also requires a showing of greater loss of 
carnir\g capacity than mvarclecl al last closure. This test 
only applies when the cxlcnl of diHability is again deter­
mined and is not n net:css:iry consideration in determining 
whether ,in r~ggravation has occurred.'' 

We agree with that analysis. The medical evidence since 
the prior determination clearly shows that claimant's con­

. dition has worsened to the extent that she has undergone a 
ser1cs of shock treatme~ts recommended by two medical 
doctors, a major procedure which had not been prescribed 
earlier. We conclude that the record supports the claim of a 
worsening of claimant's underlying psychiatric condition. 

We hold that claimant has carried her burden of 
proving an aggravation. We reverse the denial of the ag­
gravation claim a_nd rerriarid for further proceedings. 

Affirmed in part; reversed in part, and remanded·. 
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"The uncontradicled medical evidence establishes a
worsened condition resulting from the industrial injur>'.
The Referee bases his denial on a failure to show a
'pathological' change. The law does not require such proof;
indeed, it would be a rare finding in cases such as this
involving psychological illness. To establish an aggrava
tion claim, it is only necessary to show a worsened condi
tion from the industrial injury. This has been established
by the treating doctor’s medical opinion that the claimant’s
condition had deteriorated to the point that she had be
come increasingly psychotic and needed inpatient hos
pitalization and electroshock treatment, a type of treat
ment never before given.to her.
"The Referee also requires a showing of greater loss of

earning capacity than awarded at last closvire. This test
only ajjplies wlien the extent of disability is again deter
mined and is not n necessary consideration in determining
whether an aggravation has occurred.’’

We agree with that analysis. The medical evidence since
the prior determination clearly shows that claimant’s con
dition has worsened to the extent that she has undergone a
series of shock treatments recommended by two medical
doctors, a major procedure which had not been prescribed
earlier. We conclude that the record supports the claim of a
worsening of claimant’s underlying psychiatric condition.

We hold that claimant has carried her burden of
proving an aggravation. We reverse the denial of the ag
gravation claim and remand for further proceedings.

Affirmed in part; reversed in part, and remanded.
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347 June 29, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
Robert DeGraff, Claimant.· 

J. C. COMPTON COMPANY, 
Petitioner, 

u. 
DeGRAFF, et al, 

Respondents. 

(WCB No. 78-74~5 & 78-9173, CA 19196) 

1023 

On respondent State Accident Insurance Fund Corpora­
tion's petition for reconsideration filed May 21, 1981. For­
mer opinion filed May 18, 1981. 

K. R. Maloney, General Counsel, James A .. Blevins, 
Chief Trial Counsel, and Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate 
Counsel, State .Accident Insurance Fund· Corporation, 
Salem, for petition. · · 

Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and 
Young, Judges. 

ROBERTS, J. 

Reconsideration granted; former opinion adhered to as· 
modified. · · 

-283-

#
No. 347 June 29, 1981 1023

m

IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Robert DeGraff,  laimant.
J.  .  OMPTON  OMPANY,

Petitioner,
V.

DeGRAFF, et al,
Respondents.

(W B No. 78-7405 & 78-9173,  A 19196)

On respondent State Accident Insurance Fund  orpora
tion’s petition for reconsideration filed May 21, 1981. For
mer opinion filed May 18, 1981.

K. R. Maloney, General  ounsel, James A. Blevins,
 hief Trial  ounsel, and Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate
 ounsel, State .Accident Insurance Fund  orporation,
Salem, for petition.
Before Gillette, Presiding Judge, and Roberts and

Young, Judges.

ROBERTS, J. .

Reconsideration granted; former opinion adhered to as
modified.
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ROBERTS, J. 
We grant this petiti9n for reconsideration in order 

to clarify our opinion. Petitioner SAIF disputes language in 
the opinion which states, "[W]hether·claimant suffered an 
aggravation or new injury is determined by the medical 
evidence *. *' *."1 We did not mean, of course, that the 
medical evidence is the sole determinative factor. Our 
review procedure is to consider the facts of each case and 

. _then apply. statutory or judicially established rules, e.g., 
the last injurious exposure rule, Smith v. Ed's Pancake 
House, 27.0r App 361, 556 P2d I58 (1976), or the continu­
ing symptoms rule, Barcickman u. General Telephone, 25 
Or App 2~3, 548 P2d 1341 ·(1976), to those facts to deter­
mine the ultimate question of whether a compensable 
event is an agt{ravation of an old inju;·y or new injury. It 
may not be clear that this is \vhat we did in our original 

· opinion in this case. ·· · 
In this pmticular cusc the two insurers :.iggres~ive­

ly sought the opinions of" the doctors on the question of 
aggravation versus new injury and \vere preoccupied with 
arguing about what the doctors said. We noted the referee's 
·~tatement to the effectthat "[t1he medical opinions* * * do 
not help fo the resolution of the issue of aggravation versus 
new irijury because they are conflicting and contradictory. 
This is due primarily to the fact that the medical definl­
tions of aggravation versus new injury do not necessarily 
fit the legal-definition as identified, in the applicable law * * .*." Slip' opinion 'at 4. However, ·we misspoke ourselves 
when we said, ''[t]he statements made by the doctors who 
said that this was an aggravation carry the greater weight 
and are, therefore, dispositive of this case." The doctors' 
~tatements carried only par: of the weight in our decision. 

While we may have, in our original opinion, mis­
takenly duplicated the insurers' emphasis on the doctors' 
conclusions, in· our own effort to apply all the evidence 
available in deciding this very close question, we adhere 

'SAIF argues that this bngunge is errorn•ous, in that the determination of whether.there is an aggravation or new injury is an issi.1e of law, W0 point out to 
:petitioner that we have said "IWlhether the dis;,bility is the rC'sult of an aggrava•· tion of a previous compensable injury or a new injury is a factual issue." Hanna l'. 11-lcGrew Bros. Sawmill. 44 Or App 189, 194, 605 P2d i24, modifiPd on other 
gmunds, 45_ Or'App 757,609 P2d·422 (19801 
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ROBERTS, J.
We grant this petition for reconsideration in order

to clarify our opinion. Petitioner SAIF disputes language in
the opinion which states, "[Wjhether claimant suffered an
aggravation or new injury is determined by the medical
evidence We did not mean, of course, that the
medical evidence is the sole determinative factor. Our
review procedure is to consider the facts of each case and
then apply statutory or judicially established rules, e.g.,
the last injurious exposure rule, Smith u. Eds Pancake
House, 27 Or App 361, 556 P2d 158 (1976), or the continu
ing symptoms rule, Bardckman v. General Telephone, 25
Or App 293, 548 P2d 1341 (1976), to those facts to deter
mine the ultimate question of whether a compensable
event is an aggravation of an old injury or new injury. It
may not be clear that this is what we did in our original
opinion in this case.

In this particular case the two insurers aggressive
ly sought the opinions of the doctors on the question of
aggravation versus new injury and were preoccupied with
arguing about what the doctors said. We noted the referee’s
statement to the effect that ”[t]he medical opinions * do
not help in the resolution of the issue of aggravation versus
new injury because they, are conflicting and contradictory.
This is due primarily to the fact that the medical defini
tions of aggravation versus new injury do not necessarily
fit the legal definition as identified in the applicable law
* * Slip opinion at 4. However, we misspoke ourselves
when w'e said, ”[t]he statements made by the doctors who
said that this was an aggravation carry the greater weight
and are, therefore, dispositive of this case.” The doctors’
statements carried only part of the weight in our decision.

While we may have, in our original opinion, mis
takenly duplicated the insurers’ emphasis on the doctors’
conclusions, in our own effort to apply all the evidence
available in deciding this very close question, we adhere

' SAIF argues that this language is erroneous, in that the determination of
whether.there is an aggravation or new injury is on i.ssue of law, We point out to
petitioner that we have said "iWlhethcr the disability is the result of an aggrava
tion of a previou.s compensable injury or a new injury is a factual issue.” Hanna i\
McGrew Bros. Sawmill, 44 Or App 189, 194, 605 P2d 724, modified on other
grounds, 45 Or App 757, 609 P2d 422 (19801.

m

m
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to the result in our previous opinion. Despite conflicts in 
the· medical evidence, we conclude, as ,ve did in the .first 
opinion, that the evidence establishes claimant suffered an 
aggravation· of a previous injury. 2 Claimant's own testi­
mony indicates an aggravation of his old injury, slip opin-

. ion a_t 9, specifically, that portion of claimant's testimony 
that he had had continuing back pains and that the pains 
had become worse. The referee who had the opportunity to · 
see claim[lnt and to assess his credibility also found his 
condition to be an aggrnvation. 3 · · · · 

As we noted in Calder v. · Hughes & Ladd, 23 Or 
App 66, ·70, 541 P2d 152 (1975), in cases involving succes­
sive injuries "(t]he line of distinction between which of the 
employers is responsible is admittedly a very fine one 
* * * .'' As petitioner points out, the issue is whether the 
injury is a riew one under the last injurious C'Xposure rule, 
or whether it is an aggravation of a pre-existing conditior1. 
Compare Smith v. Ed~<; Pancake house, supra, with Calder 
v. Hughes & Ladd, supra. Our evaluation of the medical 
evidence here, along with the daimant's ·own testimony, 
leads us to conclude again that the evidence·militates in 
favor of aggra".'ation. · · ·· 

Reconsideration granted; former opinion adhered 
to as modif1ed. 

i We find the s·tatements of Dr. Fax, claimant's treating physician, particlilar­
ly significant- While he reported a "new nerve symptomatology" and indicated 
that claimant's. left leg was affected instead of his right, his chart notes thnt 
claimant is suffering "recurrent low back pain and sciatica which is probably an 
aggrnvation of l'lis old injury, and the sciatica may be due to some pulling of the 
scar tissue from his old laminectomy." 

"SAIF did claim it was prejudiced by the testimony of claimant at the hearing 
because of the disputed claim settlement claimant had entered into with the other 
insurer. We discussed the disputed claim settl,.ment issue at length in our 
previous opinion and found the settlement _to be invalid. On the record before us 
we are unable. to determine if claimant's testimony was influenced hy the 
settlement; however, the referee, who was awan• of th!' purported settlement. 
found claimant credible in all respects. 
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to the result in our previous opinion. Despite conflicts in
the medical evidence, we conclude, as v/e did.in the,first
opinion, that the evidence establishes claimant suffered an
aggravation- of a previous injuiy.^  laimant’s own testi
mony indicates an aggravation of his old injury, slip opin
ion at 9, specifically, that portion of claimant’s testimony
that he had had continuing back pains and that the pains
had become worse. The referee who had the opportunity to
see claimant and to assess his credibility also found his
condition to be an aggravation.^

As we noted in Colder v. Hughes & Ladd, 23 Or
App 66, 70, 541 P2d 152 (1975), in cases involving succes
sive injuries ”[t]he line of distinction between which of the
employers is responsible is admittedly a very fine one
’*• * As petitioner points out, the issue is whether the
injury is a new one under the last injurious exposure rule,
or whether it is an aggravation of a pre-existing condition.
Compare Smith v. Eds Pancake house, supra, with Calder
u. Hughes & Ladd, supra. Our evaluation of the medical
evidence here, along with the claimant’s own testimony,
leads us to conclude again that the evidence militates in
favor of aggravation.

Reconsideration granted; former opinion adhered
to as modified.

m

We find the statements of Dr. Fax, claimant’s treating physician, particiilar-
ly significant. While he reported a "new nerve symptomatology” and indicated
that claimant’s, left leg was affected instead of his right, his chart notes that
claimant is suffering "recurrent low back pain and sciatica which is probably an
aggravation of his old injury, and the sciatica may be due to some pulling of the
scar tissue from his old laminectomy.”

■' SAIF did claim it wa.s prejudiced by the testimony of claimant at the hearing
because of the disputed claim settlement claimant had entered into with the other
insurer. We discussed the disputed claim settlement issue at length in our
previous opinion and found the settlement to be invalid. On the record before us
wo are unable , to determine if claimant’s testimony was influenced by the
settlement; however, the referee, who was aware of the purported settlement,
found claimant credible in all respects.
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348 June W, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensaticn of 
J. D. Carter, Claimant. 

CARTER 
Petitioner, 

V. 

STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE 
FUND CORPORATION, 

Respondent. 

(WCB No. 78A94G,. CA 18498) 

1(127 \ 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and submitted December 17, 1980. 

Kenneth D. Peterson, ·,Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for 
petitioner. On the brief ,vere Steven C. Yates and Malagon, 
Velurc · & Yates, Eugene, · · 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance Fund· Corporation, Salem, argued the cause for 
respondent. With him on . the brief were K. R. Maloney, 
General Counsel, and James A. Blevins, Chief Trial Coun­
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation, Salem. 

. . 

Before Joseph, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War-
ren, Judges. · 

WARREN, J. 

Reversed and remanded. 
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
J. D.  arter,  laimant.

 ARTER,
Petitioner,

V.
STATE A  IDENT INSURAN E

FUND  ORPORATION,
Respondent.

(W B No. 78-4946,' A 18498)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted December 17, 1980.

Kenneth D. Peterson, Jr., Eugene, argued the cause for
petitioner. On the brief were Steven  . Yates and Malagon,
Velure & Yates, Eugene,

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate  ounsel, State Accident
Insurance Fund'  orporation, Salem, argued the cause for
respondent. With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney,
General  ounsel, and James A. Blevins,  hief Trial  oun
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem.

Before Joseph, Presiding Judge, and Warden and War
ren, Judges.

WARREN, J.
Reversed and remanded.
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as 52 Or App 1027 (19_8~1'-) --~-------- 1029 

WARREN, J .. 
Clai'mant appeals from an order of the Workers' 

' Compensation Board (Board), holding that · closure of the 
claim p·ursuant to·ORS {356.278 \\ .. ~s a proper exercise of its 
own mot~on jurisdiction. ORS 656 .27 8 · provides: 

"(1) The pow.er and jurisdiction of the board shall be 
continuing, and it may,'upon its owri motion, from t.ime to 
time mod~fy, change or terminate former finding~, orders 
or awards if in its opinfon such nction is justified, · · 

"(2) An ·order or award .made by the board during the 
· time within ~hich. the. claimant has the right t~· request a 
hearing on aggravation under ORS 656.273 is not an order 
or .:1waz;d, as 'the cas·c may he, made by thl'- board on its own 
motion. · · · · 

"(3) · The claimant has no ri[~ht to a hearing, review or 
appeal on any order c;r award nu{de by the board on [ts o\:m 
motion, excerit when the m'dcr <l iminishes or terminates. a 
former award or terminates medical or hospital care. The 
employer may request a hearii1g on an ordc.r which in­
creases the award or grants mlditional ~cdical or hospital 
care to the claimant." · · 

The case wa~ submitted on stipulated facts. On 
October 19, 1967, claimant suffered a compensable injury. 
His claim was closed·on November 20, 1967, by.a determi­
nation order which denied compensation. In 1969, the claim 
was reopened by the Hearings Divisicn of the Workers' 
Compensation Board, due to an aggravat.ion of the 1967 

· injury. On July 28, 1972, a second determination order was 
issued, closing the claim and awarding temporary total and 
35 percent unschedu..led per~anent partial disability com- · 
pe:qsatio'n. Under ORS 656.273(4), 1 claimant's aggravation· 
righ~s expired November 20, 1972. · 

1. ORS 656.27314) provides: · 

· . "(4)(nl Exc(>pl ai, providtcd in pnragrnphs ibl and (c) of thi~ sub~~cction. the 
claim for aggr,.ivation must be filed witi1in fiw YL')1TS nfter the fin,t determi­
nation made under subsection (3l of ORS 656.26S. 

"(bl IE the i~jury was no~disabling and no ddermination was m:id!>, 
the claim for aggravation must be filed within five years after the dat~ of 
injury. 

"(cl If the irijury was disabling but Yfithout permanent disability and 
no determin.ation was made, the claim for aggravation mu~t be .filed within 
five years from the date of the noti~e of claim closure by the self-insured 
employer or the employer's insure(' . 
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WARREN, J.
 laimant appeals from an order of the Workers’

 ompensation Board (Board), holding that closure of the
claim pursuant to'ORS 656.278 was a proper exercise of its
own motion jurisdiction. ORS 656.278 provides;

"(1) The power and jurisdiction of the board shall.be
continuing, and it may, upon its own motion, from time to
time modify, change or terminate former findings, orders
or awards if in its opinion such action is justified,

"(2) An order or award made by the board during the
time within which the claimant has the right to request a
hearing on aggravation under ORS 656.273 is not an order
or award, as the case may be, made by the board on it.s own
motion.

"(3) The claimant has no right to a hearing, review or
appeal on any order or award made by the board on its own

• motion, except when tlie order diminishes or terminates,a
former award or terminates medical or hospital care. The
employer may request a hearing on an order which in
creases the award or grants additional medical or hospital
care to the claimant.”

The case was submitted on stipulated facts. On
October 19, 1967, claimant suffered a compensable injury.
His claim was closed'on November 20, 1967, by a determi
nation order which denied compensation. In 1969, the claim
was reopened by the Hearings Division of the Workers’
 ompensation Board, due to an aggravation of the 1967
injury. On July 28, 1972, a second determination order was
issued, closing the claim and awarding temporary total and
35 percent unscheduled permanent partial disability com
pensation. Under ORS 656.273(4),^ claimant’s aggravation
rights expired November 20, 1972.

m

' ORS 656.273(4) provides:
' . "(4)(n) Except a.s provided in pariigpiphs (b) and (c) of this subsection, the

claim for aggravation must be filed within five years after the first determi
nation made under subsection (3) of ORS 656.26S.

"(b) If the injury was nondisabling and no determination was made,
the claim for aggravation must be filed within five years after the date of
injury,

"(c) If the injury was disabling but without permanent disability and
no determination was made, the claim for aggravation must bc.fUod within
five years from the date of the notice of claim closure by the self-insured
employer or the employer’s insurer."
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Carter v. SAIF --------------~-------------~ 

In May, 1973, the claim was again reopened, 
apparently in response to claimant's need for multiple 
surgeries. Claimant's right to appeal the second determina­
tion order (July 28, 1972) under ORS 656.2682 expired on 
July 28, 1973. Responding to SAIF's request for closure, the 
Board on June 22, 1978, in an order denominated an ''Owri 
Motion Determination,'' awarded additional compensation 
and informed cJaimant that he had "no right to a hearing, 
review or appeal on this award made by the Board on its 
·own motipn." 

Thereafter, claimant requested a hearing regard­
ing the propriety of tl-te Board's exercise of its own motion· 
jurisdiction. It was his contention that the claim should 

· have been cl_osed pursuant to ORS 656.268, rather than 
under ORS 656.278, which precludes appeal. The case was 
ref_erred _by .t~e Board to the Hearings Division for re.':lolu-
tion of this issue. · 

IR(•frrenCl' in ORS o5G 271(4Hn) lo '"suhsl'ction (3) of ORS !iSG.268" is lltl appan;nl 

error. ORS 656.268 wns n-numbcrC'd in 1(179. Or L:1ws 197\.( ch 839, ~ 4, at 1150-
51. In u~ending ORS 656.27314) in 1979, it. is probc1ble thnt the legislature 
int!'nded to rE'ft;r to subsection 14) of ORS 656.268. which concerns closure by tlw 
Evaluation Division, rather than ~ubsection (3l, whid1 concerns dosure b}' the 
carrier. Or L~ws 197~, ch 839, t, 6, at_ 1151-52.) 

i ORS 656.26fl' pl"ovtdcs in pertinent part: 

"!2l When the injured worker's condition resulting from a disabling 
rnjury has· become medically stationary, unless he is enrolled nnd nctivel_v 
engaged in an authorized· program· of vocational rehabilitation, the Stnte 
Accident Insurance Fund Corporation or direct responsibility employer shall 
so notify the Evaluation Diiision, the worker, and the contributing employer. 
if any, and i'equest the claim be examined and further compensation, if nny, 
be determined. ,. • • 

u * * * * * 

"(4) Within 30 days after the Evuluation Division receives the medical 
and vocational reports relating to a disabling injury, the claim shall be 
examined and "further ·compensation. including p,:•rrnanent di~ability award, 
if nny1 dl'tcrminc-d under th£• director's supervisio,:,.. • * • 

'"(6) The Evaluation Di\·ision shall mail a copy ()f the determination to nil 
interested parties. Any such party may request a hearing under ORS 656.283 
on the "determination made under subsection (4) of this s,,ction within one 
year after copies of the determination are mailed'. 

·''*"'***., 
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In May, 1973, the claim was again reopened,
apparently in response to claimant’s need for rnultiple
surgeries.  laimant’s right to appeal the second determina
tion order (July 28, 1972) under ORS 656.268^ expired on
July 28, 1973. Responding to SAIF’s request for closure, the
Board on June 22, 1978, in an order denominated an "Own
Motion Determination,” awarded additional compensation
and informed claimant that he had "no right to a hearing,
review or appeal on this award made by the Board on its
own motion.”

Thereafter, claimant requested a hearing regard
ing the propriety of the Board’s exercise of its own motion
jurisdiction. It was his contention that the claim should
have been closed pursuant to ORS 656.268, rather than
under ORS 656.278, which precludes appeal. The case was
referred by the Board to the Hearings Division for resolu
tion of this issue.

(Roforcnce in ORS 65(>,273(4)(a) lo "subsection (3) of ORS (i56-2 >8" is mi appunmt
error. ORS 656.268 was renumbered in 1979. Or Law.s 1979, ch 839, § 4, at 1150-
51. In amending ORS 656,273(4) in 1979. it is probable that the legislature
intended to refer to subsection i4) of ORS 656.268, whicli concerns closure by the
Evaluation Division, rather than subsection (3), whicli concerns closure by tlie
carrier. Or Laws 1979, ch 839, 6, at 1151-52.)

^ ORS 656.268' provides in pertinent part:

"(2) When the injured worker’s condition resulting from a disabling
injury has'becomc medically stationary, unle.ss he is enrolled and actively
engaged in an authorized program of vocational rehabilitation, the State
Accident Insurance Fund  orporation or direct responsibility employer shall
.so notify the Evaluation Division, the worker, and the contributing employer,
if any, and i^equest the claim be examined and further compensation, if any,
be determined.

m It » *

"(4) Within 30 days after the Evaluation Division receives the medical
and vocational reports relating to a disabling injury, the claim shall be
examined and further compensation, including permanent disability award,
if any, determined under the director’s supervision. • * *

■■(6) The Evaluation Division shall mail a copy of the determination to all
interested parties. Atiy such party may request a hearing under ORS 656.283
on the determination made under subsection (4) of this section within one
year after copies of the determination are mailed.

.■■****•”

m
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as 52 Or App 1027 (1981) 1031 ---- ·----·---~~~~--- ------ ....,.__ ---------·' . 
The referee concluded that the c~se was properly 

closed by_ the Board's own motion determination. In arriv~ . 
. ing at this conclusion, the referee reasoned: ·. 

"If we accept the contention of the claimant that only 
claims reopened by Board's Own Motion Order be closed by 
Own Motion Order ·then the insurance companies would 
never want to voluntarily reopen a claim after the aggra­
vation rights had expired because they would be giving the 
claimant mo!'e rights than the legisla~u~e intended***." 

The Board affirmed the order of the referee and 
dismissed claimant's request for Bo.ard review on the 
ground that this was not ar1 upp_calablq order. 

As noted, tl°1e claim was voluntarily reopened by 
the carrier ii-1 May, 1H73, ~after claimant's aggravation 
richts had exi1ired on November 20, 1_972, but during the 
continuance of his appeal rights, which would not hilvc 
expired until• July 28, 1973. The sole issue is '3/hether a · 
claimant . whose claim is voluntarily reopened after his 
aggravation rights had expired, but·auring the continuance 
of the existence of appeal rights from the final determina­
tion order, is entitled to closure of his ·claim pursuant to 
ORS 656.268, rather than under ORS 656.278, which de­
nies the right to appeal. · 

The· dispositive case on this subject' is Coombs v. 
SAIF, 39 Or App 293, 592 P2d 242. (19?9). Iri Coombs, a 

· total of four determination orders were issued. Following 
entry of the second dete~rriination order, .'the parties 
stipulated to a reopening. T~e claim was later closed by a· 
third determination order, which was issued after expira­
tion of both claimant's right to file an aggravation claim 
and his right to appeal ·the second determination•ord.er. As 
the result of claimant's filing a subsequent appeal, the 
parties again agreed to a reopening. The clai_m wris, finally 
closed by the Evaluation Division, which recommended 
that claimant be awarded temporary total and permanent 
partial disability compensation .. The Board adoptfd the 
Hearings ,Division's recommendation in an "Own Motion 
Determination" order and informed claimant that he had 
no right to a hearing, review or appeal of the award. 
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The referee concluded that the case was properly
closed by, the Board’s own motion determination. In arriv
ing at this conclusion, the referee reasoned: .

"If we accept the contention of the claimant that only
claims reopened by Board’s Own Motion Order be closed by
Own Motion Order then the insurance companies vvould
never want to voluntarily reopen a claim after the aggra
vation rights had expired because they would be giving the
claimant more rights than the legislature intended * *

The Board affirmed the order of the referee and
dismissed claimant’s request for Board review on the
ground that this was not an appealable order.

As noted, the claim was voluntarily reopened by
the carrier in May, 1973, after claimant’s aggravation
rights had expired on November 20, 1972, but during the
continuance of his appeal rights, which would not have
expired until July 28, 1973. The sole issue is vyhether a
claimant whose claim is voluntarily reopened after his
aggravation rights had expired, but during the continuance
of the existence of appeal rights from the final determina
tion order, is entitled to closure of his claim pursuant to
ORS 656.268, rather than under ORS 656.278, which de
nies the right to appeal.

The dispositive case on this subject is Coombs v.
SAIF, 39 Or App 293, 592 P2d 242 (1979). In Coombs, a
total of four determination orders were issued. Following
entry of the second determination order, the parties
stipulated to a reopening. The claim was later closed by a
third determination order, which was issued after expira
tion of both claimant’s right to file an aggravation claim
and his right to appeal the second determination order. As
the result of claimant’s filing a subsequent appeal, the
parties again agreed to a reopening. The claim was finally
closed by the Evaluation Division, which recommended
that claimant be awarded temporary total and permanent
partial disability compensation. The Board adopted the
Hearings Division’s recommendation in an "Own Motion
Determination” order and informed claimant that he had
no right to a hearing, review or appeal of the award.
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Carter v. SAIF 

In construing OR..', 656.278, we concluded: 
''* * * [T]he legislature did not intend that a claimant's 

appeal rights granted by ORS 656.268(5) [now ORS 
656.268(6)] should.prematurely terminate when his aggra­
vation. rights expire. Wheri ·a claim is opened during the · 
time clai1µant still has appeal rights, closure of that claim 
carries with it the right of appeal whenever issued. This 
interpretation preserves a statutory right of appeal and 

· avoids a harsh result.'' Coombs v. SAJF, supr_a. 39 Or App 
at 300. · · 

Applying this. conclusion to ·the facts in Coombs, we held 
that: 

"* *. * [T]he Board was in error in concluding claimant 
had no .right to ·appeal the order dosi~g the claim and· 
awarding pcrrnnnent · partial disability. The claim was 
closed by a second determination order on ,January 30, 
1973. It was reopened by a stipulated order in Augus·t of 
1973. The claim remained open beyond the time when 
claimant's aggravation rights expireq. The third determi­
nation order closing the claim was appealable even though 
the order was issued after .aggravation rights had run 
because· it closed a claim opened at a time when claimant 
could seek redetermination as a matter of right. Claimant 
appealed from, the third detcrmfoation order nnd the claim 
was reopened by stipulated order. Si11ce th(! claim was 
reopened·during tlie time when claimant had appeal right., 
under ORS 656.268(5) [now ORS 656.268(6)}/he closilig 
order which is the subject of this appt!al was not on tlie 
Board's owil motion and therefore was appealable. ·"[Em~ 
phasis adqed.1 39 Or App at 300-301. 

Si-mil~rly, b_ecause t~e claim in the present case 
was reopened, for whatever reason, during the time claim­
ant still had the rigp.t to appeal the second determination 
order, ORS 656.268(6), the closing order entered by the 
Board could not be pursuant to its own motion jurisdictfon. 
ORS 656.278. Thus," the claim should have been closed 
pursuant to ORS 656.268 f:!,nd, as such, is nppcalable. 

SA.IF co~tends· that the instant case is distinguish­
able, because in Coombs claimant actually appealed from 
the third determination ord~r. and, as a·result, the parties 
stipula~ed · to · a reopening, whereas here, SAIF ?1,rgues, 
claimant did not appeal from ~he second determination 
order, and thc'Fund voluntarily reopened. We believe that 

· Cite as 52 Or App 1027 (198_1_) -~ 1033 

this. distinction is .of no consequence. Whatever reason 
prompted the reopening, the crux of the matter is that the 
claini was reopened during the time claimant had a right to 
appeal under ORS 656.268(6). 

Reversed and remanded. 

-290-

1032  arter v. SAIF

In construing ORS 656.278, we concluded;
"* * * [T]he legislature did not intend that a claimant’s

appeal rights granted by ORS 656.268(5) [now ORS
656.268(6)] should prematurely terminate when his aggra
vation rights expire. When a claim is opened during the
time claimant still has appeal rights, closure of that claim
carries with it the right of appeal whenever issued. This
interpretation preserves a statutory right of appeal and
avoids a harsh result.” Coombs u. SAIF, supra. 39 Or App
at 300.

Applying this conclusion to the facts in Coombs, we held
that:

"* * * ITlhe Board was in error in concluding claimant
had no right to appeal the order closing the claim and
awarding permanent ■ partial disability. The claim was
closed by a second determination order on January 30,
1973. It was reopened by a stipulated order in August of
1973. The claim remained open beyond the time when
claimant’s aggravation rights expired. The third determi
nation order closing the claim was appealable even though
the order was issued after aggravation rights had run
because it closed a claim opened at a time when claimant
could seek redetermination as a matter of right.  laimant

• appealed from the third determination order and the claim
was reopened by stipulated order. Since the claim was
reopened during the time when claimant had appeal rights
under ORS 656.268(5) [now ORS 656.268(6)] the closing
order which is the subject of this appeal was not on the
Boards own motion and therefore was appealable. "[Em-:
phasis added.] 39 Or App at 300-301.

Similarly, because the claim in the present case
was reopened, for whatever reason, during the time claim
ant still had the right to appeal, the second determination
order, ORS 656.268(6), the closing order entered by the
Board could not be pursuant to its own motion jurisdiction.
ORS 656.278. Thus, the claim should have been closed
pursuant to ORS 656.268 and, as such, is appealable.

SAIF contends that the instant case is distinguish
able, because in Coombs claimant actually appealed from
the third determination order, and, as a result, the parties
stipulated to a reopening, whereas here, SAIF argues,
claimant did not appeal from the second determination
order, and the'Fund voluntarily reopened. We believe that

 ite as 52 Or App 1027 (1981) 1033

this distinction is of no consequence. Whatever reason
prompted the reopening, the crux of the matter is that the
claim was reopened during the time claimant had a right to
appeal under ORS 656.268(6).

Reversed and remanded.
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350 June 29, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE 
STATE OF OREGON 

. . 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
Robert V. Condon, Claimant. 

CONDON, 
Petitioner, 

V. 

CITY OF PORTLAND,­
. Respondent. · 

(WCB No. 79-8395, CA 19561) 

10,!3 

Judicial Review from Workers' Compensation Board. 

Argued and ·sub~nittcd April . 15, 1981. 

Robert I( Udziela, Portland, argued the cause for peti­
tioner. With him on the brief was Pozzi, Wilson,.Atchison, 
Kahn & O'Leary, Portland. 

Bruce Bottini, Portland, argued the c~use for respond­
ent. With him on the brief was Reiter, Bricker, Zakovics & 

. Querin, P~rtland. · · ·· · 

Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 
Van Hoomissen, Judges. · 

VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 

Reversed. 

Thornton, J., dissenting. opinion . 

.. . ······'•··--···-····-------
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IN THE  OURT OF APPEALS OF THE
STATE OF OREGON

In the Matter of the  ompensation of
Robert V.  ondon,  laimant.

 ONDON,
Petitioner,

V.
 ITY OF PORTLAND,

Respondent. ■ . •
 W B No. 79-8395,  A 19561)

Judicial Review from Workers’  ompensation Board.

Argued and submitted April 15, 1981. '

Robert K. Udziela, Portland, argued the cause for peti
tioner. With him on the brief was Pozzi, Wilson,.Atchison,
Kahn & O’Leary, Portland.
Bruce Bqttini, Portland, argued the cause for respond

ent. With him on the brief was Reiter, Bricker, Zakovics
Querin, Portland.
Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and

Van Hopmissen, Judges.

VAN HOOMISSEN, J.

Reversed.

Thornton, J., dissenting, opinion.
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 

. . Claimant sustained an injury to his right knee 
which his self-insured employer maintains was not job­
related. A refert\?e found the injury·occurred on the job and 
.ordered compensation ·paid. The Workers' Compensation 
Board (Board) reversed the i·cferee ap.d claimant appeals. 
The sole issue is compensability. On de novo review, we 
reinstate the referee's order. 

Claimant, a felon on parole, was employed as a 
temporary laborer by the Portland Bureau of Parks. He had 
·surgery on his knee in 1978, but it was described as stable 
a~ the time of his em.ploymcnt by his father, a physician . 

. Claimant t.cstil'icd that while nl work on July 4, 1979, he 
slipped while lifting a plastic liner from a trash barrel, and 
his right leg sJid sit.le':"ays causing some pain to the knee. 
He continued. working, but. later on the same day, while he 
was shooting basketball with a co:worker, his knee col• 
lapsed. He re~eivcd treatment for the injury and was· told 
_by his orthopedist to wear an immobilizer brace. Thus 
equipped, he wat; able to continue working until August 12, 
1979;when his.knee collapsed again while he was playing 
basketball. Claimaint filed a claim with his employer the 
next day, alleging· that the July 4 injury was the cause of 
August 12 collapse. He underwent knee surgery August 15, 
19791 

There .are some inconsistencies in the statements 
made by ~laiinant a_bout the July 4 incident. He told his 
father, who first examined ·the injured ·knee, that he in­
jured· it. while lifting the trash liner. ·He also gave this 
accou:i:it to Wes Sto.ecker, a co-·worker, the following day. 
H_owever, he told the treating orthopedist, Dr. Cherry, that 
his injury occurred while he was playing basketball. His 
work s~pervisors were m'erely informed that he had injured 
his knee; they were not told that the injury was job related: 

He accounts for these apparent inconsistencies by 
explainjng that securing a job and maintaining employ• 
ment were conditions of his parole, and, because he had 
been warned that his unstable work history could result in 
his ·being returned to prison, he did not want to jeopardize 
his employment" by claiming an on the job injury.· 
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J.

 laimant sustained an injury to his right knee
which his self-insured employer maintains was not job-
related. A referee found the injury occurred on the job and
ordered compensation paid. The Workers’  ompensation
Board (Board) reversed the referee and claimant appeals.
The sole issue is compensability. On de novo review, we
reinstate the referee’s order.

 laimant, a felon on parole, was employed as a
temporary laborer by the Portland Bureau of Parks. He had
surgery on his knee in 1978, but it was described as stable
at the time of his employment by his father, a physician.
 laimant testified that wiiile at work on July 4, 1979, he
slipped while lifting a plastic liner from a trash barrel, and
his right leg slid sideways causing some pain to the knee.
He continued working, but. later on the same day, while he
was shooting basketball with a co-worker, his knee col
lapsed. He received treatment for the injury and was told
by his orthopedist to wear an immobilizer brace. Thus
equipped, he was able to continue working until August 12,
1979, when his knee collapsed again while he was playing
basketball.  laimaint filed a claim with his employer the
next day, alleging that the July 4 injury was the cause of
August 12 collapse. He underwent knee surgery August 15,
1979=

There are some inconsistencies in the statements
made by claimant about the July 4 incident. He told his
father, who first examined the injured knee, that he in
jured it while lifting the trash liner. He also gave this
account to Wes Stoecker, a co-worker, the following day.
However, he told the treating orthopedist, Dr.  herry, that
his injury occurred while he was playing basketball. His
work supervisors were merely informed that he had injured
his knee; they were not told that the injury was job related.

He accounts for these apparent inconsistencies by
explaining that securing a job and maintaining employ
ment were conditions of his parole, and, because he had
been warned that his unstable work history could result in
his being returned to prison, he did not want to jeopardize
his employment by claiming an on the job injury.
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Condon v. City of Portland 

In this case, the credibility ·of the _claimant is of 
crucial importance. The referee found that the claimant's 
explanation _for his failure to report the injury i_mmediately 
and for the inconsistencies in his accounts of the injury was 
plausible. The Board found the record established claim­
ant's testimony was not credible because of th_e inconsisten-. 
cies and expressed doubt as to whether the. trash barrel 

. incident had ever occurred. 

Claimant urges that great weight should be given 
the referee's findings.· This court generally does give great 
weight to the refe1~ee's findings, especially where cre.dibili­
ty is an important i~sti.e. Anfilofiefl v. S.4.IF, 52 Or App 127, 
__ P2d . (May 11, 1981); Widenerv. La-Pac Corp, 
40 Or App 3, 594 P2d 832, rev-~ien (1979).-

Our review of the record satisfies us that claim­
ant's account of how the injury occurred ,is plausible, and 
his explanation of his i_nconsistent statements is not un­
reason.able. Claimant's· co-worker ·on July 4·, now his 
spouse, testified tJ-iat, while she did not see him fall, she did 
hear a noise and looked l!P · to see claimant lying on· the 
ground next to an overturned trash barrel. Claimant's 
father testified that his son told him of the trash. barrel 
incident the evening of the day it.had occu~red. ·claimant's 
co-worker, Stoecker, testified that claimant told him- on 
July 5 that he had hurt h_is knee while emptying a trash 
barrel. Medical evidence indicates that claimant sustained 
_an injury to his knee on -July 4 and that the injury was 
consistent with claim.ant's account of his fall while empty­
ing a trash Darrel. The medical evidenc_e also supports a 
finding that the collapse of claimant's knee on August 12 
was the result of the July 4 injury, not the earlier injury, 
and no evidE?nce was offered to the contrary.· 

We therefore conclude that claimant's knee injury 
is compensable. The order of the Board is reversed. · 

~eversed. 

THORNTON, J., dissenting. 

Contrary to the majority, I agree with th.e Board 
that claimant has not established by credible evidence that 
he sustained a com:rensable injury. Further, .the record 
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In this case, the credibility of the claimant is of
crucial importance. The referee found that the claimant’s
explanation for his failure to report the injury immediately
and for the inconsistencies in his accounts of the injury was
plausible. The Board found the record established claim
ant’s testimony was not credible because of the inconsisten
cies and expressed doubt as to whether the trash barrel
incident had ever occurred.

 laimant urges that great weight should be given
the referee’s findings. This court generally does give great
weight to the referee’s findings, especially where credibili
ty is an important issue. Anfilofieff v. SAIF, 52 Or App 127,

P2d ______(May 11, 1981); Widener v. La-Pac Corp,
40 Or App 3, 594 P2d 832, rev den (1979).

Our review of the record satisfies us that claim
ant’s account of how the injury occurred 4s plausible, and
his explanation of his inconsistent statements is not un
reasonable.  laimant’s co-worker on July 4, now his
spouse, testified that, while she did not see him fall, she did
hear a noise and looked up to see claimant lying on the
^ound next to an overturned trash barrel.  laimant’s
father testified that his son told him of the trash,barrel
incident the evening of the day it.had occurred.  laimant’s
co-worker, Stoecker, testified that claimant told him' on
July 5 that he had hurt his knee while emptying a trash
barrel. Medical evidence indicates that claimant sustained
an injury to his knee on July 4 and that the injury was
consistent with claimant’s account of his fall while empty
ing a trash barrel. The medical evidence also supports a
finding that the collapse of claimant’s knee on August 12 
was the result of the July 4 injury, not the earlier injury,
and no evidence was offered to the contrary.

We therefore conclude that claimant’s knee injury
is compensable. The order of the Board is reversed.

Reversed.

THORNTON, J., dissenting.

 ontrary to the majority, I agree with the Board
that claimant has not established by credible evidence that
he sustained a compensable injury. Further, the record
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establishes .that claimant's testimony. \vas not credible. 
Claimant provided inconsistent and conflicting accounts.to 
several·different ind1viduals about how the injury alleged­
ly occurred. 

My examination of the record leads me to agree 
with the Board's finding that it is: · 

"* * * more .probable than not that cli3-imant did not 
injure his right knee in any garbag0 can incident as we· 
doubt that [this] incident ever occurred.'' 

Next, I cannot accept the Referee's conclusion re­
. garding the compensability of :my right knee injury claim-

ant may have suffered while shooting baskets or playing 
· 'one-on-ope'. later in the day of July 4: Such activity was not 
authorized by the emjJloycr and there wns no evidence that 
suci1 · activity by employees during working hours was to-
lernted hy tlw employer.· · 

I would a<lopt the following from the Board's order 
on review: 

H,r * :f" * * 
"The record establishes that on August 12, 1979, while 

playing basketball (shooting baskets o.nd/or playing 'one 
on·one'), the claimant injured his right knee. This injury 
occurred when claimant was not working and is clearly not 
·compensable .. The evidence establishes that this August 
12, 19_79 incident caused disability and the need for. medic­
al treatment. This off:the-job· incident clearly contributed 
more than slightly to the claimarit's right knee proqlem -­
to what extent beyond slight has not been established. Had 
the employer !J.nY responsibility for the right knee condi­
tion up fo that time ·and we have found they did not, then . 
the August 12, 1979 incident extinguish~d that responsi-
bility.". . 

For the above reasons, I conclude that claimant did 
not meet his burden of proof. I therefore respectfully dis-
sent. · 

-294,.. 
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establishes that claimant’s testimony, was not credible.
 laimant provided inconsistent and conflicting accounts to
several'different individuals about how the injury alleged
ly occurred.

My examination of the record leads me to agree
with the Board’s finding that it is:

* * more .probable than not that claimant did not
injure his right knee in any garbage can incident as we'
doubt that Uhis] incident ever occurred.”

Next, I cannot accept the Referee’s conclusion re
garding the compensability of any right knee injury claim
ant may have suffered while shooting baskets or playing
'one-on-one’ later in the day of July 4. Such activity was not
authorized by the emjoloyer and Uiere was no evidence that
such activity by employees during working hours was to
lerated by the employer.

I would adopt the following from the Board’s order
on review:

* rtr * *
"The record establishes that on August 12, 1979, while

playing basketball (shooting baskets and/or playing 'one
on'one’), the claimant injured his right knee. This injur\'
occurred when claimant was not working and is clearly not
'compensable. The evidence establishes that this August
12, 19.79 incident caused disability and the need for-medic-
al treatment. This off-the-job- incident clearly contributed
more than slightly to the claimant’s right knee problem
to what extent beyond slight has not been established. Had
the employer any responsibility for the right knee condi
tion up to that time and we have found they did not, then
the August 12, 1979 incident extinguished that responsi
bility.”’

For the above reasons, I conclude that claimant did
not meet his burden of proof. I therefore respectfully dis
sent.

9
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352 June 29, 1981 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE · 
. STATE OF OREGON 

In the Matter of the Compensation of 
- Iona L. Gormley,· Claimant. 

GORMLEY, 
Petitioner, 

v. 
STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 
, . CORPORATION, . 

. Respondent. · 

(No. 79-3456, CA 19~56) 

1055 

Judicial Review from Workers'. Compen~ntion Bo_ard. 

Argued· and submitted April 15, 1981. 

Charles· H: Seagraves, Jr., Orants Pass, argued the 
cause for petitioner. With him on the brief was Myrick, 
_Coulter, Seagraves & Myrick, Grapts P_ass, 

Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate Counsel, State Accident 
Insurance Fund Corporation; Salem, argued the cause for 
·respondent. With him on the brief were ·K. R. Maloney, 
General Counsel, and James A. Blevins; Chief Trial Coun­
sel, State Accident Insurance Fund· Corporation, Salem.· 

Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and 
Van Hoomissen, Judges. 

VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 

Affirmed. 
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 harles- H. Seagravcs, Jr., Grants Pass, argued the
cause for petitioner. With him on the brief was Myrick,
 oulter, Seagrayes & Myrkk, Grants Pass.
Darrell E. Bewley, Appellate (jounsel, State Accident

Insurance Fund  orporation, Salem, argued the cause for
respondent. With him on the brief were K. R. Maloney,
General  ounsel, and Jaimes A. Blevins;  hief Trial  oun
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Before Richardson, Presiding Judge, and Thornton and
Van Hoomissen, Judges.

VAN HOOMISSEN, J.

Affirmed.
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J. 

The State Accident Insurance Fund ·(SAIF) denied 
petitioner's claim, and a referee affirmed SAIF's decision. 
The Workers' Compensation Board (Board) affi1med the 

. referee. Petitioner' seeks judicial review by this court. ORS 
656.298. The issue on review is compehsability. We review 
de novo, ORS 656.298(6), an4 affirm the Board. · 

· Petitioner was employed as a waitress. On August 
11, 1978, she fell while backing into the restaurant kitch­
en. She sustained severe bruises to her left leg and hip and 
experienced pain in.her back later that day. She did not 
seek medical· attention, even though her employer advised 
her to do so. For the next several months she worked 
steadily, m_unifct,ting no physical problems at work and 
notifying her. employer or fellov>' ·employees of none. In 
November, 197B, she made ·a two-day and two~night non­
stop bus trip to Oklahoma and a similar: return trip with no 
aJ)parent difficulty. 

Petitioner's disabling condition first manifested 
itself as she was getting out of bed on December 11, 1978. 
SAIF suggests that is the date she sustained the herniated 

•disc for which she seeks compensation. Dr. Ham diagnosed 
petitioner's problem as a probable ruptured nucleus pul­
posus, resulting from her fall on August 11. Petitioner was 
~ospitalized and examined by Dr. Strukel, who subsequent­
ly became petitioner's treating physician. Dr. Strukel ad­
vised SAIF that he believed it was medically reasonable to 
assume pet_itioner's herniated disc resulted from her Au­
gust 11 fall. 1 SAIF asked Dr. Strukel to clarify his opinion. 
Dr. Strukel explained: 

·i On January 22, 1981, petitioner's attorney filed a motion in this <;aurt to 
allow the presentation of· additional evidence pursuant to Rule 5.25 and ORS 
656.298(6): We allc:iwed the molion without remnnding the mnttPr to the referee. 
The evidence, a letter from Dr. Strukcl to S/1.IF ,bied April 23, 1979, has been 
considered by this court. · · 

In that .letter Dr. Strukel advised SAIF: 

"I would further draw your attention to a letter sent to Ms. McGuffin 
(SAlF) dated 1/23179 in behalf of Mrs. Gormley indicating that I think her 
injury sustained at work was the cause of her problem. I have no reason to 
change my opinion at this time. If you have uny further questions please feel 
free to contact me." . · 
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VAN HOOMISSEN, J.
The State Accident Insurance Fund (SAIF) denied

petitioner’s claim, and a referee affirmed SAIF’s decision.
The Workers’  ompensation Board (Board) affixmed the
referee. Petitioner seeks judicial review by this court. ORS
656.298. The issue on review is compensability. We review
de novo, ORS 656.298(6), and affirm the Board.

Petitioner was employed as a waitress. On August
11, 1978, she fell while backing into the restaurant kitch
en. She sustained severe bruises to her left leg and hip and
experienced pain in her back later that day. She did not
seek medical attention, even though her employer advised
her to do so. For the next several months she worked
steadily, manifesting no physical problems at work and
notifying her employer or fellow employees of none. In
November, 1978, she made a two-day and two-night non
stop bus trip to Oklahoma and a similar return trip with no
apparent difficulty.

Petitioner’s disabling condition first manifested
itself as she was getting out of bed on December 11, 1978.
SAIF suggests that is the date she sustained the herniated
disc for which she seeks compensation. Dr. Ham diagnosed
petitioner’s problem as a probable ruptured nucleus pul-
posus, resulting from her fall on August 11. Petitioner was
hospitalized and examined by Dr. Strukel,.who subsequent
ly became petitioner’s treating physician. Dr. Strukel ad
vised SAIF that he believed it was medically reasonable to
assume petitioner’s herniated disc resulted from her Au
gust 11 fall.^ SAIF asked Dr. Strukel to clarify his opinion.
Dr. Strukel explained:

' On January 22, 1981, petitioner’s attorney filed a motion in this court to
allow the presentation of'additional evidence pursuant to Rule 5.25 and ORS
656-298(6). We allowed the motion without remanding the matter to the referee.
The evidence, a letter from Dr. Strukel to SAIF dated April 23, 1979, has been
considered by this court.

In that letter Dr. Strukel advised SAIF:
’T would further draw your attention to a letter sent to Ms. McGuffin

(SAIF) dated 1/23/79 in behalf of Mrs. (Jormley indicating that I think her
injury sustained at work was the cause of her problem. I have no reason to
change my opinion at this time. If you have any further questions please feel
free to contact me."

H)
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Gormley v. SAIF 

· "* * * Apparently the only injury which occurred to her• 
in rriy historical record was on 8/11/78 .. Thc mechanism by 
which she describes her fall, landing in a somewhat flexed 
and rotated position could. certainly have produced the 

· herniation. Why the pain was not immediate or prolonged 
from that period of time I cannot tell you, but I think it is 
quite clear a herniated disc can act in this manner with 
frequent exacerbations throughout an extended ·period of 
time even if the fragment is completely extruded into the 
c~nal. · · 

"With this in mind, I therefore believe it is reason:i.ble 
to assume the faH in August, 1978, was the m0jor inciting 
cause of the herniated nucleus pulposus. I think I will 
never be able to prove or disprove this. As you well know, a 
lot of people have herniated discs at [sic] ncitcd above 
which occur with pure flexion and pure rotaticiri injuries. 
In addition a lot of people have herniated discs· which occur 
with falls and have no rotation or· flexion in them. We 
would like to assume however that some sort of trnumatic 
event proceeded (sic/the violent extrusion of.the disc into 
the canal and historically the fall in 8/78 is the only event 
""!e can come up with for Mrs. Gormley." · 

Dr. Harwood, SAIF's medical consultant, did not 
. agree. He advised SAIF as follows: · · 

"***In my professional opinion, it is not likely that the 
claimant would have sustained a herniated disc on August 
11, 1978 and would have.been asymptomatic until 12/11/78 
{some 4 months later) before he]_" main problem 'surfaced'. 
It would be more reasonable to accept 'the fact that because 
she was asymptomatic for 1 months following the fall of 
8/11/78, that her herniated •disc occurred on 12/11/78, at 
which ti~e she was getting. out of bed. * * *'.' 

SAIF then referred pe~itiorier to Dr. Tennyson. His 
diagnostic impression was that: 

''This patient may have sustained a small disc protru+ 
sion * * * at the time of her industrial injury August 11, 
1978. She may have also aggravated a pre-existing lumbar 
spondylosis at this time." 

In the letter to Ms. McGuffin, Dr. Strukel wrote: 

"• * * I think it is medically reasonable to assume the hemiated disc the 
patient is bi:ing tn·ut!'d for did ot·cur at .the time of her foll. • + ,.., 

''My diagnosis is: L5-Sl left herniated nucleus pulposus confirmed by 
EMG and could.certainly be'the r~sult of the accident the patient described." 

"'.297-
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"* * * * Apparently the only injury which occurred to her
in my historical record was on 8/11/78. The mechanism by
which she describes her fall, landing in a somewhat flexed
and rotated position could certainly have produced the
herniation. Why the pain was not immediate or prolonged
from that period of time I cannot tell you, but I think it is
quite clear a herniated disc can act in this manner with
frequent exacerbations throughout an extended period of
time even if the fragment is completely extruded into the
canal.

"With this in mind, I therefore believe it is reasonable
to assume the fall in August, 1978, was the major inciting
cause of the herniated nucleus pulposus. I think I will
never be able to prove or disprove this. As you well know, a
lot of people have herniated discs at [sic] noted above
which occur with pure flexion and pure rotation injuries.
In addition a lot of people have herniated discs which occur
with falls and have no rotation or' flexion in them. We
would like to assume however that some sort of traumatic
event proceeded /is/c/the violent extrusion of the disc into
the canal and historically the fall in 8/78 is the only event
we can come up with for Mrs. Gormley.”

Dr. Harwood, SAIF’s medical consultant, did not
agree. He advised SAIF as follows:

"* * * In my professional opinion, it is not likely that the
claimant would have sustained a herniated disc on August
11, 1978 and would have been asymptomatic until 12/11/78
(some 4 months later) before her main problem 'surfaced’.
It would be more reasonable to accept the fact that because
she was asymptomatic for 4 months following the fall of
8/11/78, that her herniated disc occurred on 12/11/78, at
which time she was getting out of bed. * *”

SAIF then referred petitioner to Dr. Tennyson. His
diagnostic impression was that:

"This patient may have sustained a small disc protru
sion * * * at the time of her industrial injury August 11,
1978. She may have also aggravated a pre-existing lumbar
spondylosis at this time.”

In the letter to Ms. McGuffin, Dr. Struke) wrote:

* I think it is medically rca.sonable to as.sumc the herniated disc the
patient i.H bcin^ treated for did occur at,the time of her fall. • * *"

"My diagnosis is; L5-S1 left herniated nucleus pulposus confirmed by
EMG and could.certainly be the result of the accident the patient described.”
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In response to SAIF's request for clarification, Dr. Tenny­
son explained: 

"If an injury causes herniation of the nucleus pulposus. 
one may experience symptoms immediately or with a delay 
of days, weeks or months, If there is a massive protrusion 
of disc material such that there is immediate nerve com­
pression, then one would expect rather rapjd onset of nerve 
compression symptoms. On the other hand, if there is only 
a very small herniation of disc material of insufficient 
magnitude to produce immediate nerve compression, then 
the symptoms of nerve compression must await the further 
extrusion andJor migration of sufficient disc material to 
cause nerve root compression_ This extrusion and migra­
tion may take days, weeks and even months. 

"The torsional and flexional movement of merely turn­
ing over in bed or getting out o~ bed is sufficient to cnuse 
herniation of the nucleus pulposus involving the lumbar 
spinal canal.'' 

The referee found the petitioner's medical evidence 
was insufficient to establish medical causation in terms of 
probability and-that the denial of the claim by SAIF was 
correct.2 

The burden of proof rests upon the petitioner. She 
must prove her claim by a preponderance of the evidence. 
The referee,-the Board and this court, as fact finders, must 
view the evidence objectively to determine if it preponder­
at.es in favor of the petitioner. If it does not, the burden of 
proof has not been met. Raines v. Hines Lbr Co., 36 Or App 
715, 719, 585 P2d 721 (1978). We agree with the referee 
and the Board that the medical evidence is insufficient, 
because it does not show with reasonable certainty that 
there was a causal connect1on between the petitioner's 

1 The referee reasoned; 

.. To find that the fall produced a compensable injury, it is necessary that 
there be- medical "testimony thnt tht:'te ill probably a causal relationship 
between the fall and the pathological structural change, m:imely, th,;; h,..r. 
niut,;;d nucleus pulposus. probabi_lity in applying the preponderance-of• 
evidence burden ~quires that th,;; existence of the causal connection is more 
likely to be than not to be. It-is this trier's finding that Dr~. Strukt:'l and 
Tennyson have not stated, based upon nll thc medico! r<.:cords n'ndcl'L•d by the 
doctors in this L·n><L\ thut il i,; mol'L" likdy true tlm·n not lruc the £;11! in r\\1~usl 
1978 produced the herniated nucleus pulposus which was found on and after 
December 11, 1978. Claimant hns failed to establish medical causation in 
terms of probabili~y." · 
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In response to SAIF’s request for clarification, Dr. Tenny
son explained:

"If an inju^ causes herniation of the nucleus pulposus.
one may experience symptoms immediately or with a delay
of days, weeks or months. If there is a massive protrusion
of disc material such that there is immediate nerve com
pression, then one would expect rather rapid onset of nerve
compression symptoms. On the other hand, if there is only
a very smalTherniation of disc material of insufficient
magnitude to produce immediate nerve compre.ssion, then
the .symptoms of nerve compression must await the further
extrusion and/or migration of sufficient disc material to
cause nerve root compression. This extrusion and migra
tion may take days, weeks and even months.

"The torsional and flexional movement of merely turn
ing over in bed or gelling out of bed is sufficient to cause
herniation of the nucleus pulposus involving the lumbar
spinal canal.”

The referee found the petitioner’s medical evidence
was insufficient to establish medical causation in terms of
probability and that the denial of the claim by SAIF was
correct.^

The burden of proof rests upon the petitioner. She
must prove her claim by a preponderance of the evidence.
The referee, the Board and this court, as fact finders, must
view the evidence objectively to determine if it preponder
ates in favor of the petitioner. If it does not, the burden of
proof has not been met. Raines v. Hines Lbr Co., 36 Or App
715, 719, 585 P2d 721 (1978). We agree with the referee
and the Board that the medical evidence is insufficient,
because it does not show with reasonable certainty that
there was a causal connection between the petitioner’s

^The referee reasoned:

"To find that the fall produced a compon.s:ibIc injury, it is necessary that
there be medical testimony that there i-s probably a causal relationship
between the fall and the pathological structural change, namely, the her
niated nucleus pulposus. ProbabUity in applying the preponderanec-of-
evidence burden requires that the existence of the causal connection is more
likely to be than not to be. It is this trier's finding that Drs. Strukel and
Tennyson have not stated, based upon all the medical rccord.s rendered by the
doctors in this case, that it is more likely true than not true the fall in August
1976 produced the herniated hucleu.s pulposus winch was found on and after
December 11, 1978.  laimant has failed to establish medical causation in
terms of probability.”
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August 11 injury and her resultant disability. Mandell v. 
SAJF, ·41 Or App 253, 256, 597 P2d 1281 (1979). 

. There are at least two plau_sible explanations for 
petitioner's disability:· a job-related injury in August, 1978, -
and a non-job-related injury while getting out of bed sever­
al lllOnths ·later. Petitioner relies principally upon the re­
ports of Dr. Strukel. He opined that it is "medically reason­
able to assume" her disability occurred at the time of her 
fall and that "it could certainly be the result of the accident 
* **[petitioner] described." He reports "the mechanism by 
which she describes her fall, * * * could certainly have 
produced the· herniation" and "I think it is quite clear a 
herniated disc can act in this manner * * * ." Dr. Str-ukel 
also·indicated his opinion ,yas based partly on the fact that 
he would "like to assume however that some sort of 
traumati~ event proceeded (sic) the viole1~t extrusion of the 
disc* * *," and that the petitioner's fall was the only su·ch 
event of which he was aware.·· · · . 

Drs. -Tennyson and Harwood, however, felt this 
same condition could occur as a result of torsional and 
flexiona_l mi)Vement involved ih merely getting out of bed. 
In Dr. Harwood's opinion, her condition probably did occur 
in this manner. Because petitioner's disabling condition 
first manifested itself as she was getting out of bed, it 
appears from the evidence that this theory is as medically 
plausible as one relating the condition to a fall which 
occurred several months earlier. · · · 

The referee found Dr. Strukel's words "could" and 
-"can" were terms of possibility rather than probability. Dr. 
Strukel's qualified comments "it is reasonable to assume" 
and ""Ye would like to assume" indicate to us his opinion 
may have been based more on the history related by his 
patient than on concrete medical evidence. His admission 
that "I think I will nev~r be able to prove or disprove this" 
further militates against a finding of medical causation in 
terms of probability. · 

Petitioner must prove more than just the possibili­
ty of causal connection. The doctrine of liberal construction 
of the Workers' Compensation Act is not transferable to the 
fact finding process to adjust ·the burden of proof. Raines u. 
Hines Lbr. Co., supra, ·36 Or App at 719. 

_9ite as 52 Or Apr 1055 (1981) 1061 -------· ---·· 

We conclude that the medical evidence in this cnse 
does not establish with reasonable certainty that the peti­
tioner's condition is causally connected to her August 11, 
1978 injury. The order of the Board is affirmed. 

Affirmed. 
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August 11 injury and her resultant disability. Mandell v.
SAIF, 41 Or App 253, 256, 59y P2d 1281 (1979).

There are at least two plausible explanations for
petitioner’s disability: a job-related injury in August, 1978,
and a non-job-related injury while getting out of bed sever
al months later. Petitioner relies principally upon the re
ports of Dr. Strukel. He opined that it is "medically reason
able to assume” her disability occurred at the time of her
fall and that "it could certainly be the result of the accident
* * * [petitioner] described.” He reports "the mechanism by
which she describes her fall, * * * could certainly have
produced the herniation” and "I think it is quite clear a
herniated disc can act in this manner * * Dr. Strukel
also indicated his opinion vyas based partly on the fact that
he would "like to assume however that some sort of
traumatic event proceeded (sic) the violent extrusion of the
disc * * and that the petitioner’s fall was the only such
event of which he was aware.

Drs. Tennyson and Harwood, however, felt this
same condition could occur as a result of torsional and
flexional movement involved in merely getting out of bed.
In Dr. Harwood’s opinion, her condition probably did occur
in this manner. Because petitioner’s disabling condition
first manifested itself as she was getting out of bed, it
appears from the evidence that this theory is as medically
plausible as one relating the condition to a fall which
occurred several months earlier.

The referee found Dr. Strukel’s words "could” and
"can” were terms of possibility rather than probability. Dr.
Strukel’s qualified comments "it is reasonable to assume”
and "vye would like to assume” indicate to us his opinion
may have been based more on the history related by his
patient than on concrete medical evidence. His admission
that "I think I will never be able to prove or disprove this”
further militates against a finding of medical causation in
terms of probability.

Petitioner must prove more than just the possibili
ty of causal connection. The doctrine of liberal construction
of the Workers’  ompensation Act is not transferable to the
fact finding process to adjust the burden of proof. Raines v.
Hines Lbr. Co., supra, 36 Or App at 719.

 ite as 52 Or App 1055 (1981) 1061

We conclude that the medical evidence in this case
does not establish with reasonable certainty that the peti
tioner’s condition is causally connected to her August 11,
1978 injury. The order of the Board is affirmed.

Affirmed.
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Deni~d reopening of 1962 claim _(M. Ingram)----~------~-----_: ____________ _:,.. __ 98 
Denied reopening (D. Pierce)----~----------------------------~------------:-- 58· 
Denied reopening of 1962 claim ·(o. Sanford)--------------------:------~-----..: 210 

- Denied reopening of 1971 claim (C. Simmons).------~-------------------------- 47 
Denied reopening of 1973 ann claim (B. Pangle)-----:----~-------------------- 42 
Den·ied .reopening of back cl.aim {J~ Byrnes)-------~-----------:.-------=-.----·-- 160 • 
Denied reopenihg of back. claim (M. Else)--.:.----------:---~------------------- 52 

· .Oenied r~opening· of back.cl~im ·(N. Poppenhagen)-----~-..: _____________________ 72 
Denied reopening of neck claim (D. Hamrick)-----.,.---------_---------·-----:---- 72 

·oenied reopening for o~teoarthritis {J_. Scott)------------------------------. 60 
Determination on 1966 claim: PTO and TTD (F. Barnette)-·-------------.:.------ 118 
Oetennination on 1973 claim: no PPO increase (J. Devoe)------------·----.---- 12 
Determi_nation on 1974 claim: TTD (D. Garcia)..: ____ .'.._________________________ 94 
Determination on 1972 claim: _medical only (L Haglund)---:----..:---------:---- 14 
Determination on 1974 claim: TTD and 10% unscheduled-(R .. Haney)----------:-- 186 
Determi na.ti on·: TTD and 60% unscheduled (W. · Laine)-:..------.:..---.----------:---- 188 
Determination on 1973 claim: TTD only (T.G. Long)------:--------------------- 167 

. Determination .on 1974 claiin: TTD only (B. Miller)---------·----------------- 206 
· Determination on 1967 cla-im: · TTD only _(E. Montano)--------------..:---------:- 3· 

Detennination on 1974 claim: TTD-and 10% (J. Quinteros)-------------------- 167 
Detennination: PTO and TTD (R. Repin)-----..:. ______ ·_: _________________________ 207 
Determ_ination on 197~ claim: TTD only {L.D. Robinson)'--.:.·_..:,.. ________________ 171 
Determination on 1973.- cl aim: TTD only ·(K. Waring)-:-· ____ ..; _______________ :., ___ 168 
Determination: · TTD only (C. Williams)--------------------------------------- 190 
Determination 01'! -1960 arm claim: TTD o·nly (L. War11er Johnson}-----------·--- 17 
Determination on 1973 low back claim: .TTD or,ly (R. Bencoach)----,------------ 22 · 
Determination on 1968 back claim: PTO (P. Gatto)-----..:--------~------------ 32 
Determination on 1967 back clai,m: TTD. o·nly ·(I.S; Peck)--:--..:_..:. ___ .;· _________ .:._ 92 · 
D~terminat-ion on 1967 fing_er.cl_aim: 10% forearm and TTD· (A. ·Norton)_-~------ 91 
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OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE OR INJUR 

Asbestosis (S. Stone) . 84
Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease'(0. Anderson) 70
Diverticulitis (W. Rollins) ".123
Leg/hip distinction discussed (C. Clark) 10
Mesothelioma (J. Possum) . 273
Neurodermati ti s (R. Schoennoehl) 25
Pneumothorax conditon (R.' Newtson) . 132
Rheumatoid arthritis (E. Rios) . ' ■ 21
Vasomotor rhinitis '(W. Dethlefs) ' 169

MOTION JURISDICTION

Amendment: attorney's fee (R. Bult) 77
Amendment: attorney's fee (G. Freeman) 40
Amendment: reopened claim upon receipt of employment status (Sylvester) 105
Amendment: date supplied for TTD (D. Weber) 189
Carrier paid voluntarily (J. Maynard) 42
Denied motion to reconsider (G. Plane) 18
Denied myocardial infarction claim (J. Caward) 190
Denied all relief (J. Dawley) 96
Denied relief on knee foot burn claim (R. Close) 43
Denied reopening ofclaim; claimant not working (V. Fields) 164
Denied reopening of 1962 claim (M. Ingram) 98
Denied reopening (D. Pierce) 58'
Denied reopening of 1962 claim (D. Sanford) ' ' 210
Denied reopening of 1971 claim (C. Simmons) 47
Denied reopening of 1973 arm claim (B. Pangle) 42
Denied reopening ofback claim (J. Byrnes) 160
Denied reopening ofback claim (M. Else) 52
Denied reopening ofback claim (N. Poppenhagen) 72
Denied reopening of neck claim (D. Hamrick) r 72
Denied reopening for osteoarthritis (J. Scott) , 60
Determination on 1966 claim: PTD and TTD (F. Barnette) ' 118
Determination on 1973 claim: no PPD increase (J. Devoe) . 12
Determination on 1974 claim: TTD (D. Garcia) 94
Determination on 1972 claim: medical only (L. Haglund) ■ 14
Determination on 1974 claim: TTD and 10% unscheduled (R.,Haney) 186
Determination: TTD and 60% unscheduled (W. Laine) ' , : 188
Determination on 1973 claim: TTD only (T.G. Long) 167
Determination on 1974claim: TTD only (B. Miller) 206
Determination on 1967 claim: TTD only (E. Montano) r 3'
Determination on 1974 claim: TTD and 10% (J. Quinteros) 167
Determination: PTD and TTD (R. Repin) 207
Determination on 1974 claim: TTD only (L.D. Robinson) r 171
Determination on 1973 claim: TTD only (K. Waring) ^ 168
Determination: TTD only (C. Williams) 190
Determination on 1960 arm claim: TTD only (L. Warner Johnson) 17
Determination on 1973 low back claim: TTD only (R. Bencoach) 22
Determination on 1968back claim: PTD (P. Gatto) 32
Determination on 1967back claim: TTD. only (I .S. Peck) 92
Determination on 1967 finger.claim: 10% forearm and TTD (A. Norton) : 91
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MOTION JURISDICTION (cont.) 

Determination on foot claim: TTD only (L. McDonald)-~---------------------- 188 
Determination on 1970 hip claim: TTD only (W. Lamb)------------------------ 99 
Determination on 1974 leg-back claim: TTD, 10% foot (P. Ayo-Williams)------ 1 O 
Determination: TTD, 15% unscheduled and 10% left leg (T. Gould)------------ 185 
Determination on 1955 leg claim: 5% but no TTD (D. Hiebert)---------------- 36 
No jurisdiction where claim reopened voluntarily after aggravation rights 

expired but during continuance of appeal rights from determination order 
· (J.D. Carter)------- 286 

Referred claim for consolidated hearing (D. Beavers)------------------------ 159 
Referred for consolidated hearing (R. Little)--~---------------------------- 206 
Referred 1971 and 1980 claimi for consolidated hearing (8. Nicholson)------- 105 
Referred 1955 claim for consolidated hearing (R. Olson)--------------------- 46 
Referred back-hip-leg claim for consolidated hearing (D. Hoffman)----------- 58 
Referred knees claim for consolidated hearing (D. McMahon)------------------ 86 
Referred knee claim for consolidated hearing (D. Robertson)----------------- 168 
Referred 1972 claim for hearing (L. Anglin)--------------------------------- 1 
Referred 1972 claim for hearing (E. Hummell)-------------------------------- 187 
Referred 1974 claim for hearing (J. St. John)------------------------------- 36 
Referred back claim for hearing (R~ Fevec)---------------------------------- 164 
Reopened 1950 claim (R. Donaldson)------------------------------------------ 185 
Re6pened 1974 claim (E. Doughty)---------------------------~---------------- 44 
Reopened 1972 claim (N. Espinoza)----~-------------------------------------- 12 
Reopened 1969 claim (R. Gerlitz)-------------------------------------------- 12 
Reopened claim (G. Getman)--~~---------------------------------------------- 166 
Reopened 1973 claim (E. Goodman)-------------------------------------------- 71 
Reopened claim (D. Gray)--------------~------------------------------------- 186 
Reopened 1971 claim (M. Howland)-------------------------------------------- 187 

· Reopened 1969 claim (A.C. Johnson)------------------------------------------ 99 ~ 
Reopened 1972 claim (D. Mciver)-------------~------------------------------- 100 ~ 
Reopened 1951 claim (J. Newberry)------------------------~------------------ 45 
Reopened claim for TTD (0. Wilson)-----------------~----------------~------- 74 
Reopened 1972 back claim (R. Brenneman)------------------------------------- 95 
Reop~ned 1972 back claim (D. Britzius)-------------------~------------------ 52 
Reopened 1967 back claim (P. Burge)-~--------------------------------------- 160 
Reopened 1969 back claim (J. Williams)-------------------------------------- 139 
Reopened eye claim (D. Sharp)----------------------------------------------- 60 
Reopened 1973 knee claim (J. Connor)---------------------------------------- 119 
Reopened 1952 osteomyelitis claim (0. Christopher)-------------------------- 158 
Reopened 1974 shoulder claim (W. Pyle, Jr.)--------------------------------- 59 
Reopened shoulder claim (R. Sattler)---------------------------------------- 59 
Reopened 1974 tibia_ claim (G.Hurley)------~--------------------------------- 91 

PENALTIES AND FEES 

Awarded fcir late. denial. failure to pay interim compensa.tion (C. Clement)--- 95 
Assessable against contributing and noncomplying empl ayers ·for unreasonable 

· conduct {J. Anfilofieff}----------------~-------------------------- 222 
Board has jurisdiction to review fee to be paid by insurer, as well as circuit 

· court (N. Anlauf)---~~---------~----~------------------------------ 214 
Circuit court has jurisdiction to set fee to be paid by insurer under 

ORS 656.386 (1) (J. Huggins)--------------------------------------- 218 
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MOTION JURISDICTION (cont.)

Determination on foot claim: TTD only (L. McDonald) 18S
Determination on 1970 hip claim: TTD only (W. Lamb) 99
Determination on 1974 leg back claim: TTD, 10% foot (P. Ayo Wil1iams) 1
Determination: TTD, 15% unscheduled and 10% left leg (T. Gould) 185
Determination on 1955 leg claim: 5% but no TTD (D. Hiebert) 36
No jurisdiction where claim reopened voluntarily after aggravation rights

expired but during continuance of appeal rights from determination order
(J.D. Carter) 286

Referred claim for consolidated hearing (D. Beavers) 159
Referred for consol idated hearing (R. Little) 206
Referred 1971 and 1980 claims for consolidated hearing (B. Nicholson) 105
Referred 1955 claim for consolidated hearing (R. Olson) 46
Referred back hip leg claim for consolidated hearing (D. Hoffman) 58
Referred knees claim for consolidated hearing (D. McMahon) 86
Referred knee claim for consolidated hearing (D. Robertson) 168
Referred 1972 claim for hearing (L. Anglin) 1
Referred 1972 claim for hearing (E. Hummell) 187
Referred 1974 claim for hearing (J. St. John) 36
Referred back claim for hearing (R. Fevec) 164
Reopened 1950 claim (R. Donaldson) 185
Reopened 1974 claim (E. Doughty) . 44
Reopened 1972 claim (N. Espinoza) 12
Reopened 1969 claim (R. Gerlitz) 12
Reopened claim (G. Getman) 166
Reopened 1973 claim (E. Goodman) 71
Reopened claim (D. Gray) ; , 186
Reopened 1971 claim (M. Howland) 187
Reopened 1969 claim (A.C. Johnson) 99
Reopened 1972 claim (D. Mclver) 100
Reopened 1951 claim (J. Newberry) 45
Reopened claim for TTD (D. Wilson) : 74
Reopened 1972 back claim (R. Brenneman) 95
Reopened 1972 back claim (D. Britzius) . 52
Reopened 1967 back claim (P. Burge) 160
Reopened 1969 back claim (J. Williams) 139
Reopened eye claim (D. Sharp) 60
Reopened 1973 knee claim (J. Connor) 119
Reopened 1952 osteomyelitis claim (0. Christopher) 158
Reopened 1974 shoulder claim (W. Pyle, Jr.) 59
Reopened shoulder claim (R. Sattler) 59
Reopened 1974 tibia claim (G.Hurley) 91

PENALTIES AND FEES* *

Awarded for late denial, failure to pay interim compensation (C. Clement) 95
Assessable against contributing and noncompTying employers for unreasonable

* conduct (J. Anfilofieff) 222
Board has jurisdiction to review fee to be paid by insurer, as well as circuit

court (N. Anlauf) ^ ^ 214
Circuit court has jurisdiction to set fee to be paid by insurer under

ORS 656.386 (1) (J. Huggins) 218
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PENALTIES AND FEES (cont.} 

Date aggravation claim made shifted; no penalty, fee awarded (V. Vasey}----- 93 
Denial without appeal rights still effective where claimant already ~equested 

hearing (T. Dorsey}----------~---------~-----~-------~------------- 144 
, Entitlement to interim compensation ended with denial which had no appeal 

rights (T. Dorsey}------------~------------------------------------ 144 
. Fee awarded in denied claim case without request for same (M. Hall)--------- 56 

Fee for increased TTD rate taken from increase (E. Britt}-------:---------.---- 141 
Fee ordered under judgement & mandate from Court of Appeals (M. Kizer}~----- 83 
Fee r~duced .as excessive (C. Peoples)-------------~------------------------- 134 
Maximum penalty improper where interim compensati.on 2 weeks late, denial one 

week late-(Z. Bahler)-~~------------------------~------------~-----:139 
No fee allow_ed out of -11 ~ubsequent award .. for PPD 11 (R. Moore)----------------- 45 
No penalty, fee where issue not·raised at hearing {R. Carmichael}~---------- 144 
No penalty imposed; substantial compliance, plus weak medical _evidence- · 

. . . .. '{Z. Bahler)-- 139 
None awarded in complicated case re medical bills (S. Mccuistion)-----~----- 113 
Refusal to pay doctor bill where doctor didn 1 t_comply with medical rules not 

unreasonable (C. We~t}-~------~--------~-------------~-----~------- 106 
Refusal to ~ay for electiv~ surgery where 2nd opinion against it found 

unreasonable (D. Tall}------~----------------------------~--------~ 65 
Refused where delay in paying PPD-award for 6ver one year (J. Pyle)--------- 157 
Request denied as premature in Own Motioh matter (H. Lovell}----------------- 69 
Request to increase fee denied (R .. Hedlund)--------------------------------- 178 

. Review of fee issue is de. nova, not a_buse,-o~-discretion (C. Peoples)-------- 134 

PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILITY 
(1) Arm & Shoulder 
(2) Back 
(3) Foot 
(4) Hand 
(5) Leg 
{ 6) Nec_k & Head 
(7} Unclassified 

Arm & Shoulder 

10% each forearm reversed; no permanent disability following carpel tunnel 
surgery (T. Goodman)--------------------------------~------------ 13. 

Wrist injury resulted in•no PPD; partial denial never appealed (D. Hendrix) 120 
90% forearm affirmed; no PTO shown where post-injury disease responsible 

for disability ( S; Ryan}----------:------------- - -- _:_ _ -- -- - -- -- - - -- 136 
~0% reduced to 45%; poor motivation (C. Sidney)--------:------------~----- 137 

Back 

15% reversed and_ remanded; bad back due to inj4ry (E. Edge)--------------- 264 
10% awarded on review (F. Bacon)------------------------------------------ 117 
50% reduced to 25%; heavy physical labor precluded (J. Belcher)----------- 75 
15% increased to 30% for illiterate. hi ghly-modvated, unski 11 ed worker 

· (G. Benavidez)--- 5 
75% reduced to 50%; probably precluded from heavy labor (M. Bryan)-------- 124 
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Date aggravation claim made shifted; no penalty, fee awarded (V. Vasey) 93
Denial without appeal rights still effective where claimant a1ready requested

hearing (T. Dorsey) 144
Entitlement to interim compensation ended with denial which had no appeal

rights (T. Dorsey) 144
Fee awarded in denied claim case without request for same (M. Hall) 56
Fee for increased TTD rate taken from increase (E. Britt) . 141
Fee ordered under judgement & mandate from Court of Appeals (M. Kizer) 83
Fee reduced as excessive (C. Peoples) 134
Maximum penalty improper where interim compensation 2 weeks late, denial one

week late (Z. Bahler) 139
No fee allowed out of "subsequent award, for PPD" (R. Moore) 45
No penalty, fee where issue not raised at hearing (R. Carmichael) 144
No penalty imposed; substantial compliance, plus weak medical evidence

■{Z. Bahler) 139
None awarded in complicated case re medical bills (S. McCuistion) 113
Refusal to pay doctor bill where doctor didn't comply with medical rules not

unreasonable (C. West) ^ ; 106
Refusal to pay for elective surgery where 2nd opinion against it found

unreasonable (D. Tall) 65
Refused where delay in paying PPD’award for over one year (J. Pyle) 157
Request denied as premature in Own Motion matter (H. Lovell) 69
Request to increase fee denied (R. Hedlund) 178
Review of fee issue is de novo, not abuse of discretion (C. Peoples) 134

PENALTIES AND FEES (cont.)

PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILIT 
(1) Arm & Shoulder
(2) Back
(3) Foot
(4) Hand
(5) Leg
(6) Neck & Head
(7) Unclassified

Arm ^ Shoulder

10% each forearm reversed; no permanent disability following carpel tunnel
surgery (T. Goodman) 13.

Wrist injury resulted in no PPD; partial denial never appealed (D. Hendrix) 120
90% forearm affirmed; no PTD shown where post injury disease responsible

for disability {S. Ryan) 136
60% reduced to 45%; poor motivation (C. Sidney) 137

Back

15% reversed and remanded; bad back due to injury (E. Edge) 264
10% awarded on review (F. Bacon) 117
50% reduced to 25%; heavy physical labor precluded (J. Belcher) 75
15% increased to 30% for illiterate, highly motivated, unskilled worker

(6. Benavidez) 5
75% reduced to 50%; probably precluded from heavy labor (M. Bryan) 124
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   PARTIAL DISABILITY {cont.) 

Back (cont.} 

20% increased to 30%; heavy labor precluded (J. Burdett)------------------ 23 
25%.reduced 15% for pre~smah with high school education (T. Flaherty)----- 146 
25% back, 15% foot reversed, detePmination order reinstated (A. Gabriel)-- 165 
80% affirmed; no reasonable effort to obtain.employment (W. Garoutte)----- 53 
70% reduced; determination order affirmed for neck, back injury (C. Hald)- 49 
10% affirmed; dissent explains.(A. Hanawalt)-------------------"-~--------- 77 
45% reduced to 25% (H. Jones)------------------"--------------------------- 147 
·10% increased to 30% for voluntary retiree (N. Jones)------------------.--- 50 
90% reduced to 60% where no surgery, refused job assistance (P. Lowry)---- 41 
5% reversed; no perma·nent impairment (D. Richardson)-----:-"-------------- -- 207 
15% increased to 25% for older worker with few transferrable skills 

. (R. White)- 27 
30% reversed, TTD also; chiropractor & claimant credibility in doubt 

(S. Windham)--- 107 
10%. increased to 30%; precluded from heavy labor, 68 years old (R. Wolfer) 109 

Hand 

55% finger affirmed; no loss to hand shown (K. 'Kolleas}-------------:------ 147 

~-
60% reduced to 45% based on testimony, medical evi~enc~ (C. Buff)--------- 126 
Fractured femur fully recovered; ~TD reversed to no PPD (K. Casteel)------ 127 
Fi n_di ng of 75% reduced. to 60% because ·of refusal to subm.i t to surgery 

· (R. Shumway)------ 114 8 
Neck & Head 

Remanded for consideration of permanent disability guidelines; with dissent 
(D. Gardner)-~---- 191 

60% ·reduced to 30% for head injury with dizziness, seizures (R .. Holub)---- 89 
20% increased to 90% for problems with vision, personality disorder, memory 

loss (A~ Munsell)------------------~----------------------------- 152 

Unclass·ified 

20% reversed for allergic reaction; no pe.rmanent disability shown (N. Hunt) 250 
5% awarded on review for loss-of- smell & taste (K. Babcock)--------------- 4 
30% affirmed for psychological problems following cave-in· accident 

(R. Hedlund)---- 97 
60% reduced to 35% (R. Whitman)------------------------------------------- 28 
Scheduled award (eye) changed to unscheduled (L. Robbins)----------------- 208 
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Back (cont.)

20% increased to 30%; heavy labor precluded (J. Burdett) 23
25%,reduced 15% for pressman with high school education (T. Flaherty) 146
25% back, 15% foot reversed, determination order reinstated (A. Gabriel) 165
80% affirmed; no reasonable effort to obtain.employment (W. Garoutte) 53
70% reduced; determination order affirmed for neck, back injury (C. Hald) 49
10% affirmed; dissent explains (A. Hanawalt) 77
45% reduced to 25% (H. Jones) 147
10% increased to 30% for voluntary retiree (N. Jones) . 50
90% reduced to 60% where no surgery, refused job assistance (P. Lowry) 41
5% reversed; no permanent impairment (D. Richardson) . 207
15% increased to 25% for older worker with few transferrable skills

(R. White) 27
30% reversed, TTD also; chiropractor & claimant credibility in doubt

(S. Windham) 107
10% increased to 30%; precluded from heavy labor, 68 years old (R. Wolfer) 109

Hand

55% finger affirmed; no loss to hand shown (K. Kolleas) 147

Leg

60% reduced to 45% based on testimony, medical evidence' (G. Buff) 126
Fractured femur fully recovered; PTD reversed to no PPD (K. Casteel) 127
Finding of 75% reduced to 60% because*of refusal to submit to surgery

(R. Shumway) 114

Neck & Head

Remanded for consideration of permanent disability guidelines; with dissent
(D. Gardner) 191

60% reducedto 30% for headinjury with dizziness, seizures (R. Holub) 89
20% increased to 90% for problems with vision, personality disorder, memory

loss (A'. Munsell) 152

Unclassified

20% reversed for allergic reaction; no permanent disability shown (N. Hunt) 250
5% awarded on review for loss of smell & taste (K. Babcock) 4
30% affirmed for psychological problems following cave in'accident

(R. Hedlund) 97
60% reducedto 35% (R. Whitman) 28
Scheduled award (eye) changed to unscheduled (L. Robbins) 208

PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILIT (cont.)
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Board applies AMA Guidelines to determine unusual impairments (A. Munsell)-- 152 
Carrier not estopped to deny claim during year after Determination Order 

(R. Newtson)----- 132 
-Circuit Court has jurisdiction to set fee to be paid by insurer under 

ORS 656.386 (1) (J. Huggins)-------------------------------------~- 218 
Claim reopened voluntarily, after aggravation rights expire but during 

continuance of appeal· rights from Determination Order is entitled to 
closure under ORS 656.268 (J.O. Carter)--------------~------------- 286 

Court of Appeals takei jurisdiction of attorhey's fee question (N. Anlauf)-- 214 
Dissent: Board sh6uld consider constitutional questions (S. Stone)--------- 84 
Due process requires notice to employer/carrier in Circuit Court proceeding 

re fees (J. Huggins)----~-----~---------_: __________________________ 218 
Jailed claimant given extension to retain attorney for review (S. Chochrek)- 68 
Hlast injurious exposure rule" relieves more recent employer whose exposure 

could not contribute to cause of disease (J. Fossum)--------------- 273 
No estoppel by formal claim acceptance (R. Newtson)-------------_: ___________ 132 
Order vacating order of abatement (M. Peterson)----------------------------- 83 
PPD payments pursuant to Referee 1 s order to be suspended while getting TTD 

under vocational rehabilitation (C. Tackett)----------------------- 61 
Referee cannot dismiss case where affirming Determination Order (N. Jones)-- 50 
WCB jurisdiction limited to matters concerning claims (Broadway Cab)-------- 260 
Where claimant hospitalized before Determination Order issues, claim 

prematurely closed (R. Brown)-------------------------~------------ 231 

RE CONSIDERATION 

Abatement order for reconsideration (D. Tall)------------------------------- 159 
Motion denied; unnecessary to resolve conflict in evidence regarding TTD 

. (R. Hedlund)--- 178 
Order of abatement (D. Dooley)----------------------------------~----------- 34 
Order on Review affirmed; no increase in PPD (T. Riddle)-------------------- 46 
Order on Review reaffirmed (J. Clark)--------~------------------------------ 40 

REMAND 

Aggravation·claim ordered accepted on Remand from Court of Appeals 
(E. Pumoelly)--- 3 

Leg injury case remanded for evidence of.consequences to hip or back (C. Clark) 10 
Motion denied; no showing that evidence couldn 1 t be produced at hearing 

(R. Barnett)------ 172 
Motion denied; no s~owing why new evidence not available at hear.ing {L. Egge) 176 

· Motion denied (R. Lakehomer)-~---------~--------~--------------------------- 205 
Motion denied {G. Saxe)--~---------------~--~--~---------------------------- 183 
Motion denied; claimant's choice to proceed with hearing, close record 

· (C. Waldron)----- 183 
Motion granted; surgery results not reasonably. anticipated at hearing 

· · . · (R. Caul)-~- 175 
Motion granted (W. Dean)-------------------------~-------------~------------ 176 
Motion granted based on affddavit of doctor whose report was decisive 

(C. Hargens)---- 177 
Motion granted (A. Kojah)--------------------------------------------------- 121 
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PROCEDURE

Board applies AMA Guidelines to determine unusual impairments (A. Munsell)- 152
Carrier not estopped to deny claim during year after. Determination Order

(R. Newtson) 132
•Circuit Court has jurisdiction to set fee to be paid by insurer under

ORS 656.386 (1) (J..Huggins) 218
Claim reopened voluntarily, after aggravation rights expire but during

continuance of appear rights from Determination Order is entitled to
closure under ORS 656.268 (J.D. Carter) 286

Court of Appeals takes jurisdiction of attorney's fee question (N. Anlauf) 214
Dissent: Board should consider constitutional questions (S. Stone) 84
Due process requires notice to employer/carrier in Circuit Court proceeding

re fees (J. Huggins) , 218
Jailed claimant given extension to retain attorney for review (S. Chochrek) 68
"Last injurious exposure rule" relieves more recent employer whose exposure

could not contribute to cause of disease (J. Possum) ; 273
No estoppel by formal claim acceptance (R. Newtson) 132
Order vacating order of abatement (M. Peterson) 83
PPD payments pursuant to Referee's order to be suspended while getting TTD

under vocational rehabilitation (C. Tackett) 61
Referee cannot dismiss case where affirming Determination Order (N. Jones) 50
WCB jurisdiction limited to matters concerning claims (Broadway Cab) 260
Where claimant hospitalized before Determination Order issues, claim

prematurely closed (R. Brown) 231

RECONSIDERATION

Abatement order for reconsideration (D. Tall) 159
Motion denied; unnecessary to resolve conflict in evidence regarding TTD

(R. Hedlund) 178
Order of abatement (D. Dooley) ^ 34
Order on Review affirmed; no increase in PPD (T. Riddle) 46
Order on Review reaffirmed (J. Clark) 40

REMAND

Aggravation claim ordered accepted on Remand from Court of Appeals
(E. Pumpelly) 3

Leg injury case remanded for evidence of.consequences to hip or back (C. Clark) 10
Motion denied; no showing thatevidencecouldn't beproduced at hearing

(R. Barnett) 172
Motion denied; no showing why new evidence not available at hearing (L. Egge) 176
Motion denied (R. Lakehomer) 205
Motion denied (G. Saxe) 183
Motion denied; claimant'schoice toproceed withhearing, close record

(C. Waldron) 183
Motion granted; surgery results not reasonably anticipated at hearing

(R. Caul) 175
Motion granted (W. Dean) , , 176
Motion granted based on affidavit of doctor whose report was decisive

(C. Hargens) 177
Motion granted (A. Kojah) 121
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(cont.) 

Motion granted (A. Neiss)-----.------------.------------------------------- 179 
Motion granted (J. Peterson)~----------------------------------------------- 183 
Motion should be supported with affidavit showing efforts to obtain evidence 

· (R. Barnett)---- 172 
Request denied; no persuasive reason (C. Clement)------------~----~--------- 95 
Request denied; evidence available before hearing (J. Manley)--------------- 179 
Request for remand to referee denied; evidence available at hearing (J. Patton) 35 

REQUEST FOR HEARING 

When one party raises issue of extent, other party need not cross appeal 
(L. Robbins)---- 208 

REQUEST FOR REVIEW 

Dismissed: abandoned (M. Holt)-------------------------------------------- 120 
Dismissed: presiding Referee's order denying Motion to Dismiss not final 

. (K. Haley)---- 34 
Dismissed: withdrawn (R. Bergman)------------------------------------------ 86 
Withdrawn (0. Hinojosa)-------------~--------------------------------------- 205 
Request for dismissal denied; issues on appeal not moot (J. Johnson)-------: 44 

STIPULATIONS & SETTLEMENTS 

No disputed claim settlement allowed under .307 order (R. DeGraff)---------- 244 
Prior stipulation not invalidated, despite questionable attorney's fee 

. (J. Leppe)-- 130 
Set-offs of future benefits generally frowned on (L. Miller)---------------- 103 

TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY 

Benefits generally determined on medical, not lay, testimony (J. Shore)----- 122 · 
No entitlement where general layoff after release to work (K. Kolleas)------ 147 
No interim compensation due if not off work due to injury (� .-Likens)------- 2 
No interim TTD where claimant retired-($. Stone)---------------------------- 84 
No TTD under vocational rehabilitation unless 11 authori_zed program 11 

· · (A. Hanawalt)-- 77 
Rate--computed on basis of "regular" employment, not "sporadic", although 

average was less. than 40 ho·urs. per week (E. Britt)----------------- 144 
Referee 1 s award reversed; claimant working, limited only re specific job 

. . (R. Hedlund)---- 97 
When receiving vocational rehabilitation TTD, PPD payments to be suspended 

(C. Tackett)--- 61 

THIRD PARTY CLAIM 

Dispute re distribution settled with discussion (L. Miller)--------~-------- 103 · 
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Motion granted (A. Neiss) 179
Motion granted (0. Peterson): 183
Motion should besupported with affidavit showing efforts to obtain evidence

(R. Barnett) 172
Request denied; no persuasive reason (C. Clement) : 95
Request denied; evidence available before hearing (J. Manley) 179
Request for remand to referee denied; evidence available at hearing (J. Patton) 35

REQUEST FOR HEARING

When one party raises issue of extent, other party need not cross appeal
(L. Robbins) 208

REQUEST FOR REVIEW

Dismissed: abandoned (M. Holt) 120
Dismissed: presiding Referee's order denying Motion to Dismiss not final

(K. Haley) 34
Dismissed: withdrawn (R. Bergman) 86
Withdrawn (0. Hinojosa) . 205
Request for dismissal denied; issues on appeal not moot (J. Johnson) 44

STIPULATIONS & SETTLEMENTS

No disputed claim settlement allowed under .307 order (R. DeGraff) 244
Prior stipulation not invalidated, despite questionable attorney's fee

(J. Leppe) 130
Set offs of future benefits generally frowned on (L. Miller) 103

TEMPORAR .TOTAL DISABILIT 

Benefits generally determined oh medical, not lay, testimony (J. Shore) 122
No entitlement where general layoff after release to work (K. Kolleas) 147
No interim compensation diie if not off work due to injury (D.'Likens) 2
No interim TTD where claimant retired'(S. Stone) 84
No TTD under vocational rehabilitation unless "authorized program"

(A. Hanawalt) 77
Rate computed on basis of "regular" employment, not "sporadic", although

average was less.than 40 hours per week (E. Britt) 144
Referee's award reversed; claimant working, limited only re specific job

(R. Hedlund) 97
When receiving vocational rehabilitation TTD, PPD payments to be suspended

(C. Tackett) 61

REMAND (cont.)

THIRD PART CLAIM

Dispute re distribution settled with discussion (L. Miller)
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TOTAL DISABILITY 

Affirmed, based on social/vocational evidence (B. Vinson)------------------- 189 
Affirmed; 66 years old, illiterate logger who cannot log with minor leg injury 

(D. Perkins)--- 180 
Awarded; 61 years old, 5th grade education, futile to look for work 

· (H. Petersen)-- 269 
Determination Order awarding PTO affirmed (L. Clair}------------------------ 28 
Reduced to 60% leg and 10% unscheduled; ·refused surgery, poor motivation 

· (R. Shumway)---- 114 
Where Determination Order awards PTO, burden on employer (L. Clair)--------- 28 

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 

Confused issue of tuition reimbursement; dissent (A. Hanawalt)-------------- 77 
Department has duty to act on claimant's request for services; dissent 

(A. Hanawalt)---~ 77 
No entitlement to special maintenance allowance shown (C. Tackett)-~-------- 61 
While receiving TTD pursuant to voe rehab, PPD payments suspended (C. Tackett) 61 
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TOTAL DISABILIT 

Affirmed, based on social/vocational evidence (B. Vinson) 189
Affirmed; 66 years old, illiterate logger who cannot log with minor leg injury

(D. Perkins) 180
Awarded; 61 years old, 5th grade education, futile to look for work

(H. Petersen) 269
Determination Order awarding PTD affirmed (L. Clair) 28
Reduced to 60% leg and 10% unscheduled; refused surgery, poor motivation

(R, Shumway) 114
Where Determination Order awards PTD, burden on employer (L. Clair) 28

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

Confused issue of, tuition reimbursement; dissent (A. Hanawalt) 77
Department has duty to act on claimant's request for services; dissent

(A. Hanawalt) 77
No entitlement to special maintenance allowance shown (C. Tackett) 61
While receiving TTD pursuant to voc rehab, PPD payments suspended (C. Tackett) 61
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VOLUME 31 

LIST OF MEMORANDUM OPINIONS 

The following Memorandum· Opinions are not published in this volume. 
Using the numbers provided, you may order them from the Workers'. Compen­
sation Board. -

J. 
M. 
s. 
R. 
L. 
F. 

0. 
E. 
A. 
R. 
D. 
D. 

E. 
E. 
R. 
C. 
L. 
E. 
D. 

Anfilofieff: Affirmed TTD--Amount of weekly earnings in dispute 
Arata: Affirmed 15% foot---------------------------------------­
Astor: Affirmed 10% unscheduled--------------------------------­
Atkins: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier-----------------­
Barnett: Affirmed denial of aggravation------------------------­
Baxter: Affirmed 20% low back and no TTD----------- 80-06803 & 

Beard: Affirmed denial of shoulder claim-----------------------­
Behnke: Affirmed denial of back claim---------------------------
Bekkedahl: Affirmed denial of aggravation----------------------­
Briley:· Affirmed TTD .only for low back claim-------------------­
Brumb1e: Affirmed denial for hearing loss----------------------­
Bryant: Affirmed denial of hand aggravation----.----------:--------

80-00438 
79-09568 
80-04060 
79-03505 
79-11121 
80-07061 

79-08384 
79-09155 
79-09156 
79-08673 
79-06925 
80-03746 

Chapman: Affirmed PTD--Psychological factor persuasive---------- 79-09992 
Charles: Affirmed remanding of elbow claim to carrier----------- 79-08348 
Connelly: Affirmed remanding of foot claim to carrier----------- 79-08210 
Costanza: Affirmed responsibility of one carrier----- 79-08950 & 79-08086 
Crothers: Affirmed denial of back-leg claim--------------------- 80-00643 
Crouch: Affirmed denial~----------~-----------~----:-- 80-01923 & 80-02680 
Crowe: Affirmed--~--------------------------------~-- 79-07603 & 79-07604 

W.E. Daley: Affirmed remanding 9f knee claim to carrier------------ 80-00781 
G. Dickinson: Affirmed denial of burns-head-neck claim------------- 79-09102. 
R •. Dittman:. Affirmed remanding of heart claim to carrier----------- 79-07877 · 
L. Eide: Affirmed denial of neck claim----------------------------- 78-10061 

H. Farris: Affirmed reman~ing ·of ear aggravation to carrier------- - 80-01442 & 
80-03443 

J. Fielder: Affirme4 remanding of hernia claim to carrier--~------- 80-03907 
L. Fowles: Affirmed ·remanding of back claim to employer and 

assessing of penalties--~-~--------~-----------~------------------ 80-04254 
L. Fox: Affirmed back PTO-------:----------------·------------------- 79-09871 
A. Freeman: Affirmed 20% unscheduled~-----------~------------------ 80-04201 

V. Garrett: Affirmed 10% low back---------~------------------------ 80-01788 
W. Gossman: Affirmed denial of back claim-------------------------- 80-04763 
J. Haberstitch: Affirmed 75% unscheduled--------------------------- 79-10600 
F. Hamel: Affirmed denial of bad claim---------------------------- 79-00690 
D. Hamilton:· Affirmed denial of disease-sewer claim---------------- 80-02830 
G. Hanneman: Affirmed denial of right wrist claim------~----------- 80-01828 

L. Harmon: 
T. Harmon: 
J. Harvey: 

Affirmed deni a 1----------------------~------------------- 79-07338 
Affirmed 35% low back----------------------------------- 78-09722· 
Affirmed 25% low back----------------------------------- 79-10258 
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VOLUME 31

LIST OF MEMORANDUM OPINIONS

The following Memorandunv Opinions are not published in this volume.
Using the numbers provided, you may order them from the Workers' Compen
sation Board.

J. Anfilofieff: Affirmed TTD Amount of weekly earnings in dispute 80 00438
M. Arata; Affirmed IS foot 79 09568
S. Astor: Affirmed 10% unscheduled 80 04060
R. Atkins: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier 79 03505
L. Barnett: Affirmed denial of aggravation 79 11121
F. Baxter: Affirmed 20% low back and no TTD 80 06803 & 80 07061

0. Beard: Affirmed denial of shoulder claim 79 08384
E. Behnke: Affirmed denial of back claim 79 09155
A. Bekkedahl: Affirmed denial of aggravation 79 09156
R. Briley:' Affirmed TTD .only for low back claim 79 08673
D. Brumble: Affirmed denial for hearing loss 79 06925
D. Bryant: Affirmed denial of hand aggravation 80 03746

E. Chapman: Affirmed PTD Psychological factor persuasive 79 09992
E. Charles: Affirmed remanding of elbow claim to carrier 79 08348
R. Connelly: Affirmed remanding of foot claim to carrier 79 08210
C. Costanza: Affirmed responsibility of one carrier 79 08950 & 79 08086
L. Crothers: Affirmed denial of back leg claim 80 00643
E. Crouch: Affirmed denial . 80 01923 & 80 02680
D. Crowe: Affirmed ' : 79 07603 & 79 07604

W.E. Daley: Affirmed remanding of knee claim to carrier 80 00781
G. Dickinson; Affirmed denial of burns head neck claim 79 09102
R. Dittman;. Affirmed remanding of heart claim to carrier 79 07877
L. Eide: Affirmed denial of neck claim 78 10061

H. Farris: Affirmed remanding of ear aggravationto carrier 80 01442
80 03443

J. Fielder: Affirmed remanding of herniaclaim to carrier 80 03907
L. Fowles: Affirmed remanding of back claim to employer and
assessing of penalties , 80 04254

L. Fox: Affirmed back PTD ' 79 09871
A. Freeman:. Affirmed 20% unscheduled 80 04201

V. Garrett: Affirmed 10% low back 80 01788
W. Gossman: Affirmed denial of back claim 80 04763
J. Haberstitch: Affirmed 75% unscheduled 79 10600
F. Hamel.': Affirmed denial of back claim 79 00690
D. Hamilton: Affirmed denialof disease sewer claim 80 02830
G. Hanneman: Affirmed denialof right wristclaim 80 01828

L. Harmon: Affirmed denial 79 07338
T. Harmon: Affirmed 35% low back 78 09722
d. Harvey: Affirmed 25% low back 79 10258
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Haskell: Affirmed denial of back claim------------------------- 80-00932 
D. Hays: Affirmed PTO for leg burn-------------------~------------ 79-02046 
H. Husted: Affirmed 10% arm----~---------------------------------- 79-06486 
G. Hyman: Affirmed denial of psychological claim------------------ 79-10473 
G.· Imbler: Affirmed 10% left leg-------------------------~-------- 80-08022 

0. Jeanmarie: Affirmed denial of back claim----------------------- 80-02022 
R. Jennison: Affirmed remanding of knee claim to carrier------~--- 79-08646 
L.· Johnson: Denied aggravation claim-------~---------------------- 80-03582 
S. Jones: Affirmed denial of neck-back claim---------------------- 80-01984 

E. Keesee: Affirmed denial of back-occupational disease claim----- 80-00026 & 
80-00214 

E. Kerr: Affirmed 20% low back-----------------~-------------~---- 79-08908 
D. Killmer: Affirmed setting aside of denial of neck-back aggravation------

----------------- 79-08323 
T. Knickerbocker: Affirmed PTO------------------------------------ 79-10603 
B. Korentzoff: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier------------- 80-02553 
C. Kundert: Affirmed 20% leg~------------------------------------- 78-00254 
J. Kunkle: Affirmed denial of medical----------------------------- 80-03674 

H. Lipe: Affirmed compensability of tinnitus---------------------- 80-00984 
C. Livesay: Affirmed.60% leg .and 75% hip-shoulder----------------- 79-10108 
J. Lorett: Affirmed 30% neck-shoulder-back------------------------ 79-10i56 
E. Luzkow: Affirmed remanding of heart claim to carrier----------- 79-02839 

R. Madril: Affirmed 25% low back----------------------- 78-05798 & 79-08024 
D. Magnuson: Affirmed 60% left leg and 25% right leg-------------- 78-03257 
E. Makris: Affirmed 50% low back---------------------------------- 79-05268 
B. Marvel: Affirmed 15% unscheduled-----------~------------------- 79-06192 
J. Moudy Mathis: ·.Affirmed carrier 1 s acceptance--------~----------- 78-03857 
W. McCollum: Affirmed denial of aggravation---------------~------- 80-04083 

J. McDowell: Affirmed denial of spastic colon--------------------- 80-05028 
T. McHugh: Affirmed 40% unscheduled upper body-------------------- 80-06822 
C. Meyer: Affirmed denial of aggravation-------------------------- 80-00389 
J. Miller: Affirmed 10% neck---------------------------~---------- 80-04168 
L. Mueller: Affirmed PTD for low back-hip claim------------------- 79-00288 

G. Neville: Affirmed ·denial of knee claim------------------------- 80-05231 
G. Oden: Affirmed 10% back-----------------------------~----------- 80-04407 
G. Ott: Affirmed denial of leg claim------~-------------------~--- 79-09654 

J. Pache: Affirmed remanding of head-neck claim to carrier-------- 80-02560 
J. Patterson: Affirmed remanding of cerebral infarct to carrier--- 79-09523 
R. Peabody: Affirmed remanding of back aggravation to carrier----- 80-06453 
K. Pederson: Affirmed 25% .low back and TTD----------~------------- 79-00576 
J. Peterson: Affirmed· dismissal--------------~-------------------- 80-10003 
R. Petrie: Affirmed denial of aggravation------------------------- 80-02655 

G. Pettey: Affirmed setting aside of carrier's medical _denial------80-02562 
D. Pfister: Affirmed denial of low back claim---------- _78-08641-& 79~03500 
D. Pieren: Affirmed remanding of nerve entrapment claim to one carrier 

in lieu of two other carriers------------ 80-01951 & 80-00183 & 79-08032 
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R. Haskell: Affirmed denial of back claim 80 00932
D. Hays: Affirmed PTD for leg burn 79 02046
H. Husted: Affirmed 10% arm 79 06486
G. Hyman: Affirmed denial of psychological claim 79 10473
G. Imbler: Affirmed 10% left leg 80 08022

0. Jeanmarie: Affirmed denial of back claim 80 02022
R. Jennison: Affirmed remanding of knee claim to carrier 79 08646
L. Johnson: Denied aggravation claim ^ 80 03582
S. Jones: Affirmed denial of neck back claim 80 01984

E. Keesee: Affirmed denial of back occupational disease claim 80 00026 &
80 00214

E. Kerr: Affirmed 20% low back : 79 08908
D. Killmer: Affirmed setting aside of denial of neck back aggravation

79 08323
T. Knickerbocker: Affirmed PTD 79 10603
B. Korentzoff: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier 80 02553
C. Kundert: Affirmed 20% leg 78 00254
J. Kunkle: Affirmed denial of medical 80 03674

H. Lipe: Affirmed compensability of tinnitus 80 00984
C. Livesay: Affirmed 60% leg and 75% hip shoulder 79 10108
J. Lorett: Affirmed 30% neck shoulder back 79 10156
E. Luzkow: Affirmed remanding of heart claim to carrier 79 02839

R. Madril: Affirmed 25% low back 78 05798 & 79 08024
D. Magnuson: Affirmed 60% left leg and 25% right leg 78 03257
E. Makris: Affirmed 50% low back 79 05268
B. Marvel:. Affirmed 15% unscheduled 79 06192
J. Moudy Mathis: '.Affirmed carrier's acceptance 78 03857
W. McCollum: Affirmed denial of aggravation 80 04083

J. McDowell: Affirmed denial of spastic colon 80 05028
T. McHugh: Affirmed 40% unscheduled upper body 80 06822
C. Meyer: Affirmed denial of aggravation 80 00389
J. Miller: Affirmed 10% neck ^ 80 04168
L. Mueller: Affirmed PTD for low back hip claim 79 00288

G. Neville: Affirmed denial of knee claim 80 05231
G. Oden: Affirmed 10% back 80 04407
G. Ott: Affirmed denial of leg claim 79 09654

J. Pache: Affirmed remanding of head neck claim to carrier 80 02560
J. Patterson: Affirmed remanding of cerebral infarct to carrier 79 09523
R. Peabody: Affirmed remanding of back aggravation tocarrier 80 06453
K. Pederson: Affirmed 25% low back and TTD 79 00576
J. Peterson: Affirmed dismissal 80 10003
R. Petrie: Affirmed denial of aggravation 80 02655

G. Pettey: Affirmed setting aside of carrier's medical.denial 80 02562
D. Pfister: Affirmed denial of low back claim .78 08641 & 79 03500
D. Pieren: Affirmed remanding of nerve entrapment claim to one carrier
in lieu of two other carriers 80 01951 & 80 00183 & 79 08032
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V. Puckett: Affinned 75% right middle finger an·d 25% thumb------- 79-05340 
G. Pugmire:. Affirmed 10% low back and no interscapular-----------.80-01659 
A. Reed: Affirmed partial denial of elbow claim------------------ 80-01540 
E. Rios: Affirmed denial-------------------------------~--------- 80-08670 
G. Riv·era: · Affirmed denial of back aggravation------------------:.. 79-08138 

· D. Rosacker: Affirmed 15% l9w back------------------------------- 79-07496 

L. Salchenberger: Affirmed denial of heart disease---- 79-07531 & 79-07532 
D. Sackett: Affi nned remandfng of back claim to carrier---------- 79-09448 
K. Satket: Affir~ed 10% left leg~----:..---------~------------~---- 80-04173 
D. Sawicki: Affirmed 15% unscheduled and no TTD------------------ 79-10117 
D. Schubbe: Affirmed remanding of back claim to carrier-..: ________ 80-00331 
B. Smith: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier; timeliness not an issue 

-------------------- 79-08507 

A. South: Affi-nned denial--claimant an excluded owner------------ 78-01909 
J. Spurgers: ~ffirmed dismissal for failure to.prosecute--------- ·80-08913 
R. Starkel: Affirmed denial of bicycle accident claim------------ 79-06074 
P. Starr, Jr.: Affirmed no PPD on back claim--------------------- 80-03338 
J. Str~ub:. Affirmed PTO------------------------------~----------- 79-06374 

M. Tapia: Affirmed TTD for big toe------------------------------- 80-04138 
M·. Taylor: Affirmed rio PPD for right shoulder----·---------------- 80-02194 
V. Wagner: Affirmed 30% low back--------------------------------- 80-01859 
C. Weatherford: Affirmed PTO------------------------------------- 79-01388 
T. West fa 11: . ·Affirmed deni al--not a subject worker--------------- 80-01122 
C. Whitlock: Affirmed setting.aside of back ·denial---- 79-09860 & 79-04211 
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V. Puckett: Affirmed 75% right middle finger and 25% thumb 79 05340
G. Pugmire:. Affirmed 10% low back and no interscapular .80 01659
A. Reed: Affirmed partial denial of elbow claim 80 01540
E. Rios: Affirmed denial 80 08670
G. Rivera: Affirmed denial of back aggravation 79 08138
D. Rosacker: Affirmed 15% low back 79 07496

L. Salchenberger: Affirmed denial, of heart disease 79 07531 & 79 07532
D. Sackett: Affirmed remanding of back claim to carrier 79 09448
K. Sacket: Affirmed 10% left leg ^ 80 04173
D. Sawicki: Affirmed 15% unscheduled and no TTD 79 10117
D. Schubbe: Affirmed remanding of back claim to carrier 80 00331
B. Smith: Affirmed remanding of claim to carrier; timeliness not an issue

79 08507

A. South; Affirmed denial claimant an excludedowner 78 01909
J. Spurgers: Affirmed dismissal for failure to.prosecute 80 08913
R. Starkel: Affirmed denial of bicycle accident claim 79 06074
P. Starr, Jr.: Affirmed no PPD on back claim 80 03338
J. Straub: Affirmed PTD 79 06374

M. Tapia: Affirmed TTD for big toe 80 04138
M. Taylor: Affirmed no PPD for right shoulder ' 80 02194
V. Wagner: Affirmed 30% low back 80 01859
C. Weatherford: Affirmed,PTD 79 01388
T. Westfall: Affirmed denial not a subject worker 80 01122
C. Whitlock: Affirmed setting aside of back denial 79 09860 & 79 04211
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